

DECEMBER 21, 1988

OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON

ISSUE 88-24



IN THIS ISSUE

Agriculture, Department of
Arts Commission
Attorney General's Office
Basic Health Plan
Building Code Council
Community College Education, Board for
Ecology, Department of
Employment Security Department
Financial Management, Office of
Fisheries, Department of
Hospital Commission
Insurance Commissioner

Labor and Industries, Department of
Licensing, Department of
Liquor Control Board
Lower Columbia College
Personnel, Department of
Pharmacy, Board of
Skagit Valley College
Social and Health Services, Department of
State Employees Benefits Board
Transportation, Department of
Transportation Improvement Board
Washington State University
Wildlife, Department of

(Subject/Agency index at back of issue)
This issue contains documents officially
filed not later than December 7, 1988

CITATION

Cite all material in the Washington State Register by its issue number and sequence within that issue, preceded by the acronym WSR. Example: The 37th item in the August 5, 1981, Register would be cited as WSR 81-15-037.

PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

A copy of each document filed with the code reviser's office, pursuant to chapter 28B.19 or 34.04 RCW, is available for public inspection during normal office hours. The code reviser's office is located on the ground floor of the Legislative Building in Olympia. Office hours are from 8 a.m. to noon and from 1 p.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday, except legal holidays. Telephone inquiries concerning material in the Register or the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) may be made by calling (206) 753-7470 (SCAN 234-7470).

REPUBLICATION OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS

All documents appearing in the Washington State Register are prepared and printed at public expense. There are no restrictions on the republication of official documents appearing in the Washington State Register. All news services are especially encouraged to give wide publicity to all documents printed in the Washington State Register.

CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to RCW 34.08.040, the publication of rules or other information in this issue of the Washington State Register is hereby certified to be a true and correct copy of such rules or other information, except that headings of public meeting notices have been edited for uniformity of style.

DENNIS W. COOPER
Code Reviser

STATE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE

The maximum allowable interest rate applicable for the month of December 1988 pursuant to RCW 19.52.020 is twelve point one three percent (12.13%).

NOTICE: FEDERAL LAW PERMITS FEDERALLY INSURED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS IN THE STATE TO CHARGE THE HIGHEST RATE OF INTEREST THAT MAY BE CHARGED BY ANY FINANCIAL INSTITUTION IN THE STATE. THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE RATE OF INTEREST SET FORTH ABOVE MAY NOT APPLY TO A PARTICULAR TRANSACTION.

The maximum allowable retail installment contract service charge applicable for calendar year 1988 pursuant to RCW 63.14.130(1)(a) is twelve and one-quarter percent (12.25%).

The maximum allowable retail installment contract service charge for the purchase of a motor vehicle pursuant to RCW 63.14.130(2)(a) is fourteen percent (14.0%) for the fourth calendar quarter of 1988.

WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER

(ISSN 0164-6389) is published twice each month by the Statute Law Committee, Office of the Code Reviser, Olympia, WA 98504, pursuant to RCW 34.08.020. Subscription rate is \$161.70 per year, sales tax included, postpaid to points in the United States. Second-class postage paid at Olympia, Washington.

Changes of address notices, subscription orders, and undelivered copies should be sent to:

WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER
Code Reviser's Office
Legislative Building
Olympia, WA 98504

The Washington State Register is an official publication of the state of Washington. It contains proposed, emergency, and permanently adopted administrative rules, as well as other documents filed with the code reviser's office pursuant to RCW 34.08.020 and 42.30.075. Publication of any material in the Washington State Register is deemed to be official notice of such information.

Raymond W. Haman
Chairman, Statute Law Committee

Kerry S. Radcliff
Editor

Dennis W. Cooper
Code Reviser

Joyce Matzen
Subscription Clerk

Gary Reid
Chief Assistant Code Reviser

STYLE AND FORMAT OF THE WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER

1. ARRANGEMENT OF THE REGISTER

Documents are arranged within each issue of the Register according to the order in which they are filed in the code reviser's office during the pertinent filing period. The three part number in the heading distinctively identifies each document, and the last part of the number indicates the filing sequence within an issue's material.

2. PROPOSED, ADOPTED, AND EMERGENCY RULES OF STATE AGENCIES AND INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION

The three types of rule-making actions taken under the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) or the Higher Education Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 28B.19 RCW) may be distinguished by the size and style of type in which they appear.

- (a) **Proposed rules** are those rules pending permanent adoption by an agency and are set forth in eight point type.
- (b) **Adopted rules** have been permanently adopted and are set forth in ten point type.
- (c) **Emergency rules** have been adopted on an emergency basis and are set forth in ten point oblique type.

3. PRINTING STYLE—INDICATION OF NEW OR DELETED MATERIAL

RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of certain marks to indicate amendments to existing agency rules. This style quickly and graphically portrays the current changes to existing rules as follows:

- (a) In amendatory sections—
 - (i) underlined material is new material;
 - (ii) ~~deleted material is ((~~lined out and bracketed between double parentheses~~))~~;
- (b) Complete new sections are prefaced by the heading NEW SECTION;
- (c) The repeal of an entire section is shown by listing its WAC section number and caption under the heading REPEALER.

4. EXECUTIVE ORDERS, COURT RULES, NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS

Material contained in the Register other than rule-making actions taken under the APA or the HEAPA does not necessarily conform to the style and format conventions described above. The headings of these other types of material have been edited for uniformity of style; otherwise the items are shown as nearly as possible in the form submitted to the code reviser's office.

5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF RULES

- (a) Permanently adopted agency rules take effect thirty days after the rules and the agency order adopting them are filed with the code reviser's office. This effective date may be delayed, but not advanced, and a delayed effective date will be noted in the promulgation statement preceding the text of the rule.
- (b) Emergency rules take effect upon filing with the code reviser's office and remain effective for a maximum of ninety days from that date.
- (c) Rules of the state Supreme Court generally contain an effective date clause in the order adopting the rules.

6. EDITORIAL CORRECTIONS

Material inserted by the code reviser's office for purposes of clarification or correction or to show the source or history of a document is enclosed in brackets [].

7. INDEX AND TABLES

A combined subject matter and agency index and a table of WAC sections affected may be found at the end of each issue.

1988 – 1989

DATES FOR REGISTER CLOSING, DISTRIBUTION, AND FIRST AGENCY ACTION

Issue No.	Closing Dates ¹			Distribution Date	First Agency Action Date ³
	Non-OTS & 30 p. or more	Non-OTS & 11 to 29 p.	OTS ² or 10 p. max. Non-OTS		
For Inclusion in—	File no later than—			Count 20 days from—	For hearing/adoption on or after
88-18	Aug 10	Aug 24	Sep 7	Sep 21	Oct 11
88-19	Aug 24	Sep 7	Sep 21	Oct 5	Oct 25
88-20	Sep 7	Sep 21	Oct 5	Oct 19	Nov 8
88-21	Sep 21	Oct 5	Oct 19	Nov 2	Nov 22
88-22	Oct 5	Oct 19	Nov 2	Nov 16	Dec 6
88-23	Oct 26	Nov 9	Nov 23	Dec 7	Dec 27
88-24	Nov 9	Nov 23	Dec 7	Dec 21	Jan 10, 1989
89-01	Nov 23	Dec 7	Dec 21, 1988	Jan 4, 1989	Jan 24
89-02	Dec 7	Dec 21, 1988	Jan 4, 1989	Jan 18	Feb 7
89-03	Dec 21, 1988	Jan 4, 1989	Jan 18	Feb 1	Feb 21
89-04	Jan 4	Jan 18	Feb 1	Feb 15	Mar 7
89-05	Jan 18	Feb 1	Feb 15	Mar 1	Mar 21
89-06	Feb 1	Feb 15	Mar 1	Mar 15	Apr 4
89-07	Feb 22	Mar 8	Mar 22	Apr 5	Apr 25
89-08	Mar 8	Mar 22	Apr 5	Apr 19	May 9
89-09	Mar 22	Apr 5	Apr 19	May 3	May 23
89-10	Apr 5	Apr 19	May 3	May 17	Jun 6
89-11	Apr 26	May 10	May 24	Jun 7	Jun 27
89-12	May 10	May 24	Jun 7	Jun 21	Jul 11
89-13	May 24	Jun 7	Jun 21	Jul 5	Jul 25
89-14	Jun 7	Jun 21	Jul 5	Jul 19	Aug 8
89-15	Jun 21	Jul 5	Jul 19	Aug 2	Aug 22
89-16	Jul 5	Jul 19	Aug 2	Aug 16	Sep 5
89-17	Jul 26	Aug 9	Aug 23	Sep 6	Sep 26
89-18	Aug 9	Aug 23	Sep 6	Sep 20	Oct 10
89-19	Aug 23	Sep 6	Sep 20	Oct 4	Oct 24
89-20	Sep 6	Sep 20	Oct 4	Oct 18	Nov 7
89-21	Sep 20	Oct 4	Oct 18	Nov 1	Nov 21
89-22	Oct 4	Oct 18	Nov 1	Nov 15	Dec 5
89-23	Oct 25	Nov 8	Nov 22	Dec 6	Dec 26
89-24	Nov 8	Nov 22	Dec 6	Dec 20	Jan 9, 1990

¹All documents are due at the code reviser's office by 5:00 p.m. on or before the applicable closing date for inclusion in a particular issue of the Register; see WAC 1-12-035 or 1-13-035.

²A filing of any length will be accepted on the closing dates of this column if it has been prepared by the order typing service (OTS) of the code reviser's office; see WAC 1-12-220 or 1-13-240. Agency-typed material is subject to a ten page limit for these dates; longer agency-typed material is subject to the earlier non-OTS dates.

³No proceeding may be held on any rule until twenty days have passed from the distribution date of the Register in which notice thereof was contained." RCW 28B.19.030(4) and 34.04.025(4). These dates represent the twentieth day after the distribution date of the applicable Register.

WSR 88-23-041
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Institutions)

[Filed November 9, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning alcohol and drug treatment facilities, amending chapter 275-19 WAC;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, January 10, 1989, in the Auditorium, OB-2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia; and at 10:00 a.m., January 12, in the Criminal Justice Training Center, 2450 South 142nd Street, Room 602, Seattle; and at 10:00 a.m., January 18, at the Health Department, West 1101 College Avenue, Room 140 Auditorium, Spokane; and at 10:00 a.m., January 19, Region 2, DSHS Office, 1002 North 16th Avenue, 2nd Floor, Yakima; conduct public hearings on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 20, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 69.54.040 and 70.96A.090.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 69.54.040 and 70.96A.090.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 10, 1989.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Troyce Warner
 Office of Issuances
 Department of Social and Health Services
 Mailstop OB-33H
 Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact the Office of Issuances, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by December 20, 1988. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: November 9, 1988
 By: Leslie F. James, Director
 Administrative Services

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This statement is filed pursuant to RCW 34.04.045.

Re: Revision to chapter 275-19 WAC.

Purpose of the Rule or Rule Change: To update chapter 275-19 WAC to correspond to the changes in the chemical dependency field, to clarify obscure language and remove redundant administrative codes.

Reason(s) These Rules are Necessary: To implement ESHB 9999.

Statutory Authority: Chapters 69.54 and 70.96A RCW.

Summary of the Rule Change: Replace separate alcohol and drug abuse counselor requirements with a single chemical dependency counselor requirement; replace separate alcohol and drug treatment services with a single, combined alcohol and drug treatment services; and clarify the language of several sections and rearranging and combining some sections and removing duplication where possible to ease compliance and monitoring.

Person or Persons Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: David Curts, Program Manager, Bureau of Alcohol and Substance Abuse, phone 753-5866, mailstop OB-44W.

Person or Organization who Proposed These Rules: [No information supplied by agency.]

These rules are not necessary as a result of federal law, federal court decision, or state court decision.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-020 FACILITY SERVICES. (1) The department shall approve and accredit alcoholism, alcohol abuse, drug addiction, and drug abuse treatment facilities ((pursuant to)) under these rules and regulations to provide the following services:

(a) ~~((Alcoholism and alcohol abuse))~~ Detoxification: Provides care and treatment of persons intoxicated or incapacitated by alcohol and/or other drugs during the period in which the person recovers from the transitory effects of acute intoxication((:

~~(b) Drug addiction and drug abuse detoxification: Provides care and treatment of persons intoxicated or incapacitated by drugs during the period in which the person recovers from the transitory effects of acute intoxication))~~ or withdrawal~~((-(c) Alcoholism))~~;

~~(b) Intensive inpatient treatment: Provides a concentrated residential program consisting of a combination of education, individual therapy, group therapy, and related activities to detoxified alcoholics((:~~

~~(d) Drug addiction intensive inpatient treatment: Provides a concentrated residential program consisting of a combination of education, individual therapy, group therapy,)) and ((related activities to)) detoxified addicts~~((-(c) Alcoholism))~~;~~

~~(c) Long-term treatment: Provides care and treatment on a long-term basis (ninety days or more) in a residential setting with personal care services for chronic alcoholics ((with impaired self-maintenance capabilities needing personal guidance and assistance to maintain abstinence and good health:~~

~~(f) Drug addiction long-term treatment: Provides care)) and ((treatment on a long-term basis (ninety days or more) in a residential setting with personal care services for)) drug addicts with impaired self-maintenance capabilities needing personal guidance and assistance to maintain abstinence and good health~~((-(g) Alcoholism))~~ under or in lieu of the involuntary commitment law, chapter 70.96A RCW;~~

~~(d) Recovery house: Provides care and treatment in a residential setting with social and recreational activities for detoxified alcoholics ((to aid their adjustment to abstinence and aid their engagement in occupational training, gainful employment, or other types of community service:~~

~~(h) Drug addiction recovery house: Provides care and treatment in a residential setting with social)) and ((recreational activities for)) detoxified addicts to aid their adjustment to abstinence and aid their engagement in occupational training, gainful employment, or other types of community activities~~((-(i) Alcoholism))~~;~~

~~(e) Extended care recovery house: Provides care and treatment for detoxified alcoholics and detoxified addicts in a residential setting in excess of sixty days for clients needing prolonged treatment services((:~~

~~(j) Drug addiction extended care recovery house: Provides care and treatment in a residential setting in excess of sixty days for clients needing prolonged treatment services. (k) Alcoholism and alcohol abuse);~~

~~(f) Outpatient treatment: Provides alcoholism ((and)), alcohol abuse, drug addiction, and drug abuse treatment services according to a prescribed plan in a nonresidential setting((:~~

~~(t) Drug addiction and drug abuse outpatient treatment: Provides drug addiction and drug abuse treatment services according to a prescribed plan in a nonresidential setting. (m) Alcoholism));~~

~~(g) Intensive outpatient treatment: Provides a concentrated, nonresidential program consisting of a combination of educational sessions,~~

individual therapy, group therapy, and related activities to detoxified alcoholics and ~~(their families).~~

~~(n) Drug addiction intensive outpatient treatment. Provides a concentrated, nonresidential program consisting of a combination of educational sessions, individual therapy, group therapy, and related activities to) detoxified addicts and their families~~((-o));~~~~

~~(h) Crisis intervention facilities services: Provides services aimed at alleviating acute emotional, behavioral, and/or physical distress resulting from the individual's use of alcohol and~~((/or)) other drugs~~((-p));~~~~~~

~~(i) DWI client assessment: A diagnostic service designed to evaluate and assess clients' involvement with alcohol and other drugs, and recommend an appropriate course of action~~((-q) Alcohol);~~~~

~~(j) Information school: An educational program providing students with information regarding the use and abuse of alcohol and other drugs. The goal of the school is to help students not currently presenting a significant ~~((alcohol)) chemical dependency~~ problem to make informed decisions about the use of alcohol~~((:~~~~

~~(r) Drug information school: An educational program providing students with information regarding the use and abuse of drugs. The goal of the school is to help students not currently presenting a significant drug problem to make informed decisions about the use of) and other drug~~((-s));~~~~

~~(k) Emergency service patrol: Provides assistance in the streets and in other public places to persons who are intoxicated~~((-t));~~~~

~~(l) Methadone treatment: Provides methadone (or other drugs approved by the department) as a substitute for opiates, in addition to counseling and other types of psychological or social therapy~~((-u));~~ and~~

~~(m) Chemical dependency assessment centers: Contract agencies of the department of social and health services, bureau of alcohol and substance abuse, performing the following:~~

~~(i) Alcoholism and drug addiction assessments of a client seeking assistance from the department as a result of incapacity due to alcoholism and/or drug addiction~~((:));~~~~

~~(ii) Screening of an indigent client and referral of a client qualifying for supplemental social security income or general assistance-unemployable based on mental illness or physical disability to one of the department's community service offices~~((, and));~~~~

~~(iii) Case supervision of treatment and shelter services provided to indigent clients admitted to the ADATSA program; and~~

~~(iv) HIV/AIDS brief risk intervention with all clients and information about referral for HIV infection risk-reduction counseling and HIV antibody testing and other HIV/AIDS-related services.~~

~~(2) A facility may be approved for more than one service if the facility complies with the specific requirements for approval of each service provided.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-030 DEFINITIONS. For the purpose of these rules and regulations, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) "Acute detoxification" means detoxification service provided to individuals for whom the consequences of withdrawal from alcohol or other drugs are so severe as to merit assistance from medical and/or nursing personnel.

(2) "ADATSA" means the Alcohol and Drug Addiction Treatment and Support Act.

(3) "ADATSA client" means an indigent client receiving services authorized under ADATSA.

(4) "Administrator" means the individual appointed as the chief executive officer by the operators of a facility to act in the facility's behalf in the overall management of the treatment facility.

(5) "AIDS" means acquired immunodeficiency syndrome, the clinical syndrome of HIV-related illness, as defined by the board of health under WAC 248-100-011.

(6) "Alcohol abuse" means use of alcohol in amounts ~~((hazardous))~~ harmful to individual health or safety.

~~((6))~~ (7) "Alcoholic" means a person with alcoholism.

~~((7))~~ (8) "Alcoholism" means an illness characterized by lack of control as to the consumption of alcoholic beverages or the consumption of alcoholic beverages to the extent a person's health is substantially impaired or endangered or his or her social and economic function is substantially disrupted.

~~((8))~~ (9) "Approved" means having met the standards of the department contained in these rules and regulations and having been approved ~~((pursuant to))~~ under chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW.

~~((9))~~ (10) "Approved treatment facility" means a treatment facility, either public or private, profit or nonprofit, approved by the department ~~((pursuant to))~~ under these rules and regulations and chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW.

~~((10))~~ (11) "Authenticated" means written verification of any entry in a patient treatment record by means of a signature including minimally first initial and last name, or initials if the file includes an authentication record and the date of the entry.

~~((11))~~ (12) "Authentication record" means a document which is part of each patient treatment record and includes identification of all individuals initiating entries in the treatment record: Full printed name, signature including minimally first initial and last name, and initials that may appear after entries in the treatment record.

~~((12))~~ (13) "Bureau" means the Washington state department of social and health services bureau of alcohol and substance abuse.

~~((13))~~ (14) "Bureau of alcohol and substance abuse" means the Washington state department of social and health services bureau of alcohol and substance abuse.

~~((14))~~ (15) "Cancel" means a termination of the department's approval of a treatment service or facility.

~~((15))~~ (16) "Certified" means the approval of a treatment facility ~~((pursuant to))~~ under chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW and these rules and regulations to provide one or more of the treatment services listed in WAC 275-19-020 and the issuing of a certificate of approval for those services by the bureau.

~~((16))~~ (17) "Chemical dependency" means having an alcohol and/or drug abuse or addiction problem.

~~((17))~~ (18) "Chemotherapy" means the use of prescribed medication to assist in client treatment for drug or alcohol dependency.

~~((18))~~ (19) "Chronic" means an alcoholic or drug addict who remains incapacitated by alcoholism or drug addiction despite multiple treatment experiences. Chronicity is characterized by progressive physical deterioration, inability to care for self, and/or cognitive impairment which interferes with the ability to favorably respond to treatment.

(20) "Compliance" means being in conformity with the requirements in chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW and chapter 275-19 WAC applying to the class or classes of treatment services for which a treatment facility is approved and/or has applied for approval.

~~((19))~~ (21) "Department" means the Washington state department of social and health services.

~~((20))~~ (22) "Department of licensing" means the Washington state department of licensing.

~~((21))~~ (23) "Detoxification" means care and treatment of a person during the period in which the person recovers from the transitory effects of acute intoxication or withdrawal.

~~((22))~~ (24) "Detoxified" means withdrawn from the consumption of alcohol, or other drugs, and recovered from the transitory effects of intoxication, or any associated acute physiological withdrawal reactions.

~~((23))~~ (25) "Discrete chemical dependency assessment center" means a center conducting assessments of ADATSA clients following the requirements in WAC 275-19-590.

~~((24))~~ (26) "Discrete treatment facility" means an alcoholism and/or drug treatment facility run by operators who:

(a) Receive their revenue from one or more of the following:

(i) Client fees or third-party payments on behalf of clients;

(ii) Federal, state, and county contracts for alcoholism and/or drug treatment services.

(b) Have provided separate supervisory staff and treatment personnel for the alcoholism and/or drug addiction treatment services separate from other services provided by the facility,

(c) Have provided a separate building or a separate area within a building for the approved alcoholism and/or drug addiction treatment services,

(d) Have separate accounting records and documents which identify the source and applications of all funds received in payment for alcoholism and/or drug addiction treatment services.

~~((25))~~ (27) "Drug abuse" means use of a drug in amounts hazardous to individual health or safety.

~~((26))~~ (28) "Drug addiction" means chronic, compulsive, or uncontrollable drug use to the extent a person cannot stop use of the drug. Drug addiction is usually characterized by a process including progressive use, development of tolerance, and a withdrawal syndrome if use of the drug is discontinued.

~~((27))~~ (29) "Face to face" means an individual or group therapeutic contact with a client not including educational sessions.

~~((28))~~ (30) "Facilities" means rooms, areas, and equipment.

~~((29))~~ (31) "HIV/AIDS brief risk intervention" means a face-to-face interview with a client with the goal of assessing that individual's risk for HIV/AIDS infection and reducing the individual's risk of infection transmission.

(32) "HIV/AIDS counseling" means counseling directed toward:

(a) Increasing the individual's understanding of HIV/AIDS;

(b) Assessing the individual's risk of HIV acquisition and transmission; and

(c) Affecting the individual's behavior in ways to reduce the risk of acquiring and transmitting HIV infection.

(33) "HIV education for client" means an education service designed to provide clients with information regarding HIV/AIDS risk factors, HIV antibody testing, HIV infection prevention techniques, and the impact of alcohol/drug use on risk and the disease process.

(34) "HIV antibody testing" means conducting a laboratory test or sequence of tests to detect the HIV or antibodies to HIV performed under WAC 248-100-207.

(35) "Human immunodeficiency virus" or "HIV" means all HIV and HIV-related viruses which:

(a) Damage the cellular branch of the human immune or neurological systems; and

(b) Result in infected immunodeficient or neurologically impaired persons.

(36) "Incapacitated by alcohol" means a person, as a result of the use of alcohol, has his or her judgment so impaired he or she is incapable of realizing and making a rational decision with respect to his or her need for treatment and constitutes a danger to himself or herself, to any other person, or to property.

~~((30))~~ (37) "Intoxication" means acute alcohol and/or drug poisoning or temporary impairment of a person's mental or physical functioning caused by alcohol and/or other drugs.

~~((31))~~ (38) "Licensed nurse" means either a registered nurse (~~(per)~~) under chapter 18.88 RCW or a licensed practical nurse (~~(per)~~) under chapter 18.78 RCW.

~~((32))~~ (39) "Negative urine" means the results of a urinalysis which do not confirm the presence of any controlled substances, other than drugs medically prescribed for the patient submitting the urine sample.

~~((33))~~ (40) "Operators" means the individual or group legally responsible for the treatment facility.

~~((34))~~ (41) "Physician" means a person duly licensed to practice medicine or osteopathic medicine in the state of Washington per chapter 18.57 or 18.71 RCW.

~~((35))~~ (42) "Positive urine" means the results of a urinalysis confirming the presence of one or more controlled substances, other than drugs legitimately prescribed for the patient submitting the urine sample.

~~((36))~~ (43) "Probation alcohol assessment facility" means a qualified probation department for a district or municipal court within the state of Washington meeting the standards contained in these rules and regulations governing the operation of a DWI client assessment service as described (~~(in)~~) under WAC 275-19-020.

~~((37))~~ (44) "Residential facilities" means facilities providing board and room as part of the treatment program.

~~((38))~~ (45) "Revoke" means a termination of the department's approval of a treatment facility.

~~((39))~~ (46) "Secretary" means the secretary of the Washington state department of social and health services or his or her designee.

~~((40))~~ (47) "Shall" means compliance is mandatory.

~~((41))~~ (48) "Shelter" means sheltered living for qualified indigent alcoholics and/or drug addicts placed by chemical dependency assessment centers.

~~((42))~~ (49) "Sick physical" means an initial diagnostic examination of an applicant for admission to a treatment facility, for the purpose of determining whether the individual is currently physiologically dependent on opiates.

~~((43))~~ (50) "Stabilization" means a patient's condition (~~(at)~~) where the program physician has determined that the currently prescribed dose of medication has suppressed physiological withdrawal signs, has not produced sedation, euphoria, or other signs of over-medication, and has provided reasonable comfort for the patient (~~(and)~~)

~~(b) Where the program physician determines no future dose increases should be necessary. Stabilization is evidenced by constant dose levels for fourteen days or by a determination entered into the clinical record by the program physician).~~

~~((44))~~ (51) "Subacute detoxification" means detoxification service provided to individuals in a supportive, homelike environment where a person can recover from the effects of intoxication. Prescription medication is not provided for the management of withdrawal discomfort.

~~((45))~~ (52) "Suspend" means termination of the department's approval of a treatment facility for a specified period of less than one calendar year or until specific conditions have been met and the agency has been notified of reinstatement.

~~((46))~~ (53) "Take-home medication" means methadone dispensed for self-administration by the client off the premises of the treatment facility.

~~((47))~~ (54) "Total abstinence" means the voluntary act of not using alcohol or any other mind-altering illegal or over-the-counter drugs or any other drugs not prescribed by a physician.

(55) "Transfer patient" means any patient transferring from one methadone program to another methadone program, with a maximum interruption in methadone medication of thirty days.

~~((48))~~ (56) "Urinalysis" means the qualitative analysis of a patient's urine sample for controlled substances.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2484, filed 4/13/87)

WAC 275-19-040 DEPARTMENT APPROVAL PROCEDURES. (1) Treatment facilities seeking department approval for one or more of the services listed in WAC 275-19-020 shall submit a written application to the bureau of alcohol and substance abuse on a form provided by the bureau.

(a) Such application shall provide evidence that the agency meets the requirements of these rules and regulations, chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW.

(b) The applicant shall send a copy of the application form to the county coordinator in each county where services are to be provided.

(c) After processing the application, the bureau shall send written notification of approval or denial of approval to the applicant and (~~(if approved)~~) to the appropriate county coordinator.

(2) The department shall not grant approval to any treatment facility unless the operators meet the requirements of WAC 275-19-110.

(3) The department shall only approve alcoholism and/or drug addiction treatment facilities which are separate and discrete from mental health facilities as defined in chapter 71.24 RCW; PROVIDED, That approval shall continue to be granted to mental health facilities which were approved prior to January 1, 1987, to provide one or more of the treatment services defined in WAC 275-19-020. Approval shall continue to be granted for such treatment services operated by mental health facilities as long as they remain in compliance with the requirements of chapter 275-19 WAC.

(4) The department may grant provisional approval to treatment facilities when the bureau staff are unable to determine whether the facility, without a period of operation, will comply with chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW, and these rules and regulations. Provisional approval shall be granted for a maximum period of six months and may not be renewed more than once.

(5) If an approved treatment facility plans to move to a different location, open a branch office, or change ownership, the facility shall submit a written application to the bureau. Such application shall be submitted in accordance with WAC 275-19-040(1).

~~((47))~~ (6) The bureau director or (~~(his or her)~~) the bureau director's designees may exempt a treatment facility from compliance with parts of these regulations when (~~(it has been found;)~~):

(a) After thorough investigation and consideration, (~~(that)~~) such exemption may be made in an individual case without jeopardizing the:

(i) Safety, health, or treatment of the clients in the particular treatment facility(~~(:)~~); or (~~(jeopardize the functioning)~~)

(ii) Function of other service providers(~~(:)~~); and

(b) All exemptions granted shall be in writing and filed with the department and the treatment facility.

(7) The bureau shall issue a certificate of approval, valid for not more than one year, to approved treatment facilities in compliance with these rules and regulations and chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW. The facility shall display this certificate (~~(shall be displayed)~~) in a conspicuous place (~~(in the facility)~~).

(8) (~~(Fees shall be set and charged by)~~) The bureau of alcohol and substance abuse shall set fees for inspections and certification of approved treatment facilities. The bureau shall base such fees (~~(shall be reasonably based)~~) upon the cost to the bureau of the inspections and maintenance of certification and fees shall not exceed the actual costs. The bureau may charge only one such fee (~~(shall be charged)~~) to a

treatment facility during any twelve-month period, regardless of the number of inspections made.

(9) Additional methadone facility application materials. In addition to the material submitted in a regular application for approval of a treatment facility, methadone treatment facilities shall submit to the department the following:

(a) A completed copy of the federal food and drug administration application for approval as a methadone program.

(b) A completed copy of the federal drug enforcement agency application for an approval to provide methadone.

(c) A copy of the facility's urinalysis procedures and policies.

(d) A copy of the facility's criteria for establishing and revising planned detoxification dates for patients.

(e) A copy of the facility's dispensary procedures and policies.

(10) Other required permits, licenses, and approvals for methadone treatment facilities. Prior to being certified by the department, methadone treatment facilities (~~must~~) shall possess the following:

(a) Approval from the federal drug enforcement administration;

(b) A license to operate a methadone treatment facility from the county in which the facility is (to be) located, unless the county has no such licensure requirement; and

(c) Registration with the Washington state board of pharmacy.

Reviser's note: RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of underlining and deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules. The rule published above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use of these markings.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2484, filed 4/13/87)

WAC 275-19-050 SUSPENSION, CANCELLATION, OR REVOCATION OF APPROVAL. (1) Failure to be in compliance with the requirements of chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW or these rules and regulations shall constitute grounds for the suspension or revocation of the department's approval in accordance with chapter 34.04 RCW.

(2) The department may cancel approval if a facility ceases to provide the services for which the facility has been approved.

(3) The department may cancel approval if a facility fails to pay the required certification fee.

(4) The department may suspend or revoke the approval of a facility if the facility hires a person or persons into counselor or assessment officer job positions not meeting the qualifications in WAC 275-19-145 for qualified counselors and/or assessment officers.

(5) Disqualified applicants.

(a) The department shall consider each and every individual named in an application for treatment facility approval (~~shall be considered~~) separately and jointly as applicants and, if anyone be deemed unqualified by the department in accordance with the law or these rules and regulations, the department may deny, suspend, or revoke approval (~~may be denied, suspended, or revoked~~).

(b) (Approval) The department may (~~be denied~~) deny, (~~suspended~~) suspend, or (~~revoked~~) revoke approval for any of the following:

(i) Obtaining or attempting to obtain approval by fraudulent means or misrepresentation;

(ii) Knowingly permitting, aiding, or abetting the commission of any illegal act on the premises of the treatment facility;

(iii) Misappropriation of the property of the patients.

(6) When the department intends to suspend, revoke, or cancel approval, the director of the bureau of alcohol and substance abuse or the bureau director's designees shall (~~have served~~) serve upon the approved treatment facility a notice of intent to suspend, revoke, or cancel the department's approval. Such notice shall provide for an administrative hearing and meet the requirements of chapter 34.04 RCW. The subsequent hearing and judicial review shall follow administrative procedures as specified in the Administrative Procedure Act, chapter 34.04 RCW and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(7) If the treatment facility requests a hearing (~~is requested~~), (~~it~~) the department shall (~~be limited~~) limit the hearing in scope to a review of the cause for the department's action. If the cause is a result of an inspection of the facility, the department shall limit the hearing (~~shall be limited~~) to a review of the findings in the inspection report issued by the department and the facility's compliance with the requirements of chapters 69.54 and 70.96A RCW, and chapter 275-19 WAC at the time of the inspection. If the cause is not the result of an

inspection, the department shall limit the hearing (~~shall be limited~~) in scope to a review of:

(a) The department's written findings and stated cause for the action; and

(b) The facility's compliance with the requirements of chapters 69.54 and 70.96A RCW, and chapter 275-19 WAC on the date the findings were issued by the department.

(8) If the department finds (~~that~~) public health, safety, or welfare requires emergency action and incorporates a finding to that effect in the suspension or revocation order, summary suspension of the department's approval may be ordered pending proceedings for suspension, revocation, or other actions deemed necessary by the department.

(9) The department shall send written notice of any suspension, cancellation, or revocation of departmental approval to the county coordinator of each county in which the action is effective.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2459, filed 1/13/87)

WAC 275-19-075 ALL FACILITIES—CLIENTS' RIGHTS.

(1) All approved treatment facilities shall take reasonable efforts to assure each client:

(a) Be treated in a manner promoting dignity and self-respect(-);

(b) Be treated without regard to race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, sexual preference, or age(-);

(c) Be treated without regard to disability(-);

(d) Be protected from invasion of privacy: PROVIDED, That reasonable searches may be conducted or other means used to detect and prevent contraband from being possessed or used on the premises(-);

(e) Have all clinical and personal information treated confidentially in communications with individuals not directly associated with the approved treatment facility(-);

(f) Have the opportunity to review his or her own treatment records in the presence of (~~a staff person upon request~~) the administrator or his or her designee during such times the program will not be interrupted;

(g) Be fully informed regarding fees to be charged and methods of payment available(-);

(h) Be provided reasonable opportunity to practice the religion of his or her choice, alone and in private, insofar as such religious practice does not infringe on the rights and treatment of others, or the treatment program. The client has the right to refuse participation in any religious practice(-);

(i) Not be denied communication with significant others in emergency situations(-);

(j) Not be subjected by facility staff to physical abuse, corporal punishment, or other forms of abuse administered against their will including being denied food, clothing, or other basic necessities; and

(k) To receive a copy of the facility's client grievance procedures upon request.

(2) In addition to the rights set forth in subsection (1) of this section, all approved facilities providing services under departmental contract for ADATSA recipients shall notify ADATSA clients of their rights to:

(a) Report back to the community services office in case of disciplinary discharge from the program; and

(b) Request a fair hearing to challenge any departmental action which affects eligibility for ADATSA treatment or shelter assistance.

(3) A copy of these rights shall be given to each client receiving services both at admission and in case of disciplinary discharge.

(4) A copy of these rights shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the facility.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-135 ALL FACILITIES—PROGRAM MANUAL. All treatment facilities shall have and adhere to a written program manual containing at a minimum:

(1) A cover sheet (~~noting the date of the last review and update~~) which contains a log of all reviews and revisions of the manual (~~signed by~~). The person or persons making the review shall sign each entry and include a brief note stating the purpose of the review or revision.

(2) A copy of the organization's articles of incorporation showing the state seal if the operator is a corporation, or a copy of the partnership agreement if the operator is a partnership.

(3) A copy of the facility's bylaws, if the operator is a corporation.

(4) A current copy of all city and state business licenses required by WAC 275-19-040, 275-19-080, and 275-19-110.

(5) The facility's philosophy on alcoholism and/or drug addiction.

(6) A list of the overall objectives of the organization.

(7) An organizational chart (~~(including all positions and specifying the functions of all the)~~) which specifies each position(s) by job title, including volunteers, within the facility.

(8) A delegation of authority policy meeting the requirements of WAC 275-19-130(3).

(9) Written personnel policies and procedures governing the qualifications of staff, job descriptions, hours of work, personnel benefits, hiring practices, termination procedures, promotional requirements, leave days, employee evaluations, employee grievance procedures, ~~(and)~~ staff ethical standards, and implementing the personnel requirements of WAC 275-19-140.

(10) A written plan describing how volunteers will be utilized per WAC 275-19-160.

(11) A written description of each ~~((treatment and educational program))~~ approved service offered by the facility. There shall be a separate section in the program manual for the description of each approved service. The description(s) of each ~~((program))~~ service shall include:

(a) Policies and procedures ~~((sufficient to describe))~~ describing how the ~~((service))~~ facility meets the ~~((applicable requirements of WAC 275-19-100 through 275-19-930))~~ following requirements:

(i) Acute detoxification under WAC 275-19-220 through 275-19-250;

(ii) Subacute detoxification under WAC 275-19-220 through 275-19-250 and WAC 275-19-280(5);

(iii) Intensive inpatient under WAC 275-19-320;

(iv) Long-term treatment under WAC 275-19-430;

(v) Recovery house under WAC 275-19-530;

(vi) Extended care recovery house under WAC 275-19-570;

(vii) Chemical dependency assessment centers under WAC 275-19-590;

(viii) Outpatient treatment under WAC 275-19-610;

(ix) ADATSA outpatient treatment under WAC 275-19-635;

(x) Intensive outpatient treatment under WAC 275-19-660;

(xi) Crisis intervention under WAC 275-19-710;

(xii) DWI client assessment under WAC 275-19-770;

(xiii) Information school under WAC 275-19-820;

(xiv) Emergency services patrol under WAC 275-19-920; and

(xv) Methadone treatment under WAC 275-19-940 through 275-19-990.

(b) Client admission criteria.

(c) The objectives of the program.

(d) The number of hours of service and length of treatment or educational program.

(e) The criteria for client transfer and discharge from the program.

(f) An outline of each lecture and educational session included in the program. The outline shall be sufficient in detail for another trained staff person to deliver the educational session or lecture in the absence of the regular instructor. The facility may keep these outlines ((may be kept)) separate from the program manual.

(12) ~~((Follow-up policies and procedures providing for contact to be attempted after discharge with each))~~ A copy of the client ~~((completing treatment))~~ fee schedule.

(13) ~~((A procedure for the continuing evaluation of the services provided by the facility.~~

~~((+4))~~ If an outpatient or residential facility, written policies and procedures governing implementation of the applicable intake and clinical requirements under WAC 275-19-165.

(14) If an outpatient or residential facility, written policies and procedures implementing the applicable case management ~~((and case))~~ requirements under WAC 275-19-180.

(15) Written policies and procedures implementing the applicable client file ~~((maintenance))~~ requirements of WAC 275-19-170 ~~((and 275-19-180)).~~

~~((+5))~~ (16) Written policies and procedures governing the implementation of federal regulations on confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records (42 C.F.R., Part 2).

~~((+6))~~ (17) Policies and procedures for reporting suspected child abuse per RCW 22.44 and 42 CFR, part 2.12(c)(6).

(18) A copy of the facility's client rights required in WAC 275-19-075.

~~((+7))~~ (19) A copy of the facility's client grievance procedures.

~~((+8))~~ (20) Written policies and procedures governing implementation of the physical and laboratory examination requirements of WAC 275-19-165(2).

~~((+9))~~ (21) A copy of the facility's policies regarding the use of self-help groups (i.e., AA, NA, Alanon, and Naranon).

~~((+0))~~ (22) Copies of all other policies relating to client care.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-140 ALL FACILITIES—PERSONNEL. (1) ~~((There))~~ The treatment facility shall ~~((be))~~ have sufficient qualified counselors, clerical, and other support staff not currently clients to ensure the attainment of program service objectives and to properly maintain the treatment facility.

(2) Qualified counselors carrying a caseload shall not exceed one hundred hours of face-to-face client contact per full-time equivalent counselor per month. The facility shall reduce the caseload of a qualified counselor by a minimum of twenty-five hours of face-to-face client contact hours per month for each counselor trainee assigned to the qualified counselor. Residential treatment, excluding detoxification, shall in addition maintain a client to staff ratio not to exceed fifteen clients for each counselor.

(3) Personnel employed as counselors shall ~~((be qualified))~~ qualify as counselors or counselor trainees as described in WAC 275-19-145.

(4) For each employee ~~((there))~~ the facility shall ~~((be))~~ have a current personnel file which includes the following:

(a) Verification (transcripts, certificates, licenses, resumes, etc.) of the employee's qualifications for the assigned position(:);

(b) A copy of the employee's current job description, signed and dated by the employee, which includes: The job title, a summary of the duties and responsibilities, the minimum qualifications, and the title of the immediate supervisor(:);

(c) A record of an orientation acquainting the person with the contents of the program manual, the disaster plan for the facility, and the confidentiality of client information(:);

(d) Written performance evaluations for each year of employment. The evaluator and employee shall sign and date the completed evaluation form ((shall be signed and dated by the evaluator and the employee:);

(e) ~~((Evidence))~~ A copy of the results of a tuberculin skin test or chest x-ray ~~((and a record of any accidents occurring on duty:))~~ within the first thirty days of employment and/or evidence the person has completed a recommended course of preventive or curative treatment as determined by the local health officer if the results are positive;

(f) ~~((There shall be sufficient evidence in the records of the qualified counselors, assessment officers, and information school instructors to determine whether they have received the training and education necessary to meet and maintain the qualified status. The record shall include the date the person became a qualified counselor, assessment officer, or information school instructor.~~

~~((g))~~ A signed and dated commitment to maintain confidentiality(:);

~~((g))~~ A record of any accidents occurring on duty;

(h) Evidence all employees providing client care in ~~((a detoxification center in the absence of licensed physicians or nurses))~~ residential facilities have a valid and current red cross card or certificate for first-aid (or its equivalent) and annual training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation(:

~~((5))~~ Employees with a communicable disease in an infectious stage shall not be on duty.

~~((6))~~ All approved treatment facilities shall adhere to written personnel policies covering the qualifications of staff, job descriptions, hours of work, personnel benefits, hiring practices, termination procedures, promotional requirements, leave days, employee evaluations, grievance procedures, and staff ethical standards. ~~((7))~~;

(i) There shall be sufficient evidence in the personnel files of the qualified counselors, assessment officers, and information school instructors to determine whether they have received the training and education necessary to meet and maintain qualified status. The record shall include the date the person became a qualified counselor, assessment officer, or information school instructor;

(j) A copy of a current license, certificate, or registration as a counselor with the department of licensing for all counselors and counselor trainees per chapter 18.19 RCW; and

(k) If a counselor trainee or assessment officer trainee:

(i) Their education and training plan required by 275-19-145(3);

(ii) A copy of the counselor trainee quarterly review form required by WAC 275-19-145(3); and

(iii) A copy of the documentation of four hours of tutoring per month on the requirements of WAC 275-19-145 (3)(iv)(A), (B), (C), (D), and (E).

(5) Approved treatment facilities shall comply with state statutory and regulatory provisions regarding nondiscrimination and affirmative action in employment and client services.

((#)) (6) Employees who are or were clients of the approved treatment facility shall have personnel records separate from clinical records. The facility may enter no indication of current or previous client status or client activity, including urinalysis results, ((may be entered)) in the personnel record of such an employee.

((#)) (7) The facility may assign work ((may be assigned)) to the client when the assignment is part of the client's treatment program, the client's work assignment has therapeutic value, and the client works under the immediate supervision of a member of the staff.

((#)) (8) The facility shall not base exclusion from employment ((shall not be based)) on former alcohol or drug use, former mental dysfunction, or former criminal convictions except as provided in chapters 9.96A and 49.60 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-145 ALL FACILITIES—QUALIFIED COUNSELORS, INSTRUCTORS, AND ASSESSMENT OFFICERS. (1) A "qualified ((alcoholism)) chemical dependency counselor" ((is a person having adequate education, experience, and knowledge regarding the nature and treatment of alcoholism, is knowledgeable about community resources providing services alcoholics may need, knows and understands the principles and techniques of alcoholism counseling, and is skilled in the application of these principles and techniques: A qualified alcoholism counselor)) shall possess the following qualifications:

(a) Have no history of alcohol or other drug misuse for a period of two years immediately prior to the time of employment as ((an alcoholism)) a chemical dependency counselor and no misuse of alcohol or other drugs while employed as ((an alcoholism)) a chemical dependency counselor(:);

(b) ((Possess these qualifications: (i) Satisfactory completion of)) Be licensed, certified, or registered as a counselor with the Washington state department of licensing under chapter 18.19 RCW or be in possession of a written statement of exemption from this requirement from the department of licensing;

(c) Have obtained a minimum of twenty-four quarter (sixteen semester) credits of course work in an accredited institution of higher learning (college or university)((- Twelve quarter (eight semester) credits must be in specialized alcoholism courses exclusive of field experience credits. These twelve credits)) which must include distinct courses in:

((A- Introduction to or)) (i) Survey of ((alcoholism)) chemical dependency,

((B)) (ii) Physiological actions of alcohol and other drugs,

((C- Alcoholism)) (iii) Chemical dependency counseling techniques,

(iv) Group process in chemical dependency treatment,

(v) Chemical dependency in the family, and

(vi) Case management of the chemically dependent client.

The remaining ((twelve quarter (eight semester))) credits may be in other courses that will enhance competency in the application of chemical dependency counseling such as alcoholism, ((polydrug abuse)) and other drug problem course work, counseling, psychology, sociology, speech, and social work((- human service, or social services)).

((iii) Persons qualified as alcoholism counselors prior to January 1, 1984, shall have satisfactorily completed a minimum of twelve quarter credits (eight semester credits) of course work in an accredited institution of higher learning (college or university). Six quarter (four semester) credits must be in specialized alcoholism courses. The remaining six quarter (four semester) credits may be in alcoholism, counseling, psychology, sociology, or social work.

((iii)) (d) Shall have completed an HIV/AIDS training approved by the department;

(e) Shall have completed and documented two thousand hours ((approximately)) equivalent to one year of full-time work experience ((supervised by a qualified alcoholism)) as a counselor trainee in a ((counseling capacity in an approved alcoholism agency or)) facility approved by the bureau of alcohol and substance abuse. ((Work)) This experience ((may include hours spent in supervised field experience

under academic supervision. (c) Shall maintain the)) shall be supervised by a qualified chemical dependency counselor and verified by a letter signed by the agency director or supervising counselor at the agency where the experience was obtained. The letter shall specify the dates the counselor worked at the agency in a counseling capacity and the number of hours of work experience obtained under the supervision of the qualified counselor;

(f) Have maintained qualified counselor status by completing ((the following requirements within each two years of service:

(i) Sixty)) thirty clock hours of continuing education((- including at least fifteen clock hours in which alcoholism or counseling alcoholic people or families is the primary part of the course content, as evidenced by the course description and/or syllabus. The remaining forty-five clock hours may be in such alcoholism specific subject areas:)) each calendar year commencing the year following initial qualification in subject areas that will increase the counselor's knowledge and skills in counseling(:) and aiding the ((alcoholic)) chemically dependent person ((or)) and their family ((to recover, or in the management of treatment services)) in recovery.

((iii)) (i) For any portion of these ((sixty clock)) hours of continuing education, each college quarter credit shall be equivalent to fifteen clock hours of continuing education, each college semester credit shall be equivalent to twenty-two and one-half hours of continuing education.

(ii) Each course or training event taken to meet these requirements shall be verified by a transcript or certificate of completion. In addition, a course/training description shall be attached which includes, at a minimum, the course title, course/training date or dates, course/training site, the name of the instructor or instructors, the number of clock or credit hours, and a brief description of the course/training content if not specified on the certificate or transcript.

(iii) In-service training does not satisfy this requirement((- but short courses or workshops meeting the conditions in this section may be used:

(iv) Workshops and trainers must be approved by the bureau of alcohol and substance abuse)).

(2) ((A "qualified drug abuse counselor" is a person capable of assessing the emotional, social, and behavioral background and status of a client, determining an appropriate treatment plan, and providing and supervising the counseling services necessary to carry out the plan. Two years of full-time equivalent experience as a drug treatment staff person under the supervision of a qualified drug abuse counselor or a masters or doctoral degree in the behavioral sciences and one year of such experience shall be sufficient to establish a person to be a qualified drug abuse counselor. A qualified drug abuse counselor shall:

(a) Have no history of alcohol or other drug misuse for a period of two years immediately prior to the time of employment as a drug abuse counselor and no misuse of alcohol or other drugs while employed as a drug abuse counselor.

(b) Qualification may also be gained by demonstrating and documenting he or she:

(i) Has earned a high school diploma or has received the equivalent;

(ii) Has at least one year of full-time experience as a drug abuse treatment trainee in an approved drug abuse treatment center under the supervision of a qualified drug abuse counselor;

(iii) Has demonstrated competency as a substance abuse counselor as measured by a competency evaluation approved by the department. The competency evaluation shall consist of an assessment of his or her knowledge and skill in the areas of referral, crisis intervention, treatment planning, intake and evaluation, communications, treatment modalities and methods, confidentiality, professional integrity, and the nature of substance abuse.

(c) Qualifying experience for purposes of this subsection shall not include experience gained while a client in a drug abuse treatment facility. Part-time experience may be accumulated to meet the experience requirements:

(d) Subsequent to initial qualification, a person will remain qualified as a drug abuse counselor as long as he or she has taken at least fifty hours per year of continuing education and training in subject matter relevant to the duties and responsibilities of a qualified, drug abuse counselor exclusive of case staffing, case conferences, and supervisory meetings. A maximum of twenty-five hours of this requirement may be in training sponsored by his or her employer.

(e) The qualified drug abuse counselor shall attest to and document at least once every two years these conditions are met:

(f) A drug abuse counselor failing to remain qualified may requalify in the manner prescribed for initial qualification)) The department

shall consider counselors qualified as "alcoholism or drug abuse counselors" prior to January 1, 1990, under the requirements of WAC 275-19-145 (September 16, 1987), as having met the academic requirements of a qualified chemical dependency counselor.

(3) A chemical dependency counselor trainee((s may be employed by an approved treatment facility, provided the following conditions are met)) is a person that meets the following requirements. A chemical dependency counselor trainee shall:

(a) ((The trainee has)) Have no history of alcohol or other drug misuse for a period of ((one)) two years immediately prior to the time of ((employment as)) becoming a ((counselor)) trainee and no misuse of alcohol or other drugs while employed as a ((counselor)) trainee((-));

(b) ((Each trainee must)) Be licensed, certified, or registered as a counselor with the department of licensing under chapter 18.19 RCW or be in possession of a written statement of exemption from this requirement from the department of licensing; and

(c) Be directly supervised and tutored by a qualified chemical dependency counselor who shall ((be responsible for the professional conduct of that trainee. The qualified counselor must)) provide and document the following activities for each trainee under his or her supervision:

(i) ((Observe the trainee in the various clinical activities:

(ii) Instruct the trainee in counseling techniques, attitudes, and theories:

(iii) Assign and review all intake histories, assessments, and treatment plans prepared by the trainee:

(iv) Review client files and)) Serve as case manager for all cases assigned to trainee. ((A note giving the results of the review must be placed)) This shall be evidenced in each client file((-:

(v) Instruct the trainee in the preparation and maintenance of case files and client confidentiality:

(vi) Instruct the trainee on the accepted standards of professional ethics for counselors. (-)) by the supervisor signing and dating all items required by WAC 275-19-180(4);

(ii) Assist the trainee in preparing and maintaining an individualized training and education plan ((shall be prepared by the treatment facility administrator for each person employed as a counselor trainee)). The facility shall design the training and education plan ((shall be designed)) to bring the trainee ((tp)) to the qualified counselor status within two years of the date the person ((is employed)) begins working as a counselor trainee;

(iii) At least once each quarter, document and attest to the trainee's progress toward achieving the goals in the education and training plan making certain the items required in subsection (3)(c)(iv)(A), (B), (C), and (D) below have been met. This shall be documented on a counselor trainee quarterly review form;

(iv) The supervisor shall provide and document in the trainee's personnel file a minimum of four hours of tutoring per month to each trainee toward:

(A) Orienting the trainee to the various laws (RCWs), and regulations that apply to the delivery of alcohol and drug assessment and treatment services;

(B) Instructing the trainee in assessment and counseling theories and techniques;

(C) Instructing the trainee on the accepted standards of professional ethics and conduct for counselors; and

(D) Observing the trainee in the various clinical activities including client intakes, assessments, individual counseling, group counseling, family counseling, crisis intervention, referral, discharge, and aftercare planning and client file maintenance; and

(E) Case consultation.

(4) A "qualified assessment officer" ((is a person who)) shall possess the following qualifications:

(a) ((Is)) Be employed as a probation officer for a district or municipal court within the state of Washington; and

(b) Meets the requirements of a qualified ((alcoholism)) chemical dependency counselor as defined in WAC 275-19-145(1), except the two thousand hours of supervised work may be satisfied by completing an equivalent number of hours of ((supervised)) work doing assessments within a probation department supervised by a qualified assessment officer.

(5) Assessment officers qualifying as such prior to January 1, 1990, under the requirements of WAC 275-19-145 (September 16, 1987), the department shall consider as having met the academic requirements of qualified assessment officers.

(6) An assessment officer trainee((s may be employed by an approved probation assessment facility provided the following conditions are met)) shall be a person who meets the following requirements:

(a) ((The trainee)) Is employed as a probation officer for a district or municipal court within the state of Washington;

(b) Has no history of alcohol or other drug misuse for a period of ((one)) two years immediately prior to the time of employment as an assessment officer trainee and no misuse of alcohol or other drugs while employed as ((an assessment officer)) a trainee((- (b) Each trainee must be));

(c) Is directly supervised and tutored by a qualified assessment officer((- The qualified assessment officer must)) who shall provide and document the following activities for each trainee under his or her supervision:

(i) ((Observe the trainee in conducting assessments:

(ii) Instruct the trainee in assessment techniques, attitudes, and theories:

(iii) Assign and review all assessments prepared by the trainee:

(iv) Review all client files prepared by the trainee. A note giving the results of the review must be placed in each client file:

(v) Assist the trainee in preparing and maintaining an individualized training and education plan ((shall be prepared by the probation assessment facility administrator for each person employed as an assessment officer trainee)). The training and education plan shall be designed to bring the trainee up to the qualified assessment officer status within two years of the date the person is employed as ((an assessment officer)) a trainee;

(ii) At least once each quarter, document and attest to the trainee's progress toward achieving the education and training plan making certain the items required in subsection (6)(c)(iii)(A), (B), (C), and (D) below have been satisfactorily accomplished. This documentation shall be completed on an assessment officer quarterly review form;

(iii) The supervisor shall provide and document in the trainee's personnel file that the trainee has been tutored and supervised in the following areas:

(A) Orientation to the various laws (RCWs) and regulations (WACs) that apply to the delivery of alcohol and drug assessment and treatment services;

(B) Instruction in assessment methods;

(C) Instruction on the accepted standards of professional conduct and ethics for assessment officers; and

(D) Observing the trainee in doing assessments.

((6)) (7) A "qualified ((alcohol or drug)) information school instructor" is a person possessing a certificate of completion of the alcohol ((or)) and other drug information school instructor's training course offered or authorized by the bureau of alcohol and substance abuse.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-150 ALL FACILITIES—STUDENT PRACTICE. (1) If a treatment facility provides a setting for student practice in a formal educational or training program, there shall be a written agreement with the educational agency or institution concerned. The agreement shall define the nature and scope of student activities within the facility and ensure supervision of student activities in the interest of clients' welfare.

(2) Student interns may provide counseling services provided the requirements set forth in WAC 275-19-145 (3)(a) and ((b)) (c) are met.

(3) Each student shall sign a confidentiality statement which shall be kept on file at the treatment facility.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-165 ALL FACILITIES—OUTPATIENT AND RESIDENTIAL INTAKE AND CLINICAL REQUIREMENTS.

(1) ((Approved)) Intensive inpatient, recovery house, long-term care, or extended care recovery house facilities shall not admit or retain persons needing detoxification or withdrawal. The facility shall refer or transfer the persons to a detoxification facility unless they manifest signs and symptoms of a condition warranting acute care in a hospital wherein the facility shall refer or transfer them to a hospital.

(2) Outpatient and residential treatment facilities shall conduct and document a face-to-face, diagnostic interview with each client to collect, review, and examine the following information:

(a) A history of the client's involvement with alcohol and other drugs, including the volume, frequency, type, and duration (date of first and last use) of each drug used;

(b) The client's history of alcohol and drug treatment;

(c) The client's medical history;

(d) Historical sociological data describing the client's most recent living situation, genetic predisposition to chemical dependency, employment history, educational history, significant life events (e.g., moves, losses, sexual or physical abuse, or neglect), environment, etc.; and

(e) A history of the client's legal involvement.

(3) Outpatient and residential facilities shall conduct and document an HIV/AIDS brief risk intervention with each client and, if indicated, refer the client to HIV/AIDS-related services.

(4) Outpatient and residential treatment facilities except detoxification facilities shall ~~(provide the following:~~

(a) An intake interview, conducted by a qualified counselor or other qualified staff working under the direct supervision of a qualified counselor. The interview shall include a social history, a medical history, a history of alcohol abuse and/or drug abuse, and previous alcohol and/or drug treatment. This interview must be completed within twenty-four hours of admission.

(b) ~~complete an evaluation and assessment of the client's involvement with alcohol and ~~(/or)~~ other drugs ~~((supported by a list of the signs and symptoms observed. The evaluation and assessment))~~ which must be completed within twenty-one days of admission or by the third visit, whichever comes earlier, in an outpatient facility and within five days of admission in a residential facility. ~~((~~☞~~))~~~~

(5) Outpatient and residential facilities shall prepare a written assessment statement based on the information collected under WAC 275-19-165(1) and which shall include, at a minimum:

(a) The counselor's diagnosis of the client's involvement with alcohol and other drugs, including the type of substances used and the degree of progression in the disease if a diagnosis of alcoholism or other addiction is determined and the signs and symptoms which substantiate the diagnosis;

(b) The counselor's assessment of the following screening criteria to assure placement of the client in an appropriate treatment modality. The client's:

(i) Motivation for recovery;

(ii) Ability to attain and maintain abstinence;

(iii) Social support system, including family or significant others, financial condition, and employment status;

(iv) Physical health and general mental status. This shall include the client's own statement describing their current physical health and the counselor's observations regarding the client's current physical, mental, and medical health condition; and

(v) Assets or strengths and needs or weaknesses, as perceived by the client, facility staff, and, if possible, involved others.

(c) The counselor's treatment recommendations including modality and length of the treatment.

(6) All facilities shall inform the client of the results of the assessment and their right to be referred to any approved treatment facility offering services consistent with the results of the assessment.

(7) All facilities shall provide all reports required or requested by the courts, department of licensing, department of social and health services, and any other reporting entity provided federal confidentiality regulations governing Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 CFR, Part 2 are observed.

(8) Outpatient and residential facilities shall complete an individual treatment plan designed to help the person understand his or her alcohol or drug problem, taking into account all case history and diagnostic information.

(a) The plan shall include:

(i) The specific problems to be addressed,

(ii) The objectives to be accomplished in treating the problems,

(iii) The ~~((time-linked means))~~ time frame and methods to be used in achieving the objectives, and

(iv) The anticipated length of treatment.

(b) The initial treatment plan must be prepared within twenty-one days of admission or by the third visit, whichever comes earlier, in an outpatient facility and within five days of admission in a residential facility. ~~((~~d~~-A))~~

(c) All residential detoxification facilities shall consider doctor's standing orders as a treatment plan.

(9) All outpatient and residential treatment facilities shall provide the client a copy of the program rules governing the client ~~((will be~~

~~provided to the applicant))~~ prior to signing any treatment consent forms.

~~((~~2~~))~~ (10) All outpatient and residential facilities shall ~~((have written policies and procedures specifying the program's))~~ provide for physical and laboratory ~~((examination requirements. The policies shall))~~ examinations and include ~~((at least))~~ the following ~~((basic))~~ minimum requirements:

(a) Residential drug addiction or drug abuse treatment clients ~~((must))~~ shall have a complete physical and laboratory examination~~((:));~~

(b) All methadone treatment clients ~~((must))~~ shall have physical and laboratory examinations performed in accordance with WAC 275-19-940 and federal regulations governing the use of methadone for treating narcotic addicts~~((:));~~

(c) All clients showing current intravenous drug use ~~((must))~~ shall have a physical examination~~((:));~~

(d) All clients showing current dependence of barbiturates or benzodiazepines ~~((must))~~ shall be examined by a physician to determine if they should be referred to a program or hospital capable of providing gradual withdrawal~~((~~-3~~));~~ and

(e) Physical examinations, if required, ~~((must))~~ shall be completed and the report placed in the client's file no later than twenty-one days following admission. Physical examinations completed by a private physician ninety days or less prior to intake may be accepted.

~~((~~4~~))~~ (11) There shall be at least one face-to-face group or individual session for each client every month in outpatient programs, and at least one such session every week in residential programs. ~~((~~5~~))~~ Facilities shall limit all group counseling sessions to not more than twelve clients in size.

(12) All facilities shall provide client education regarding alcohol, alcoholism, drugs, drug addiction, and HIV/AIDS.

(13) No more than twenty percent of treatment time shall consist of film or video presentations.

(14) Whenever possible, the facility shall involve the client's family or other social support system in the treatment program. The facility shall document evidence of attempts to involve the client's family or other social support system in the client file.

(15) The facility shall encourage all clients and their families to participate in self-help groups, e.g., Alcoholics Anonymous, Alanon, Alateen, Narcotics Anonymous, and Naranon as appropriate.

(16) All approved treatment facilities shall have a documented review of each case ~~((by a qualified counselor. These reviews shall))~~ to assess the adequacy of the treatment plan in light of the client's current status and progress. Facilities shall conduct the reviews ~~((shall be conducted))~~ according to the following minimum schedule:

(a) Once ~~((every two weeks))~~ each week in ~~((recovery houses;))~~ intensive inpatient;

(b) Once ~~((each month in extended care recovery houses))~~ every twenty hours of client services in intensive outpatient,

(c) Once every two weeks in recovery house and long-term,

(d) ~~((Once each week in intensive inpatient;~~

(e)) Once each month in outpatient~~((;~~

(f) ~~Once every twenty hours of client services in intensive outpatient))~~ and extended care recovery house.

~~((~~6~~))~~ (17) All treatment services using chemotherapy shall provide the following medication services:

(a) Medication evaluation by a medical practitioner at least once every ninety days except for medications prescribed by the client's own physician~~((:));~~ and

(b) A medication dispensary if the program is providing methadone treatment.

~~((~~7~~))~~ (18) Facilities shall secure medications ~~((shall be secured))~~ and ~~((disbursed))~~ disburse in accordance with the requirements of chapter 248-26 WAC.

~~((~~8~~))~~ Clients using disulfiram must be participating in a counseling program:

~~((~~9~~))~~ (19) Upon completion of the course of treatment, except in detoxification facilities, facilities shall:

(a) Develop an aftercare plan ~~((shall be developed))~~ assisting the client in maintaining treatment goals~~((:));~~

(b) Assist the client ~~((shall be assisted))~~ in identifying and making contact with any agencies or services as may be necessary to address any unresolved problems listed on the treatment plan;

(c) Furnish a copy of the aftercare plan to each client upon discharge from the treatment facility; and

(d) Provide a copy of the aftercare plan to the client upon discharge from the facility.

(20) Facilities shall write a discharge summary for each client upon discharge or transfer from each approved treatment service. It shall include, at a minimum, the date of discharge and a summary of the client's progress toward each of the treatment objectives listed on the treatment plan. In detoxification facilities, the summary shall describe the client's physical condition as it relates to detoxification or withdrawal at the time of discharge.

~~((10))~~ (21) When referring or transferring a client to another approved treatment facility, or when a client elects to transfer to another approved treatment facility, the facility shall:

(a) Send the following documentation ~~((shall be sent))~~ to ~~((that))~~ the receiving facility prior to the arrival of the client, provided a release of confidential information is authorized by the client; or ~~((accompany))~~

(b) Provide the following documentation to the client for hand carrying to the facility ~~((provided a release of confidential information has been authorized by the client))~~:

- ~~((a))~~ (i) A copy of the client intake form~~((:))~~;
- ~~((b))~~ (ii) A record of the assessment~~((:))~~;
- ~~((c))~~ (iii) A record of the client's treatment history~~((:))~~;
- ~~((d))~~ (iv) The reason for the referral (self, family, court order)~~((:))~~;
- ~~((e))~~ (v) Court mandated or agency recommended follow-up treatment~~((:))~~;
- ~~((f))~~ (vi) A copy of the discharge summary; and
- ~~((g))~~ (vii) A copy of the aftercare plan.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-170 ALL FACILITIES—RECORDS. (1) All treatment facilities shall have an accurate and complete record system:

- (a) Providing for maintenance of a current and complete record for each client;
- (b) Providing a systematic method of identifying and filing client's records so each record can be located readily;
- (c) Ensuring confidentiality of patients' case records by storing and handling the records under conditions meeting all pertinent federal, state, and local regulations governing such records; and
- (d) Including all required state and county data ~~((and~~
- ~~((e) Reflecting all financial transactions of the facility)).~~

(2) The treatment facility shall retain client file records required in this section ~~((shall be retained by the treatment facility))~~ for a minimum of five years following the discharge or transfer of the client.

In the event an approved treatment facility is closed, the facility may forward clinical records ~~((may be forwarded))~~ to any other approved treatment center with the client's consent. ~~((Clinical records still subject to minimum retention requirements, where client consent is not obtained.))~~ The facility shall ~~((be sealed))~~ seal and ~~((labeled))~~ label the records still subject to minimum retention requirements, where client consent is not obtained, as follows: "Records of (insert name of approved treatment facility) required to be maintained pursuant to WAC 275-19-170, until a date not later than December 31, (insert year)." The facility shall forward sealed records ~~((shall be forwarded))~~ to the department, and the department shall ~~((be disclosed))~~ disclose the records only under such circumstances and to such extent as would be permissible for the program in which they originated.

(3) Residential and outpatient facilities shall have individual case records including the following:

- (a) An intake form including the client's:
 - (i) Full name;
 - (ii) Sex;
 - (iii) Birthdate;
 - (iv) Home address;
 - (v) Date of admission;
 - (vi) Name, address, and telephone number of the client's next of kin or other responsible person; and
 - (vii) Name and city of the client's personal physician, if any.
- (b) A record of the assessment of the client's involvement with alcohol and ~~((/or))~~ drugs ~~((including the signs and symptoms.))~~ required by WAC 275-19-165 (2)(a);
- (c) An individualized treatment plan as prescribed in WAC ~~((275-19-165 (1)(c)))~~ 275-19-165 (2)(b). Doctor's standing orders shall be considered as a treatment plan in inpatient detoxification facilities~~((:))~~;
- (d) Progress notes ~~((on))~~ shall relate to the treatment plan and provide a record of the counselor's ongoing assessment of the client's response to treatment, progress in recovery, relating to or updating the objectives or methods to be used to achieve objectives of problems

listed on the treatment plan, and noting all significant events occurring during treatment. The counselor shall enter at least one progress note every work shift ~~((must be entered))~~ in inpatient detoxification client's file~~((:))~~;

(e) A record of the treatment plan review required by WAC ~~((275-19-165(5.))~~ 275-19-165(9);

(f) Each entry in a client's record shall be authenticated~~((:))~~;

(g) A copy of ~~((any program))~~ agency rules signed and dated by the client~~((:))~~;

(h) A voluntary consent to treatment form, signed and dated by the client~~((:))~~;

(i) ~~((A))~~ Properly completed authorization for release of information form~~((:))~~ or forms;

(j) A copy of the client's aftercare plan~~((:))~~ required by WAC 275-19-165(13);

(k) ~~((At completion of treatment, a))~~ A copy of the client's discharge summary ~~((including the date of discharge, and a summary of the client's progress in meeting the objectives outlined in the treatment plan. In detoxification facilities, the summary shall outline the client's physical condition relating to detoxification or withdrawal.))~~ required by WAC 275-19-165(14); and

(l) Medical records in accordance with chapter 248-26 WAC and WAC 275-19-165(3).

(4) DWI client assessment service facilities including probation assessment facilities shall have individual case records including at a minimum:

- (a) An intake form including the client's full name, sex, birthdate, and home address~~((:))~~;
- (b) The dates of contacts~~((:))~~;
- (c) A copy of the completed Washington alcohol screening inventory showing the client's score~~((:))~~;
- (d) A copy of the client's driving record obtained from the department of licensing files~~((:))~~, if available;
- (e) A record of the client's blood alcohol level at the time of arrest or documentation the information was not available~~((:))~~;
- (f) A record of the client's alcoholism and/or drug treatment history~~((:))~~;
- (g) The name of the court ~~((referring))~~ that is handling the ~~((client for assessment, including the name of the sentencing judge.))~~ client's DWI or physical control charge;

(h) A record of the evaluation and assessment of the client's involvement with alcohol and other drugs as required by WAC ~~((275-19-185.))~~ 275-19-770;

(i) A properly completed authorization for the release of information form~~((:))~~;

(j) Copies of any assessment reports sent to the department of licensing, referring court, the client's attorney, or other person or agency~~((:))~~;

(k) Copies of all correspondence relating to the client~~((:))~~; and

(l) Each entry in a client's record shall be authenticated.

(5) ~~((Alcohol))~~ Information schools ~~((or drug information schools))~~ shall have individual case records including:

- (a) An intake form, including the client's full name, sex, birthdate, and home address;
- (b) Dates in attendance;
- (c) Source of referral;
- (d) Copies of all reports, letters, certificates, and other correspondence sent to attorneys, courts, department of licensing, or any other agency;
- (e) A record of any referral of the client to other services;
- (f) A properly completed authorization for release of information form;

(g) A copy of the completed, scored, post-test as written in ~~((An Instructor's Guide to Alcohol Information School))~~ An Instructor's Guide to Alcohol and Other Drug Information School, published ~~((January 1980))~~ in 1986, as now or hereafter amended~~((:))~~; and

(h) Each entry in a client's record shall be authenticated.

(6) Emergency service patrols shall maintain a log including:

- (a) The time and origin of the call received,
- (b) The time of arrival at the scene,
- (c) The location of the pickup,
- (d) The name and sex of the person transported,
- (e) The destination of transport (either home or inpatient detoxification facility), and
- (f) The time of transport completion~~((:))~~;
- (g) In nonpickup cases, notation shall be made of the reason why said pickup was not made~~((:))~~, and

(h) Each entry in the log shall be dated and signed by the person making the entry.

(7) ADATSA chemical dependency assessment centers shall have individual case records including, at a minimum:

(a) ~~(An intake form including:~~

(i) ~~Client's full name;~~

(ii) ~~Address;~~

(iii) ~~Sex;~~

(iv) ~~Birthdate;~~

(v) ~~Assessment date;~~

(vi) ~~Address and telephone number of the client's next-of-kin, or other emergency contact; and~~

(vii) ~~Name and city or telephone number of the client's physician, if any.~~

(b) A properly completed assessment ~~(and case supervision)~~ form ~~(provided)~~ approved by the bureau;

~~(c)~~ (b) A record of the assessment of the client's involvement with alcohol and drugs recording all of the information required by WAC 275-19-185(2);

~~(d)~~ (c) A record of the client's own assessment of his or her involvement with alcohol and drugs;

~~(e)~~ (d) A record of the client's own assessment of his or her mental health problems and any physical incapacity;

~~(f)~~ (e) A properly completed authorization for release of confidential information form meeting all state and federal requirements;

~~(g)~~ (f) A record of the placement of the client in each residential and outpatient ADATSA component including the date of the placement, the name of the treatment center or shelter, and the dates each phase of treatment or shelter will begin;

~~(h)~~ (g) Copies of all reports and correspondence related to the client;

~~(i)~~ (h) Notes documenting contacts by telephone or in person concerning the client;

~~(j)~~ (i) A termination summary; and

~~(k)~~ (j) Each entry in the client's record shall be authenticated.

(8) All residential treatment facilities shall have a permanent, current register of all persons admitted for care or treatment. This shall include at a minimum the date of admission, the client's name, and the date of discharge or transfer.

(9) Treatment facilities shall honor any request for information from clinical records which is accompanied by a written authorization meeting the requirements of 42 CFR, part 2.31 within fourteen days of receipt of the request. The fee for this service shall not exceed the cost of duplicating and mailing the records. The facility may not withhold information due to the client's inability to pay for services rendered.

(10) The facility shall, upon request by a client, provide copies of records of fees charged their account, billings to their third-party payor, or fees received from themselves or a third-party payor within fourteen days of receipt of the request. The fee for this service shall not exceed the cost of duplicating and mailing the records.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-180 RESIDENTIAL AND OUTPATIENT FACILITIES—CASE MANAGEMENT. (1) The ~~goal of treatment~~ ~~(rationale)~~ shall be ~~(designed to achieve)~~ total abstinence for all diagnosed alcoholics and drug addicts.

(2) ~~(Concurrent drug and alcohol use shall be explored with each client.~~

~~(3)~~ For each client ~~(there)~~, the facility shall ~~(be)~~ provide a case manager responsible for completeness of records and documentation of progress toward ~~(an)~~ attainment of the treatment objectives.

~~(4)~~ (3) Case managers shall be:

(a) Qualified counselors in all intensive inpatient, long-term treatment, recovery house, extended care recovery house, outpatient, and intensive outpatient facilities.

(b) Qualified counselors or licensed nurses in detoxification facilities. Only qualified counselors or counselor trainees working under the supervision of qualified counselors shall conduct the assessments of the client's involvement with alcohol or drugs and provide counseling services in a detoxification facility.

~~(5)~~ (4) Case managers shall, either by doing themselves or by reviewing and approving the work of counselor trainees, conduct the client evaluation and assessments, develop the individualized treatment plans, (conduct the treatment plan reviews required by WAC 275-19-165 (1)(b) and (c) and 275-19-165(5), and develop) aftercare plans and discharge summaries, and provide counseling services.

(5) Case managers shall conduct the treatment plan reviews required by WAC 275-19-165(9).

(6) Case managers shall be responsible to follow up on clients missing appointments and to pursue all opportunities to keep the client in treatment. In the event a client, who has been court ordered to a treatment program aborts the treatment program, the counselor shall report that fact (shall be) promptly (reported) to the committing authority provided an authorization for the release of confidential information is on file.

(7) ~~(There)~~ The clinical supervisor shall ~~(be a documented)~~ document quarterly reviews of the adequacy of at least four case files of each counselor ~~(by the clinical supervisor)~~.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-260 ALL DETOXIFICATION FACILITIES—DISCHARGE AND REFERRAL. The facilities shall refer all clients discharged ~~(shall be referred)~~ to an ADATSA or approved treatment facility when appropriate and/or to other health care ~~(facility)~~ when necessary.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-270 ACUTE DETOXIFICATION—ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS. Any treatment facility providing acute detoxification services shall ~~(comply with the following additional requirements:~~

~~(1)~~ ensure the client's physical and health care needs ~~(shall be)~~ are met by practices meeting the standards set forth in chapter 248-26 WAC. The facility may provide juices, snack foods, and other like foods capable of being ingested by a person undergoing detoxification in lieu of formal menus as specified in chapter 248-26 WAC.

~~(2) All personnel providing client care in the absence of licensed physicians or nurses in the facility shall possess:~~

(a) A valid and current red cross card or certificate for first aid; and

(b) Cardiopulmonary resuscitation or the equivalent annually.)

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-280 SUBACUTE DETOXIFICATION—ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS. Treatment facilities providing subacute detoxification services shall comply with the following additional requirements:

(1) Subacute detoxification facilities shall meet the requirements set forth in chapter 248-26 WAC.

(2) No more than twenty clients shall be served in any one facility or separate units within a facility.

(3) The facility shall be located within five miles driving distance of a hospital or shall have physician-trained, mobile-intensive-care paramedic services as defined in chapter 248-15 WAC available within ten minutes.

(4) Prescription medication shall not be provided for management of withdrawal discomfort.

(5) If a client admitted to the facility has in his or her possession any prescription medications, the staff shall attempt to contact the prescribing physician to check on the accuracy of the prescription, its recommended usage and document the attempts in the client file.

~~(6) (All personnel providing client care in the absence of licensed physicians or nurses in the facility shall possess:~~

(a) A valid and current red cross card or certificate for first aid; and

(b) Cardiopulmonary resuscitation or the equivalent annually.

~~(7) All personnel except licensed physicians providing client care shall (have completed) complete a minimum of forty hours of documented training in alcoholism and/or drug addiction (prior to or), including HIV/AIDS education, within six months of the date of employment.~~

~~(8) (7) All furnishings and the general decor shall reflect a homelike environment. Each of the following areas shall be provided and structured as stated:~~

(a) The dining area shall have provisions for family-type eating arrangements(-);

(b) Sleeping areas shall be arranged so as to permit observation of residents and encourage resident communication(-);

(c) A lounge shall have adequate space for relaxation, group discussion, and peer group interaction(-); and

(d) The reception area shall be separate from living areas in order to maintain the comfort and privacy of residents. There shall be a client reception desk and a comfortable chair for use by those seeking entry.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-300 INTENSIVE INPATIENT TREATMENT FACILITIES—PURPOSE. The purpose of WAC 275-19-300 through 275-19-399 is to provide specific program standards for facilities providing intensive inpatient treatment services as defined in WAC 275-19-020. To be approved as a treatment facility to provide intensive inpatient treatment services, the facility ~~((must))~~ shall comply with the applicable requirements of WAC 275-19-010 through 275-19-199, 275-19-300 through 275-19-399, chapter 248-26 WAC, and chapters 69.54 and/or 70.96A RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-320 INTENSIVE INPATIENT TREATMENT FACILITIES—REQUIRED SERVICES. There shall be an organized program and staff sufficient to provide the following services ~~((by qualified counselors))~~:

- (1) Education of clients regarding alcohol, alcoholism, drugs, and drug addiction;
- (2) Intensive individual and group counseling;
- (3) A minimum of twenty hours of counseling services per week for each client;
- (4) Social and recreational activities;
- (5) Aftercare planning;
- (6) Discharge and referral to necessary supportive organizations and agencies; and
- (7) An invitation and encouragement to family members to participate in their own treatment program and in the treatment of the client. Treatment facilities shall inform family members ((shall be informed)) of the desirability of participation in family counseling, Alanon, Naranon, Alateen, and other self-help or specific group or individual resources, and be encouraged to pursue these subsequent to treatment.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-410 LONG-TERM TREATMENT FACILITIES—CLIENTS. ~~((Persons needing detoxification or withdrawal shall not be admitted or retained but shall be referred or transferred to a detoxification facility unless they manifest signs and symptoms of a condition warranting acute care and treatment in a hospital))~~ Long-term treatment facilities shall limit admission of clients to persons who:

- (1) Accepted voluntary treatment in lieu of being involuntarily committed to long-term treatment. A copy of the signed, dated, and completed involuntary commitment petition having been filed with the superior court or district court; the client's signed voluntary admission to treatment, and any other supporting information, shall accompany clients sent to a long-term treatment facility. These documents shall be placed in the client's file at the long-term facility; or
- (2) Have been involuntarily committed to a long-term treatment facility under RCW 70.96A.140.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-430 LONG-TERM TREATMENT FACILITIES—REQUIRED SERVICES. There shall be an organized program and staff sufficient for facilities to provide the following services ~~((by qualified counselors))~~:

- (1) Education of clients regarding alcohol and alcoholism, drugs, and drug addiction;
- (2) Individual and group counseling;
- (3) Education concerning social and life-coping skills;
- (4) Social and recreational activities;
- (5) When appropriate, assistance in finding employment;
- (6) Aftercare planning; and
- (7) Discharge referral to necessary supportive organizations and agencies.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-530 RECOVERY HOUSE FACILITIES—REQUIRED SERVICES. There shall be an organized program and staff sufficient for facilities to provide the following services by qualified counselors:

- (1) A minimum of four and one-half hours of counseling services per week for each client ~~((If group counseling services are provided, not more than fifteen clients may be in a group))~~;
- (2) ~~((When appropriate, assistance))~~ Vocational services to assist the client in finding employment;
- (3) Referral to necessary supportive organizations and agencies.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-560 EXTENDED CARE RECOVERY HOUSE FACILITIES—CLIENTS. ~~((Persons needing detoxification shall not be admitted or retained but shall be referred or transferred to a detoxification facility unless they manifest signs and symptoms of a condition warranting acute care and treatment in a hospital))~~ Extended care recovery house facilities shall limit admission to persons:

- (1) In need of residential care whose toxicity precludes them from being able to participate in intensive inpatient treatment; and
- (2) For whom the extended care recovery program will provide a more appropriate place of primary treatment and recovery house services.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-570 EXTENDED CARE RECOVERY HOUSE FACILITIES—REQUIRED SERVICES. There shall be an organized program and staff sufficient for facilities to provide the following services:

- (1) A minimum of four and one-half hours of treatment services per week by qualified counselors to include the following:
 - (a) Education regarding living sober and drug-free;
 - (b) Individual and/or group counseling ~~((conducted by qualified counselors. If group counseling services are provided, not more than fifteen clients may be in a group))~~.
- (2) ~~((When appropriate, assistance))~~ Vocational services to assist the client in finding employment((-);
- (3) Referral to necessary supportive organizations and agencies((-); and
- (4) ~~((A program designed to provide treatment services to alcoholics or drug addicts meeting one of the following admissions criteria:

 - (a) Received detoxification services three or more times within three months prior to the referral agency's current client evaluation date. Detoxification or withdrawal services must have been received in a licensed hospital or in a state-approved detoxification facility;
 - (b) Received intensive inpatient treatment in a state-approved treatment facility for a period of seven days or more within six months prior to the referral agency's current client evaluation date;
 - (c) Received long-term, recovery house, or extended care recovery house treatment in a state-approved treatment facility for a period of seven days or more within six months prior to the referral agency's current client evaluation date;
 - (d) Accepted voluntary treatment in lieu of being involuntarily committed to extended care recovery house treatment. A copy of the signed, dated, and completed involuntary commitment petition having been filed with the superior court, the client's signed voluntary admission to treatment, and any other supporting information must accompany clients sent to an extended care recovery house treatment facility. These documents must be placed in the client's file at the extended care recovery house facility;
 - (e) Has been involuntarily committed to an extended care recovery house treatment facility per RCW 70.96A.140;
)))) The facility shall design the program ~~((shall be designed))~~ to provide client care and treatment for a period in excess of sixty days.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-590 CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY ASSESSMENT CENTERS—REQUIRED SERVICES. Approved chemical dependency assessment centers shall provide:

(1) An alcohol and drug assessment of all clients providing, at a minimum, the ~~((evaluation required by WAC 275-19-185(2)))~~ following:

~~(a) A diagnostic interview with a qualified counselor, or counselor trainee under the supervision of a qualified counselor, as defined in WAC 275-19-145, gathering at a minimum, the information required on an ADATSA assessment form approved by the bureau;~~

~~(b) The counselor's written assessment summary statement concerning the client's diagnosis of alcoholism or drug addiction and whether or not the client is incapacitated as a result; and~~

~~(c) A record of the outcome of the assessment interview with the client, indicating the decisions reached by the counselor as to the treatment and shelter plan the client is to follow.~~

(2) A preliminary screening of clients and referral of those clients qualifying for social security supplemental income or general assistance-unemployable benefits based on mental illness or physical disability to the department's local community services office.

(3) Case supervision of treatment and/or shelter services for clients admitted to the ADATSA program.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-610 **OUTPATIENT TREATMENT FACILITIES—REQUIRED SERVICES.** There shall be an organized program and staff sufficient for the facility to provide the following services by qualified counselors:

(1) Assessment of each client's needs regarding specific alcohol-related and ~~((or))~~ drug-related problems ~~((as perceived by the client, center staff, and, if possible, involved others));~~

~~(2) ((Immediate evaluation for persons in a crisis)) Referral to treatment and ancillary facilities for services consistent with the assessment;~~

~~(3) Individual and group counseling ((on a scheduled basis));~~

~~(4) Education on alcohol and drugs; and~~

~~(5) Discharge and referral to necessary supportive organizations and agencies.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-660 **INTENSIVE OUTPATIENT FACILITIES—REQUIRED SERVICES.** There shall be an organized program and staff sufficient for facility to provide the following services ~~((by qualified counselors)):~~

(1) Assessment of each client's needs regarding specific alcohol and ~~((or))~~ drug-related problems ~~((as perceived by the client, facility staff, and if possible involved others));~~

(2) ~~((Screening criteria shall be developed and applied including such diagnostic techniques as needed to assure the appropriateness of placement in this treatment modality. The diagnosis shall, at a minimum, include an assessment of the client's:~~

~~(a) Progression in the disease of alcoholism and/or drug addiction;~~

~~(b) Motivation for recovery and the ability to attain and maintain abstinence on an outpatient basis;~~

~~(c) Social support systems, including family or significant others, financial condition, and employment status; and~~

~~(d) Physical health and general mental status.~~

~~((3)) Program requirements. The facility shall provide the following services ~~((shall be provided))~~ to clients ~~((and their families)):~~~~

(a) The program shall deliver a minimum of seventy-two hours of treatment services within a maximum of twelve weeks. The first four weeks of treatment ~~((must))~~ shall consist of a minimum of three sessions of at least one hour each on three separate days of each week;

~~(b) ((A review of each active case by the client's case manager not less than once in every twenty hours of treatment. This review shall be noted in the client's case file;~~

~~((c)) Individual counseling sessions with each client every twenty hours of treatment and additionally as needed;~~

~~((d)) (c) Education of clients regarding alcohol, alcoholism, and/or drugs and drug addiction;~~

~~((e) No more than twenty percent of treatment time shall consist of film presentations;~~

~~((f)) (d) Group therapy sessions ~~((Sessions shall be limited in attendance to no more than twelve clients per counselor;~~~~

~~((g) Whenever possible, the client's family or other social support system shall be substantially involved in the treatment program));~~

~~((h)) and~~

~~(e) Upon completion of intensive outpatient treatment, the facility shall refer the client ~~((shall be referred))~~ to a structured aftercare program ~~((; and~~~~

~~(f) All clients and their families shall be encouraged to participate in Alcoholics Anonymous, Alanon, Alateen, Narcotics Anonymous, and Naranon as appropriate)).~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-675 **ADATSA OUTPATIENT TREATMENT FACILITIES—PURPOSE.** The purpose of WAC 275-19-675 through 275-19-699 is to provide specific operational program standards for facilities providing ADATSA outpatient treatment services ~~((as described in WAC 275-19-020)).~~ To be approved as an ADATSA outpatient treatment facility, the facility must comply with the applicable requirements in WAC 275-19-010 through 275-19-199, 275-19-675 through 275-19-699, and chapters 69.54 and 70.96A RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2044, filed 11/4/83)

WAC 275-19-760 **DWI CLIENT ASSESSMENT SERVICES—CLIENTS.** ~~((Admission of clients to a treatment facility providing))~~ DWI ~~((client))~~ assessment facilities shall limit assessment services ~~((shall be limited))~~ to persons who have been arrested for a violation of driving while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs (RCW 46.61.502), or actual physical control of a motor vehicle while under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs (RCW 46.61.504) ~~((or petitioning for a deferred prosecution (chapter 10.05 RCW) for those offenses)).~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-770 **DWI CLIENT ASSESSMENT SERVICES—REQUIRED SERVICES.** DWI assessments shall include, in addition to the requirements of WAC 275-19-165 (2), (5), (6), and (7), the following:

(1) Qualified counselors or qualified assessment officers as defined in WAC 275-19-145 shall ~~((provide the following services:~~

~~(a) Assess client's involvement with alcohol and other drugs)) conduct the assessments;~~

~~(2) Administration of a written screening instrument using, as a minimum, the Washington alcohol screening inventory ~~((and a diagnostic interview as required by WAC 275-19-185.~~~~

~~(b) Prepare a written assessment statement of each client's involvement with alcohol and other drugs which includes all of the information required by WAC 275-19-185.~~

~~(c) Inform each client of the right to select and be referred to an approved alcohol or drug treatment facility for services which are consistent with the assessment.~~

~~(2) Provide any requested reports of the assessment, in the format required, to the court of jurisdiction, the department of licensing, and any other authorized agency or person));~~

~~(3) An evaluation of the client's blood alcohol and/or drug level at the time of arrest for any alcohol or other drug-related offense, if available;~~

~~(4) An evaluation of the client's report of their driving record;~~

~~(5) Include in the written assessment required by WAC 275-19-165(5) the following:~~

~~(a) The client's raw score and percentile score from the Washington alcohol screening inventory; and~~

~~(b) The client's own assessment of his or her involvement with alcohol and other drugs.~~

~~(6) If the assessment concludes the person has an alcohol or drug problem requiring treatment, the facility shall advise the person to seek appropriate approved treatment. If the assessment concludes the person requires only alcohol and drug education, the facility shall refer the person to an approved information school.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-810 **INFORMATION SCHOOL—SCHOOL REQUIREMENTS.** (1) The course shall be taught by a qualified information school instructor as defined in WAC 275-19-145. ~~((This requirement shall become effective July 1, 1984.))~~

(2) Prior to beginning the first lesson, the instructor shall:

(a) Advise the students the course:

- (i) Does not assume they are all alcoholics or drug addicts((-); and
- (ii) Is not a therapy session.
- (b) Clearly identify and share the class rules with the students((-); and
- (c) Share the course objectives with the students.
- (3) Seating shall be adequate and comfortable.
- (4) Rooms shall be well-lit and well-ventilated.
- (5) The facility shall properly complete and submit in a timely manner all reports required by the courts and the department of licensing (~~shall be properly completed and shall be submitted in a timely manner~~).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2171, filed 11/30/84, effective 1/1/85)

WAC 275-19-820 INFORMATION SCHOOL—CURRICULUM. (1) Instructors at the information (~~course must be taught following~~) school shall teach the content and objectives (~~outlined~~) contained in (~~An Instructor's Guide to Alcohol Information School~~) An Instructor's Guide to Alcohol and Other Drugs Information School, published (~~January 1980~~) in 1986, as now or hereafter amended.

(2) The (~~alcohol information school curriculum shall include the following~~):

- (a) Adequate information regarding alcohol, alcohol abuse, and alcoholism.
- (b) Information on the current laws addressing drinking alcoholic beverages and driving a motor vehicle.
- (c) Information on the effect of the use of alcohol on driving ability.
- (d) Information regarding the availability of alcoholism treatment resources, for the primary alcoholic and his or her family.
- (e) Information on the dangers of the use of alcohol in combination with other drugs.
- (f) Information on the impact of alcohol abuse and alcoholism on the family.

(~~3~~) The curriculum shall consist of not less than eight nor more than (~~twelve~~) fifteen hours of classroom instruction(:

(~~4~~) Not with no more than three hours of instruction (~~shall be~~) conducted in any one day.

(~~5~~) (3) Instructors shall administer the post-test, as written in (~~An Instructor's Guide to Alcohol Information School~~) An Instructor's Guide to Alcohol and Other Drugs Information School, published (~~January 1980~~) in 1986, as now or hereafter amended, (~~shall be administered~~) to each enrolled student after the instruction sessions are completed.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-940 ALL METHADONE TREATMENT FACILITIES—INTAKE TREATMENT REQUIREMENTS. (1) Sick physicals. Methadone treatment facilities shall provide each patient, upon application by the patient for admission to methadone treatment, a sick physical by a program physician or other appropriately licensed health professional. Methadone treatment facilities shall not prescribe methadone for a patient until a sick physical has been completed and a diagnosis of current physiological dependence on an opiate drug has been reached, except as provided in subsections (8) and (9) of this section. The sick physical shall include observations of the presence or absence of the following signs which the facility shall (~~be documented~~) document in the clinical file:

- (a) (~~Rhinorrhea {rhinorrhea}~~) Rhinorrhea,
- (b) Pupillary dilation,
- (c) Piloerection,
- (d) Elevated body temperature,
- (e) Elevated pulse rate,
- (f) Elevated blood pressure,
- (g) Elevated respiration rate,
- (h) Lacrimation, and
- (i) Intravenous injection site scars.

(2) Overall health evaluation. Methadone treatment facilities shall conduct and document in the client file an overall health evaluation of each patient by a program physician or other appropriately licensed health practitioner within (~~one week~~) twenty-one days of admission to methadone treatment.

(3) Physician involvement in sick physicals. Methadone treatment facilities shall make a program physician available for consultation by telephone or in person when sick physicals are conducted by anyone other than a program physician. A program physician shall conduct

sick physicals for all juvenile patients and for all adult patients with unusual or ambiguous signs or symptoms.

(4) Follow-up examination. Following the initial dose of methadone, treatment facilities shall (~~conduct and document an in-person, physical examination of the patient. Such an examination shall be conducted as close as possible to the time when methadone blood levels are highest, typically three to four hours after a dose is provided to the patient. The examination shall~~) establish adequacy of dose, including signs and symptoms of withdrawal, patient comfort, and side effects from over-medication.

(5) Documentation of addiction history. Methadone treatment facilities shall note all observations, tests, reported symptoms, and documents certifying addiction history, and shall retain such documentation in the patient's clinical record. Methadone treatment facilities shall include in each patient file a summary analysis of all diagnostic data.

(6) Documentation of doses. Methadone treatment facilities shall note the date and amount of the initial dose and the date and amount of all dose changes in the patient's clinical record.

(7) Documentation of physiologic addiction. Methadone treatment facilities shall document evidence supporting diagnoses of addiction for all patients who are prescribed methadone. The department shall conduct an after-the-fact review of a random sample of all patient records, examining sick physical documentation and the resulting diagnosis.

(8) Exception to sick physicals. Recently detoxified patients. Methadone (~~treatment facilities~~) program physicians may restart methadone medication without a sick physical for patients detoxified from methadone within the last two years(~~, who continue to receive at least one face-to-face counseling session per month, lasting at least forty-five minutes per session~~).

(9) Exception to sick physicals—Penal, chronic care, and pregnant clients. Methadone treatment facilities may admit and prescribe methadone to penal, chronic care, and pregnant patients without meeting sick physical requirements, provided the facility has followed the rules outlined in federal regulations, 21 C.F.R. Part 291.505 (d)(3)(iii)(a) and (b), adopted September 19, 1980.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-950 ALL METHADONE TREATMENT FACILITIES—URINALYSIS TREATMENT REQUIREMENTS. (1) Urinalysis frequency. All patients shall submit urine samples for urinalysis at least once per month. After a patient has a positive urine, the patient shall submit (~~four~~) two urine samples per month for urinalysis. The patient shall continue to submit at least (~~four~~) two samples per month until the patient has at least four consecutive negative urines, after which the patient may return to once-a-month submittal.

(2) Random sampling. Methadone treatment facilities shall randomly schedule all urine sample submissions, without prior warning to the patient.

(3) Sampling procedures. Methadone treatment facilities shall ensure staff observation of all collections of urine samples. Facility staff shall seal samples immediately in patient's presence with a prenumbered seal. The patient shall initial a log of sample seal numbers next to the seal number. Methadone treatment facilities shall void and retain broken or unusable seals. Facilities shall keep logs of sample seal numbers confidential, apart from all other patient records. Facilities shall discard contaminated samples and samples with broken seals.

(4) Required screens. Each urinalysis shall include qualitative analysis for the presence of opiates, methadone, amphetamines, cocaine, barbiturates, and other drugs as indicated by the patient's drug use history. The urinalysis may instead include qualitative analysis for metabolites of such drugs, if such analysis would yield more accurate results.

(5) Refusal to give sample. Methadone treatment facilities shall treat a patient's refusal to provide a urine sample upon request, for whatever reason, or a patient's refusal to initial the log of seal number in the same manner as a positive urine.

(6) Positive urines. Methadone treatment facilities shall report and discuss all positive urines (~~to~~) with the patient (~~and discuss~~) in a counseling session within seven days of obtaining the results from the drug testing laboratory.

(7) Dose increase justification. Following stabilization, methadone treatment facilities shall justify all dose increases in the patient's record. Positive urines alone shall not be considered adequate justification. Additional data on desirability of dose increases shall be documented in the patient's record, including signs and symptoms of withdrawal, patient discomfort, or other medically justifiable reasons.

(8) Mandatory discharge for positive urines. Methadone treatment facilities shall discharge any patient with three consecutive positive urines collected later than ninety days after admission. Patients so discharged may not be readmitted to methadone treatment at any facility for thirty days following the first discharge and for ninety days following the second and subsequent discharges.

(9) Mandatory discharge for absence of methadone in urine—Absence of methadone. Methadone treatment facilities shall discharge any patient receiving methadone and whose urinalysis fails to confirm the presence of methadone or methadone metabolite, unless the facility can confirm physiological reasons for the lack of detectable methadone or methadone metabolite. ~~((Confirmation))~~ Confirmation may include a dose level less than ten milligrams daily, a urinalysis of a second sample taken twenty-four hours after in-person administration of a dose which also fails to confirm the presence of methadone or methadone metabolite, or documentation showing the client has taken six doses per week at the clinic until a urinalysis shows the presence of methadone or methadone metabolite in the urine. The facility may use other medically justifiable means of confirming physiological reasons for failure to confirm presence of methadone or metabolite. The facility shall document any confirmation ((shall be documented)) in detail in the patient's record. No methadone treatment facility may admit a patient who has been discharged from any methadone facility pursuant to this subsection during the previous thirty days.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-970 ALL METHADONE TREATMENT FACILITIES—DISPENSARY OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

(1) Authorization of dispensary personnel. Methadone treatment facilities shall designate individuals authorized to enter the dispensary. Those authorizations shall be limited to persons with a clear need to enter.

(2) Dispensary staffing. Methadone treatment facilities shall establish written procedures, especially recordkeeping practices, designed to minimize the number of individuals who need to be in the dispensary.

(3) Methadone handling procedures. Methadone treatment facilities shall establish written procedures for all activities involving handling methadone (compounding, dispensing, etc.). The facility shall design such procedures ((shall be designed)) to minimize error and minimize possibilities for diversion of methadone by staff or others.

(4) Methadone stock inventory. Methadone treatment facilities shall ensure dispensary staff measure all opened stocks of methadone ~~((before and after each period of time during which methadone is compounded, dispensed, or administered. A period of time shall be deemed to conclude, or a new period begin, whenever any staff person enters or leaves the dispensary))~~ at the opening and closing of each dispensing calendar day. Staff shall note the amount measured in methadone inventory records and verify the entry with initials or signature. The staff shall measure all newly opened stocks of methadone ((shall be measured)) immediately and record the actual amount ((recorded)) in the same manner. Methadone treatment facilities shall reconcile inventory changes with doses dispensed. If any discrepancy is uncovered during reconciliation of doses dispensed and inventory changes, and any variations in inventory between previous close and current open, the facility shall obtain statements from all dispensary staff persons involved. The program director shall investigate the discrepancy and report to the federal drug enforcement agency, Washington state board of pharmacy, and the department of social and health services, if not accounted for.

(5) Dispensary schedule. Methadone treatment facilities shall schedule dispensing and other activities to minimize impact on neighboring businesses and residences.

(6) Quantitative analysis. Methadone treatment facilities shall conduct a quantitative analysis of all open methadone stocks whenever a transfer case is reported to the program director pursuant to WAC 275-19-990(6), or whenever the program director has other reason to believe dilution and diversion of methadone stocks may be occurring. The facility shall report methadone concentration below the manufacturer's tolerance ((shall be reported)) immediately to the federal drug enforcement administration, the Washington board of pharmacy, and the department of social and health services.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-980 ALL METHADONE TREATMENT FACILITIES—COUNSELING TREATMENT REQUIREMENTS.

(1) Individual and group counseling. Methadone treatment facilities

shall make available sufficient individual and group counseling for each patient to accomplish treatment plan goals and objectives. The facility shall intensify counseling ((shall be intensified)) ((increased)) increase in frequency, duration, and/or mode) when problems arise, when ((requested by)) the patient requests, or when progress is no longer being made.

(2) Minimum counseling. Methadone treatment facilities shall ~~((provide))~~ conduct and document, at a minimum, one face-to-face counseling session lasting at least forty-five minutes ((for group or thirty minutes for individual((?)) sessions each week for each patient during the first ninety days after admission. Counseling may be reduced to two face-to-face sessions per month during the next ((twelve)) six months, and to once per month thereafter. Facilities may not use group counseling sessions with more than twelve patients in attendance to meet this requirement.

(3) Semiannual review. Methadone treatment facilities shall conduct and document an individual counseling session lasting forty-five minutes or more with each patient, between six and seven months after admission, and once every six months thereafter. The purpose of the session is to review treatment progress, revise or reaffirm treatment plan and planned detoxification date, and to review all relevant facts concerning the use of methadone.

(4) Counseling. Methadone treatment facilities shall ensure all counseling is provided by qualified drug abuse counselors or counselor-trainees in a manner that is physically and organizationally separate from other activities, particularly dispensing and fee collection, except to the extent necessary for coordination or for resolution of compliance problems such as nonpayment or missed doses. Facilities may not credit counseling occurring while dispensing methadone or collecting fees toward meeting the counseling requirements of this section.

(5) Counselor/patient ratio. Methadone treatment facilities shall provide at least one qualified counselor (full-time equivalent) for each fifty patients. Facilities shall assign each patient to a primary counselor, who shall be a qualified drug counselor. The primary counselor ~~((with))~~ shall bear responsibility for the conduct and management of all cases assigned to him or her. No more than fifty cases may be assigned to any primary counselor at one time.

(6) Counselor-trainees. Methadone treatment facilities may provide counseling services using counselor-trainees, if the counselor-trainees are under the direct, close supervision of a qualified drug counselor. A qualified drug counselor with one or more counselor-trainees may be assigned as primary counselor up to seventy-five patients, including those cases delegated to the counselor-trainees. Each qualified drug counselor may supervise as many counselor-trainees as he or she desires and delegate cases in a responsible fashion, except that no counselor-trainee may be delegated more than thirty-five patients. Primary counselor responsibility for all cases shall rest with a qualified drug counselor, regardless of whom provides counseling services.

(7) Individualized treatment plans. Methadone treatment facilities shall prepare and document individualized treatment plans for each patient, which must specify the patient's problems; the frequency, mode, and duration of counseling sessions; and the planned detoxification date.

(8) Pregnancy and drugs. Methadone treatment facilities shall provide, to any patient who requests, at least one hour per month of counseling and education on matters relating to pregnancy and street drugs, and the effects of methadone treatment when provided during pregnancy. The facility may provide this session ((may be provided)) in an individual or group setting at the discretion of the facility director.

(9) Family planning professional. Methadone treatment facilities shall have at least one professional, either a qualified drug counselor, physician, or physician's assistant, who has appropriate training in family planning, prenatal health, and parenting skills.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-985 ALL METHADONE TREATMENT FACILITIES—TAKE-HOME MEDICATION OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS. (1) Minimum take-home criteria. Methadone treatment facilities may provide all patients with take-home medication for Sundays and for any legal holiday set forth in RCW 1.16.050, at the discretion of the program physician. The facility shall permit take-home medication on other days ((shall be permitted)) only for stabilized patients who have been receiving methadone for a minimum of ninety days and who have had negative urines for the last sixty days.

(2) Criteria for allowing increased take-homes. Methadone treatment facilities may increase frequency of take-home medication when

a patient is judged capable of handling increased frequency of take-home medication. The program shall consider and document in the client file the following in determining whether a patient is responsible in handling methadone:

- (a) Absence of abuse of drugs and alcohol;
- (b) Regularity of attendance, both dispensing and counseling;
- (c) Absence of known criminal activity or activities, especially drug sales;
- (d) Stability of home environment and social relationships;
- (e) Ability to safely store take-home medications;
- (f) A positive balance between therapeutic benefit and the risk of diversion of take-home medication; and
- (g) The program physician shall approve all changes in take-home medication.

~~(3) ((Restriction of take-home privileges following dose increase. For at least seven days following an increase in dose at any time during treatment, methadone treatment facilities may provide a patient with take-home medications only for Sundays and legal holidays.~~

~~(4))~~ Maximum take-home privileges. Methadone treatment facilities shall limit the minimum weekly attendance for in-person administration of methadone, the maximum number of daily doses of take-home medication that is provided at any one time, and the maximum total amount of methadone (number of doses multiplied by dose amount) that is provided at any one time, according to the following schedule:

Months Since Admission to Methadone Treatment	Minimum Attendance (In-Person Administration)	Maximum Number of Take-Home Medication Doses	Maximum Total Amount of Take-Home Medication
0 to 3 months	6 days/week	one-day supply	100 mg.
4 to 6 months	((5)) days/week	two-day supply	((70)) mg
	$\frac{3}{3}$		140
7 to 24 months	3 days/week	two-day supply	120 mg.
over 24 months	2 days/week	three-day supply	150 mg.

~~((5) Maximum))~~ (4) Loss of take-homes following positive urines. Methadone ~~((treatment facilities))~~ patients who have two positive urines in the last ninety days shall ~~((limit the maximum number of daily doses of))~~ lose all take-home ~~((medication of patients who have one positive urine in the last ninety days and shall require minimum clinic attendance for in-person administration of methadone for such patients according to the following schedule:~~

Months Since Admission to Methadone Treatment	Minimum Attendance (In-Person Administration)	Maximum Number of Take-Home Medication Doses
0 to 6 months	6 days/week	one-day supply
7 to 24 months	5 days/week	one-day supply
over 24 months	3 days/week	two-day supply

Maximum total amount of take-home medication shall not exceed the amounts set forth in the schedule of subsection (4) of this section) privileges. The facility may place patients ~~((who are restricted to the schedule set forth in this subsection may be placed))~~ on the schedule set forth in subsection ~~((4))~~ (3) of this section if they have no additional positive urines for ninety days.

~~((6))~~ (5) Exceptional take-home; Saturday or Monday holidays. Methadone treatment facilities may provide all patients with one extra take-home dose in addition to the supply limits set forth in subsections (3) and (4) ~~((and (5)))~~ of this section, when a legal holiday falls on a Monday or a Saturday, or when two legal holidays fall on successive days, and restrictions on the patient's take-home medication will not otherwise permit sufficient take-home medication doses for both Sunday and the legal holiday or for both legal holidays.

~~((7))~~ (6) Labeling. Methadone treatment facilities shall label take-home medication containers with the name of the prescriber, complete directions for use, the name of the drug either by the brand or generic name, the name of the patient, and the date dispensed.

~~((8))~~ (7) Restarting methadone medication. Methadone treatment facilities may restart medication for patients who undergo planned detoxification, but remain in counseling (at least one face-to-face event per thirty days) for up to two years. Such patients are not considered discharged and may restart medication without sick physicals. Facilities shall not provide take-home medication to such patients, other than for Sundays and legal holidays, for at least seven days following

the restart of medication. After the seven-day period has concluded, facilities may reinstate take-home medication privileges as if medication was uninterrupted.

~~((9))~~ (8) Waivers of take-home standards. A facility's medical director may approve a maximum of three additional take-home doses in a calendar month and a maximum of six additional doses in a calendar year for an individual client. The medical director shall document in the client's file the reasons for approving the additional take-home doses. Methadone treatment facilities shall request approval from the department of social and health services for any and all waivers of take-home medication requirements, in excess of those the medical director can approve, on a case-by-case basis in advance.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2537, filed 9/16/87)

WAC 275-19-990 ALL METHADONE TREATMENT FACILITIES—ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS. (1) All methadone treatment facilities shall comply with the applicable requirements in chapter 69.54 RCW.

(2) Double enrollment. Methadone treatment facilities shall participate in periodic meetings, scheduled and coordinated by the department for the purpose of identifying duplicate ~~((or prohibited))~~ admissions. Facility participation shall include attendance by at least one dispensary staff person and provision of a clear, recent photograph of any active patient and the latest photographs of all patients discharged for drug abuse or failure to consume take-home medication who are still barred from readmission by these rules. Programs shall be required to specifically identify all patients admitted since the previous meeting ~~((, all patients enrolled in a methadone treatment facility which is not the closest to their residence, and any patients identified by the department as potential duplicate admissions or barred admissions))~~. All such meetings shall be closed to the public to preserve confidentiality of patient records.

(3) ~~((Reporting requirements. All methadone treatment facilities shall report to the department the dose level of each patient, plus such other information as the department may reasonably require, in the form and manner prescribed by the department. Such reports shall be submitted in a timely and accurate manner.~~

~~(4))~~ Identifying patients. All methadone treatment facilities shall establish written policies and procedures to reasonably verify the identity of patients. The policies and procedures shall respect the confidentiality of patient records as set forth in federal regulations (42 C.F.R., part 2, published July 1, 1975).

~~((5))~~ (4) Patient photographs. All methadone treatment facilities shall maintain in the dispensary a file of photographs of all patients. Photographs shall be updated whenever the client's physical appearance changes significantly or every two years, whichever comes first.

~~((b-(6)))~~ (5) Transfer patients. The initial dose of all transfer patients shall be the same as the last prescribed dose at the previous facility. The facility may increase doses ((may be increased)) after the initial dose in the manner and under the conditions required elsewhere in these rules. ((Detailed)) An evaluation of dose adequacy is mandatory for all transfer patients requesting dose increases. If any transfer patient reporting an inadequate dose at the previous facility is determined to be stabilized at that same dose at the transfer facility, the facility shall report such case ((shall be)) immediately ((reported)) to the program director of the previous facility and to the department of social and health services.

~~((7))~~ (6) Transfer fees. Methadone treatment ~~((facilities may not levy unreasonable))~~ facility transfer fees on patients attempting to transfer to another facility ~~((Transfer fees may))~~ shall not exceed the actual cost of duplicating and ~~((forwarding))~~ mailing costs of requested records.

~~((8))~~ (7) Rate setting. The facility shall include all services (other than admission services) required by these standards ((shall be included)) in the basic daily, weekly, or monthly rate, including dispensing, urinalysis, and counseling. The facility may provide medical services unrelated to diagnosis and treatment of addiction, such as primary care and prenatal or postnatal care, ((may be provided)) at additional charge.

~~((9))~~ (8) Fees. The facility shall provide the patient ~~((shall be provided))~~ a complete schedule of fees and applicable fee policies prior to the initiation of any treatment services.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

REPEALER

The following sections of the Washington Administrative Code are repealed:

- WAC 275-19-185 ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES.
- WAC 275-19-310 INTENSIVE INPATIENT TREATMENT FACILITIES—CLIENTS.
- WAC 275-19-510 RECOVERY HOUSE FACILITIES—CLIENTS.

WSR 88-24-001

**NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT BOARD**

[Memorandum—November 23, 1988]

MEETING AND WORK SESSION NOTICE FOR DECEMBER 1988 AND JANUARY 1989

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT BOARD
TRANSPORTATION BUILDING
OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 98504

Work session, Thursday, December 15, 1988, 1-5 p.m. and 7-9 p.m. at the Sea-Tac Red Lion Inn.

Meeting, begins at 9:30 a.m., Friday, December 16, 1988, at Sea-Tac Red Lion Inn.

Quarterly board meeting, begins at 9:30 a.m., Friday, January 20, 1988, at Sea-Tac, site to be determined.

WSR 88-24-002

ADOPTED RULES

**DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
(Noxious Weed Control Board)**

[Order 26, Resolution No. 26—Filed November 29, 1988]

Be it resolved by the State Noxious Weed Control Board, acting at Ellensburg, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to the state noxious weed list.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-20-065 filed with the code reviser on October 4, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to chapter 17.10 RCW and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 16, 1988.

By Catherine Hovanic
Executive Secretary
for Arlie Clinkenbeard
Chairman

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 22, Resolution No. 22, filed 3/7/88)

WAC 16-750-005 STATE NOXIOUS WEED LIST—CLASS A NOXIOUS WEEDS. Class A noxious weeds are as follows:

(1) All those weeds which have not been reported in the state of Washington as of January 1, 1984, and whose introduction to the state of Washington was not intentional, or whose intentional introduction poses a serious threat to the state for which no control is assured and which is included in one or more of the following publications:

(a) A Checklist of Names for 3000 Vascular Plants of Economic Importance, by Edward E. Terrell, Steven R. Hill, John H. Wiersema and William E. Rice. USDA-ARS Ag. handbook number 505, revised October 1986;

(b) A Geographical Atlas of World Weeds, by LeRoy Holm, Juan V. Pancho, James P. Herberger and Donald L. Plucknett. John Wiley and Sons, New York, 1979;

(c) The World's Worst Weeds, Distribution and Biology, by LeRoy G. Holm, Donald L. Plucknett, Juan V. Pancho and James P. Herberger. University Press of Hawaii, Honolulu, 1977;

(d) Economically Important Foreign Weeds—Potential Problems in the United States, by Clyde F. Reed, USDA-ARS Ag. handbook number 498, 1977;

(e) The federal noxious weed list, 7.360.200 CFR;

(f) The state noxious weed list of any state; and

(2)

COMMON NAME	SCIENTIFIC NAME
bean-caper, Syrian	<i>Zygophyllum fabago</i>
blueweed, Texas	<i>Helianthus ciliaris</i>
buffalobur	<i>Solanum rostratum</i>
crupina, common	<i>Crupina vulgaris</i>
((garden rocket	<i>Eruca vesicaria</i> spp. <i>sativa</i>))
four o'clock, wild	<i>Mirabilis nyctaginea</i>
hedgeparsley	<i>Torilis arvensis</i>
johnsongrass	<i>Sorghum halepense</i>
knapweed, bighead	<i>Centaurea macrocephala</i>
knapweed, featherhead	<i>Centaurea trichocephala</i>
knapweed, Vochin	<i>Centaurea nigrescens</i>
mallow, Venice	((Hibiscus) <i>Hibiscus trionum</i>)
nightshade, silverleaf	<i>Solanum elaeagnifolium</i>
peganum	<i>Peganum harmala</i>
rupturewort	<i>Herniaria cineria</i>
sage, Mediterranean	<i>Salvia aethiopsis</i>
snapdragon, dwarf	<i>Chaenorrihinum minus</i>
unicorn-plant	<i>Proboscidea louisianica</i>
velvetleaf	<i>Abutilon theophrasti</i>
woad, dyers	<i>Isatis tinctoria</i>

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 24, Resolution No. 24, filed 8/25/88)

WAC 16-750-011 STATE NOXIOUS WEED LIST—CLASS B NOXIOUS WEEDS.

Name	Will be a "Class B designate" in all lands lying within:
(1) <i>apera, interrupted</i> <i>Apera interrupta</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,5,6,8,9((+10)) (b) Ferry, Stevens, and Pend Oreille counties of region 4 (c) Lincoln and Adams counties of region 7 (d) region 10 except Columbia County.

Name	Will be a "Class B designate" in all lands lying within:	Name	Will be a "Class B designate" in all lands lying within:
(2) blueweed <i>Echium vulgare</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,8,9,10 (b) region 7 except for an area starting at the Stevens County line on SR 291 south to the SR 291 bridge over the Little Spokane River, thence upstream along the Little Spokane River to the first Rutter Parkway Bridge; thence south along the Rutter Parkway to the intersection of Rutter Parkway and Indian Trail Road; thence southerly along Indian Trail Road to a point three miles south (on section line between sections 22 and 27, T-26N, R-42E); thence due west to a point intersecting the line between Ranges 41 and 42; thence north along this line to a point 1/4 mile south of Charles Road; thence northwesterly parallel to Charles Road to a point 1/4 miles south of the intersection of Charles Road and West Shore Road; thence northerly along West Shore Road to the Spokane River (Long Lake); thence southeasterly along the Spokane River to the point of beginning.	(9) deadnettle, hybrid <i>Lamium hybridum</i>	(a) regions 1,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10 (b) region 2 except Skagit County.
(3) broom, Scotch <i>Cytisus scoparius</i>	(a) regions 3,4,6,7,10 (b) region 9 except that area lying west of the Klickitat River in Klickitat County.	((+9)) (10) dogtailgrass, hedgehog <i>Cynosurus echinatus</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9
(4) bryony, white <i>Bryonia alba</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9 (b) Franklin County of region 10.	(11) fieldcress, Austrian <i>Rorippa austriaca</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9 (b) region 10 except within the Palouse River Canyon from Big Palouse Falls to the Snake River.
(5) bugloss, common <i>Anchusa officinalis</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,5,6,8,9,10 (b) Ferry ((and Pend Oreille counties)) County of region 4 (c) Lincoln, Adams, and Whitman counties of region 7 (d) <u>Pend Oreille County north of the northernmost boundary of T33N.</u>	((+10)) (12) foxtail, slender <i>Alopecurus myosuroides</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,5,6,8,9,10 (b) Ferry, Stevens, Pend Oreille counties of region 4 (c) Adams and Whitman counties of region 7.
(6) camelthorn <i>Alhagi pseudalhagi</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,8 (b) Intercounty Weed District No. 51, Intercounty Weed District No. 52, Grant County Weed District No. 1, Grant County Weed District No. 2, and Grant County Weed District No. 3 (c) Grant County north of Highway 90 (d) T16N, R29E; T16N, R30E; T15N, R28E except Sec. 5; T15N, R29E; T15N, R30E (e) Franklin County of region 9 (f) Columbia, Garfield, and Asotin counties of region 10 (g) an area beginning at the Washington — Oregon border at the southwest portion of section 15, R32E, T6N, then north to the northwest corner of section 3, R36E, T7N, then east to the northeast corner of section 3, R36E, T7N, then south to southeast portion of section 15, R36E, T6N, at the Washington — Oregon border, then west along the Washington — Oregon border to the point of beginning.	((+11)) (13) goatgrass, jointed <i>Aegilops cylindrica</i>	(a) regions 1,2,5,8 (b) Ferry County of region 4 (c) Grant and Adams counties of region 6 (d) Franklin County of regions 9 and 10 (e) Intercounty Weed District No. 51.
(7) catsear, spotted <i>Hypochaeris radicata</i>	(a) regions 3,4,6,7,9,10.	((+12)) (14) gorse <i>Ulex europaeus</i>	(a) regions 3,4,6,7,9,10 (b) Thurston ((County)) and Pierce counties of region 5 (c) <u>Wahkiakum and Cowlitz counties of region 8.</u>
(8) daisy, oxeye <i>Chrysanthemum leucanthemum</i>	(a) regions 6,7,9,10.	((+13)) (15) hawkweed, orange <i>Hieracium aurantiacum</i>	(a) regions 3,6,7,9,10 (b) Ferry County of region 4.
		((+14)) (16) hawkweed, yellow <i>Hieracium pratense</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,5,6,7,8,9,10 (b) Ferry County of region 4.
		((+15)) (17) indigobush <i>Amorpha fruticosa</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,7 (b) Franklin County of regions 9 and 10 (c) <u>Asotin County of region 10.</u>
		((+16)) (18) knapweed, black <i>Centaurea nigra</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,9,10 (b) region 6 except Kittitas County (c) region 8 except Clark County.
		((+17)) (19) knapweed, brown <i>Centaurea jacea</i>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,9,10 (b) region 6 except Kittitas County (c) region 8 except Clark County.
		((+18)) (20) knapweed, diffuse <i>Centaurea diffusa</i>	(a) regions 1,2,5,8 (b) Grant County lying in the north half of Township 15 North, Ranges 24 through 27 East; Township 16 North, Ranges 25, 26 and 27 East; Townships 17 and 18 North, Ranges 25 through 30 East; Townships 19 and 20 North, Range 30 East; Township 22 North, Ranges 23, 24, and 25 East; Townships 21, 22, and 23 North, Ranges 28, 29, and 30 East; Townships 24 and 25 North, Ranges 29 and 30 East; Township 26 North, Range 30 East; and the east half of Township 27 North, Range 30 East, all W.M.
		((+19)) (21) knapweed, meadow <i>Centaurea jacea x nigra</i>	(a) Adams County except those areas within T15N, R36E, Section 36; T15N, R37E, Sections 22,23,24,25,26,27,28, 31,32,33 and 34; T15N, R38E, Sections 2,10,11,14,15,19 and 20; T16N, R38E, Sections 34 and 35; T17N, R37E, Sections 5 and 6; T18N, R37E, Sections 29,30,31 and 32 (d) Franklin County of regions 9 and 10. (a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,9,10 (b) region 6 except Kittitas County (c) region 8 except Clark County.

Name	Will be a "Class B designate" in all lands lying within:	Name	Will be a "Class B designate" in all lands lying within:
((20)) (22) knapweed, Russian ((Centaurea)) <u>Acroptilon repens</u>	(a) regions 1,2,5,7,8 (b) region 4 except that area lying within the boundaries of the Colville Indian Reservation within Ferry County (c) Adams County except those areas in the Main Lind Coulee Drainage area of T17N, R32E, Sections 19,20,25,27,28,29,32, 33,34,35 and 36; T17N, R33E, Sections 16,17,19,20 and 30; and those areas within the Lower Crab Creek drainage area of T15N, R28E, sections 5 and 6; and the western half of T16N, R28E (d) Intercounty Weed District No. 52 (e) region 10 except Franklin County.	((28)) (30) pepperweed, perennial <u>Lepidium latifolium</u>	section 15, R32E, T6N, then north to the northwest corner of section 3, R36E, T7N, then east to the northeast corner of section 3, R36E, T7N, then south to the southeast portion of section 15, R36E, T6N, at the Washington — Oregon border, then west along the Washington — Oregon border to the point of beginning.
((21)) (23) knapweed, spotted <u>Centaurea maculosa</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,5,6,8,9 (b) Adams and Whitman counties of region 7 (c) region 10 except Garfield County.	((29)) (31) ragwort, tansy <u>Senecio jacobaea</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,8,10 (b) Grant County lying northerly of Township 21, North, W.M. (c) Intercounty Weed Districts No. 51 and 52. (a) regions 3,4,6,7,9,10.
((22)) (24) lepyrodiclis <u>Lepydiclis holsteoides</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,8,9,10 (b) region 7 except an area within Whitman County east of the Pullman — Wawawai Road from Wawawai to Pullman and south of State Highway 270 from Pullman to Moscow, Idaho.	((30)) sage, Mediterranean <u>Salvia aethiopsis</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9 (b) Franklin County of region 10: regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,8 (b) Adams County of region 6 except for that area lying within Intercounty Weed District No. 52 (c) Intercounty Weed District No. 51.
((23)) (25) lythrum, purple <u>Lythrum salicaria</u>	(a) regions 1,3,4,7,8 (b) region 5 except King County (c) region 6 except that portion of Grant County lying southerly of State Highway 28 and except Sections 21,28,29 and 32, Township 21 North, Range 26 East, W.M. (d) region 9 except Benton County (e) region 10 except Walla Walla County (f) Intercounty Weed Districts No. 51 and No. 52.	((31)) (32) sandbur, longspine <u>Cenchrus longispinus</u>	(c) Intercounty Weed District No. 51. (a) regions 1,2,3,5,8,9 (b) Franklin County except T13N, R36E; and T14N, R36E (c) Adams County except those areas lying east of a boundary line running north from Franklin County along the western boundary of Range 36 East to Wellsandt Road then east on Wellsandt Road to Interstate 90 then following I-90 to the Lincoln County line (d) region 6 except that portion lying within Grant County that is southerly of State Highway 28, northerly of Interstate Highway 90 and easterly of Grant County Road E. Northwest
((24)) (26) medusahead <u>Taeniatherum caput-medusae</u>	(a) regions 1,2,5,8.	((22)) (33) skeletonweed, rush <u>Chondrilla juncea</u>	(e) Pend Oreille County north of the northernmost boundary of Township 33 North (f) <u>Asotin County of region 10.</u>
((25)) (27) nutsedge, yellow <u>Cyperus esculentus</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,8 (b) Yakima County Weed District No. 1 (c) region 6 except: (i) those areas lying between State Highway 26 and State Highway 28 in Grant County (ii) those areas lying in Yakima County but not in Yakima Weed District No. 1 (d) region 9 except: (i) those areas lying in Yakima County but not in Yakima Weed District No. 1 (ii) an area lying southerly of State Route 14 and within T2N, Ranges 13 and 14 E (e) region 10 except Walla Walla County.	((23)) (34) sowthistle, perennial <u>Sonchus arvensis arvensis</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,8,9,10.
((26)) (28) oxtongue, hawkweed <u>Picris hieracioides</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,9, 10 (b) region 8 except Skamania County.	((24)) (35) spurge, leafy <u>Euphorbia esula</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,6,8,9 (b) region 7 except as follows: (i) T27N, R39E, Sections 24, 25,28,29,30,32,33,34 T26N, R39E, Sections 3,4,5,9,10,15,16,21,22 of Lincoln County (ii) T22N, R37E, Sections 1,12,13,14,23,24,25,26, 35,36; T22N, R38E, Sections 3,4,5,6,7,8,17,18, 19; T23N, R38E, Sections 7,8,17,18,19,20,21,27,28, 29,30,31,32,33,34; T23N, R37E, Sections 23,24,25, 26,35,36 of Lincoln County (iii) T27N, R37E, Sections 34,35,36; T27N, R38E, Sections 31,32,33; T26N, R37E, Sections 1,2,3,10, 11,12,13,14,15,16,26; T26N, R38E, Sections 5, 6,7,8 of Lincoln County (iv) T25N, R41E, all sections; all T27N, R41E south of the Spokane River; all T26N, R42E west of the Spokane River
((27)) (29) peaweed, Austrian <u>Sphaerophysa salsula</u>	(a) regions 1,2,3,4,5,7,8 (b) Yakima County Weed District No. 1 (c) Columbia, Garfield, Asotin, and Franklin counties (d) an area beginning at the Washington — Oregon border at the southwest portion of		

Name	Will be a "Class B designate" in all lands lying within:
((35)) (36) starthistle, yellow <i>Centaurea solstitialis</i>	(c) region 10 except as follows: (i) T9N, R39E, Section 8 of Columbia County (ii) T13N, R40E, Sections 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16; T13N, R41E, Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14; T13N, R42E, Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 26, 27, 34, 35 of Garfield County.
((36)) (37) thistle, musk <i>Carduus nutans</i>	(a) regions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, ((9)) (b) region 7 except those areas within Whitman County lying south of State Highway 26 from the Adams County line to Colfax and south of State Highway 195 from Colfax to Pullman and south of State Highway 270 from Pullman to the Idaho border
((37)) (38) thistle, plumeless <i>Carduus acanthoides</i>	(c) Franklin County (d) <u>Region 9 except Klickitat County.</u> (a) regions 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 (b) Spokane ((County)) and Pend Oreille counties.
((38)) (39) thistle, Scotch <i>Onopordum acanthium</i>	(a) regions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9 (b) region 7 except for those areas within Whitman County lying south of State Highway 26 from the Adams County line to Colfax and south of State Highway 195 from Colfax to Pullman and south of State Highway 270 from Pullman to the Idaho border
((39)) (40) toadflax, Dalmatian <i>Linaria genistifolia</i> spp. <i>dalmatica</i>	(c) Franklin County. (a) regions 1, 2, 5, 8, 10 (b) Kittitas, Chelan, Douglas, Adams counties of region 6 (c) Intercounty Weed District No. 51 (d) Lincoln and Adams counties of region 7 (e) region 9 except as follows: (i) those areas lying within Yakima County (ii) those areas lying west of the Klickitat River and within Klickitat County.
((40)) (41) ventenata <i>Ventenata dubia</i>	(a) regions 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8 (b) Franklin County.
((41)) (42) watermilfoil, Eurasian <i>Myriophyllum spicatum</i>	(a) regions 1, 8, 9, 10 (b) region 7 except Spokane County.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 22, Resolution No. 22, filed 3/7/88)

WAC 16-750-015 STATE NOXIOUS WEED LIST—CLASS C NOXIOUS WEEDS. Class C noxious weeds are as follows:

COMMON NAME	SCIENTIFIC NAME
babysbreath	<i>Gypsophila paniculata</i>
bindweed, field	<i>Convolvulus arvensis</i>
carrot, wild	<i>Daucus carota</i>
cocklebur, spiny	<i>Xanthium spinosum</i>
cress, hoary	<i>Cardaria draba</i>
dodder	<i>Cuscuta</i> spp.
garden rocket	<i>Eruca vesicaria</i> spp. <i>sativa</i>
henbane, black	<i>Hyoscyamus niger</i>
houndstongue	<i>Cynoglossum officinale</i>
jimsonweed	<i>Datura stramonium</i>
kochia	<i>Kochia scoparia</i>
mayweed, scentless	<i>Matricaria maritima</i> var. <i>agrestis</i>
mullein, common	<i>Verbascum thapsus</i>

COMMON NAME	SCIENTIFIC NAME
nightshade, bitter	<i>Solanum dulcamara</i>
poison-hemlock	<i>Conium maculatum</i>
puncturevine	<i>Tribulus terrestris</i>
quackgrass	<i>Agropyron repens</i>
rye, cereal	<i>Secale cereale</i>
<u>spikeweed</u>	<u><i>Hemizonia pungens</i></u>
St. Johnswort, common	<i>Hypericum perforatum</i>
tansy, common	<i>Tanacetum vulgare</i>
toadflax, yellow	<i>Linaria vulgaris</i>
thistle, bull	<i>Cirsium vulgare</i>
thistle, Canada	<i>Cirsium arvense</i>
whiteweed, hairy	<i>Cardaria pubescens</i>
wormwood, absinth	<i>Artemisia absinthium</i>

WSR 88-24-003

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING

[Order TL/RG 47—Filed November 29, 1988]

I, Mary Faulk, director of the state of Washington Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to watercraft registration, new section WAC 308-93-087 Disclosure of names and addresses of individual vessel owners.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-19-118 filed with the code reviser on September 21, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 88.02.070 which directs that the Department of Licensing has authority to implement the provisions of chapters 46.12 and 46.16 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 28, 1988.

By Mary Faulk
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 308-93-087 DISCLOSURE OF NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF INDIVIDUAL VESSEL OWNERS. (1) The name and/or address of an individual vessel owner shall not be released by the department, county auditor, or other public agency except upon written request which contains:

(a) The signature of the person requesting disclosure; and

(b) The full legal name and address of the person requesting disclosure.

(2) The request for disclosure is a public record and is:

(a) Subject to inspection;

(b) Subject to copying; and

(c) To be retained by the disclosing agency for two years.

(3) Notice that a disclosure request has been honored shall be sent to the affected vessel owner by the disclosing agency indicating:

(a) The name and address of the person requesting disclosure:

- (b) Reason for the disclosure request;
- (c) Date record information was provided;
- (d) Vessel registration number; and
- (e) Hull identification number.

(4) This section does not apply to persons who routinely request disclosure of vessel registration information for use in the course of their business or occupation.

- (b) the time and date when it shall terminate, and
- (c) the justification for its issuance.

(3) If the director has taken emergency action pursuant to this rule, he/she shall, upon determination that the threat to wildlife has abated, thereafter reopen the season limited to the time period originally set by the commission, and reestablish bag limits as originally set by the commission.

(4) Whenever the director takes action to close, shorten, or reopen a season pursuant to (1) or (3) above, he/she shall first take all reasonable steps to notify commission members the action contemplated.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

WAC 232-12-085 DIRECTOR EMPOWERED TO ALTER SEASONS

WSR 88-24-004
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
(Wildlife Commission)
[Order 325—Filed November 29, 1988]

Be it resolved by the State Wildlife Commission, acting at Aberdeen, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

New WAC 232-12-083 Emergency rule criteria.
Rep WAC 232-12-085 Director empowered to alter seasons.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-19-126 filed with the code reviser on September 21, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.150 and 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED October 28, 1988.

By Dr. James M. Walton
Chairman, Wildlife Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-12-083 EMERGENCY RULE CRITERIA. (1) The director may close or shorten a season pursuant to RCW 77.12.150 only:

- (a) by emergency rule, and
- (b) when the director determines from biological data or climatic conditions which were unforeseen by the commission when the season was established, that the population of game fish, game animals, or game birds is in jeopardy with established seasons, and
- (c) when the delay necessary to have the issue determined by emergency action of the commission presents a real and immediate threat to wildlife.

(2) Any emergency rule issued by the director pursuant to this rule shall state:

- (a) the time and date when it shall be effective, and

WSR 88-24-005
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
(Wildlife Commission)
[Order 369—Filed November 30, 1988]

Be it resolved by the State Wildlife Commission, acting at Olympia, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to game fish regulation changes on the Cedar and Sammamish river system, Salmon Bay, and in Lakes Washington and Sammamish, WAC 232-28-61714.

We, the State Wildlife Commission, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the wild steelhead escapement goal for the Lake Washington system is 1,600 fish. The estimated escapement for the 1988-89 season is 755 fish, or 47% of the goal. Any fishery will further reduce the spawning escapement.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 30, 1988.

By Curt Smitch
Director
for Dr. James M. Walton
Chairman, Wildlife Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-61714 GAME FISH REGULATION CHANGES ON THE CEDAR AND SAMMAMISH RIVER SYSTEMS, SALMON BAY, AND IN LAKES WASHINGTON AND SAMMAMISH. Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 232-28-617, as of 12:01 a.m. December 1, 1988 the following regulation changes will be in effect:

1. The Cedar and Sammamish River systems and Salmon Bay will be closed to the taking of all game fish.
2. In Lake Washington and Lake Sammamish it will be unlawful to possess trout 20" or greater in length.

WSR 88-24-006

PROPOSED RULES

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

[Filed November 30, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Employment Security Department intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning election of coverage for corporate officers, amending WAC 192-12-025;

that the agency will at 9:30 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Employment Security Training Facility, Training Room #2, 106 Maple Park, Olympia, WA 98504, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 20.12.010 [50.12.010] and 50.12.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 50.04.165.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 11, 1989.

Please direct written comments to:

Employment Security Department
Attn: Wm. Eric Jordan
UI Rules Coordinator
212 Maple Park
Mailstop KG-11
Olympia, WA 98504

Dated: November 29, 1988

By: Ernest F. LaPalm
Deputy Commissioner

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The following statement has been prepared by the Employment Security Department for the purpose of legislative review of agency rules as provided by chapter 34.04 RCW.

WAC 192-12-025 Election of coverage for corporate officers.

This amendatory section defines the meaning of "written notice" as required in RCW 50.04.165 and is in addition to the wording of the existing rule.

This amendment is adopted under the general rule-making authority of RCW 50.12.010 and 50.12.040.

This amendment is not required by any federal law or regulation.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: The adoption of this rule will not cause any disproportionate economic impact to small businesses.

This rule was revised by Thomas LePique, UI Program Analysis Branch, Employment Security Department, Mailstop KG-11, Olympia, Washington 98504, phone 753-5181.

This rule will be implemented and enforced by Jim Wolfe, Assistant Commissioner, Unemployment Insurance; and Mary Pat Frederick, Chief of UI Tax Administration, Employment Security Department, 212 Maple Park, Mailstop KG-11, Olympia, Washington 98504. Mr. Wolfe may be reached by phone at (206) 753-5120; and Ms. Frederick may be reached at (206) 753-3822.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2-86, filed 6/26/86)

WAC 192-12-025 REQUIREMENTS OF CORPORATIONS ELECTING COVERAGE OF CORPORATE OFFICERS. RCW 50.04.165 provides: "Services performed by corporate officers, as defined in RCW 23A.08.470, other than those covered by chapter 50.44 RCW, shall not be considered services in employment. However, a corporation may elect to cover not less than all of its corporate officers under RCW 50.24.160. If an employer does not elect to cover its corporate officers under RCW 50.24.160, the employer must notify its corporate officers in writing that they are ineligible for unemployment benefits. If the employer fails to notify any corporate officer, then that person shall not be considered to be a corporate officer for the purposes of this section."

In order for the employment security department to make timely and accurate employer liability determinations and unemployment insurance payments, the commissioner prescribes:

(1) The term "corporate officer" is defined the same as in RCW 23A.08.470, which states "The officers of a corporation shall consist of a president, one or more vice-presidents as may be prescribed by the bylaws, a secretary, and a treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the board of directors at such time and in such manner as may be prescribed by the bylaws. Such other officers and assistant officers and agents as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the board of directors or chosen in such other manner as may be prescribed by the bylaws. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of president and secretary, except that when all of the issued and outstanding stock of the corporation is owned of record by one shareholder, one person may hold all or any combination of offices."

(2) All services of corporate officers are deemed exempt until the effective date of approval of election of coverage by the commissioner.

(3) A written request for voluntary coverage must be submitted by the employer and be signed by someone authorized to legally bind the corporation. The request must be received by the department no later than thirty days prior to the end of the quarter in which the change of coverage is to begin.

(4) All changes in elected coverage of services of corporate officers can be effective from the beginning of any calendar quarter, and will remain in effect for not less than two calendar years. Coverage can be terminated only at the end of a calendar year, provided a written request for termination is submitted to the agency by the employer, on or before the 15th of January immediately following the end of the last calendar year of desired coverage.

(5) Wages or salary paid for services of corporate officers exempt under RCW 50.04.165 will not be used to determine liability of agricultural employers. However, if a corporation voluntarily covers its officers, the wages or salaries paid for such services shall be used to determine the liability of agricultural employers.

(6) A corporation exempt from covering the services of its officers under RCW 50.04.165 should not include those officers' names, social security numbers, wages or hours on any employment security quarterly wage and tax reports submitted for any calendar quarters which fall during the period of exemption.

(7) For wages paid on or after July 1, 1986, corporate officers are exempt under RCW 50.04.165 only if their employer has notified them in writing that they are ineligible for unemployment benefits, with the

exemption becoming effective as of the date of the written notice. The written notice must contain the name(s) of the officer(s) to whom directed and the effective date of the exemption. The notice(s) must be signed by such officer(s) indicating acknowledgement of receipt. A copy of such notification(s) must be kept on file by the corporation and must be available for review by any agency official upon request.

WSR 88-24-007

PROPOSED RULES

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

[Filed November 30, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Employment Security Department intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

Amd WAC 192-12-180 Training defined.
Amd WAC 192-12-182 Approval by commissioner;

that the agency will at 9:30 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Employment Security Training Facility, Training Room #2, 106 Maple Park, Olympia, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 50.12.010 and 50.12.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 50.20.043.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 11, 1989.

Please direct written comments to:

Employment Security Department
Attn: Wm. Eric Jordan
UI Rules Coordinator
212 Maple Park
Mailstop KG-11
Olympia, WA 98504

Dated: November 29, 1988

By: Ernest F. LaPalm
Deputy Commissioner

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The following statement has been prepared by the Employment Security Department for the purpose of legislative review of agency rules as provided by chapter 34.04 RCW.

WAC 192-12-180 Training defined; and 192-12-182 Training—Approval by commissioner.

These amendments allow approval of professional and academic training of short duration and provide special waiver of requirements for individuals with physical and sensory handicaps.

Amendment to WAC 192-12-180 deletes a reference that training cannot include basic education or training for professional occupations or occupations which require a baccalaureate or higher degree.

Amendment to WAC 192-42-010 provides special requirements for approval of academic training and a special waiver of requirements for approval of training for individuals with physical or sensory handicaps.

The rules were drafted by Wm. Eric Jordan, Employment Security Program Coordinator 3, Employment Security Department, Mailstop KG-11, Olympia, Washington 98504, phone (206) 586-2915.

These rules will be implemented and enforced by Jim Wolfe, Assistant Commissioner for Unemployment Insurance, Employment Security Department, Mailstop KG-11, Olympia, Washington 98504, phone (206) 753-5120.

These rules are not required by any federal law or regulation.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: These rules have no direct effects on small business. The rules outline policy used in making unemployment insurance eligibility decisions and require no action on the part of employers.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2-73, filed 11/15/73)

WAC 192-12-180 TRAINING DEFINED. (1) As used in RCW 50.20.043 the term "training" means vocational or technical training or retraining (including but not limited to field or laboratory work and remedial or related academic and technical instruction incident thereto) which is being conducted as a program designed to prepare individuals for gainful employment in recognized occupations and in new and emerging occupations(—but).

(2) The term "training" does not include basic education or training that has for its purpose the preparation of individuals for employment in occupations generally classified as professional or which require a baccalaureate or higher degree from institutions of higher education.

(3) The assistant commissioner for unemployment insurance may determine that a course of education or training is "training" for the purposes of RCW 50.20.043, notwithstanding subsections (1) and (2) of this section.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 4-80, filed 8/6/80)

WAC 192-12-182 TRAINING—APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER. Conditions for approval of training by the commissioner are as follows:

(1) No vocational training course, or courses in basic educational skills as a prerequisite for such vocational training, shall be considered for approval by the commissioner or his authorized representative unless:

An application to take such training course is made in writing and filed with the commissioner at any local office of the Washington employment security department, or in the case of an individual in another state, with the local office of such state through which the individual is filing his claim for unemployment compensation against the state of Washington. Such application must be filed prior to payment.

(2) In the approval of any program of training, the commissioner shall consider, among other factors, the following:

(a) The nature of the facility and the quality of the program of instruction, and

(b) Whether such program of instruction relates to an occupation or skill for which there are, or are expected to be, reasonable employment opportunities in the state in which the individual intends to seek work, and

(c) Whether the individual has the qualifications and aptitudes to successfully complete such program of instruction; and further

(d) Whether employment opportunities for which the individual is fitted by past training and experience do not exist or have substantially diminished in the labor market due to business or economic conditions in the area, or because of conditions peculiar to the individual such as health, physical stature, criminal background, or other circumstances of a similar nature, to the extent that in the judgment of the commissioner the individual will experience an extended period of unemployment and dependence upon the unemployment compensation program.

(3) Any training program required as a condition of continued employment within the occupation shall be approved by the commissioner: PROVIDED, That:

(a) The training program is vocational training, or basic education that is a prerequisite for vocational training, and

- (b) The scheduling of the training is determined by a work related entity other than the claimant, and
- (c) The training program meets the requirements of subsections (2)(a), ~~((2))~~(b), and ~~((2))~~(c) ~~((above))~~ of this section. Requirements of subsection (2)(d) ~~((above))~~ of this section do not apply to training programs which meet the requirement of this subsection ~~((2))~~.
- (4) An academic training course may be approved if the conditions of subsections (1) and (2) of this section are met, and
 - (a) The duration of the course of study is less than six months, and
 - (b) The course meets specific requirements for certification, licensing, or specific skills necessary for the occupation, and
 - (c) The assistant commissioner for unemployment insurance reviews and approves the application for approval of training.
- (5) In the case of individuals with physical or sensory handicaps, or other unusual individual circumstances, a written decision of the assistant commissioner for unemployment may waive any of the requirements of this section on an individual basis.

WSR 88-24-008

PROPOSED RULES

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

[Filed November 30, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Employment Security Department intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

- Amd WAC 192-09-030 Preamble (appeals).
- Amd WAC 192-09-063 Appeals—Who may appeal—Time limit.
- Amd WAC 192-09-315 Decisions—Petition for review;

that the agency will at 9:30 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Employment Security Training Facility, Training Room #2, 106 Maple Park, Olympia, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 50.12.010 and 50.12.040.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 11, 1989.

Please direct written comments to:

Employment Security Department
 Attn: Wm. Eric Jordan
 UI Rules Coordinator
 212 Maple Park
 Mailstop KG-11
 Olympia, WA 98504

Dated: November 29, 1988

By: Ernest F. LaPalm
 Deputy Commissioner

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The following statement has been prepared by the Employment Security Department for the purpose of legislative review of agency rules as provided by chapter 34.04 RCW.

WAC 192-09-030 Preamble; 192-09-063 Appeals—Who may appeal—Time limitation; and 192-09-315 Decisions—Petition for review.

This revision corrects an oversight and provides consistency with other rules and brings this rule into conformity with state law.

This amendment is adopted under the general rule-making authority of RCW 50.12.010 and 50.12.040.

These amendments are not required by any federal law or regulation.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: These proposed rules revisions implement a previous change in the law that allows a greater amount of time to file an appeal. The above rules revisions were not made at the time of the passage of the legislative amendments because of an oversight and should now be made.

These rules were revised by Thomas LePique, UI Program Analysis Branch, Employment Security Department, Mailstop KG-11, Olympia, Washington 98504, phone 753-5181.

These rules will be implemented and enforced by Jim Wolfe, Assistant Commissioner, Unemployment Insurance; and Mary Pat Frederick, Chief of UI Tax Administration, Employment Security Department, 212 Maple Park, Mailstop KG-11, Olympia, Washington 98504. Mr. Wolfe may be reached by phone at (206) 753-5120; and Ms. Frederick may be reached at (206) 753-3822.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1-78, filed 8/14/78)

WAC 192-09-030 PREAMBLE. RCW 50.32.010 provides, in part, as follows:

" . . . Notice of any appeal or petition for hearing taken to an appeal tribunal in any proceeding under this act may be filed with such agency as the commissioner may by regulation prescribe."

RCW 50.32.020 provides, in part, as follows:

"The applicant or claimant, his most recent employing unit or any interested party which the commissioner by regulation prescribes, may file an appeal from any determination or redetermination with the appeal tribunal . . ."

RCW 50.32.060 provides, in part, as follows:

"The manner in which any dispute shall be presented to the appeal tribunal, and the conduct of hearings and appeals, shall be in accordance with regulations prescribed by the commissioner for determining the rights of the parties, whether or not such regulations conform to common law or statutory rules of evidence and other technical rules of procedure. . . ."

RCW 50.32.070 provides:

"Within ~~((ten))~~ thirty days from the date of notification or mailing, whichever is the earlier, of any decision of an appeal tribunal, the commissioner on his own order may, or upon petition of any interested party shall, take jurisdiction of the proceedings for the purpose of review thereof. Appeal from any decision of an appeal tribunal may be perfected so as to prevent finality of such decision if, within ~~((ten))~~ thirty days from the date of mailing the appeal tribunal decision, or notification thereof, whichever is the earlier, a petition in writing for review by the commissioner is received by the commissioner or by such representative of the commissioner as the commissioner by regulation shall prescribe. The commissioner may also prevent finality of any decision of an appeal tribunal and take jurisdiction of the proceedings for his review thereof by entering an order so providing on his own motion and mailing a copy thereof to the interested parties within the same period allowed herein for receipt of a petition for review. The time limit provided herein for seeking review by the commissioner and for the commissioner's assumption of jurisdiction on his own motion for review shall be deemed to be jurisdictional."

RCW 50.32.100 provides:

"In all proceedings provided by this title prior to court review involving dispute of an individual's initial determination, or claim for waiting period credit, or for benefits, the fees of all witnesses attending such proceedings pursuant to subpoena shall be paid at the rate fixed by such regulation as the commissioner shall prescribe and such fees and all costs of such proceedings otherwise chargeable to such individual, except charges for services rendered by counsel or other agent representing such individual, shall be paid out of the unemployment

compensation administration fund. In all other respects and in all other proceedings under this title the rule in civil cases as to costs and attorney fees shall apply: PROVIDED, That cost bills may be served and filed and costs shall be taxed in accordance with such regulation as the commissioner shall prescribe."

RCW 50.20.150 provides:

"The applicant for initial determination, his most recent employing unit as stated by the applicant, and any other interested party which the commissioner by regulation prescribes, shall, if not previously notified within the same continuous period of unemployment, be given notice promptly in writing that an application for initial determination has been filed and such notice shall contain the reasons given by the applicant for his last separation from work. If, during his benefit year, the applicant becomes unemployed after having accepted subsequent work, and reports for the purpose of re-establishing his eligibility for benefits, a similar notice shall be given promptly to his then most recent employing unit as stated by him, or to any other interested party which the commissioner by regulation prescribes.

"Each base year employer shall be promptly notified of the filing of any application for initial determination which may result in a charge to his account."

RCW 50.12.010 provides, in part, as follows:

"The commissioner shall administer this title. He shall have the power and authority to adopt, amend, or rescind such rules and regulations, . . . as he deems necessary or suitable to that end. . . ."

RCW 34.04.020 provides, in part, as follows:

"In addition to other rule-making requirements imposed by law:

(1) Each agency shall adopt rules governing the formal and informal procedures prescribed or authorized by this chapter and rules of practice before the agency, together with forms and instructions: PROVIDED, That RCW 34.04.022 shall apply to agencies which have not adopted comprehensive rules of practice and procedure, in accordance with the provisions of this chapter, prior to July 1, 1967."

RCW 34.04.090 provides, in part, as follows:

"(7) Each agency shall adopt appropriate rules of procedure for notice and hearing in contested cases.

"(8) Agencies, or their authorized agents, may

"(d) take or cause depositions to be taken pursuant to rules promulgated by the agency, . . ."

The commissioner accordingly prescribes:

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1-85, filed 5/15/85)

WAC 192-09-063 APPEALS—WHO MAY APPEAL—TIME LIMITATION. Any interested party may appeal from a redetermination of an initial determination or a determination of allowance or denial of waiting period credit or benefits, or a redetermination thereof, by filing a written notice of appeal, or in the case of an assessment for, or denial of a claim for refund of, contributions, interest, or penalties, or denial of a redetermination of benefit charges made to an employer's account, or an employer's redetermined rate of contribution, by filing a petition for hearing with any office of the employment security department, or the unemployment compensation agency in any other state or territory. Such appeals and petitions for hearing shall be filed within ~~((ten))~~ thirty days of the date such determination, redetermination, assessment or denial is delivered or mailed, whichever is the earlier. If the appeal and/or petition is mailed, it shall be deemed filed with the department on the postmark date, if said document is properly addressed and has sufficient postage affixed thereto.

On the request of any interested party, the commissioner shall furnish forms for the filing of a notice of appeal or petition for hearing, but the use of such forms shall not be a jurisdictional requirement.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1-78, filed 8/14/78)

WAC 192-09-315 DECISIONS—PETITION FOR REVIEW. Any interested party who is aggrieved by a decision of an appeal tribunal other than an order approving a withdrawal of an appeal or a withdrawal of a petition for hearing, may petition the commissioner to review such decision. Such petition for review must be completed in writing by the aggrieved party or his or her representative and forms for this purpose shall be furnished by the commissioner on request, although the use of such forms shall not be a jurisdictional requirement. The filing of a petition for review shall be deemed timely if the written petition is received at any office of the employment security department, or in an office of the unemployment compensation agency of any other state or territory, within ~~((ten))~~ thirty days after the date on

which the appeal tribunal decision was mailed to the aggrieved party's last known address. If the petition for review is mailed, it shall be deemed filed with the addressee on the postmark date if said document is properly addressed and has sufficient postage affixed thereto.

WSR 88-24-009
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2731—Filed November 30, 1988]

I, Leslie F. James, director of Administrative Services, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to AFDC—Eligibility, chapter 388-24 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-18-104 filed with the code reviser on September 7, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 29, 1988.

By Leslie F. James, Director
 Administrative Services

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2621, filed 4/15/88)

WAC 388-24-050 AID TO FAMILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN—ASSISTANCE UNIT.

(1) Except as specified in subsection ~~((3))~~ (4) of this section, the department shall include, in a single assistance unit, the following persons living together:

- (a) A woman in her third trimester of pregnancy who has no other child; or
- (b) The child(ren), including all full or half brothers and sisters of such a child(ren); and
- (c) The parent(s) or stepparent(s) with whom the child(ren) lives; and
- (d) A minor parent's parent who claims to be the needy caretaker relative of:
 - (i) The minor parent,
 - (ii) The minor parent's child, or
 - (iii) The minor parent's full or half brother or half sister.

(2) Except as specified in subsection ~~((3))~~ (4) of this section, the department may include in the assistance unit at the option of the family:

- (a) One needy relative caretaker of specified degree whose eligibility depends solely on caring for the child(ren), if a parent does not reside in the family home; or

(b) The stepbrothers or stepsisters of a child included in the assistance unit, except as required in subsection (1) of this section; or

(c) Needy eligible nonsibling children.

(3) The department shall authorize only one assistance unit grant for all needy eligible siblings and nonsiblings living with a single caretaker relative or relative married couple.

(4) The department shall exclude from the assistance unit those persons ineligible due to factors not related to need. ~~((These persons))~~ Exclusions include, but are not limited to:

(a) A recipient of SSI benefits;

(b) An alien not meeting the citizenship and alienage requirements (see WAC 388-26-120); and

(c) A person under sanction for noncooperation with:

(i) The OPPORTUNITIES program (see WAC 388-24-107); or

(ii) The department's office of support enforcement (see WAC 388-24-108 and 388-24-109).

~~((4))~~ The department shall establish two assistance units when:

(a) ~~The child lives with a nonresponsible relative of specified degree who is a member of another assistance unit; or~~

(b) ~~A relative of specified degree is eligible to receive assistance for two or more children for whom the relative is not legally responsible, and the children are not full or half siblings.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2275A, filed 8/30/85)

WAC 388-24-055 AID TO FAMILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN-REGULAR-DEPRIVATION OF PARENTAL SUPPORT OR CARE. ~~((Effective September 1, 1985:))~~

(1) "Parent" as used in this and following sections means a natural or adoptive parent or stepparent. ~~((A parent-child relationship is considered to exist if the criteria in the Uniform Parentage Act (chapter 26.26 RCW) are met and the parents are acknowledging parentage. If parentage is contested, it can only be determined by a court of law.~~

(a) ~~An adoptive parent has the same rights and responsibilities as a natural parent in respect to the adopted child.~~

(b) ~~A stepparent, legally married to a child's parent has the same rights and responsibilities as a natural parent for the care and support of his or her stepchild. See WAC 388-28-350.))~~

(2) A child deprived of parental support or care may or may not be in financial need. The department shall determine need ((is)) as a separate factor ((to be determined separately)).

(3) The department shall determine deprivation of a child of unmarried parents ((is determined on)) the same ((basis)) as a child of married parents.

(4) The department shall consider a child, living with a parent and a nonrelated adult ((is)), as deprived ((because of)) due to the absence or death of the other ((natural or adoptive)) parent. The ((responsibility of)) support from the nonrelated adult to ((support)) the

child is a financial need factor only - see WAC 388-28-355. ~~((Also see WAC 388-24-108 through 388-24-114 in respect to support from the absent parent))~~

(5) When deprivation due to death, absence, incapacity, or unemployment ceases and the child remains in need, the department shall determine if another basis for deprivation exists. If no other basis exists, the department shall terminate assistance at the end of the calendar month in which deprivation ends.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2275A, filed 8/30/85)

WAC 388-24-070 AID TO FAMILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN-REGULAR-DEPRIVATION DUE TO CONTINUED ABSENCE FROM HOME. ~~((Effective September 1, 1985:))~~

(1) ~~((Determination))~~ The department shall determine whether a child ((has been)) is deprived of parental support or care ((is made in relation)) due to the absence of a child's ((natural)) parent ((or parents, as defined in WAC 388-24-040(3)), adoptive parent, or stepparent. The term parent as used in this section refers to any of those relationships)).

(2) The department shall determine deprivation due to the continued absence of a parent ((from the home)), ((whether or not the natural parents have taken)) regardless of legal ((action to separate or to dissolve or annul the marriage, establishes deprivation of parental support or care)) marital status, when:

(a) The parent is living out of the home in which the child resides ~~((, and));~~ or

(b) The ~~((nature of the))~~ absence interrupts or terminates the parent's functioning as a provider of ~~((either));~~

(i) Maintenance(;) at least equal to the child's prorated share of the monthly need standard for the number of persons in the child's assistance unit as specified in WAC 388-29-100; or

(ii) Physical care(;) or

(iii) Guidance for the child(;); and

(c) The ~~((known or indefinite duration of the))~~ absence precludes ~~((counting on))~~ the parent's ~~((performance of his or her function))~~ involvement in planning for the present support or care of the child.

(3) ~~((When the continued absence of a parent as specified in subsection (2)(a) of this section is established, it is assumed that one or more of the elements of parental functioning as specified in subsection (2)(b) of this section are interrupted sufficiently to establish deprivation. The interruption of such parental functioning is assumed even though the parent whose absence is established is in contact with the child due to court ordered visitation, joint custody, or otherwise.))~~ The department shall disregard the assumption in subsection (2)(a) that parental functioning is interrupted ((can be rebutted)) only if the absent parent routinely visits the child, and ((there is clear evidence the absent parent)) continuously provides all elements of parental functioning ((with no interruption of such functioning attributable to the absence)). ((Documentation of any))

(4) The department shall document reduction of one or more of the elements of parental care ((due)) to ((the absence shall)) establish deprivation. ((For the purpose

of determining whether parental functioning is interrupted due to the absence in such cases.) The following definitions shall apply:

(a) "Maintenance" means ~~((either))~~ the financial support and in-kind contributions paid directly to the child's household ~~((or substantial in-kind contributions of)), including:~~

(i) Child support,

(ii) Food,

(iii) Clothing, and

(iv) Other necessities ~~((, and the value of such support payments or contributions, when considered separately or in any combination, is sufficient to meet the prorated share of the child's monthly need based on the need standard for the number of persons in the child's assistance unit as specified in WAC 388-29-100)).~~

(b) "Physical care" means ~~((providing))~~ continuous care of the child on a day-to-day basis by performing tasks, depending upon the age of the child, required in the child's daily life ~~((Such tasks include))~~ including, but ~~((are))~~ not limited to ~~((, depending upon the age of the child)):~~

(i) Providing clean clothing ~~((;))~~ and dressing ~~((;))~~ the child;

(ii) Preparing meals ~~((;))~~ and feeding ~~((;))~~;

(iii) Supervising bedtime ~~((;))~~; and

(iv) Assisting with other personal care needs.

(c) "Guidance" means day-to-day parental participation in and responsibility for the child's physical, emotional, and intellectual development ~~((Such participation includes))~~ including, but ~~((is))~~ not limited to ~~((, depending upon the age of the child)):~~

(i) Accompanying to doctor visits ~~((;))~~;

(ii) Attending school conferences ~~((;))~~;

(iii) Disciplining ~~((;))~~; and

(iv) Participating in decisions concerning the child's well-being and extracurricular activities.

(4) The ~~((requirements for establishing))~~ department shall not establish deprivation due to ~~((continued))~~ absence ~~((in subsections (2) and (3) of this section are applicable regardless of))~~ if:

(a) The reason for the parent's absence ~~((, except that a parent whose absence))~~ is due solely to serving on active duty in the uniformed military services of the United States ~~((is not considered absent;))~~; or

(b) ~~((The duration of the parent's absence except:~~

~~((t))~~ For applicants, ~~((when))~~ the department's best estimate based on available evidence is that an absent parent will return to reside in the home at any time within the month of initial grant authorization ~~((or the month following the month of initial grant authorization; eligibility is determined prospectively as specified in WAC 388-28-483. If the department's best estimate is that the absent parent will return to the home within the month of initial grant authorization, deprivation does not exist)).~~ However, if the department's best estimate is that the absent parent will return to the home within the month following the month of initial grant authorization, deprivation may exist for the initial month of grant authorization ~~((according to the requirements of subsections (2) and (3) of this section)),~~ but ~~((deprivation~~

~~does))~~ not ~~((exist))~~ for the month following ~~((the month of initial grant authorization)).~~

~~((t))~~ (c) For recipients, after the first two months of eligibility, ~~((when))~~ the department determines an absent parent will ~~((be returning))~~ return to the home ~~((; eligibility is determined according to WAC 388-33-135(4), and)).~~ Deprivation due to absence ceases the end of the month in which the parent returns to the home.

(5) ~~((Applicants or recipients covered under subsection (4)(b) of this section are fully entitled to a redetermination of eligibility for other benefits prior to termination and to advance and adequate notice of termination including a right to hearing as specified in WAC 388-33-376 and 388-33-385.~~

~~((6))~~ The department shall consider deprivation due to continued absence ~~((is considered))~~ established when a parent convicted of an offense is permitted to reside in the family home but is required by the court to perform unpaid work or unpaid community service ~~((;))~~, and:

(a) ~~((The needs of the convicted parent will))~~ Shall not ~~((be included))~~ include the needs of the convicted parent in the determination of eligibility or the payment of financial assistance ~~((;))~~; and

(b) ~~((A convicted parent earning))~~ Shall treat earned income outside of the hours of sentenced unpaid work or community service ~~((shall have such earnings treated))~~ in accordance with WAC 388-28-500.

~~((7))~~ (6) ~~((If application is made by))~~ The department shall assume, when a nonresponsible relative applies on behalf of a child who ~~((has))~~ was not ~~((been))~~ placed in ~~((his or her))~~ custody through a court order, and whose parent ~~((or parents))~~ though able ~~((have))~~ has failed to support the child, that apparent abandonment ~~((shall be assumed))~~ exists and ~~((the))~~ shall apply policies outlined in WAC 388-24-114 ~~((shall apply)).~~

~~((8) The rules in subsections (2), (3), (4), and (5) of this section are effective October 4, 1984.)~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Orders 2601 and 2601A, filed 3/2/88 and 3/14/88)

WAC 388-24-074 AID TO FAMILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN-EMPLOYABLE-DEPRIVATION DUE TO UNEMPLOYMENT OF A PARENT. ~~((Effective September 1, 1985, to be eligible for AFDC-E, an applicant shall be a child whose qualifying parent meets the requirements in this section:))~~

(1) The department shall consider a child to be deprived of parental care and support due to the unemployment of a parent when the child lives with two parents, one of which meets all the requirements in this section.

(2) The department shall designate the qualifying parent ~~((shall be))~~ as that parent ~~((earning))~~ who earned the greater amount of income in the ~~((fast))~~ twenty-four-calendar-month period ~~((, the last month of which))~~ immediately ~~((precedes))~~ preceding the month ~~((in which))~~ the application for assistance is filed.

(a) ~~((If the client and CSO cannot secure verification of earnings for this period,))~~ The ~~((CSO))~~ department shall designate the qualifying parent using the best evidence available ~~((;))~~, and

~~(b) Consider the earnings of both parents ((shall be considered in determining the qualifying parent,)) regardless of when the relationship began(;;), and~~

~~(c) Continue the ((designated qualifying parent shall be the qualifying parent)) designation for each consecutive month the family remains on assistance based on the current application.~~

~~(d) If both parents earned an identical amount of income, the ((ESD)) department shall designate the qualifying parent.~~

~~((2) The child shall be deprived of parental care and support because of the unemployment of a natural parent, adoptive parent, or stepparent who satisfies all the requirements in this section to qualify the assistance unit.))~~

~~(3) The department shall consider a parent ((or stepparent shall be considered)) to be unemployed when the parent:~~

~~(a) ((He or she)) is employed less than one hundred hours a month(;;); or~~

~~(b) ((He or she)) exceeds ((that)) this standard for a particular month if ((his or her work is intermittent and)) the excess is of a temporary nature ((as)) evidenced by ((the fact he or she was)) being under the one hundred hour standard for the two prior months and is expected to be under the standard during the next month.~~

~~((3)) (4) The qualifying parent ((or stepparent)) shall be unemployed as defined in subsection ((2)) (3) of this section for at least thirty days prior to the date AFDC-E is authorized(;) except when:~~

~~(a) AFDC-E is terminated due to ((full-time)) employment of the ((unemployed)) qualifying parent ((or stepparent, no additional waiting period is required if)); and~~

~~(b) The full-time employment ends within thirty days of termination; and~~

~~(c) The ((individual)) qualifying parent reapplies and is found otherwise eligible for AFDC-E.~~

~~((4)) (5) The qualifying parent ((or stepparent)) shall not have, during the same thirty-day period:~~

~~(a) Refused a bona fide offer of employment; or~~

~~(b) Refused training for employment; or ((not))~~

~~(c) Voluntarily left a job without good cause ((during the same thirty-day period)); or~~

~~(d) If eligible, refused to apply for or accept unemployment compensation.~~

~~((5) The child shall meet the eligibility conditions specified in WAC 388-24-040 and 388-24-090 through 388-24-125.))~~

~~(6) The ((child's)) qualifying parent ((or stepparent)):~~

~~(a) ((Must)) Shall be registered for the WIN program(;;);~~

~~(b) If exempt from OPPORTUNITIES participation due to remoteness, shall be registered for employment with the local DES office; and~~

~~(c) Shall not be ineligible due to participation in institutional and work experience training or in public service employment under the OPPORTUNITIES program.~~

~~(7) ((The qualifying parent or stepparent, if eligible for unemployment compensation, shall not have refused to apply for or accept such compensation.~~

~~(8)) The qualifying parent ((or stepparent)):~~

~~(a) Shall have six or more quarters of work within any thirteen calendar quarter period ending within one year prior to the application for assistance. A "quarter of work" means a calendar quarter in which ((he or she)) the parent earned income of ((not less than)) at least fifty dollars, or ((in which he or she)) participated in the work incentive (WIN) program or community work experience program (CWEP). A "calendar quarter" means ((a period of)) three consecutive ((calendar)) months ending March 31st, June 30th, September 30th, or December 31st(;;); or~~

~~(b) Within one year prior to ((his or her)) the application the qualifying parent received or ((would have been)) had such a work history to be eligible to receive unemployment compensation ((had he or she applied, or if the employment which he or she had was not covered under the unemployment compensation law of the state or the United States, his or her work history was such that had his or her employment been covered, he or she would have been eligible.~~

~~(9) The child shall be living with both natural parents, adoptive parents, or a parent and stepparent except that one may be temporarily absent for up to ninety days to search for employment with the expectation of continuing to live with the family. The absent parent shall meet the requirements in WAC 388-24-107.~~

~~(10) AFDC shall not be denied or terminated solely because of an individual's participation in institutional and work experience training or in public service employment under the OPPORTUNITIES program)).~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1829, filed 6/21/82)

WAC 388-24-108 ELIGIBILITY CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO AFDC—ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS TO SUPPORT. (1) As a condition of eligibility, each ((applicant for or recipient)) client of AFDC shall assign to the office of support enforcement any ((and all right, title, and interest in any)) rights to support ((obligation the applicant or recipient may have));

~~(a) In his or her own behalf or ((on the)) in behalf of ((any family member for whom application is being made, such assignment shall include rights in support payments)) the other assistance unit members; and~~

~~(b) Which ((have)) has accrued prior to the time assignment is made(, and)).~~

~~(2) The department shall require the ((applicant/recipient)) client to promptly remit to the office of support enforcement any ((payments)) support received directly ((from the person legally responsible to pay support. Payment of public assistance to the applicant)) after assignment is made.~~

~~(3) The department shall consider the client's signed application as an assignment of support rights. The client's acceptance of an AFDC payment shall constitute an agreement to the assignment of support rights ((to support by the applicant, as provided under RCW 74.20.330)).~~

~~((2)) (4) If the ((parent or other caretaker)) relative with whom the ((child(ren) is living)) child lives fails~~

~~((or refuses))~~ to comply with the requirements in ~~((sub-section (1) of))~~ this section, the ~~((caretaker))~~ department shall:

~~(a) Deny eligibility to that relative ((shall be ineligible to receive assistance)); and~~

~~(b) Provide any assistance ((for which)) payment the ((child(ren) may be)) child is eligible ((shall be provided)) for by protective payment ((as specified in)) under WAC 388-33-453~~((; the determination of requirements for the child(ren) shall be computed without regard to the requirements of the caretaker relative)).~~~~

~~((3)) (5) The requirements of ((sub-section (1) of)) this section shall ((be applicable)) apply to recipients ((no later than)) by the next regular redetermination of eligibility.~~

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 388-24-137 CONTINUATION OF ASSISTANCE WHEN DEPRIVATION CEASES.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2388, filed 6/18/86)

WAC 388-24-065 AID TO FAMILIES WITH DEPENDENT CHILDREN—DEPRIVATION DUE TO INCAPACITY. (1) The department shall consider a child ((is considered to be)) deprived of parental support and care ((by reason of)) due to parental incapacity when ((he or she)):

(a) The child lives with two ((natural or adoptive)) parents or one ((natural or adoptive)) parent and one stepparent; and

(b) One or both parents are substantially incapacitated.

(2) ((Deprivation due to physical or mental incapacity of a parent shall be deemed to exist when the parent of an otherwise eligible child has a physical or mental illness, defect, or impairment.)) The physical or mental incapacity of a parent shall be:

(a) Supported by competent medical ((testimony)) evidence; and ((must be))

(b) Expected to last at least thirty days; and

(c) Of such a debilitating nature as to substantially reduce ((substantially)) or eliminate the parent's ability to support or care for the ((otherwise eligible)) child ((and be expected to last at least thirty days)). In making the determination of ability to support, the department shall consider:

(i) The limited employment opportunities of the handicapped ((shall be taken into account.))

(3) Deprivation exists if the incapacity:

(a) Reduces substantially or eliminates the parent's ability to care for the child)) parent;

((b)) (ii) ((Is)) The reason employers refuse to employ the parent for work ((he or she)) the parent could do~~((; (This includes))~~ including behavioral disorders ((and other)) or impairments ((interfering)) that interfere with ((the)) securing and maintaining ((of)) employment~~((;))~~; ((or))

((c)) (iii) Limitations that prevent~~((s))~~ the parent from working full time at a job ((in which)) he or she has been customarily engaged~~((; and from working full time on another job for which he))~~ in or ((she)) is equipped for by education, training, or experience or ~~((which))~~ can be learned by on-the-job training; ((or))

((d)) (iv) ((Prevents)) If the parent ((from)), even though working full time, is paid on a reduced basis for accomplishing ((as much)) less on a job as a regular employee ((and is the reason he or she is paid on a reduced basis even though working full time)); ((or))

((e)) (v) ((Qualifies)) If the parent qualifies for ((placement)), and is placed in, a noncompetitive full-time job which is rehabilitative, therapeutic, or in a sheltered workshop ((not considered to be a competitive full-time job and he or she is placed in such a job)); and

(vi) A parent's ability to engage in activities necessary to carry on full-time specified responsibilities, such as employment, home management, and/or adequate care of children. Inability to understand, remember, follow instructions, or communicate appropriately with others may be sufficient to establish incapacity.

((4)) (3) ((A claim of incapacity)) The department shall ((be substantiated by)) consider medical evidence~~((;))~~ as follows:

(a) The primary source ((of evidence)) for a physical incapacity ((with)) shall be a written report from:

(i) A physician~~((;))~~;

(ii) A certified registered nurse (CRN) ((if)) within area of certification~~((;))~~; or

(iii) The chief of medical administration, or ((his or her)) designee, of the Veterans' Administration ((as authorized in federal law)).

(b) The primary source ((of evidence)) for ((a)) mental incapacity ((must)) shall be a report from:

(i) A psychiatrist~~((;))~~;

(ii) A clinical psychologist~~((; or))~~;

(iii) A mental health professional designated by the local community mental health agency as defined in RCW 71.05.020~~((; except))~~; or

(iv) A physician ((may evaluate a mental condition)) at the department's discretion.

(c) ((Any of the aforementioned may be used as)) The primary sources ((of evidence)) for incapacity due to alcoholism or drug addiction~~((;))~~ shall be any of those listed in subsection (3)(a) and (b) above;

(d) Supplemental sources of evidence ((may be obtained from other treating practitioners, to)) include:

(i) A chiropractor~~((;))~~;

(ii) Nurse~~((;))~~;

(iii) Physician's assistant~~((;))~~; or

(iv) DSHS institution~~((s))~~ or ((agencies from which)) agency the ((individual is receiving or)) parent has received services from.

(e) ((These reports must)) Evidence shall include:

(i) A diagnosis and prognosis for the incapacitating condition; and

(ii) The effect of the condition on the individual's ability to function~~((; along with))~~; and

(iii) Relevant medical history and ((sufficient medical)) documentation to support ((any)) a conclusion~~((s))~~ of incapacity.

~~((5)) Incapacity due to mental or emotional disorders (including addictive dependence on alcohol or drugs) shall be determined on the basis of distinct impairments substantially reducing a parent's ability to engage in activities necessary to carry on full-time specified responsibilities, such as employment, home management and/or adequate care of children. Evidence of inability to understand, remember, and follow instructions or inability to communicate appropriately with others may be sufficient to establish incapacity.~~

~~(6) Individuals determined to be incapacitated due to alcoholism or drug abuse shall be required to accept referral to a community alcoholism or drug treatment program for evaluation and recommendation for treatment. (See subsection (12) of this section.)~~

~~((7)) (f) The department shall review medical evidence ((shall be supported by)) and complete an objective appraisal of all factors relevant to the ((individual's)) parent's situation. ((a) Consideration shall be given to the individual's) These include age, emotional health, aptitudes, adjustment to ((and acceptance of)) the incapacity, family circumstances, employment history, education, and ((the extent to which the individual is able)) ability to carry out ((specified)) responsibilities ((such as)) of employment or homemaking. Social or educational deficiencies do not ((of themselves)) establish incapacity but may ((have a bearing on an individual's)) impact the parent's ability to overcome an incapacity.~~

~~((b) If an individual has an obvious incapacity for which medical evidence verifies inability to engage in gainful employment, such an appraisal is not required.~~

~~((8)) (4) To determine deprivation ((due to)) based on incapacity ((shall be determined by the department in accordance with the criteria in subsections (1) through (7) of this section)), the department shall:~~

~~(a) ((Consider medical and other related evidence of the incapacitating condition and make a decision confirming)) Confirm or ((denying)) deny the existence of incapacity within thirty days of the date of application, except in circumstances beyond the control of the agency ((such as delay on the part of the applicant, the examining physician or other source of documentation));~~

~~(b) Request additional information when necessary((-);~~

~~(c) Consult with the medical consultant as necessary for evaluation of medical data((-);~~

~~(d) Determine probable duration of incapacity((- The probable duration shall be)), related to the prognosis ((for the condition as predicted)), which is supported by ((the)) medical evidence ((but)). Duration shall not exceed twelve months without a redetermination of incapacity((-);~~

~~((9)) (e) Deny eligibility ((cannot be established)) if ((an applicant or recipient)) the parent fails to cooperate in obtaining ((information documenting)) medical evidence for incapacity((-);~~

~~((10)) (f) Pay the cost of necessary medical reports ((to determine incapacity shall be paid by the department)), provided payment for such reports shall not be made to DSHS agencies((-);~~

~~((11)) (g) ((Eligibility of either parent or stepparent in the home)) Establish incapacity without further medical documentation if the parent is eligible for veterans' benefits based on disability of at least fifty percent ((or more)) or for any Social Security Administration disability benefit ((based on disability shall establish incapacity for aid to families with dependent children benefits, without further medical documentation)).~~

~~((12)) (5) ((Acceptance of)) The department shall require the incapacitated parent accept referrals for evaluation and available medical treatment((-)), which include medical, surgical, psychiatric therapy, treatment in an alcoholism or drug treatment center, or any combination thereof.~~

~~(a) ((Deprivation cannot be established when an AFDC)) If a parent ((or stepparent)), whose incapacity deprives ((his or her)) a child ((or children or stepchild or stepchildren)) of parental support or care, refuses without good cause to accept available medical treatment which would reasonably be expected to render ((him or her)) the parent employable, the department shall remove that parent's needs from the grant.~~

~~((i) "Available medical treatment" shall mean and include medical, surgical, psychiatric therapy, treatment in an alcoholism or drug treatment center, or any combination thereof.~~

~~((ii)) (b) ("Reasonably be expected to render him or her employable" shall mean that, in the opinion of the department, the recommended medical, surgical, or psychiatric therapy, or any combination thereof, is of such a nature and prognosis that, in the specific instance of the individual involved, medical experience indicates) The department shall determine if the recommended treatment ((will)) can be expected to restore or substantially improve the ((individual's)) parent's ability to ((work for pay in a regular and predictable manner, or to resume care of the home or children)) carry out the responsibilities of employment or homemaking.~~

~~((iii)) (c) ("Refuses without good cause" shall mean) The department shall determine ((whether)) the ((individual)) parent is justified in refusing recommended medical treatment((-;~~

~~(b) An individual is justified in refusing recommended available medical treatment when, according to the best objective judgment of the department, such) if the refusal is based ((upon)) on one or more of the following conditions:~~

~~(i) The ((individual)) parent is genuinely fearful of undergoing ((recommended)) the treatment even ((though such)) if the fear ((may appear)) seems to be unrealistic or irrational;~~

~~(ii) The ((individual)) parent could lose a faculty, or ((the remaining)) use of a faculty ((he or she now has)), and refuses to accept the risk;~~

~~(iii) The ((individual)) parent will not accept ((recommended medical)) treatment because of religious scruples((-);~~

~~(iv) The ((individual)) parent is ((temporarily)) unable to participate in ((medical)) treatment due to ((an intervening)) another incapacity.~~

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2621, filed 4/15/88)

WAC 388-24-125 ELIGIBILITY CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO AFDC—LIVING ((IN HOME OF)) WITH A RELATIVE OF SPECIFIED DEGREE. (1) To be eligible for AFDC, a dependent child shall be living with a relative of specified degree.

(2) The department defines a relative of specified degree as:

- (a) The natural mother;
- (b) The natural father if:
 - (i) He was married to the natural mother when the child was born((-)); or
 - (ii) The child was born within three hundred days of a termination of marriage; or
 - (iii) He attempted to marry the natural mother before the child's birth and the child is born within three hundred days after the termination of cohabitation; or
 - (iv) He receives the child into his home and openly holds out the child as his child; or
 - (v) He acknowledges paternity in writing and the natural mother does not dispute the acknowledgment; or
 - (vi) He and the child's natural mother have married or attempted to marry after the child's birth; and:
 - (A) He acknowledges paternity, filed with the registrar of vital statistics; or
 - (B) With his consent, he is named as the father on the child's birth certificate; or
 - (C) He is obligated to pay child support by written voluntary promise or by court order.
- (c) A person who legally adopts a child((-));
- (d) Blood relatives (including those of half-blood); brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, or niece. Relationships to persons of preceding generations as denoted by the prefixes of grand, great, or great-great are within this definition((-);
- (e) A stepfather, stepmother, stepbrother, and stepsister((-);
- (f) A spouse of a person named in this section is within the scope of this provision, although the marriage is terminated by death or divorce((-); and
- (g) A person identified in a court judgment or order as the child's relative as specified in subsection (2)(a) through (f) of this section.

(3) The department shall determine a child is living ~~((in the home of))~~ with a relative of specified degree when:

- (a) The specified relative has assumed parental responsibility for the care, guidance, and control of the child; and
- (b) ~~((The "home" is))~~ A family setting is maintained or is in the process of being established for the benefit of the family group. ((A home)) A family setting shall include households in temporary shelter and households without shelter; and
- (c) Eligibility exists even though circumstances may require the temporary absence of either the child or the

responsible relative from the customary family setting, as long as the relative exercises responsibility for the care and control of the child. Such temporary separations include:

(i) Temporary care in a hospital or public or private institution when the illness is such that the department expects a return to the family ~~((can be expected))~~ within ninety days. If the temporary care exceeds ninety days, the monthly grant standard shall be as specified in WAC 388-29-125((-);

(ii) Temporary care in an alcohol or drug treatment facility when the department expects a return to the family within ninety days. If the care exceeds ninety days, the monthly grant standard shall be as specified in WAC 388-29-130;

(iii) Attendance of a child in school as follows:

(A) The relative retains full responsibility for the child and the child returns ~~((home))~~ during a year's period, at least for summer vacation; and

(B) The need for specialized education or training is not available in the child's home community, and the education is recommended by local school authorities; or

(C) Isolation of the child's ~~((home))~~ residence makes it necessary for him or her to be away from ~~((home))~~ the relative to attend school; or

(D) The child is enrolled in an Indian boarding school administered through the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

~~((iii))~~ (iv) Visits in which the person plans to be away ~~((from home))~~ for ninety days or less, including visits of a child to a parent residing away from the child's customary family ~~((home))~~ setting. If the responsible relative or child leaves ~~((the home))~~ for more than ninety days, eligibility is redetermined in accordance with the new circumstances((-);

~~((iv))~~ (v) Attendance of a responsible relative in a department-approved vocational training program. Absence is considered temporary for the period of time required to complete the training program (see WAC 388-57-028((-); and

~~((v))~~ (vi) Temporary placement of the child in foster care while the parent is temporarily receiving care in a residential treatment facility, where such absences do not exceed thirty days.

~~((e))~~ (d) The child is a ward of the juvenile court, or other agency to whom the court has delegated authority, and if all other eligibility factors have been met and the relative of specified degree actually carries out the everyday care, control, and supervision of the child((-);

~~((d))~~ (e) The child is in foster care((-); and:

(i) The caretaker relative applies and is otherwise eligible;

(ii) The child is returned to the relative's ~~((home))~~ care before the end of the thirty-day assistance period; and

(iii) No AFDC payments are being made for the child, either in another relative's home or through AFDC-FC in the same thirty-day period.

WSR 88-24-010

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 88-26—Filed December 1, 1988—Eff. January 1, 1989]

I, Joseph A. Dear, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to this order revises the basic premium ratios, loss conversion factors and size group tables to reflect the most current insurance charges, administrative expenses and investment earnings to be used in adjusting premium payments for possible refunds or additional assessments.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-18-100 filed with the code reviser on September 7, 1988. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being January 1, 1989.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.04.020(1) and 51.16.035 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.

By Joseph A. Dear
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-18, filed 2/25/86)

WAC 296-17-904 DEFINITIONS. The definitions in this section shall apply throughout WAC 296-17-905 through 296-17-91902.

(1) "Coverage period" means a one-year period beginning the first day of either January, April, July, or October.

(2) "Group" means those members of an association who have elected to have a group dividend and/or retrospective premium calculated based on the combined premium and incurred loss data of the participants, and have satisfactorily complied with eligibility requirements for doing so.

(3) "Premium" means only that portion of the money collected from an employer for worker's compensation (not to include any money paid in penalties or security deposits), which is deposited in the accident fund and the medical aid fund.

(4) "Standard premium" for a particular coverage period means premium collected or due for insurance coverage provided during the period, prior to any adjustments under a dividend or retrospective rating plan.

(5) "Incurred losses" for a coverage period means the estimated ultimate cost to the accident fund and medical aid fund of claims arising from incidents occurring during the coverage period, subject to the special evaluation methods prescribed in WAC 296-17-915.

(6) "Loss development factor" means an actuarially determined factor which is multiplied times individual case basis estimates of claim costs to produce incurred

losses for a firm or group of firms during a coverage period. Loss development factors allow for reopenings, aggravations, and any other individually unpredictable contingencies which may affect claim costs based on past experience of the accident fund and medical aid fund as a whole.

(7) "Loss ratio" means incurred losses divided by standard premium.

(8) "Dividend" is a partial refund of standard premium based on a firm's standard premium and loss ratio.

(9) "Retrospective premium" is a premium determined after a coverage period has ended, based on a firm's standard premium, incurred losses, and other pre-selected parameters for the coverage period.

(10) "Retrospective premium adjustment" is an additional assessment or refund of premium owing to an employer's retrospective premium as of a given evaluation date being more or less than the premium previously paid for the coverage period.

(11) "Performance adjustment factor" means an actuarially determined factor which is multiplied times incurred losses prior to application of the retrospective rating formula, to produce "adjusted incurred losses." This adjustment will produce net retrospective premium credits for employers and employer groups participating (~~(risks in the aggregate)~~) in the retrospective rating program when they have combined experience which is more favorable than other state fund experience (~~(for the same coverage period)~~). Conversely, this adjustment will produce net retrospective premium penalties for employers and employer groups participating (~~(risks)~~) in the retrospective rating program when their combined experience is more adverse than other state fund experience (~~(for the same coverage period)~~). The purpose of the performance adjustment factor is to retain a consistent economic incentive for those employers to improve their accident cost experience while participating in these plans.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-18, filed 2/25/86)

WAC 296-17-914 RETROSPECTIVE RATING FORMULA. Employers who elect to have their premium adjusted under a retrospective rating plan must submit an application on a form provided by the department. This application must be received by the department no later than the 15th day of the month preceding the start of the coverage period. The employer must preselect a "maximum premium ratio" and either Plan A, A1, A2, A3, or B.

The employer's retrospective premium shall be calculated from the formula:

Retrospective Premium =

(Basic Premium Ratio x Standard Premium)

+

(Loss Conversion Factor x Adjusted Incurred Losses)

In the above formula, the basic premium ratio and loss conversion factor are taken from Plan A (WAC 296-17-91901) or Plan B (WAC 296-17-91902) or

Plan A1 (WAC 296-17-91903) or Plan A2 (WAC 296-17-91904) or Plan A3 (WAC 296-17-91905) based on the employer's standard premium and preselected maximum premium ratio. Adjusted incurred losses equal incurred losses times the performance adjustment factor applicable to the coverage period. When the aggregate experience of retrospectively rated accounts is superior to other state fund experience, the performance adjustment factor will not exceed 1.00. The performance adjustment factor for each coverage period shall be calculated independently of results for previous coverage periods. Evaluation of incurred losses will be done according to the methods prescribed in WAC 296-17-915.

The maximum retrospective premium is the product of the maximum premium ratio times the employer's standard premium. In the event that the retrospective premium formula produces a value greater than the maximum premium, the retrospective premium shall be reduced to the maximum premium.

Under Plans A1, A2, and A3, the minimum retrospective premium is the product of the minimum premium ratio times the employer's standard premium. If the retrospective premium formula produces a value less than the minimum premium, the retrospective premium shall be increased to the minimum premium.

Under Plan A, a firm may elect to forego the protection of a maximum premium ratio if its financial condition is sufficiently strong and stable so that it could qualify as a self-insurer under the department's guidelines for certification of self-insurers. The basic premium ratio effective January 1, ((+1986)) 1989, will be ((-052)) .058 if the firm selects and qualifies for an unlimited maximum premium.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-8, filed 2/28/85, effective 7/1/85)

WAC 296-17-915 EVALUATION OF INCURRED LOSSES DIVIDEND AND RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLANS. The initial evaluation date for each claim arising from incidents occurring during the coverage period shall be approximately twelve months following the end of the coverage period. Each subsequent annual incurred loss evaluation under the retrospective rating plan shall be approximately twelve months following the preceding evaluation date.

The estimated cost of each claim shall include all payments made as of the valuation date and may also include a reserve for future payments consistent with the following evaluation methods applicable to experience rating:

(1) Retroactive adjustments – revision of losses between valuation dates

No claim value shall be revised between valuation dates and no retroactive adjustment of a retrospective premium adjustment shall be made because of dispute concerning the judgment of the claims examiner or because of subsequent developments except as specifically provided in the following cases:

- (a) In cases where incurred loss values are included or excluded through mistake other than error of judgment;
- (b) In cases where a third party recovery is made;

(c) In cases where the claim qualifies as a second injury claim under the provisions of RCW 51.16.120((;

~~(d) In cases where a claim is officially closed and is determined to be noncompensable)).~~

(2) Third party recovery

In the event of a third party recovery on a claim, the employer shall be charged for a portion of the actual loss amount, gross of such recovery, established on the claim. This portion shall be calculated at the time the recovery is made, and shall be determined by taking the ratio of the total cost of the claim, including attorneys' fees, after recovery, to the total cost of the claim before recovery. If the claim is open at the time the recovery is made, then costs before and after recovery may include an allowance for future claim payments.

(3) Second injury claims

The value of any claim which becomes eligible for second injury relief under the provisions of RCW 51.16.120, as now or hereafter amended, shall be reduced by the percentage of relief granted.

The incurred losses for each employer shall be determined by multiplying the individual claim cost estimates by loss development factors, and adding the resulting developed losses for all the employer's claims. The following special procedures will be used for making individual claim cost estimates:

Fatal claims – retrospective rating plan

Each fatal claim shall include all payments made as of the valuation date and a pension reserve, if any, based on the annuity value at the time the pension is awarded. Pension costs will not be reevaluated based on events after the pension has been awarded.

Fatal claims – dividend plan

Each fatal claim shall be assigned the "average death value," said value to be the average incurred cost for all fatal claims occurring during the coverage period.

Permanent total claims

Pension costs for permanent total injuries will be based on the annuity value at the time that the pension is awarded. Pension costs will not be reevaluated based on events after the pension has been awarded.

Occupational disease claims

The cost of any occupational disease claim paid ~~((from the accident fund))~~ and arising from exposure to the disease hazard under two or more employers, shall be prorated to each period of employment. Each employer's share of the claim cost shall be assigned to the coverage period during which the employer last employed the claimant under conditions of injurious exposure, provided the employer's share is at least ten percent of the total claim cost.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-30, filed 5/31/88)

WAC 296-17-916 RETROSPECTIVE PREMIUM ADJUSTMENTS—DUE AND PAYABLE. The initial retrospective premium adjustment will be calculated approximately twelve months from the close of the coverage period and annually thereafter for a period of two years. Provided a request is made within ninety days following promulgation of the third and final required

retrospective premium adjustment by ((either)) the employer or ((department)) employer group up to two subsequent annual retrospective premium adjustments on the coverage period will be made. The additional adjustments will be identified as the fourth and fifth adjustments and must be requested and made in succession.

Retrospective premium adjustments are the sole responsibility of the employer or employer group. Retrospective premium adjustments become due or payable within sixty days of notification of amount. Reevaluation of incurred losses or premium audits will not delay retrospective premium adjustment payments. For employers participating on an individual retrospective rating plan, no retrospective premium adjustment refund check will be written for less than ten dollars. In lieu of refund checks, retrospective premium adjustments of less than ten dollars will be credited to the employer's industrial insurance account. Retrospective premium adjustments of less than five dollars will be disregarded and not considered due or payable.

The department may withhold any member's pro rata share from the group's retrospective premium adjustment refund and credit the employer's industrial insurance account when premiums, penalties, or assessments are owing the department. For employers participating in an individual retrospective rating plan, retrospective premium adjustment refunds may be credited to the employer's industrial insurance account when premiums, penalties, or assessments are owing the department.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-18, filed 2/25/86)

WAC 296-17-919 TABLE I.

RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLANS A, A1, A2, A3, AND B
STANDARD PREMIUM SIZE RANGES
Effective January 1, ((1986)) 1989

((Size Group Number Standard Premium Range

84	\$	4,296	=	\$	4,840
83		4,841	=		5,465
82		5,466	=		6,170
81		6,171	=		6,968
80		6,969	=		7,873
79		7,874	=		8,817
78		8,818	=		9,655
77		9,656	=		10,479
76		10,480	=		11,371
75		11,372	=		12,315
74		12,316	=		13,206
73		13,207	=		14,097
72		14,098	=		15,161
71		15,162	=		16,225
70		16,226	=		17,422
69		17,423	=		18,619
68		18,620	=		20,082
67		20,083	=		21,545
66		21,546	=		23,141

((Size Group Number Standard Premium Range

65		23,142	=		24,737
64		24,738	=		26,599
63		26,600	=		28,461
62		28,462	=		30,589
61		30,590	=		32,717
60		32,718	=		35,111
59		35,112	=		37,771
58		37,772	=		40,431
57		40,432	=		43,357
56		43,358	=		46,549
55		46,550	=		49,874
54		49,875	=		53,465
53		53,466	=		57,322
52		57,323	=		61,445
51		61,446	=		65,967
50		65,968	=		70,622
49		70,623	=		75,809
48		75,810	=		81,262
47		81,263	=		87,247
46		87,248	=		93,498
45		93,499	=		100,281
44		100,282	=		107,729
43		107,730	=		116,108
42		116,109	=		125,019
41		125,020	=		134,329
40		134,330	=		144,969
39		144,970	=		156,939
38		156,940	=		168,909
37		168,910	=		182,209
36		182,210	=		196,839
35		196,840	=		215,459
34		215,460	=		232,749
33		232,750	=		252,699
32		252,700	=		275,309
31		275,310	=		299,249
30		299,250	=		324,519
29		324,520	=		352,449
28		352,450	=		384,369
27		384,370	=		417,619
26		417,620	=		454,859
25		454,860	=		494,759
24		494,760	=		538,649
23		538,650	=		586,529
22		586,530	=		638,399
21		638,400	=		694,259
20		694,260	=		756,769
19		756,770	=		823,269
18		823,270	=		897,749
17		897,750	=		977,549
16		977,550	=		1,066,659
15		1,066,660	=		1,210,299
14		1,210,300	=		1,373,889
13		1,373,890	=		1,557,429
12		1,557,430	=		2,080,119
11		2,080,120	=		2,629,409
10		2,629,410	=		3,213,279

((Size Standard
Group Premium
Number Range

Size Standard
Group Premium
Number Range

9	3,213,280	4,016,599
8	4,016,600	5,164,389
7	5,164,390	6,856,149
6	6,856,150	9,581,319
5	9,581,320 & over))	

Size Standard
Group Premium
Number Range

84	\$ 3,090	\$ 3,564
83	3,565	4,092
82	4,093	4,677
81	4,678	5,326
80	5,327	6,042
79	6,043	6,833
78	6,834	7,702
77	7,703	8,657
76	8,658	9,705
75	9,706	10,853
74	10,854	12,108
73	12,109	13,479
72	13,480	14,973
71	14,974	16,601
70	16,602	18,372
69	18,373	20,296
68	20,297	20,855
67	20,856	22,027
66	22,028	23,284
65	23,285	24,634
64	24,635	26,085
63	26,086	27,647
62	27,648	29,330
61	29,331	31,145
60	31,146	33,106
59	33,107	35,227
58	35,228	37,524
57	37,525	40,015
56	40,016	42,720
55	42,721	45,662
54	45,663	48,867
53	48,868	52,364
52	52,365	56,187
51	56,188	60,371
50	60,372	64,960

49	64,961	70,003
48	70,004	75,555
47	75,556	81,679
46	81,680	88,450
45	88,451	95,952
44	95,953	101,375
43	101,376	108,043
42	108,044	115,324
41	115,325	123,292
40	123,293	132,030
39	132,031	141,636
38	141,637	152,223
37	152,224	163,920
36	163,921	176,879
35	176,880	191,278
34	191,279	207,326
33	207,327	225,269
32	225,270	245,402
31	245,403	268,072
30	268,073	293,702
29	293,703	322,796
28	322,797	355,972
27	355,973	393,983
26	393,984	437,757
25	437,758	488,450
24	488,451	547,509
23	547,510	616,761
22	616,762	698,547
21	698,548	795,884
20	795,885	912,721
19	912,722	1,054,287
18	1,054,288	1,227,609
17	1,227,610	1,442,287
16	1,442,288	1,605,217
15	1,605,218	1,791,116
14	1,791,117	1,998,872
13	1,998,873	2,331,328
12	2,331,329	2,741,317
11	2,741,318	3,596,498
10	3,596,499	4,908,374
9	4,908,375	6,392,344
8	6,392,345	8,635,786
7	8,635,787	12,168,325
6	12,168,326	18,231,896
5	18,231,897 & over	

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-10, filed 7/6/88)

WAC 296-17-91901 TABLE II.

RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLAN A
 BASIC PREMIUM RATIOS
 LOSS CONVERSION FACTOR = ((.630)) .729
 Effective ((July 1, 1988)) January 1, 1989

((Maximum Premium Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group	1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
84	.975	.955	.942	.929	.918	.910	.901	.895	.887	.881	.869	.858	.848	.829
83	.973	.954	.938	.924	.912	.902	.894	.886	.879	.872	.860	.848	.838	.817
82	.972	.950	.932	.918	.906	.895	.886	.879	.870	.863	.850	.838	.827	.806
81	.967	.946	.925	.913	.899	.889	.878	.869	.862	.854	.840	.828	.816	.795
80	.966	.940	.921	.906	.891	.881	.870	.862	.853	.845	.830	.818	.806	.781
79	.964	.937	.915	.900	.884	.873	.863	.853	.844	.836	.821	.808	.794	.770
78	.958	.932	.911	.895	.880	.866	.856	.845	.836	.827	.811	.797	.783	.757
77	.957	.929	.905	.888	.873	.862	.848	.839	.827	.819	.802	.787	.772	.746
76	.955	.927	.902	.884	.865	.853	.840	.829	.818	.809	.792	.774	.760	.733
75	.954	.920	.896	.877	.860	.845	.830	.820	.809	.799	.781	.764	.749	.720
74	.948	.918	.892	.869	.852	.837	.823	.811	.800	.790	.770	.754	.737	.708
73	.946	.911	.885	.863	.845	.829	.816	.803	.790	.781	.760	.743	.726	.695
72	.944	.908	.878	.858	.840	.824	.809	.794	.783	.772	.750	.732	.714	.682
71	.938	.901	.874	.850	.831	.814	.799	.785	.772	.761	.739	.721	.701	.667
70	.936	.899	.867	.843	.824	.807	.790	.776	.762	.751	.729	.707	.690	.654
69	.935	.892	.859	.838	.815	.797	.782	.767	.753	.740	.717	.697	.678	.642
68	.928	.884	.855	.829	.807	.789	.772	.756	.742	.731	.707	.684	.664	.628
67	.925	.882	.847	.821	.797	.779	.763	.747	.732	.720	.694	.673	.652	.615
66	.918	.873	.839	.813	.789	.771	.753	.737	.721	.710	.682	.661	.640	.601
65	.917	.870	.835	.805	.783	.762	.744	.728	.712	.698	.671	.648	.628	.589
64	.910	.863	.827	.800	.775	.753	.735	.717	.701	.686	.661	.636	.614	.576
63	.907	.855	.819	.790	.766	.743	.724	.707	.691	.676	.649	.623	.603	.562
62	.900	.851	.810	.783	.756	.734	.715	.697	.681	.665	.636	.610	.589	.549
61	.898	.844	.807	.773	.748	.724	.704	.687	.670	.654	.625	.599	.575	.535
60	.890	.836	.798	.765	.738	.714	.695	.674	.657	.641	.612	.585	.562	.520
59	.888	.833	.790	.756	.730	.705	.684	.663	.646	.629	.598	.572	.549	.506
58	.881	.826	.781	.747	.719	.695	.674	.652	.635	.617	.587	.560	.536	.493
57	.879	.817	.772	.737	.710	.684	.661	.641	.624	.607	.574	.546	.522	.480
56	.871	.813	.763	.729	.700	.674	.650	.631	.609	.592	.561	.534	.509	.466
55	.863	.805	.754	.718	.690	.663	.639	.620	.598	.580	.548	.521	.495	.454
54	.860	.795	.745	.709	.680	.653	.628	.606	.587	.570	.536	.507	.482	.440
53	.851	.786	.736	.699	.665	.639	.617	.594	.572	.554	.522	.495	.470	.427
52	.842	.777	.725	.688	.656	.628	.603	.583	.561	.543	.510	.480	.457	.416
51	.833	.767	.716	.678	.645	.617	.591	.568	.549	.531	.498	.468	.444	.402
50	.825	.758	.706	.667	.633	.606	.580	.556	.534	.517	.483	.456	.429	.389
49	.822	.749	.696	.658	.623	.591	.565	.544	.522	.503	.470	.442	.417	.377
48	.813	.739	.685	.643	.608	.579	.553	.530	.510	.489	.457	.429	.405	.364
47	.803	.729	.675	.631	.596	.568	.541	.517	.495	.477	.444	.417	.390	.352
46	.795	.719	.664	.620	.585	.553	.526	.502	.482	.464	.432	.404	.379	.341
45	.786	.709	.648	.605	.569	.540	.514	.490	.467	.449	.417	.391	.369	.331
44	.775	.694	.638	.593	.556	.524	.499	.478	.455	.437	.406	.380	.357	.320
43	.766	.682	.621	.577	.541	.512	.486	.462	.443	.426	.394	.367	.347	.311
42	.757	.672	.610	.565	.530	.497	.471	.450	.428	.411	.379	.354	.333	.298
41	.747	.662	.600	.554	.514	.485	.459	.435	.415	.398	.367	.342	.320	.285
40	.737	.645	.589	.538	.502	.473	.446	.423	.401	.386	.354	.328	.306	.274
39	.727	.635	.572	.527	.490	.457	.431	.408	.389	.371	.340	.316	.295	.262
38	.717	.625	.561	.511	.474	.445	.419	.394	.376	.356	.328	.303	.282	.250
37	.700	.608	.544	.499	.462	.429	.403	.379	.361	.343	.314	.290	.270	.239
36	.689	.596	.533	.481	.445	.417	.390	.367	.349	.332	.301	.279	.258	.227
35	.671	.578	.515	.469	.428	.400	.375	.354	.334	.316	.289	.266	.247	.217
34	.653	.560	.497	.452	.416	.388	.362	.339	.321	.305	.276	.256	.236	.207
33	.642	.542	.484	.434	.399	.371	.346	.326	.306	.290	.264	.243	.225	.198
32	.623	.523	.466	.422	.386	.355	.334	.312	.294	.279	.253	.232	.215	.189
31	.605	.511	.449	.405	.370	.342	.318	.299	.282	.267	.243	.222	.207	.181
30	.586	.493	.431	.388	.357	.330	.306	.285	.268	.255	.230	.212	.197	.174
29	.568	.475	.418	.374	.340	.314	.291	.273	.257	.243	.220	.203	.189	.167
28	.549	.457	.401	.357	.324	.301	.279	.261	.244	.230	.207	.191	.177	.154
27	.537	.444	.384	.345	.311	.285	.262	.244	.229	.216	.193	.176	.160	.138

((Maximum Premium

Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

26	.519	.427	.371	.329	.295	.269	.249	.228	.215	.201	.178	.161	.145	.124
25	.499	.408	.353	.311	.281	.256	.233	.215	.200	.186	.165	.147	.133	.113
24	.480	.390	.335	.298	.265	.241	.222	.205	.189	.176	.157	.141	.128	.108
23	.454	.371	.317	.280	.253	.229	.210	.194	.179	.168	.149	.134	.122	.104
22	.435	.352	.299	.263	.237	.216	.196	.184	.171	.160	.141	.127	.116	.100
21	.408	.333	.285	.251	.225	.203	.186	.171	.161	.152	.134	.122	.112	.097
20	.388	.314	.268	.234	.209	.190	.174	.161	.151	.141	.125	.114	.105	.091
19	.377	.301	.251	.222	.196	.178	.162	.149	.139	.131	.116	.105	.097	.084
18	.358	.283	.238	.205	.181	.163	.148	.137	.127	.119	.106	.098	.090	.079
17	.339	.265	.221	.189	.169	.152	.137	.127	.117	.110	.098	.090	.083	.074
16	.319	.247	.204	.176	.154	.137	.127	.117	.108	.102	.091	.083	.078	.069
15	.300	.229	.190	.164	.143	.128	.117	.108	.101	.095	.086	.079	.074	.066
14	.291	.217	.174	.154	.134	.123	.112	.103	.097	.091	.083	.078	.072	.065
13	.275	.200	.163	.142	.129	.116	.107	.099	.094	.088	.081	.076	.071	.064
12	.263	.182	.152	.135	.121	.111	.102	.096	.089	.086	.079	.073	.069	.063
11	.246	.162	.138	.126	.114	.105	.098	.092	.086	.083	.076	.071	.068	.062
10	.235	.147	.129	.117	.107	.098	.093	.088	.083	.079	.074	.069	.066	.061
9	.216	.133	.119	.109	.101	.094	.088	.083	.079	.077	.072	.068	.065	.061
8	.189	.122	.111	.102	.095	.088	.083	.079	.077	.074	.069	.066	.063	.060
7	.160	.112	.101	.095	.088	.084	.079	.076	.074	.071	.067	.063	.062	.059
6	.131	.101	.095	.088	.083	.079	.076	.073	.070	.068	.064	.062	.061	.058
5	.131	.093	.087	.081	.078	.075	.071	.069	.067	.065	.062	.061	.059	.057))

Maximum Premium

Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

84	.976	.957	.941	.929	.918	.908	.900	.892	.886	.879	.867	.857	.847	.828
83	.973	.953	.937	.923	.912	.902	.893	.885	.878	.871	.858	.847	.836	.817
82	.971	.949	.932	.917	.905	.895	.886	.877	.870	.862	.849	.838	.826	.806
81	.968	.945	.927	.912	.899	.888	.878	.870	.862	.854	.840	.828	.816	.795
80	.966	.941	.921	.906	.893	.881	.871	.862	.853	.846	.831	.818	.806	.783
79	.963	.937	.916	.900	.886	.874	.863	.854	.845	.837	.822	.808	.795	.771
78	.960	.933	.912	.894	.880	.867	.856	.846	.836	.828	.812	.798	.784	.759
77	.958	.929	.907	.889	.874	.860	.849	.838	.828	.819	.802	.787	.773	.746
76	.956	.925	.902	.883	.867	.853	.841	.829	.819	.810	.792	.776	.761	.734
75	.953	.921	.896	.876	.860	.845	.832	.821	.810	.800	.782	.766	.750	.722
74	.950	.916	.891	.870	.853	.838	.825	.812	.801	.791	.772	.754	.738	.709
73	.947	.912	.885	.864	.846	.830	.816	.804	.792	.781	.762	.743	.727	.696
72	.943	.907	.880	.858	.839	.823	.808	.795	.783	.772	.751	.732	.715	.682
71	.940	.902	.874	.851	.832	.815	.800	.786	.774	.762	.740	.721	.702	.669
70	.937	.897	.868	.844	.824	.807	.791	.777	.764	.752	.730	.709	.690	.656
69	.933	.892	.862	.837	.817	.799	.783	.768	.754	.742	.719	.698	.678	.643
68	.929	.886	.855	.830	.808	.790	.773	.758	.744	.731	.707	.686	.666	.630
67	.925	.880	.848	.822	.800	.781	.764	.748	.734	.721	.696	.674	.654	.618
66	.920	.875	.841	.814	.792	.772	.754	.738	.723	.710	.685	.662	.641	.604
65	.916	.869	.834	.807	.783	.763	.745	.728	.713	.699	.673	.649	.628	.590
64	.911	.863	.827	.799	.775	.754	.735	.718	.702	.688	.661	.637	.615	.576
63	.907	.856	.820	.791	.766	.745	.725	.708	.692	.677	.649	.625	.602	.563
62	.902	.850	.813	.783	.757	.735	.715	.698	.681	.666	.638	.612	.590	.550
61	.897	.844	.805	.774	.748	.726	.705	.687	.670	.654	.625	.600	.577	.536
60	.892	.838	.798	.766	.739	.716	.695	.676	.658	.642	.613	.587	.563	.522
59	.888	.831	.790	.758	.730	.706	.684	.665	.647	.630	.600	.574	.550	.508
58	.883	.825	.783	.749	.720	.696	.674	.654	.635	.618	.588	.561	.537	.495
57	.878	.818	.775	.740	.711	.686	.663	.643	.624	.607	.576	.548	.524	.482
56	.872	.810	.766	.731	.701	.675	.652	.631	.612	.594	.563	.535	.511	.468

Maximum
Premium
Ratio:

1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size
Group

55	.865	.802	.757	.721	.690	.664	.640	.619	.599	.582	.550	.522	.497	.455
54	.858	.794	.747	.710	.679	.652	.628	.607	.587	.569	.537	.509	.484	.442
53	.851	.785	.738	.700	.668	.641	.616	.595	.575	.556	.524	.496	.471	.429
52	.843	.776	.728	.690	.657	.629	.605	.582	.562	.544	.511	.483	.458	.417
51	.836	.767	.718	.679	.646	.618	.592	.570	.550	.531	.498	.470	.446	.405
50	.828	.758	.708	.668	.634	.605	.580	.557	.537	.518	.485	.457	.432	.392
49	.821	.748	.697	.656	.622	.593	.567	.544	.524	.505	.472	.444	.419	.379
48	.813	.739	.686	.645	.610	.581	.555	.531	.511	.492	.459	.431	.406	.367
47	.804	.729	.675	.633	.598	.568	.542	.519	.498	.479	.446	.418	.394	.355
46	.796	.718	.663	.620	.584	.554	.528	.505	.484	.465	.433	.406	.382	.344
45	.787	.707	.650	.607	.571	.541	.514	.491	.471	.452	.420	.394	.371	.334
44	.778	.695	.638	.594	.557	.527	.501	.478	.458	.440	.408	.382	.360	.324
43	.768	.683	.625	.580	.544	.514	.488	.465	.445	.427	.396	.371	.349	.314
42	.758	.671	.612	.567	.530	.500	.474	.451	.431	.413	.383	.357	.336	.301
41	.748	.659	.599	.554	.517	.486	.460	.437	.417	.399	.368	.343	.322	.288
40	.737	.647	.586	.540	.503	.472	.446	.423	.403	.385	.355	.330	.309	.276
39	.726	.635	.573	.526	.489	.458	.432	.409	.389	.372	.342	.317	.296	.264
38	.714	.622	.560	.513	.476	.445	.418	.396	.376	.359	.329	.305	.284	.252
37	.702	.608	.546	.499	.462	.431	.405	.383	.363	.346	.317	.293	.273	.242
36	.688	.594	.532	.485	.448	.417	.392	.369	.350	.333	.304	.281	.262	.231
35	.673	.578	.516	.469	.433	.402	.377	.355	.336	.320	.292	.269	.250	.221
34	.657	.562	.500	.454	.418	.388	.363	.342	.323	.307	.280	.258	.240	.211
33	.640	.546	.484	.439	.403	.374	.349	.329	.310	.295	.268	.247	.229	.202
32	.623	.529	.468	.424	.389	.360	.336	.316	.298	.283	.257	.237	.220	.193
31	.607	.512	.452	.408	.373	.345	.322	.302	.285	.270	.246	.226	.210	.185
30	.589	.495	.435	.392	.358	.331	.308	.289	.273	.259	.235	.216	.201	.178
29	.571	.478	.419	.377	.344	.317	.295	.277	.261	.247	.225	.207	.193	.171
28	.553	.461	.403	.361	.329	.303	.282	.264	.248	.235	.213	.195	.181	.160
27	.537	.446	.388	.346	.314	.288	.267	.248	.233	.219	.197	.179	.165	.143
26	.521	.430	.373	.331	.299	.273	.252	.234	.218	.205	.183	.165	.151	.129
25	.504	.414	.358	.317	.285	.259	.238	.220	.205	.192	.170	.152	.138	.117
24	.482	.394	.339	.300	.269	.245	.225	.208	.194	.181	.161	.145	.132	.113
23	.460	.374	.321	.283	.254	.231	.213	.197	.184	.172	.153	.138	.127	.109
22	.437	.355	.304	.268	.241	.219	.201	.187	.174	.163	.146	.132	.121	.105
21	.414	.336	.288	.254	.228	.208	.191	.177	.166	.156	.139	.127	.117	.102
20	.394	.318	.272	.239	.214	.194	.179	.166	.155	.145	.130	.119	.110	.096
19	.377	.301	.254	.222	.198	.179	.164	.152	.142	.133	.120	.109	.101	.089
18	.358	.283	.238	.207	.184	.166	.152	.140	.131	.123	.110	.101	.094	.083
17	.339	.266	.222	.192	.171	.154	.140	.130	.121	.114	.103	.094	.088	.079
16	.320	.249	.208	.179	.159	.143	.131	.121	.113	.106	.096	.088	.083	.075
15	.303	.234	.194	.168	.148	.134	.122	.113	.106	.100	.091	.084	.079	.072
14	.293	.220	.180	.157	.141	.128	.117	.109	.103	.097	.089	.082	.078	.071
13	.281	.204	.167	.148	.133	.122	.112	.105	.099	.094	.086	.081	.076	.070
12	.269	.187	.156	.139	.126	.116	.108	.101	.096	.091	.084	.079	.075	.069
11	.254	.167	.145	.130	.119	.110	.103	.097	.092	.088	.082	.077	.073	.068
10	.238	.150	.135	.122	.113	.105	.098	.093	.089	.085	.079	.075	.072	.067
9	.219	.138	.125	.115	.106	.100	.094	.089	.085	.082	.077	.073	.071	.066
8	.197	.127	.116	.107	.100	.094	.090	.086	.082	.079	.075	.072	.069	.065
7	.170	.117	.108	.100	.094	.089	.085	.082	.079	.077	.073	.070	.068	.064
6	.137	.107	.100	.094	.089	.085	.081	.078	.076	.074	.071	.068	.066	.064
5	.105	.098	.092	.087	.083	.080	.077	.075	.073	.071	.068	.066	.065	.063

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-10, filed 7/6/88)

WAC 296-17-91902 TABLE III.

RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLAN B
 BASIC PREMIUM RATIOS
 AND LOSS CONVERSION FACTORS
 Effective ((July 1, 1988)) January 1, 1989

((Maximum Premium Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size
 Group

Size Group		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
84	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.996	.994	.992	.991	.989	.987	.985	.983	.981	.977	.973	.970	.962
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.004	.006	.008	.009	.011	.013	.015	.017	.019	.023	.027	.030	.038
83	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.996	.994	.992	.990	.987	.985	.983	.981	.979	.975	.971	.967	.958
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.004	.006	.008	.010	.013	.015	.017	.019	.021	.025	.029	.033	.042
82	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.995	.993	.991	.989	.986	.984	.982	.980	.977	.973	.968	.964	.955
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.005	.007	.009	.011	.014	.016	.018	.020	.023	.027	.032	.036	.045
81	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.995	.993	.990	.988	.985	.983	.980	.978	.975	.970	.965	.960	.951
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.005	.007	.010	.012	.015	.017	.020	.022	.025	.030	.035	.040	.049
80	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.995	.992	.989	.987	.984	.981	.979	.976	.973	.968	.963	.957	.947
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.005	.008	.011	.013	.016	.019	.021	.024	.027	.032	.037	.043	.053
79	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.994	.991	.989	.986	.983	.980	.977	.974	.972	.966	.960	.954	.943
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.006	.009	.011	.014	.017	.020	.023	.026	.028	.034	.040	.046	.057
78	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.994	.991	.987	.984	.981	.978	.975	.972	.969	.962	.956	.950	.937
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.006	.009	.013	.016	.019	.022	.025	.028	.031	.038	.044	.050	.063
77	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.993	.989	.986	.982	.979	.975	.972	.968	.965	.957	.950	.943	.929
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.007	.011	.014	.018	.021	.025	.028	.032	.035	.043	.050	.057	.071
76	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.993	.989	.985	.981	.978	.974	.970	.966	.963	.955	.948	.940	.925
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.007	.011	.015	.019	.022	.026	.030	.034	.037	.045	.052	.060	.075
75	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.992	.988	.984	.980	.977	.973	.969	.965	.961	.953	.945	.937	.922
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.008	.012	.016	.020	.023	.027	.031	.035	.039	.047	.055	.063	.078
74	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.991	.987	.983	.978	.974	.970	.965	.961	.957	.948	.940	.931	.914
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.009	.013	.017	.022	.026	.030	.035	.039	.043	.052	.060	.069	.086
73	Basic Premium Ratio	.995	.991	.986	.981	.976	.972	.967	.962	.957	.953	.943	.934	.924	.905
	Loss Conversion Factor	.005	.009	.014	.019	.024	.028	.033	.038	.043	.047	.057	.066	.076	.095
72	Basic Premium Ratio	.995	.989	.984	.979	.973	.968	.963	.958	.952	.947	.936	.926	.915	.894
	Loss Conversion Factor	.005	.011	.016	.021	.027	.032	.037	.042	.048	.053	.064	.074	.085	.106
71	Basic Premium Ratio	.994	.988	.982	.976	.970	.964	.958	.952	.946	.940	.928	.916	.904	.881
	Loss Conversion Factor	.006	.012	.018	.024	.030	.036	.042	.048	.054	.060	.072	.084	.096	.119
70	Basic Premium Ratio	.993	.987	.980	.973	.967	.960	.953	.947	.940	.933	.920	.906	.893	.866
	Loss Conversion Factor	.007	.013	.020	.027	.033	.040	.047	.053	.060	.067	.080	.094	.107	.134
69	Basic Premium Ratio	.993	.986	.978	.971	.964	.957	.949	.942	.935	.928	.913	.899	.884	.855
	Loss Conversion Factor	.007	.014	.022	.029	.036	.043	.051	.058	.065	.072	.087	.101	.116	.145
68	Basic Premium Ratio	.992	.985	.977	.969	.961	.954	.946	.938	.931	.923	.907	.892	.876	.846
	Loss Conversion Factor	.008	.015	.023	.031	.039	.046	.054	.062	.069	.077	.093	.108	.124	.154
67	Basic Premium Ratio	.992	.984	.975	.967	.959	.951	.942	.934	.926	.918	.901	.885	.869	.836
	Loss Conversion Factor	.008	.016	.025	.033	.041	.049	.058	.066	.074	.082	.099	.115	.131	.164
66	Basic Premium Ratio	.991	.982	.973	.964	.956	.947	.938	.929	.920	.911	.893	.876	.858	.822
	Loss Conversion Factor	.009	.018	.027	.036	.044	.053	.062	.071	.080	.089	.107	.124	.142	.178
65	Basic Premium Ratio	.990	.981	.971	.962	.952	.942	.933	.923	.913	.904	.885	.865	.846	.808
	Loss Conversion Factor	.010	.019	.029	.038	.048	.058	.067	.077	.087	.096	.115	.135	.154	.192
64	Basic Premium Ratio	.990	.979	.969	.958	.948	.938	.927	.917	.907	.896	.875	.855	.834	.792
	Loss Conversion Factor	.010	.021	.031	.042	.052	.062	.073	.083	.093	.104	.125	.145	.166	.208
63	Basic Premium Ratio	.989	.978	.966	.955	.944	.933	.922	.910	.899	.888	.866	.843	.821	.776
	Loss Conversion Factor	.011	.022	.034	.045	.056	.067	.078	.090	.101	.112	.134	.157	.179	.224
62	Basic Premium Ratio	.988	.976	.964	.952	.940	.928	.916	.904	.892	.880	.856	.832	.808	.759
	Loss Conversion Factor	.012	.024	.036	.048	.060	.072	.084	.096	.108	.120	.144	.168	.192	.241
61	Basic Premium Ratio	.987	.974	.961	.948	.935	.922	.909	.896	.883	.870	.844	.818	.792	.740
	Loss Conversion Factor	.013	.026	.039	.052	.065	.078	.091	.104	.117	.130	.156	.182	.208	.260

		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
((Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
60	Basic Premium Ratio	.986	.972	.958	.944	.929	.915	.901	.887	.873	.859	.831	.803	.774	.718
	Loss Conversion Factor	.014	.028	.042	.056	.071	.085	.099	.113	.127	.141	.169	.197	.226	.282
59	Basic Premium Ratio	.985	.970	.954	.939	.924	.909	.893	.878	.863	.848	.817	.787	.757	.696
	Loss Conversion Factor	.015	.030	.046	.061	.076	.091	.107	.122	.137	.152	.183	.213	.243	.304
58	Basic Premium Ratio	.984	.967	.951	.934	.918	.901	.885	.869	.852	.836	.803	.770	.737	.672
	Loss Conversion Factor	.016	.033	.049	.066	.082	.099	.115	.131	.148	.164	.197	.230	.263	.328
57	Basic Premium Ratio	.982	.965	.947	.929	.911	.894	.876	.858	.840	.823	.787	.752	.716	.645
	Loss Conversion Factor	.018	.035	.053	.071	.089	.106	.124	.142	.160	.177	.213	.248	.284	.355
56	Basic Premium Ratio	.981	.962	.943	.924	.905	.886	.867	.848	.829	.809	.771	.733	.695	.619
	Loss Conversion Factor	.019	.038	.057	.076	.095	.114	.133	.152	.171	.191	.229	.267	.305	.381
55	Basic Premium Ratio	.980	.960	.939	.919	.899	.879	.859	.838	.818	.798	.757	.717	.677	.596
	Loss Conversion Factor	.020	.040	.061	.081	.101	.121	.141	.162	.182	.202	.243	.283	.323	.404
54	Basic Premium Ratio	.978	.957	.935	.914	.892	.871	.849	.828	.806	.785	.742	.699	.656	.570
	Loss Conversion Factor	.022	.043	.065	.086	.108	.129	.151	.172	.194	.215	.258	.301	.344	.430
53	Basic Premium Ratio	.977	.954	.931	.908	.885	.862	.839	.816	.793	.770	.724	.678	.632	.540
	Loss Conversion Factor	.023	.046	.069	.092	.115	.138	.161	.184	.207	.230	.276	.322	.368	.460
52	Basic Premium Ratio	.975	.951	.926	.902	.877	.853	.828	.804	.779	.755	.706	.656	.607	.509
	Loss Conversion Factor	.025	.049	.074	.098	.123	.147	.172	.196	.221	.245	.294	.344	.393	.491
51	Basic Premium Ratio	.974	.947	.921	.895	.869	.842	.816	.790	.763	.737	.685	.632	.579	.474
	Loss Conversion Factor	.026	.053	.079	.105	.131	.158	.184	.210	.237	.263	.315	.368	.421	.526
50	Basic Premium Ratio	.972	.944	.915	.887	.859	.831	.803	.775	.746	.718	.662	.606	.549	.436
	Loss Conversion Factor	.028	.056	.085	.113	.141	.169	.197	.225	.254	.282	.338	.394	.451	.564
49	Basic Premium Ratio	.970	.939	.909	.879	.848	.818	.787	.757	.727	.696	.636	.575	.514	.393
	Loss Conversion Factor	.030	.061	.091	.121	.152	.182	.213	.243	.273	.304	.364	.425	.486	.607
48	Basic Premium Ratio	.968	.935	.903	.870	.838	.805	.773	.740	.708	.676	.611	.546	.481	.351
	Loss Conversion Factor	.032	.065	.097	.130	.162	.195	.227	.260	.292	.324	.389	.454	.519	.649
47	Basic Premium Ratio	.965	.930	.896	.861	.826	.791	.756	.721	.687	.652	.582	.513	.443	.304
	Loss Conversion Factor	.035	.070	.104	.139	.174	.209	.244	.279	.313	.348	.418	.487	.557	.696
46	Basic Premium Ratio	.963	.926	.889	.851	.814	.777	.740	.703	.666	.628	.554	.480	.406	.257
	Loss Conversion Factor	.037	.074	.111	.149	.186	.223	.260	.297	.334	.372	.446	.520	.594	.743
45	Basic Premium Ratio	.960	.921	.881	.842	.802	.762	.723	.683	.644	.604	.525	.446	.367	.208
	Loss Conversion Factor	.040	.079	.119	.158	.198	.238	.277	.317	.356	.396	.475	.554	.633	.792
44	Basic Premium Ratio	.958	.915	.873	.831	.788	.746	.704	.661	.619	.576	.492	.407	.322	.153
	Loss Conversion Factor	.042	.085	.127	.169	.212	.254	.296	.339	.381	.424	.508	.593	.678	.847
43	Basic Premium Ratio	.954	.909	.863	.818	.772	.727	.681	.636	.590	.545	.453	.362	.271	.089
	Loss Conversion Factor	.046	.091	.137	.182	.228	.273	.319	.364	.410	.455	.547	.638	.729	.911
42	Basic Premium Ratio	.951	.901	.852	.803	.754	.704	.655	.606	.557	.507	.409	.310	.212	.015
	Loss Conversion Factor	.049	.099	.148	.197	.246	.296	.345	.394	.443	.493	.591	.690	.788	.985
41	Basic Premium Ratio	.946	.893	.839	.785	.732	.678	.625	.571	.517	.464	.356	.249	.142	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.054	.107	.161	.215	.268	.322	.375	.429	.483	.536	.644	.751	.858	.974
40	Basic Premium Ratio	.942	.884	.827	.769	.711	.653	.595	.537	.480	.422	.306	.190	.075	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.058	.116	.173	.231	.289	.347	.405	.463	.520	.578	.694	.810	.925	.948
39	Basic Premium Ratio	.937	.875	.812	.749	.686	.624	.561	.498	.435	.373	.247	.122	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.063	.125	.188	.251	.314	.376	.439	.502	.565	.627	.753	.878	.995	.924
38	Basic Premium Ratio	.932	.865	.797	.729	.662	.594	.527	.459	.391	.324	.188	.053	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.068	.135	.203	.271	.338	.406	.473	.541	.609	.676	.812	.947	.968	.903
37	Basic Premium Ratio	.926	.853	.779	.706	.632	.558	.485	.411	.337	.264	.117	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.074	.147	.221	.294	.368	.442	.515	.589	.663	.736	.883	.988	.944	.884
36	Basic Premium Ratio	.920	.840	.760	.680	.599	.519	.439	.359	.279	.199	.039	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.080	.160	.240	.320	.401	.481	.561	.641	.721	.801	.961	.961	.921	.866
35	Basic Premium Ratio	.913	.826	.739	.652	.564	.477	.390	.303	.216	.129	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.087	.174	.261	.348	.436	.523	.610	.697	.784	.871	.983	.935	.899	.848
34	Basic Premium Ratio	.905	.809	.714	.618	.523	.427	.332	.236	.141	.045	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.095	.191	.286	.382	.477	.573	.668	.764	.859	.955	.955	.911	.879	.833
33	Basic Premium Ratio	.896	.791	.687	.582	.478	.373	.269	.164	.060	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.104	.209	.313	.418	.522	.627	.731	.836	.940	.985	.930	.891	.861	.819

		((Maximum Premium Ratio:)													
		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
32	Basic Premium Ratio	.886	.772	.658	.544	.430	.316	.202	.088	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.114	.228	.342	.456	.570	.684	.798	.912	.991	.958	.908	.872	.844	.806
31	Basic Premium Ratio	.875	.749	.624	.498	.373	.247	.122	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.125	.251	.376	.502	.627	.753	.878	.997	.961	.931	.886	.854	.829	.794
30	Basic Premium Ratio	.861	.723	.584	.446	.307	.169	.030	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.139	.277	.416	.554	.693	.831	.970	.967	.935	.908	.867	.838	.815	.784
29	Basic Premium Ratio	.847	.694	.541	.389	.236	.083	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.153	.306	.459	.611	.764	.917	.978	.941	.911	.887	.850	.823	.803	.775
28	Basic Premium Ratio	.831	.662	.494	.325	.156	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.169	.338	.506	.675	.844	.993	.950	.916	.889	.866	.832	.807	.789	.762
27	Basic Premium Ratio	.812	.624	.436	.249	.061	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.188	.376	.564	.751	.939	.963	.922	.891	.865	.844	.812	.789	.771	.745
26	Basic Premium Ratio	.791	.582	.373	.164	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.209	.418	.627	.836	.985	.935	.898	.868	.844	.825	.794	.772	.755	.731
25	Basic Premium Ratio	.764	.528	.293	.057	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.236	.472	.707	.943	.955	.910	.875	.847	.825	.807	.779	.758	.742	.720
24	Basic Premium Ratio	.730	.461	.191	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.270	.539	.809	.978	.923	.883	.852	.828	.808	.792	.767	.749	.735	.715
23	Basic Premium Ratio	.689	.379	.068	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.311	.621	.932	.944	.895	.859	.832	.811	.793	.779	.757	.741	.728	.711
22	Basic Premium Ratio	.637	.275	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.363	.725	.977	.914	.871	.839	.815	.796	.780	.768	.748	.734	.722	.707
21	Basic Premium Ratio	.566	.133	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.434	.867	.943	.888	.850	.822	.800	.783	.769	.758	.740	.727	.717	.703
20	Basic Premium Ratio	.488	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.512	.992	.913	.864	.829	.804	.784	.769	.756	.746	.730	.719	.710	.698
19	Basic Premium Ratio	.411	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.589	.960	.887	.840	.809	.785	.768	.754	.743	.734	.720	.710	.702	.691
18	Basic Premium Ratio	.305	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.695	.930	.862	.819	.790	.769	.753	.741	.731	.723	.711	.702	.695	.686
17	Basic Premium Ratio	.154	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.846	.901	.839	.801	.775	.756	.741	.730	.721	.714	.703	.696	.690	.682
16	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.984	.875	.819	.784	.761	.744	.731	.721	.713	.707	.697	.691	.686	.679
15	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.952	.852	.801	.770	.749	.734	.722	.714	.707	.701	.693	.687	.683	.677
14	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.938	.836	.783	.757	.740	.727	.717	.709	.703	.698	.691	.685	.681	.676
13	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.922	.819	.764	.745	.731	.720	.712	.705	.700	.695	.688	.684	.680	.675
12	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.905	.800	.751	.735	.724	.714	.707	.701	.696	.692	.686	.682	.679	.674
11	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.887	.779	.739	.727	.717	.709	.703	.697	.693	.690	.684	.680	.678	.673
10	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.866	.755	.729	.719	.710	.704	.698	.694	.690	.687	.682	.679	.676	.673
9	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.844	.731	.720	.711	.704	.699	.694	.690	.687	.685	.680	.677	.675	.672
8	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.818	.720	.712	.705	.699	.694	.690	.687	.684	.682	.679	.676	.674	.671
7	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.788	.711	.704	.699	.694	.690	.687	.684	.682	.680	.677	.674	.673	.670
6	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.753	.703	.697	.693	.689	.686	.683	.681	.679	.677	.675	.673	.672	.669
5	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.710	.695	.691	.687	.684	.682	.680	.678	.677	.675	.673	.672	.670	.669))

Maximum Premium Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

84	Basic Premium Ratio	.999	.997	.996	.994	.993	.991	.990	.988	.987	.985	.982	.979	.976	.970
	Loss Conversion Factor	.001	.003	.004	.006	.007	.009	.010	.012	.013	.015	.018	.021	.024	.030
83	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.997	.995	.993	.992	.990	.989	.987	.985	.984	.980	.977	.974	.967
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.003	.005	.007	.008	.010	.011	.013	.015	.016	.020	.023	.026	.033
82	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.996	.995	.993	.991	.989	.988	.986	.984	.982	.979	.975	.972	.965
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.004	.005	.007	.009	.011	.012	.014	.016	.018	.021	.025	.028	.035
81	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.996	.994	.992	.990	.989	.987	.985	.983	.981	.977	.973	.969	.962
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.004	.006	.008	.010	.011	.013	.015	.017	.019	.023	.027	.031	.038
80	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.996	.994	.992	.990	.988	.986	.984	.982	.980	.976	.972	.967	.959
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.004	.006	.008	.010	.012	.014	.016	.018	.020	.024	.028	.033	.041
79	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.996	.994	.991	.989	.987	.985	.983	.981	.979	.974	.970	.966	.957
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.004	.006	.009	.011	.013	.015	.017	.019	.021	.026	.030	.034	.043
78	Basic Premium Ratio	.998	.995	.993	.991	.988	.986	.984	.981	.979	.977	.972	.967	.963	.953
	Loss Conversion Factor	.002	.005	.007	.009	.012	.014	.016	.019	.021	.023	.028	.033	.037	.047
77	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.995	.992	.990	.987	.984	.982	.979	.977	.974	.969	.964	.958	.948
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.005	.008	.010	.013	.016	.018	.021	.023	.026	.031	.036	.042	.052
76	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.995	.992	.989	.987	.984	.981	.978	.976	.973	.968	.962	.957	.946
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.005	.008	.011	.013	.016	.019	.022	.024	.027	.032	.038	.043	.054
75	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.994	.992	.989	.986	.983	.981	.978	.975	.972	.967	.961	.956	.945
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.006	.008	.011	.014	.017	.019	.022	.025	.028	.033	.039	.044	.055
74	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.994	.991	.988	.985	.982	.979	.976	.973	.970	.964	.958	.952	.940
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.006	.009	.012	.015	.018	.021	.024	.027	.030	.036	.042	.048	.060
73	Basic Premium Ratio	.997	.994	.990	.987	.984	.981	.977	.974	.971	.968	.961	.955	.948	.936
	Loss Conversion Factor	.003	.006	.010	.013	.016	.019	.023	.026	.029	.032	.039	.045	.052	.064
72	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.993	.989	.986	.982	.979	.975	.972	.968	.965	.957	.950	.943	.929
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.007	.011	.014	.018	.021	.025	.028	.032	.035	.043	.050	.057	.071
71	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.992	.988	.984	.980	.976	.972	.969	.965	.961	.953	.945	.937	.921
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.008	.012	.016	.020	.024	.028	.031	.035	.039	.047	.055	.063	.079
70	Basic Premium Ratio	.996	.991	.987	.983	.978	.974	.970	.965	.961	.957	.948	.939	.931	.913
	Loss Conversion Factor	.004	.009	.013	.017	.022	.026	.030	.035	.039	.043	.052	.061	.069	.087
69	Basic Premium Ratio	.995	.991	.986	.981	.977	.972	.967	.963	.958	.953	.944	.935	.925	.907
	Loss Conversion Factor	.005	.009	.014	.019	.023	.028	.033	.037	.042	.047	.056	.065	.075	.093
68	Basic Premium Ratio	.995	.990	.985	.981	.976	.971	.966	.961	.956	.952	.942	.932	.923	.903
	Loss Conversion Factor	.005	.010	.015	.019	.024	.029	.034	.039	.044	.048	.058	.068	.077	.097
67	Basic Premium Ratio	.995	.990	.985	.980	.975	.970	.965	.959	.954	.949	.939	.929	.919	.899
	Loss Conversion Factor	.005	.010	.015	.020	.025	.030	.035	.041	.046	.051	.061	.071	.081	.101
66	Basic Premium Ratio	.995	.989	.984	.978	.973	.967	.962	.956	.951	.946	.935	.924	.913	.891
	Loss Conversion Factor	.005	.011	.016	.022	.027	.033	.038	.044	.049	.054	.065	.076	.087	.109
65	Basic Premium Ratio	.994	.988	.982	.976	.971	.965	.959	.953	.947	.941	.929	.917	.906	.882
	Loss Conversion Factor	.006	.012	.018	.024	.029	.035	.041	.047	.053	.059	.071	.083	.094	.118
64	Basic Premium Ratio	.994	.987	.981	.974	.968	.962	.955	.949	.942	.936	.923	.910	.898	.872
	Loss Conversion Factor	.006	.013	.019	.026	.032	.038	.045	.051	.058	.064	.077	.090	.102	.128
63	Basic Premium Ratio	.993	.986	.979	.972	.965	.958	.951	.944	.938	.931	.917	.903	.889	.861
	Loss Conversion Factor	.007	.014	.021	.028	.035	.042	.049	.056	.062	.069	.083	.097	.111	.139
62	Basic Premium Ratio	.992	.985	.977	.970	.962	.954	.947	.939	.931	.924	.909	.893	.878	.848
	Loss Conversion Factor	.008	.015	.023	.030	.038	.046	.053	.061	.069	.076	.091	.107	.122	.152

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
61	Basic Premium Ratio	.992	.983	.975	.967	.959	.950	.942	.934	.926	.917	.901	.884	.868	.835
	Loss Conversion Factor	.008	.017	.025	.033	.041	.050	.058	.066	.074	.083	.099	.116	.132	.165
60	Basic Premium Ratio	.991	.982	.973	.964	.955	.946	.937	.928	.919	.910	.892	.874	.856	.819
	Loss Conversion Factor	.009	.018	.027	.036	.045	.054	.063	.072	.081	.090	.108	.126	.144	.181
59	Basic Premium Ratio	.990	.980	.971	.961	.951	.941	.931	.921	.912	.902	.882	.862	.843	.803
	Loss Conversion Factor	.010	.020	.029	.039	.049	.059	.069	.079	.088	.098	.118	.138	.157	.197
58	Basic Premium Ratio	.989	.979	.968	.957	.947	.936	.926	.915	.904	.894	.872	.851	.830	.787
	Loss Conversion Factor	.011	.021	.032	.043	.053	.064	.074	.085	.096	.106	.128	.149	.170	.213
57	Basic Premium Ratio	.989	.977	.966	.954	.943	.931	.920	.908	.897	.886	.863	.840	.817	.771
	Loss Conversion Factor	.011	.023	.034	.046	.057	.069	.080	.092	.103	.114	.137	.160	.183	.229
56	Basic Premium Ratio	.988	.976	.963	.951	.939	.927	.914	.902	.890	.878	.853	.829	.805	.756
	Loss Conversion Factor	.012	.024	.037	.049	.061	.073	.086	.098	.110	.122	.147	.171	.195	.244
55	Basic Premium Ratio	.987	.974	.961	.948	.935	.922	.909	.896	.883	.870	.844	.818	.792	.741
	Loss Conversion Factor	.013	.026	.039	.052	.065	.078	.091	.104	.117	.130	.156	.182	.208	.259
54	Basic Premium Ratio	.986	.972	.959	.945	.931	.917	.904	.890	.876	.862	.835	.807	.780	.724
	Loss Conversion Factor	.014	.028	.041	.055	.069	.083	.096	.110	.124	.138	.165	.193	.220	.276
53	Basic Premium Ratio	.985	.971	.956	.941	.927	.912	.898	.883	.868	.854	.824	.795	.766	.707
	Loss Conversion Factor	.015	.029	.044	.059	.073	.088	.102	.117	.132	.146	.176	.205	.234	.293
52	Basic Premium Ratio	.984	.969	.953	.938	.922	.907	.891	.876	.860	.845	.814	.783	.752	.690
	Loss Conversion Factor	.016	.031	.047	.062	.078	.093	.109	.124	.140	.155	.186	.217	.248	.310
51	Basic Premium Ratio	.983	.967	.950	.934	.917	.901	.884	.868	.851	.835	.802	.769	.735	.669
	Loss Conversion Factor	.017	.033	.050	.066	.083	.099	.116	.132	.149	.165	.198	.231	.265	.331
50	Basic Premium Ratio	.982	.965	.947	.929	.911	.894	.876	.858	.841	.823	.787	.752	.717	.646
	Loss Conversion Factor	.018	.035	.053	.071	.089	.106	.124	.142	.159	.177	.213	.248	.283	.354
49	Basic Premium Ratio	.981	.962	.943	.924	.905	.886	.867	.848	.829	.810	.772	.734	.696	.621
	Loss Conversion Factor	.019	.038	.057	.076	.095	.114	.133	.152	.171	.190	.228	.266	.304	.379
48	Basic Premium Ratio	.980	.959	.939	.919	.898	.878	.858	.837	.817	.797	.756	.716	.675	.594
	Loss Conversion Factor	.020	.041	.061	.081	.102	.122	.142	.163	.183	.203	.244	.284	.325	.406
47	Basic Premium Ratio	.978	.957	.935	.913	.891	.870	.848	.826	.805	.783	.740	.696	.653	.566
	Loss Conversion Factor	.022	.043	.065	.087	.109	.130	.152	.174	.195	.217	.260	.304	.347	.434
46	Basic Premium Ratio	.977	.954	.931	.908	.885	.862	.839	.816	.793	.770	.724	.677	.631	.539
	Loss Conversion Factor	.023	.046	.069	.092	.115	.138	.161	.184	.207	.230	.276	.323	.369	.461
45	Basic Premium Ratio	.976	.951	.927	.902	.878	.854	.829	.805	.780	.756	.707	.658	.609	.512
	Loss Conversion Factor	.024	.049	.073	.098	.122	.146	.171	.195	.220	.244	.293	.342	.391	.488
44	Basic Premium Ratio	.974	.948	.922	.897	.871	.845	.819	.793	.767	.742	.690	.638	.587	.483
	Loss Conversion Factor	.026	.052	.078	.103	.129	.155	.181	.207	.233	.258	.310	.362	.413	.517
43	Basic Premium Ratio	.973	.945	.918	.891	.863	.836	.809	.781	.754	.727	.672	.617	.562	.453
	Loss Conversion Factor	.027	.055	.082	.109	.137	.164	.191	.219	.246	.273	.328	.383	.438	.547
42	Basic Premium Ratio	.970	.941	.911	.881	.852	.822	.792	.763	.733	.703	.644	.585	.525	.406
	Loss Conversion Factor	.030	.059	.089	.119	.148	.178	.208	.237	.267	.297	.356	.415	.475	.594
41	Basic Premium Ratio	.968	.935	.903	.870	.838	.806	.773	.741	.708	.676	.611	.546	.481	.352
	Loss Conversion Factor	.032	.065	.097	.130	.162	.194	.227	.259	.292	.324	.389	.454	.519	.648
40	Basic Premium Ratio	.965	.929	.894	.859	.823	.788	.753	.718	.682	.647	.576	.506	.435	.294
	Loss Conversion Factor	.035	.071	.106	.141	.177	.212	.247	.282	.318	.353	.424	.494	.565	.706

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
39	Basic Premium Ratio	.962	.923	.885	.847	.808	.770	.732	.693	.655	.616	.540	.463	.386	.233
	Loss Conversion Factor	.038	.077	.115	.153	.192	.230	.268	.307	.345	.384	.460	.537	.614	.767
38	Basic Premium Ratio	.958	.917	.875	.834	.792	.751	.709	.668	.626	.585	.502	.419	.336	.170
	Loss Conversion Factor	.042	.083	.125	.166	.208	.249	.291	.332	.374	.415	.498	.581	.664	.830
37	Basic Premium Ratio	.955	.910	.865	.820	.776	.731	.686	.641	.596	.551	.461	.371	.282	.102
	Loss Conversion Factor	.045	.090	.135	.180	.224	.269	.314	.359	.404	.449	.539	.629	.718	.898
36	Basic Premium Ratio	.951	.903	.854	.806	.757	.709	.660	.612	.563	.514	.417	.320	.223	.029
	Loss Conversion Factor	.049	.097	.146	.194	.243	.291	.340	.388	.437	.486	.583	.680	.777	.971
35	Basic Premium Ratio	.947	.895	.842	.789	.736	.684	.631	.578	.525	.473	.367	.262	.156	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.053	.105	.158	.211	.264	.316	.369	.422	.475	.527	.633	.738	.844	.987
34	Basic Premium Ratio	.943	.886	.829	.771	.714	.657	.600	.543	.486	.428	.314	.200	.085	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.057	.114	.171	.229	.286	.343	.400	.457	.514	.572	.686	.800	.915	.969
33	Basic Premium Ratio	.938	.876	.814	.752	.690	.628	.567	.505	.443	.381	.257	.133	.009	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.062	.124	.186	.248	.310	.372	.433	.495	.557	.619	.743	.867	.991	.953
32	Basic Premium Ratio	.933	.866	.799	.732	.665	.598	.531	.463	.396	.329	.195	.061	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.067	.134	.201	.268	.335	.402	.469	.537	.604	.671	.805	.939	.984	.939
31	Basic Premium Ratio	.927	.854	.781	.707	.634	.561	.488	.415	.342	.268	.122	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.073	.146	.219	.293	.366	.439	.512	.585	.658	.732	.878	.994	.965	.925
30	Basic Premium Ratio	.920	.840	.760	.680	.600	.520	.440	.360	.280	.200	.040	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.080	.160	.240	.320	.400	.480	.560	.640	.720	.800	.960	.975	.949	.913
29	Basic Premium Ratio	.913	.826	.739	.651	.564	.477	.390	.303	.216	.128	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.087	.174	.261	.349	.436	.523	.610	.697	.784	.872	.990	.958	.935	.902
28	Basic Premium Ratio	.904	.807	.711	.615	.519	.422	.326	.230	.134	.037	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.096	.193	.289	.385	.481	.578	.674	.770	.866	.963	.969	.940	.918	.887
27	Basic Premium Ratio	.892	.785	.677	.570	.462	.355	.247	.140	.032	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.108	.215	.323	.430	.538	.645	.753	.860	.968	.983	.946	.918	.897	.868
26	Basic Premium Ratio	.881	.761	.642	.522	.403	.283	.164	.044	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.119	.239	.358	.478	.597	.717	.836	.956	.983	.960	.925	.899	.879	.851
25	Basic Premium Ratio	.868	.736	.604	.472	.340	.208	.075	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.132	.264	.396	.528	.660	.792	.925	.987	.961	.940	.907	.883	.864	.838
24	Basic Premium Ratio	.852	.705	.557	.409	.261	.114	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.148	.295	.443	.591	.739	.886	.992	.964	.941	.922	.893	.872	.855	.832
23	Basic Premium Ratio	.835	.669	.504	.338	.173	.008	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.165	.331	.496	.662	.827	.992	.969	.944	.924	.907	.881	.862	.848	.827
22	Basic Premium Ratio	.814	.628	.442	.256	.070	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.186	.372	.558	.744	.930	.978	.949	.927	.909	.894	.871	.854	.841	.823
21	Basic Premium Ratio	.790	.579	.369	.159	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.210	.421	.631	.841	.990	.957	.932	.912	.896	.882	.862	.847	.835	.818
20	Basic Premium Ratio	.758	.516	.274	.032	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.242	.484	.726	.968	.966	.936	.913	.895	.881	.869	.851	.837	.827	.812
19	Basic Premium Ratio	.720	.439	.159	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.280	.561	.841	.979	.942	.915	.894	.878	.865	.854	.838	.826	.817	.805
18	Basic Premium Ratio	.672	.344	.016	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.328	.656	.984	.954	.920	.896	.877	.863	.851	.842	.827	.817	.810	.799

Maximum Premium Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

17	Basic Premium Ratio	.617	.234	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	
	Loss Conversion Factor	.383	.766	.977	.932	.902	.879	.863	.850	.839	.831	.819	.810	.803	.794
16	Basic Premium Ratio	.550	.100	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.450	.900	.953	.913	.885	.865	.851	.839	.830	.823	.812	.804	.798	.790
15	Basic Premium Ratio	.477	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.523	.992	.932	.896	.872	.854	.841	.831	.822	.816	.806	.799	.794	.788
14	Basic Premium Ratio	.414	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.586	.973	.912	.881	.861	.846	.834	.825	.818	.812	.804	.797	.793	.787
13	Basic Premium Ratio	.344	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.656	.953	.889	.867	.851	.838	.828	.821	.814	.809	.801	.796	.791	.786
12	Basic Premium Ratio	.256	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.744	.931	.874	.856	.842	.831	.823	.816	.810	.806	.799	.794	.790	.785
11	Basic Premium Ratio	.159	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.841	.906	.860	.846	.834	.825	.818	.812	.807	.803	.796	.792	.788	.784
10	Basic Premium Ratio	.032	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.968	.879	.848	.836	.827	.819	.813	.807	.803	.800	.794	.790	.787	.783
9	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.982	.850	.838	.828	.820	.813	.808	.803	.800	.797	.792	.788	.786	.782
8	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.952	.838	.828	.820	.813	.808	.803	.800	.796	.794	.790	.787	.784	.781
7	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.917	.828	.820	.813	.807	.803	.799	.796	.793	.791	.788	.785	.783	.780
6	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.876	.818	.812	.806	.802	.798	.795	.792	.790	.788	.785	.783	.782	.779
5	Basic Premium Ratio	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000
	Loss Conversion Factor	.826	.809	.804	.800	.797	.794	.791	.789	.787	.786	.783	.782	.780	.778

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-10, filed 7/6/88)

WAC 296-17-91903 TABLE IV.

RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLAN A1
 MINIMUM PREMIUM RATIOS
 BASIC PREMIUM RATIO = ((.052)) .058
 LOSS CONVERSION FACTOR = ((.630)) .729
 Effective ((July 1, 1988)) January 1, 1989

((Maximum Premium Ratio:

1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

84	.996	.990	.986	.982	.978	.973	.969	.966	.961	.957	.949	.941	.933	.919
83	.996	.989	.985	.981	.976	.971	.967	.963	.958	.954	.945	.936	.928	.913
82	.995	.989	.984	.979	.974	.969	.964	.960	.955	.950	.941	.932	.924	.908
81	.995	.988	.983	.978	.973	.966	.962	.957	.952	.947	.937	.927	.919	.902
80	.995	.987	.981	.976	.971	.964	.959	.955	.949	.944	.934	.923	.914	.896
79	.994	.986	.980	.975	.969	.962	.957	.952	.946	.940	.930	.919	.909	.891
78	.994	.985	.979	.973	.967	.960	.954	.949	.943	.937	.926	.914	.904	.885
77	.993	.984	.978	.972	.965	.958	.952	.946	.940	.933	.922	.910	.900	.880

((Maximum Premium

Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

76	.993	.984	.977	.970	.964	.956	.949	.943	.937	.930	.918	.905	.895	.874
75	.993	.983	.976	.969	.962	.953	.947	.941	.934	.927	.914	.901	.890	.868
74	.992	.982	.975	.967	.960	.951	.944	.938	.931	.923	.910	.896	.885	.863
73	.992	.981	.973	.966	.958	.949	.942	.935	.928	.920	.906	.892	.880	.857
72	.991	.980	.972	.965	.956	.947	.939	.932	.925	.916	.902	.888	.876	.851
71	.991	.980	.971	.963	.955	.945	.937	.929	.922	.913	.899	.883	.871	.846
70	.991	.979	.970	.962	.953	.942	.934	.927	.919	.910	.895	.879	.866	.840
69	.990	.978	.969	.960	.951	.940	.932	.924	.916	.906	.891	.874	.861	.834
68	.990	.977	.968	.959	.949	.938	.929	.921	.913	.903	.887	.870	.856	.829
67	.989	.976	.967	.957	.948	.936	.927	.918	.910	.899	.883	.866	.851	.823
66	.989	.976	.966	.956	.946	.934	.924	.915	.907	.896	.879	.861	.847	.817
65	.989	.975	.964	.954	.944	.932	.921	.913	.903	.893	.875	.857	.842	.812
64	.988	.974	.963	.953	.942	.929	.919	.910	.900	.889	.871	.852	.837	.806
63	.988	.973	.962	.951	.940	.927	.916	.907	.897	.886	.867	.848	.832	.801
62	.987	.972	.961	.950	.939	.925	.914	.904	.894	.882	.864	.844	.827	.795
61	.987	.971	.960	.948	.937	.923	.911	.901	.891	.879	.860	.839	.823	.789
60	.987	.971	.959	.947	.935	.921	.909	.899	.888	.875	.856	.835	.818	.784
59	.986	.970	.958	.945	.933	.918	.906	.896	.885	.872	.852	.830	.813	.778
58	.986	.969	.957	.944	.931	.916	.904	.893	.882	.869	.848	.826	.808	.772
57	.985	.968	.955	.942	.930	.914	.901	.890	.879	.865	.844	.821	.803	.767
56	.985	.967	.954	.941	.928	.912	.899	.887	.876	.862	.840	.817	.798	.761
55	.985	.967	.953	.940	.926	.910	.896	.885	.873	.859	.836	.813	.794	.757
54	.984	.966	.952	.938	.924	.908	.894	.882	.870	.856	.834	.810	.791	.753
53	.984	.965	.951	.937	.922	.905	.892	.880	.867	.853	.831	.807	.787	.750
52	.983	.964	.950	.935	.921	.903	.890	.878	.864	.851	.828	.804	.784	.746
51	.983	.963	.949	.934	.919	.901	.888	.875	.862	.848	.825	.801	.781	.742
50	.983	.963	.948	.932	.917	.899	.886	.873	.859	.845	.822	.798	.778	.739
49	.982	.962	.946	.931	.915	.897	.883	.871	.857	.843	.819	.795	.774	.735
48	.982	.961	.945	.929	.913	.895	.881	.868	.855	.840	.816	.792	.771	.732
47	.981	.960	.944	.928	.912	.894	.879	.866	.852	.837	.813	.789	.768	.728
46	.981	.959	.943	.926	.910	.892	.877	.863	.850	.835	.810	.786	.765	.725
45	.981	.958	.942	.925	.909	.890	.875	.861	.847	.832	.807	.783	.761	.721
44	.980	.958	.941	.923	.907	.888	.873	.859	.845	.829	.804	.780	.758	.718
43	.980	.957	.940	.922	.905	.886	.871	.856	.843	.827	.801	.777	.755	.714
42	.980	.956	.939	.921	.904	.884	.869	.854	.840	.824	.798	.774	.752	.710
41	.979	.956	.937	.919	.902	.882	.867	.852	.838	.821	.796	.771	.748	.707
40	.979	.955	.936	.918	.901	.881	.865	.849	.835	.819	.793	.768	.745	.703
39	.979	.954	.935	.916	.899	.879	.863	.847	.833	.816	.790	.765	.742	.700
38	.978	.954	.934	.915	.897	.877	.860	.845	.831	.813	.787	.762	.739	.696
37	.978	.953	.933	.914	.896	.875	.858	.842	.828	.811	.784	.759	.735	.693
36	.978	.952	.932	.912	.894	.873	.856	.840	.826	.808	.781	.756	.732	.689
35	.978	.951	.930	.911	.892	.871	.854	.838	.824	.806	.779	.754	.730	.687
34	.977	.950	.929	.909	.891	.870	.852	.836	.822	.804	.777	.752	.728	.686
33	.977	.950	.928	.908	.889	.868	.850	.834	.820	.802	.775	.750	.726	.684
32	.976	.949	.927	.906	.887	.866	.848	.832	.818	.799	.772	.748	.724	.682
31	.976	.948	.926	.905	.886	.865	.847	.830	.816	.797	.770	.746	.722	.681
30	.975	.947	.925	.904	.884	.863	.845	.828	.814	.795	.768	.744	.719	.679
29	.975	.946	.924	.902	.882	.861	.843	.826	.812	.793	.766	.742	.717	.677
28	.974	.946	.923	.901	.881	.859	.841	.824	.810	.791	.764	.740	.715	.675
27	.974	.945	.922	.899	.879	.858	.839	.822	.808	.789	.762	.738	.713	.674
26	.974	.944	.921	.898	.878	.856	.837	.821	.806	.787	.760	.736	.711	.672
25	.973	.943	.919	.897	.876	.854	.835	.819	.803	.784	.757	.733	.709	.670
24	.973	.942	.918	.895	.874	.853	.833	.817	.801	.782	.755	.731	.707	.669
23	.972	.942	.917	.894	.873	.851	.831	.815	.799	.780	.753	.729	.705	.667
22	.972	.941	.916	.892	.871	.849	.829	.813	.797	.778	.751	.727	.703	.665
21	.971	.940	.915	.891	.869	.848	.828	.811	.795	.776	.749	.725	.701	.664
20	.971	.939	.914	.890	.868	.846	.826	.809	.793	.774	.747	.723	.698	.662
19	.970	.938	.913	.888	.866	.844	.824	.807	.791	.771	.744	.721	.696	.660
18	.970	.938	.912	.887	.864	.842	.822	.805	.789	.769	.742	.719	.694	.658
17	.969	.937	.911	.885	.863	.841	.820	.803	.787	.767	.740	.717	.692	.657
16	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
15	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
14	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
13	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
12	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
11	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
10	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
9	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655

((Maximum Premium

Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

8	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
7	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
6	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655
5	.969	.936	.910	.884	.861	.839	.818	.801	.785	.765	.738	.715	.690	.655

Maximum Premium

Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

84	.995	.990	.986	.981	.977	.972	.968	.963	.959	.955	.947	.939	.931	.917
83	.995	.990	.985	.980	.975	.970	.966	.961	.957	.952	.944	.935	.927	.912
82	.995	.989	.984	.979	.974	.969	.964	.959	.954	.950	.940	.932	.923	.907
81	.994	.989	.983	.978	.972	.967	.962	.957	.952	.947	.937	.928	.919	.903
80	.994	.988	.982	.977	.971	.965	.960	.955	.949	.944	.934	.924	.915	.898
79	.994	.987	.981	.975	.969	.963	.958	.952	.946	.941	.930	.920	.910	.892
78	.993	.987	.980	.974	.967	.961	.955	.949	.943	.938	.927	.916	.905	.886
77	.993	.986	.979	.972	.966	.959	.953	.946	.940	.934	.922	.911	.900	.880
76	.992	.985	.978	.971	.964	.957	.951	.944	.938	.931	.919	.907	.896	.875
75	.992	.985	.977	.970	.962	.955	.949	.942	.935	.929	.916	.904	.892	.870
74	.992	.984	.976	.968	.960	.953	.946	.939	.932	.925	.911	.898	.886	.863
73	.991	.983	.974	.966	.958	.951	.943	.935	.928	.921	.907	.893	.881	.856
72	.991	.982	.973	.965	.956	.948	.940	.932	.925	.917	.902	.888	.875	.850
71	.990	.981	.972	.963	.954	.946	.937	.929	.921	.913	.898	.883	.869	.843
70	.990	.980	.971	.961	.952	.943	.934	.926	.917	.909	.893	.878	.863	.836
69	.990	.979	.969	.960	.950	.941	.932	.923	.914	.906	.889	.874	.859	.831
68	.989	.979	.969	.959	.949	.939	.930	.921	.912	.904	.887	.871	.856	.827
67	.989	.978	.968	.958	.948	.938	.928	.919	.910	.901	.884	.868	.852	.824
66	.989	.977	.967	.956	.946	.936	.926	.916	.907	.898	.880	.864	.848	.818
65	.988	.976	.965	.954	.944	.933	.923	.913	.903	.894	.876	.859	.842	.812
64	.988	.976	.964	.953	.942	.931	.920	.910	.900	.890	.872	.854	.837	.806
63	.987	.975	.963	.951	.940	.928	.918	.907	.897	.887	.868	.850	.833	.801
62	.987	.974	.961	.949	.938	.926	.915	.904	.894	.884	.864	.845	.828	.795
61	.986	.973	.960	.948	.936	.924	.912	.901	.890	.880	.860	.841	.823	.789
60	.986	.972	.959	.946	.933	.921	.909	.898	.887	.876	.855	.836	.817	.783
59	.985	.971	.958	.944	.931	.919	.907	.895	.883	.872	.851	.831	.812	.777
58	.985	.970	.956	.943	.929	.917	.904	.892	.880	.869	.847	.826	.807	.771
57	.985	.970	.955	.941	.927	.914	.901	.889	.877	.865	.843	.822	.802	.765
56	.984	.969	.954	.939	.925	.912	.899	.886	.874	.862	.839	.818	.797	.760
55	.984	.968	.953	.938	.924	.910	.896	.884	.871	.859	.836	.814	.793	.756
54	.983	.967	.951	.936	.922	.908	.894	.881	.868	.856	.832	.810	.790	.752
53	.983	.966	.950	.935	.920	.906	.892	.878	.866	.853	.829	.807	.786	.748
52	.982	.965	.949	.933	.918	.904	.890	.876	.863	.850	.826	.804	.783	.744
51	.982	.965	.948	.932	.917	.902	.887	.874	.860	.847	.823	.800	.779	.740
50	.982	.964	.947	.930	.915	.899	.885	.871	.857	.844	.819	.796	.775	.735
49	.981	.963	.946	.929	.913	.897	.882	.868	.854	.841	.816	.792	.770	.731
48	.981	.962	.945	.927	.911	.895	.880	.866	.852	.838	.812	.789	.767	.727
47	.980	.962	.944	.926	.910	.894	.878	.864	.849	.836	.810	.786	.764	.723
46	.980	.961	.943	.925	.909	.893	.877	.863	.848	.835	.809	.785	.763	.723
45	.980	.961	.942	.925	.908	.892	.877	.862	.848	.834	.808	.784	.762	.722
44	.980	.960	.942	.924	.907	.891	.876	.861	.847	.833	.808	.784	.762	.722
43	.980	.960	.941	.924	.907	.891	.875	.861	.846	.833	.807	.784	.762	.722
42	.979	.959	.940	.922	.905	.888	.872	.857	.843	.829	.803	.779	.757	.717

**Maximum
Premium**

Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

**Size
Group**

41	.978	.958	.938	.920	.902	.885	.869	.853	.839	.825	.798	.774	.751	.710
40	.978	.957	.937	.918	.899	.882	.866	.850	.835	.820	.793	.768	.745	.704
39	.977	.956	.935	.916	.897	.879	.863	.846	.831	.816	.789	.764	.741	.699
38	.977	.955	.934	.914	.895	.877	.860	.843	.828	.813	.785	.760	.736	.694
37	.976	.954	.933	.912	.893	.875	.857	.841	.825	.810	.782	.756	.732	.690
36	.976	.953	.932	.911	.891	.873	.855	.838	.822	.807	.779	.753	.729	.686
35	.976	.953	.931	.910	.890	.871	.854	.837	.821	.805	.777	.751	.727	.684
34	.975	.952	.930	.909	.889	.870	.852	.835	.819	.804	.775	.749	.725	.683
33	.975	.951	.929	.908	.888	.869	.851	.834	.818	.802	.774	.748	.724	.682
32	.975	.951	.929	.907	.887	.868	.850	.833	.817	.802	.773	.747	.724	.682
31	.975	.951	.928	.907	.886	.867	.849	.832	.816	.801	.773	.747	.724	.682
30	.974	.950	.927	.906	.886	.867	.849	.832	.816	.801	.773	.747	.724	.682
29	.974	.950	.927	.906	.886	.867	.849	.832	.816	.801	.773	.747	.724	.682
28	.974	.949	.926	.904	.883	.864	.846	.828	.812	.797	.769	.744	.721	.682
27	.973	.947	.922	.899	.877	.857	.837	.819	.802	.785	.754	.727	.701	.657
26	.972	.945	.919	.895	.872	.851	.830	.811	.792	.775	.742	.712	.685	.636
25	.971	.943	.917	.892	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
24	.971	.943	.917	.892	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
23	.971	.943	.917	.892	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
22	.971	.943	.917	.892	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
21	.971	.943	.917	.892	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
20	.971	.943	.917	.892	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
19	.970	.941	.915	.891	.868	.846	.824	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
18	.969	.940	.912	.887	.864	.843	.823	.804	.785	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
17	.968	.938	.911	.885	.862	.840	.820	.801	.784	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
16	.968	.937	.910	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
15	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
14	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
13	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
12	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
11	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
10	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
9	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
8	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
7	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
6	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620
5	.967	.937	.909	.884	.860	.838	.818	.800	.783	.766	.732	.701	.672	.620

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-10, filed 7/6/88)

WAC 296-17-91904 TABLE V.

RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLAN A2
 MINIMUM PREMIUM RATIOS
 AND BASIC PREMIUM RATIOS
 LOSS CONVERSION FACTOR = $\frac{.729}{((.630))}$
 Effective ((July 1, 1988)) January 1, 1989

((Maximum Premium Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size
Group

84	Basic Premium Ratio	.514	.504	.497	.491	.485	.481	.477	.474	.470	.467	.461	.455	.450	.441
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.994	.986	.981	.975	.969	.964	.960	.955	.951	.944	.936	.927	.918	.902
83	Basic Premium Ratio	.513	.503	.495	.488	.482	.477	.473	.469	.466	.462	.456	.450	.445	.435
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.993	.985	.979	.973	.967	.962	.957	.951	.947	.940	.931	.921	.912	.894
82	Basic Premium Ratio	.512	.501	.492	.485	.479	.474	.469	.466	.461	.458	.451	.445	.440	.429
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.993	.984	.978	.971	.964	.959	.953	.947	.943	.936	.926	.916	.906	.887
81	Basic Premium Ratio	.510	.499	.489	.483	.476	.471	.465	.461	.457	.453	.446	.440	.434	.424
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.992	.983	.976	.969	.962	.956	.950	.944	.939	.931	.921	.910	.899	.880
80	Basic Premium Ratio	.509	.496	.487	.479	.472	.467	.461	.457	.453	.449	.441	.435	.429	.417
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.991	.982	.975	.967	.959	.953	.947	.940	.935	.927	.916	.904	.893	.873
79	Basic Premium Ratio	.508	.495	.484	.476	.468	.463	.458	.453	.448	.444	.437	.430	.423	.411
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.990	.981	.973	.965	.957	.950	.943	.936	.930	.923	.911	.898	.887	.865
78	Basic Premium Ratio	.505	.492	.482	.474	.466	.459	.454	.449	.444	.440	.432	.425	.418	.405
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.990	.980	.972	.963	.955	.947	.940	.933	.926	.919	.906	.893	.881	.858
77	Basic Premium Ratio	.505	.491	.479	.470	.463	.457	.450	.446	.440	.436	.427	.420	.412	.399
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.989	.979	.970	.960	.952	.944	.936	.929	.922	.914	.901	.887	.875	.851
76	Basic Premium Ratio	.504	.490	.477	.468	.459	.453	.446	.441	.435	.431	.422	.413	.406	.393
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.988	.978	.969	.958	.950	.941	.933	.926	.918	.910	.896	.881	.869	.844
75	Basic Premium Ratio	.503	.486	.474	.465	.456	.449	.441	.436	.431	.426	.417	.408	.401	.386
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.988	.977	.967	.956	.947	.938	.929	.922	.914	.906	.891	.876	.865	.836
74	Basic Premium Ratio	.500	.485	.472	.461	.452	.445	.438	.432	.426	.421	.411	.403	.395	.380
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.987	.976	.966	.954	.945	.935	.926	.918	.910	.901	.886	.870	.856	.829
73	Basic Premium Ratio	.499	.482	.469	.458	.449	.441	.434	.428	.421	.417	.406	.398	.389	.374
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.986	.975	.964	.952	.942	.933	.923	.915	.906	.897	.881	.864	.850	.822
72	Basic Premium Ratio	.498	.480	.465	.455	.446	.438	.431	.423	.418	.412	.401	.392	.383	.367
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.985	.974	.963	.950	.940	.930	.919	.911	.901	.893	.875	.858	.844	.814
71	Basic Premium Ratio	.495	.477	.463	.451	.442	.433	.426	.419	.412	.407	.396	.387	.377	.360
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.985	.972	.961	.948	.937	.927	.915	.907	.896	.888	.869	.852	.837	.806
70	Basic Premium Ratio	.494	.476	.460	.448	.438	.430	.421	.414	.407	.402	.391	.380	.371	.353
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.984	.971	.959	.945	.934	.923	.911	.903	.891	.882	.863	.845	.830	.799
69	Basic Premium Ratio	.494	.472	.456	.445	.434	.425	.417	.410	.403	.396	.385	.375	.365	.347
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.983	.969	.956	.943	.931	.919	.907	.898	.886	.877	.857	.839	.823	.791
68	Basic Premium Ratio	.490	.468	.454	.441	.430	.421	.412	.404	.397	.392	.380	.368	.358	.340
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.983	.968	.954	.940	.928	.916	.903	.893	.881	.872	.851	.833	.816	.783
67	Basic Premium Ratio	.489	.467	.450	.437	.425	.416	.408	.400	.392	.386	.373	.363	.352	.334
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.982	.966	.952	.937	.924	.912	.899	.889	.876	.866	.845	.826	.809	.775
66	Basic Premium Ratio	.485	.463	.446	.433	.421	.412	.403	.395	.387	.381	.367	.357	.346	.327
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.981	.965	.950	.934	.921	.908	.895	.884	.871	.861	.840	.820	.802	.767
65	Basic Premium Ratio	.485	.461	.444	.429	.418	.407	.398	.390	.382	.375	.362	.350	.340	.321
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.980	.963	.948	.931	.918	.904	.891	.879	.866	.856	.834	.814	.795	.759
64	Basic Premium Ratio	.481	.458	.440	.426	.414	.403	.394	.385	.377	.369	.357	.344	.333	.314
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.979	.961	.946	.928	.915	.900	.887	.874	.861	.850	.828	.807	.788	.751
63	Basic Premium Ratio	.480	.454	.436	.421	.409	.398	.388	.380	.372	.364	.351	.338	.328	.307
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.979	.960	.943	.926	.912	.896	.883	.870	.856	.845	.822	.801	.781	.744
62	Basic Premium Ratio	.476	.452	.431	.418	.404	.393	.384	.375	.367	.359	.344	.331	.321	.301
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.978	.958	.941	.923	.908	.893	.879	.865	.851	.840	.816	.795	.774	.736

		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
((Maximum Premium Ratio:															
Size Group															
61	Basic Premium Ratio	.475	.448	.430	.413	.400	.388	.378	.370	.361	.353	.339	.326	.314	.294
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.977	.957	.939	.920	.905	.889	.875	.860	.846	.834	.810	.788	.767	.728
60	Basic Premium Ratio	.471	.444	.425	.409	.395	.383	.374	.363	.355	.347	.332	.319	.307	.286
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.976	.955	.937	.917	.902	.885	.871	.856	.841	.829	.804	.782	.760	.720
59	Basic Premium Ratio	.470	.443	.421	.404	.391	.379	.368	.358	.349	.341	.325	.312	.301	.279
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.975	.954	.935	.914	.899	.881	.867	.851	.836	.823	.798	.775	.753	.712
58	Basic Premium Ratio	.467	.439	.417	.400	.386	.374	.363	.352	.344	.335	.320	.306	.294	.273
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.974	.952	.933	.911	.895	.877	.863	.846	.831	.818	.793	.769	.746	.704
57	Basic Premium Ratio	.466	.435	.412	.395	.381	.368	.357	.347	.338	.330	.313	.299	.287	.266
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.973	.951	.930	.908	.892	.873	.859	.842	.826	.813	.787	.763	.739	.696
56	Basic Premium Ratio	.462	.433	.408	.391	.376	.363	.351	.342	.331	.322	.307	.293	.281	.259
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.972	.949	.928	.905	.888	.869	.855	.837	.821	.807	.781	.756	.732	.689
55	Basic Premium Ratio	.458	.429	.403	.385	.371	.358	.346	.336	.325	.316	.300	.287	.274	.253
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.972	.947	.925	.903	.885	.866	.851	.832	.816	.802	.775	.750	.725	.681
54	Basic Premium Ratio	.456	.424	.399	.381	.366	.353	.340	.329	.320	.311	.294	.280	.267	.246
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.971	.946	.923	.900	.881	.862	.847	.827	.811	.797	.769	.744	.718	.676
53	Basic Premium Ratio	.452	.419	.394	.376	.359	.346	.335	.323	.312	.303	.287	.274	.261	.240
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.969	.944	.920	.897	.878	.858	.843	.823	.807	.792	.764	.739	.713	.671
52	Basic Premium Ratio	.447	.415	.389	.370	.354	.340	.328	.318	.307	.298	.281	.266	.255	.234
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.968	.942	.918	.894	.874	.855	.839	.818	.803	.787	.759	.734	.708	.666
51	Basic Premium Ratio	.443	.410	.384	.365	.349	.335	.322	.310	.301	.292	.275	.260	.248	.227
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.966	.940	.915	.891	.871	.851	.834	.814	.798	.783	.755	.729	.704	.662
50	Basic Premium Ratio	.439	.405	.379	.360	.343	.329	.316	.304	.293	.285	.268	.254	.241	.221
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.965	.938	.913	.888	.867	.847	.830	.810	.794	.778	.750	.724	.699	.657
49	Basic Premium Ratio	.437	.401	.374	.355	.338	.322	.309	.298	.287	.278	.261	.247	.235	.215
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.964	.935	.910	.885	.863	.844	.826	.805	.790	.774	.745	.719	.694	.652
48	Basic Premium Ratio	.433	.396	.369	.348	.330	.316	.303	.291	.281	.271	.255	.241	.229	.208
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.962	.933	.908	.883	.860	.840	.822	.801	.786	.770	.741	.714	.689	.647
47	Basic Premium Ratio	.428	.391	.364	.342	.324	.310	.297	.285	.274	.265	.248	.235	.221	.202
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.961	.931	.905	.880	.856	.837	.818	.797	.781	.765	.736	.710	.684	.642
46	Basic Premium Ratio	.424	.386	.358	.336	.319	.303	.289	.277	.267	.258	.242	.228	.216	.197
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.959	.929	.903	.877	.853	.833	.814	.793	.777	.761	.732	.705	.680	.637
45	Basic Premium Ratio	.419	.381	.350	.329	.311	.296	.283	.271	.260	.251	.235	.222	.211	.192
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.958	.927	.900	.874	.849	.829	.810	.789	.773	.756	.727	.700	.675	.632
44	Basic Premium Ratio	.414	.373	.345	.323	.304	.288	.276	.265	.254	.245	.229	.216	.205	.186
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.957	.925	.898	.871	.846	.826	.806	.785	.768	.752	.723	.695	.670	.627
43	Basic Premium Ratio	.409	.367	.337	.315	.297	.282	.269	.257	.248	.239	.223	.210	.200	.182
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.955	.923	.896	.868	.842	.822	.802	.780	.764	.748	.718	.690	.665	.622
42	Basic Premium Ratio	.405	.362	.331	.309	.291	.275	.262	.251	.240	.232	.216	.203	.193	.175
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.954	.921	.893	.865	.839	.819	.798	.776	.760	.743	.714	.685	.661	.617
41	Basic Premium Ratio	.400	.357	.326	.303	.283	.269	.256	.244	.234	.225	.210	.197	.186	.169
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.952	.919	.891	.863	.835	.815	.794	.772	.756	.739	.709	.680	.656	.612
40	Basic Premium Ratio	.395	.349	.321	.295	.277	.263	.249	.238	.227	.219	.203	.190	.179	.163
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.951	.916	.888	.860	.832	.812	.790	.768	.751	.734	.705	.676	.651	.607
39	Basic Premium Ratio	.390	.344	.312	.290	.271	.255	.242	.230	.221	.212	.196	.184	.174	.157
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.950	.914	.886	.857	.828	.808	.786	.764	.747	.730	.700	.671	.646	.603
38	Basic Premium Ratio	.385	.339	.307	.282	.263	.249	.236	.223	.214	.204	.190	.178	.167	.151
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.948	.912	.883	.854	.825	.804	.782	.760	.743	.726	.695	.666	.641	.598
37	Basic Premium Ratio	.376	.330	.298	.276	.257	.241	.228	.216	.207	.198	.183	.171	.161	.146
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.947	.910	.881	.851	.821	.801	.778	.755	.738	.721	.691	.661	.637	.593
36	Basic Premium Ratio	.371	.324	.293	.267	.249	.235	.221	.210	.201	.192	.177	.166	.155	.140
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.945	.908	.879	.848	.819	.797	.775	.751	.736	.717	.686	.658	.632	.588
35	Basic Premium Ratio	.362	.315	.284	.261	.240	.226	.214	.203	.193	.184	.171	.159	.150	.135
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.945	.906	.878	.847	.818	.796	.774	.750	.735	.716	.685	.658	.631	.587
34	Basic Premium Ratio	.353	.306	.275	.252	.234	.220	.207	.196	.187	.179	.164	.154	.144	.130
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.944	.904	.876	.846	.817	.795	.773	.749	.734	.715	.684	.657	.631	.588

((Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
33	Basic Premium Ratio	.347	.297	.268	.243	.226	.212	.199	.189	.179	.171	.158	.148	.139	.125
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.944	.904	.875	.844	.816	.794	.772	.748	.733	.715	.684	.657	.631	.588
32	Basic Premium Ratio	.338	.288	.259	.237	.219	.204	.193	.182	.173	.166	.153	.142	.134	.121
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.943	.903	.874	.843	.815	.793	.771	.747	.732	.714	.684	.657	.632	.589
31	Basic Premium Ratio	.329	.282	.251	.229	.211	.197	.185	.176	.167	.160	.148	.137	.130	.117
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.943	.903	.873	.842	.814	.792	.769	.746	.731	.714	.683	.656	.632	.590
30	Basic Premium Ratio	.319	.273	.242	.220	.205	.191	.179	.169	.160	.154	.141	.132	.125	.113
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.942	.902	.872	.840	.813	.791	.768	.745	.730	.713	.683	.656	.632	.591
29	Basic Premium Ratio	.310	.264	.235	.213	.196	.183	.172	.163	.155	.148	.136	.128	.121	.110
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.942	.902	.870	.839	.812	.790	.767	.744	.729	.713	.683	.656	.632	.591
28	Basic Premium Ratio	.301	.255	.227	.205	.188	.177	.166	.157	.148	.141	.130	.122	.115	.103
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.941	.901	.869	.838	.811	.789	.766	.743	.728	.712	.682	.655	.632	.592
27	Basic Premium Ratio	.295	.248	.218	.199	.182	.169	.157	.148	.141	.134	.123	.114	.106	.095
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.941	.900	.868	.837	.810	.788	.765	.742	.727	.712	.682	.665	.632	.593
26	Basic Premium Ratio	.286	.240	.212	.191	.174	.161	.151	.140	.134	.127	.115	.107	.099	.088
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.940	.900	.867	.835	.809	.787	.764	.741	.726	.712	.682	.655	.632	.593
25	Basic Premium Ratio	.276	.230	.203	.182	.167	.154	.143	.134	.126	.119	.109	.100	.093	.083
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.940	.899	.866	.834	.808	.786	.763	.740	.725	.711	.682	.654	.632	.594
24	Basic Premium Ratio	.266	.221	.194	.175	.159	.147	.137	.129	.121	.114	.105	.097	.090	.080
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.899	.865	.833	.807	.785	.762	.739	.724	.711	.681	.654	.632	.595
23	Basic Premium Ratio	.253	.212	.185	.166	.153	.141	.131	.123	.116	.110	.101	.093	.087	.078
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.898	.863	.831	.806	.784	.761	.738	.723	.710	.681	.654	.633	.596
22	Basic Premium Ratio	.244	.202	.176	.158	.145	.134	.124	.118	.112	.106	.097	.090	.084	.076
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.898	.862	.830	.805	.783	.760	.737	.722	.710	.681	.653	.633	.596
21	Basic Premium Ratio	.230	.193	.169	.152	.139	.128	.119	.112	.107	.102	.093	.087	.082	.075
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.935	.897	.861	.829	.804	.782	.759	.736	.721	.709	.680	.653	.633	.597
20	Basic Premium Ratio	.220	.183	.160	.143	.131	.121	.113	.107	.102	.097	.089	.083	.079	.072
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.930	.896	.860	.828	.803	.781	.758	.735	.720	.709	.680	.653	.633	.598
19	Basic Premium Ratio	.215	.177	.152	.137	.124	.115	.107	.101	.096	.092	.084	.079	.075	.068
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.924	.891	.859	.826	.802	.780	.757	.734	.719	.708	.680	.652	.633	.599
18	Basic Premium Ratio	.205	.168	.145	.129	.117	.108	.100	.095	.090	.086	.079	.075	.071	.066
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.919	.887	.858	.825	.801	.779	.756	.733	.718	.708	.679	.652	.633	.599
17	Basic Premium Ratio	.196	.159	.137	.121	.111	.102	.095	.090	.085	.081	.075	.071	.068	.063
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.913	.882	.853	.824	.800	.778	.755	.732	.717	.708	.679	.652	.633	.599
16	Basic Premium Ratio	.186	.150	.128	.114	.103	.095	.090	.085	.080	.077	.072	.068	.065	.061
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.908	.877	.849	.822	.799	.777	.754	.731	.716	.707	.679	.651	.633	.599
15	Basic Premium Ratio	.176	.141	.121	.108	.098	.090	.085	.080	.077	.074	.069	.066	.063	.059
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.902	.872	.845	.820	.798	.776	.753	.730	.715	.707	.678	.651	.633	.599
14	Basic Premium Ratio	.172	.135	.113	.103	.093	.088	.082	.078	.075	.072	.068	.065	.062	.059
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.897	.868	.841	.817	.795	.774	.752	.729	.714	.706	.678	.651	.634	.598
13	Basic Premium Ratio	.164	.126	.108	.097	.091	.084	.080	.076	.073	.070	.067	.064	.062	.058
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.892	.863	.837	.813	.791	.771	.751	.728	.713	.706	.678	.650	.634	.598
12	Basic Premium Ratio	.158	.117	.102	.094	.087	.082	.077	.074	.071	.069	.066	.063	.061	.058
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.886	.858	.833	.810	.788	.769	.749	.727	.712	.705	.677	.650	.633	.597
11	Basic Premium Ratio	.149	.107	.095	.089	.083	.079	.075	.072	.069	.068	.064	.062	.060	.057
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.881	.853	.829	.806	.785	.766	.748	.726	.711	.705	.676	.650	.632	.597
10	Basic Premium Ratio	.144	.100	.091	.085	.080	.075	.073	.070	.068	.066	.063	.061	.059	.057
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.875	.849	.825	.802	.782	.763	.746	.725	.710	.704	.675	.650	.632	.597
9	Basic Premium Ratio	.134	.093	.086	.081	.077	.073	.070	.068	.066	.065	.062	.060	.059	.057
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.870	.844	.820	.799	.779	.761	.744	.724	.709	.704	.674	.649	.631	.596
8	Basic Premium Ratio	.121	.087	.082	.077	.074	.070	.068	.066	.065	.063	.061	.059	.058	.056
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.864	.839	.816	.795	.776	.758	.741	.723	.708	.704	.673	.649	.630	.596
7	Basic Premium Ratio	.106	.082	.077	.074	.070	.068	.066	.064	.063	.062	.060	.058	.057	.056
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.859	.834	.812	.792	.773	.755	.739	.722	.707	.703	.671	.649	.630	.596

((Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
6	Basic Premium Ratio	.092	.077	.074	.070	.068	.066	.064	.063	.061	.060	.058	.057	.057	.055
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.853	.830	.808	.788	.770	.753	.737	.721	.706	.695	.670	.648	.629	.595
5	Basic Premium Ratio	.092	.073	.070	.067	.065	.064	.062	.061	.060	.059	.057	.057	.056	.055
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.848	.825	.804	.785	.767	.750	.734	.720	.705	.693	.669	.648	.629	.595))
Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00

Size Group															
84	Basic Premium Ratio	.517	.508	.500	.494	.488	.483	.479	.475	.472	.469	.463	.458	.453	.443
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.993	.986	.980	.974	.968	.963	.958	.953	.948	.943	.934	.924	.916	.899
83	Basic Premium Ratio	.516	.506	.498	.491	.485	.480	.476	.472	.468	.465	.458	.453	.447	.438
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.992	.985	.979	.972	.966	.961	.955	.950	.945	.939	.930	.920	.911	.893
82	Basic Premium Ratio	.515	.504	.495	.488	.482	.477	.472	.468	.464	.460	.454	.448	.442	.432
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.992	.984	.977	.971	.965	.959	.953	.947	.941	.936	.925	.915	.905	.887
81	Basic Premium Ratio	.513	.502	.493	.485	.479	.473	.468	.464	.460	.456	.449	.443	.437	.427
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.991	.983	.976	.969	.963	.956	.950	.944	.938	.933	.922	.911	.900	.881
80	Basic Premium Ratio	.512	.500	.490	.482	.476	.470	.465	.460	.456	.452	.445	.438	.432	.421
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.991	.983	.975	.968	.961	.954	.948	.941	.935	.929	.917	.906	.895	.875
79	Basic Premium Ratio	.511	.498	.487	.479	.472	.466	.461	.456	.452	.448	.440	.433	.427	.415
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.990	.981	.973	.966	.958	.951	.944	.938	.931	.925	.913	.901	.889	.868
78	Basic Premium Ratio	.509	.496	.485	.476	.469	.463	.457	.452	.447	.443	.435	.428	.421	.409
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.990	.980	.972	.964	.956	.948	.941	.934	.927	.920	.907	.895	.883	.860
77	Basic Premium Ratio	.508	.494	.483	.474	.466	.459	.454	.448	.443	.439	.430	.423	.416	.402
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.989	.979	.970	.961	.953	.945	.937	.930	.923	.915	.902	.888	.876	.852
76	Basic Premium Ratio	.507	.492	.480	.471	.463	.456	.450	.444	.439	.434	.425	.417	.410	.396
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.988	.978	.968	.959	.950	.942	.934	.926	.919	.911	.897	.883	.870	.845
75	Basic Premium Ratio	.506	.490	.477	.467	.459	.452	.445	.440	.434	.429	.420	.412	.404	.390
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.988	.977	.967	.957	.948	.939	.931	.923	.915	.907	.892	.878	.864	.838
74	Basic Premium Ratio	.504	.487	.475	.464	.456	.448	.442	.435	.430	.425	.415	.406	.398	.384
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.987	.976	.965	.955	.945	.936	.927	.918	.910	.902	.886	.871	.857	.830
73	Basic Premium Ratio	.503	.485	.472	.461	.452	.444	.437	.431	.425	.420	.410	.401	.393	.377
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.986	.974	.963	.952	.942	.933	.923	.914	.905	.897	.880	.865	.849	.821
72	Basic Premium Ratio	.501	.483	.469	.458	.449	.441	.433	.427	.421	.415	.405	.395	.387	.370
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.986	.973	.961	.950	.939	.929	.919	.910	.901	.892	.874	.858	.842	.813
71	Basic Premium Ratio	.499	.480	.466	.455	.445	.437	.429	.422	.416	.410	.399	.390	.380	.364
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.985	.972	.959	.948	.936	.926	.916	.906	.896	.886	.868	.851	.835	.804
70	Basic Premium Ratio	.498	.478	.463	.451	.441	.433	.425	.418	.411	.405	.394	.384	.374	.357
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.984	.970	.957	.945	.934	.922	.912	.901	.891	.881	.862	.844	.827	.796
69	Basic Premium Ratio	.496	.475	.460	.448	.438	.429	.421	.413	.406	.400	.389	.378	.368	.351
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.984	.969	.956	.943	.931	.919	.908	.897	.887	.876	.857	.838	.821	.788
68	Basic Premium Ratio	.494	.472	.457	.444	.433	.424	.416	.408	.401	.395	.383	.372	.362	.344
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.983	.968	.954	.940	.928	.916	.904	.893	.883	.872	.852	.833	.815	.782
67	Basic Premium Ratio	.492	.469	.453	.440	.429	.420	.411	.403	.396	.390	.377	.366	.356	.338
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.982	.966	.952	.938	.925	.913	.901	.890	.879	.868	.848	.828	.810	.776
66	Basic Premium Ratio	.489	.467	.450	.436	.425	.415	.406	.398	.391	.384	.372	.360	.350	.331
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.981	.965	.950	.936	.922	.909	.897	.885	.874	.863	.841	.822	.803	.769

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
65	Basic Premium Ratio	.487	.464	.446	.433	.421	.411	.402	.393	.386	.379	.366	.354	.343	.324
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.981	.963	.948	.933	.919	.905	.893	.880	.868	.857	.835	.815	.796	.761
64	Basic Premium Ratio	.485	.461	.443	.429	.417	.406	.397	.388	.380	.373	.360	.348	.337	.317
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.980	.962	.945	.930	.916	.902	.888	.876	.864	.852	.829	.808	.788	.753
63	Basic Premium Ratio	.483	.457	.439	.425	.412	.402	.392	.383	.375	.368	.354	.342	.330	.311
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.979	.960	.943	.927	.912	.898	.884	.871	.859	.846	.823	.802	.782	.745
62	Basic Premium Ratio	.480	.454	.436	.421	.408	.397	.387	.378	.370	.362	.348	.335	.324	.304
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.978	.959	.941	.925	.909	.894	.880	.867	.854	.841	.818	.796	.775	.738
61	Basic Premium Ratio	.478	.451	.432	.416	.403	.392	.382	.373	.364	.356	.342	.329	.318	.297
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.977	.957	.939	.922	.906	.891	.876	.862	.849	.836	.811	.789	.768	.730
60	Basic Premium Ratio	.475	.448	.428	.412	.399	.387	.377	.367	.358	.350	.336	.323	.311	.290
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.976	.955	.936	.919	.902	.886	.871	.857	.843	.830	.805	.781	.760	.721
59	Basic Premium Ratio	.473	.445	.424	.408	.394	.382	.371	.362	.353	.344	.329	.316	.304	.283
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.975	.954	.934	.916	.898	.882	.867	.852	.837	.824	.798	.774	.752	.713
58	Basic Premium Ratio	.471	.442	.421	.404	.389	.377	.366	.356	.347	.338	.323	.310	.298	.277
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.974	.952	.931	.912	.895	.878	.862	.847	.832	.818	.792	.767	.745	.704
57	Basic Premium Ratio	.468	.438	.417	.399	.385	.372	.361	.351	.341	.333	.317	.303	.291	.270
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.973	.950	.929	.909	.891	.874	.857	.842	.827	.813	.786	.761	.738	.697
56	Basic Premium Ratio	.465	.434	.412	.395	.380	.367	.355	.345	.335	.326	.311	.297	.285	.263
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.972	.948	.926	.906	.887	.870	.853	.837	.822	.807	.780	.755	.731	.690
55	Basic Premium Ratio	.462	.430	.408	.390	.374	.361	.349	.339	.329	.320	.304	.290	.278	.257
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.971	.946	.924	.903	.884	.866	.849	.832	.817	.802	.774	.749	.725	.683
54	Basic Premium Ratio	.458	.426	.403	.384	.369	.355	.343	.333	.323	.314	.298	.284	.271	.250
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.970	.945	.922	.900	.880	.862	.844	.827	.812	.797	.768	.743	.719	.677
53	Basic Premium Ratio	.455	.422	.398	.379	.363	.350	.337	.327	.317	.307	.291	.277	.265	.244
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.969	.943	.919	.897	.877	.858	.840	.823	.807	.792	.763	.737	.713	.671
52	Basic Premium Ratio	.451	.417	.393	.374	.358	.344	.332	.320	.310	.301	.285	.271	.258	.238
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.968	.941	.917	.895	.874	.854	.836	.819	.803	.787	.758	.732	.709	.666
51	Basic Premium Ratio	.447	.413	.388	.369	.352	.338	.325	.314	.304	.295	.278	.264	.252	.232
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.967	.939	.914	.891	.870	.851	.832	.815	.798	.782	.753	.727	.703	.660
50	Basic Premium Ratio	.443	.408	.383	.363	.346	.332	.319	.308	.298	.288	.272	.258	.245	.225
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.966	.937	.912	.888	.867	.846	.828	.810	.793	.777	.747	.721	.697	.654
49	Basic Premium Ratio	.440	.403	.378	.357	.340	.326	.313	.301	.291	.282	.265	.251	.239	.219
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.965	.935	.909	.885	.863	.842	.823	.805	.788	.772	.742	.715	.690	.647
48	Basic Premium Ratio	.436	.399	.372	.352	.334	.320	.307	.295	.285	.275	.259	.245	.232	.213
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.964	.933	.907	.882	.860	.839	.819	.801	.783	.767	.737	.710	.685	.641
47	Basic Premium Ratio	.431	.394	.367	.346	.328	.313	.300	.289	.278	.269	.252	.238	.226	.207
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.962	.931	.904	.879	.856	.835	.816	.797	.780	.763	.733	.706	.681	.637
46	Basic Premium Ratio	.427	.388	.361	.339	.321	.306	.293	.282	.271	.262	.246	.232	.220	.201
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.961	.929	.901	.876	.853	.832	.812	.793	.776	.760	.729	.702	.678	.635
45	Basic Premium Ratio	.423	.383	.354	.333	.315	.300	.286	.275	.265	.255	.239	.226	.215	.196
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.960	.927	.899	.873	.850	.829	.809	.790	.773	.757	.727	.700	.675	.633
44	Basic Premium Ratio	.418	.377	.348	.326	.308	.293	.280	.268	.258	.249	.233	.220	.209	.191
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.958	.925	.897	.871	.848	.826	.806	.788	.771	.754	.725	.698	.674	.631

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
43	Basic Premium Ratio	.413	.371	.342	.319	.301	.286	.273	.262	.252	.243	.227	.215	.204	.186
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.957	.924	.895	.869	.846	.824	.804	.786	.768	.752	.723	.696	.672	.630
42	Basic Premium Ratio	.408	.365	.335	.313	.294	.279	.266	.255	.245	.236	.221	.208	.197	.180
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.956	.921	.892	.865	.842	.820	.799	.781	.763	.747	.716	.690	.666	.623
41	Basic Premium Ratio	.403	.359	.329	.306	.288	.272	.259	.248	.238	.229	.213	.201	.190	.173
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.954	.919	.889	.862	.837	.815	.794	.775	.757	.740	.710	.683	.659	.616
40	Basic Premium Ratio	.398	.353	.322	.299	.281	.265	.252	.241	.231	.222	.207	.194	.184	.167
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.953	.917	.886	.858	.833	.810	.789	.770	.752	.735	.704	.677	.651	.609
39	Basic Premium Ratio	.392	.347	.316	.292	.274	.258	.245	.234	.224	.215	.200	.188	.177	.161
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.951	.914	.883	.855	.829	.806	.785	.765	.747	.730	.699	.671	.646	.603
38	Basic Premium Ratio	.386	.340	.309	.286	.267	.252	.238	.227	.217	.209	.194	.182	.171	.155
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.950	.913	.880	.852	.826	.802	.781	.761	.743	.725	.694	.666	.641	.598
37	Basic Premium Ratio	.380	.333	.302	.279	.260	.245	.232	.221	.211	.202	.188	.176	.166	.150
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.949	.911	.878	.849	.823	.800	.778	.757	.739	.722	.690	.661	.636	.593
36	Basic Premium Ratio	.373	.326	.295	.272	.253	.238	.225	.214	.204	.196	.181	.170	.160	.145
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.948	.909	.876	.847	.821	.797	.775	.755	.736	.718	.687	.658	.634	.590
35	Basic Premium Ratio	.366	.318	.287	.264	.246	.230	.218	.207	.197	.189	.175	.164	.154	.140
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.947	.908	.874	.845	.818	.795	.773	.752	.734	.716	.685	.656	.632	.588
34	Basic Premium Ratio	.358	.310	.279	.256	.238	.223	.211	.200	.191	.183	.169	.158	.149	.135
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.946	.906	.873	.844	.817	.793	.771	.751	.732	.714	.683	.655	.630	.587
33	Basic Premium Ratio	.349	.302	.271	.249	.231	.216	.204	.194	.184	.177	.163	.153	.144	.130
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.945	.906	.872	.842	.816	.792	.770	.750	.732	.714	.683	.655	.630	.588
32	Basic Premium Ratio	.341	.294	.263	.241	.224	.209	.197	.187	.178	.171	.158	.148	.139	.126
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.945	.905	.872	.842	.816	.792	.770	.750	.732	.714	.683	.655	.631	.589
31	Basic Premium Ratio	.333	.285	.255	.233	.216	.202	.190	.180	.172	.164	.152	.142	.134	.122
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.944	.904	.870	.841	.814	.790	.769	.749	.730	.714	.683	.656	.633	.591
30	Basic Premium Ratio	.324	.277	.247	.225	.208	.195	.183	.174	.166	.159	.147	.137	.130	.118
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.943	.902	.869	.840	.814	.790	.769	.748	.730	.713	.683	.658	.634	.595
29	Basic Premium Ratio	.315	.268	.239	.218	.201	.188	.177	.168	.160	.153	.142	.133	.126	.115
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.942	.902	.868	.839	.813	.790	.769	.749	.731	.715	.685	.659	.637	.599
28	Basic Premium Ratio	.306	.260	.231	.210	.194	.181	.170	.161	.153	.147	.136	.127	.120	.109
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.942	.901	.867	.838	.811	.788	.766	.747	.729	.711	.681	.655	.632	.593
27	Basic Premium Ratio	.298	.252	.223	.202	.186	.173	.163	.153	.146	.139	.128	.119	.112	.101
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.940	.898	.864	.833	.806	.781	.758	.738	.718	.700	.668	.640	.614	.571
26	Basic Premium Ratio	.290	.244	.216	.195	.179	.166	.155	.146	.138	.132	.121	.112	.105	.094
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.896	.860	.829	.801	.775	.752	.731	.711	.691	.657	.627	.599	.553
25	Basic Premium Ratio	.281	.236	.208	.188	.172	.159	.148	.139	.132	.125	.114	.105	.098	.088
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.938	.895	.858	.826	.797	.771	.747	.725	.704	.685	.650	.619	.592	.542
24	Basic Premium Ratio	.270	.226	.199	.179	.164	.152	.142	.133	.126	.120	.110	.102	.095	.086
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.938	.894	.858	.827	.798	.773	.749	.729	.708	.689	.655	.625	.600	.551
23	Basic Premium Ratio	.259	.216	.190	.171	.156	.145	.136	.128	.121	.115	.106	.098	.093	.084
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.938	.895	.860	.829	.802	.777	.753	.733	.714	.697	.663	.636	.608	.564
22	Basic Premium Ratio	.248	.207	.181	.163	.150	.139	.130	.123	.116	.111	.102	.095	.090	.082
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.938	.896	.862	.832	.805	.781	.760	.739	.722	.704	.674	.648	.622	.580

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
<hr/>															
<hr/>															
Size															
Group															
<hr/>															
21	Basic Premium Ratio	.236	.197	.173	.156	.143	.133	.125	.118	.112	.107	.099	.093	.088	.080
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.940	.899	.865	.836	.811	.787	.766	.747	.730	.714	.685	.659	.636	.599
20	Basic Premium Ratio	.226	.188	.165	.149	.136	.126	.119	.112	.107	.102	.094	.089	.084	.077
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.898	.865	.835	.810	.788	.766	.748	.730	.715	.689	.662	.642	.607
19	Basic Premium Ratio	.218	.180	.156	.140	.128	.119	.111	.105	.100	.096	.089	.084	.080	.074
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.937	.894	.860	.830	.804	.781	.761	.742	.724	.708	.680	.655	.633	.597
18	Basic Premium Ratio	.208	.171	.148	.133	.121	.112	.105	.099	.095	.091	.084	.080	.076	.071
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.935	.892	.857	.826	.800	.777	.756	.737	.718	.703	.677	.651	.631	.594
17	Basic Premium Ratio	.199	.162	.140	.125	.115	.106	.099	.094	.090	.086	.081	.076	.073	.069
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.934	.891	.856	.826	.798	.775	.755	.736	.717	.703	.673	.653	.631	.592
16	Basic Premium Ratio	.189	.154	.133	.119	.109	.101	.095	.090	.086	.082	.077	.073	.071	.067
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.934	.890	.855	.825	.798	.775	.754	.736	.719	.706	.679	.658	.633	.598
15	Basic Premium Ratio	.181	.146	.126	.113	.103	.096	.090	.086	.082	.079	.075	.071	.069	.065
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.933	.889	.855	.826	.801	.778	.759	.739	.724	.710	.682	.663	.641	.613
14	Basic Premium Ratio	.176	.139	.119	.108	.100	.093	.088	.084	.081	.078	.074	.070	.068	.065
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.924	.878	.850	.821	.796	.775	.755	.737	.720	.706	.679	.663	.642	.608
13	Basic Premium Ratio	.170	.131	.113	.103	.096	.090	.085	.082	.079	.076	.072	.070	.067	.064
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.915	.868	.844	.818	.793	.772	.754	.735	.719	.706	.682	.656	.643	.612
12	Basic Premium Ratio	.164	.123	.107	.099	.092	.087	.083	.080	.077	.075	.071	.069	.067	.064
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.904	.860	.839	.812	.791	.770	.751	.732	.718	.702	.680	.655	.637	.606
11	Basic Premium Ratio	.156	.113	.102	.094	.089	.084	.081	.078	.075	.073	.070	.068	.066	.063
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.892	.859	.834	.811	.786	.768	.747	.730	.718	.704	.678	.655	.638	.612
10	Basic Premium Ratio	.148	.104	.097	.090	.086	.082	.078	.076	.074	.072	.069	.067	.065	.063
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.876	.858	.829	.807	.782	.762	.748	.728	.712	.699	.676	.654	.640	.605
9	Basic Premium Ratio	.139	.098	.092	.087	.082	.079	.076	.074	.072	.070	.068	.066	.065	.062
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.856	.853	.825	.800	.782	.761	.744	.727	.712	.702	.674	.654	.631	.612
8	Basic Premium Ratio	.106	.093	.087	.083	.079	.076	.074	.072	.070	.069	.067	.065	.064	.062
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.855	.846	.823	.798	.779	.761	.741	.725	.713	.697	.671	.654	.633	.604
7	Basic Premium Ratio	.097	.088	.083	.079	.076	.074	.072	.070	.069	.068	.066	.064	.063	.061
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.855	.840	.818	.797	.777	.756	.738	.725	.707	.691	.668	.655	.636	.613
6	Basic Premium Ratio	.089	.083	.079	.076	.074	.072	.070	.068	.067	.066	.065	.063	.062	.061
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.855	.836	.814	.792	.768	.749	.735	.725	.709	.696	.664	.656	.640	.602
5	Basic Premium Ratio	.082	.078	.075	.073	.071	.069	.068	.067	.066	.065	.063	.062	.062	.061
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.855	.833	.811	.787	.767	.752	.732	.714	.700	.689	.677	.658	.624	.586

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-10, filed 7/6/88)

WAC 296-17-91905 TABLE VI.

RETROSPECTIVE RATING PLAN A3
 MINIMUM PREMIUM RATIOS
 AND BASIC PREMIUM RATIOS
 LOSS CONVERSION FACTOR = $(\frac{.630}{.729})$
 Effective ((July 1, 1988)) January 1, 1989

((Maximum Premium Ratio:))		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
84	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.813	.793	.783	.777	.766	.759	.732	.736	.727	.722	.706	.694	.673
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.986	.973	.964	.956	.948	.942	.935	.931	.924	.919	.909	.900	.891	.874
83	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.812	.790	.780	.772	.760	.753	.728	.730	.721	.715	.698	.685	.663
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.985	.972	.962	.953	.944	.937	.931	.925	.919	.913	.903	.892	.883	.865
82	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.810	.788	.776	.767	.755	.747	.724	.724	.715	.707	.690	.677	.653
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.984	.970	.958	.949	.940	.932	.925	.920	.913	.907	.896	.885	.876	.857
81	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.808	.786	.772	.763	.750	.742	.720	.718	.709	.699	.683	.668	.643
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.981	.967	.954	.946	.936	.928	.920	.913	.907	.901	.889	.878	.868	.849
80	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.806	.783	.768	.758	.745	.736	.716	.712	.703	.692	.675	.659	.633
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.981	.964	.951	.941	.931	.923	.915	.909	.901	.895	.882	.871	.860	.839
79	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.804	.781	.765	.753	.739	.730	.712	.706	.697	.684	.667	.651	.622
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.979	.962	.948	.938	.927	.918	.910	.903	.895	.888	.876	.864	.852	.831
78	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.803	.779	.761	.749	.734	.725	.708	.700	.691	.677	.659	.642	.612
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.976	.959	.945	.934	.924	.913	.905	.897	.890	.882	.869	.856	.844	.821
77	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.801	.776	.757	.744	.729	.719	.704	.694	.684	.669	.651	.633	.602
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.975	.957	.942	.930	.919	.910	.900	.893	.884	.876	.862	.849	.836	.813
76	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.799	.774	.754	.740	.724	.713	.700	.688	.678	.661	.644	.625	.592
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.974	.956	.940	.927	.915	.905	.895	.886	.878	.870	.855	.840	.828	.804
75	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.797	.772	.750	.735	.718	.707	.696	.682	.672	.654	.636	.616	.582
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.974	.952	.936	.923	.911	.899	.889	.881	.872	.863	.848	.833	.820	.794
74	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.795	.769	.746	.730	.713	.702	.692	.676	.666	.646	.628	.607	.572
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.970	.950	.934	.918	.906	.894	.884	.875	.866	.857	.840	.825	.811	.786
73	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.794	.767	.743	.726	.708	.696	.688	.670	.660	.638	.620	.599	.562
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.969	.946	.929	.915	.902	.889	.879	.869	.859	.851	.833	.818	.803	.776
72	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.792	.765	.739	.721	.703	.690	.684	.664	.654	.631	.613	.590	.552
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.968	.944	.925	.912	.898	.886	.874	.863	.854	.844	.826	.810	.795	.767
71	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.790	.759	.734	.715	.697	.682	.674	.655	.645	.620	.602	.578	.540
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.965	.941	.923	.907	.893	.880	.868	.857	.847	.837	.819	.802	.786	.757
70	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.788	.752	.729	.709	.690	.674	.665	.647	.636	.609	.591	.567	.529
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.964	.939	.919	.903	.889	.875	.862	.852	.841	.831	.812	.793	.778	.747
69	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.785	.746	.723	.703	.684	.666	.655	.638	.626	.598	.579	.555	.517
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.963	.935	.914	.899	.883	.869	.857	.846	.835	.823	.804	.786	.770	.738
68	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.783	.739	.718	.697	.677	.658	.645	.629	.617	.587	.568	.543	.505
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.959	.931	.912	.894	.878	.864	.851	.839	.828	.817	.797	.777	.760	.729
67	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.779	.736	.712	.690	.670	.651	.636	.621	.608	.577	.558	.533	.495
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.957	.929	.907	.889	.873	.858	.845	.833	.821	.810	.789	.770	.752	.719
66	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.776	.732	.707	.682	.663	.643	.628	.613	.599	.568	.548	.523	.485
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.954	.925	.903	.885	.868	.853	.839	.826	.814	.803	.781	.761	.744	.709
65	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.772	.729	.701	.675	.655	.636	.619	.604	.590	.558	.537	.513	.475
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.953	.923	.900	.880	.864	.847	.833	.821	.808	.796	.773	.753	.735	.701
64	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.768	.725	.695	.667	.648	.628	.610	.596	.581	.548	.527	.503	.465
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.949	.919	.895	.877	.859	.841	.827	.814	.801	.788	.766	.744	.726	.691
63	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.764	.719	.690	.661	.641	.620	.601	.586	.571	.538	.517	.492	.454
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.948	.914	.891	.871	.853	.835	.820	.807	.794	.781	.758	.736	.718	.682
62	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.759	.714	.684	.656	.634	.612	.592	.576	.562	.529	.507	.482	.444
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.944	.912	.886	.867	.848	.830	.815	.801	.788	.774	.750	.727	.708	.672

((Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
61	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.755	.708	.679	.650	.627	.603	.582	.566	.552	.519	.496	.471	.433
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.943	.908	.884	.861	.843	.824	.808	.794	.781	.767	.743	.719	.699	.662
60	Basic Premium Ratio	.820	.750	.702	.673	.644	.620	.595	.573	.556	.542	.509	.486	.460	.422
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.904	.879	.856	.837	.818	.802	.787	.773	.758	.734	.710	.690	.652
59	Basic Premium Ratio	.813	.743	.696	.664	.635	.611	.586	.564	.546	.532	.499	.475	.449	.411
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.937	.902	.874	.851	.832	.812	.795	.780	.766	.751	.725	.701	.681	.642
58	Basic Premium Ratio	.806	.737	.690	.655	.626	.602	.577	.555	.537	.522	.489	.464	.439	.401
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.934	.898	.869	.846	.825	.806	.789	.773	.759	.743	.718	.693	.672	.633
57	Basic Premium Ratio	.798	.730	.684	.645	.617	.593	.568	.545	.527	.511	.479	.452	.428	.390
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.932	.893	.864	.840	.820	.799	.781	.766	.752	.736	.709	.684	.663	.624
56	Basic Premium Ratio	.791	.723	.678	.636	.608	.584	.559	.536	.517	.501	.469	.441	.417	.379
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.928	.890	.859	.835	.814	.793	.775	.759	.743	.727	.701	.676	.654	.614
55	Basic Premium Ratio	.788	.717	.672	.629	.600	.575	.550	.526	.507	.491	.459	.432	.408	.370
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.924	.886	.854	.829	.808	.787	.768	.753	.736	.720	.692	.667	.645	.606
54	Basic Premium Ratio	.785	.710	.665	.623	.592	.566	.541	.517	.498	.481	.449	.423	.398	.361
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.922	.881	.849	.824	.802	.781	.761	.744	.729	.713	.685	.659	.637	.597
53	Basic Premium Ratio	.782	.704	.659	.616	.584	.556	.532	.507	.488	.470	.439	.413	.389	.352
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.918	.876	.844	.818	.794	.772	.755	.737	.720	.704	.677	.651	.629	.589
52	Basic Premium Ratio	.779	.697	.652	.609	.576	.547	.523	.497	.478	.460	.429	.404	.379	.343
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.913	.871	.838	.812	.789	.766	.747	.731	.713	.697	.669	.642	.621	.581
51	Basic Premium Ratio	.774	.691	.644	.600	.566	.537	.513	.487	.467	.450	.419	.394	.369	.333
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.908	.865	.833	.806	.782	.759	.740	.722	.706	.690	.662	.635	.613	.572
50	Basic Premium Ratio	.769	.685	.636	.591	.556	.527	.502	.477	.457	.440	.408	.383	.359	.323
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.904	.861	.827	.800	.775	.753	.733	.715	.697	.681	.653	.627	.604	.564
49	Basic Premium Ratio	.763	.678	.627	.582	.546	.517	.492	.466	.446	.429	.398	.373	.349	.312
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.902	.856	.821	.795	.769	.744	.724	.708	.690	.673	.645	.619	.596	.556
48	Basic Premium Ratio	.758	.672	.619	.573	.536	.507	.481	.456	.435	.419	.387	.362	.339	.302
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.898	.850	.815	.786	.761	.737	.717	.699	.683	.665	.637	.611	.588	.548
47	Basic Premium Ratio	.749	.663	.607	.562	.525	.496	.470	.445	.424	.408	.377	.353	.330	.295
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.892	.845	.810	.780	.754	.731	.710	.692	.674	.657	.629	.603	.579	.540
46	Basic Premium Ratio	.740	.654	.595	.550	.513	.485	.459	.434	.414	.398	.367	.343	.321	.287
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.888	.839	.804	.773	.748	.723	.702	.683	.666	.650	.621	.595	.572	.533
45	Basic Premium Ratio	.731	.645	.583	.539	.502	.474	.448	.422	.403	.387	.357	.334	.312	.280
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.884	.834	.795	.765	.739	.715	.695	.676	.657	.641	.612	.587	.565	.526
44	Basic Premium Ratio	.722	.636	.571	.527	.490	.463	.437	.411	.392	.376	.347	.324	.303	.272
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.878	.826	.790	.758	.732	.706	.686	.669	.650	.633	.605	.580	.558	.519
43	Basic Premium Ratio	.714	.626	.561	.517	.479	.451	.426	.401	.382	.365	.337	.314	.293	.263
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.873	.820	.781	.750	.723	.699	.679	.659	.643	.627	.598	.572	.551	.513
42	Basic Premium Ratio	.705	.615	.551	.507	.467	.440	.414	.390	.371	.355	.327	.304	.284	.253
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.869	.814	.775	.743	.717	.691	.670	.652	.634	.618	.589	.564	.543	.504
41	Basic Premium Ratio	.697	.605	.540	.496	.456	.428	.403	.380	.361	.344	.316	.294	.274	.244
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.863	.809	.769	.737	.708	.684	.663	.644	.627	.610	.582	.557	.534	.496
40	Basic Premium Ratio	.688	.594	.530	.486	.444	.416	.391	.369	.350	.333	.306	.284	.264	.234
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.858	.800	.763	.728	.702	.677	.656	.636	.618	.603	.574	.548	.526	.489
39	Basic Premium Ratio	.677	.583	.519	.475	.434	.406	.380	.359	.340	.323	.296	.274	.255	.226
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.853	.795	.754	.722	.695	.668	.647	.628	.611	.594	.565	.541	.519	.481
38	Basic Premium Ratio	.666	.573	.508	.464	.424	.395	.370	.348	.329	.313	.286	.264	.246	.218
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.848	.790	.748	.713	.686	.661	.640	.620	.604	.585	.558	.533	.511	.473
37	Basic Premium Ratio	.654	.562	.497	.453	.413	.385	.359	.338	.319	.302	.276	.254	.237	.209
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.839	.781	.739	.707	.679	.652	.631	.611	.595	.577	.549	.525	.503	.466
36	Basic Premium Ratio	.643	.551	.486	.442	.403	.374	.348	.327	.308	.292	.266	.244	.228	.201
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.834	.774	.733	.697	.670	.645	.623	.604	.588	.570	.541	.518	.495	.458
35	Basic Premium Ratio	.631	.538	.473	.429	.392	.363	.338	.317	.299	.283	.257	.236	.220	.194
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.825	.765	.723	.690	.660	.636	.615	.596	.579	.561	.534	.510	.489	.452
34	Basic Premium Ratio	.618	.525	.461	.417	.380	.352	.328	.307	.289	.274	.249	.228	.212	.187
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.815	.755	.713	.681	.654	.629	.607	.588	.572	.555	.527	.504	.482	.447

((Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
33	Basic Premium Ratio	.606	.511	.448	.404	.369	.341	.317	.297	.280	.264	.240	.220	.203	.179
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.810	.746	.706	.671	.644	.620	.598	.580	.563	.546	.520	.497	.476	.441
32	Basic Premium Ratio	.593	.498	.435	.391	.357	.330	.307	.287	.270	.255	.231	.212	.195	.172
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.800	.736	.697	.664	.637	.611	.591	.572	.556	.539	.513	.490	.470	.436
31	Basic Premium Ratio	.578	.484	.422	.379	.345	.319	.296	.277	.260	.246	.222	.204	.188	.166
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.791	.730	.688	.655	.628	.604	.583	.565	.549	.532	.507	.484	.465	.431
30	Basic Premium Ratio	.563	.470	.409	.367	.333	.308	.285	.266	.251	.237	.214	.196	.181	.159
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.781	.720	.678	.646	.621	.597	.576	.557	.541	.525	.499	.478	.458	.427
29	Basic Premium Ratio	.548	.455	.396	.354	.321	.296	.274	.256	.241	.227	.205	.187	.174	.153
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.772	.711	.671	.638	.611	.588	.567	.550	.535	.518	.493	.473	.453	.422
28	Basic Premium Ratio	.533	.441	.383	.342	.309	.285	.263	.245	.231	.218	.196	.179	.167	.146
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.762	.702	.662	.629	.603	.580	.560	.543	.527	.511	.486	.466	.446	.415
27	Basic Premium Ratio	.519	.427	.369	.329	.297	.273	.251	.233	.219	.206	.185	.168	.156	.136
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.756	.695	.653	.622	.595	.572	.551	.533	.519	.503	.478	.457	.437	.406
26	Basic Premium Ratio	.504	.413	.355	.315	.284	.260	.239	.222	.208	.195	.174	.158	.145	.124
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.747	.686	.646	.614	.587	.563	.543	.525	.511	.494	.469	.449	.428	.398
25	Basic Premium Ratio	.490	.398	.341	.302	.272	.248	.227	.210	.196	.183	.162	.147	.133	.113
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.736	.676	.636	.604	.579	.555	.534	.517	.502	.485	.461	.440	.421	.392
24	Basic Premium Ratio	.475	.384	.327	.288	.259	.235	.215	.198	.184	.171	.151	.136	.123	.104
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.727	.666	.627	.597	.570	.547	.528	.511	.495	.479	.456	.436	.418	.389
23	Basic Premium Ratio	.454	.367	.312	.275	.247	.224	.205	.189	.176	.164	.145	.130	.119	.101
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.713	.657	.617	.587	.563	.540	.521	.505	.489	.474	.451	.432	.414	.386
22	Basic Premium Ratio	.434	.349	.298	.262	.235	.213	.195	.180	.167	.156	.138	.125	.114	.097
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.704	.647	.608	.578	.554	.533	.513	.499	.484	.469	.446	.427	.410	.383
21	Basic Premium Ratio	.408	.332	.283	.248	.222	.201	.184	.171	.159	.149	.132	.119	.110	.094
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.690	.637	.600	.571	.547	.526	.507	.491	.478	.464	.442	.424	.407	.381
20	Basic Premium Ratio	.388	.314	.268	.234	.209	.190	.174	.161	.150	.141	.125	.113	.105	.090
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.680	.627	.591	.562	.539	.518	.500	.485	.472	.458	.436	.419	.402	.377
19	Basic Premium Ratio	.374	.298	.251	.220	.196	.177	.162	.149	.139	.131	.116	.105	.097	.084
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.674	.620	.582	.555	.531	.511	.493	.478	.465	.451	.430	.413	.397	.372
18	Basic Premium Ratio	.355	.281	.237	.205	.181	.163	.148	.137	.127	.119	.106	.098	.090	.079
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.664	.611	.575	.546	.523	.503	.485	.471	.458	.444	.424	.409	.392	.369
17	Basic Premium Ratio	.337	.265	.221	.189	.169	.151	.137	.127	.117	.110	.098	.090	.083	.074
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.654	.601	.566	.537	.516	.497	.479	.465	.452	.439	.419	.404	.388	.366
16	Basic Premium Ratio	.318	.247	.204	.176	.154	.137	.127	.117	.108	.102	.091	.083	.078	.069
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.644	.592	.557	.530	.508	.488	.473	.459	.447	.434	.415	.399	.384	.362
15	Basic Premium Ratio	.300	.229	.190	.164	.143	.128	.117	.108	.101	.095	.086	.079	.074	.066
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.635	.583	.550	.524	.502	.484	.468	.455	.443	.430	.412	.397	.382	.361
14	Basic Premium Ratio	.291	.216	.174	.154	.134	.123	.112	.103	.097	.091	.083	.078	.072	.065
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.630	.577	.542	.519	.498	.481	.465	.452	.441	.428	.411	.397	.381	.360
13	Basic Premium Ratio	.275	.199	.163	.142	.129	.116	.107	.099	.094	.088	.081	.076	.071	.064
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.622	.568	.537	.513	.495	.478	.463	.450	.440	.427	.410	.396	.381	.360
12	Basic Premium Ratio	.263	.182	.151	.134	.121	.110	.102	.096	.089	.086	.078	.073	.069	.063
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.616	.559	.531	.510	.491	.475	.460	.449	.437	.426	.409	.394	.380	.359
11	Basic Premium Ratio	.246	.162	.138	.126	.114	.105	.098	.092	.086	.083	.076	.071	.068	.062
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.608	.549	.524	.505	.488	.472	.458	.447	.436	.424	.407	.393	.379	.359
10	Basic Premium Ratio	.229	.147	.129	.117	.107	.098	.093	.088	.083	.079	.074	.069	.066	.061
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.602	.542	.520	.501	.484	.469	.456	.445	.434	.422	.406	.392	.378	.358
9	Basic Premium Ratio	.211	.133	.119	.109	.101	.094	.088	.083	.079	.077	.071	.068	.065	.061
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.593	.535	.515	.497	.481	.467	.453	.442	.432	.421	.405	.392	.378	.358
8	Basic Premium Ratio	.189	.122	.111	.102	.095	.088	.083	.079	.077	.074	.069	.066	.063	.060
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.579	.529	.511	.493	.478	.464	.451	.440	.431	.420	.404	.391	.377	.358
7	Basic Premium Ratio	.160	.112	.101	.095	.088	.083	.079	.076	.074	.071	.067	.063	.062	.059
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.565	.524	.506	.490	.475	.462	.449	.439	.430	.418	.403	.389	.376	.357

(Maximum Premium Ratio:	1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group														
6 Basic Premium Ratio	.130	.101	.095	.088	.083	.079	.075	.072	.070	.068	.064	.062	.060	.058
Minimum Premium Ratio	.550	.519	.503	.486	.472	.459	.447	.437	.428	.417	.401	.389	.376	.357
5 Basic Premium Ratio	.099	.092	.087	.081	.078	.074	.071	.069	.067	.065	.062	.060	.059	.057
Minimum Premium Ratio	.550	.515	.499	.483	.470	.457	.445	.435	.426	.415	.400	.388	.375	.356
Maximum Premium Ratio:	1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00

Size Group

84 Basic Premium Ratio	.832	.812	.793	.783	.767	.765	.754	.747	.736	.733	.720	.705	.694	.667
Minimum Premium Ratio	.986	.974	.964	.955	.948	.940	.934	.928	.923	.917	.907	.898	.889	.873
83 Basic Premium Ratio	.832	.811	.793	.782	.767	.761	.748	.744	.731	.726	.714	.702	.687	.660
Minimum Premium Ratio	.984	.972	.961	.952	.944	.936	.930	.923	.918	.912	.901	.891	.882	.865
82 Basic Premium Ratio	.832	.810	.793	.781	.766	.757	.747	.740	.731	.724	.709	.693	.680	.653
Minimum Premium Ratio	.983	.969	.958	.948	.940	.932	.925	.918	.912	.906	.895	.885	.875	.857
81 Basic Premium Ratio	.832	.810	.793	.777	.764	.753	.746	.732	.726	.717	.703	.689	.674	.646
Minimum Premium Ratio	.981	.967	.955	.945	.936	.928	.920	.914	.907	.901	.889	.878	.868	.849
80 Basic Premium Ratio	.832	.810	.791	.771	.761	.752	.738	.727	.724	.713	.697	.684	.666	.638
Minimum Premium Ratio	.980	.965	.952	.942	.932	.923	.916	.909	.901	.895	.883	.871	.861	.841
79 Basic Premium Ratio	.831	.810	.788	.770	.757	.745	.733	.725	.715	.706	.691	.675	.658	.629
Minimum Premium Ratio	.979	.962	.949	.938	.928	.919	.911	.903	.896	.889	.876	.864	.853	.832
78 Basic Premium Ratio	.830	.805	.785	.768	.751	.741	.727	.716	.708	.698	.679	.664	.648	.618
Minimum Premium Ratio	.977	.960	.946	.934	.924	.914	.906	.898	.890	.883	.870	.857	.845	.823
77 Basic Premium Ratio	.829	.803	.781	.760	.745	.732	.719	.710	.700	.688	.672	.654	.636	.607
Minimum Premium Ratio	.976	.958	.943	.931	.920	.910	.901	.892	.884	.877	.862	.849	.837	.813
76 Basic Premium Ratio	.829	.802	.776	.757	.739	.727	.712	.701	.689	.679	.661	.644	.627	.595
Minimum Premium Ratio	.974	.955	.940	.927	.916	.905	.896	.887	.879	.871	.856	.842	.829	.805
75 Basic Premium Ratio	.828	.796	.771	.753	.736	.722	.705	.693	.682	.671	.653	.634	.618	.586
Minimum Premium Ratio	.973	.953	.937	.923	.911	.900	.891	.882	.873	.865	.849	.835	.821	.796
74 Basic Premium Ratio	.828	.796	.767	.750	.730	.713	.698	.687	.675	.665	.644	.627	.609	.575
Minimum Premium Ratio	.971	.950	.934	.919	.907	.896	.886	.876	.867	.858	.842	.826	.812	.786
73 Basic Premium Ratio	.827	.791	.767	.746	.727	.708	.694	.681	.670	.658	.634	.618	.597	.565
Minimum Premium Ratio	.969	.948	.930	.915	.902	.891	.880	.870	.860	.851	.835	.818	.804	.776
72 Basic Premium Ratio	.827	.790	.762	.738	.720	.703	.690	.674	.662	.649	.627	.608	.588	.554
Minimum Premium Ratio	.967	.945	.927	.912	.898	.886	.874	.864	.854	.845	.827	.810	.795	.766
71 Basic Premium Ratio	.826	.789	.760	.736	.716	.696	.681	.667	.653	.641	.619	.598	.577	.543
Minimum Premium Ratio	.965	.942	.923	.907	.893	.881	.869	.858	.848	.838	.819	.802	.786	.756
70 Basic Premium Ratio	.825	.787	.754	.731	.712	.693	.676	.660	.647	.634	.609	.588	.568	.532
Minimum Premium Ratio	.964	.939	.920	.903	.888	.875	.863	.852	.841	.831	.812	.794	.777	.746
69 Basic Premium Ratio	.824	.784	.751	.725	.704	.686	.667	.653	.641	.626	.602	.578	.557	.521
Minimum Premium Ratio	.962	.936	.916	.899	.884	.870	.858	.846	.834	.824	.804	.786	.769	.737
68 Basic Premium Ratio	.824	.779	.746	.718	.697	.677	.660	.644	.631	.615	.592	.567	.547	.510
Minimum Premium Ratio	.959	.933	.912	.895	.879	.865	.852	.840	.828	.818	.797	.779	.761	.729
67 Basic Premium Ratio	.824	.778	.742	.713	.690	.669	.653	.636	.621	.607	.582	.559	.538	.500
Minimum Premium Ratio	.957	.929	.908	.890	.874	.860	.846	.834	.822	.811	.790	.771	.753	.721
66 Basic Premium Ratio	.821	.774	.737	.709	.684	.663	.645	.629	.613	.598	.571	.548	.526	.490
Minimum Premium Ratio	.955	.926	.904	.885	.869	.854	.840	.827	.815	.804	.783	.763	.745	.711

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
<hr/>															
<hr/>															
Size Group															
<hr/>															
65	Basic Premium Ratio	.821	.769	.732	.702	.677	.657	.637	.619	.604	.588	.561	.538	.517	.479
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.952	.923	.900	.881	.864	.848	.834	.821	.808	.797	.775	.754	.735	.701
64	Basic Premium Ratio	.818	.764	.727	.697	.670	.648	.629	.612	.596	.580	.552	.528	.507	.469
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.950	.920	.896	.876	.859	.843	.828	.814	.801	.789	.767	.746	.726	.691
63	Basic Premium Ratio	.818	.762	.722	.692	.666	.642	.622	.603	.586	.571	.543	.517	.495	.458
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.947	.916	.892	.871	.853	.837	.822	.808	.795	.782	.759	.738	.718	.682
62	Basic Premium Ratio	.814	.760	.719	.687	.659	.636	.616	.596	.578	.562	.534	.509	.486	.448
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.945	.912	.887	.866	.848	.831	.815	.801	.788	.775	.751	.729	.709	.673
61	Basic Premium Ratio	.813	.754	.713	.680	.652	.628	.606	.587	.570	.553	.524	.497	.475	.437
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.942	.909	.883	.861	.842	.825	.809	.794	.780	.767	.743	.721	.700	.663
60	Basic Premium Ratio	.811	.749	.705	.672	.644	.618	.597	.577	.558	.543	.513	.486	.464	.425
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.939	.905	.879	.856	.836	.819	.802	.787	.773	.759	.734	.712	.690	.653
59	Basic Premium Ratio	.805	.744	.699	.664	.634	.608	.586	.567	.549	.532	.501	.475	.452	.413
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.937	.901	.874	.851	.831	.813	.796	.780	.765	.751	.726	.703	.681	.643
58	Basic Premium Ratio	.802	.737	.691	.655	.626	.599	.577	.557	.538	.521	.490	.464	.441	.403
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.934	.898	.870	.846	.825	.807	.789	.773	.758	.744	.718	.694	.672	.633
57	Basic Premium Ratio	.796	.731	.685	.647	.618	.591	.568	.547	.528	.511	.480	.454	.431	.392
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.932	.894	.865	.841	.819	.800	.782	.766	.751	.736	.710	.685	.663	.624
56	Basic Premium Ratio	.794	.725	.678	.640	.609	.581	.558	.537	.518	.501	.470	.443	.421	.382
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.928	.890	.860	.835	.813	.794	.776	.759	.743	.728	.701	.677	.654	.614
55	Basic Premium Ratio	.790	.721	.671	.632	.601	.573	.550	.527	.509	.490	.460	.433	.411	.371
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.925	.885	.855	.830	.807	.787	.768	.752	.735	.721	.693	.668	.645	.606
54	Basic Premium Ratio	.787	.714	.666	.626	.592	.565	.541	.518	.499	.481	.450	.423	.400	.363
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.921	.881	.849	.823	.801	.780	.761	.744	.728	.713	.685	.660	.637	.597
53	Basic Premium Ratio	.784	.709	.659	.617	.585	.555	.532	.509	.489	.472	.440	.414	.391	.353
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.917	.876	.844	.818	.794	.774	.754	.737	.721	.705	.677	.652	.629	.589
52	Basic Premium Ratio	.780	.704	.651	.610	.577	.548	.522	.501	.481	.463	.431	.405	.382	.345
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.913	.871	.839	.812	.788	.767	.748	.729	.713	.697	.669	.644	.621	.581
51	Basic Premium Ratio	.775	.698	.644	.602	.567	.539	.514	.491	.471	.454	.422	.396	.372	.336
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.909	.866	.833	.806	.782	.760	.740	.722	.705	.689	.661	.635	.613	.573
50	Basic Premium Ratio	.769	.690	.634	.593	.557	.529	.502	.480	.460	.442	.411	.384	.362	.325
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.905	.861	.828	.799	.775	.752	.733	.714	.697	.681	.652	.627	.604	.564
49	Basic Premium Ratio	.763	.682	.626	.583	.548	.519	.493	.470	.450	.432	.400	.374	.352	.316
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.901	.856	.822	.793	.768	.745	.725	.706	.689	.673	.644	.618	.595	.555
48	Basic Premium Ratio	.756	.674	.617	.574	.538	.509	.482	.460	.439	.422	.390	.365	.342	.307
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.897	.851	.816	.786	.761	.738	.718	.699	.682	.665	.636	.610	.587	.547
47	Basic Premium Ratio	.750	.665	.607	.564	.528	.498	.472	.449	.429	.411	.381	.355	.333	.298
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.892	.846	.810	.780	.754	.731	.710	.692	.674	.658	.628	.602	.579	.539
46	Basic Premium Ratio	.741	.654	.596	.552	.516	.485	.460	.437	.418	.400	.370	.345	.323	.289
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.888	.840	.803	.773	.747	.724	.703	.684	.666	.650	.621	.596	.573	.534
45	Basic Premium Ratio	.731	.643	.585	.540	.503	.473	.448	.426	.406	.389	.360	.335	.315	.282
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.884	.834	.796	.766	.740	.717	.696	.677	.660	.643	.614	.589	.567	.528
44	Basic Premium Ratio	.722	.633	.573	.528	.493	.463	.437	.415	.396	.379	.350	.326	.306	.274
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.879	.828	.790	.759	.732	.709	.689	.670	.653	.637	.608	.583	.561	.523

Maximum Premium Ratio:		1.05	1.10	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.35	1.40	1.45	1.50	1.60	1.70	1.80	2.00
Size Group															
43	Basic Premium Ratio	.712	.622	.562	.517	.481	.451	.426	.405	.386	.370	.341	.318	.298	.267
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.874	.822	.783	.752	.726	.703	.682	.663	.646	.630	.602	.578	.556	.518
42	Basic Premium Ratio	.703	.612	.551	.506	.470	.440	.415	.394	.375	.358	.330	.307	.288	.257
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.869	.815	.776	.745	.718	.694	.673	.654	.637	.621	.593	.568	.547	.509
41	Basic Premium Ratio	.696	.602	.541	.495	.458	.429	.403	.382	.363	.347	.319	.296	.277	.247
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.863	.809	.769	.737	.710	.686	.665	.645	.628	.612	.583	.559	.537	.499
40	Basic Premium Ratio	.686	.592	.530	.484	.448	.418	.392	.371	.352	.336	.308	.286	.267	.237
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.858	.802	.762	.729	.701	.677	.656	.637	.619	.603	.574	.549	.527	.490
39	Basic Premium Ratio	.677	.581	.520	.473	.437	.407	.382	.360	.342	.325	.298	.275	.257	.228
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.852	.796	.754	.721	.693	.669	.648	.628	.610	.594	.566	.541	.519	.482
38	Basic Premium Ratio	.668	.571	.509	.463	.426	.396	.372	.350	.332	.315	.288	.266	.248	.220
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.846	.789	.747	.714	.686	.661	.639	.620	.602	.586	.557	.533	.510	.473
37	Basic Premium Ratio	.659	.562	.499	.453	.416	.387	.362	.340	.322	.306	.279	.257	.240	.212
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.839	.781	.740	.706	.678	.653	.631	.612	.594	.578	.550	.525	.503	.466
36	Basic Premium Ratio	.649	.551	.488	.442	.405	.376	.351	.330	.312	.297	.270	.249	.231	.204
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.832	.774	.732	.698	.670	.645	.624	.604	.586	.570	.542	.517	.496	.459
35	Basic Premium Ratio	.635	.538	.475	.429	.393	.365	.340	.320	.302	.286	.260	.240	.223	.196
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.825	.766	.724	.690	.662	.637	.616	.596	.579	.563	.535	.510	.489	.453
34	Basic Premium Ratio	.623	.525	.463	.418	.382	.354	.330	.309	.292	.277	.252	.231	.215	.189
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.816	.757	.715	.682	.654	.629	.608	.589	.571	.556	.528	.504	.483	.447
33	Basic Premium Ratio	.610	.513	.451	.406	.371	.343	.320	.300	.283	.268	.244	.224	.208	.183
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.808	.749	.707	.674	.646	.622	.600	.582	.564	.549	.521	.498	.477	.442
32	Basic Premium Ratio	.597	.501	.440	.395	.361	.334	.311	.291	.274	.260	.236	.217	.201	.177
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.799	.740	.699	.666	.638	.614	.593	.575	.558	.543	.515	.492	.472	.438
31	Basic Premium Ratio	.582	.486	.425	.382	.348	.321	.299	.280	.264	.250	.226	.208	.193	.171
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.791	.732	.690	.658	.630	.606	.586	.567	.551	.536	.510	.487	.467	.434
30	Basic Premium Ratio	.567	.471	.412	.369	.336	.309	.288	.269	.254	.240	.218	.201	.187	.165
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.782	.723	.681	.649	.622	.599	.579	.561	.545	.530	.504	.482	.463	.430
29	Basic Premium Ratio	.551	.457	.398	.356	.324	.299	.277	.260	.245	.232	.210	.194	.180	.160
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.773	.714	.673	.642	.615	.592	.572	.555	.539	.524	.499	.477	.459	.427
28	Basic Premium Ratio	.537	.444	.386	.344	.313	.287	.266	.249	.234	.221	.200	.184	.171	.151
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.764	.705	.665	.633	.606	.584	.564	.546	.530	.516	.491	.470	.451	.421
27	Basic Premium Ratio	.524	.431	.373	.332	.300	.275	.254	.236	.221	.208	.187	.170	.157	.136
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.755	.697	.655	.623	.596	.573	.552	.534	.518	.502	.476	.453	.433	.400
26	Basic Premium Ratio	.510	.418	.361	.320	.288	.263	.242	.224	.209	.196	.175	.158	.145	.124
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.747	.688	.646	.613	.586	.562	.541	.523	.505	.490	.463	.439	.418	.383
25	Basic Premium Ratio	.497	.405	.348	.307	.276	.251	.230	.213	.198	.185	.164	.147	.134	.114
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.738	.679	.638	.605	.577	.553	.531	.512	.495	.479	.451	.427	.405	.369
24	Basic Premium Ratio	.476	.386	.331	.292	.262	.238	.218	.202	.188	.176	.157	.141	.129	.111
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.727	.669	.628	.596	.569	.546	.525	.506	.490	.474	.447	.423	.402	.367
23	Basic Premium Ratio	.454	.368	.315	.277	.249	.226	.208	.192	.179	.168	.150	.136	.124	.107
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.716	.659	.619	.588	.561	.539	.519	.501	.485	.469	.443	.420	.400	.365
22	Basic Premium Ratio	.434	.351	.300	.264	.237	.216	.198	.184	.172	.161	.144	.131	.120	.104
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.704	.649	.611	.580	.555	.533	.513	.496	.480	.465	.439	.417	.397	.363

Maximum Premium Ratio: 1.05 1.10 1.15 1.20 1.25 1.30 1.35 1.40 1.45 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00

Size Group

21	Basic Premium Ratio	.414	.335	.286	.252	.226	.206	.190	.176	.165	.155	.139	.126	.117	.102
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.693	.640	.603	.573	.548	.527	.508	.491	.476	.461	.436	.414	.395	.361
20	Basic Premium Ratio	.394	.318	.271	.238	.214	.194	.178	.166	.155	.145	.130	.119	.110	.096
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.683	.631	.595	.566	.541	.520	.502	.485	.470	.456	.431	.410	.391	.358
19	Basic Premium Ratio	.377	.301	.254	.222	.198	.179	.164	.152	.142	.133	.120	.109	.101	.089
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.674	.621	.585	.557	.533	.513	.494	.478	.464	.450	.426	.405	.387	.355
18	Basic Premium Ratio	.358	.283	.238	.207	.184	.166	.152	.140	.131	.123	.110	.101	.094	.083
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.664	.612	.575	.547	.524	.505	.488	.472	.458	.445	.421	.401	.383	.352
17	Basic Premium Ratio	.339	.266	.222	.192	.171	.154	.140	.130	.121	.114	.103	.094	.088	.079
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.654	.602	.567	.539	.517	.497	.480	.466	.453	.440	.418	.398	.380	.350
16	Basic Premium Ratio	.320	.249	.208	.179	.159	.143	.131	.121	.113	.106	.096	.088	.083	.075
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.644	.593	.559	.532	.510	.491	.475	.461	.448	.436	.414	.395	.378	.348
15	Basic Premium Ratio	.303	.234	.194	.168	.148	.134	.122	.113	.106	.100	.091	.084	.079	.072
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.635	.586	.552	.526	.504	.486	.470	.457	.445	.433	.412	.393	.376	.346
14	Basic Premium Ratio	.293	.220	.180	.157	.141	.128	.117	.109	.103	.097	.089	.082	.078	.071
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.630	.579	.545	.521	.501	.483	.468	.455	.443	.432	.411	.392	.375	.346
13	Basic Premium Ratio	.281	.204	.167	.148	.133	.122	.112	.105	.099	.094	.086	.081	.076	.070
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.624	.571	.538	.516	.497	.480	.465	.453	.441	.430	.409	.391	.374	.345
12	Basic Premium Ratio	.269	.187	.156	.139	.126	.116	.108	.101	.096	.091	.084	.079	.075	.069
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.618	.562	.533	.512	.493	.477	.463	.451	.440	.429	.408	.390	.374	.345
11	Basic Premium Ratio	.254	.167	.145	.130	.119	.110	.103	.097	.092	.088	.082	.077	.073	.068
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.611	.552	.527	.507	.490	.474	.461	.449	.438	.427	.407	.389	.373	.344
10	Basic Premium Ratio	.238	.150	.135	.122	.113	.105	.098	.093	.089	.085	.079	.075	.072	.067
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.603	.544	.522	.503	.487	.472	.458	.447	.436	.426	.406	.388	.372	.344
9	Basic Premium Ratio	.219	.138	.125	.115	.106	.100	.094	.089	.085	.082	.077	.073	.071	.066
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.593	.538	.517	.500	.483	.469	.456	.445	.434	.424	.405	.387	.372	.343
8	Basic Premium Ratio	.197	.127	.116	.107	.100	.094	.090	.086	.082	.079	.075	.072	.069	.065
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.582	.532	.513	.496	.480	.466	.454	.443	.433	.423	.404	.387	.371	.343
7	Basic Premium Ratio	.170	.117	.108	.100	.094	.089	.085	.082	.079	.077	.073	.070	.068	.064
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.569	.527	.509	.492	.477	.464	.452	.441	.431	.422	.403	.386	.370	.342
6	Basic Premium Ratio	.137	.107	.100	.094	.089	.085	.081	.078	.076	.074	.071	.068	.066	.064
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.552	.522	.505	.489	.475	.462	.450	.439	.430	.420	.402	.385	.369	.342
5	Basic Premium Ratio	.105	.098	.092	.087	.083	.080	.077	.075	.073	.071	.068	.066	.065	.063
	Minimum Premium Ratio	.536	.518	.501	.486	.472	.459	.448	.438	.428	.419	.400	.384	.369	.342

WSR 88-24-011

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 88-28—Filed December 1, 1988—Eff. January 1, 1989]

I, Joseph A. Dear, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to medical aid rules and maximum fee schedule, WAC 296-20-0100, dealing with the department's Chiropractic Advisory Committee; and WAC 296-20-132, 296-20-135, 296-20-140, 296-20-145, 296-20-150, 296-

20-155 and 296-20-115, dealing with increasing the base fees for medicine, chiropractic, physical therapy, drugless therapeutics and nurse practitioner procedure codes.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-19-111 filed with the code reviser on September 21, 1988. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being January 1, 1989.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.04.020(4) and 51.04.030 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.
By Joseph A. Dear
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-20-0100 CHIROPRACTIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE. (1) The director or the director's designee shall appoint a chiropractic advisory and utilization review committee.

(2) The committee will function as an advisor to the department with respect to policies affecting chiropractic care, quality assurance, clinical management of cases, utilization review, and the establishment of rules. It shall advise and assist the department in the department's relationship with providers of chiropractic care, and assist the department in ensuring that injured workers receive good quality chiropractic care in a safe and effective manner.

(3) The chiropractic advisory committee shall:

(a) Advise the department on standards as to what constitutes effective and accepted chiropractic treatment, for use by attending chiropractors and for chiropractic consultants to use in reviewing cases referred for consultation;

(b) Advise the department on standards and minimum credentials for chiropractic consultants and the content of consultant reports; and

(c) Review the performance of individual chiropractors and chiropractic consultants for conformance with standards and requirements and advise the department of instances where standards and requirements have not been met.

The department shall review the advice and recommendations of the committee and shall promulgate those standards and requirements which it chooses to adopt. The department shall review the advice from the committee on the performance of chiropractors and shall act upon this advice at its sole discretion.

(4) The committee will meet on a monthly basis or as needed. The department will reimburse members of the committee for travel and incidental expenses related to the meetings.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 82-39, filed 11/29/82, effective 1/1/84)

WAC 296-20-132 DETERMINATION OF CONVERSION FACTOR ADJUSTMENTS. ((Effective January 1, 1984, and thereafter:))

Adjustments to the conversion factors for the specialty areas of medicine, surgery, anesthesiology, radiology, and pathology may occur on January 1st of each year following prior public hearings.

Such adjustments will be based on the estimated increase/decrease in the state's average wage for the current year. The following calendar year's estimate will be adjusted to reflect the actual increase/decrease in the

state's average wage for the preceding year ((as computed by the department of employment security and determined by RCW 50.04.355 as now or hereafter amended)).

The total percentage change for any one calendar year for all five conversion factors may not exceed the total of the estimated increase/decrease in the current year, plus or minus the actual adjustment for the preceding calendar year. However, apportionment of the adjustments may be made between the various speciality areas to provide parity between the components of the fee schedule.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-45, filed 1/8/87)

WAC 296-20-135 CONVERSION FACTORS ((~~TABLE—MEDICINE, CHIROPRACTIC, PHYSICAL THERAPY, DRUGLESS THERAPEUTICS AND NURSE PRACTITIONER SECTIONS~~)). ((This table is a conversion of fee schedule unit values to fees in dollar amounts at \$1.24 per unit. This conversion factor is to be applied to the medicine section of the fee schedule, the chiropractic, physical therapy, drugless therapeutic and nurse practitioner sections.

Unit Value	@\$1.24	Unit Value	@\$1.24	Unit Value	@\$1.24
0.1	0.12	5.0	6.20	9.9	12.28
0.2	0.25	5.1	6.32	10.0	12.40
0.3	0.37	5.2	6.45	10.5	13.02
0.4	0.50	5.3	6.57	11.0	13.64
0.5	0.62	5.4	6.70	11.5	14.26
0.6	0.74	5.5	6.82	12.0	14.88
0.7	0.87	5.6	6.94	12.5	15.50
0.8	0.99	5.7	7.07	13.0	16.12
0.9	1.12	5.8	7.19	13.5	16.74
1.0	1.24	5.9	7.32	14.0	17.36
1.1	1.36	6.0	7.44	14.5	17.98
1.2	1.49	6.1	7.56	15.0	18.60
1.3	1.61	6.2	7.69	16.0	19.84
1.4	1.74	6.3	7.81	17.0	21.08
1.5	1.86	6.4	7.94	18.0	22.32
1.6	1.98	6.5	8.06	19.0	23.56
1.7	2.11	6.6	8.18	20.0	24.80
1.8	2.23	6.7	8.31	21.0	26.04
1.9	2.36	6.8	8.43	22.0	27.28
2.0	2.48	6.9	8.56	23.0	28.52
2.1	2.60	7.0	8.68	24.0	29.76
2.2	2.73	7.1	8.80	25.0	31.00
2.3	2.85	7.2	8.93	30.0	37.20
2.4	2.98	7.3	9.05	35.0	43.40
2.5	3.10	7.4	9.18	40.0	49.60
2.6	3.22	7.5	9.30	45.0	55.80
2.7	3.35	7.6	9.42	50.0	62.00
2.8	3.47	7.7	9.55	55.0	68.20
2.9	3.60	7.8	9.67	60.0	74.40
3.0	3.72	7.9	9.80	65.0	80.60
3.1	3.84	8.0	9.92	70.0	86.80
3.2	3.97	8.1	10.04	75.0	93.00
3.3	4.09	8.2	10.17	80.0	99.20
3.4	4.22	8.3	10.29	85.0	105.40
3.5	4.34	8.4	10.42	90.0	111.60
3.6	4.46	8.5	10.54	95.0	117.80
3.7	4.59	8.6	10.66	100.0	124.00
3.8	4.71	8.7	10.79	105.0	130.20
3.9	4.84	8.8	10.91	110.0	136.40
4.0	4.96	8.9	11.04	115.0	142.60
4.1	5.08	9.0	11.16	120.0	148.80
4.2	5.21	9.1	11.28	125.0	155.00

Unit Value	@\$1.24	Unit Value	@\$1.24	Unit Value	@\$1.24
4.3	5.33	9.2	11.41	130.0	161.20
4.4	5.46	9.3	11.53	140.0	173.60
4.5	5.58	9.4	11.66	150.0	186.00
4.6	5.70	9.5	11.78	160.0	198.40
4.7	5.83	9.6	11.90	170.0	210.80
4.8	5.95	9.7	12.03	180.0	223.20
4.9	6.08	9.8	12.15	190.0	235.60
				200.0	248.00))

WSR 88-24-012

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 88-30—Filed December 1, 1988—Eff. January 1, 1989]

I, Joseph A. Dear, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington 98504, the annexed rules relating to this order amends sections in chapter 296-17 WAC. Revisions to the accident fund and medical aid base rates for each risk classification and revisions to the experience-rating rules and parameters to reflect more current experience for workers' compensation insurance underwritten by the Department of Labor and Industries.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-20-074 filed with the code reviser on October 5, 1988. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being January 1, 1989.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.16.035 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.04.020 which directs that the director, Department of Labor and Industries, has authority to implement the provisions of Title 51 RCW Industrial Insurance Laws.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.

By Joseph A. Dear
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-26, filed 12/1/87, effective 1/1/88)

WAC 296-17-855 EXPERIENCE MODIFICATION. The basis of the experience modification shall be a comparison of the actual losses charged to an employer during the experience period with the losses which would be expected for an average employer reporting the same exposures in each classification. The comparison shall contain actuarial refinements designed to mitigate the effects of losses which may be considered catastrophic or of doubtful statistical significance, due consideration being given to the volume of the employer's experience. Except for those employers who qualify for an adjusted experience modification as specified in WAC 296-17-860 or 296-17-865, the experience modification shall be calculated from the formula:

$$\text{MODIFICATION} = \frac{A_p + W A_e + (1-W) E_e + B}{E + B}$$

The components A_p , $W A_e$, and $(1-W) E_e$ are values which shall be charged against an employer's experience record. The component, E , shall be the expected value of these charges for an average employer reporting the same exposures in each classification. The meaning and function of each symbol in the formula is specified below.

(1) The following conversion factors are the base fees for determining the maximum amount paid by the department for procedures with specified unit values. To determine the maximum amount paid, the unit value for a specific procedure is multiplied by the appropriate conversion factor or base fee listed below.

(2) The conversion factor or base fee for medicine, chiropractic, physical therapy, drugless therapeutics and nurse practitioner procedure codes is \$1.29.

(3) The conversion factor or base fee for anesthesia is \$19.18.

(4) The conversion factor or base fee for radiology is \$5.92.

(5) The conversion factor or base fee for pathology is \$5.56.

(6) The conversion factor or base fee for surgery is \$67.83.

REPEALER

The following sections of the Washington Administrative Code are repealed:

WAC 296-20-140 CONVERSION FACTOR TABLE—ANESTHESIA.

WAC 296-20-145 CONVERSION FACTOR TABLE—SURGERY.

WAC 296-20-150 CONVERSION FACTOR TABLE—RADIOLOGY.

WAC 296-20-155 CONVERSION FACTOR TABLE—PATHOLOGY.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-47, filed 1/8/87)

WAC 296-23A-115 HOSPITAL OUTPATIENT SERVICES CONVERSION FACTORS.

Radiology (codes 70000 through 79999) ((~~\$5.69~~))
\$5.92

Pathology and laboratory (codes 80000 through 89999) ((~~\$0.54~~))
\$0.56

Physical therapy (codes beginning with 9) ((~~\$1.24~~))
\$1.29

(The conversion factor multiplied by the unit value equals the fee maximum for a procedure code in this chapter.)

"Ap" signifies "primary actual losses." For each claim the primary actual loss is defined as that portion of the claim which is considered completely rateable for all employers and which is to enter the experience modification calculation at its full value. For each claim in excess of (~~(\$4,416)~~) \$8,360 the primary actual loss shall be determined from the formula:

$$\text{Primary loss} = \frac{((\del{+1,040}) \ 20,900)}{\text{Total loss} + ((\del{6,624}) \ 12,540)} \times \text{total loss}$$

Primary actual losses for selected claim values are shown in Table I. For each claim less than (~~(\$4,416)~~) \$8,360 the full value of the claim shall be considered a primary loss.

"Ae" signifies "excess actual losses." For each claim the excess actual loss is defined as that portion of the claim which is not considered completely rateable for all employers. The excess actual loss for each claim shall be determined by subtracting the primary loss from the total loss.

"W" signifies "W value." For each employer, the W value determines the portion of the actual excess losses which shall be included in the calculation of his experience modification, due consideration being given to the volume of his experience. This amount is represented by the symbol "WAe" in the experience modification formula. W values are set forth in Table II.

"E" signifies "expected losses." An employer's expected losses shall be determined by multiplying his reported exposure in each classification during the experience period by the classification expected loss rate. Expected loss rates are set forth in Table III.

"Ee" signifies "expected excess losses." Expected losses in each classification shall be multiplied by the classification "D-Ratio" to obtain "expected primary losses." Expected excess losses shall then be calculated by subtracting expected primary losses from expected total losses. Each employer shall have a statistical charge included in the calculation of his experience modification, said charge to be actuarially equivalent to the amount forgiven an average employer because of the exclusion of a portion of his excess actual losses. This charge is represented by "(1-W) Ee" in the experience modification formula. D-Ratios are set forth in Table III.

"B" signifies "B value" or "ballast." In order to limit the effect of a single severe accident on the modification of a small employer, a stabilizing element (B value) shall be added to both actual and expected losses. B values are set forth in Table II.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-27, filed 11/30/87, effective 1/1/88)

WAC 296-17-86501 BUILDING INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE MODIFICATION LIMITATIONS. The premiums of building construction employers subject to the risk classifications 0505, 0506, 0507, 0510, 0511, 0512, (~~and~~) 0513, 0514, 0515, and 0516 shall be experience rated beginning January 1, 1988, using the reported past experience of such employers as provided for in the department's experience rating plan. However,

the initial experience rating adjustment of these classifications for each such employer shall be made from a base modification of 1.0000, with adjustments limited to twenty-five percent annually until the actual experience rating developed by the department for each such employer has been reached or four years from the effective date of this section whichever comes first. Thereafter, adjustments will be made in accordance with the parameters established by the department's experience rating plan. Premiums of building construction employers reported in all other risk classifications not specifically listed above which are currently experience rated are not subject to the limitations imposed by this section and shall be computed utilizing the actual earned experience rating of each building construction employer, in accordance with the department's experience rating plan.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-12, filed 7/22/88, effective 1/1/89)

WAC 296-17-870 EVALUATION OF ACTUAL LOSSES. Except as provided in the following subsections of this paragraph, actual losses shall include all payments as of the "valuation date" for each claim arising from an accident occurring during the experience period. Losses for claims open as of the valuation date may also include a reserve for future payments. Actual losses on claims for accidents occurring outside of the experience period shall not be included.

(1) Valuation date. The valuation date shall be on and include December 31, one year and one day immediately preceding the effective date of premium rates as set forth in WAC 296-17-895. For experience modifications effective January 1, 1990, the valuation date shall be June 1, seven months immediately preceding the effective date of premium rates.

(2) Retroactive adjustments - revision of losses between valuation dates. No claim value shall be revised between valuation dates and no retroactive adjustment of an experience modification shall be made because of disputation concerning the judgment of the claims examiner or because of subsequent developments except as specifically provided in the following cases:

- (a) In cases where loss values are included or excluded through mistake other than error of judgment.
- (b) In cases where a third party recovery is made.
- (c) In cases where the claim qualifies as a second injury claim under the provisions of RCW 51.16.120.
- (d) In cases where a claim, which was previously evaluated as a compensable claim, is (~~officially~~) closed and is determined to be noncompensable (ineligible for benefits other than medical treatment).
- (e) In cases where a claim is closed and is determined to be ineligible for any benefits.

In the above specified cases retroactive adjustment of the experience modification shall be made for each rating in which the claim was included.

(3) Average death value. Each fatality occurring to a worker included within the mandatory or elective coverage of Title 51 RCW shall be assigned the "average death value," said value to be the average incurred cost for all such fatalities occurring during the experience period. The average death value is set forth in Table II.

(4) Third party recovery. In the event of a third party recovery on a claim, the employer shall be charged for a portion of the actual loss amount, gross of such recovery, established on the claim for each year in which the claim's injury date falls within the experience period (see WAC 296-17-850). This portion shall be calculated at the time the recovery is made, and shall be determined by taking the ratio of the total cost of the claim, including attorneys' fees, after recovery, to the total cost of the claim before recovery. If the claim is open at the time the recovery is made, then costs before and after recovery may include an allowance for future claim payments. Both the primary and excess components of the actual loss amount shall be reduced in the same proportion.

(5) Second injury claims. The primary and excess values of any claim which becomes eligible for second injury relief under the provisions of RCW 51.16.120, as now or hereafter amended, shall be reduced by the percentage of relief granted.

(6) Occupational disease claims. When a claim results from an employee's exposure to an occupational disease hazard, the "date of injury," for the purposes of experience rating, shall be the date on which the disability was diagnosed, giving rise to the filing of a claim for benefits. The cost of any occupational disease claim, paid from the accident fund and medical aid fund and arising from exposure to the disease hazard under two or more employers, shall be prorated to each period of employment involving exposure to the hazard. Each insured employer who had employed the claimant during the experience period, and for at least ten percent of the claimant's exposure to the hazard, shall be charged for his share of the claim based upon the prorated costs.

(7) Maximum claim value. No claim shall enter an employer's experience record at a value greater than the "maximum claim value." The maximum claim value is set forth in Table II.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-26, filed 12/1/87, effective 1/1/88)

WAC 296-17-875 TABLE I.

Primary Losses for Selected Claim Values

((CLAIM VALUE — PRIMARY LOSS

4,416	4,416
4,558	4,500
5,483	5,000
7,886	6,000
11,477	7,000
17,432	8,000
22,167	8,500
29,224	9,000
97,959*	10,341
110,400**	10,415))

CLAIM VALUE PRIMARY LOSS

8,360	8,360
9,484	9,000
11,505	10,000
13,933	11,000

CLAIM VALUE	PRIMARY LOSS
16,908	12,000
25,443	14,000
40,947	16,000
77,834	18,000
110,259*	18,766
209,000**	19,717

* Average death value
 ** Maximum claim value

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-26, filed 12/1/87, effective 1/1/88)

WAC 296-17-880 TABLE II.

"B" and "W" Values

Maximum Claim Value = ((\$110,400)) \$209,000
 Average Death Value = ((\$97,959)) \$110,259

((Expected Losses — B — W

2,391 & Under	20,830	0.00
2,392 — 4,819	20,622	0.01
4,820 — 7,283	20,413	0.02
7,284 — 9,784	20,205	0.03
9,785 — 12,324	19,997	0.04
12,325 — 14,902	19,789	0.05
14,903 — 17,521	19,580	0.06
17,522 — 20,181	19,372	0.07
20,182 — 22,883	19,164	0.08
22,884 — 25,629	18,955	0.09
25,630 — 28,419	18,747	0.10
28,420 — 31,255	18,539	0.11
31,256 — 34,138	18,330	0.12
34,139 — 37,069	18,122	0.13
37,070 — 40,050	17,914	0.14
40,051 — 43,081	17,706	0.15
43,082 — 46,165	17,497	0.16
46,166 — 49,302	17,289	0.17
49,303 — 52,495	17,081	0.18
52,496 — 55,745	16,872	0.19
55,746 — 59,053	16,664	0.20
59,054 — 62,421	16,456	0.21
62,422 — 65,851	16,247	0.22
65,852 — 69,345	16,039	0.23
69,346 — 72,905	15,831	0.24
72,906 — 76,532	15,623	0.25
76,533 — 80,229	15,414	0.26
80,230 — 83,998	15,206	0.27
83,999 — 87,842	14,998	0.28
87,843 — 91,761	14,789	0.29
91,762 — 95,760	14,581	0.30
95,761 — 99,841	14,373	0.31
99,842 — 104,005	14,164	0.32
104,006 — 108,256	13,956	0.33
108,257 — 112,598	13,748	0.34
112,599 — 117,032	13,540	0.35
117,033 — 121,562	13,331	0.36
121,563 — 126,192	13,123	0.37
126,193 — 130,924	12,915	0.38

((Expected Losses		B	W
130,925	— 135,763	12,706	0.39
135,764	— 140,712	12,498	0.40
140,713	— 145,775	12,290	0.41
145,776	— 150,957	12,081	0.42
150,958	— 156,261	11,873	0.43
156,262	— 161,693	11,665	0.44
161,694	— 167,257	11,457	0.45
167,258	— 172,959	11,248	0.46
172,960	— 178,803	11,040	0.47
178,804	— 184,796	10,832	0.48
184,797	— 190,942	10,623	0.49
190,943	— 197,250	10,415	0.50
197,251	— 203,724	10,207	0.51
203,725	— 210,372	9,998	0.52
210,373	— 217,202	9,790	0.53
217,203	— 224,221	9,582	0.54
224,222	— 231,437	9,374	0.55
231,438	— 238,860	9,165	0.56
238,861	— 246,498	8,957	0.57
246,499	— 254,361	8,749	0.58
254,362	— 362,459	8,540	0.59
262,460	— 270,804	8,332	0.60
270,805	— 279,408	8,124	0.61
279,409	— 288,282	7,915	0.62
288,283	— 297,440	7,707	0.63
297,441	— 306,897	7,499	0.64
306,898	— 316,667	7,291	0.65
316,668	— 326,767	7,082	0.66
326,768	— 337,214	6,874	0.67
337,215	— 348,027	6,666	0.68
348,028	— 359,225	6,457	0.69
359,226	— 370,830	6,249	0.70
370,831	— 382,866	6,041	0.71
382,867	— 395,356	5,832	0.72
395,357	— 408,328	5,624	0.73
408,329	— 421,810	5,416	0.74
421,811	— 435,834	5,208	0.75
435,835	— 450,434	4,999	0.76
450,435	— 465,647	4,791	0.77
465,648	— 481,511	4,583	0.78
481,512	— 498,072	4,374	0.79
498,073	— 515,376	4,166	0.80
515,377	— 533,475	3,958	0.81
533,476	— 552,425	3,749	0.82
552,426	— 572,291	3,541	0.83
572,292	— 593,139	3,333	0.84
593,140	— 615,045	3,125	0.85
615,046	— 638,093	2,916	0.86
638,094	— 662,376	2,708	0.87
662,377	— 687,997	2,500	0.88
687,998	— 715,070	2,291	0.89
715,071	— 743,722	2,083	0.90
743,723	— 774,099	1,875	0.91
774,100	— 806,362	1,666	0.92
806,363	— 840,692	1,458	0.93
840,693	— 877,297	1,250	0.94
877,298	— 916,412	1,042	0.95
916,413	— 958,307	833	0.96

((Expected Losses		B	W
958,308	— 1,003,289	625	0.97
1,003,290	— 1,051,715	417	0.98
1,051,716	— 1,103,999	208	0.99
1,104,000	OR MORE	0	1.00))

Expected Losses		B	W
4,527	& Under	39,434	0.00
4,528	— 9,124	39,040	0.01
9,125	— 13,788	38,645	0.02
13,789	— 18,523	38,251	0.03
18,524	— 23,331	37,857	0.04
23,332	— 28,212	37,462	0.05
28,213	— 33,170	37,068	0.06
33,171	— 38,206	36,674	0.07
38,207	— 43,322	36,279	0.08
43,323	— 48,520	35,885	0.09
48,521	— 53,802	35,491	0.10
53,803	— 59,171	35,096	0.11
59,172	— 64,628	34,702	0.12
64,629	— 70,177	34,308	0.13
70,178	— 75,820	33,913	0.14
75,821	— 81,558	33,519	0.15
81,559	— 87,397	33,125	0.16
87,398	— 93,336	32,730	0.17
93,337	— 99,380	32,336	0.18
99,381	— 105,532	31,942	0.19
105,533	— 111,794	31,547	0.20
111,795	— 118,170	31,153	0.21
118,171	— 124,665	30,759	0.22
124,666	— 131,279	30,364	0.23
131,280	— 138,017	29,970	0.24
138,018	— 144,885	29,576	0.25
144,886	— 151,884	29,181	0.26
151,885	— 159,020	28,787	0.27
159,021	— 166,295	28,392	0.28
166,296	— 173,716	27,998	0.29
173,717	— 181,287	27,604	0.30
181,288	— 189,011	27,209	0.31
189,012	— 196,894	26,815	0.32
196,895	— 204,943	26,421	0.33
204,944	— 213,162	26,026	0.34
213,163	— 221,556	25,632	0.35
221,557	— 230,132	25,238	0.36
230,133	— 238,896	24,843	0.37
238,897	— 247,855	24,449	0.38
247,856	— 257,016	24,055	0.39
257,017	— 266,385	23,660	0.40
266,386	— 275,970	23,266	0.41
275,971	— 285,780	22,872	0.42
285,781	— 295,822	22,477	0.43
295,823	— 306,105	22,083	0.44
306,106	— 316,639	21,689	0.45
316,640	— 327,432	21,294	0.46
327,433	— 338,496	20,900	0.47
338,497	— 349,841	20,506	0.48
349,842	— 361,477	20,111	0.49
361,478	— 373,417	19,717	0.50
373,418	— 385,674	19,323	0.51
385,675	— 398,260	18,928	0.52

Expected Losses	B	W
398,261 - 411,189	18,534	0.53
411,190 - 424,478	18,140	0.54
424,479 - 438,139	17,745	0.55
438,140 - 452,190	17,351	0.56
452,191 - 466,650	16,957	0.57
466,651 - 481,535	16,562	0.58
481,536 - 496,867	16,168	0.59
496,868 - 512,665	15,774	0.60
512,666 - 528,952	15,379	0.61
528,953 - 545,752	14,985	0.62
545,753 - 563,090	14,591	0.63
563,091 - 580,993	14,196	0.64
580,994 - 599,488	13,802	0.65
599,489 - 618,609	13,408	0.66
618,610 - 638,386	13,013	0.67
638,387 - 658,856	12,619	0.68
658,857 - 680,056	12,225	0.69
680,057 - 702,026	11,830	0.70
702,027 - 724,810	11,436	0.71
724,811 - 748,456	11,042	0.72
748,457 - 773,013	10,647	0.73
773,014 - 798,537	10,253	0.74
798,538 - 825,086	9,858	0.75
825,087 - 852,725	9,464	0.76
852,726 - 881,525	9,070	0.77
881,526 - 911,558	8,675	0.78
911,559 - 942,909	8,281	0.79
942,910 - 975,667	7,887	0.80
975,668 - 1,009,930	7,492	0.81
1,009,931 - 1,045,806	7,098	0.82
1,045,807 - 1,083,414	6,704	0.83
1,083,415 - 1,122,881	6,309	0.84
1,122,882 - 1,164,352	5,915	0.85
1,164,353 - 1,207,986	5,521	0.86
1,207,987 - 1,253,956	5,126	0.87
1,253,957 - 1,302,459	4,732	0.88
1,302,460 - 1,353,711	4,338	0.89
1,353,712 - 1,407,954	3,943	0.90
1,407,955 - 1,465,460	3,549	0.91
1,465,461 - 1,526,537	3,155	0.92
1,526,538 - 1,591,528	2,760	0.93
1,591,529 - 1,660,826	2,366	0.94
1,660,827 - 1,734,876	1,972	0.95
1,734,877 - 1,814,187	1,577	0.96
1,814,188 - 1,899,343	1,183	0.97
1,899,344 - 1,991,020	789	0.98
1,991,021 - 2,089,999	394	0.99
2,090,000 OR MORE	0	1.00

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Orders 88-06 and 88-05, filed 5/31/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 296-17-885 TABLE III.

Expected Loss Rates and D-Ratios
Expected Loss Rates in Dollars Per Worker Hour
for Indicated Fiscal Year

((CLASS	1984	1985	1986	D-RATIO
0101	.5803	.4838	.5320	.390
0102	.4740	.3952	.4399	.432
0103	.6007	.5008	.5518	.397
0104	.5279	.4398	.4713	.302
0105	.5420	.4517	.4963	.387
0106	.8235	.6863	.7496	.367
0107	.4513	.3763	.4173	.419
0108	.5497	.4582	.5027	.383
0109	1.0331	.8607	.9325	.339
0201	.9062	.7551	.8217	.354
0202	1.1731	.9772	1.0523	.318
0206	.6926	.5770	.6237	.331
0301	.2715	.2265	.2564	.490
0302	.8296	.6915	.7604	.390
0306	.3974	.3314	.3660	.405
0307	.2914	.2429	.2674	.394
0401	1.5975	1.3318	1.4687	.400
0402	.6692	.5578	.6132	.389
0403	.6839	.5698	.6164	.334
0502	.5524	.4604	.5044	.378
0503	.4900	.4083	.4489	.389
0504	.5610	.4678	.5211	.434
0505	.7702	.6420	.7070	.395
0506	1.1163	.9308	1.0372	.435
0507	1.2804	1.0674	1.1771	.400
0508	.9951	.8293	.9048	.363
0509	.9853	.8208	.8836	.317
0510	.5965	.4974	.5509	.415
0511	.4964	.4138	.4538	.380
0512	.6435	.5366	.5977	.434
0513	.4576	.3815	.4197	.392
0514	.5965	.4974	.5509	.415
0515	.7702	.6420	.7070	.395
0516	.7702	.6420	.7070	.395
0601	.1919	.1600	.1780	.430
0602	.2119	.1766	.1946	.394
0603	.3072	.2560	.2802	.374
0604	.6993	.5828	.6376	.372
0606	.1089	.0908	.1010	.427
0607	.1194	.0997	.1103	.417
0608	.1417	.1181	.1314	.428
0701	.7020	.5850	.6356	.349
0803	.1724	.1437	.1575	.380
0804	.2614	.2179	.2397	.391
0901	1.0690	.8909	.9711	.360
0902	.3152	.3236	.3005	.355
1002	.4847	.4041	.4502	.435
1003	.2714	.2263	.2507	.415
1004	.2714	.2263	.2507	.415
1005	2.0768	1.7317	1.9259	.429
1007	.0681	.0568	.0642	.483
1101	.2084	.1737	.1934	.432
1102	.6498	.5415	.5921	.370

((CLASS	1984	1985	1986	D-RATIO	((CLASS	1984	1985	1986	D-RATIO
1103	.1722	.1436	.1608	.452	3501	.3035	.2531	.2816	.431
1104	.2363	.1972	.2209	.454	3503	.1428	.1192	.1351	.493
1106	.0620	.0517	.0588	.510	3505	.2506	.2575	.2380	.399
1108	.2002	.1669	.1861	.438	3506	.3118	.2600	.2859	.391
1109	.4480	.3735	.4118	.400	3508	.2131	.1777	.1984	.442
1301	.1139	.0950	.1055	.424	3601	.0451	.0463	.0426	.439
1303	.0855	.0713	.0796	.441	3602	.0337	.0281	.0317	.483
1304	.0063	.0053	.0059	.486	3603	.2915	.2431	.2729	.461
1305	.1360	.1135	.1269	.449	3604	.4778	.3982	.4370	.383
1401	.4934	.4114	.4551	.410	3605	.1690	.1409	.1570	.435
1404	.2649	.2208	.2437	.403	3701	.1274	.1062	.1167	.389
1405	.2496	.2082	.2318	.435	3702	.2026	.1689	.1859	.395
1501	.1648	.1374	.1516	.402	3706	.1006	.1034	.0957	.388
1507	.1151	.0959	.1059	.406	3707	.1827	.1525	.1719	.477
1701	.8909	.7422	.8026	.333	3708	.1142	.0952	.1060	.433
1702	.8909	.7422	.8026	.333	3801	.1056	.0881	.0974	.411
1703	.2483	.2070	.2292	.413	3802	.0624	.0520	.0592	.503
1704	.3623	.3021	.3314	.382	3803	.0828	.0852	.0784	.450
1801	.3972	.3311	.3662	.410	3805	.0828	.0852	.0784	.450
1802	.1975	.1647	.1821	.410	3806	.0828	.0852	.0784	.450
2002	.2977	.2482	.2772	.443	3808	.1043	.0870	.0981	.479
2003	.2184	.1823	.2040	.451	3809	.1043	.1072	.0988	.441
2004	.3612	.3011	.3342	.421	3901	.0804	.0672	.0747	.433
2005	.1404	.1171	.1313	.458	3902	.2239	.1868	.2087	.445
2007	.1541	.1284	.1413	.393	3903	.4345	.3622	.4019	.420
2008	.1276	.1064	.1176	.409	3904	.3126	.3211	.2969	.403
2101	.2453	.2046	.2288	.448	3905	.0539	.0449	.0507	.479
2102	.2184	.1823	.2040	.451	3906	.2154	.1796	.2001	.434
2104	.1237	.1032	.1166	.481	3909	.0981	.0819	.0932	.507
2105	.2500	.2084	.2297	.398	4002	.2659	.2218	.2473	.437
2106	.2184	.1823	.2040	.451	4101	.0629	.0525	.0590	.462
2201	.1122	.0936	.1049	.460	4103	.1427	.1191	.1337	.461
2202	.1913	.1596	.1777	.435	4104	.0651	.0669	.0617	.439
2203	.1166	.0972	.1094	.468	4107	.0348	.0289	.0324	.450
2401	.2386	.1989	.2218	.437	4108	.0629	.0525	.0590	.462
2903	.2705	.2257	.2544	.477	4109	.0629	.0525	.0590	.462
2904	.3397	.2832	.3162	.443	4201	.1955	.1630	.1801	.406
2905	.2705	.2257	.2544	.477	4301	.3830	.3195	.3616	.490
2906	.2492	.2078	.2333	.460	4302	.3259	.2718	.3038	.448
2907	.2783	.2320	.2585	.435	4303	.4078	.3401	.3799	.445
2908	.4495	.3749	.4164	.425	4304	.2550	.2127	.2377	.446
2909	.2748	.2292	.2580	.472	4305	.5704	.4755	.5242	.398
3101	.2966	.2473	.2718	.388	4401	.1801	.1502	.1682	.453
3102	.2096	.1747	.1935	.414	4402	.2801	.2335	.2582	.408
3103	.2096	.1747	.1935	.414	4404	.2184	.1823	.2040	.451
3104	.2149	.1791	.1972	.392	4501	.0658	.0548	.0597	.357
3105	.3122	.2605	.2951	.493	4502	.0154	.0128	.0141	.395
3301	.3784	.3157	.3563	.480	4503	.0311	.0319	.0294	.426
3302	.3017	.2516	.2787	.415	4504	.0268	.0223	.0249	.455
3303	.1178	.0981	.1086	.412	4601	.2208	.1840	.1991	.335
3309	.1831	.1527	.1685	.405	4802	.1507	.1257	.1405	.447
3401	.1710	.1425	.1576	.409	4803	.1659	.1384	.1548	.448
3402	.1441	.1203	.1342	.442	4804	.2488	.2075	.2338	.473
3403	.0604	.0503	.0560	.429	4805	.1670	.1393	.1567	.467
3404	.1851	.1544	.1725	.446	4806	.0370	.0309	.0349	.476
3405	.0965	.0805	.0896	.430	4807	.7395	.6164	.6775	.389
3406	.0844	.0704	.0785	.437	4808	.1743	.1453	.1627	.452
3407	.1438	.1200	.1318	.390	4809	.0921	.0769	.0863	.463
3408	.0504	.0421	.0463	.397	4810	.0610	.0509	.0569	.448
3409	.0718	.0599	.0667	.431	4811	.1431	.1193	.1319	.410

((CLASS	1984	1985	1986	D-RATIO
4812	.1420	.1184	.1324	.447
4901	.0241	.0201	.0221	.401
4902	.0241	.0201	.0225	.455
4903	.0241	.0201	.0221	.401
4904	.0063	.0053	.0059	.486
4905	.1182	.0987	.1114	.483
4906	.0212	.0176	.0197	.438
4907	.0429	.0357	.0397	.425
4908	.0442	.0368	.0409	.429
4909	.0442	.0368	.0409	.429
5001	1.7685	1.4740	1.6135	.374
5002	.2176	.1815	.2046	.475
5003	.7879	.6565	.7122	.344
5004	.6529	.5447	.6174	.495
5101	.3329	.2775	.3075	.416
5102	.6769	.5641	.6182	.378
5103	.4539	.3783	.4161	.390
5104	.2871	.2950	.2731	.388
5106	.3007	.2507	.2767	.403
5107	.1997	.2050	.1896	.405
5108	.3199	.2668	.2962	.423
5109	.2578	.2150	.2361	.387
5201	.1379	.1150	.1275	.419
5204	.7658	.6389	.7194	.472
5205	.3717	.3818	.3540	.368
5206	.1653	.1378	.1503	.363
5207	.0586	.0489	.0554	.487
5208	.4858	.4050	.4492	.419
5209	.2895	.2414	.2710	.461
5301	.0085	.0071	.0079	.388
5305	.0118	.0098	.0109	.420
5306	.0130	.0108	.0120	.428
5307	.1428	.1191	.1322	.420
6103	.0138	.0116	.0130	.455
6104	.1262	.1052	.1174	.438
6105	.1006	.0839	.0945	.469
6106	.1066	.1095	.1011	.416
6107	.0537	.0448	.0492	.388
6108	.2139	.1785	.2024	.497
6109	.0150	.0125	.0139	.454
6201	.0647	.0539	.0599	.427
6202	.2763	.2303	.2558	.423
6203	.0471	.0393	.0435	.418
6204	.0633	.0528	.0594	.466
6205	.0633	.0528	.0594	.466
6206	.0633	.0528	.0594	.466
6207	.3875	.3232	.3641	.473
6208	.1078	.0898	.0994	.411
6209	.0983	.0819	.0918	.456
6301	.0451	.0376	.0417	.413
6302	.0727	.0606	.0672	.417
6303	.0208	.0174	.0190	.374
6304	.0556	.0463	.0511	.400
6305	.0220	.0184	.0204	.434
6306	.1049	.0875	.0968	.412
6307	.0381	.0390	.0361	.455
6308	.0185	.0153	.0168	.372
6309	.0383	.0320	.0361	.477
6401	.0381	.0390	.0361	.455
6402	.0963	.0803	.0899	.454

((CLASS	1984	1985	1986	D-RATIO
6403	.0525	.0437	.0496	.494
6404	.0363	.0303	.0340	.466
6405	.2267	.1889	.2087	.405
6406	.0282	.0235	.0265	.467
6407	.0573	.0478	.0540	.475
6408	.1369	.1141	.1252	.383
6409	.2140	.1784	.1950	.369
6501	.0199	.0165	.0188	.487
6502	.0078	.0065	.0072	.437
6503	.0531	.0443	.0471	.280
6504	.1006	.0840	.0959	.521
6505	.0744	.0620	.0697	.466
6506	.0232	.0193	.0215	.416
6507	.1502	.1545	.1424	.429
6508	.1608	.1341	.1509	.469
6509	.0822	.0686	.0774	.479
6601	.0845	.0705	.0788	.445
6602	.1856	.1548	.1743	.469
6603	.1072	.0894	.1004	.463
6604	.0326	.0272	.0303	.434
6605	.0878	.0732	.0823	.463
6607	.0586	.0489	.0554	.487
6608	.1287	.1073	.1191	.419
6609	1.1543	.9630	1.0884	.485
6610	1.1543	.9630	1.0884	.485
6611	1.1543	.9630	1.0884	.485
6612	1.1543	.9630	1.0884	.485
6613	1.1543	.9630	1.0884	.485
6704	.0750	.0625	.0695	.425
6705	.2719	.2267	.2569	.493
6706	.1300	.1084	.1206	.429
6707	4.4696*	3.7304*	4.2872*	.542
6708	1.0774	.8986	1.0082	.459
6709	.0527	.0439	.0497	.485
6801	.2842	.2370	.2636	.429
6802	.1696	.1414	.1573	.430
6803	1.3181	1.0974	1.1547	.241
6804	.1083	.0903	.0984	.361
6809	.8277	.6906	.7855	.507
6902	.3661	.3051	.3306	.339
6903	2.1082	1.7562	1.8900	.316
6904	.0849	.0707	.0781	.400
6905	.1266	.1056	.1159	.385
6907	.6353	.5297	.5878	.421
6908	.1327	.1107	.1225	.416
6909	.0270	.0226	.0252	.444
7101	.0152	.0126	.0140	.411
7102	6.3040*	5.2584*	5.9344*	.479
7103	.0877	.0731	.0809	.413
7104	.0085	.0071	.0079	.388
7105	.0228	.0190	.0211	.418
7106	.0963	.0803	.0899	.454
7107	.0963	.0803	.0899	.454
7108	.0963	.0803	.0899	.454
7109	.1496	.1248	.1399	.458
7110	.1496	.1248	.1399	.458
7111	.1496	.1248	.1399	.458
7112	.3030	.2526	.2820	.441
7113	.3030	.2526	.2820	.441
7114	.3030	.2526	.2820	.441

((CLASS	1984	1985	1986	D-RATIO	CLASS	1985	1986	1987	D-RATIO
7715	.3030	.2526	.2820	.441	0803	.3608	.3360	.2898	.417
7116	.3030	.2526	.2820	.441	0804	.5685	.5282	.4551	.400
7117	.4663	.3889	.4333	.435	0901	1.8533	1.7128	1.4693	.346
7118	1.1194	.9336	1.0455	.453	1002	1.0182	.9514	.8238	.480
7119	1.1194	.9336	1.0455	.453	1003	.5495	.5118	.4420	.435
7120	2.7203	2.2683	2.5221	.428	1004	.5495	.5118	.4420	.435
7121	2.7203	2.2683	2.5221	.428	1005	3.4288	3.2005	2.7695	.469
7201	.1601	.1337	.1512	.489	1007	.1801	.1685	.1459	.488
7202	.0197	.0164	.0179	.369	1101	.5366	.5012	.4334	.463
7203	.0462	.0385	.0428	.421	1102	1.1561	1.0749	.9267	.413
7301	.2783	.2321	.2595	.446	1103	.4109	.3847	.3336	.505
7302	.2286	.1907	.2146	.471	1104	.5049	.4726	.4097	.503
7307	.2822	.2355	.2692	.524	1106	.1905	.1787	.1551	.541
7308	.1038	.0865	.0962	.429	1108	.4240	.3961	.3428	.472
7309	.0527	.0439	.0497	.485))	1109	.8021	.7479	.6462	.449
CLASS	1985	1986	1987	D-RATIO	1301	.2238	.2087	.1804	.448
0101	1.0201	.9484	.8175	.411	1303	.1797	.1676	.1448	.452
0102	1.0280	.9583	.8280	.449	1304	.0162	.0152	.0131	.501
0103	1.3328	1.2376	1.0652	.381	1305	.3221	.3017	.2616	.511
0104	1.0174	.9385	.8035	.314	1401	1.3165	1.2297	1.0625	.443
0105	1.1115	1.0351	.8929	.416	1404	.5772	.5375	.4638	.422
0106	1.8162	1.6879	1.4540	.399	1405	.4955	.4625	.4000	.464
0107	.8341	.7771	.6712	.440	1501	.3235	.3019	.2611	.462
0108	.8902	.8272	.7127	.406	1507	.2350	.2193	.1896	.458
0109	2.1966	2.0325	1.7444	.342	1701	1.5921	1.4727	1.2643	.357
0201	1.6840	1.5595	1.3398	.361	1702	1.5921	1.4727	1.2643	.357
0202	2.6587	2.4653	2.1182	.338	1703	.4277	.3982	.3439	.436
0206	1.5649	1.4480	1.2427	.339	1704	.7917	.7362	.6347	.410
0301	.5478	.5131	.4450	.511	1801	.9102	.8467	.7299	.408
0302	1.6473	1.5286	1.3160	.396	1802	.3920	.3654	.3154	.437
0306	.7815	.7282	.6288	.436	2002	.5345	.4989	.4313	.458
0307	.6873	.6406	.5533	.440	2003	.3658	.3423	.2965	.493
0401	2.8637	2.6679	2.3040	.439	2004	.6522	.6083	.5259	.456
0402	1.4820	1.3806	1.1916	.426	2005	.3011	.2817	.2439	.489
0403	1.1425	1.0583	.9092	.355	2007	.3286	.3063	.2645	.434
0502	1.0510	.9776	.8429	.412	2008	.2502	.2330	.2013	.435
0503	1.4127	1.3161	1.1359	.426	2101	.5840	.5450	.4709	.446
0504	1.0523	.9828	.8506	.473	2102	.3658	.3423	.2965	.493
0505	1.3240	1.2327	1.0638	.431	2104	.3026	.2835	.2461	.524
0506	2.6557	2.4777	2.1415	.451	2105	.4697	.4371	.3770	.422
0507	2.8637	2.6679	2.3040	.439	2106	.3693	.3447	.2979	.452
0508	2.6750	2.4774	2.1272	.342	2201	.2466	.2303	.1994	.476
0509	2.0372	1.8832	1.6146	.320	2202	.4462	.4167	.3604	.462
0510	1.1615	1.0835	.9367	.456	2203	.2780	.2603	.2258	.509
0511	1.0696	.9933	.8554	.394	2401	.4715	.4402	.3809	.468
0512	1.3484	1.2570	1.0859	.446	2903	.5904	.5534	.4804	.524
0513	.6796	.6337	.5478	.454	2904	.6626	.6201	.5370	.493
0514	1.1615	1.0835	.9367	.456	2905	.4448	.4163	.3608	.501
0515	1.7602	1.6363	1.4106	.413	2906	.5002	.4676	.4052	.490
0516	1.3240	1.2327	1.0638	.431	2907	.4396	.4115	.3570	.508
0601	.4882	.4552	.3933	.445	2908	.8817	.8232	.7122	.468
0602	.3655	.3405	.2941	.441	2909	.5694	.5321	.4606	.479
0603	.6843	.6352	.5470	.396	3101	.5530	.5138	.4427	.399
0604	1.7363	1.6147	1.3907	.376	3102	.3754	.3502	.3028	.456
0606	.2255	.2105	.1820	.458	3103	.3754	.3502	.3028	.456
0607	.2602	.2431	.2103	.468	3104	.4944	.4611	.3982	.435
0608	.2609	.2438	.2111	.479	3105	.7084	.6611	.5715	.455
0701	1.2606	1.1674	1.0031	.367	3301	.7336	.6867	.5958	.507
					3302	.6764	.6314	.5463	.468
					3303	.2520	.2348	.2027	.426

CLASS	1985	1986	1987	D-RATIO	CLASS	1985	1986	1987	D-RATIO
3309	.4233	.3942	.3398	.403	4812	.3347	.3129	.2710	.487
3401	.3536	.3306	.2863	.482	4901	.0456	.0426	.0368	.470
3402	.3254	.3048	.2643	.509	4902	.0329	.0307	.0265	.474
3403	.1294	.1210	.1047	.476	4903	.0456	.0426	.0368	.470
3404	.3454	.3236	.2807	.516	4904	.0162	.0152	.0131	.501
3405	.2391	.2230	.1927	.445	4905	.2826	.2652	.2302	.534
3406	.1842	.1723	.1491	.487	4906	.0474	.0444	.0385	.502
3407	.2677	.2495	.2156	.442	4907	.0869	.0811	.0702	.458
3408	.1014	.0946	.0817	.441	4908	.1146	.1071	.0926	.460
3409	.1568	.1464	.1265	.450	4909	.1146	.1071	.0926	.460
3501	.6539	.6094	.5261	.432	5001	3.6616	3.3998	2.9266	.386
3503	.2670	.2503	.2172	.524	5002	.4536	.4249	.3685	.512
3506	.6009	.5591	.4823	.421	5003	1.3866	1.2862	1.1061	.366
3508	.4341	.4067	.3529	.517	5004	1.7928	1.6757	1.4512	.484
3602	.0747	.0699	.0607	.513	5101	.6228	.5807	.5017	.447
3603	.5649	.5286	.4582	.499	5102	1.1768	1.0935	.9422	.403
3604	1.0841	1.0072	.8674	.390	5103	.7893	.7370	.6374	.464
3605	.3747	.3501	.3029	.472	5106	.6091	.5676	.4900	.429
3606	.7142	.6679	.5782	.482	5108	.6317	.5899	.5103	.467
3701	.2602	.2425	.2095	.441	5109	.5085	.4718	.4058	.372
3702	.3853	.3586	.3095	.424	5201	.2982	.2779	.2401	.438
3707	.3359	.3145	.2728	.506	5204	1.3266	1.2415	1.0771	.505
3708	.2532	.2368	.2050	.483	5206	.3391	.3150	.2714	.401
3801	.2029	.1894	.1638	.461	5207	.1626	.1524	.1322	.533
3802	.1323	.1243	.1081	.556	5208	.8947	.8356	.7231	.473
3808	.2217	.2078	.1803	.519	5209	.5480	.5113	.4418	.450
3901	.1549	.1447	.1252	.473	5301	.0222	.0207	.0179	.451
3902	.5165	.4819	.4167	.460	5305	.0261	.0243	.0210	.438
3903	1.0118	.9442	.8159	.448	5306	.0285	.0266	.0230	.453
3905	.1305	.1226	.1066	.560	5307	.2928	.2736	.2368	.476
3906	.3725	.3474	.3004	.456	6103	.0406	.0381	.0329	.503
3909	.2443	.2289	.1984	.514	6104	.2734	.2553	.2207	.460
4002	.5876	.5481	.4738	.451	6105	.2429	.2280	.1980	.542
4101	.1645	.1540	.1333	.488	6107	.1056	.0987	.0852	.455
4103	.2712	.2539	.2202	.504	6108	.4884	.4587	.3988	.554
4107	.0880	.0823	.0712	.483	6109	.0337	.0316	.0274	.508
4108	.1645	.1540	.1333	.488	6201	.1359	.1269	.1098	.463
4109	.1645	.1540	.1333	.488	6202	.5600	.5217	.4504	.428
4201	.3008	.2804	.2423	.446	6203	.0886	.0827	.0715	.451
4301	.7740	.7238	.6270	.490	6204	.1500	.1404	.1217	.505
4302	.6395	.5969	.5161	.460	6205	.1500	.1404	.1217	.505
4303	.5919	.5601	.4899	.701	6206	.1500	.1404	.1217	.505
4304	.5371	.5021	.4345	.478	6207	.8973	.8405	.7287	.512
4305	1.1811	1.0996	.9487	.422	6208	.2051	.1915	.1655	.457
4401	.3915	.3666	.3180	.508	6209	.2371	.2217	.1919	.478
4402	.6269	.5855	.5067	.472	6301	.1072	.1000	.0863	.436
4404	.5034	.4713	.4086	.504	6302	.1462	.1362	.1175	.423
4501	.1303	.1211	.1043	.396	6303	.0478	.0448	.0387	.474
4502	.0328	.0305	.0263	.412	6304	.1164	.1088	.0940	.468
4504	.0741	.0695	.0602	.512	6305	.0485	.0454	.0394	.487
4601	.5742	.5340	.4597	.371	6306	.2315	.2163	.1872	.471
4802	.2901	.2715	.2355	.502	6308	.0349	.0324	.0279	.407
4803	.3280	.3068	.2660	.499	6309	.0990	.0928	.0805	.516
4804	.5422	.5076	.4399	.502	6402	.2196	.2052	.1776	.475
4805	.3315	.3097	.2679	.469	6403	.1414	.1327	.1154	.551
4806	.0820	.0768	.0665	.495	6404	.1109	.1040	.0903	.540
4808	.4261	.3970	.3427	.430	6405	.5529	.5153	.4450	.440
4809	.2191	.2052	.1779	.513	6406	.0690	.0646	.0560	.498
4810	.1418	.1325	.1147	.479	6407	.1543	.1447	.1256	.529
4811	.2840	.2651	.2291	.459	6408	.3134	.2913	.2509	.382

CLASS	1985	1986	1987	D-RATIO
6409	.3695	.3453	.2989	.477
6501	.0529	.0497	.0431	.537
6502	.0181	.0169	.0147	.493
6503	.0938	.0868	.0743	.311
6504	.2989	.2809	.2440	.568
6505	.1728	.1618	.1402	.505
6506	.0575	.0538	.0465	.478
6508	.3696	.3462	.3001	.510
6509	.2410	.2255	.1952	.485
6601	.1728	.1617	.1400	.489
6602	.4206	.3945	.3427	.538
6603	.2398	.2241	.1941	.481
6604	.0627	.0585	.0506	.457
6605	.1858	.1740	.1508	.506
6607	.1626	.1524	.1322	.533
6608	.2229	.2079	.1796	.448
6609	3.1883	2.9856	2.5873	.505
6610	3.1883	2.9856	2.5873	.505
6611	3.1883	2.9856	2.5873	.505
6612	3.1883	2.9856	2.5873	.505
6613	3.1883	2.9856	2.5873	.505
6704	.1754	.1639	.1418	.469
6705	.6633	.6218	.5396	.527
6706	.3241	.3028	.2619	.467
6707	12.6231*	11.8673*	10.3188*	.578
6708	3.6961	3.4590	2.9950	.491
6709	.1419	.1332	.1156	.547
6801	.4628	.4304	.3711	.415
6802	.3266	.3048	.2634	.450
6803	1.6612	1.5225	1.2963	.256
6804	.2136	.1982	.1706	.372
6809	2.3196	2.1749	1.8859	.529
6901	.0392	.0366	.0317	.701
6902	.4879	.4531	.3903	.401
6903	4.9785	4.5990	3.9400	.302
6904	.1582	.1475	.1274	.443
6905	.2438	.2266	.1951	.386
6906	.1024	.0960	.0830	.701
6907	1.1711	1.0924	.9446	.459
6908	.2658	.2483	.2148	.469
6909	.0581	.0542	.0469	.462
7101	.0268	.0250	.0216	.434
7102	24.2906*	22.7579*	19.7084*	.509
7103	.1809	.1684	.1453	.418
7104	.0406	.0378	.0327	.440
7105	.2862	.2682	.2328	.524
7106	.5751	.5366	.4641	.462
7107	1.3032	1.2182	1.0543	.476
7108	2.2113	2.0656	1.7883	.477
7109	5.5532	5.1815	4.4795	.456
7110	.2862	.2682	.2328	.524
7111	.2862	.2682	.2328	.524
7112	.5751	.5366	.4641	.462
7113	.5751	.5366	.4641	.462
7114	.5751	.5366	.4641	.462
7115	.5751	.5366	.4641	.462
7116	.5751	.5366	.4641	.462
7117	1.3032	1.2182	1.0543	.476
7118	2.2113	2.0656	1.7883	.477
7119	2.2113	2.0656	1.7883	.477

CLASS	1985	1986	1987	D-RATIO
7120	5.5532	5.1815	4.4795	.456
7121	5.5532	5.1815	4.4795	.456
7201	.5216	.4877	.4223	.485
7202	.0341	.0317	.0273	.401
7203	.1031	.0962	.0831	.449
7301	.5622	.5255	.4551	.483
7302	.6392	.5979	.5173	.480
7307	.8776	.8242	.7160	.557
7308	.2218	.2072	.1793	.466
7309	.1419	.1332	.1156	.547

*Daily expected loss rate

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87-26, filed 12/1/87, effective 1/1/88)

WAC 296-17-890 TABLE IV.

Maximum experience modifications for firms with no compensable accidents:

Expected Loss Range	((Maximum Experience Modification
---------------------	-----------------------------------

1-1,045	.90
1,046-1,118	.89
1,119-1,197	.88
1,198-1,283	.87
1,284-1,375	.86
1,376-1,476	.85
1,477-1,586	.84
1,587-1,705	.83
1,706-1,834	.82
1,835-1,976	.81
1,977-2,130	.80
2,131-2,298	.79
2,299-2,482	.78
2,483-2,684	.77
2,685-2,904	.76
2,905-3,147	.75
3,148-3,413	.74
3,414-3,706	.73
3,707-4,029	.72
4,030-4,384	.71
4,385-4,777	.70
4,778-5,212	.69
5,213-5,694	.68
5,695-6,228	.67
6,229-6,822	.66
6,823 and over	.65))

Expected Loss Range	Maximum Experience Modification
---------------------	---------------------------------

1-1,978	0.90
1,979-2,116	0.89
2,117-2,266	0.88
2,267-2,428	0.87
2,429-2,604	0.86

Expected Loss Range	Maximum Experience Modification
2,605-2,795	0.85
2,796-3,002	0.84
3,003-3,227	0.83
3,228-3,473	0.82
3,474-3,740	0.81
3,741-4,032	0.80
4,033-4,351	0.79
4,352-4,699	0.78
4,700-5,080	0.77
5,081-5,499	0.76
5,500-5,957	0.75
5,958-6,461	0.74
6,462-7,016	0.73
7,017-7,626	0.72
7,627-8,300	0.71
8,301-9,044	0.70
9,045-9,867	0.69
9,868-10,779	0.68
10,780-11,791	0.67
11,792-12,915	0.66
12,916 & Over	0.65

((Rates Effective January 1, 1988))

Class	Accident Fund Base Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
0403	1.0592	0.7230
0502	0.8633	0.5312
0503	0.7675	0.7671
0504	0.8870	0.6192
0505	1.2079	0.7058
0506	1.7654	1.3529
0507	2.0103	1.3163
0508	1.5505	1.3043
0509	1.5209	0.8162
0510	0.9395	0.6494
0511	0.7764	0.4345
0512	1.0175	0.6587
0513	0.7172	0.4190
0514	0.9395	0.6494
0515	1.2079	0.7058
0516	1.2079	0.7058
0601	0.3032	0.2940
0602	0.3324	0.2134
0603	0.4796	0.3725
0604	1.0917	0.8333
0606	0.1720	0.1876
0607	0.1882	0.1689
0608	0.2237	0.2465
0701	1.0907	0.5786
0803	0.2696	0.2100
0804	0.4096	0.2921
0901	1.6647	0.6481
1002	0.7664	0.6163
1003	0.4275	0.2857
1004	0.4275	0.2857
1005	3.2801	1.6494
1007	0.1088	0.1180
1101	0.3293	0.3204
1102	1.0140	0.5206
1103	0.2733	0.2864
1104	0.3753	0.3178
1106	0.0995	0.1326
1108	0.3168	0.3430
1109	0.7033	0.5388
1301	0.1798	0.1549
1303	0.1354	0.1153
1304	0.0101	0.0128
1305	0.2157	0.2320
1401	0.7764	0.9738
1404	0.4160	0.2512
1405	0.3947	0.2382
1501	0.2589	0.1825
1507	0.1809	0.1746
1701	1.3795	0.5348
1702	1.3795	0.5348
1703	0.3909	0.2264
1704	0.5669	0.3559
1801	0.6248	0.5719
1802	0.2942	0.2410

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Orders 88-06 and 88-05, filed 5/31/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 296-17-895 INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ACCIDENT FUND BASE RATES AND MEDICAL AID BASE RATES BY CLASS OF INDUSTRY. Industrial insurance accident fund ((base rates)) and medical aid fund base rates by class of industry shall be as set forth below.

((Rates Effective January 1, 1988))

Class	Accident Fund Base Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
0101	0.9093	0.4644
0102	0.7490	0.5074
0103	0.9427	0.6846
0104	0.8123	0.3839
0105	0.8486	0.8076
0106	1.2841	0.8792
0107	0.7114	0.3929
0108	0.8600	0.5013
0109	1.6017	0.9324
0201	1.4093	0.8793
0202	1.8110	1.5587
0206	1.0721	0.6733
0301	0.4342	0.3572
0302	1.2999	0.6161
0306	0.6247	0.4400
0307	0.4569	0.4495
0401	2.5082	1.4778
0402	1.0483	0.9827

((Rates Effective
January 1, 1988

((Rates Effective
January 1, 1988

Class	((Rates Effective January 1, 1988	
	Accident Fund Base Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
2002	0.4715	0.3381
2003	0.3466	0.2702
2004	0.5695	0.4361
2005	0.2231	0.2250
2007	0.2415	0.2310
2008	0.2007	0.1545
2101	0.3889	0.4256
2102	0.3466	0.2702
2104	0.1976	0.1930
2105	0.3923	0.2455
2106	0.3466	0.2702
2201	0.1783	0.1435
2202	0.3025	0.2907
2203	0.1856	0.1782
2401	0.3774	0.3303
2903	0.4314	0.4122
2904	0.5379	0.4367
2905	0.4314	0.4122
2906	0.3962	0.3008
2907	0.4401	0.4205
2908	0.7094	0.4791
2909	0.4378	0.4183
3101	0.4645	0.2845
3102	0.3300	0.2285
3103	0.3300	0.2285
3104	0.3369	0.3727
3105	0.4996	0.4441
3301	0.6040	0.4112
3302	0.4752	0.3445
3303	0.1853	0.2097
3309	0.2878	0.3378
3401	0.2690	0.2367
3402	0.2283	0.2720
3403	0.0954	0.0875
3404	0.2934	0.3018
3405	0.1526	0.1498
3406	0.1336	0.1620
3407	0.2254	0.1803
3408	0.0792	0.0740
3409	0.1135	0.1938
3501	0.4795	0.4461
3503	0.2287	0.1924
3506	0.4887	0.3374
3508	0.3376	0.3028
3602	0.0537	0.0658
3603	0.4635	0.4092
3604	0.7475	0.5585
3605	0.2673	0.2392
3606	0.4732	0.4000
3701	0.1996	0.1877
3702	0.3177	0.2172
3707	0.2914	0.2234
3708	0.1805	0.1733
3801	0.1662	0.1518

Class	((Rates Effective January 1, 1988	
	Accident Fund Base Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
3802	0.1000	0.0949
3808	0.1664	0.1419
3901	0.1272	0.1146
3902	0.3549	0.3015
3903	0.6850	0.7125
3905	0.0860	0.1281
3906	0.3405	0.2243
3909	0.1575	0.1585
4002	0.4207	0.3189
4101	0.1000	0.1122
4103	0.2269	0.2329
4107	0.0551	0.0614
4108	0.1000	0.1122
4109	0.1000	0.1122
4201	0.3074	0.2155
4301	0.6125	0.5421
4302	0.5166	0.4488
4304	0.4043	0.4078
4305	0.8952	0.5884
4401	0.2858	0.2607
4402	0.4405	0.3243
4404	0.3466	0.2702
4501	0.1023	0.0777
4502	0.0242	0.0227
4504	0.0425	0.0628
4601	0.3420	0.4517
4802	0.2389	0.1661
4803	0.2631	0.2007
4804	0.3964	0.3012
4805	0.2659	0.2263
4806	0.0591	0.0519
4808	0.2766	0.2719
4809	0.1466	0.1650
4810	0.0967	0.0795
4811	0.2251	0.1886
4812	0.2252	0.1559
4901	0.0378	0.0334
4902	0.0382	0.0355
4903	0.0378	0.0334
4904	0.0101	0.0128
4905	0.1888	0.2007
4906	0.0335	0.0359
4907	0.0677	0.0584
4908	0.0697	0.1381
4909	0.0697	0.1381
5001	2.7621	1.6466
5002	0.3469	0.2895
5003	1.2227	0.6197
5004	1.0452	0.8116
5101	0.5243	0.3380
5102	1.0580	0.6467
5103	0.7112	0.5788
5106	0.4724	0.4337
5108	0.5048	0.4819

((Rates Effective
January 1, 1988

((Rates Effective
January 1, 1988

Class	Accident Fund Base Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
5109	0.4038	0.3466
5201	0.2174	0.1977
5204	1.2204	0.5559
5206	0.2575	0.1824
5207	0.0938	0.1036
5208	0.7656	0.5861
5209	0.4602	0.3797
5301	0.0134	0.0159
5305	0.0186	0.0186
5306	0.0204	0.0180
5307	0.2252	0.1791
6103	0.0220	0.0349
6104	0.1996	0.2080
6105	0.1602	0.1293
6107	0.0841	0.0885
6108	0.3426	0.3091
6109	0.0238	0.0213
6201	0.1021	0.1095
6202	0.4358	0.3376
6203	0.0742	0.0660
6204	0.1007	0.1183
6205	0.1007	0.1183
6206	0.1007	0.1183
6207	0.6175	0.7049
6208	0.1696	0.1762
6209	0.1560	0.1850
6301	0.0710	0.0576
6302	0.1145	0.0935
6303	0.0326	0.0362
6304	0.0872	0.0742
6305	0.0348	0.0362
6306	0.1652	0.1871
6308	0.0288	0.0198
6309	0.0612	0.0809
6402	0.1529	0.1300
6403	0.0840	0.1159
6404	0.0578	0.0663
6405	0.3563	0.3317
6406	0.0449	0.0602
6407	0.0915	0.1307
6408	0.2142	0.2320
6409	0.3339	0.2572
6501	0.0317	0.0345
6502	0.0123	0.0150
6503	0.0814	0.0463
6504	0.1620	0.2603
6505	0.1183	0.1349
6506	0.0365	0.0407
6508	0.2561	0.2283
6509	0.1312	0.1504
6601	0.1340	0.1179
6602	0.2956	0.2536
6603	0.1705	0.1682
6604	0.0516	0.0388

Class	Accident Fund Base Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
6605	0.1397	0.1154
6607	0.0938	0.1036
6608	0.2029	0.1324
6609	2.7402	2.7228
6610	1.1853	1.1777
6611	.7338	.7292
6612	.3827	.3803
6613	2.4884	2.4746
6704	0.1184	0.1334
6705	0.4350	0.5699
6706	0.2053	0.2378
6707	7.23*	10.45*
6708	1.7123	2.3520
6709	0.0841	0.1401
6801	0.4489	0.2700
6802	0.2679	0.2947
6803	2.0026	0.6312
6804	0.1686	0.1532
6809	1.3283	2.5744
6901		0.0661
6902	0.5677	0.2322
6903	3.2535	3.0083
6904	0.1333	0.1094
6905	0.1982	0.1650
6906		0.1650
6907	1.0018	0.6342
6908	0.2090	0.1762
6909	0.0428	0.0458
7101	0.0239	0.0184
7102	10.06*	24.77*
7103	0.1380	0.1110
7104	0.0134	0.0159
7105	0.0358	0.0255
7106	0.1529	0.1300
7107	0.1529	0.1300
7108	0.1529	0.1300
7109	0.2377	0.1778
7110	0.2377	0.1778
7111	0.2377	0.1778
7112	0.4797	0.3201
7113	0.4797	0.3201
7114	0.4797	0.3201
7115	0.4797	0.3201
7116	0.4797	0.3201
7117	0.7376	0.7610
7118	1.7767	1.1313
7119	1.7767	1.1313
7120	4.2958	3.3871
7121	4.2958	3.3871
7201	0.2561	0.2077
7202	0.0307	0.0286
7203	0.0729	0.0674
7204		
7301	0.4411	0.3408

((Rates Effective
January 1, 1988

Base Rates Effective
January 1, 1989

Class	Base Rates Effective January 1, 1988	
	Accident Fund Rate	Medical Aid Fund Rate
7302	0.3642	0.4448
7307	0.4545	0.5242
7308	0.1638	0.1453
7309	0.0841	0.1401))

Base Rates Effective
January 1, 1989

Class	Base Rates Effective January 1, 1989	
	Accident Fund	Medical Aid Fund
0101	0.9125	0.5277
0102	0.9270	0.5371
0103	1.0931	0.7846
0104	0.9706	0.4254
0105	0.8293	0.7555
0106	1.5560	1.0073
0107	0.7448	0.4414
0108	0.8162	0.4374
0109	1.9588	1.0924
0201	1.5564	0.7874
0202	1.9333	1.8051
0206	1.3705	0.8044
0301	0.4588	0.3352
0302	1.5943	0.7119
0306	0.6617	0.4513
0307	0.5636	0.4173
0401	2.5428	1.5295
0402	1.1525	0.9614
0403	0.9859	0.6092
0502	0.8922	0.5962
0503	1.0919	0.9237
0504	0.9216	0.5878
0505	1.1976	0.6797
0506	2.0977	1.7081
0507	2.5428	1.5295
0508	2.2195	1.5145
0509	1.7384	1.0857
0510	1.0175	0.6419
0511	0.9321	0.5740
0512	1.1642	0.7587
0513	0.6071	0.3625
0514	1.0175	0.6419
0515	1.6333	0.8484
0516	1.1976	0.6797
0601	0.3932	0.3048
0602	0.3301	0.1894
0603	0.6349	0.3256
0604	1.1492	1.3215
0606	0.1721	0.1518
0607	0.2040	0.1703
0608	0.2157	0.1597
0701	1.2004	0.5530

Class	Base Rates Effective January 1, 1989	
	Accident Fund	Medical Aid Fund
0803	0.2796	0.2342
0804	0.4958	0.3058
0901	1.8286	0.7286
1002	0.8661	0.5983
1003	0.4663	0.3159
1004	0.4663	0.3159
1005	3.2320	1.6677
1007	0.1380	0.1224
1101	0.3831	0.3905
1102	1.0390	0.5935
1103	0.3392	0.2558
1104	0.4054	0.3259
1106	0.1181	0.1612
1108	0.3310	0.2796
1109	0.6901	0.4548
1301	0.1793	0.1411
1303	0.1538	0.1029
1304	0.0112	0.0123
1305	0.2470	0.2209
1401	0.7148	1.1924
1404	0.4578	0.3641
1405	0.4228	0.2871
1501	0.2667	0.1971
1507	0.1832	0.1542
1701	1.5644	0.6396
1702	1.5644	0.6396
1703	0.3941	0.2126
1704	0.6857	0.4339
1801	0.7316	0.5595
1802	0.3182	0.2411
2002	0.4216	0.3455
2003	0.2831	0.2462
2004	0.5703	0.3615
2005	0.2256	0.2101
2007	0.2534	0.2161
2008	0.2096	0.1468
2101	0.4157	0.4235
2102	0.2831	0.2462
2104	0.2480	0.1919
2105	0.4212	0.2437
2106	0.2827	0.2473
2201	0.2080	0.1464
2202	0.3174	0.3258
2203	0.2281	0.1748
2401	0.4024	0.2737
2903	0.4811	0.3776
2904	0.4593	0.5023
2905	0.3515	0.2927
2906	0.4266	0.2943
2907	0.3744	0.2619
2908	0.7655	0.4982
2909	0.4629	0.3570
3101	0.4731	0.3073
3102	0.3257	0.2108
3103	0.3257	0.2108

Base Rates Effective
January 1, 1989

<u>Class</u>	<u>Accident Fund</u>	<u>Medical Aid Fund</u>
3104	0.3306	0.3800
3105	0.5698	0.4456
3301	0.6669	0.3928
3302	0.6012	0.3672
3303	0.1854	0.1749
3309	0.2933	0.3108
3401	0.2848	0.2250
3402	0.2564	0.2159
3403	0.0986	0.0880
3404	0.2687	0.2334
3405	0.1815	0.1612
3406	0.1201	0.1473
3407	0.2231	0.1589
3408	0.0791	0.0660
3409	0.1119	0.1136
3501	0.5187	0.4145
3503	0.2171	0.1713
3506	0.5355	0.3152
3508	0.3525	0.2781
3602	0.0556	0.0531
3603	0.4550	0.3623
3604	0.8901	0.6403
3605	0.2981	0.2411
3701	0.2144	0.1569
3702	0.3294	0.2176
3707	0.2853	0.2008
3708	0.1907	0.1751
3801	0.1634	0.1278
3802	0.1028	0.0912
3808	0.1796	0.1426
3901	0.1198	0.1033
3902	0.4303	0.3096
3903	0.7406	0.7127
3905	0.0987	0.1058
3906	0.3223	0.2101
3909	0.1816	0.1737
4002	0.4831	0.3576
4101	0.1186	0.1198
4103	0.2195	0.1733
4107	0.0628	0.0645
4108	0.1186	0.1198
4109	0.1186	0.1198
4201	0.2566	0.1726
4301	0.6692	0.4460
4302	0.5392	0.3767
4304	0.4046	0.3707
4305	0.9809	0.6973
4401	0.3220	0.2454
4402	0.5148	0.3862
4404	0.4141	0.3147
4501	0.1074	0.0767
4502	0.0263	0.0202
4504	0.0467	0.0615
4601	0.3763	0.4404
4802	0.2360	0.1840

Base Rates Effective
January 1, 1989

<u>Class</u>	<u>Accident Fund</u>	<u>Medical Aid Fund</u>
4803	0.2719	0.2022
4804	0.4120	0.3743
4805	0.2564	0.2208
4806	0.0674	0.0512
4808	0.3304	0.2778
4809	0.1583	0.1604
4810	0.1118	0.0925
4811	0.2369	0.1698
4812	0.2834	0.1988
4901	0.0355	0.0301
4902	0.0264	0.0209
4903	0.0355	0.0301
4904	0.0112	0.0123
4905	0.2094	0.2035
4906	0.0358	0.0331
4907	0.0675	0.0572
4908	0.0648	0.1015
4909	0.0648	0.1015
5001	3.1244	2.0286
5002	0.3796	0.2779
5003	1.1477	0.7985
5004	1.5543	1.0248
5101	0.5391	0.3493
5102	1.0408	0.6186
5103	0.6461	0.4868
5106	0.4609	0.4094
5108	0.5043	0.4035
5109	0.4325	0.2811
5201	0.2280	0.1986
5204	1.3424	0.5661
5206	0.3007	0.1772
5207	0.1080	0.1298
5208	0.7660	0.5182
5209	0.4395	0.3452
5301	0.0151	0.0168
5305	0.0194	0.0179
5306	0.0232	0.0177
5307	0.2430	0.1782
6103	0.0235	0.0357
6104	0.2041	0.1892
6105	0.1827	0.1726
6107	0.0788	0.0730
6108	0.3862	0.3294
6109	0.0267	0.0222
6201	0.0990	0.0968
6202	0.4495	0.3487
6203	0.0683	0.0589
6204	0.1076	0.1103
6205	0.1076	0.1103
6206	0.1076	0.1103
6207	0.6421	0.6636
6208	0.1554	0.1394
6209	0.1590	0.1844
6301	0.0856	0.0676
6302	0.1178	0.0903

Base Rates Effective
January 1, 1989

Base Rates Effective
January 1, 1989

Class	Base Rates Effective	
	Accident Fund	Medical Aid Fund
6303	0.0334	0.0357
6304	0.0873	0.0804
6305	0.0350	0.0353
6306	0.1649	0.1693
6308	0.0300	0.0193
6309	0.0700	0.0743
6402	0.1844	0.1313
6403	0.1030	0.1044
6404	0.0783	0.0840
6405	0.4661	0.3221
6406	0.0461	0.0542
6407	0.1077	0.1178
6408	0.2359	0.2078
6409	0.2759	0.2574
6501	0.0395	0.0379
6502	0.0128	0.0135
6503	0.0791	0.0508
6504	0.1871	0.2534
6505	0.1207	0.1305
6506	0.0413	0.0418
6508	0.2864	0.2502
6509	0.1476	0.2027
6601	0.1264	0.1238
6602	0.3366	0.2772
6603	0.1830	0.1632
6604	0.0528	0.0370
6605	0.1509	0.1183
6607	0.1080	0.1298
6608	0.1988	0.1189
6609	2.7739	3.2429
6610	1.1999	1.4027
6611	0.7428	0.8685
6612	0.3874	0.4529
6613	2.4884	2.4746
6704	0.1232	0.1301
6705	0.4570	0.5119
6706	0.2261	0.2417
6707	8.22*	10.40*
6708	2.2429	3.1360
6709	0.0891	0.1193
6801	0.4124	0.2417
6802	0.2517	0.2166
6803	1.7596	0.4612
6804	0.1767	0.1235
6809	1.3296	2.0704
6901	—	0.0582
6902	0.4535	0.2321
6903	4.1064	2.7848
6904	0.1288	0.0972
6905	0.1922	0.1524
6906	—	0.1524
6907	1.0590	0.6129
6908	0.2185	0.1633
6909	0.0429	0.0407
7101	0.0226	0.0156

Class	Base Rates Effective	
	Accident Fund	Medical Aid Fund
7102	10.86*	24.77*
7103	0.1527	0.1039
7104	0.0151	0.0168
7105	0.0338	0.0241
7106	0.1844	0.1313
7107	0.1844	0.1313
7108	0.1844	0.1313
7109	0.2359	0.1802
7110	0.2359	0.1802
7111	0.2359	0.1802
7112	0.5186	0.3033
7113	0.5186	0.3033
7114	0.5186	0.3033
7115	0.5186	0.3033
7116	0.5186	0.3033
7117	0.8915	0.9943
7118	1.9733	1.1996
7119	1.9733	1.1996
7120	4.6053	3.3871
7121	4.6053	3.3871
7201	0.4559	0.2946
7202	0.0286	0.0195
7203	0.0773	0.0706
7204	—	—
7301	0.4838	0.3252
7302	0.3936	0.5346
7307	0.5793	0.7106
7308	0.1697	0.1496
7309	0.0891	0.1193

*Daily rate. The daily rate shall be paid in full on any person for any calendar day in which any duties are performed that are incidental to the profession of the worker.

WSR 88-24-013
PROPOSED RULES
SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE
[Filed December 1, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 28B.19.030, that Skagit Valley College intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning policy on use of college facilities, chapter 132D-140 WAC; that the institution will at 4 p.m., Tuesday, February 14, 1989, in the Board of Trustees Meeting Room, Skagit Valley College, 2405 College Way, Mt. Vernon, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on February 14, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is [RCW 28B.50.140].

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 88-19-090 filed with the code reviser's office on September 29, 1988.

Dated: November 2, 1988

By: Wendy K. Bohlke
Assistant Attorney General

WSR 88-24-014

ADOPTED RULES

SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE

[Order 88-01—Filed December 1, 1988—Eff. January 1, 1989]

Be it resolved by the board of trustees of Skagit Valley College, Community College District No. 4, acting at Mt. Vernon, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

New ch. 132D-120 WAC Student rights and responsibilities.
New ch. 132D-116 WAC Parking and traffic regulations.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice Nos. WSR [88-19-084 and] 88-19-090 filed with the code reviser on [September 19, 1988, and] September 20, 1988. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being January 1, 1989.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the board of trustees of Skagit Valley College as authorized in RCW 28B.50.140.

The undersigned hereby declares that the institution has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Higher Education Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 28B.19 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 8, 1988.

By Mary Ann Funk
Acting Chair

Chapter 132D-120
Student Rights and Responsibilities

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-010 TITLE. This chapter shall be known as the Code of Student Rights and Responsibilities of Skagit Valley College.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-020 DEFINITIONS. As used in this chapter, the following words and phrases shall be defined as follows:

(1) "Academic dishonesty" shall mean plagiarism, cheating on examinations, fraudulent representation of student work product or other similar act of academic dishonesty.

(2) "Alcoholic beverages" shall mean the definition of liquor as contained within RCW 66.04.010(15) as now law or hereafter amended.

(3) "Assembly" shall mean any overt activity engaged in by two or more persons, the object of which is to gain publicity, advocate a view, petition for a cause, or disseminate information to any person, persons or group of persons.

(4) "ASSVC" shall mean the Associated Students of Skagit Valley College as defined in the Constitution of that body.

(5) "Board" shall mean the Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 4, State of Washington.

(6) "Chief administrative officer" shall mean the president of Skagit Valley College and president of Community College District No. 4, State of Washington.

(7) "College" shall mean Skagit Valley College, and any other community college centers or facilities established within Community College District No. 4.

(8) "College facilities" shall mean and include any and all personal property and real property including all buildings and appurtenances affixed thereon or attached thereto District-wide.

(9) "Demonstrations" shall mean any overt activity engaged in by one or more persons, the object of which is to gain publicity, advocate a view, petition for a cause or disseminate information to any person, persons, or group of persons.

(10) "Disciplinary action" shall mean and include a warning, reprimand, probation, suspension, or dismissal of any student by the dean of administrative and student services issued pursuant to this chapter for the violation of any designated rule or regulation of the rules of conduct for which a student is subject to disciplinary action.

(11) "Controlled substance" shall mean and include any drug or substance as defined in Chapter 69.50 RCW as now law or hereafter amended.

(12) "Faculty" shall mean and include any full-time or part-time academic employee of the District whose assignment is one of a combination of instruction, counseling or library services.

(13) "Rules of conduct" shall mean those rules contained within this chapter as now exist or which may be hereafter amended, the violation of which subjects a student to disciplinary action.

(14) "Student," unless otherwise qualified, shall mean and include any person who is registered for classes at the college.

(15) "College disciplinary court" shall mean the judicial body provided in this chapter.

(16) "Trespass" shall mean the definition of trespass as contained within Chapter 9A.52 RCW, as now law or hereafter amended.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-030 JURISDICTION. (1) All rules herein adopted shall apply to every student whenever said student is present upon or in any college facility and whenever said student is present at or engaged in any college-sponsored activity which is held on or in non-college facilities.

(2) Faculty members, other college employees, students, and members of the public who breach or aid or abet another in the breach of any provision of this chapter shall be subject to (a) possible prosecution under the

state criminal law; (b) any other civil or criminal remedies available to the public; or (c) appropriate disciplinary action pursuant to the state of Washington Higher Education Personnel Board Rules or the district's policies and regulations.

(3) Statutory authority of the Revised Code of Washington cited in this document is on file and available in the office of the dean of administrative and student services.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-040 STUDENT RIGHTS. The following enumerated rights are guaranteed to each student within the limitations of statutory law and college policy which are deemed necessary to achieve the educational goals of the college:

(1) Academic freedom.

(a) Students are guaranteed the rights of free inquiry, expression, and assembly upon and within college facilities that are generally open and available to the public.

(b) Students are free to pursue appropriate educational objectives from among the college's curricula, programs and services, subject to the limitations of RCW 28B.50.090 (3)(b).

(c) Students shall be protected from academic evaluation which is arbitrary, prejudiced or capricious, but are responsible for meeting the standards of academic performance established by each of their instructors.

(d) Students have the right to a learning environment which is free from unlawful discrimination, inappropriate, and disrespectful conduct, and sexual harassment.

(2) Due process. (a) The rights of students to be secure in their persons, quarters, papers and effects against unreasonable searches and seizures is guaranteed.

(b) No disciplinary sanction may be imposed on any student without notice to the accused of the nature of the charges.

(c) A student accused of violating this code of student rights and responsibilities is entitled, upon request, to procedural due process as set forth in this chapter.

(3) Distribution and posting. Students may distribute or post printed or published material subject to official procedures printed and available in the Office of Student Programs and Activities.

(4) Off-Campus speakers. Recognized student organizations shall have the right to invite outside speakers to speak on campus subject to the availability of campus facilities, funding, and compliance with the college procedures available in the Office of Student Affairs.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-050 STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES. Any student shall be subject to disciplinary action as provided for in this chapter who, either as a principle actor, aider, abettor or accomplice as defined in RCW 9A.08.020 interferes with the personal rights or privileges of others or the educational process of the college; violates any provision of this chapter; or commits any of the following personal, property or status offenses which are hereby prohibited:

(1) Personal offenses. (a) Assault, reckless endangerment, intimidation or interference upon another person in the manner set forth in RCW 9A.36.010, 9A.36.020, 9A.36.030, 9A.36.040, 9A.36.050 or 28B.10.570 through 28B.10.572 as now or hereafter amended.

(b) Disorderly, abusive, or bothersome conduct. Disorderly or abusive behavior which interferes with the rights of others or which obstructs or disrupts teaching, research, or administrative functions.

(c) Failure to follow instructions. Inattentiveness, inability, or failure of student to follow instructor's instructions, thereby infringing upon the rights and privileges of other students.

(d) Illegal assembly, obstruction or disruption. Any assembly or other act which materially and substantially interferes with vehicular or pedestrian traffic, classes, hearings, meetings, the educational and administrative functions of the college, or the private rights and privileges of others.

(e) False complaint. Filing a formal complaint falsely accusing another student or college employee with violating a provision of this chapter.

(f) False alarms. Falsely setting off or otherwise tampering with any emergency safety equipment, alarm, or other device established for the safety of individuals and/or college facilities.

(g) Sexual harassment. Engaging in unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature where such behavior offends the recipient, causes discomfort or humiliation, or interferes with job or school performance.

(2) Property offenses. (a) Theft and Robbery. Theft of the property of the district or of another as defined in the RCW 9A.56.010—9A.56.050 and 9A.56.100 as now law or hereafter amended.

(b) Malicious mischief. Intentional or negligent damage to or destruction of any college facility or other public or private real or personal property.

(c) Unauthorized use of college equipment and supplies. Converting of college equipment or supplies for personal gain or use without proper authority.

(3) Status offenses. (a) Cheating and plagiarism. Submitting to a faculty member any work product that the student fraudulently represents to the faculty member as the student's work product for the purpose of fulfilling or partially fulfilling any assignment or task required by the faculty member as part of the student's program of instruction.

(b) Forgery or alteration of records. Forging or tendering any forged records or instruments, as defined in RCW 9A.60.010—9A.60.020 as now law or hereafter amended, of any district record or instrument to an employee or agent of the district acting in his official capacity as such.

(c) Refusal to provide identification in appropriate circumstances. Refusal to provide positive identification (e.g., valid driver's license or state identification card) in appropriate circumstances to any college employee in the lawful discharge of said employee's duties.

(d) Illegal entry. Entering any administrative or other employee office or any locked or otherwise closed college

facility in any manner, at any time, without permission of the college employee or agent in charge thereof.

(e) Smoking. Smoking in any classroom or laboratory the library, or in any college facility or office posted "no smoking" or any other smoking not complying with RCW 70.160.

(f) Controlled substances. Using, possessing, being demonstrably under the influence of, or selling any narcotic or controlled substance as defined in Chapter 69.50 RCW as now law or hereafter amended, except when the use or possession of a drug is specifically prescribed as medication by an authorized medical doctor or dentist. For the purpose of this regulation, "sale" shall include the statutory meaning defined in RCW 69.50.410 as now law or hereafter amended.

(g) Alcoholic beverages. Being demonstrably under the influence of any form of alcoholic beverage. Possessing or consuming any form of alcoholic beverage on college property, with the exception of sanctioned events, approved by the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) and in compliance with the Alcoholic Beverage Use Policy of the college and other state law.

(h) Weapons, explosives, and dangerous chemicals. Illegal or unauthorized use or possession of any device or substance which can be used to inflict bodily harm or to damage real or personal property.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-060 TRESPASS. The dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) shall have the authority and power to prohibit the entry or withdraw the license or privilege of any person or group of persons to enter into or remain in any college property or facility. Such power and authority may be exercised to halt any event which is deemed to be unreasonably disruptive of order or impedes the movement of persons or vehicles or which disrupts or threatens to disrupt the ingress and/or egress of persons from facilities owned and/or operated by the college. Any individual who disobeys a lawful order given by the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designee(s), shall be subject to disciplinary action and/or charges of criminal trespass.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-070 DELEGATION OF DISCIPLINARY AUTHORITY. The dean of administrative and student services, or his designee(s), shall have authority to administer the disciplinary action prescribed in this chapter. The president shall be informed of all student dismissals, suspensions or probation proceedings by the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designee(s).

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-080 DISCIPLINARY ACTION. The following disciplinary actions are hereby established

and shall be imposed upon violators of the rules of conduct enumerated in this chapter, and pursuant to the right of appeal as outlined in this chapter.

(1) Disciplinary warning. Verbal notice to a student by the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designee(s) that she/he has violated the rules of conduct as outlined in this chapter or has otherwise failed to satisfy the College's expectations regarding conduct. Such warnings imply that continuing or repeating the specific violation or engaging in other misconduct will result in one of the more serious disciplinary actions described below. Formal files or records will not be kept on informal verbal warnings.

(2) Disciplinary reprimand. Formal action censuring a student for violating the rules of conduct as outlined in WAC 132D-120-050. Reprimands shall be made in writing to the student by the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designee(s), with copies placed on file in the Office of Student Affairs. A reprimand shall indicate to the student that continuing or repeating the specific violation involved will result in one of the more serious disciplinary actions described below.

(3) Disciplinary probation. Formal action by the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designee(s), placing conditions upon the student's continued attendance for violation of WAC 132D-120-050. Notice shall be made in writing and shall specify the period of probation and the conditions, such as limiting the student's participation in extracurricular activities. Disciplinary probation may be for a specific term or for an indefinite period which may extend to graduation or other termination of the student's enrollment in the College.

(4) Limited dismissal. Temporary dismissal from the College and termination of the person's student status for violation of WAC 132D-120-050. Notice shall be given in writing and specify the duration of the dismissal and any special conditions which must be met before readmission.

(5) Expulsion. Permanent termination of a student's status for violation of WAC 132D-120-050. Notice must be given in writing. There shall be no refund of fees for the quarter in which the action is taken but fees paid in advance for a subsequent quarter will to be refunded.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-090 INITIAL DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS. (1) All disciplinary proceedings will be initiated by the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designated representative. The student may be placed on suspension pending commencement of disciplinary action, pursuant to the conditions set forth in WAC 132D-120-160.

(2) Any student accused of violating any provision of the rules of conduct shall be called for an initial meeting with the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designated representative, and will be informed of what provision or provisions of the rules of

conduct he/she is charged with violating, and what appears to be the range of penalties, if any, which might result from disciplinary proceedings.

(3) After considering the evidence in the case and interviewing the accused student, if the accused student has appeared at the scheduled conference, the dean of administrative and student services may take any of the following actions: (a) terminate the proceeding, exonerating the student or students; (b) dismiss the case after whatever counseling and advice the dean of administrative and student services deems appropriate; (c) impose verbal warning to the student directly, not subject to the student's right of appeal as provided in this chapter; (d) impose additional sanctions of reprimand, probation, limited dismissal or expulsion, subject to the student's right of appeal as provided in the following provisions.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-100 APPEALS—GENERALLY

(1) Appeals contesting any disciplinary action may be made by the student(s) involved. Such appeals shall be made in the following order:

(a) Disciplinary action taken by the dean of administrative and student services, or his or her designee(s) may be appealed to the college disciplinary court, which may, at the request of the student(s), hear the case de novo.

(b) Disciplinary recommendations made by the college disciplinary court may be appealed by the student to the president of the college. The president shall review the record of the proceedings which gave rise to the appeal, as well as the recommendations made by the dean of administrative and student services and the college disciplinary court. The president's decision shall be final.

(2) Any appeal by a student receiving a disciplinary sanction must meet the following conditions: (a) the appeal must be in writing and must clearly state errors in fact or matters in extenuation or mitigation which justify the appeal; and (b) the appeal must be filed within ten working days from the date on which the student was notified that disciplinary action was being taken.

(3) All appellate decisions shall be sent from the office of the dean of administrative and student services. Written decisions shall include the signatures of the college disciplinary court.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-110 COMPOSITION AND STRUCTURE OF THE COLLEGE DISCIPLINARY COURT. (1) The college disciplinary court shall be composed of a chief justice, associate chief justice and seven associate justices selected as follows:

(a) The chief justice shall be a student in good academic standing at the college, and s/he shall be appointed by the ASSVC president for a one-year term; and

(b) The associate chief justice shall be a faculty member or administrator appointed by the president of the college for a three-year term; and

(c) The associate justices shall be selected as follows:

(i) Four associate justices shall be students in good academic standing appointed by the ASSVC president for one-year terms; and

(ii) Two associate justices shall be faculty members selected by the faculty for two-year terms; and

(iii) One associate justice shall be an administrator appointed by the president of the college for a two-year term; and

(iv) Members of the college disciplinary court shall be chosen by no later than October 15 of each academic year.

(d) A chief justice, associate chief justice, and associate justices shall serve during their term of office as set forth above and until their successors are appointed or elected.

(2) If any member of the college disciplinary court is unable to consider a particular disciplinary proceeding for any reason (including but not limited to conflict of interest, matters of conscience or related reasons), such members shall abstain from considering the issues. If the chief justice and associate chief justice abstain pursuant to the above procedure, the members of the college disciplinary court shall elect a temporary chief justice who will preside over the court.

(3) The chief justice, or in his or her absence the associate chief justice except under circumstances described in subparagraph (2) above, shall preside over all court proceedings in cases relating to student violation of the rules of conduct established by this chapter. The presiding officer of the college disciplinary court shall exercise the powers and duties usually granted to the presiding officer of a judicial body including but not limited to the power to make rulings on all evidentiary procedural matters heard in the course of the disciplinary hearing.

(4) A quorum for all proceedings of the college disciplinary court shall consist of the chief justice, or in his or her absence the associate chief justice, and at least four associate justices; provided, in the event that the chief justice and associate chief justice have been replaced in accordance with subparagraph (2) above, the college disciplinary court shall meet to elect a temporary chief justice.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-120 HEARING PROCEDURES BEFORE THE COLLEGE DISCIPLINARY COURT.

(1) The college disciplinary court shall conduct a hearing within fourteen working days after disciplinary action has been referred to the court.

(2) Where a person is charged with an offense punishable by suspension, limited dismissal, or termination of his or her relationship with the institution, and where the person (a) waives the opportunity for an informal hearing, or (b) by his conduct (in the judgment of the hearing officer) makes it impossible to conduct an informal hearing, or (c) is dissatisfied with the results of the informal hearing; that person is entitled to a formal hearing conducted according to the provisions of RCW

28B.19.110 and the guidelines of this chapter. Where a formal hearing is neither required by law nor requested by the student or the college, the matter may be resolved informally. Informal hearings before the college disciplinary court shall be conducted in any manner which will bring about a prompt, fair resolution of the issue.

(3) The college disciplinary court will hear and decide cases referred to it by the dean of administrative and student services or by appeal as specified in WAC 132D-120-090. The court shall prepare a written opinion which shall include findings of fact, conclusions, and recommendations.

(4) The student has a right to a fair and impartial hearing before the college disciplinary court on any charge of violating the rules of conduct. The student's failure to cooperate with the court's hearing procedures, however, shall not preclude the college disciplinary court from making its findings of fact, conclusions and recommendations.

(5) Written notice of the time and place of the hearing before the college disciplinary court shall be given to the student by personal service or certified mail. Such notice shall be afforded not less than ten (10) calendar days in advance of the hearing and shall be issued by the office of the dean of administrative and student services. The notice shall include:

(a) A statement of time, place and nature of the disciplinary proceedings; and

(b) A statement of the specific charges against him or her including reference to the particular sections of the rules of conduct involved; and

(c) To the extent known, a list of witnesses who will appear and a summary description of any documentary or other physical evidence that will be presented by the college at the hearing.

(6) The student shall be entitled to:

(a) hear and examine the evidence against him or her and be informed of the identity of its source; and

(b) present evidence in his or her own behalf and to cross-examine witnesses testifying on behalf of the college as to factual matters; and

(c) take depositions upon oral examination or written interrogatories. Discovery shall be done according to the rules of civil procedure or by a less formal method where all parties agree.

(7) The student may be represented by counsel of his or her choice at the disciplinary hearing. If the student elects to choose a duly licensed attorney admitted to practice in the state of Washington as counsel, notice thereof must be tendered by the student to the dean of administrative and student services at least five working days prior to the hearing.

(8) In all disciplinary proceedings, the college may be represented by a designee appointed by the dean of administrative and student services; that designee may then present the college's case against the student accused of violating the rules of conduct; provided, that in those cases in which the student elects to be represented by a licensed attorney, the dean of administrative and student services may elect to have the college represented by an assistant attorney general.

(9) The dean of administrative and student services shall designate a recorder to take notes during the hearing and to prepare a written summary of all evidence, facts, and testimony presented to the college disciplinary court during the course of the hearing. The proceedings of the hearing shall also be tape-recorded.

(10) The record in a formal hearing shall contain: (a) all documents, motions and intermediate rulings; and (b) evidence received and considered; and (c) a statement of matters officially noticed; and (d) questions and offers of proof, objections and rulings thereon.

(11) All records of disciplinary proceedings shall be maintained in the office of the dean of administrative and student services and shall be available only during the course of the disciplinary proceedings to the college disciplinary court, the student and his/her attorney, and any other college official designated by the president.

(12) Following the conclusion of the disciplinary proceeding, access to records of the case and hearing files will be limited to those designated by the college president.

(13) Proceedings of the college disciplinary court shall be presided over by a presiding officer as provided in WAC 132D-120-110 and -120.

(14) Following final disposition of the case and any appeals therefrom, the president may direct the destruction of any records of any disciplinary proceedings, provided that such destruction is in conformance with the requirements of Chapter 40.14 RCW.

(15) The time of the hearing may be advanced by the college disciplinary court at the request of the student or continued for good cause.

(16) Hearings conducted by the college disciplinary court generally will be held in closed session; provided, the accused student may request the hearing to be held in open session.

(17) If at any time during the conduct of a hearing visitors disrupt the proceedings, the presiding officer of the college disciplinary court may exclude such persons from the hearing room.

(18) Any student of the college attending the disciplinary court hearing who continues to disrupt the proceedings after the presiding officer has asked him/her to cease or to leave the hearing room, shall be subject to disciplinary action.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-130 EVIDENCE ADMISSIBLE IN HEARINGS. (1) Only those matters presented at the hearing, in the presence of the accused student, except where the student fails to attend after receipt of proper notice, will be considered in determining whether the college disciplinary court has sufficient cause to believe that the accused student is guilty of violating the rules he or she is charged with having violated. Hearsay evidence is admissible.

(2) The presiding officer of the college disciplinary court shall, in the course of presiding at the disciplinary hearing, give effect to the rules of privilege recognized by law and exclude incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial and unduly repetitious evidence.

(3) Evidence or testimony to be offered by or on behalf of the student in extenuation or mitigation shall not be presented or considered until all substantive evidence or testimony has been presented.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-140 DECISION BY THE COLLEGE DISCIPLINARY COURT. (1) Upon conclusion of the disciplinary hearing, the college disciplinary court shall consider all the evidence therein presented and decide by majority vote whether to uphold the decision of the dean of administrative and student services or to recommend institution of any of the following actions:

(a) That the college terminate the proceedings and exonerate the student; or

(b) That the college impose any of the disciplinary actions as provided in this chapter.

(2) Within seven working days of the conclusion of the hearing, the student will be provided with a copy of the court's findings of fact and conclusions regarding what occurred and whether the student did violate any rule or rules of the code of conduct. The court shall also advise the student of his or her right to present, within ten (10) calendar days, a written statement to the president of the college appealing the recommendation of the college disciplinary court.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-150 FINAL APPEAL. (1) Any student feeling aggrieved by the findings or conclusions of an appeal pursuant to WAC 132D-120-140 may appeal the same in writing by directing an appeal to the president within ten (10) calendar days following notification of the student of the action taken by the college disciplinary court. The president may, at his discretion, suspend any disciplinary action pending determination of the merits of the findings, conclusions and disciplinary actions imposed. In the consideration of such an appeal, the president shall base his findings and decision only on the official written record of the case and on any reports or recommendations of the college disciplinary court and the dean of administrative and student services.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-160 SUMMARY SUSPENSION PROCEEDINGS. (1) Ordinarily, disciplinary sanctions will be imposed only after the appropriate informal or formal hearing has taken place and after the student has, if he or she so chooses, exercised his or her right to appeal. However, if the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) has cause to believe that any student (a) has committed a felony; or (b) has violated any provision of this chapter; and (c) presents an imminent danger either to himself or herself, other persons on the college campus or to the educational process; that student shall be summarily suspended and shall be notified by certified and regular mail at the student's last known address, or shall be personally served. Summary suspension is appropriate only where (c) can be shown, either alone or in conjunction with (a) or (b).

(2) The notice shall be entitled "Notice of Summary Suspension Proceedings" and shall state: (a) the charges against the student including reference to the provisions of WAC 132D-120-050 or statutory law involved; and (b) that the student charged must appear before the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) at a time specified in the notice for a hearing. The hearing shall be held as soon as possible after the summary suspension.

Reviser's note: The spelling errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-170 PROCEDURES OF SUMMARY SUSPENSION HEARING. (1) The summary suspension hearing shall be considered an informal hearing. The hearing must be conducted as soon as possible and the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) shall preside.

(2) The dean shall decide whether there is probable cause to believe that continued suspension is necessary and/or whether some other disciplinary action is appropriate.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-180 DECISION BY THE DEAN OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND STUDENT SERVICES. If the dean, following the summary suspension hearing, finds that there is probable cause to believe that: (1) the student against whom specific violations are alleged has committed one or more such violations and (2) summary suspension of that student is necessary for the safety of the student, other students or persons on college facilities, the educational process of the institution, or to restore order to the campus; and (3) such violation or violations constitute grounds for disciplinary action as provided for in WAC 132D-120-050; then the dean of administrative and student services may continue to enforce the suspension of the student from college and may impose any other disciplinary action appropriate.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-190 NOTICE OF SUSPENSION. (1) If a student's summary suspension is upheld or if the student is otherwise disciplined, the student will be provided written notice of that fact including the dean of administrative and students services' findings of fact and conclusions which lead the dean to believe that the summary suspension should continue.

(2) The student suspended pursuant to the authority of this rule shall be served a copy of the notice of suspension by personal service or by certified and regular mail at the student's last known address within three working days following the conclusion or the hearing with the dean of administrative and student services.

(3) The notice of suspension shall stipulate the duration of the suspension or nature of the disciplinary action and conditions under which the suspension may be terminated.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-200 SUSPENSION FOR FAILURE TO APPEAR. The dean of administrative and student services is authorized to enforce the suspension of the summarily suspended student in the event the student has been served pursuant to the notice requirement and fails to appear at the time designated for the summary suspension proceeding.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-210 APPEALS FROM SUMMARY SUSPENSION HEARING. (1) Any student aggrieved by an order issued at the summary suspension proceeding may appeal to the college disciplinary court. No such appeal shall be entertained, however, unless (a) the student has first appeared before the dean or administrative and students services at the hearing called for in WAC 132D-120-190; and (b) the student has been officially notified of the outcome of the that hearing; and (c) summary suspension or another disciplinary sanction has been upheld; and (d) the appeal conforms to the standards set forth in WAC 132D-120-100(2).

(2) The college disciplinary court shall, within five (5) working days, conduct a formal hearing according to the provisions of WAC 132D-120-120. Appeals from summary suspension take precedence over other matters before the court.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-220 FINAL DECISION. The president or his or her designee(s) shall review the findings and conclusions of the dean in conjunction with the recommendations of the college disciplinary court and will issue a final decision within three days.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-230 STUDENT GRIEVANCES. The purpose of this section is to protect each student's freedom of expression in the classroom; to protect each student against improper disclosure of the students' views, beliefs and political associations; to protect each student from improper, arbitrary or capricious academic evaluation as evidenced by the student's final course grade; and to afford each student reasonable protection against arbitrary or capricious actions taken outside the classroom by other members of the college community.

Skagit Valley College is committed to protecting the rights and dignity of each individual in the campus community. Therefore, the college will not tolerate discrimination of any kind, at any level.

Further, it is the policy of Skagit Valley College to provide an environment in which students can work and study free from sexual harassment or sexual intimidation. Sexual harassment occurs in a context of unequal power and is a form of sexual discrimination. As such, it is a violation of Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act and Title IX of the 1972 Education Amendments.

Sexual harassment of a student is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct when: (a) submission to the conduct is either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's academic standing; and/or (b) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for academic decisions affecting that individual; and/or (c) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or academic performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-240 GRIEVANCES EXCLUDED FROM THIS SECTION. (1) A student may not use the provisions of this section as the basis for filing a grievance based on the outcome of summary or other disciplinary proceedings described in earlier sections of the student rights and responsibilities code.

(2) Federal and state laws, rules and regulations, in addition to policies, regulations and procedures adopted by the State Board for Community College Education or the board of trustees of Community College District No. 4 shall not be grievable matters.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-250 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES—GENERALLY. If a student believes he or she has been unfairly treated by an officer of the college, faculty member or a member of the college staff, the student may pursue the matter on two levels. First, the student may follow an informal procedure. Second, if the informal procedure fails to satisfy the grievant, he or she may file an official grievance and request a hearing before the grievance review committee. The student may waive his or her right to have the matter resolved informally. In either case, the student must initiate proceedings with the college within twenty (20) days of the occurrence which gave rise to the grievance.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-260 INFORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE. (1) A student wishing to pursue an informal resolution to his or her grievance may first contact the Student Activities Office. That office will serve as a source of information and direction for grievants and shall advise students as to the most effective means of resolving their grievance. This service is optional.

(2) A student may instead, as a first step in the informal grievance procedure, contact the faculty or staff

member with whom he or she has a grievance and attempt to resolve the matter through direct discussion.

(3) If direct discussion does not resolve the grievance to the student's satisfaction, the student shall take the matter to the faculty/staff member's immediate supervisor. The supervisor shall serve as a mediator and will attempt to resolve the matter promptly and fairly.

(4) If the efforts of the supervisor also fail to satisfy the grievant, the supervisor shall forward the complaint to the appropriate associate dean who shall, within three (3) working days, decide how best to resolve the grievance. The associate dean shall issue a written opinion.

(5) The student shall be notified of this decision and shall also be informed of his or her right to file a petition to have the grievance heard before the grievance review committee.

(6) The informal grievance procedure shall be completed in fifteen (15) working days unless all parties agree to more time.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-270 INFORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE—SEXUAL HARASSMENT AND SEX AND HANDICAPPED DISCRIMINATION.

(1) Any student alleging a violation of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Sex discrimination) or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Handicapped Discrimination) shall, as a first step in the informal grievance procedure, contact the Title IX/Sec. 504 ombudsman. The student may contact the Student Activities Office for the name and location of the ombudsman.

(2) The ombudsman shall:

(a) provide information about informal and formal options within and outside the college.

(b) intervene, if requested by either party, in order to resolve the problem to the satisfaction of all.

(3) If the ombudsman is unable to resolve the grievance, the student may file an official grievance requesting a hearing before the grievance review committee and is entitled to all appeals beyond that committee.

(4) Consultations with the ombudsman shall be strictly confidential until the ombudsman begins to act as mediator.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-280 GRIEVANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE PROCEDURES. (1) Any grievance not resolved informally may be appealed to the Grievance Review Committee for a hearing. The grievant shall petition the committee by obtaining an official grievance form from the Student Activities Office. That petition shall be made within five (5) working days of the notice of decision in the informal proceedings.

(2) When a petition for review is filed, the student shall either (a) be assigned an advocate, or (b) waive his or her right to an advocate, or (c) notify the college of his or her retention of an attorney. Where the student is

represented by an attorney, the college may be represented by an assistant attorney general.

(3) The student's completed official grievance form shall be distributed to all members of the grievance review committee.

(4) The registrar shall chair the grievance review committee and its members shall be chosen as follows:

(a) Two faculty members appointed by the executive dean of educational services; and

(b) Two students appointed by the president of the associated students of Skagit Valley College; and

(c) Two classified staff members appointed by the classified staff training committee.

(5) The grievance review committee may call any witnesses and hear any testimony needed to reach a prompt, fair resolution of the grievance. The proceedings before the committee shall not be considered a formal, trial-type hearing. However, where requested by the student and approved by the president, or where required by RCW 28B.19.110, a formal hearing (to be conducted in accordance with WAC 132D-120-120) may be granted.

(6) Within three (3) working days of the conclusion of the hearing, the committee shall issue a written recommendation. All parties shall receive a copy of this recommendation.

(7) In the case of instructional grievances, the committee's recommendations shall be sent to the executive dean of educational services. In all other cases, the committee's recommendations shall be forwarded to the dean of administrative and student services. The appropriate dean shall, within three (3) working days, accept, modify, or reject the recommendations of the grievance review committee.

(8) All parties shall be notified of the dean's decision within five (5) working days.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-290 FINAL DECISION REGARDING THE APPEAL PROCEDURE—EXTRA-INSTITUTIONAL APPEALS.

(1) Where the student is not satisfied by the dean's decision, he or she may appeal that decision to the president of the college provided that such appeal is made within five (5) working days of the student's receipt of notice of the decision. (2) The president will review the record of the case prepared by the committee together with any appeal statement and will deliver a written acceptance of the registrar's decision or directions as to what other course of action shall be taken, within ten (10) instructional days after receiving the appeal.

(2) This decision shall constitute final agency action by the college.

(3) A student who was granted a formal hearing by the president of the college and who feels aggrieved by the institution's final decision, may petition for judicial review of that decision according to the provisions of RCW 28B.19.150.

(4) For further review in sexual or handicapped discrimination cases, the grievant may send appeals or inquiries to:

(a) Regional Director, Office of Civil Rights, HEW; 29011-3rd Avenue, M.S. 510, Seattle, WA 98121;

(b) The Equal Opportunity Commission; 1321-2nd Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101;

(c) Human Rights Commission; 402 Evergreen Plaza Building, 7th and Capitol Way, Olympia, WA 98504.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-300 NATURE OF GRIEVANCE PROCEEDINGS. All hearings growing out of a student-initiated grievance, including appeals to the office of the president, shall remain closed unless all parties to the grievance agree on an open hearing.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-310 WITHDRAWAL OF GRIEVANCE. (1) At any time during the grievance procedure, the grievant may officially withdraw the grievance in writing.

(2) In the event the grievant or appellant fails to appear for any scheduled hearing without prior notification or evidence of extenuating circumstances, this shall be considered to constitute withdrawal of the grievance or appeal.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-320 ADMINISTRATIVE, FACULTY AND STAFF GRIEVANCES. Any administrator, faculty member or staff member who is the subject of a student's grievance and who is dissatisfied with the results of any level of the student grievance proceedings shall file a grievance under the appropriate grievance procedure established by Skagit Valley College.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-330 PRIOR RULES. The rules contained within this chapter supercede all former rules relating to student conduct and student grievances.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-340 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this chapter is adjudged by a court to be unconstitutional, the remaining provisions shall continue in effect.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-120-350 EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE RULES OF CONDUCT. The rules contained within this chapter shall become effective January 1, 1989.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

(1) WAC 132D-14, RULES OF CONDUCT AND ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES.

Reviser's note: The repealer appears as filed by the institution pursuant to RCW 34.08.040, however the reference to section is probably intended to be chapter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-010 AUTHORITY. Pursuant to the authority granted by RCW 28B.50.140(10), the board of trustees of Community College District No. 4 empowers the dean of administrative and student services to make rules and regulations for pedestrian and vehicular traffic on property owned, operated or maintained by the college district.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-020 PURPOSE. The rules and regulations contained in this chapter are established for the following purposes: (1) to protect and control pedestrian and vehicular traffic on property owned, operated and maintained by the college district.

(2) To assure access at all times for emergency traffic.

(3) To minimize traffic disturbances.

(4) To facilitate the operation of the college by assuring access for vehicles.

(5) To regulate the use of parking spaces.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-030 DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions and terms shall apply:

(1) BOARD: the board of trustees of Community College District No. 4, state of Washington.

(2) CAMPUS: any or all real property owned, operated, controlled or maintained by Community College District No. 4, state of Washington.

(3) COLLEGE: Skagit Valley College and any other community college centers or facilities established within Community College District No. 4.

(4) FACULTY MEMBERS: any employee of Community College District No. 4 who is certified to teach in a community college in the state of Washington.

(5) COLLEGE DISCIPLINARY COURT: the court system established by Chapter 132D-120 WAC.

(6) SECURITY OFFICER: an employee of the college accountable to the dean of administrative and student services and responsible for campus security, safety, and parking and traffic control.

(7) STAFF: the administrative and classified members employed by the college.

(8) STUDENTS: any person enrolled at the college.

(9) VEHICLE: an automobile, truck or other such vehicle and two-wheeled vehicles powered by a motor.

(10) VISITOR: persons who come upon the campus as guests, and persons who lawfully visit the campus for purposes which are in keeping with the college's role as

an institution of higher learning in the state of Washington.

(11) **PERMANENT PERMIT:** a permit which is valid for a college quarter, year or a portion thereof.

(12) **TEMPORARY PERMIT:** a permit issued in lieu of a permanent permit for a period determined on the permit.

(13) **HANDICAPPED PERMIT:** a permit issued to a person with a physical, mental or sensory impairment.

Reviser's note: The spelling errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-040 APPLICABLE TRAFFIC RULES AND REGULATIONS. The traffic rules and regulations which are applicable upon the campus are: (1) the motor vehicle and traffic codes of the state of Washington.

(2) Local traffic ordinances of the respective college facilities established within community college district No. 4.

(3) The traffic rules and regulations of federal, state or local agencies who rent, lease or otherwise provide facilities for the use of the college.

(4) The rules and regulations described in this chapter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-050 PARKING AND TRAFFIC RESPONSIBILITY. The responsibility for parking and traffic management on campus shall be vested in the dean of administrative and student services and his or her appointed security officer(s) or designee(s).

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-060 PERMITS REQUIRED FOR MOTOR VEHICLES ON CAMPUS. Students, faculty members, staff members, guests and visitors shall not stop, park or leave a vehicle whether attended or unattended upon the campus without a parking permit issued pursuant to this chapter; provided, the permit shall not be required of visitors who park in specifically marked visitor areas and the exemptions from traffic and parking restrictions set forth in this chapter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-070 AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMITS. Parking permits shall be issued to students, faculty members, staff members, guests and visitors of the college pursuant to the following regulations: (1) the dean of administrative and student services is authorized to issue parking permits to students upon the registration of their vehicle with the college at the beginning of each academic period; provided, the academic period shall not include summer school.

(2) Faculty, staff, and employees may be issued parking permits if they register their vehicle upon employment with the college.

(3) Temporary visitor parking permits or special parking permits may be issued by the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) if issuance enhances the business or operation of the college.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-080 PARKING FEES. Fees for parking in designated areas will be established by the board of trustees.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-090 VALID PERMITS. The following are valid parking permits, provided they are properly displayed and unexpired: (1) A permanent permit.

(2) A temporary permit.

(3) A handicapped permit.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-100 DISPLAY OF PERMIT. (1) A permanent permit shall be displayed affixed to the inside of the rear window on the lower left corner directly behind the driver. If the vehicle is a convertible or has no rear window, the permit shall be affixed to the top center of the windshield.

(2) Permits for motorcycles shall be affixed in visible locations.

(3) A special or temporary parking permit shall be placed within the vehicle where it can be plainly observed.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-110 TRANSFER OF PERMITS. Parking permits are not transferable.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-120 PERMIT REVOCATION. Parking permits are the property of the college and may be recalled by the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) for any of the following reasons:

(1) When the purpose for which the permit was issued changes or no longer exists;

(2) When a permit is used by an unregistered vehicle or by an unauthorized individual;

(3) Falsification on a parking permit application;

(4) Continued violations of parking regulations; or

(5) Counterfeiting or altering a parking permit.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-130 RIGHT TO APPEAL PERMIT REVOCATION. When a parking permit has been recalled as provided by this chapter, such action may be appealed pursuant to WAC 132D-120-230 through 290.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-140 RESPONSIBILITY OF PERMIT HOLDER. The permit holder is responsible

for the vehicle to which the permit is affixed. Therefore, he or she will be held responsible for any violations charged to that vehicle. However, an operator of a vehicle will not be relieved of responsibility for violating any rule of this chapter simply because he or she is not also the permit holder.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-150 RIGHT TO REFUSE PERMIT. The dean of administrative and student services may refuse to issue a parking permit when it is deemed in the best interests of the college to do so.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-160 ALLOCATION OF PARKING SPACES. The parking space available on campus shall be allocated by the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s), in such a manner as will best effectuate the objectives this chapter.

(1) Faculty and staff spaces will be so designated for their use; and

(2) Student spaces will be so designated for their use; provided, physically handicapped students may be granted special permits to park in close proximity to the classrooms used by such students; and

(3) Parking space will be designated for use of visitors on campus.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-170 PARKING WITHIN DESIGNATED SPACES. (1) No vehicle shall be parked on the campus except in those areas set aside and designated pursuant to this chapter.

(2) Parking in designated areas will be strictly enforced between the hours of 7 a.m. and 4 p.m., Monday through Friday.

(3) All vehicles shall follow traffic arrows and other markings established for the purpose of directing traffic on campus.

(4) In areas marked for diagonal parking, vehicles shall be parked at a forty-five degree angle, facing in, with no part of the vehicle extending more than two feet beyond the yellow line or barrier.

(5) In areas marked for parallel or right-angle parking, space or stall markings will be observed.

(6) No vehicle shall be parked so as to occupy any portion of more than one space or stall as designated within the parking area. The fact that other vehicles may have been so parked as to require the vehicle parked to occupy a portion of more than one space or stall will not constitute an excuse for a violation of this section.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-180 NIGHT PARKING. Night students, faculty members, visitors and guests may park in any of the spaces or stalls designated in this chapter on a first-come, first-served basis between the hours of 4

p.m. and 7 p.m. Whidbey students are restricted to the student parking lots on the Whidbey Campus at all times.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-190 REGULATORY SIGNS AND DIRECTIONS. The dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) is authorized to erect signs, barricades and other structures and to paint marks or other directions upon the entry ways and streets on campus and upon the various parking lots owned or operated by the college. Such signs, barricades, structures, markings and directions shall be so made and placed as (in the opinion of the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s)) will best achieve the goals of this chapter.

(1) Drivers of vehicles shall obey the signs, barricades, structures, markings and directions erected pursuant to this section. Drivers shall also comply with the directions given them by a campus security officer controlling and regulating traffic.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-200 SPEED LIMIT. No vehicle shall be operated on the campus at a speed in excess of ten miles per hour or in excess of the posted speed limit.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-210 SPECIAL TRAFFIC AND PARKING REGULATIONS AUTHORIZED. Upon special occasions causing additional and/or heavy traffic and during emergencies, the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s), is authorized to impose additional traffic and parking regulations to achieve the objectives of this chapter.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-220 TWO-WHEELED MOTOR BIKES OR BICYCLES. (1) All two-wheeled vehicles powered by a motor or foot shall park in spaces designated by the security officer.

(2) No vehicle shall be ridden on the sidewalks on campus at any time unless authorized by the dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s).

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-230 REPORT OF ACCIDENTS. The operator of any vehicle involved in an accident on campus where injury or death of any person results, or where either or both vehicles is damaged in any amount, shall within twenty-four hours make a written report of the accident to the dean of administrative and student

services. This report does not relieve any person so involved in an accident from his or her responsibility to file a state of Washington motor vehicle accident report.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-240 ENFORCEMENT. (1) Enforcement of the parking rules and regulations will begin the first week of classes of fall quarter and will continue until the end of spring quarter. These rules and regulations will not be enforced during summer quarter, Saturdays, Sundays and official college holidays.

(2) The dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s), shall be responsible for the enforcement of the rules and regulations contained in this chapter. The dean of administrative and student services is authorized to delegate this responsibility to the campus security officer or other subordinates.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-250 ISSUANCE OF TRAFFIC CITATIONS. The dean of administrative and student services, his or her appointed security officer, or his or her designee(s) may issue citations for any violations of these rules and regulations. Such citations shall include the date, approximate time, vehicle identification number, infraction, name of the issuing officer and schedule of fines. The traffic citations may be served in person, by mail, or by attaching a copy to a prominent place on the outside of the vehicle.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-260 FINES AND PENALTIES. The dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s) is authorized to impose fines and penalties for the violation of rules and regulations contained in this chapter.

(1) The following \$5.00 citations will be issued for any of the following violations of the campus parking regulations. The fee will be reduced to \$2.00 if paid within 24 hours.

- (a) No valid parking permit displayed.
- (b) Parking out of designated parking space.
- (c) Overtime parking.
- (d) Occupying more than one parking space.
- (e) Blocking traffic.
- (f) Parking in a reserved or restricted area.
- (g) Parking in a driveway or walkway.
- (h) Parking on grass or landscaped area.
- (i) Failure to display handicapped permit.

(2) A \$10.00 fine will be issued for any of the following violations of the campus parking regulations:

(a) Use of forged, stolen, or transferred parking permits.

(b) Parking in a loading zone.

(3) A \$15.00 fine, also subject to being towed away at the owner's expense, will be issued for any of the following violations of the campus parking regulations:

(a) Parked in any space designated as handicapped parking where the parked vehicle does not have a handicapped permit.

(b) Parked at an area designated as a fire lane.

(4) The dean of administrative and student services or his or her designee(s), shall be authorized to impound vehicles parked on college property.

(a) Vehicles left abandoned on college property for an unreasonable duration are subject to impoundment by the college, pursuant to state law. An unreasonable duration is a period greater than five (5) working days.

(b) Vehicles in violation of subsection (3) may be impounded.

(c) Vehicles involved in more than two violations of these regulations within a twelve-month period are subject to impoundment.

(d) Impoundment and storage expenses shall be borne by the owner of the impounded vehicle.

(e) The college shall not be liable for loss or damage of any kind resulting from such impoundment and storage.

(f) Impoundment of a vehicle does not remove the obligation for any fines associated with the citation.

(5) An accumulation of traffic violations by a student will be cause for disciplinary action, and the dean of administrative and student services shall initiate disciplinary proceedings against such student pursuant to Chapter 132D-120 WAC.

(6) Fines will be paid in the front office at the registration window.

(7) Unpaid fines will be referred to the registration office for notation. When fines are unpaid, transcripts, quarterly grade reports, or permission to re-register may be withheld.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-270 APPEAL OF FINES AND PENALTIES. Any fines and penalties levied against a violator of the rules and regulations in this chapter may be appealed pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 132D-120 WAC.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-280 LIABILITY OF COLLEGE. Except for the college owned and/or operated vehicles, the college assumes no liability under any circumstances for vehicles on campus.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-290 EFFECTIVE DATE. These regulations shall be effective on the date of filing with the code reviser.

NEW SECTION

WAC 132D-116-300 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this chapter is adjudged by a court to be unconstitutional, the remaining provisions shall continue in effect.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

(1) WAC 132D-16, PARKING AND TRAFFIC REGULATIONS.

Reviser's note: The repealer appears as filed by the institution pursuant to RCW 34.08.040, however the reference to section is probably intended to be chapter.

WSR 88-24-015
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
 [Order 88-179—Filed December 1, 1988]

I, Joseph R. Blum, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, Joseph R. Blum, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is openings in Area 7B provide opportunity to harvest non-Indian allocation of chum destined for the Nooksack-Samish region of origin, and to prevent wastage. The restriction in Area 7B is necessary to maintain an orderly fishery. All other Puget Sound areas are closed to prevent overharvest of local salmon stocks. There is inadequate time to follow the permanent rule adoption process.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.

By Judith Merchant
 for Joseph R. Blum
 Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-47-936 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY. *Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 220-47 WAC, effective 8:00 PM Friday December 2 until further notice, it is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget Sound Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas except in accordance with the following open periods and restrictions:*

- * *Area 7B – Purse seines may fish to 11:59 PM Saturday December 10, and Gillnets using 6-inch minimum mesh may fish to 11:59 PM Saturday December 10. This area 7B opening excludes those waters north and east of a line projected from the light at the Port of Bellingham North Terminal to the light at the end of Squalicum Creek Waterway.*
- * *Areas 4B, 5, 6, 6A, 6B, 6C, 6D, 7, 7A, 7C, 7D, 7E, 8, 8A, 8D, 9, 9A, 10, 10A, 10C, 10D, 10E, 10F, 10G, 11, 11A, 12, 12A, 12B, 12C, 12D, 13, 13A, 13C, 13D, 13E, 13F, 13G, 13H, 13I, 13J, and 13K and all freshwater areas – Closed.*

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective 8:00 PM Friday December 2:

WAC 220-47-935 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY (88-178)

WSR 88-24-016
PROPOSED RULES
BOARD OF PHARMACY
 [Filed December 1, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Board of Pharmacy intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning the practice of pharmacy and the distribution of drugs, WAC 360-36-500 Controlled substance distribution reporting;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Thursday, December 15, 1988, in the May Flower Park Hotel, 405 Olive Way, Seattle, WA 98101, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 18.64.005.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 18.64.005.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before December 15, 1988.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 88-19-075 filed with the code reviser's office on September 19, 1988.

Dated: November 30, 1988

By: John H. Keith
 Assistant Attorney General
 Board Council

WSR 88-24-017
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING
(Board of Practical Nursing)
 [Order PM 768—Filed December 1, 1988]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Board of Practical Nursing, acting at the Executive Inn, 5700 Pacific Highway East, Fife, WA, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

Amd	WAC 308-117-010	Definitions.
Amd	WAC 308-117-030	Licensure qualifications.
Amd	WAC 308-117-060	Filing of application for licensing examination.
Amd	WAC 308-117-090	Licensure by interstate endorsement.
Amd	WAC 308-117-100	Renewal of licenses.
New	WAC 308-117-360	AIDS education and training.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-024 filed with the code reviser on October 10, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.78.050, [18.78].054, [18.78].060, [18.78].072, [18.89].090, [18.78].225, 18.130.050 and 70.24.270 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 30, 1988.

By Marie Christine Ivy
Chair

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 452, filed 12/19/83)

WAC 308-117-010 DEFINITIONS. (1) "Program" means a division or department within a state supported educational institution, or other institution of higher learning charged with the responsibility of preparing persons to qualify for the licensing examination.

(2) "Philosophy" means the beliefs and principles upon which the curriculum is based.

(3) "Terminal objectives" means the statements of goals which reflect the philosophy and are the measurable outcomes of the total curriculum.

(4) "Behavioral objectives" means the measurable outcomes of specific content.

(5) "Minimum standards of competency" means the functions that are expected of the beginning level licensed practical nurse.

(6) "Conceptual framework" means the theoretical base around which the curriculum is developed.

(7) "Beginning practitioner" means a newly licensed practical nurse beginning to function in the practical nurse role.

(8) "Client" means the person who receives the services of the practical nurse.

(9) "Standards" means the overall behavior which is the desired outcome.

(10) "Competencies" means the tasks necessary to perform the standards.

(11) "Client advocate" means a supporter of client rights and choices.

(12) "Acquired immunodeficiency syndrome" or "AIDS" means the clinical syndrome of HIV-related illness as defined by the board of health by rule.

(13) "Office on AIDS" means that section within the department of social and health services or any successor department with jurisdiction over public health matters as defined in chapter 70.24 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 452, filed 12/19/83)

WAC 308-117-060 FILING OF APPLICATION FOR LICENSING EXAMINATION. (1) All applicants shall file with the Washington state board of practical nursing a completed notarized application, with the required fee prior to February 15, for the April examination and August 15, for the October examination. The fee is not refundable.

(2) Applicants shall submit with the application one recent U.S. passport identification photograph of the applicant unmounted and signed by the applicant across the front.

(3) Applicants shall request the school of nursing to send an official transcript directly to the board of practical nursing. The transcript shall contain adequate documentation to verify that statutory requirements are met and shall include course names and credits accepted from other programs.

(4) Applicants shall also file an examination application, along with the required fee, directly with the testing service.

(5) Applicants who have filed the required applications and met all qualifications will be notified of their eligibility, and only such applicants will be admitted to the examination.

(6) Effective January 1, 1989, persons applying for licensure shall submit, in addition to the other requirements, evidence to show compliance with the education requirements of WAC 308-117-360.

NEW SECTION

WAC 308-117-360 AIDS EDUCATION AND TRAINING. (1) Acceptable education and training. Effective January 1, 1989, the board will accept education and training that is consistent with the model curriculum available from the office on AIDS. Such education and training shall be a minimum of seven hours and shall include, but is not limited to, the following: Etiology and epidemiology; testing and counseling; infection control guidelines; clinical manifestations and treatment; legal and ethical issues to include confidentiality; and psychosocial issues to include special population considerations.

(2) Implementation. Effective January 1, 1989, the requirement for licensure application, renewal, or reinstatement of any license on lapsed, inactive, or disciplinary status shall include completion of AIDS education and training. All persons affected by this section shall

show evidence of completion of an education and training program, which meets the requirements of subsection (1) of this section.

(3) Documentation. The licensee shall:

(a) Certify, on forms provided, that the minimum education and training has been completed after January 1, 1987, and before renewal date or December 31, 1989, whichever date is earlier;

(b) Keep records for two years documenting attendance and description of the learning; and

(c) Be prepared to validate, through submission of these records, that education and training has taken place.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 768, filed 8/25/88)

WAC 308-117-030 LICENSURE QUALIFICATIONS. (1) In order to be eligible for licensure by examination the applicant shall have satisfactorily completed an approved practical nursing program, fulfilling all the basic course content as stated in WAC 308-117-300, or its equivalent as determined by the board. Effective May 1, 1988, every applicant must have satisfactorily completed an approved practical nursing program within two years of the date of the first examination taken or the applicant must meet other requirements of the board to determine current theoretical and clinical knowledge of practical nursing practice.

(2) An applicant who has not completed an approved practical nurse program must establish evidence of successful completion of nursing and related courses at an approved school preparing persons for licensure as registered nurses, which courses include personal and vocational relationships of the practical nurse, basic science and psychosocial concepts, theory and clinical practice in medications and the nursing process, and theory and clinical practice in medical, surgical, geriatric, pediatric, obstetric and mental health nursing. These courses must be equivalent to those same courses in a practical nursing program approved by the board.

(3) An interim permit (WAC 308-117-095) and a notice of eligibility for admission to the licensing examination may be issued to all new graduates from board approved practical nursing programs after the filing of a completed application, payment of the application fee, and official notification from the program certifying that the individual has satisfactorily completed all requirements for the diploma/certification. The interim permit is only issued for the first examination period for which the applicant is eligible after graduation.

(4) All other requirements of the statute and regulations shall be met.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 768, filed 8/25/88)

WAC 308-117-090 LICENSURE BY INTERSTATE ENDORSEMENT. A license to practice as a licensed practical nurse in Washington may be issued without examination provided the applicant meets all the following requirements:

(1) The applicant has graduated and holds a credential from a state board approved program preparing candidates for licensure as a practical nurse or its equivalent as determined by the board.

(a) The applicant has fulfilled the minimum requirements prevailing for state board approved practical nursing programs in Washington at the time of the applicant's graduation.

(b) Applicants who take the NCLEX after October 1, 1988, shall present a score of pass. All other applicants shall present a minimum score of 350 on the state board test pool examination or NCLEX, except those applicants who were licensed after October 1, 1973, but before October 1, 1982, shall present a minimum score of 400 on the state board test pool examination.

(2) The applicant holds a valid current license to practice as a practical nurse in another state or territory.

(3) The applicant shall:

(a) Submit a completed application with the required fee. The fee is not refundable.

(b) Request the nursing education program to send directly to the board of practical nursing an official transcript verifying graduation from an approved practical nursing program. The transcript shall provide sufficient documentation to verify that statutory requirements are met.

(c) Submit, in addition to the other requirements, evidence to show compliance with the education requirements of WAC 308-117-360.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 768, filed 8/25/88)

WAC 308-117-100 RENEWAL OF LICENSES.

(1) Individuals making applications for initial license and examination, provided they meet all such requirements, will be issued a license, to expire on their birth anniversary date.

(2) Individuals making application for initial license with the state of Washington under the interstate endorsement regulations, provided they meet all such requirements, will be issued a license, to expire on their birth anniversary date.

(3) Issuance of license - Licensed practical nurses who complete the renewal application accurately, are practicing practical nursing in compliance with the law, and pay the renewal fee, shall be issued a license to practice. Should the licensee fail to renew his or her license prior to the expiration date, the individual is subject to the penalty fee as stated in RCW 18.78.090. If the licensee fails to renew the license within one year from date of expiration, application for renewal of license shall be made under statutory conditions then in force.

(4) A license, active or inactive, that is not renewed is considered lapsed. If the licensee fails to renew the license within three years from the expiration date, the individual must also meet the requirements of WAC 308-117-105.

(5) Illegal practice - Any person practicing as a licensed practical nurse during the time that such individual's license is inactive or has lapsed shall be considered

an illegal practitioner and shall be subjected to the penalties provided for violators under the provisions of RCW 18.130.190.

(6) Effective January 1, 1989, all persons making application for their 1989 license renewal shall submit, in addition to the other requirements, evidence to show compliance with the education requirements of WAC 308-117-360. Persons whose 1989 license expires on or before March 31, 1989, may, upon written application, be granted an extension to April 15, 1989, to meet the AIDS education requirement.

WSR 88-24-018

ADOPTED RULES

BUILDING CODE COUNCIL

[Order 88-11—Filed December 1, 1988—Eff. July 1, 1989]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Building Code Council, acting at the Angle Lake Fire Hall, 2929 South 200th Street, Seattle, WA, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to update of the State Building Code by adoption and amendment of the 1988 editions of the following codes: Uniform Building Code and Uniform Building Code Standards; Uniform Mechanical Code; Uniform Fire Code and Uniform Fire Code Standards; and Uniform Plumbing Code and Uniform Plumbing Code Standards.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice Nos. WSR 88-14-077 and 88-20-070, filed with the code reviser on July 1, 1988, and October 5, 1988. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being July 1, 1989.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 19.27.074 which directs that the Washington State Building Code Council has authority to implement the provisions of chapter 19.27 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 18, 1988.

By Lynn Carmichael
Chair

Chapter 51-16 WAC

STATE BUILDING CODE UPDATE AND AMENDMENT—ADOPTION OF THE ((+1985)) 1988 EDITIONS OF THE UNIFORM CODES

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-010 AUTHORITY. These rules are adopted under the authority of ((section 2, chapter 360; Laws of 1985)) chapter 19.27 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-020 PURPOSE. The purpose of these rules is to implement the provisions of chapter ((360;

Laws of 1985)) 19.27 RCW, which provides that the state building code council shall maintain the State Building Code in a status which is consistent with the purpose as set forth in ((section 6 of the act)) RCW 19.27.020. In maintaining the codes the council shall regularly review updated versions of the codes adopted under the act, and other pertinent information, and shall amend the codes as deemed appropriate by the council.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-030 UNIFORM BUILDING CODE AND UNIFORM BUILDING CODE STANDARDS. The ((+1985)) 1988 edition of the Uniform Building Code, and the ((+1985)) 1988 edition of the Uniform Building Code Standards as published by the International Conference of Building Officials is hereby adopted by reference with the following additions, deletions and exceptions:

(1) The following definition shall be added to section 420, chapter 4 of the Uniform Building Code:

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL BUILDING is a dwelling containing only one dwelling unit.

(2) The following definition shall be added to section 414, chapter 4 of the Uniform Building Code:

MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL BUILDING is a common wall dwelling or apartment house that consists of four or fewer dwelling units that do not exceed two stories in height and that are less than five thousand square feet in total area.

~~((3) The following paragraph shall be added to section 1202(b) of the Uniform Building Code:~~

~~Residential structures containing four or fewer dwelling units shall be provided with one-hour fire resistive occupancy separations between units:))~~

(3) Chapter 9 of the 1988 edition of the Uniform Building Code is hereby not adopted and chapter 9 of the 1985 edition of the Uniform Building Code is hereby adopted in its place.

The changes made between the 1985 edition of the Uniform Building Code and the 1988 edition of the Uniform Building Code for the purposes of integrating chapter 9 of the Uniform Building Code into other sections of the 1988 edition of the Uniform Building Code are also not adopted.

The sections and tables listed below contain changes to the 1988 edition of the Uniform Building Code made for this purpose.

Definitions:

Sec. 404, Control Area (added) page 22

Sec. 404, Corrosive (added) page 22

Sec. 406, Emergency Control Station

(changed) page 23

Sec. 409, Handling (added) page 25
Sec. 409, Health Hazard (added) page 25
Sec. 409, Highly Toxic Material (added) page 25
Sec. 410, Irritant (added) page 26
Sec. 413, Liquid Storage Room (changed) page 27
Sec. 413, Liquid Storage Warehouse (changed) page 27
Sec. 420, Sensitizer (added) page 29
Sec. 422, Use (specifics added) page 30

Code Body Changes:

Sec. 503 (a), page 32 & 33
Sec. 506 (c), page 38
Sec. 507, page 38 & 39
Table No. 5-A, page 43, 44 & 45
Table No. 5-B, page 46
Table No. 5-C, page 47
Table No. 5-D, page 48
Sec. 702 (b), page 55 & 56
Sec. 802 (d), page 63
Sec. 3309 (a), page 648
Sec. 3320, page 657
Sec. 3802 (f), page 682
Sec. 5207 (a), page 784
Appendix Table No. 11-B page 832

(4) Section 2312(h) 2.I. Diaphragms. (iv) of the Uniform Building Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

(iv) Where wood diaphragms are used to laterally support concrete or masonry walls, the anchorage shall conform to Section 2312(h) 2. H above. In Seismic Zones Nos. 2, 3 and 4 anchorage shall not be accomplished by use of toe nails or nails subject to withdrawal, nor shall wood ledgers or framing be used in cross-grain bending or cross-grain tension, and the continuous ties required by paragraph (iii) above shall be in addition to the diaphragm sheathing.

(5) Uniform Building Code Section 2722(f) 6 item 1 of the exception is hereby amended to read as follows:

EXCEPTION: This requirement need not apply in any of the following cases, provided the compactness limitations for beams given in Section 2722 (f) 3 shall apply to columns as well:

1. For columns with f_c less than $9.4F_y$ for all load combinations, except for loads specified in Section 2722(d) 1. Such columns shall have allowable stresses reduced 25 percent when one end frames into a joint not complying with Formula 22.3, and 50 percent when both ends frame into joints not complying with Formula 22.3.

(6) Uniform Building Code Section 2722(f) 7. is hereby amended to read as follows:

7. Trusses in SMRSF. Trusses may be used as horizontal members in SMRSF if the sum of the truss seismic force flexural strength exceeds the column seismic force flexural strength immediately above and below the truss by a factor of at least 1.25. For this determination the strengths of the members shall be reduced by the gravity load effects. In buildings of more than one story, the column axial stress shall not exceed $0.4F_y$ and the ratio of the unbraced column height to the least radius of gyration shall not exceed 60. Columns shall have allowable stresses reduced 25 percent when one end frames into a truss, and 50 percent when both ends frame into trusses. The connection of the truss chords to the column shall develop the lesser of the following:

- A. The strength of the truss chord.
- B. The chord force necessary to develop 125 percent of the flexural strength of the column.

(7) The following section shall be added to the Uniform Building Code:

Section 3801(e) when sprinklers are installed in an insulated ceiling cavity not meeting exceptions of UBC Standard 38-1 or where blocked by ducts or other similar obstructions, a space 6 inches or greater in depth with not less than 12 inches clearance from ducts or other similar obstructions shall be provided under all sprinklers.

(8) Section 3802(h) of the Uniform Building Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

(h) Group R Division 1 Occupancies. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed throughout every apartment house three or more stories in height or containing more than 15 dwelling units and every hotel three or more stories in height or containing 20 or more guest rooms. Residential or quick response standard sprinkler heads shall be used in the dwelling unit and guest room portions of the building. The sprinkler system shall comply with the requirements of Washington State Building Code Standard No. 38-3W.

(9) Section 5103 of the Uniform Building Code is hereby not adopted in order to eliminate conflict with chapter 296-81 WAC as adopted by the Washington state department of labor and industries pursuant to chapter 70.87 RCW.

(10) Section 5105 of the Uniform Building Code shall be amended to read as follows:

Elevator Machine Room Floors

Section 5105. Elevator hoistways shall not be vented through an elevator machine room unless such venting is accomplished by an

approved duct system installed through the elevator machine room. Cable slots entering the machine room shall be sleeved beneath the machine room floor and extend to not less than 12 inches below the shaft vent to must be installed in a manner that inhibits the passage of smoke into the machine room.

(11) A New Standard No. 38-3W shall be added to Chapter 38 of the Uniform Building Code Standards as follows:

WASHINGTON STATE BUILDING CODE STANDARD
NO. 38-3W

INSTALLATION OF SPRINKLER SYSTEMS IN
RESIDENTIAL OCCUPANCIES

Sec. 38.301W. Except for the limitations, deletions, modifications or amendments set forth in Section 38.302W of this standard, the installation of sprinkler systems in residential occupancies of four stories or less when required by the Uniform Building Code shall be in accordance with the "Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in Residential Occupancies, NFPA 13R-1988", published by the National Fire Protection Association, copyright 1988, Batterymarch Park, Quincy, Massachusetts 02269, as if set out at length herein.

Sec. 38.302W. The National Fire Protection Association standard adopted by section 38.301W applies to the selection, installation, inspection, maintenance and testing of residential sprinkler systems, except as follows:

1. Table 1-5.1 is amended to read as follows:

Table 1-5.1

<u>Materials and Dimensions</u>	<u>Standard</u>
<u>Spec. for Black and Hot-Dipped Zinc Coated (Galvanized) Welded and Seamless Steel Pipe for Fire Protection Use</u>	<u>ASTM A795</u>
<u>Specification for Welded and Seamless Steel Pipe</u>	<u>ASTM A53</u>
<u>Wrought-Steel Pipe</u>	<u>ANSI B36.10</u>
<u>Specification for Electric-Resistance Welded Steel Pipe</u>	<u>ASTM A135</u>
<u>Copper Tube (Drawn, Seamless)</u>	
<u>Specification for Seamless Copper Tube</u>	<u>ASTM B88</u>
<u>Specification for General Requirements for Wrought Seamless Copper and Copper-Alloy Tube</u>	<u>ASTM B251</u>
<u>Brazing Filler Metal (Classification BCuP-3 or BCuP-4)</u>	<u>AWS A5.8</u>
<u>Specification for Solder Metal, 9-5 (Tin-Antimony-Grade 95TA)</u>	<u>ASTM B32</u>
<u>Specifications for CPVC Pipe</u>	<u>ASTM F437</u> <u>ASTM F438</u> <u>ASTM F439</u> <u>ASTM F442</u>

Table 1-5.1

<u>Materials and Dimensions</u>	<u>Standard</u>
<u>Specification for Polybutylene Tube</u>	<u>ASTM D 3309</u>

2. Table 1-5.5 is amended to read as follows:

Table 1-5.5

<u>Materials and Dimensions</u>	<u>Standard</u>
<u>Cast Iron</u>	
<u>Cast Iron Threaded Fittings</u>	
<u>Class 125 and 250</u>	<u>ANSI B16.4</u>
<u>Cast Iron Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings</u>	<u>ANSI B16.1</u>
<u>Malleable Iron</u>	
<u>Malleable Iron Threaded Fittings</u>	
<u>Class 150 and 300</u>	<u>ANSI B16.3</u>
<u>Steel</u>	
<u>Factory-made Threaded Fittings</u>	
<u>Class 150 and 300</u>	<u>ANSI B16.9</u>
<u>Buttwelding ends for Pipe, Valves</u>	
<u>Flanges and Fittings</u>	<u>ANSI B16.25</u>
<u>Spec. for Piping Fittings of Wrought Carbon Steel and Alloy Steel for Moderate and Elevated Temperatures</u>	<u>ASTM A234</u>
<u>Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings, Steel Nickel Alloy and Other Special Alloys</u>	<u>ANSI B16.5</u>
<u>Forged Steel Fittings, Socket Welded and Threaded</u>	<u>ANSI B16.11</u>
<u>Copper</u>	
<u>Wrought Copper and Copper Alloy-Solder-Joint Pressure Fittings</u>	<u>ANSI B16.22</u>
<u>Cast Copper Alloy Solder-joint Pressure fittings</u>	<u>ANSI B16.18</u>
<u>Plastic Fittings for CPVC Pipe</u>	<u>ASTM F437</u> <u>ASTM F438</u> <u>ASTM F439</u> <u>ASTM F442</u>
<u>Plastic Fittings for Polybutylene tube</u>	<u>ASTM D 3309</u>

EXCEPTION: In the case of conflict between the ventilation requirements of sections 605, section 705, section 905 and section 1205 of this code and the ventilation requirements of chapter 51-12 WAC, the Washington State Energy Code, or where applicable, a local jurisdiction's energy code, the provisions of such energy codes shall govern.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-040 UNIFORM MECHANICAL CODE. The ((+1985)) 1988 edition of the Uniform Mechanical Code, including chapter 22, Fuel Gas Piping, Appendix B, published by the International Conference

of Building Officials and the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials is hereby adopted by reference with the following exception:

In the case of conflict between the duct insulation requirements of section 1005 of this code and the duct insulation requirements of chapter 51-12 WAC the Washington State Energy Code, or where applicable, a local jurisdiction's energy code, the provisions of such energy codes shall govern.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-050 UNIFORM FIRE CODE AND UNIFORM FIRE CODE STANDARDS. The ((1985)) 1988 edition of the Uniform Fire Code and the ((1985)) 1988 edition of the Uniform Fire Code Standards published by the International Conference of Building Officials, and the Western Fire Chiefs Association is hereby adopted by reference.

(1) Section 10.306(h) of the Uniform Fire Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

(h) Group R Division 1 Occupancies. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed throughout every apartment house three or more stories in height or containing more than 15 dwelling units and every hotel three or more stories in height or containing 20 or more guest rooms. Residential or quick response standard sprinkler heads shall be used in the dwelling unit and guest room portions of the building. The sprinkler system shall comply with the requirements of Washington State Building Code Standard No. 38-3W.

(2) Article 80 of the 1988 edition of the Uniform Fire Code is hereby not adopted and Article 80 of the 1985 edition of the Uniform Fire Code is hereby adopted in its place.

The changes made between the 1985 edition of the Uniform Fire Code and the 1988 edition of the Uniform Fire Code for the purposes of integrating Article 80 into other sections of the 1988 edition of the Uniform Fire Code are also not adopted.

The sections and tables listed below contain changes to the 1988 edition of the Uniform Fire Code made for this purpose.

Standards:

Sec. 2.304 (b), page 9

Permits:

Sec. 4.108

c.6. Compressed Gases,
page 15

h.1. Hazardous materials,
page 16 & 17

h.2. Highly toxic pesticides,
page 18

Definitions:

Sec. 9.105

CFR, page 23

Carcinogen, page 23

Sec. 9.117.

Group H Occupancies,

pages 36 & 37

Organic Peroxide, page 39

Oxidizer, page 39

Sec. 9.118.

Peroxide-Forming Chemical,

page 39

Primary Containment, page 40

Proprietary Information,

page 40

Pyrophoric, page 40

Sec. 9.121.

Secondary Containment,

page 41

Segregated Storage, page 41

Sensitizer, page 41

Sec. 9.122.

Toxic Material, page 43

Sec. 9.123.

Unauthorized Discharge,

page 44

Unstable (Reactive) Liquid,

page 44

Sec. 9.125.

Water-Reactive Materials,

page 45

Appendices:

II-E Hazardous Materials
Management Plan &
Hazardous Materials In-
ventory Statement, page
419

VI-A Hazardous Materials
Classifications, page 436

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-19, filed 11/26/86, effective 4/27/87)

WAC 51-16-060 UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE AND UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE STANDARDS. The ((1985)) 1988 edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code and the ((1985)) 1988 Uniform Plumbing Code Standards, published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials((+)) is hereby adopted by reference: PROVIDED that chapters 11 and 12 of this code are not adopted((+)); PROVIDED FURTHER, That ((any pipe, pipefitting, solder, or flux used in the installation or repair of any plumbing in a residential or nonresidential facility providing water for human consumption shall be lead free. This prohibition shall not apply to leaded joints necessary for the repair of cast iron pipes. The term lead free:

~~(1) When used with respect to solders and flux refers to solders and flux containing not more than two tenths of one percent lead, and~~

~~(2) When used with respect to pipes and pipe fittings refers to pipes and pipe fittings containing not more than eight percent lead)) those requirements of the Uniform Plumbing Code relating to venting of appliances as found in Chapter 13 are not adopted.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-070 EXCEPTIONS. The exceptions and amendments to the uniform codes contained in the provisions of chapter 19.27 RCW ~~((as amended by chapter 360, Laws of 1985))~~ shall apply in case of conflict with any of the provisions of these rules.

In case of conflict between the codes adopted under these rules and the provisions of chapter 51-10 WAC, the Washington state regulations for barrier-free facilities, the provisions of chapter 51-10 WAC shall govern.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-080 IMPLEMENTATION. The uniform codes adopted by WAC 51-16-030 through 51-16-060 of this chapter shall become effective in all counties and cities of this state ~~((ninety days following the final day of the regular legislative session of 1986))~~ on July 1, 1989, unless local amendments have been approved by the state building code council.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-13, filed 11/26/85, effective 6/11/86)

WAC 51-16-090 ~~((TIMEFRAME FOR))~~ SUBMITTAL OF PROPOSED CITY OR COUNTY AMENDMENTS. All proposed city or county amendments to the State Building Code required to be submitted to the council under the provisions of ~~((section 2 (1)(b) of chapter 360, Laws of 1985))~~ RCW 19.27.060 and 19.27.074 shall be submitted to the council for review ~~((not less than 90 days prior to the proposed effective date of such amendments))~~ under procedures established by the council. The council shall approve or deny all local amendments based on their consistency with the minimum performance standards and objectives of chapter ~~((360, Laws of 1985))~~ 19.27 RCW.

NEW SECTION

WAC 51-16-100 REVIEW OF CITY AND COUNTY AMENDMENTS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL. The council will review all amendments to the 1985 editions of the codes approved by the council pursuant to RCW 19.27.074 and 19.27.060. The council will declare null and void any amendments which have become obsolete, unnecessary, or in conflict due to changes in the language of the 1988 editions of the codes as adopted under these rules.

WSR 88-24-019
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
(Wildlife Commission)
[Order 370—Filed December 1, 1988]

Be it resolved by the State Wildlife Commission, acting by conference call at the Department of Wildlife, 600 Capitol Way North, Olympia, WA 98501-1091, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to special deer hunting season, adopting WAC 232-28-21705.

We, the State Wildlife Commission, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is in the summer of 1988, wildfire burned 58,000 acres of mule deer winter range east of the Wenatchee River in Game Management Unit 316 (Swakane) and forage to support wintering deer is inadequate. A special hunting season is necessary to remove deer to reduce damage and prevent malnutrition. This special hunting season, along with a winter feeding and habitat restoration program, will help insure survival of additional deer in the area.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.150 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 30, 1988.

By Curt Smitch

Director

for Dr. James M. Walton
Chairman, Wildlife Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-21705 SPECIAL DEER HUNTING SEASON. Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 232-28-217, there is hereby established a special hunting season for the taking of antlerless deer in that part of Swakane Game Management Unit 316 east of the Wenatchee River, except that those lands within one-half mile of Highway 97 between Wenatchee and Entiat shall remain closed to hunting of deer. This season shall occur from December 5, 1988 through December 11, 1988, both dates inclusive, during lawful hunting hours, except that if the Director determines that 300 deer have been taken, he shall close the season by emergency rule. Any person possessing a valid deer tag is eligible to hunt during this special hunting season. The Director is authorized to make additional emergency rules requiring hunters to check in and out with the department.

WSR 88-24-020
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
 [Order 371—Filed December 1, 1988]

Be it resolved by the Director, Department of Wildlife, acting at the Department of Wildlife, 600 Capitol Way North, Olympia, WA 98501-1091, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to special hunting season reporting requirements, adopting WAC 232-28-21706.

I, the director of the Department of Wildlife, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is in the summer of 1988, wildfire burned 58,000 acres of mule deer winter range east of the Wenatchee River in Game Management Unit 316 (Swakane) and forage to support wintering deer is inadequate. A special hunting season is necessary to remove deer to reduce damage and prevent malnutrition. This special hunting season, along with a winter feeding and habitat restoration program, will help insure survival of additional deer in the area.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.150 and WAC 232-28-21705 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.

By Curt Smith
 Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-21706 SPECIAL HUNTING SEASON REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. *Any person participating in the special hunting season established by emergency WAC 232-28-21705 must comply with the requirements contained herein. (1) Each hunter must check in at the department's Wenatchee office prior to hunting and (2) any successful hunter must have his or her deer checked on the day of kill by department personnel either in the field or at the department's Wenatchee office, located at 3860 Chelan Highway, Wenatchee, Washington. It shall be unlawful for any person to fail to comply with this rule.*

WSR 88-24-021
ADOPTED RULES
BUILDING CODE COUNCIL
 [Order 88-09—Filed December 2, 1988—Eff. July 1, 1989]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Building Code Council, acting at the Angle Lake Fire Hall, 2929 South 200th Street, Seattle, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to update and amendment of Washington state regulations for barrier-free facilities, chapter 51-10 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-14-078 filed with the code reviser on July 1, 1988. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being July 1, 1989.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to chapters 70.92 and 19.27 RCW which directs that the Washington State Building Code Council has authority to implement the provisions of RCW 70.92.140 and 19.27.031.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 18, 1988.

By Lynn Carmichael
 Chair

Reviser's note: The amendments to the state regulations for barrier-free facilities filed with this permanent order are not capable of being reproduced in the Register and are therefore omitted pursuant to RCW 34.04.050(3). Copies may be obtained from the Department of Community Development, Ninth and Columbia Building, Mailstop GH-51, Olympia, Washington 98504.

WSR 88-24-022
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES
 [Order 88-27—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Joseph A. Dear, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to method to achieve ANSI A17.1 Rule 102.2 (c)(4), WAC 296-81-277, new rule contains four steps showing method to be used to accomplish Rule 102.2 (c)(4). Rule will create uniformity throughout the state.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-18-101 filed with the code reviser on September 7, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 70.87.080, [70.87.]090 and [70.87.]100 which directs that the Department of Labor and Industries has authority to implement the provisions of chapter 70.87 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 2, 1988.

By Joseph A. Dear
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-81-277 METHOD TO ACHIEVE ANSI A17.1-102.2 (c)4. ANSI A17.1-102.2 (c)4 regarding automatic sprinklers in hoistways and machine rooms states:

"Means shall be provided to automatically disconnect the mainline power supply to the affected elevator prior to the application of water."

Rule 102.2 (c)4 shall be accomplished in the following manner:

(1) Fixed temperature heat detector(s) (one hundred thirty-five degrees Fahrenheit) shall be provided at the top of the elevator hoistway and within the elevator equipment room to disconnect the mainline power of the elevator prior to the application of water from the sprinkler.

(2) Heat detectors shall be ceiling mounted and located within eighteen inches of each sprinkler head. Heat detectors shall be an auxiliary function of the elevator equipment only and shall be identified "elevator control only - DO NOT TEST."

(3) Power for the automatic disconnect control circuit shall be derived from the load side of the elevator power main disconnecting means. The disconnect control device shall be located in the elevator equipment room and shall be easily identifiable.

(4) Automatic sprinkler heads installed in elevator pits do not require a power disconnect device but shall be installed in such a way that the water spray pattern shall not spray higher than three feet above the pit floor with a spray pattern directed level and down. A shut-off valve shall be provided.

Alternate methods to achieve ANSI A17.1-102.2 (c)4 must receive approval from the Washington state department of labor and industries elevator section prior to installation.

WSR 88-24-023
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2732—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Leslie F. James, director of Administrative Services, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to general and seasonal child care services, amending WAC 388-15-170.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-20-078 filed with the code reviser on October 5, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 30, 1988.

By Leslie F. James, Director
Administrative Services

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2387, filed 6/3/86)

WAC 388-15-170 GENERAL AND SEASONAL CHILD DAY CARE SERVICES. (1) The department may approve child day care ((services include providing)) funding to facilitate care, protection, and related services for a child under fifteen years of age. The department shall only fund child day care during the portion of the twenty-four-hour day when neither of the child's parents are able to provide necessary care and supervision. The department may authorize child day care services for the following reasons:

(a) Parent is employed ((in accord with an approved case plan,)) and is not an AFDC ((family)) grant recipient;

(b) Parent is enrolled in an approved work incentive program (WIN) (not to exceed one year) leading toward employment;

(c) ((For school-age)) School-aged parent ((to complete)) is enrolled in an approved secondary education or ((attainment of)) GED ((not to exceed two years), subject to approval by the department,) program;

(d) Parent ((to keep physical or mental health appointment;

(e)) and/or child are in need of ((day care)) treatment or support as part of ((children's)) a child protective or child welfare services case plan(;;). ((ff)) Such services may include, but are not limited to, those provided ((as child welfare services)) by a professional ((or other mental health social service agency referral for the child's or parent's physical or emotional health or support to the family structure)) child welfare or educational agency.

(2) The department shall limit goals for general child day care services ((shall be limited)) as specified in WAC 388-15-010 (1)(a), (b), and (c). Also see WAC 388-15-010(2).

(3) The department may purchase child day care, except for seasonal farmworker ((day)) child care, ((shall be purchased)) within available funds for ((children or)) families ((who are)):

(a) ((Family units whose)) With gross income ((is)) equal to or below thirty-eight percent of the state median income adjusted for family size (SMIAFS);

(b) ((Family units whose)) With gross income ((is)) above thirty-eight and at or below fifty-two percent of the SMIAFS ((wherein)). The family shall pay to the child day care provider fifty percent of their gross monthly income above the thirty-eight percent SMIAFS toward the cost of child day care(;;);

(c) In need of child day care as an integral ~~((but subordinate))~~ part of a child protective service plan ~~((; regardless of the level of gross))~~. The department shall provide such service without regard to family income;

(d) In need of child day care as an integral part of a child welfare service plan and with gross income at or below fifty-two percent of the SMIAFS. The family shall pay the child care provider fifty percent of their gross monthly income above the thirty-eight percent SMIAFS toward the cost of care.

(4) ~~((Eligibility for))~~ The department may purchase seasonal ~~((farmworker))~~ child day care ~~((is))~~ within available funds for children who are members of family units residing in Washington state where:

(a) Both parents, or the single parent (in the case of the one-parent family), ~~((must be))~~ are currently employed or seeking work in agriculturally related work ~~((or with agencies serving migrant families))~~; and

(b) ~~((Must derive))~~ At least fifty percent of the family's annual income is derived from agriculturally related work; and

(c) ~~((Must))~~ Both parents, or the single parent, have more than one agricultural employer per year; and

(d) ~~((Must have a))~~ Family gross income for the past twelve months does not ~~((to))~~ exceed thirty-eight percent of the ~~((state median income adjusted for family size; or))~~ SMIAFS. Families with gross income above thirty-eight percent and at or below fifty-two percent of the ~~((state median income adjusted for family size wherein the family))~~ SMIAFS shall pay ~~((to))~~ the child day care provider fifty percent of their average gross monthly income above the thirty-eight percent ~~((state median income adjusted for family size))~~ SMIAFS toward the cost of child day care.

(e) Failure of parents to meet the requirements of subsection (4)(b) and (c) of this section due to status within the past year as an AFDC recipient shall not result in ineligibility for seasonal child care.

(5) ~~((Standards for in-home care:))~~ The department shall establish waiting lists, if necessary, to ensure child day care services, under WAC 388-15-170, are provided within legislatively appropriated funds.

~~((a))~~ (6) The department considers in-home care ~~((is))~~ as the care and supervision of a child ~~((in his or her))~~;

(a) By a relative in the child's own home ~~((by))~~ or a relative's home; or ~~((by))~~

(b) In their own home with an unrelated person ~~((during part of the twenty-four-hour day while the child's parent or parents are temporarily absent from the home))~~.

~~((b))~~ When parents request in-home care, a service worker must determine the caretaker meets the in-home care standards:

(c) Use of in-home care is appropriate when:

(i) There is a qualified caretaker available and this type of child care is the parental choice;

(ii) The number of children in the family requiring child care is large enough to make it preferable for in-home care; and/or

(iii) A child's physical, mental, or emotional problems make it necessary he or she remain in his or her home.

~~((d))~~ When in-home care is the approved child care plan for the child of a parent involved in basic education, job training, work experience, or other program DSHS is responsible for arranging, approving, or paying) (7) When the department approves an in-home child care plan at the request of a parent, the caretaker ~~((must))~~ shall meet the following minimum qualifications and fulfill the following responsibilities:

~~((i))~~ (a) Be eighteen years of age or older;

~~((ii))~~ (b) Be free of communicable disease, including tuberculosis, as shown by tests within the year and every two years thereafter;

~~((iii))~~ (c) Be of sufficient physical, emotional, and mental health to meet the needs of the children in care;

~~((iv))~~ (d) Subject to the discretion of the worker, ~~((give))~~ the caretaker shall provide written evidence ~~((from a medical authority))~~ that he or she is in sufficient physical, emotional, and mental health to be a safe caretaker;

~~((v))~~ (e) ~~((Produce written references indicating he or she is capable of handling children of the ages for whom he or she will be caring and has the ability to provide activities suitable to the children's ages and interests;))~~

~~((vi))~~ ~~((Be able to))~~ Work with children without ~~((recourse to physical))~~ using corporal punishment or psychological abuse;

~~((vii))~~ (f) ~~((Be able to))~~ Accept and follow instructions;

~~((viii))~~ (g) Maintain personal cleanliness;

~~((ix))~~ (h) Be prompt and regular in job attendance;

~~((x))~~ (i) ~~((Expect to be evaluated as specified in subsection (5)(d)(i) through (ix) of this section.))~~

~~((Responsibilities of))~~ The in-home caretaker ~~((The in-home caretaker))~~ shall have the following responsibilities:

(i) Consider his or her primary function that of child day care ~~((;))~~ provider;

(ii) Provide constant care and supervision of the children for whom ~~((he or she is))~~ they are responsible throughout the time ~~((he or she is))~~ they are on duty in accordance with the children's needs ~~((;))~~; and

(iii) Provide appropriate activities for children ~~((in))~~ under their care.

~~((6))~~ (8) Payment standards for child day care ~~((;))~~. The department shall establish maximum child care rates ~~((of payment for day care shall be the))~~ taking into consideration prevailing community ~~((rate, not to exceed the maximum rate established by the department))~~ rates.

(a) When the parent ~~((or parent surrogate is responsible for))~~ chooses in-home care, the ~~((person will))~~ parent shall receive payment for the cost of child day care and ~~((will))~~ shall pay the in-home care provider according to the amount specified in the approved child care plan.

(b) The in-home care provider ~~((must))~~ shall sign a receipt at the time payment is received. The parent ~~((or surrogate))~~ must ~~((send))~~ retain the payment receipt ~~((with his or her statement of child care provided during the previous month to the CSO before the next child care payment shall be authorized))~~ for review by the

authorizing worker at the time of the next eligibility determination.

(c) If total payments to an ~~((individual providing))~~ in-home ~~((care))~~ provider are expected to be fifty dollars or more in any one quarter, the department shall add the employer's share of the FICA tax ~~((must be added))~~ to the amount authorized for in-home care.

(d) Payment for child day care by relative ~~((: Unless the performance of child care services by a relative of the parent keeps the relative from accepting or continuing in paid employment,))~~. The department shall allow no payment ~~((shall be allowed))~~ for child care services ~~((for))~~ by the following relatives: Father, mother, ~~((grandmother, grandfather,))~~ brother, sister, stepfather, stepmother, stepbrother, or stepsister ~~((, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, or niece))~~. ~~((Child care will be considered as in-home care when care is provided in the house of the relative.))~~

(e) ~~((Payment))~~ A child is eligible for child care ~~((to nonresponsible relative))~~ subsidies when: ~~((Where a))~~

(i) The child ~~((receiving))~~ receives an AFDC ~~((is living with a nonresponsible relative not on AFDC and day care is required to support the relative's employment, the child is eligible for day care))~~ grant; and

(ii) The child lives with a nonresponsible relative;

(iii) The relative does not receive an AFDC grant;
and

(iv) The relative is employed.

Reviser's note: The typographical error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

WSR 88-24-024

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Public Assistance)

[Order 2734—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Leslie F. James, director of Administrative Services, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to categorically needy medical assistance eligibility, amending WAC 388-82-115.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-053 filed with the code reviser on October 14, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 30, 1988.

By Leslie F. James, Director
Administrative Services

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2673, filed 8/17/88)

WAC 388-82-115 CATEGORICALLY NEEDY MEDICAL ASSISTANCE ELIGIBILITY. The department shall classify as eligible for categorically needy medical assistance:

(1) A client ~~((s))~~ who:

(a) In August 1972, received:

(i) Old age assistance (OAA);

(ii) Aid to blind (AB);

(iii) Aid to families with dependent children (AFDC);

or

(iv) Aid to the permanently and totally disabled (APTD); and

(b) Received retirement, survivors, and disability insurance (RSDI) benefits; and

(c) ~~((Are))~~ Is ineligible for OAA, AB, AFDC, or APTD solely because of the twenty percent increase in Social Security benefits under P.L. 92-336.

(2) A client ~~((s))~~ who:

(a) ~~((Were))~~ Was entitled to RSDI benefits in August 1972; and

(b) ~~((Are))~~ Is ineligible for AFDC, family independence program (FIP), or supplemental security income (SSI) solely because of the twenty percent increase in Social Security benefits under P.L. 92-336.

(3) A family unit ~~((s))~~ ineligible for AFDC solely because of increased hours or increased income from employment shall remain categorically eligible for medical assistance (MA) for four calendar months beginning with the month of ineligibility provided that:

(a) The family received AFDC in at least three of the six months immediately preceding the month of ineligibility; and

(b) A member of such family continues to be employed; and

(c) The family is otherwise eligible for AFDC; and

(d) The department shall consider earned income tax credits (EITC) as income for purposes of this subsection.

(4) A current recipient ~~((s))~~ of Title II, Social Security Administration (SSA) benefits who:

(a) ~~((Were))~~ Was a concurrent recipient ~~((s))~~ of Title II and SSI benefits; and

(b) ~~((Are))~~ Is ineligible for SSI benefits and/or state supplementary payments (SSP); and

(c) Would be eligible for SSI benefits if the following ~~((were))~~ are deducted from the current Title II benefit amount:

(i) All Title II cost-of-living benefit increases received by the recipient since termination from SSI/SSP; and

(ii) All Title II cost-of-living benefit increases received during the time period in (c)(i) of this subsection by the recipient's spouse and/or other financially responsible family member living in the same household.

(5) ~~((Certain))~~ A recipient ~~((s))~~ of SSI, after January 1, 1981, who continues to be eligible for medical assistance (MA) under P.L. 96-265 and 99-643.

(6) A pregnant ~~((women))~~ woman, with no other eligible children, who ~~((are))~~ is ineligible for AFDC cash

assistance solely because ~~((they have))~~ she has not reached the sixth month of pregnancy.

(7) A client((s)) who ~~((are))~~ is denied AFDC or FIP cash payments solely because of a departmental recovery of an overpayment.

(8) ~~((Children))~~ A child under seven years of age, who ~~((are))~~ is born after September 30, 1983, and who meets the income and resource requirements of AFDC or FIP financial assistance.

(9) A family unit((s)) shall remain categorically eligible for medical assistance for nine calendar months beginning with the month of ineligibility for AFDC, when terminated from AFDC financial assistance solely because of:

(a) The loss of the thirty dollars plus one-third exemption; or

(b) The thirty-dollar income exemption.

(10) ~~((Children))~~ A child, born to a woman eligible for and receiving medical assistance on the date of the child's birth, from the date of birth for a period of one year if:

(a) The child remains a member of the mother's household; and

(b) The mother remains eligible for medical assistance; and

(c) The child was born on or after October 1, 1984.

(11) A family unit((s)) ineligible for AFDC or FIP financial assistance as a result (wholly or partly) of the collection or increased collection of child or spousal support shall be eligible for medical assistance for four months beginning with the month of ineligibility; provided the family unit:

(a) Received AFDC or FIP financial assistance in at least three of the six months immediately preceding the month of ineligibility; and

(b) Became ineligible for AFDC or FIP on or after ~~((August 1, 1984))~~ August 16, 1984, and ~~((prior to October 1, 1988))~~ before October 1, 1989.

(12) A pregnant ((women)) woman who ~~((do))~~ does not meet the deprivation requirements of AFDC or FIP financial assistance if:

(a) ~~((They))~~ She would meet the AFDC or FIP financial assistance income requirements if the number in the household is increased by one before being compared to the payment standard; and

(b) ~~((They))~~ She meets the AFDC or FIP financial assistance resource requirements.

(13) An alien((s)) denied AFDC, FIP, or SSI cash assistance solely because of deeming of income of ~~((their))~~ the alien's sponsors.

(14) A current disabled client((s)) receiving widow's or widower's benefits under section 202 (e) or (f) of the Social Security Act if the disabled client:

(a) Was entitled to a monthly insurance benefit under Title II of the Social Security Act for December 1983; and

(b) Was entitled to and received a widow's or widower's benefit based on a disability under section 202 (e) or (f) of the Social Security Act for January 1984; and

(c) Became ineligible for SSI/SSP in the first month in which the increase provided under section 134 of P.L. 98-21 was paid to the client; and

(d) Has been continuously entitled to a widow's or widower's benefit under section 202 (e) or (f) of the act; and

(e) Would be eligible for SSI/SSP benefits if the amount of that increase, and any subsequent cost-of-living increases provided under section 215(i) of the act, were disregarded; and

(f) Is fifty through fifty-nine years of age; and

(g) Filed an application for Medicaid coverage before July 1, 1988.

(15) Effective July 1, 1988, a disabled or blind client((s)) receiving Title II disabled widow/widower benefits (DWB) under section 202(e) or (f) of the SSA, if the client:

(a) Is sixty through sixty-four years of age; and

(b) Is not eligible for the hospital Medicare (Part A of Title XVIII) benefits; and

(c) Received SSI/SSP prior to sixty years of age; and

(d) Became ineligible for SSI/SSP due to receipt of or increase in DWB; and

(e) Would be eligible for SSI/SSP if the amount of the DWB or increase under section 202 (e) or (f) of the SSA, and any subsequent cost-of-living increases provided under section 215(i) of the act were disregarded.

(16) A family unit((s)) suspended from FIP financial assistance because of increased earned income. This period of eligibility shall not exceed twelve months as determined by WAC 388-77-737.

(17) A family unit((s)) ineligible for FIP solely because of increased hours of employment shall remain categorically eligible for medical assistance for four calendar months beginning with the month of ineligibility provided that:

(a) The family unit received FIP in at least three of the six months immediately preceding the month of ineligibility;

(b) A member of such family continues to be employed;

(c) The family unit is otherwise eligible for FIP.

(18) A disabled or blind client((s)) receiving Title II disabled adult childhood (DAC) benefits under section 202(d) of the SSA if the client:

(a) Has attained eighteen years of age; and

(b) Lost SSI/SSP on or after July 1, 1988, due to receipt of or increase in DAC benefits; and

(c) Would be eligible for SSI/SSP if the amount of the DAC benefits or increase under section 202(d) of the SSA and any subsequent cost-of-living increases provided under section 215(i) of the SSA act were disregarded.

WSR 88-24-025

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Public Assistance)

[Order 2735—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Leslie F. James, director of Administrative Services, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the

annexed rules relating to Allocation of excess income—Spendedown, amending WAC 388-99-030.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-092 filed with the code reviser on October 19, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 30, 1988.

By Leslie F. James, Director
Administrative Services

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2409, filed 8/12/86)

WAC 388-99-030 ALLOCATION OF EXCESS INCOME—SPENDDOWN. (1) On initial or subsequent applications, the department shall deduct previously incurred medical expenses ((are deducted)) from excess countable income subject to the following restrictions((-)):

(a) The medical expense must be a current liability of the ((individual)) applicant or financially responsible relative in the same household((- See WAC 388-92-025(4):-)) or paid by a public program of the state, county, or city other than Medicaid;

(b) The medical ((expenses have)) expense shall not have been used at any other time to reduce excess countable income on a medical application which resulted in eligibility((-);

(c) The department shall not consider toward spenddown the portion of the medical expense paid or covered by third-party liability ((can not be considered toward spenddown)).

(i) The department shall disregard the possible payment as a resource and allow the entire expense for spenddown when a health insurer ((has failed)) fails to send either payment or notice of the portion of a medical services bill covered within forty-five days of the date of service or thirty days from the last day of the base period, whichever is sooner((- the department shall disregard the possible payment as a resource and allow the entire expense for spenddown)).

(ii) When Medicare is the only insurance available and the applicant is hospitalized, the department shall take the following action:

(A) Allow the Medicare deductible toward the spenddown, if there has not been a previous hospital stay within sixty days, and the client still owes the bill((- at low the Medicare deductible toward the spenddown:-)); and

(B) Not allow the hospital deductible, and follow the procedure in subsection (1)(c)(i) of this section, if there

has been a previous hospital stay within sixty days((- do not allow the hospital deductible, and follow the procedure for health insurance in (c)(i) of this subsection)).

(d) The department shall consider toward spenddown a medical expense incurred prior to the base period and paid for by a public program of the state, county, or city other than Medicaid; and

(e) The department shall consider only medical services provided by practitioners recognized under state law ((will be considered)).

(2) If the incurred medical bills equal or exceed the excess countable income at the time of application, the department shall certify the applicant is ((certified)) eligible.

(3) If the incurred medical bills are less than the excess countable income, the department shall not approve the application ((is not approved)) and shall require the ((individual is required)) applicant to spenddown the remaining excess countable income. The department shall certify the applicant ((is certified)) eligible only when excess countable income has been completely spenddown. The department shall deduct medical expenses incurred during the spenddown period ((are deducted)) in the following order:

(a) Medicare and other health insurance premiums, deductibles, coinsurance charges, enrollment fees, or copayments((-);

(b) Expenses for necessary medical and remedial care not covered by the limited casualty program((-);

(c) Expenses for necessary medical and remedial care covered by the limited casualty program which have been paid by the applicant((-) or by a public program of the state, county, or city other than Medicaid; and

(d) Expenses for necessary medical and remedial care covered by the limited casualty program which have not been paid.

(4) The applicant ((is responsible for providing)) shall provide complete documentation of incurred medical expenses within thirty days of the end of the base period. Once medical eligibility has been approved, the department shall not consider expenses which were not listed or which were omitted ((will not be considered)). The applicant may use such expenses ((may be used)) to reduce excess countable income on a subsequent application provided:

(a) ((For)) The expenses incurred prior to the certification date meets the conditions in subsection (1) of this section ((are met:-)); and

(b) ((For)) Medical care or supplies received and paid for, on or after the certification date and prior to receiving medical coupons, meets the conditions in subsections (1)(b) through ((d)) (e) of this section ((are met)).

(5) The applicant is liable for any expenses incurred prior to the spenddown satisfaction date.

WSR 88-24-026
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Health)

[Order 2736—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Leslie F. James, director of Administrative Services, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to Certificate of need—Hospitals and nursing homes, amending chapter 248-19 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-087 filed with the code reviser on October 19, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 70.38.115.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.

By Leslie F. James, Director
 Administrative Services

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2591, filed 1/29/88)

WAC 248-19-328 NURSING HOME CONCURRENT REVIEW CYCLES. (1) The department shall review concurrently during review cycles established under subsection (6) of this section the following:

- (a) New nursing homes,
- (b) Nursing home bed additions, or
- (c) Redistribution of beds from the following facility or service categories to skilled nursing care beds:
 - (i) Acute care,
 - (ii) Boarding home care, or
 - (iii) Intermediate care for the mentally retarded((:));

or

(d) Redistribution of beds from the following facility or service categories to intermediate care facility beds:

- (i) Acute care, or
 - (ii) Boarding home care.
- (2) Undertakings of type A continuing care retirement communities (CCRCs), as defined in subsection (3)(b)(i) of this section which do not propose or are not operating within a transition period as defined in subsection (3)(d) of this section during development, and which meet the following conditions, shall be reviewed under the regular review process per WAC 248-19-330:

(a) The number of nursing home beds requested in a single undertaking shall not exceed sixty((:)); and

(b) After project completion, the number of nursing home beds, including those with which the CCRC contracts, shall not exceed one bed for each four independent living units within the CCRC. In computing this ratio, only independent living units of the CCRC already existing, and/or scheduled for completion at the same

time as the proposed nursing home beds under the same financial feasibility plan, shall be counted.

(3) For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall be used:

(a) "Continuing care contract" means a contract to provide a person, for the duration of the person's life or for a term in excess of one year, shelter along with nursing, medical, health-related, or personal care services, in exchange for payment of an entrance fee, periodic charges, or both. Continuing care contracts include, but are not limited to, life care agreements and mutually terminable contracts. The living space and services under a continuing care contract may or may not be provided at the same location.

(b) "Continuing care retirement community (CCRC)" means any of a variety of entities providing shelter and services based on continuing care contracts with its enrollees. CCRCs are categorized as follows:

(i) "Type A CCRC" means a CCRC meeting the following requirements:

(A) Maintains for a period in excess of one year a CCRC contract with its enrollees or residents for a contractually guaranteed range of services from independent living through nursing home care, including some form of assistance with activities of daily living;

(B) Continues a contract if an enrollee or resident is no longer able to pay for services;

(C) Offers services only to contractual enrollees with limited exception related to use of transition periods; and

(D) Prohibits Medicaid program liability for costs of care even if the member depletes his or her personal resources.

(ii) "Type B CCRC" means a CCRC meeting the following requirements:

(A) Maintains for a period in excess of one year a CCRC contract with its enrollees or residents,

(B) May provide a range of services beyond nursing home care,

(C) May terminate a contract if an enrollee or resident is unable to pay for services,

(D) May admit patients to the nursing home who are not CCRC enrollees or residents, and

(E) May maintain Medicaid contracts and/or other requirements for third-party payment.

(c) "Enrollee" of a CCRC means an individual who has signed a continuing care contract with a CCRC.

(d) "Transition period" means a period of time, not exceeding five years, between the date an enrollee becomes the first resident of a type A CCRC and the date it fully meets the requirements of a type A CCRC as contained in the current state health plan.

(4) The annual nursing home concurrent review consists of ~~((three))~~ the following cycles:

(a) One of the ~~((three))~~ annual cycles is reserved for the review of competing applications submitted by or on behalf of:

(i) Type A CCRCs applying for nursing home beds available from the statewide CCRC allotment as described in WAC 248-19-373(8)((-));

(ii) Type A CCRCs which propose or are operating within a transition period during development and are

not applying for nursing home beds available from any nursing home planning area(;;); and

(iii) Type B CCRCs applying for nursing home beds available from the statewide CCRC allotment as described in WAC 248-19-373(8).

(b) Two other cycles are for review of competing applications for nursing home beds needed in half of the nursing home planning areas; and

(c) Until whichever occurs first, December 31, 1990, or issuance of a certificate of need for all or part of those available beds, one cycle is reserved for the review of competing applications submitted for nursing home beds available from the King County AIDS nursing home bed allotment established under WAC 248-19-373(9).

(5) The department shall use the following nursing home concurrent review application filing procedures:

(a) Each applicant shall:

(i) File the required number of copies of each application as specified in the application information requirements, and

(ii) Mail or deliver the application so that the department receives it no later than the last day for initial application receipt as prescribed in the schedule for that concurrent review cycle.

(b) The department shall:

(i) Only review applications for which a letter of intent, as described in WAC 248-19-270, was mailed or delivered (~~so that~~) to the department (receives it at least thirty days) before the last day for receipt of (~~initial applications~~) letters of intent as indicated below(;;);

(ii) Begin screening all applications received during the initial application period on the first working day following the close of that period(;;); and

(iii) Return to the applicant any application received after the last day of the initial application receipt period.

(6) The schedules for the (~~three~~) annual nursing home bed concurrent review cycles shall be as follows:

(a) For those applications described in subsection (4)(a) of this section, the concurrent review cycle schedule shall be as follows:

(i) Period for receipt of letters of intent shall begin on the first working day of June and end on the first working day of July,

(ii) Period for receipt of initial applications shall begin on the first working day of July and end on the first working day of August,

(iii) End of initial application completeness screening period is the first working day of September,

(iv) End of final application receipt period is the first working day of October, and

(v) Beginning of concurrent review period is October 16 or first working day after that date.

(b) For competing applications submitted for nursing home beds available for the Chelan/Douglas, Clallam, Clark/Skamania, Cowlitz, Grant, Grays Harbor, Island excluding Camano, Jefferson, King, Kittitas, Klickitat, Okanogan, Pacific, San Juan, Skagit, Spokane, and Yakima nursing home planning areas, the concurrent review cycle schedule shall be as follows:

(i) Period for receipt of letters of intent shall begin on the first working day of July and end on the first working day of August,

(ii) Period for receipt of initial applications shall begin on the first working day of August and end on the first working day of September,

(iii) End of initial application completeness screening period is the first working day of October,

(iv) End of final application receipt period is the first working day of November, and

(v) Beginning of concurrent review period is November 16 or first working day after that date.

(c) For competing applications submitted for nursing home beds available for the Adams, Asotin, Benton, Columbia, Ferry, Franklin, Garfield, Kitsap, Lewis, Lincoln, Mason, Pend Oreille, Pierce, Snohomish including Camano, Stevens, Thurston, Wahkiakum, Walla Walla, Whatcom, and Whitman nursing home planning areas, the concurrent review cycle schedule shall be as follows:

(i) Period for receipt of letters of intent shall begin on the first working day of August and end on the first working day of September,

(ii) Period for receipt of initial applications shall begin on the first working day of September and end on the first working day of October,

(iii) End of initial application completeness screening period is the first working day of November,

(iv) End of final application receipt period is the first working day of December, and

(v) Beginning of concurrent review period is December 16 or first working day after that date.

(d) For those applications described in subsection (4)(c) of this section, the concurrent review cycle shall be as follows:

(i) Period for receipt of letters of intent shall begin on February 17, 1989, and end on March 3, 1989;

(ii) Period of receipt of initial applications shall begin on March 6, 1989, and end on March 20, 1989;

(iii) End of initial application completeness screening period is April 3, 1989;

(iv) End of final application receipt period is April 17, 1989;

(v) Beginning of concurrent review period is April 17, 1989;

(vi) End of the advisory review period is June 16, 1989; and

(vii) End of the final review period is July 14, 1989.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2591, filed 1/29/88)

WAC 248-19-373 DETERMINATION OF NURSING HOME BED NEEDS. (1) The department shall use the following rules in making decisions on certificate of need applications involving:

(a) New nursing homes,

(b) Nursing home bed additions,

(c) Redistribution of beds from any of the following facility and service categories to skilled nursing care beds:

(i) Acute care,

(ii) Boarding home care, or

(iii) Intermediate care for the mentally retarded(-);
 (d) Redistribution of beds from any of the following facility and service categories to intermediate care facility beds:

- (i) Acute care, or
- (ii) Boarding home care; and
- (e) Relocation of nursing home beds from one nursing home planning area to another nursing home planning area.

(2) The secretary finds:
 (a) That the nursing home bed projection method contained in the state health plan is the appropriate means for determining nursing home bed needs in this state; and

(b) That the state health plan nursing home bed need method and the resultant projections as contained in subsections (4), (5), (7), ((and)) (8), and (9) of this section are consistent with RCW 70.38.045 and 70.38.065.

(3) Consistent with the general provisions of the state health plan, the department shall apply the following nursing home bed need policies:

(a) The department shall use the state health plan nursing home bed projection method to calculate nursing home bed need projections for the three-year period ending in 1990 and for at least one subsequent longer range period(-);

(b) The department and the state health coordinating council shall review the bed need projection method during the last half of 1989, unless it is reviewed sooner under the provisions of subsection (3)(c) of this section(-);

(c) The department and the state health coordinating council shall revise the bed projection method if either determines that significant nursing home bed supply problems have developed(-);

(d) The department and the state health coordinating council shall not consider hospital swing beds, which are available to provide either acute care or nursing home care, as nursing home beds for the purpose of determining nursing home bed needs or available nursing home bed supply(-); and

(e) The department shall use the following nursing home planning areas in its nursing home bed need projections:

- (i) Chelan/Douglas counties,
- (ii) Clark/Skamania counties,
- (iii) Snohomish County and Camano Island,
- (iv) Island County without Camano Island, and
- (v) The other thirty-three individual counties in the state.

(4) The following are the unallocated baseline nursing home bed need projections for 1990 listed by health service area and nursing home planning area.

(a) Puget Sound Health Service Area

Clallam	470
Island excluding Camano ((Island))	221
Jefferson	128
King	9,023
Kitsap	1,099

Pierce	3,158
San Juan	75
Skagit	588
Snohomish including Camano Island	2,275
Whatcom	1,070

(b) Southwest Washington Health Service Area

Clark/Skamania	1,151
Cowlitz	581
Grays Harbor	663
Klickitat	108
Lewis	509
Mason	235
Pacific	195
Thurston	849
Wahkiakum	53

(c) Central Washington Health Service Area

Benton	390
Chelan/Douglas	582
Franklin	150
Grant	252
Kittitas	227
Okanogan	284
Yakima	1,440

(d) Eastern Washington Health Service Area

Adams	112
Asotin	209
Columbia	66
Ferry	25
Garfield	40
Lincoln	95
Pend Oreille	55
Spokane	2,782
Stevens	177
Walla Walla	500
Whitman	236

(5) The department shall calculate the total net nursing home beds needed within each nursing home planning area by changing the 1990 baseline nursing home bed need projection for each nursing home planning area, as follows:

(a) Subtracting from the 1990 baseline nursing home bed need projection, the total number of licensed nursing home beds within the nursing home planning area, excluding:

(i) Nursing home beds used as intermediate care for the mentally retarded (IMR); and

(ii) Only when the department amends the baseline nursing home bed projections in subsection (4) of this section, nursing home beds in type A CCRCs.

(b) Adding the total number of nursing home beds which the department has delicensed since the last recomputation of the total number of licensed nursing home beds within the nursing home planning area;

(c) Subtracting the total number of hospital beds, excluding designated swing beds, within the nursing home planning area which are used for long-term care from the 1990 baseline nursing home bed need projection;

(d) Subtracting the total number of nursing home beds approved by certificate of need, but not yet licensed from the 1990 baseline nursing home bed need projection; ~~((and))~~

(e) Adding nursing home beds being reallocated from another nursing home planning area or areas to the 1990 baseline nursing home bed need projection; ~~((and))~~ or

(f) Subtracting nursing home beds being reallocated to another nursing home planning area or areas from the 1990 baseline nursing home bed need projection; and

(g) Reallocating thirty nursing home beds to King County nursing home planning area per the 1988 state health plan amendments under subsection (9) of this section, until whichever of the following occurs first:

(i) December 31, 1990; or

(ii) Issuance of a certificate of need for all or part of the available beds; and

(iii) The thirty beds reallocated to the King County nursing home planning area are redistributed from other nursing home planning areas as follows:

(A) Subtracting twenty nursing home beds from Jefferson County nursing home planning area;

(B) Subtracting seven nursing home beds from Klickitat County nursing home planning area; and

(C) Subtracting one nursing home bed from each of the following nursing home planning areas:

(I) Ferry County,

(II) Pend Oreille County, and

(III) Stevens County.

(6) Under the state health plan nursing home bed need method, area agencies on aging may submit reallocation plans to the department which:

(a) Reallocate net needed nursing home beds among two or more nursing home planning areas,

(b) Document the following:

(i) That all area agencies representing the geographic areas involved support each proposed reallocation, and

(ii) That the reallocation plan is consistent with the requirements contained in the state health plan, and

(c) Receive approval from the department's aging and adult services administration.

(7) Under the state health plan, the department shall limit to three hundred the total number of nursing home beds approved for all type A continuing care retirement communities which propose or are operating within a transition period as defined in WAC 248-19-328(3).

(a) These three hundred beds available for type A continuing care retirement communities shall be in addition to the net nursing home beds needed in all of the nursing home planning areas and the statewide CCRC allotment of described in subsection (8) of this section.

(b) All nursing home beds approved for type A continuing care retirement communities which propose or are operating within a transition period shall be counted as beds within this three hundred bed limitation unless and until the continuing care retirement community fully complies with all provisions of the state health plan type A continuing care retirement community performance standards.

(8) Under the state health plan, there is a statewide allotment of one hundred and ~~((twenty))~~ fifteen beds which shall be available only for applications sponsored

by or on behalf of continuing care retirement communities as defined in WAC 248-19-328 (3)(b).

(9) Under the state health plan 1988 amendments, there is an additional King County allotment of thirty-five beds which shall be available for the specific purpose of establishing an AIDS long-term care facility pilot project, until whichever of the following occurs first:

(a) December 31, 1990; or

(b) Issuance of a certificate of need for all or part of the available beds;

(c) If a certificate of need is issued for less than the thirty-five nursing home beds available, the department shall redistribute the remaining beds as follows:

(i) Five beds or, if fewer, all remaining beds shall be added to the number of nursing home beds available for applications sponsored by or on behalf of continuing care retirement communities as defined under WAC 248-19-328 (3)(b); and

(ii) Any remaining beds shall be redistributed among the nursing home planning areas in accordance with calculations described in step five of the state health plan nursing home bed need projection method.

(10) The total statewide 1990 baseline nursing home bed need, including nursing home planning areas needs under subsection (4) of this section ~~((and))~~, the special continuing care retirement community bed allotment in subsection (8) of this section, and the additional King County bed allotment in subsection (9) of this section is thirty thousand one hundred ninety-three.

~~((+0))~~ (11) The department shall apply the following procedures in correcting the number of total net nursing home beds needed within a nursing home planning area as the result of changes in that area's bed supply as defined in subsection (5) of this section.

(a) When the number of licensed nursing home beds increases without a corresponding decrease in the number of certificate of need approved, but not yet licensed beds, the department shall reduce the number of net needed nursing home beds as defined in subsection (5) of this section.

(i) When this reduction can be made prior to the date of commencement of review for the concurrent review cycle, the department shall:

(A) Inform, in writing, all persons from whom the department has received an application and/or a valid letter of intent~~((;))~~; and

(B) Explain to each person from whom the department has received an application the procedures for withdrawing or amending a certificate of need application.

(ii) When this reduction cannot be made prior to the date of commencement of review for the concurrent review cycle, the department shall not consider the correction in reaching a decision on each affected application.

(b) When the number of certificate of need approved, but not yet licensed, beds increases, the department shall reduce the number of net needed nursing home beds as defined in subsection (5) of this section.

(i) When this reduction can be made prior to the date of commencement of review for the concurrent review cycle, the department shall:

(A) Inform₂ in writing, all persons from whom the department has received an application and/or a valid letter of intent(;;); and

(B) Explain to each person from whom the department has received an application the procedures for withdrawing or amending a certificate of need application.

(ii) When this reduction cannot be made prior to the date of commencement of review for the concurrent review cycle, the department shall not consider the correction in reaching a decision on each affected application.

(c) When the number of licensed nursing home beds or certificate of need approved, but not yet licensed beds, decreases, the department shall increase the number of net needed nursing home beds as defined in subsection (5) of this section.

(i) When this increase can be made prior to the department's initial decision on each affected application, the department shall:

(A) Notify all affected applicants in writing, and

(B) Explain to each affected applicant the procedures for amending a certificate of need application.

(ii) When this increase cannot be made prior to the date of the department's initial decisions on the affected applications, the department shall include the increase in the number of net needed nursing home beds in any subsequent decision on each affected application or the next concurrent review cycle for that nursing home planning area, whichever occurs first.

((++)) (12) The department shall not issue certificates of need approving more than the number of additional beds indicated as(;;) either available₂ under subsections (7) ((or)) (8), or (9) of this section, or as needed for a given nursing home planning area, unless:

(a) The department has consulted with the appropriate regional health council, if any(;;); and

(b) The department finds ((that)) such additional beds are needed to further the projection method policy that nursing home beds should ordinarily be located reasonably close to the people they serve(;;); and

(c) The department explains such approval in writing.

NEW SECTION

WAC 248-19-375 AIDS LONG-TERM CARE PILOT FACILITY PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

(1) The department shall use the following rules in making decisions on certificate of need applications involving the thirty-five beds which shall be available from the additional King County allotment for establishing an AIDS long-term care facility pilot project, until whichever of the following occurs first:

(a) December 31, 1990; or

(b) Issuance of a certificate of need for all or part of the available beds.

(2) The department shall consider the following state health plan policies in reviewing certificate of need applications for an AIDS pilot facility project:

(a) The extraordinary growth of the AIDS epidemic will require some experimentation about ways to meet the long-term care needs of those people with AIDS and similar disabling conditions whose acuity of care needs can fluctuate rapidly, who do not require hospital care, but cannot live in their own homes;

(b) There is need in this state for a pilot long-term care facility which can deal with rapid changes in clinical needs without requiring patients to move physically from bed to bed or facility to facility. Experience gained from the pilot project will help in future efforts to plan appropriate care for people with AIDS and others with similar needs; and

(c) The AIDS long-term care pilot facility shall meet the following performance standards:

(i) The facility shall:

(A) Have no more than thirty-five nursing home beds;

(B) Be located in King County;

(C) Be located in reasonable proximity to a hospital, outpatient radiology services, and outpatient laboratory services; and

(D) Have admission policies which select patients with the following characteristics:

(I) Rapidly fluctuating care needs including at least some period of needing skilled nursing;

(II) Do not need acute hospitalization; and

(III) Need some level of twenty-four hour care, but cannot live at home.

(E) Be designated to provide a residential environment supporting people in living at the maximum level of independence possible.

(ii) The facility operators shall:

(A) Show how planning the facility includes input from community AIDS service organizations;

(B) Show how they will integrate the facility's services with the services provided by other public and private AIDS services documentations;

(C) Document their experience in the delivery of health care services to patients with AIDS;

(D) Express their intent to develop a policy advisory board after the facility is in operation, to include representatives from the groups served by the facility;

(E) Make a minimum of a five-year commitment to maintaining the project as described in the application; and

(F) Document their capability to evaluate the project and state their willingness to share the information with the state office on AIDS.

(iii) The applicant shall meet applicable state health plan nursing home services performance standards;

(iv) Once the facility is established as an AIDS long-term care pilot facility, the applicant may not exclude persons with fluctuating care needs similar to those of AIDS patients; and

(v) The department shall give preference to project applications that demonstrate substantial financial support from a combination of community, federal, and/or private foundation sources.

WSR 88-24-027
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY
 [Order 88-50—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Fred Olson, deputy director of the Department of Ecology, do promulgate and adopt at the Department of Ecology, Lacey, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the generation and management of hazardous waste. Specifically, this rule conditionally exempts certain waste samples from regulation if they are used in small-scale treatability studies.

I, Fred Olson, Deputy Director, Department of Ecology, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is hazardous waste site clean-up efforts are currently being delayed by the lack of treatment alternatives available. This rule would encourage the study and development of new treatment technologies (which are needed right away), while continuing to protect public health and the environment.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to chapter 70.105 RCW and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED November 18, 1988.

By Fred Olson
 Deputy Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order DE-87-4, filed 6/26/87)

WAC 173-303-040 DEFINITIONS. When used in this regulation, the following terms have the meanings given below.

(1) "Active portion" means that portion of a facility which is not a closed portion (subsection (11) of this section), and where dangerous waste recycling, reuse, reclamation, transfer, treatment, storage or disposal operations are being or have been conducted after:

(a) The effective date of the waste's designation by 40 CFR Part 261; and

(b) March 10, 1982, for wastes designated only by this chapter and not designated by 40 CFR Part 261. (See also "closed portion" and "inactive portion.")

(2) "Acutely hazardous waste" means dangerous waste sources (listed in WAC 173-303-9904) F020, F021, F022, F023, F026, or F027, and discarded chemical products (listed in WAC 173-303-9903) that are identified with a dangerous waste number beginning with a "P" or that show an "X" or "A" in the reason for designation column.

(3) "Aquatic LC₅₀" (same as TLM₉₆) means a concentration in mg/L (ppm) which kills in 96 hours half of a group of ten or more of a medium sensitivity warm water species of fish such as *Lepomis macrochirus* (bluegill) or *Pimephales promelas* (flathead minnow), or cold water species such as salmonidae, when using the testing method described in WAC 173-303-110.

(4) "Aquifer" means a geologic formation, group of formations, or part of a formation capable of yielding a significant amount of ground water to wells or springs.

(5) "Asbestos containing waste material" means any waste that contains more than one percent asbestos by weight and that can be crumbled, pulverized, or reduced to powder when dry, by hand pressure.

(6) "Batch" means any waste which is generated less frequently than once a month.

(7) "Berm" means the shoulder of a dike.

(8) "Boiler" means an enclosed device using controlled flame combustion and having the following characteristics:

(a)(i) The unit must have physical provisions for recovering and exporting thermal energy in the form of steam, heated fluids, or heated gases; and

(ii) The unit's combustion chamber and primary energy recovery section(s) must be of integral design. To be of integral design, the combustion chamber and the primary energy recovery section(s) (such as waterwalls and superheaters) must be physically formed into one manufactured or assembled unit. A unit in which the combustion chamber and the primary energy recovery section(s) are joined only by ducts or connections carrying flue gas is not integrally designed; however, secondary energy recovery equipment (such as economizers or air preheaters) need not be physically formed into the same unit as the combustion chamber and the primary energy recovery section. The following units are not precluded from being boilers solely because they are not of integral design: Process heaters (units that transfer energy directly to a process stream), and fluidized bed combustion units; and

(iii) While in operation, the unit must maintain a thermal energy recovery efficiency of at least sixty percent, calculated in terms of the recovered energy compared with the thermal value of the fuel; and

(iv) The unit must export and utilize at least seventy-five percent of the recovered energy, calculated on an annual basis. In this calculation, no credit shall be given for recovered heat used internally in the same unit. (Examples of internal use are the preheating of fuel or combustion air, and the driving of induced or forced draft fans or feedwater pumps); or

(b) The unit is one which the department has determined, on a case-by-case basis, to be a boiler, after considering the standards in WAC 173-303-017(6).

(9) "By-product" means a material that is not one of the primary products of a production process and is not solely or separately produced by the production process. Examples are process residues such as slags or distillation column bottoms. The term does not include a co-product that is produced for the general public's use and is ordinarily used in the form it is produced by the process.

(10) "Carcinogenic" means a material known to contain an IARC positive or suspected, human or animal carcinogen.

(11) "Closed portion" means that portion of a facility which an owner or operator has closed, in accordance with the approved facility closure plan and all applicable closure requirements.

(12) "Closure" means the requirements placed upon all TSD facilities to ensure that all such facilities are closed in an acceptable manner (see also "post-closure").

(13) "Compliance procedure" shall mean any proceedings instituted pursuant to the Hazardous Waste Disposal Act as amended in 1980 and 1983, and chapter 70.105A RCW, or regulations issued under authority of state law, which seeks to require compliance, or which is in the nature of an enforcement action or an action to cure a violation. A compliance procedure includes a notice of intention to terminate a permit pursuant to WAC 173-303-830(5), or an application in the state superior court for appropriate relief under the Hazardous Waste Management Act. A compliance procedure is considered to be pending from the time a notice of violation or of intent to terminate a permit is issued or judicial proceedings are begun, until the department notifies the owner or operator in writing that the violation has been corrected or that the procedure has been withdrawn or discontinued.

(14) "Constituent" or "dangerous waste constituent" means a chemically distinct component of a dangerous waste stream or mixture.

(15) "Container" means any portable device in which a material is stored, transported, treated, disposed of, or otherwise handled.

(16) "Contingency plan" means a document setting out an organized, planned, and coordinated course of action to be followed in case of a fire, explosion, or release of dangerous waste or dangerous waste constituents which could threaten the public health or environment.

(17) "Contract" means the written agreement signed by the department and the state operator.

(18) "Dangerous wastes" means those solid wastes designated in WAC 173-303-070 through 173-303-103 as dangerous or extremely hazardous waste. As used in this chapter, the words "dangerous waste" will refer to the full universe of wastes regulated by this chapter (including dangerous and extremely hazardous waste), while the abbreviation "DW" will refer to that part of the regulated universe which is dangerous only, and not extremely hazardous. (See also "extremely hazardous waste" and "hazardous waste" definitions.)

(19) "Department" means the department of ecology.

(20) "Dermal LD₅₀" means the single dosage in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) body weight which, when dermally (skin) applied for 24 hours, within 14 days kills half of a group of ten rabbits each weighing between 2.0 and 3.0 kilograms.

(21) "Designated facility" means the facility designated by the generator on the manifest to receive a dangerous waste shipment and which is authorized pursuant to this chapter or RCRA to recycle or manage dangerous waste.

(22) "Dike" means an embankment or ridge of natural or man-made materials used to prevent the movement of liquids, sludges, solids, or other substances.

(23) "Director" means the director of the department of ecology.

(24) "Discharge" or "dangerous waste discharge" means the accidental or intentional release of hazardous substances, dangerous waste or dangerous waste constituents such that the substance, waste or a waste constituent may enter or be emitted into the environment. Release includes, but is not limited to, the actions of: Spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, dumping, emptying, depositing, placing, or injecting.

(25) "Disposal" means the discharging, discarding, or abandoning of dangerous wastes or the treatment, decontamination, or recycling of such wastes once they have been discarded or abandoned. This includes the discharge of any dangerous wastes into or on any land, air, or water.

(26) "Draft permit" means a document prepared under WAC 173-303-840 indicating the department's tentative decision to issue or deny, modify, revoke and reissue, or terminate a permit. A notice of intent to terminate or deny a permit are types of draft permits. A denial of a request for modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination as discussed in WAC 173-303-830 is not a draft permit.

(27) "Elementary neutralization unit" means a device which:

(a) Is used for neutralizing wastes which are dangerous wastes only because they exhibit the corrosivity characteristics defined in WAC 173-303-090 or are listed in WAC 173-303-081, or in 173-303-082 only for this reason; and

(b) Meets the definition of tank, tank system, container, transport vehicle, or vessel.

(28) "EPA/state identification number" or "EPA/state ID#" means the number assigned by EPA or by the department of ecology to each generator, transporter, and TSD facility.

(29) "Extremely hazardous waste" means those dangerous wastes designated in WAC 173-303-070 through 173-303-103 as extremely hazardous. The abbreviation "EHW" will be used in this chapter to refer to those dangerous wastes which are extremely hazardous. (See also "dangerous waste" and "hazardous waste" definitions.)

(30) "Facility" means all contiguous land, and structures, other appurtenances, and improvements on the land used for recycling, reusing, reclaiming, transferring, storing, treating, or disposing of dangerous waste. Unless otherwise specified in this chapter, the terms "facility," "treatment, storage, disposal facility," "TSD facility," "dangerous waste facility" or "waste management facility" shall be used interchangeably.

(31) "Food chain crops" means tobacco, crops grown for human consumption, and crops grown to feed animals whose products are consumed by humans.

(32) "Freeboard" means the vertical distance between the top of a tank or surface impoundment dike, and the surface of the waste contained therein.

(33) "Fugitive emissions" means the emission of contaminants from sources other than the control system exit point. Material handling, storage piles, doors, windows and vents are typical sources of fugitive emissions.

(34) "Generator" means any person, by site, whose act or process produces dangerous waste or whose act first causes a dangerous waste to become subject to regulation.

(35) "Genetic properties" means those properties which cause or significantly contribute to mutagenic, teratogenic, or carcinogenic effects in man or wildlife.

(36) "Ground water" means water which fills voids below the land surface and in the earth's crust.

(37) "Halogenated hydrocarbons" (HH) means any organic compounds which, as part of their composition, include one or more atoms of fluorine, chlorine, bromine, iodine, or astatine. The requirements of this chapter apply to only those halogenated hydrocarbons which can be obtained using the testing method described in WAC 173-303-110, testing methods, and which are persistent dangerous wastes.

(38) "Hazardous substances" means any liquid, solid, gas, or sludge, including any material, substance, product, commodity, or waste, regardless of quantity, that exhibits any of the physical, chemical or biological properties described in WAC 173-303-090, 173-303-101, 173-303-102, or 173-303-103.

(39) "Hazardous wastes" means those solid wastes designated by 40 CFR Part 261, and regulated as hazardous waste by the United States EPA. This term will never be abbreviated in this chapter to avoid confusion with the abbreviations "DW" and "EHW." (See also "dangerous waste" and "extremely hazardous waste" definitions.)

(40) "Inactive portion" means that portion of a facility which has not recycled, treated, stored, or disposed dangerous waste after:

(a) The effective date of the waste's designation, for wastes designated under 40 CFR Part 261; and

(b) March 10, 1982, for wastes designated only by this chapter and not designated by 40 CFR Part 261.

(41) "Incinerator" means any enclosed device using controlled flame combustion that neither meets the criteria for classification as a boiler nor is listed as an industrial furnace.

(42) "Incompatible waste" means a dangerous waste which is unsuitable for placement in a particular device or facility because it may corrode or decay the containment materials, or is unsuitable for mixing with another waste or material because the mixture might produce heat or pressure, fire or explosion, violent reaction, toxic dusts, fumes, mists, or gases, or flammable fumes or gases.

(43) "Industrial-furnace" means any of the following enclosed devices that are integral components of manufacturing processes and that use controlled flame devices to accomplish recovery of materials or energy; cement kilns, lime kilns, aggregate kilns, phosphate kilns, blast furnaces, smelting, melting, and refining furnaces (including pyrometallurgical devices such as cupolas, reverberator furnaces, sintering machines, roasters and

foundry furnaces), titanium dioxide chloride process oxidation reactors, coke ovens, methane reforming furnaces, combustion devices used in the recovery of sulfur values from spent sulfuric acid, and pulping liquor recovery furnaces. The department may decide to add devices to this list on the basis of one or more of the following factors:

(a) The device is designed and used primarily to accomplish recovery of material products;

(b) The device burns or reduces secondary materials as ingredients in an industrial process to make a material product;

(c) The device burns or reduces secondary materials as effective substitutes for raw materials in processes using raw materials as principal feedstocks;

(d) The device burns or reduces raw materials to make a material product;

(e) The device is in common industrial use to produce a material product; and

(f) Other factors, as appropriate.

(44) "Infectious waste" means organisms or materials listed in WAC 173-303-083, infectious dangerous wastes.

(45) "Inhalation LC₅₀" means a concentration in milligrams of substance per liter of air which, when administered to the respiratory tract for 4 hours, kills within 14 days half of a group of ten rats each weighing between 200 and 300 grams.

(46) "Inner liner" means a continuous layer of material placed inside a tank or container which protects the construction materials of the tank or container from the waste or reagents used to treat the waste.

(47) "Interim status permit" means a temporary permit given to TSD facilities which qualify under WAC 173-303-805.

(48) "Landfill" means a disposal facility, or part of a facility, where dangerous waste is placed in or on land and which is not a land treatment facility, a surface impoundment, or an injection well.

(49) "Land treatment" means the practice of applying dangerous waste onto or incorporating dangerous waste into the soil surface so that it will degrade or decompose. If the waste will remain after the facility is closed, this practice is disposal.

(50) "Leachate" means any liquid, including any components suspended in the liquid, that has percolated through or drained from dangerous waste.

(51) "Legal defense costs" means any expenses that an insurer incurs in defending against claims of third parties brought under the terms and conditions of an insurance policy.

(52) "Liner" means a continuous layer of man-made or natural materials which restrict the escape of dangerous waste, dangerous waste constituents, or leachate through the sides, bottom, or berms of a surface impoundment, waste pile, or landfill.

(53) "Major facility" means a facility or activity classified by the department as major.

(54) "Manifest" means the shipping document, prepared in accordance with the requirements of WAC 173-303-180, which is used to identify the quantity,

composition, origin, routing, and destination of a dangerous waste while it is being transported to a point of transfer, disposal, treatment, or storage.

(55) (Reserved.)

(56) "NIOSH registry" means the registry of toxic effects of chemical substances which is published by the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health.

(57) "Nonsudden accident" or "nonsudden accidental occurrence" means an unforeseen and unexpected occurrence which takes place over time and involves continuous or repeated exposure.

(58) "Occurrence" means an accident, including continuous or repeated exposure to conditions, which results in bodily injury or property damage which the owner or operator neither expected nor intended to occur.

(59) "On-site" means the same, geographically contiguous, or bordering property. Travel between two properties divided by a public right of way, and owned, operated, or controlled by the same person, shall be considered on-site travel if: (a) The travel crosses the right of way at a perpendicular intersection; or, (b) the right of way is controlled by the property owner and is inaccessible to the public.

(60) "Operator" means the person responsible for the overall operation of a facility. (See also "state operator.")

(61) "Oral LD₅₀" means the single dosage in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) body weight, when orally administered, which, within 14 days, kills half a group of ten or more white rats each weighing between 200 and 300 grams.

(62) "Permit" means an authorization which allows a person to perform dangerous waste transfer, storage, treatment, or disposal operations, and which typically will include specific conditions for such facility operations. Permits must be issued by one of the following:

(a) The department, pursuant to this chapter;

(b) United States EPA, pursuant to 40 CFR Part 270; or

(c) Another state authorized by EPA, pursuant to 40 CFR Part 271.

(63) "Permit-by-rule" means a provision of this chapter stating that a facility or activity is deemed to have a dangerous waste permit if it meets the requirements of the provision.

(64) "Persistence" means the quality of a material which retains more than half of its initial activity after one year (365 days) in either a dark anaerobic or dark aerobic environment at ambient conditions.

(65) "Person" means any person, firm, association, county, public or municipal or private corporation, agency, or other entity whatsoever.

(66) "Pesticide" means but is not limited to: Any substance or mixture of substances intended to prevent, destroy, control, repel, or mitigate any insect, rodent, nematode, mollusk, fungus, weed, and any other form of plant or animal life, or virus (except virus on or in living man or other animal) which is normally considered to be a pest or which the department of agriculture may declare to be a pest; any substance or mixture of substances intended to be used as a plant regulator, defoliant, or

desiccant; any substance or mixture of substances intended to be used as spray adjuvant; and, any other substance intended for such use as may be named by the department of agriculture by regulation. Herbicides, fungicides, insecticides, and rodenticides are pesticides for the purposes of this chapter.

(67) "Pile" means any noncontainerized accumulation of solid, nonflowing dangerous waste that is used for treatment or storage.

(68) "Point source" means any confined and discrete conveyance from which pollutants are or may be discharged. This term includes, but is not limited to, pipes, ditches, channels, tunnels, wells, cracks, containers, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operations, or watercraft, but does not include return flows from irrigated agriculture.

(69) "Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons" (PAH) means those hydrocarbon molecules composed of two or more benzene rings. For the purposes of this chapter, the PAH of concern for designation are only those PAH with more than three rings and less than seven rings.

(70) "Post-closure" means the requirements placed upon disposal facilities (e.g., landfills, impoundments closed as disposal facilities, etc.) after closure to ensure their environmental safety for a number of years after closure. (See also "closure.")

(71) "Publicly owned treatment works" or "POTW" means any device or system, owned by the state or a municipality, which is used in the treatment, recycling, or reclamation of municipal sewage or liquid industrial wastes. This term includes sewers, pipes, or other conveyances only if they convey wastewater to a POTW.

(72) "Reclaim" means to process a material in order to recover useable products, or to regenerate the material. Reclamation is the process of reclaiming.

(73) "Recover" means extract a useable material from a solid or dangerous waste through a physical, chemical, biological, or thermal process. Recovery is the process of recovering.

(74) "Recycle" means to use, reuse, or reclaim a material.

(75) "Regulated unit" means any new or existing surface impoundment, landfill, land treatment area or waste pile that receives any dangerous waste after:

(a) January 26, 1983 for wastes regulated by 40 CFR Part 261;

(b) October 31, 1984 for wastes designated only by this chapter and not regulated by 40 CFR Part 261; or

(c) The date six months after a waste is newly identified by amendments to 40 CFR Part 261 or this chapter which cause the waste to be regulated.

(76) "Representative sample" means a sample which can be expected to exhibit the average properties of the sample source.

(77) "Reuse or use" means to employ a material either:

(a) As an ingredient (including use as an intermediate) in an industrial process to make a product (for example, distillation bottoms from one process used as feedstock in another process). However, a material will not satisfy this condition if distinct components of the material are recovered as separate end products (as

when metals are recovered from metal-containing secondary materials); or

(b) In a particular function or application as an effective substitute for a commercial product (for example, spent pickle liquor used as phosphorous precipitant and sludge conditioner in wastewater treatment).

(78) "Run-off" means any rainwater, leachate, or other liquid which drains over land from any part of a facility.

(79) "Run-on" means any rainwater, leachate, or other liquid which drains over land onto any part of a facility.

(80) "Schedule of compliance" means a schedule of remedial measures in a permit including an enforceable sequence of interim requirements leading to compliance with this chapter.

(81) "Sludge" means any solid, semisolid, or liquid waste generated from a municipal, commercial, or industrial wastewater treatment plant, water supply treatment plant, or air pollution control facility. This term does not include the treated effluent from a wastewater treatment plant.

(82) "Scrap metal" means bits and pieces of metal parts (e.g., bars, turnings, rods, sheets, wire) or metal pieces that may be combined together with bolts or soldering (e.g., radiators, scrap automobiles, railroad box cars), which when worn or superfluous can be recycled.

(83) "Spent material" means any material that has been used and as a result of contamination can no longer serve the purpose for which it was produced without processing.

(84) "State operator" means the person responsible for the overall operation of the state's extremely hazardous waste facility on the Hanford Reservation.

(85) "Storage" means the holding of dangerous waste for a temporary period. "Accumulation" of dangerous waste, by the generator on the site of generation, is not storage as long as the generator complies with the applicable requirements of WAC 173-303-200 and 173-303-201.

(86) "Sudden accident" means an unforeseen and unexpected occurrence which is not continuous or repeated in nature.

(87) "Surface impoundment" means a facility or part of a facility which is a natural topographic depression, man-made excavation, or diked area formed primarily of earthen materials (although it may be lined with man-made materials), and which is designed to hold an accumulation of liquid dangerous wastes or dangerous wastes containing free liquids. The term includes holding, storage, settling, and aeration pits, ponds, or lagoons, but does not include injection wells.

(88) "Tank" means a stationary device designed to contain an accumulation of dangerous waste, and which is constructed primarily of nonearthen materials to provide structural support.

(89) "Thermal treatment" means the use of a device which uses primarily elevated temperatures to treat a dangerous waste.

(90) "TLM₉₆" means the same as "Aquatic LC₅₀".

(91) "Totally enclosed treatment facility" means a facility for treating dangerous waste which is directly connected to a production process and which prevents the release of dangerous waste or dangerous waste constituents into the environment during treatment.

(92) "Toxic" means having the properties to cause or to significantly contribute to death, injury, or illness of man or wildlife.

(93) "Transfer facility" or "collection facility" means a facility at which dangerous waste shipments are collected, consolidated, and stored for more than ten days before transfer to a storage, treatment, or disposal facility.

(94) "Transportation" means the movement of dangerous waste by air, rail, highway, or water.

(95) "Transporter" means a person engaged in the off-site transportation of dangerous waste.

(96) "Travel time" means the period of time necessary for a dangerous waste constituent released to the soil (either by accident or intent) to enter any on-site or off-site aquifer or water supply system.

(97) "Treatment" means the physical, chemical, or biological processing of dangerous waste to make such wastes nondangerous or less dangerous, safer for transport, amenable for energy or material resource recovery, amenable for storage, or reduced in volume.

(98) "Treatment zone" means a soil area of the unsaturated zone of a land treatment unit within which dangerous wastes are degraded, transformed or immobilized.

(99) "Triple rinsing" means the cleaning of containers in accordance with the requirements of WAC 173-303-160 (2)(b), containers.

(100) "Underground injection" means the subsurface emplacement of fluids through a bored, drilled, or driven well, or through a dug well, where the depth of the dug well is greater than the largest surface dimension.

(101) "Unsaturated zone" means the zone between the land surface and the water table.

(102) "Uppermost aquifer" means the geological formation nearest the natural ground surface that is capable of yielding ground water to wells or springs. It includes lower aquifers that are hydraulically interconnected with this aquifer within the facility property boundary.

(103) "Water or rail (bulk shipment)" means the bulk transportation of dangerous waste which is loaded or carried on board a vessel or railcar without containers or labels.

(104) "Waste water treatment unit" means a device which:

(a) Is part of a waste water treatment facility which is subject to regulation under either:

(i) Section 402 or section 307(b) of the Federal Clean Water Act; or

(ii) Chapter 90.48 RCW, State Water Pollution Control Act, provided that any dangerous waste treated at the facility is designated only by this chapter 173-303 WAC and is not regulated as hazardous waste under 40 CFR Part 261; and

(b) Handles dangerous waste as defined in WAC 173-303-070 through 173-303-103 in either of the following manner:

(i) Receives and treats or stores an influent dangerous waste water, or

(ii) Generates and accumulates or treats or stores a dangerous waste water treatment sludge, and

(c) Meets the definition of tank or tank system in WAC 173-303-040.

(105) "Existing TSD facility" means a facility which was in operation or for which construction commenced on or before November 19, 1980, for wastes designated by 40 CFR Part 261, or August 9, 1982, for wastes designated only by this chapter and not designated by 40 CFR Part 261. A facility has commenced construction if the owner or operator has obtained permits and approvals necessary under federal, state and local statutes, regulations and ordinances and either:

(a) A continuous on-site, physical construction program has begun; or

(b) The owner or operator has entered into contractual obligation, which cannot be cancelled or modified without substantial loss, for physical construction of the facility to be completed within a reasonable time.

(106) "New TSD facility" means a facility which began operation or for which construction commenced after November 19, 1980, for wastes designated by 40 CFR Part 261, or August 9, 1982, for wastes designated only by this chapter and not designated by 40 CFR Part 261.

(107) "Special waste" means any dangerous waste that is solid only (nonliquid, nonaqueous, nongaseous), that is not a regulated hazardous waste under 40 CFR Part 261, and that is designated as only DW in WAC 173-303-090, 173-303-101, 173-303-102, or 173-303-103. Any solid waste that is EHW or that is regulated by the United States EPA as hazardous waste cannot be a special waste.

(108) "Active life" of a facility means the period from the initial receipt of dangerous waste at the facility until the department receives certification of final closure.

(109) "Final closure" means the closure of all dangerous waste management units at the facility in accordance with all applicable closure requirements so that dangerous waste management activities under WAC 173-303-400 and 173-303-600 through 173-303-670 are no longer conducted at the facility unless subject to the provisions in WAC 173-303-200.

(110) "Partial closure" means the closure of a dangerous waste management unit in accordance with the applicable closure requirements of WAC 173-303-400 and 173-303-600 through 173-303-670 at a facility that contains other active dangerous waste management units. For example, partial closure may include the closure of a tank (including its associated piping and underlying containment systems), landfill cell, surface impoundment, waste pile, or other dangerous waste management unit, while other units of the same facility continue to operate.

(111) "Dangerous waste management unit" is a contiguous area of land on or in which dangerous waste is placed, or the largest area in which there is a significant

likelihood of mixing dangerous waste constituents in the same area. Examples of dangerous waste management units include a surface impoundment, a waste pile, a land treatment area, a landfill cell, an incinerator, a tank and its associated piping and underlying containment system and a container storage area. A container alone does not constitute a unit; the unit includes containers and the land or pad upon which they are placed.

(112) "Treatability study" means a study in which a dangerous waste is subjected to a treatment process to determine: Whether the waste is amenable to the treatment process; what pretreatment (if any) is required; the optimal process conditions needed to achieve the desired treatment; the efficiency of a treatment process for a specific waste or wastes; or the characteristics and volumes of residuals from a particular treatment process. Also included in this definition for the purpose of the exemptions contained in WAC 173-303-071 (3)(r) and (s), are liner compatibility, corrosion, and other material compatibility studies and toxicological and health effects studies. A "treatability study" is not a means to commercially treat or dispose of dangerous waste.

Any terms used in this chapter which have not been defined in this section shall have either the same meaning as set forth in Title 40 CFR Parts 260, 264, 270, and 124 or else shall have their standard, technical meaning.

As used in this chapter, words in the masculine gender also include the feminine and neuter genders, words in the singular include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order DE-87-4, filed 6/26/87)

WAC 173-303-071 EXCLUDED CATEGORIES OF WASTE. (1) Purpose. Certain categories of waste have been excluded from the requirements of chapter 173-303 WAC, except for WAC 173-303-050, because they generally are not dangerous waste, are regulated under other state and federal programs, or are recycled in ways which do not threaten public health or the environment. WAC 173-303-071 describes these excluded categories of waste.

(2) Excluding wastes. Any persons who generate a common class of wastes and who seek to categorically exclude such class of wastes from the requirements of this chapter shall comply with the applicable requirements of WAC 173-303-072. No waste class will be excluded if any of the wastes in the class are regulated as hazardous waste under 40 CFR Part 261.

(3) Exclusions. The following categories of waste are excluded from the requirements of chapter 173-303 WAC, except for WAC 173-303-050:

(a) Domestic sewage, and any mixture of domestic sewage and other wastes that passes through a sewer system to a publicly-owned treatment works (POTW) for treatment. "Domestic sewage" means untreated sanitary wastes that pass through a sewer system. This exclusion does not apply to the generation, treatment, recycling, or other management of dangerous wastes prior to discharge into the sanitary sewage system;

(b) Industrial wastewater discharges that are point-source discharges subject to regulation under Section

402 of the Clean Water Act. This exclusion does not apply to the collection, storage, or treatment of industrial waste-waters prior to discharge, nor to sludges that are generated during industrial wastewater treatment;

(c) Household wastes, including household waste that has been collected, transported, stored, or disposed. Wastes which are residues from or are generated by the management of household wastes (e.g., leachate, ash from burning of refuse-derived fuel) are not excluded by this provision. "Household wastes" means any waste material (including garbage, trash, and sanitary wastes in septic tanks) derived from households (including single and multiple residences, hotels and motels, bunk-houses, ranger stations, crew quarters, campgrounds, picnic grounds, and day-use recreation areas);

(d) Agricultural crops and animal manures which are returned to the soil as fertilizers;

(e) Asphaltic materials designated only for the presence of PAHs by WAC 173-303-084(6) or 173-303-102. For the purposes of this exclusion, asphaltic materials means materials intended and used for structural and construction purposes (e.g., roads, dikes, paving) which are produced from mixtures of oil and sand, gravel, ash or similar substances;

(f) Roofing tars and shingles, except that these wastes are not excluded if mixed with wastes listed in WAC 173-303-081 or 173-303-082, or if they exhibit any of the characteristics specified in WAC 173-303-090;

(g) Waste wood or wood products treated with preservatives if the waste is generated by persons who utilize the treated wood or wood products for these materials' intended end use;

(h) Irrigation return flows;

(i) Materials subjected to in-situ mining techniques which are not removed from the ground during extraction;

(j) Mining overburden returned to the mining site;

(k) Polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) wastes(-);

(i) PCB wastes whose disposal is regulated by EPA under 40 CFR 761.60;

(ii) Wastes that would be designated as dangerous waste under this chapter solely because they are listed as W001 under WAC 173-303-9904 when, using EPA's PCB testing method 600/4-81-045, the waste can be shown to contain less than one part per million (ppm) PCB or when, using ASTM method D 4059-86, the waste can be shown to contain less than two parts per million (ppm) PCB;

(iii) Wastes that would be designated as dangerous waste under this chapter solely because they are listed as W001 under WAC 173-303-9904 when such wastes are:

(A) Stored in a manner equivalent to the requirements of 40 CFR 761.65; and

(B) Within one year of removal from service, disposed of either in an incinerator that complies with 40 CFR 761.70, in a chemical waste landfill that complies with 40 CFR 761.75, in a high efficiency boiler that complies with 40 CFR 761.60 (a)(2)(iii) or (a)(3)(iii), or in a facility otherwise approved in accordance with 40 CFR 761.60(e);

(l) Samples(-);

(i) Except as provided in (l)(ii) of this subsection, a sample of solid waste or a sample of water, soil, or air, which is collected for the sole purpose of testing to determine its characteristics or composition, is not subject to any requirements of this chapter, when:

(A) The sample is being transported to a lab for testing or being transported to the sample collector after testing; or

(B) The sample is being stored by the sample collector before transport, by the laboratory before testing, or by the laboratory after testing prior to return to the sample collector; or

(C) The sample is being stored temporarily in the laboratory after testing for a specific purpose (for example, until conclusion of a court case or enforcement action).

(ii) In order to qualify for the exemption in (l)(i)(A) of this subsection, a sample collector shipping samples to a laboratory and a laboratory returning samples to a sample collector must:

(A) Comply with United States Department of Transportation (DOT), United States Postal Service (USPS), or any other applicable shipping requirements; or

(B) Comply with the following requirements if the sample collector determines that DOT or USPS, or other shipping requirements do not apply:

(I) Assure that the following information accompanies the sample:

((aa)) (AA) The sample collector's name, mailing address, and telephone number;

((bb)) (BB) The laboratory's name, mailing address, and telephone number;

((cc)) (CC) The quantity of the sample;

((dd)) (DD) The date of shipment;

((ee)) (EE) A description of the sample; and

(II) Package the sample so that it does not leak, spill, or vaporize from its packaging.

(iii) This exemption does not apply if the laboratory determines that the waste is dangerous but the laboratory is no longer meeting any of the conditions stated in (l)(i) of this subsection;

(m) Asbestos wastes or asbestos containing wastes which would be designated only as respiratory carcinogens by WAC 173-303-084 or 173-303-103, and any other inorganic wastes which are designated only under WAC 173-303-084 or 173-303-103 because they are respiratory carcinogens, if these wastes are managed in compliance with or in a manner equivalent to the asbestos management procedures of 40 CFR Part 61;

(n) Dangerous waste which is generated in a product or raw material storage tank, a product or raw material transport vehicle or vessel, a product or raw material pipeline, or in a manufacturing process unit or an associated nonwaste-treatment-manufacturing unit until it exits the unit in which it was generated, unless the unit is a surface impoundment, or unless the dangerous waste remains in the unit more than ninety days after the unit ceases to be operated for manufacturing, or for storage or transportation of product or raw materials;

(o) Waste pickle liquor sludge generated by lime stabilization of spent pickle liquor from the iron and steel

industry (SIC codes 331 and 332), except that these wastes are not excluded if they exhibit one or more of the dangerous waste criteria (WAC 173-303-100 through 173-303-103) or characteristics (WAC 173-303-090);

(p) Wastes from burning any of the materials exempted from regulation by WAC 173-303-120 (2)(a)(v), (vi), (vii), (viii), or (ix);

(q) As of January 1, 1987, secondary materials that are reclaimed and returned to the original process or processes in which they were generated where they are reused in the production process provided:

(i) Only tank storage is involved, and the entire process through completion of reclamation is closed by being entirely connected with pipes or other comparable enclosed means of conveyance;

(ii) Reclamation does not involve controlled flame combustion (such as occurs in boilers, industrial furnaces, or incinerators);

(iii) The secondary materials are never accumulated in such tanks for over twelve months without being reclaimed;

(iv) The reclaimed material is not used to produce a fuel, or used to produce products that are used in a manner constituting disposal; and

(v) The generator ensures that any residues (e.g., sludges, filters, etc.) produced from the collection, reclamation, and reuse of the secondary materials are delivered to a dangerous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facility or legitimate recycler. The generator must be able to provide documentation of such delivery. If the generator can demonstrate that the residues do not exhibit any of the dangerous waste characteristics (WAC 173-303-090) and criteria (WAC 173-303-100 through 173-303-103), then he is exempt from the requirements of this condition in this item (v).

(r) Treatability study samples.

(i) Except as provided in (r)(ii) of this subsection, persons who generate or collect samples for the purpose of conducting treatability studies as defined in WAC 173-303-040(112) are not subject to the requirements of WAC 173-303-180, 173-303-190, and 173-303-200 (1)(a), nor are such samples included in the quantity determinations of WAC 173-303-070 (7) and (8) and 173-303-201 when:

(A) The sample is being collected and prepared for transportation by the generator or sample collector; or

(B) The sample is being accumulated or stored by the generator or sample collector prior to transportation to a laboratory or testing facility; or

(C) The sample is being transported to the laboratory or testing facility for the purpose of conducting a treatability study; or

(D) The sample or waste residue is being transported back to the original generator from the laboratory or testing facility.

(ii) The exemption in (r)(i) of this subsection is applicable to samples of dangerous waste being collected and shipped for the purpose of conducting treatability studies provided that:

(A) The generator or sample collector uses (in "treatability studies") no more than 1000 kg of any

dangerous waste, 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste, or 250 kg of soils, water, or debris contaminated with acutely hazardous waste for each process being evaluated for each generated waste stream; and

(B) The mass of each sample shipment does not exceed 1000 kg of dangerous waste, 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste, or 250 kg of soils, water, or debris contaminated with acutely hazardous waste; and

(C) The sample must be packaged so that it will not leak, spill, or vaporize from its packaging during shipment and the requirements of (r)(ii)(C)(I) or (II) of this subsection are met.

(I) The transportation of each sample shipment complies with United States Department of Transportation (DOT), United States Postal Service (USPS), or any other applicable shipping requirements; or

(II) If the DOT, USPS, or other shipping requirements do not apply to the shipment of the sample, the following information must accompany the sample:

(AA) The name, mailing address, and telephone number of the originator of the sample;

(BB) The name, address, and telephone number of the laboratory or testing facility that will perform the treatability study;

(CC) The quantity of the sample;

(DD) The date of shipment; and

(EE) A description of the sample, including its dangerous waste number.

(D) The sample is shipped, within ninety days, to a laboratory or testing facility which is exempt under (s) of this subsection or has an appropriate final facility permit or interim status; and

(E) The generator or sample collector maintains the following records for a period ending three years after completion of the treatability study:

(I) Copies of the shipping documents;

(II) A copy of the contract with the facility conducting the treatability study;

(III) Documentation showing:

(AA) The amount of waste shipped under this exemption;

(BB) The name, address, and EPA/state identification number of the laboratory or testing facility that received the waste;

(CC) The date the shipment was made; and

(DD) Whether or not unused samples and residues were returned to the generator.

(F) The generator reports the information required under (r)(ii)(E)(III) of this subsection in its annual report.

(iii) The department may grant requests, on a case-by-case basis, for quantity limits in excess of those specified in (r)(ii)(A) of this subsection, for up to an additional 500 kg of nonacute hazardous waste, 1 kg of acute hazardous waste, and 250 kg of soils, water, or debris contaminated with acute hazardous waste, to conduct further treatability study evaluation when: There has been an equipment or mechanical failure during the conduct of a treatability study; there is a need to verify the results of previously conducted treatability study; there is a need to study and analyze alternative

techniques within a previously evaluated treatment process; or there is a need to do further evaluation of an ongoing treatability study to determine final specifications for treatment. The additional quantities allowed are subject to all the provisions in (r)(i) and (ii)(B) of this subsection. The generator or sample collector must apply to the department in the state where the sample is collected and provide in writing the following information:

(A) The reason the generator or sample collector requires additional quantity of sample for the treatability study evaluation and the additional quantity needed;

(B) Documentation accounting for all samples of dangerous waste from the waste stream which have been sent for or undergone treatability studies including the date each previous sample from the waste stream was shipped, the quantity of each previous shipment, the laboratory or testing facility to which it was shipped, what treatability study processes were conducted on each sample shipped, and the available results of each treatability study;

(C) A description of the technical modifications or change in specifications which will be evaluated and the expected results;

(D) If such further study is being required due to equipment or mechanical failure, the applicant must include information regarding the reason for the failure or breakdown and also include what procedures or equipment improvements have been made to protect against further breakdowns; and

(E) Such other information that the department considers necessary.

(s) Samples undergoing treatability studies at laboratories and testing facilities. Samples undergoing treatability studies and the laboratory or testing facility conducting such treatability studies (to the extent such facilities are not otherwise subject to chapter 70.105 RCW) are not subject to the requirements of this chapter, except WAC 173-303-050, 173-303-145, 173-303-200 (1)(c) and (d), and 173-303-960 provided that the conditions of (s)(i) through (xi) of this subsection are met. A mobile treatment unit (MTU) may qualify as a testing facility subject to (s)(i) through (xi) of this subsection. Where a group of MTUs are located at the same site, the limitations specified in (s)(i) through (xi) of this subsection apply to the entire group of MTUs collectively as if the group were on MTU.

(i) No less than forty-five days before conducting treatability studies the laboratory or testing facility notifies the department in writing that it intends to conduct treatability studies under this subsection.

(ii) The laboratory or testing facility conducting the treatability study has an EPA/state identification number.

(iii) No more than a total of 250 kg of "as received" dangerous waste is subjected to initiation of treatment in all treatability studies in any single day. "As received" waste refers to the waste as received in the shipment from the generator or sample collector.

(iv) The quantity of "as received" dangerous waste stored at the laboratory or testing facility for the purpose of evaluation in treatability studies does not exceed

1000 kg, the total of which can include 500 kg of soils, water, or debris contaminated with acutely hazardous waste or 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste. This quantity limitation does not include:

(A) Treatability study residues; and

(B) Treatment materials (including nondangerous solid waste) added to "as received" dangerous waste.

(v) No more than ninety days have elapsed since the treatability study for the sample was completed, or no more than one year has elapsed since the generator or sample collector shipped the sample to the laboratory or testing facility, whichever date first occurs.

(vi) The treatability study does not involve the placement of dangerous waste on the land or open burning of dangerous waste.

(vii) The laboratory or testing facility maintains records for three years following completion of each study that show compliance with the treatment rate limits and the storage time and quantity limits. The following specific information must be included for each treatability study conducted:

(A) The name, address, and EPA/state identification number of the generator or sample collector of each waste sample;

(B) The date the shipment was received;

(C) The quantity of waste accepted;

(D) The quantity of "as received" waste in storage each day;

(E) The date the treatment study was initiated and the amount of "as received" waste introduced to treatment each day;

(F) The date the treatability study was concluded;

(G) The date any unused sample or residues generated from the treatability study were returned to the generator or sample collector or, if sent to a designated TSD facility, the name of the TSD facility and its EPA/state identification number.

(viii) The laboratory or testing facility keeps, on-site, a copy of the treatability study contract and all shipping paper associated with the transport of treatability study samples to and from the facility for a period ending three years from the completion date of each treatability study.

(ix) The laboratory or testing facility prepares and submits a report to the department by March 15 of each year that estimates the number of studies and the amount of waste expected to be used in treatability studies during the current year, and includes the following information for the previous calendar year:

(A) The name, address, and EPA/state identification number of the laboratory or testing facility conducting the treatability studies;

(B) The types (by process) of treatability studies conducted;

(C) The names and addresses of persons for whom studies have been conducted (including their EPA/state identification numbers);

(D) The total quantity of waste in storage each day;

(E) The quantity and types of waste subjected to treatability studies;

(F) When each treatability study was conducted;

(G) The final disposition of residues and unused sample from each treatability study.

(x) The laboratory or testing facility determines whether any unused sample or residues generated by the treatability study are dangerous waste under WAC 173-303-070 and if so, are subject to the requirements of this chapter, unless the residues and unused samples are returned to the sample originator under the exemption in (r) of this subsection.

(xi) The laboratory or testing facility notifies the department by letter when it is no longer planning to conduct any treatability studies at the site.

WSR 88-24-028

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

[Order 1992—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, C. Alan Pettibone, director of the Department of Agriculture, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the amending of WAC 16-532-020 to provide for board membership terms to expire on December 31; and adding new section WAC 16-532-035 requiring inspection of all varieties of hops for quality and condition when marketed.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-18-073 filed with the code reviser on September 6, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to chapter 15.65 RCW and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 2, 1988.

By C. Alan Pettibone
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Marketing Order Article II, filed 7/1/64)

WAC 16-532-020 HOP BOARD. (1) Administration. The provisions of this order and the applicable provisions of the act shall be administered and enforced by the board as the designee of the director.

(2) Board membership.

(a) The board shall consist of ten members. Nine members shall be affected producers elected as provided in this section. The director shall appoint one member of the board who is neither an affected producer nor a handler to represent the department and the public.

(b) For the purpose of nomination and election of producer members of the board, the affected area shall be the entire state of Washington.

(3) Board membership qualifications.

~~((a))~~ The affected producer members of the board shall be practical producers of hops and shall be citizens

and residents of the state of Washington, over the age of twenty-five years, each of whom is and has been actually engaged in producing hops within the state of Washington for a period of five years and has during that time derived a substantial portion of his income therefrom and who is not engaged in business, directly or indirectly, as a handler or other dealer.

(4) Term of office.

(a) The term of office for members of the board shall be three years and one-third of the membership as nearly as possible shall be elected each year.

(b) Membership positions on the board shall be designated numerically; affected producers shall have positions one through nine and the member appointed by the director position ten.

(c) The term of office for the initial board members shall be as follows:

Positions one, two, three and ten – until June 30, 1967

Positions four, five and six – until June 30, 1966

Positions seven, eight and nine – until June 30, 1965

(d) Terms of office for the board members serving at the time of the 1988 amendment of this section shall be as follows:

Positions one, two, three and ten – until December 31, 1991

Positions four, five and six – until December 31, 1989

Positions seven, eight and nine – until December 31, 1990

(5) Nomination and election of board members. Each year the director shall call for a nomination meeting. Such meeting shall be held at least thirty days in advance of the date set by the director for the election of board members. Notice of every such meeting shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation within the major production area not less than ten days in advance of the date of such meeting and in addition, written notice of every such meeting shall be given to all affected producers according to the list maintained by the director pursuant to RCW 15.65.200 of the act. Nonreceipt of notice by any interested person shall not invalidate the proceedings at such nomination meeting. Any qualified affected producer may be nominated orally for membership on the board at such nomination meetings. Nominations may also be made within five days after any such meetings by written petition filed with the director signed by not less than five affected producers. At the inception of this order nominations may be made at the issuance hearing.

(6) Election of board members.

(a) Members of the board shall be elected by secret mail ballot within the month of ~~(April)~~ November under the supervision of the director. Affected producer members of the board shall be elected by a majority of the votes cast by the affected producers. Each affected producer shall be entitled to one vote.

(b) If a nominee does not receive a majority of the votes on the first ballot a run-off election shall be held

by mail in a similar manner between the two candidates for such position receiving the largest number of votes.

(c) Notice of every election for board membership shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation within the major production area not less than ten days in advance of the date of such election. Not less than ten days prior to every election for board membership, the director shall mail a ballot of the candidates to each affected producer entitled to vote whose name appears upon the list of such affected producers maintained by the director in accordance with RCW 15.65.200. Any other affected producer entitled to vote may obtain a ballot by application to the director upon establishing his qualifications. Nonreceipt of a ballot by any affected producer shall not invalidate the election of any board member.

(7) Vacancies prior to election. In the event of a vacancy on the board, the remaining members shall select a qualified person to fill the unexpired term.

(8) Quorum. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all business and the carrying out of all duties of the board.

(9) Board compensation. No member of the board shall receive any salary or other compensation, but each member shall be reimbursed for actual subsistence and traveling expenses incurred through attendance at meetings or other board activities: PROVIDED, That such expenses shall be authorized by resolution by unanimous approval of the board at a regular meeting.

(10) Powers and duties of the board. The board shall have the following powers and duties:

(a) To administer, enforce and control the provisions of this order as the designee of the director.

(b) To elect a chairman and such other officers as the board deems advisable.

(c) To employ and discharge at its discretion such personnel, including attorneys engaged in the private practice of law subject to the approval and supervision of the attorney general, as the board determines are necessary and proper to carry out the purpose of the order and effectuate the declared policies of the act.

(d) To pay only from moneys collected as assessments or advances thereon the costs arising in connection with the formulation, issuance, administration and enforcement of the order. Such expenses and costs may be paid by check, draft or voucher in such form and in such manner and upon the signature of the person as the board may prescribe.

(e) To reimburse any applicant who has deposited money with the director in order to defray the costs of formulating the order.

(f) To establish a "hop board marketing revolving fund" and such fund to be deposited in a bank or banks or financial institution or institutions, approved for the deposit of state funds, in which all money received by the board except as the amount of petty cash for each day's needs, not to exceed one hundred dollars, shall be deposited each day or as often during the day as advisable.

(g) To keep or cause to be kept in accordance with accepted standards of good accounting practice, accurate records of all assessments, paid outs, moneys and other

financial transactions made and done pursuant to this order. Such records, books and accounts shall be audited at least annually subject to procedures and methods lawfully prescribed by the state auditor. Such books and accounts shall be closed as of the last day of each fiscal year of the state of Washington. A copy of such audit shall be delivered within thirty days after the completion thereof to the governor, the director, the state auditor and the board.

(h) To require a bond of all board members and employees of the board in a position of trust in the amount the board shall deem necessary. The premium for such bond or bonds shall be paid by the board from assessments collected. Such bond shall not be necessary if any such board member or employee is covered by any blanket bond covering officials or employees of the state of Washington.

(i) To prepare a budget or budgets covering anticipated income and expenses to be incurred in carrying out the provisions of the order during each fiscal year.

(j) To establish by resolution, a headquarters which shall continue as such unless and until so changed by the board. All records, books and minutes of board meetings shall be kept at such headquarters.

(k) To adopt rules and regulations of a technical or administrative nature, subject to the provisions of chapter 34.04 RCW (Administrative Procedure Act).

(l) To carry out the provisions of RCW 15.65.510 covering the obtaining of information necessary to effectuate the provisions of the order and the act, along with the necessary authority and procedure for obtaining such information.

(m) To bring actions or proceedings upon joining the director as a party for specific performance, restraint, injunction or mandatory injunction against any person who violates or refuses to perform the obligations or duties imposed upon him by the act or order.

(n) To confer with and cooperate with the legally constituted authorities of other states and of the United States for the purpose of obtaining uniformity in the administration of federal and state marketing regulations, licenses, agreements or orders.

(o) To carry out any other grant of authority or duty provided designees and not specifically set forth in this section.

(11) Procedures for board.

(a) The board shall hold regular meetings, at least quarterly, with the time and date thereof to be fixed by resolution of the board.

(b) The board shall hold an annual meeting, at which time an annual report will be presented. The proposed budget shall be presented for discussion at the meeting. Notice of the annual meeting shall be given by the board at least ten days prior to the meeting by written notice to each producer and by regular wire news services and radio-television press.

(c) The board shall establish by resolution, the time, place and manner of calling special meetings of the board with reasonable notice to the members: PROVIDED, That the notice of any special meeting may be waived by a waiver thereof by each member of the board.

NEW SECTION

WAC 16-532-035 INSPECTION REQUIRED.
 All varieties of hops produced in the state of Washington shall be inspected and certified by the Federal/State Hop Inspection Service for quality and condition when marketed, pursuant to the standards established by the Federal Grain Inspection Service of the United States Department of Agriculture.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 47.56.030 and 47.60.326.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 47.60.326.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 19, 1989.

Dated: December 1, 1988

By: Lue Clarkson
 Administrator

WSR 88-24-029
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(Transportation Commission)
 [Filed December 2, 1988]

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: The adoption of a fare for new passenger-only routes for the Washington state ferry system.

Statutory Authority: RCW 47.60.326.

Summary of Rule: To establish a toll for the passenger-only routes and to change the effective date for all fares to July 1, 1989.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement: H. W. Parker, Assistant Secretary for Marine Transportation.

Person or Organization Proposing Rule and Whether Public, Private or Governmental: Washington State Transportation Commission, governmental.

Agency Comments or Recommendations Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, Fiscal Matters: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: The department has considered this rule and it does not affect industry.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, 47.60.326 and 47.56.030, that the Washington State Transportation Commission intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning establishing a toll for the passenger-only routes and to change the effective date for all fares to July 1, 1989;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Thursday, January 19, 1989, in the Transportation Building, Room 1D2, Olympia, Washington, 98504, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 19, 1989.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 61, Resolution No. 298, filed 5/21/87)

WAC 468-300-010 FERRY PASSENGER TOLLS.

Effective 03:00 a.m. (~~June 21, 1987~~) July 1, 1989

ROUTES	Full Fare	Half Fare**	COMMUTATION
			20 Rides *** ****
Via Passenger-Only Ferry			
Seattle-Vashon			
Seattle-Southworth	• 3.30	1.65	19.80
Seattle-Bremerton			
Via Auto Ferry			
Fauntleroy-Southworth	• 3.30	1.65	19.80
Seattle-Bremerton			
Seattle-Winslow			
Edmonds-Kingston			
Pt. Townsend-Keystone	1.65	.85	19.80
Fauntleroy-Vashon	• 2.15	1.10	12.90
Southworth-Vashon			
Pt. Defiance-Tahlequah			
Mukilteo-Clinton			
Anacortes to Lopez, Shaw, Orcas or Friday Harbor	• — 4.65	2.35	27.90
Anacortes to Sidney and Sidney to all destinations	— 6.05	3.05	N/A
Between Lopez, Shaw, Orcas***** and Friday Harbor	— N/C	N/C	N/C

Effective 03:00 a.m. ((June 21, 1987)) July 1, 1989

ROUTES	Full Fare	Half Fare**	COM- MU- TATION
			20 Rides *** ****

From Lopez, Shaw, Orcas and Friday Harbor@ to Sidney	2.25	1.25	N/A
--	------	------	-----

@These fares rounded to the nearest multiple of \$.25.

*These routes operate as a one-point toll collection system.

**Half Fare

Senior Citizens - Passengers and driver, age 65 and over, with proper identification establishing proof of age, may travel at half-fare tolls on any route. Includes passengers in vehicles licensed as stages and buses unless travelling under annual permit.

NOTE: Half-fare privilege does not include vehicle.

Children - Children under five years of age will be carried free when accompanied by parent or guardian. Children five through eleven years of age will be charged half-fare. Children twelve years of age will be charged full-fare.

Handicapped - Any individual who, by reason of illness, injury, congenital malfunction, or other incapacity or disability is unable without special facilities or special planning or design to utilize ferry system services, may travel at half-fare tolls on any route upon presentation of a WSF handicapped travel permit at time of travel. In addition, those handicapped persons who require attendant care while traveling on the ferries, and are so certified by their physician, may obtain an endorsement on their WSF handicapped travel permit and such endorsement shall allow the attendant to also travel at half fare.

NOTE: Half-fare privilege does not include vehicle.

***A combination ferry/bus public transit passenger monthly reusable ticket rate may be available for a particular route in conjunction with a public transit operating authority whenever it is determined by the transportation commission that said ticket is a necessary element of a transit operating plan designed to eliminate the necessity for assigning an additional ferry to such particular route; and that the resulting savings in ferry system operating and amortized capital costs exceed the total revenue lost as a result of this reduced rate as projected during the period of time during which such transit operating plan is projected to eliminate the need for an additional ferry. The equivalent ferry fare per ride with this special rate shall be one-half the equivalent fare per ride with the standard commutation book, and shall assume 40 one-way trips per month. The total cost of the ticket shall be the cost of the ferry portion, calculated as described above plus the cost of the bus portion as determined by the public transit operating authority, subject to the approval of the secretary of transportation. The ticket shall be valid only for passengers on board a bus; or for walk-on passengers on those routes which have connecting bus service as part of the transit operating plan. The assigning of an additional ferry to such particular route may be cause for removal of the special rate. If the conditions of eliminating the assignment of an additional ferry or realizing sufficient resulting savings cannot be met, the ticket may be sold for any route authorized by the secretary of transportation, at the full ferry commutation fare per ride based on forty one-way trips per month plus the cost of the bus portion.

****Commutation tickets shall be valid only for 90-days from date of purchase after which time the tickets shall not be accepted for passage. Washington state ferries shall enter into agreements with banks to sell commutation tickets.

*****Inter-island passenger fares included in Anacortes tolls.

PROMOTIONAL TOLLS

A promotional rate may be established at the discretion of the secretary of transportation for a specific discount (not to exceed 50 percent of full fare) and effective only at designated times on designated routes (not to exceed 100 days per year on any one route).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 61, Resolution No. 298, filed 5/21/87)

WAC 468-300-020 AUTO, MOTORCYCLE, BICYCLE AND STOWAGE FERRY TOLLS.

Effective 03:00 a.m. ((June 21, 1987)) July 1, 1989

	AUTO** INCL. DRIVER		MOTORCYCLE INCL. DRIVER *****			BICYCLE & RIDER	
	One Way	Commutation 20 Rides ***	One Way	Commutation 20 Rides ***	Full Fare One Way	Half Fare One Way	Commutation 20 Rides ***
Faultleroy-Southworth Seattle-Bremerton Seattle-Winslow Pt. Townsend-Keystone Edmonds-Kingston	5.55	88.80	3.05	40.65	2.30	1.50	23.00
Faultleroy-Vashon Southworth-Vashon Pt. Defiance-Tahlequah	7.50	60.00	4.10	27.35	3.20	2.15	16.00
Mukilteo-Clinton	3.75	60.00 10 Rides	2.05	27.35	1.60	1.10	16.00
Anacortes to Lopez, Shaw, Orcas or Friday Harbor	11.60 13.85 15.85	46.40 55.40 63.40	7.15 8.20 9.50	47.65 54.65 63.35	6.25	3.95	31.25

Effective 03:00 a.m. (~~June 21, 1987~~) July 1, 1989

	AUTO** INCL. DRIVER		MOTORCYCLE INCL. DRIVER *****			BICYCLE & RIDER		
	One Way	Commutation 20 Rides ***	One Way	Commutation 20 Rides ***	Full Fare One Way	Half Fare One Way	Commutation 20 Rides ***	
Anacortes to Sidney and Sidney to all destinations	26.05	N/A	13.15	N/A	8.55	5.55	N/A	
Between Lopez, Shaw, Orcas and Friday Harbor **** @	6.50	26.00	2.25	N/A	2.25	2.25	N/A	
From Lopez, Shaw, Orcas@ and Friday Harbor to Sidney	13.25	N/A	6.00	N/A	3.25	2.25	N/A	

@These fares rounded to the nearest multiple of \$.25.

*These routes operate as a one-point toll collection system.

**Vanpools - A commuter vanpool which carries seven or more persons on a regular and expense-sharing basis for the purpose of travel to or from work or school and which is certified as such by a local organization approved by the Washington state ferry system, may purchase for a \$10 fee, a permit valid for a three-month period on Mondays through Fridays only and valid only during the hours shown on the permit. The permit for commuter pool agency vanpools shall be valid for one year. These hours are selectable by the purchaser but shall designate two periods of use each day not to exceed two hours per period. The permit so purchased shall allow passage of the vehicle only during the valid periods. All riders in the van, including the driver, shall pay the applicable passenger fare. Except that the minimum total paid for all riders in the van shall not be less than the amount equal to seven times the applicable passenger fare.

***Commutation tickets shall be valid only for 90-days from date of purchase after which time the ticket shall not be accepted for passage. Washington state ferries shall enter into agreements with banks to sell commutation tickets.

****Tolls collected westbound only.

***** Carry on items including kayaks, canoes and other items of comparable size which are typically stowed on the vehicle deck of the vessel shall be charged at the motorcycle rate. This rate includes the walk-on passenger carrying on the item to be stowed.

SUMMER SURCHARGE

A 20% surcharge shall be applied to coincide with the summer schedule period to regular, noncommutation auto and noncommercial vehicles with trailers and oversized vehicles.

PENALTY CHARGES

Owner of vehicle without driver will be assessed a \$50.00 penalty charge.

Overhang on passenger vehicles will be assessed a penalty charge of 10¢ per lineal foot of overhang in addition to regular applicable tolls, except that no charge for overhang will be assessed when overall length of vehicle and overhang is less than twenty feet. A fraction of a foot of overhang in excess of six inches will be counted as one foot in assessment of charge for overhang.

SPECIAL SCHOOL RATE

School groups when traveling in authorized school vehicles for institution-sponsored activities shall be assessed a flat fee of \$1.00 per vehicles load of students and/or advisors and staff. The flat fee shall be in addition to regular vehicle and drive toll. Private vehicles need letter of authorization.

NOTE: Special school rate is \$2.00 on routes where one-way only toll systems are in effect. Special student Rate not available on Anacortes-Sidney, B.C. route beginning the third Sunday in June and ending the third Saturday in September due to limited space.

PROMOTIONAL TOLLS

A promotional rate may be established at the discretion of the secretary of transportation for a specified discount (not to exceed 50 percent of full fare) and effective only at designated times on designated routes (not to exceed 100 days per year on any one route).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 61, Resolution No. 298, filed 5/21/87)

WAC 468-300-040 TRUCKS AND TRUCKS WITH TRAILER FERRY TOLLS.

Effective 03:00 a.m. (~~June 21, 1987~~) July 1, 1989

ROUTES	INCL. DRIVER OVERALL UNIT LENGTH								Cost Per Ft. over 78 Ft.
	Class I *** Under 18'	Class II 18' to Under 28'	Class III 28' to Under 38'	Class IV 38' to Under 48'	Class V 48' to Under 58'	Class VI 58' to Under 68'	Class VII 68' to Under 78'	Class VIII Over 78'	
Fauntleroy-Southworth Seattle-Bremerton Seattle-Winslow Pt. Townsend-Keystone Edmonds-Kingston	5.55	9.40	18.65	27.85	37.10	46.35	55.50	55.50	.80
Fauntleroy-Vashon Southworth-Vashon Pt. Defiance-Tahlequah	7.50	13.20	26.20	39.00	51.90	64.90	77.90	77.90	1.10

Effective 03:00 a.m. (~~June 21, 1987~~) July 1, 1989

ROUTES	INCL. DRIVER OVERALL UNIT LENGTH								Cost Per Ft. over 78 Ft.
	Class I *** Under 18'	Class II 18' to Under 28'	Class III 28' to Under 38'	Class IV 38' to Under 48'	Class V 48' to Under 58'	Class VI 58' to Under 68'	Class VII 68' to Under 78'	Class VIII Over 78'	
Mukilteo-Clinton	3.75	6.60	13.10	19.50	25.95	32.45	38.95	38.95	.55
**Anacortes to Lopez, Shaw, Orcas * or Friday Harbor	11.60 13.85 15.85	22.45	44.65	66.80	88.95	111.20	133.35	133.35	1.85
Anacortes to Sidney **and Sidney to all destinations	26.05	34.20	57.70	81.20	104.75	128.40	151.95	151.95	2.10
Between Lopez, Shaw, Orcas **@ and Friday Harbor	6.50	11.00	11.00	11.00	44.00	44.00	44.00	44.00	N/A
**From Lopez, Shaw, Orcas and Friday Harbor to Sidney@	13.25	20.00	34.00	48.00	61.50	75.50	89.25	89.25	1.00

@These fares rounded to the nearest multiple of \$.25.

*These routes operate as a one-point toll collection system.

**Commercial trucks are allowed stop-over at intermediate points upon payment of \$2.50 per stop-over.

***Includes all trucks licensed 8,001 lbs. gross vehicle weight and above, except busses. Trucks under 8,001 lbs. will be classified as automobiles.

Also includes all trucks licensed 8,001 lbs. gross vehicle weight and above pulling trailers, unlicensed vehicles and road machinery on wheels. Vehicles not included in this class cannot be charged under this class.

****Toll collected westbound only.

PENALTY CHARGES

Owner of vehicle without driver will be assessed a \$50.00 penalty charge.

DISCOUNT PERCENTAGES FROM REGULAR TOLL

12 or more, one-way crossings per week (Sunday thru Saturday) will qualify for a 25% discount from the regular ferry tolls.

Emergency trips during nonservice hours - while at locations where crew is on duty charge shall be equal to the cost of fuel consumed to make emergency trip. Such trips shall only be offered as a result of official requests from an emergency services agency and only in the case of no reasonable alternative.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 61, Resolution No. 298, filed 5/21/87)

WAC 468-300-070 NONCOMMERCIAL VEHICLE WITH TRAILER, OVERSIZE VEHICLE, STAGE AND BUS, NEWSPAPER, EXPRESS SHIPMENTS AND MEDICAL SUPPLIES FERRY TOLLS.

Effective 03:00 a.m. (~~June 21, 1987~~) July 1, 1989

Noncommercial Vehicle with Trailer, Oversize Vehicle, Stage and Bus, Newspaper, Express Shipments and Medical Supplies Ferry Tolls***

	Under 18'	18' To Under 28'	28' To Under 38'	38' To Under 48'	48' And Over	Stages And Buses Incl. Driver **
Seattle-Winslow Seattle-Bremerton Edmonds-Kingston Pt. Townsend-Keystone Fauntleroy-Southworth	5.55	8.35	11.25	15.90	20.50	12.25
Fauntleroy-Vashon Southworth-Vashon Pt. Defiance-Tahlequah	7.50	11.40	15.80	22.20	28.80	15.70
Mukilteo-Clinton Anacortes to Lopez, Shaw, Orcas * or Friday Harbor	3.75 11.60 13.85 15.85	5.70 20.45	7.90 27.05	11.10 38.10	14.40 49.20	7.85 33.30
Anacortes to Sidney and Sidney to all destinations	26.05	33.10	38.85	50.60	62.35	48.50

Effective 03:00 a.m. (~~June 21, 1987~~) July 1, 1989

Noncommercial Vehicle with Trailer, Oversize Vehicle,
Stage and Bus, Newspaper, Express Shipments and
Medical Supplies Ferry Tolls***

	Under 18'	18' To Under 28'	28' To Under 38'	38' To Under 48'	48' And Over	Stages And Buses Incl. Driver **
Between Lopez, Shaw, Orcas and Friday Harbor ****@	6.50	11.00	11.00	11.00	44.00	11.00
From Lopez, Shaw, Orcas and Friday Harbor to Sidney@	13.25	18.25	22.50	29.50	36.50	15.50

(1) BULK NEWSPAPERS per 100 lbs. \$2.20

(Shipments exceeding 60,000 lbs. in any month shall be assessed \$1.10 per 100 lbs.)

Daily Newspapers, in bundles, and medical supplies, to be received and delivered without receipt and subject to owner's risk, will be transported between ferry terminals on regular scheduled sailings.

(2) EXPRESS SHIPMENTS per 100 lbs. \$20.90

(Shipments exceeding 100 lbs. assessed \$8.30 for each 25 lbs. or fraction thereof.)

Express shipments will be handled on scheduled sailings when no other means of shipment is available to shipper. Shipments must be of a size and weight requiring a minimum of handling by carrier's employees. Carrier reserves the right to refuse shipment of any item. Carrier assumes no liability for loss or damage to any shipment. Minimum rate for any shipment shall be the rate for 100 pounds.

San Juan inter-island express shipments will be handled @ \$2.80 per 100 lbs.

(3) MEDICAL SUPPLIES per 100 lbs. \$1.15

@These fares rounded to the nearest multiple of \$.25.

*These routes operate as a one-point toll collection system.

**Stages - A public transportation operator providing regularly scheduled week-day service for public necessity and convenience may pay a \$10 annual fee for each scheduled vehicle. This fee covers the fare for each trip of the vehicle and operator only. All occupants shall be assessed the applicable passenger rate per trip. The \$10 annual fee does not apply to vehicles providing chartered service or vehicles providing service for special events such as trips for recreational purposes.

PENALTY CHARGES

Owner of vehicle without driver will be assessed a \$50.00 penalty charge.

***INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING VEHICLES PULLING TRAILERS:

- Automobiles
- Trucks licensed under 8,001 lbs. (For trucks 8,001 lbs. and over, see WAC 468-300-040)
- Oversize vehicles
- Does not include motorcycles with trailers.

Also includes motor homes, and mobile campers that exceed eight feet in height and 18' in length. Excludes trucks licensed over 8,000 lbs., passenger busses and stages. All oversize vehicles under 18' in length will be considered as regular car and driver.

****Toll collected westbound only.

Senior citizen discounts for the driver of the above vehicles shall apply.

Senior citizen discount is determined by subtracting full fare passenger rate and adding 1/2 passenger fare.

SUMMER SURCHARGE

A 20% surcharge shall be applied to coincide with this summer schedule period to regular, noncommutation auto and noncommercial vehicles with trailers and oversize vehicles.

WSR 88-24-030

ADOPTED RULES

BASIC HEALTH PLAN

[Order 88-001—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Thomas L. Kobler, director of the Washington Basic Health Plan, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to this notice proposes to establish a new chapter 55-01 WAC, Washington Basic Health Plan (BHP), and several new sections within that chapter. These rules address the health care benefits to be made available to the public through the BHP, the basis upon which premium

charges will be established, and the process whereby individuals may apply for enrollment. Eligibility for enrollment and reasons for disenrollment are also addressed. Procedures for the resolution of disputes are described, as are provisions whereby the administrator may contract with managed health care systems. An additional section defines terms to be used in the rules.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-116 filed with the code reviser on October 19, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 70.47.050 which directs that the Washington Basic Health Plan has authority to implement the provisions of chapter 70.47 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.

By Thomas L. Kobler
Director

Chapter 55-01 WAC
WASHINGTON BASIC HEALTH PLAN

WAC

55-01-001	Authority.
55-01-010	Definitions.
55-01-020	Schedule of benefits.
55-01-030	Premiums and copayments.
55-01-040	Eligibility.
55-01-050	Enrollment in the plan.
55-01-060	Disenrollment from the plan.
55-01-070	Hearings and grievances.
55-01-080	Contracts with managed health care systems.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-001 AUTHORITY. The administrator's authority to promulgate and adopt rules is contained in RCW 70.47.050.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-010 DEFINITIONS. The following definitions apply throughout these rules.

(1) "Administrator" means the Washington basic health plan administrator.

(2) "Certificate of coverage" means a written document issued by the plan to a subscriber which describes the covered services, premiums, grievance procedures and other rights and responsibilities of enrollees. The certificate of coverage issued to a subscriber shall pertain to the subscriber and family dependents.

(3) "Co-payment" means a payment indicated in the schedule of benefits which is made by an enrollee to a managed health care system or health care provider, or to the plan, when specifically instructed to do so by the plan, for covered services provided to the enrollee.

(4) "Covered services" means those services and benefits to which an enrollee is entitled, under the certificate of coverage issued by the plan to the enrollee (or to a subscriber on behalf of the enrollee), in exchange for payment of premium and applicable copayments.

(5) "Dependent child" means an individual's unmarried natural child, stepchild, or legally adopted child, who is either (a) younger than age nineteen, or (b) younger than age twenty-three and (i) is a full-time student at an educational organization which normally maintains a regular faculty and curriculum and normally has a regularly enrolled body of pupils or students in attendance at the place where its educational activities are regularly carried on, or (ii) is pursuing a full-time course of institutional on-farm training under the supervision of an educational organization described in WAC 55-01-010 (5)(b)(i).

(6) "Enrollee" means a person who meets all eligibility requirements, who is enrolled in the plan, and for whom applicable premium payments have been made.

(7) "Family" means an individual or an individual and the individual's spouse, if not legally separated, and the individual's dependent children. For purposes of eligibility determination and enrollment in the plan, an individual cannot be a member of more than one family.

(8) "Family dependent" means a subscriber's legal spouse, if not legally separated, or the subscriber's dependent child, who meets all eligibility requirements, is enrolled in the plan, and for whom the applicable premium has been paid.

(9) "Grievance procedure" means the formal process for resolution of problems or concerns raised by enrollees which cannot be resolved in an informal manner to the enrollee's satisfaction. "Grievance" means a problem or concern presented for resolution through a grievance procedure.

(10) "Gross family income" means the total income of all members of an enrollee's family, regardless of whether those family members enroll in the plan. For purposes of this definition, "income" includes but is not limited to wages and salaries, net income from rentals or self-employment, tips, interest income, dividends, royalties, public or private pensions, and Social Security benefits. For purposes of this definition, "income" shall not include income of dependent children, nor shall it include income of a family member who resides in another household when such income is not available to those family members seeking enrollment in the plan.

(11) "Managed health care system" (or "MHCS") means any health care organization, including health care providers, insurers, health care service contractors, health maintenance organizations, or any combination thereof, that provides directly or by contract basic health care services, as defined by the administrator and rendered by duly licensed providers, on a prepaid capitated basis to a defined patient population enrolled in the plan and in the managed health care system.

(12) "Medicare" means programs established by Title XVIII of public law 89-97, as amended, "Health Insurance for the Aged and Disabled."

(13) "Open enrollment" means a time period designated by the administrator during which enrollees may apply to transfer their membership from one participating managed health care system to another. There shall be at least one open enrollment period of at least twenty consecutive days, at least once annually, in each site served by the plan.

(14) "Participating," when referring to a managed health care system, means one that has entered into a contract with the plan to provide covered services to enrollees. When referring to a health care provider, "participating" means one who is employed by or has entered into a contract with a participating managed health care system to provide covered services to enrollees.

(15) "Premium" means a periodic payment, based upon gross family income and determined under RCW 70.47.060(2), which a subscriber makes to the plan on behalf of the subscriber and family dependents in consideration for enrollment in the plan.

(16) "Provider" or "health care provider" means a health care professional or institution duly licensed and accredited to provide covered services in the State of Washington.

(17) "Rate" means the per capita amount, negotiated by the administrator with and paid to a participating managed health care system, that is based upon the enrollment of enrollees in the plan and in that MHCS.

(18) "Schedule of benefits" means the basic health care services adopted and from time to time amended by the administrator, which enrollees shall be entitled to receive from participating managed health care systems.

(19) "Service area" means the geographic area served by a participating managed health care system as defined in its contract with the plan.

(20) "Site" means a geographic area designated by the plan in which one or more participating managed health care systems are offered to enrollees for selection.

(21) "Subscriber" means an enrollee, or the parent or legal guardian of an enrolled dependent child, who has been designated by the plan as the individual to whom the plan and the managed health care system will issue all notices, information requests and premium bills on behalf of all enrolled family members. For purposes of Chapter 55-01 WAC, notice to a subscriber shall be considered notice to all enrolled members of the subscriber's family as well.

(22) "Subsidy" means the difference between the rate paid by the administrator, from funds appropriated from the basic health plan trust account, to a managed health care system on behalf of an enrollee and the enrollee's premium responsibility.

(23) "Washington Basic Health Plan" or "plan" means the system of enrollment and payment on a pre-paid capitated basis for basic health care services, administered by the plan administrator through participating managed health care systems, created by chapter 70.47 RCW.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-020 SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS.

(1) The administrator shall design and from time to time may revise a schedule of benefits which shall include such physician services, inpatient and outpatient hospital services, proven preventive and primary care services, all services necessary for prenatal, postnatal and well-child care, and other services as determined by the administrator to be necessary for basic health care and which enrollees shall receive in return for premium payments to the plan and payment of required copayments. The schedule of benefits may include copayments, limitations and exclusions which the administrator determines are appropriate and consistent with the goals and objectives of the plan.

(2) In designing and revising the schedule of benefits, the administrator will consider the effects of particular benefits, copayments, limitations and exclusions on access to necessary basic health care services, as well as the cost to the enrollees and to the state, and will also consider generally accepted practices of the health insurance and managed health care industries.

(3) Prior to enrolling in the plan, each applicant will be given a complete written description of covered benefits, including all copayments, limitations and exclusions. Enrollees will also be given information on the services, providers, facilities, hours of operation, and other information descriptive of the managed health care system(s) available to enrollees in a given site.

(4) Subscribers will be given written notice by the plan of any planned revisions to the benefit package and the accompanying premiums, such notice to be mailed at least thirty days prior to the due date of the premium payment for the month in which such revisions are to take effect. For purposes of this provision, notice shall be deemed complete upon depositing the written revisions in the United States mail, first class postage paid, directed to the enrollee at the enrollee's last mailing address on file with the plan. The administrator will make available a separate schedule of benefits for children, eighteen years of age and younger, for those who choose to enroll only their dependent children in the plan.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-030 PREMIUMS AND COPAYMENTS. (1) Each subscriber shall be responsible for paying a monthly premium to the plan, on behalf of the subscriber and all family dependents, according to a premium schedule to be provided by the plan at the time the subscriber is enrolled by the plan. The amount of premium payable by any subscriber will be based upon the subscriber's gross family income and rates payable to participating managed health care systems, and may vary with the number and ages of individuals enrolled from a given family. Premium amounts payable shall be a monthly dollar payment or a percentage of the total rate payable by the plan. A description of the premium schedule and an estimate of amounts due will accompany the benefits description and application for enrollment provided to applicants.

(2) Based on the information provided by an enrollee on the application for enrollment, and any other information obtained by the plan, the enrollee will be informed of the premium amount due. The plan will notify subscribers in writing of any revisions to the premium schedule or to the premium amounts payable to the plan, such notice to be mailed at least thirty days prior to the due date of the premium payment for the month in which such revisions are to take effect. For purposes of this provision, notice shall be deemed complete upon depositing the written revisions in the United States mail, first class postage paid, directed to the enrollee at the enrollee's last mailing address on file with the plan.

(3) Once the plan has determined that a subscriber and members of the subscriber's family (if any) are eligible for enrollment, the plan will bill the subscriber for the family's first month's premium. The subscriber and family members will not be eligible to receive covered services on the effective date of coverage specified by the plan until the premium bill is paid in full by the due date specified on the bill. Thereafter, the plan will bill each subscriber monthly, and the subscriber shall be responsible for payment of the billed amount in full by the date specified on the bill.

(4) Premium bills must be paid in full by the date specified on the bill. Payment may be made in person at the plan's administrative office in Olympia, Washington, or by mail to the address specified on the bill. If the plan does not receive payment in full of a premium bill by 5:00 p.m. on the date specified on the bill, the plan shall issue a notice of delinquency to the subscriber, at the subscriber's last address on file with the plan, requiring payment in full by a date not less than ten days from the date of the notice. If full payment is not received by the date specified in the delinquency notice, the subscriber and enrolled family members will be disenrolled effective the first day of the month following the last month for which full premium payment was received by the plan. Partial payment of premiums due will be regarded as non-payment. The plan may disenroll a subscriber and enrolled family members in the event that the subscriber receives more than two delinquency notices in a twelve-month period.

(5) Enrollees shall be responsible for paying any required copayment directly to the provider of a covered service, unless the enrollee has been instructed by his or her managed health care system or the plan to make payment to another party. Copayments must be paid in full by the enrollee at the time of service. Failure to pay a required copayment in full at the time of service may result in the denial or rescheduling of that service by the managed health care system. Repeated failure to pay copayments in full on a timely basis may result in disenrollment, as provided in WAC 55-01-060(2).

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-040 ELIGIBILITY. (1) To be eligible for enrollment in the plan, an individual must:

- (a) Be under age sixty-five;
- (b) Not be eligible for medicare;
- (c) Reside within the service area of a participating managed health care system; and
- (d) Have a gross family income at the time of enrollment that does not exceed two hundred percent of the federal poverty level as adjusted for family size and determined annually by the Federal Department of Health and Human Services.

Persons not meeting all of these criteria, as evidenced by information submitted on the application for enrollment or otherwise obtained by the plan, will not be enrolled. An enrollee who subsequently fails to meet all of the criteria will be disenrolled from the plan as provided in WAC 50-01-060—except that an enrollee whose gross family income exceeds twice the federal poverty level may continue as an enrollee for up to six months, provided all other criteria are met and provided that the enrollee pays a monthly premium equal to the rate stated in the contract between the plan and the participating managed health care system selected by the enrollee.

(2) An individual otherwise eligible for enrollment in the plan may be denied enrollment if the administrator has determined that acceptance of additional enrollment in a given service area would exceed limits established by the legislature, would jeopardize the orderly development of the plan in that service area, or would result in

an overexpenditure of plan funds. In the event that the administrator closes enrollment in a given service area, the plan will continue to accept applications for enrollment, but will not process those applications for determination of eligibility. The plan will place the names of applicants on a waiting list in the order in which applications are received, and will so notify the applicants. In the event that enrollment is reopened by the administrator, applicants whose names appear on the waiting list will be notified by the plan of the opportunity to enroll; provided that the plan may require new application forms and documentation from applicants on the waiting list, or may contact applicants to verify continued interest in applying, prior to determining their eligibility.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-050 ENROLLMENT IN THE PLAN. (1) Any individual applying for enrollment in the plan must complete and submit the plan's application for enrollment. Applications for enrollment of children under the age of eighteen must be signed by the child's parent or legal guardian, who shall also be held responsible by the plan for payment of premiums due on behalf of the child.

(2) Each applicant shall complete and sign the application for enrollment, listing family members to be enrolled and supplying such other information as required by the plan. (a) Documentation will be required, showing the amount and sources of applicants' income for the most recent complete calendar month as of the date of application. Applicants will also be required to submit a copy of their most recent federal income tax form. Income documentation shall be required for all income-earning family members, including those not applying for enrollment, except for family members who reside in another household and whose income is not available to the family seeking enrollment, and dependent children. (b) Documentation of residence shall also be required, displaying the applicant's name and address. (c) The plan may request additional information from applicants for purposes of establishing or verifying eligibility, premium responsibility or managed health care system selection. (d) Submission of incomplete or inaccurate information may delay or prevent an applicant's enrollment in the plan. Intentional submission of false information may result in disenrollment of the applicant and all enrolled family members, retroactive to the date upon which coverage began.

(3) Each family applying for enrollment must designate a participating managed health care system from which all enrolled family members will receive covered services. All applicants from the same family must receive covered services from the same managed health care system. No applicant will be enrolled for whom designation of a participating managed health care system has not been made as part of the application for enrollment. The administrator will establish procedures for the selection of managed health care systems, which will include conditions under which an enrollee may change from one managed health care system to another. Such

procedures will allow enrollees to change from one managed health care system to another during open enrollment, or otherwise upon showing of good cause for the transfer.

(4) Except as provided in WAC 55-01-040(2), applications for enrollment will be reviewed by the plan within thirty days of receipt and those applicants satisfying the eligibility criteria and who have provided all required information, documentation and premium payments will be notified of the date upon which they may begin receiving covered services from the plan.

(5) Eligible applicants will be enrolled in the plan in the order in which their completed applications, including all required documentation, have been received by the plan, provided that the applicant has also remitted full payment of the first premium bill to the plan.

(6) Not all family members are required to apply for enrollment in the plan; however, any family member for whom application for enrollment is not made at the same time that other family members apply may not subsequently enroll as a family dependent until the next open enrollment period available to that family member. Eligible newborn and newly adopted children may be enrolled effective from the date of birth or physical placement with the adoptive parents for adoption, provided that application for enrollment is submitted to the plan within thirty days of the date of birth or such placement for adoption. A newly acquired spouse of an enrollee may apply for enrollment within thirty days of the date of marriage and, if found eligible by the plan, will be enrolled on the first of a month following completion of the enrollment process by the plan, provided that the addition of the spouse does not otherwise render the family ineligible for coverage by the plan.

(7) Any enrollee who disenrolls from the plan for reasons other than (a) ineligibility due to an increase in gross family income or (b) coverage by another health care benefits program may not re-enroll in the plan for a period of twelve months from the effective date of disenrollment. An enrollee who disenrolls because of ineligibility due to an increase in gross family income may re-enroll in the event that gross family income subsequently falls to a level which qualifies the enrollee for eligibility. An enrollee who disenrolls because of coverage by another health care benefits program may re-enroll in the event that the enrollee becomes ineligible for such other coverage, provided that the enrollee has been continuously covered since the date of disenrollment from the plan, and provides documentation of such continuous coverage to the plan. Before any person shall be re-enrolled in the plan, that person must complete a new application for enrollment and must be determined by the plan to be otherwise eligible for enrollment as of the date of application.

(8) Once every six months, the plan will request verification of information from enrollees, which may include a request to complete a new application form and submit required documentation. The plan may request information more frequently from an enrollee for the purpose of verifying eligibility if the plan has good cause to believe that the enrollee's income, residence,

family size or other eligibility criteria may have changed since the date on which information was last received by the plan. Enrollees shall be given at least twenty days from the date of any such information request to respond to the request. Failure to comply within the time designated in any information request shall result in a second request from the plan. Failure to respond within the time designated in any second request for information may result in disenrollment of the enrollee. Each enrollee is responsible for notifying the plan within thirty days of any changes which could affect the enrollee's eligibility or premium responsibility.

Reviser's note: The spelling error in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appears herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-060 DISENROLLMENT FROM THE PLAN. (1) An enrollee may disenroll effective the first day of any month by giving the plan at least ten days prior written notice of the intention to disenroll. Re-enrollment in the plan shall be subject to the provisions of WAC 55-01-050(7). The administrator shall also establish procedures for notice by an enrollee of a disenrollment decision, including the date upon which disenrollment shall become effective. Nonpayment of premium by an enrollee shall be considered an indication of the enrollee's intention to disenroll from the plan.

(2) Bases for disenrollment of an enrollee by the plan may include, but shall not be limited to, the following: failure to meet the eligibility requirements set forth in WAC 55-01-040; nonpayment of premium; repeated failure to pay copayments in full on a timely basis; fraud or abuse; intentional misconduct; and refusal to accept or follow procedures or treatment determined by a participating provider to be essential to the health of the enrollee, where the managed health care system demonstrates to the satisfaction of the administrator that no professionally acceptable alternative exists, and the enrollee has been so advised. The plan shall provide the enrollee with advance written notice of its intent to disenroll the enrollee. Such notice shall specify an effective date of disenrollment, which shall be at least ten days from the date of the notice, and shall describe the procedures for disenrollment, including the enrollee's right to appeal the disenrollment decision as set forth in WAC 55-01-070. Prior to the effective date specified, if the enrollee submits a grievance to the plan contesting the disenrollment decision, as provided in WAC 55-01-070(3), disenrollment shall not become effective until the date, if any, established as a result of the plan's grievance procedure, provided that the enrollee otherwise remains eligible and continues to make all premium payments when due.

(3) Any applicant for enrollment in the plan who knowingly provides false information to the plan or to a participating managed health care system may be disenrolled by the plan and may be held financially responsible for any covered services obtained from the plan. The administrator may apply other available remedies as well.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-070 HEARINGS AND GRIEVANCES. The plan will develop procedures for the expeditious resolution of enrollees' grievances, and will require participating managed health care systems to do the same.

(1) If an enrollee has a grievance pertaining to a managed health care system, the enrollee shall exhaust the managed health care system's grievance procedure prior to requesting consideration of the grievance by the plan. The managed health care system's grievance procedure shall provide for expeditious resolution by managed health care system personnel with authority to require corrective action. There shall be a written reply from the managed health care system stating either the decision and its basis, or the reasons for failure to reach a decision, within thirty days of receipt of the written grievance. An enrollee has the right to request consideration of the grievance by the administrator if the final decision is adverse or if written reply is not received within thirty days from the date the managed health care system received the written grievance.

(2) If an enrollee has a grievance pertaining to actions of the plan, the enrollee may submit the grievance to the plan for resolution by the plan's grievance procedure. A written description of the plan's grievance procedure will be provided to the enrollee upon enrollment, or at any time upon request. The plan's grievance procedure shall provide for resolution of the grievance within thirty days of receipt of complete information describing the grievance and its basis.

(3) An enrollee who is involuntarily disenrolled by the plan may contest the disenrollment by submitting a grievance to the plan, within ten days of the notice of disenrollment, for resolution by the plan's grievance procedure. The plan shall issue and mail a written decision within thirty days of receiving the grievance.

(4) An individual whose application for enrollment in the plan is denied may contest the denial of enrollment by submitting a grievance to the plan, within ten days of the notice by the plan of such denial, for resolution by the plan's grievance procedure. The plan shall issue and mail a written decision within thirty days of receiving the grievance.

(5) If the plan's decision resulting from its grievance procedure is adverse to an enrollee or applicant, he or she may, within fifteen days of receiving notice of the grievance decision, request a hearing under chapters 34.04 and 34.12 RCW in order to contest the plan's decision.

NEW SECTION

WAC 55-01-080 CONTRACTS WITH MANAGED HEALTH CARE SYSTEMS. (1) The administrator may enter into a contract with any managed health care system which, in the opinion of the administrator, qualifies for participation in the plan. The administrator shall establish, and may from time to time revise, minimum standards to be satisfied by participating managed health care systems.

(2) No managed health care system may participate in the plan without entering into a written contract with the plan.

(3) The administrator shall develop procedures for the resolution of disputes between the plan and a managed health care system which will be set forth in the contract between the plan and the managed health care system.

WSR 88-24-031**EMERGENCY RULES****DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING**

[Order PM 808—Filed December 2, 1988]

I, Mary G. Faulk, director of the Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the amending of WAC 308-124A-025 and 308-124A-460.

I, Mary G. Faulk, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the procedures and fees for the examinations for a real estate brokers license and a real estate salespersons license are changing as a result of changing the testing agency, effective January 1, 1989. The department will begin accepting applications and fees for the January examinations on December 5, 1988. Thus, these rules need to be in effect.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.85.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 2, 1988.

By John Swannack
for Mary G. Faulk
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 774, filed 9/30/88)

WAC 308-124A-025 APPLICATION PROCESS TO TAKE EXAMINATION. (1) Any person desiring to take an examination for a ~~((real estate broker or))~~ real estate salesperson license, except candidates who are actively licensed in another jurisdiction or were so licensed in the preceding six months(;) or candidates who have received clockhours in another jurisdiction, ~~((or candidates applying for waiver under WAC 308-124A-420,))~~ must submit a completed examination application together with the examination fee and supporting documents, including evidence satisfactory to the department of having successfully completed an approved

thirty clockhour fundamentals course, to the testing service approved by the department. Dishonored checks will be considered as an incomplete application.

(2) Any person desiring to take an examination for a real estate broker license or real estate salesperson license who is actively licensed in another jurisdiction or was so licensed in the preceding six months(;) or who has received clockhours in another jurisdiction(, or candidates applying for waiver under WAC 308-124A-420,) must submit a completed examination application with supporting documents, including evidence satisfactory to the department of having successfully completed any and all approved clockhour courses for licensure, to the licensing division of the department of licensing. After the qualifications for the examination have been verified by the department, the candidate shall submit the completed examination application and examination fee to the testing service approved by the department.

(3) The applicant will be assigned to the first available examination subsequent to determination of eligibility. The cutoff date for eligibility for any specific examination is available to the applicant upon request. ((Any application postmarked after the cutoff date will not be accepted for that examination, but will be assigned to the next available examination.))

(4) An examination candidate who has a completed examination application with the examination walk-in fee and supporting documents, including evidence satisfactory to the department of having successfully completed an approved thirty clockhour fundamentals course for candidates for a salesperson license, may walk-in to an examination if there are adequate space and test booklets after accommodating all candidates who have pre-applied under sections (1) and (2) of this rule. A candidate for a real estate broker license or real estate salesperson license who is actively licensed in another jurisdiction or was so licensed in the preceding six months or who has received clockhours in another jurisdiction must have his or her qualifications for the examination verified by the department as provided in section (2) prior to walking-in to an examination as permitted in this section. The examination walk-in fee shall be paid in the form of a personal check, a cashier's check or money order made payable to the testing service approved by the department. Cash will not be accepted from walk-in candidates.

(5) An applicant shall forfeit all examination fees for any examination or examinations for which the applicant has applied and does not take for any reason, other than through the fault or mistake of the department of licensing.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 673, filed 8/18/87, effective 10/1/87)

WAC 308-124A-460 REAL ESTATE BROKERS AND SALESPERSONS AND LAND DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTATIVE FEES. The following fees shall be charged by the professional licensing division of the department of licensing.

Title of Fee	Fee
Real Estate Broker:	
Application/examination	((\$50.00)) \$60.00
Reexamination	((\$50.00)) 60.00
Walk-in for examination	15.00
Original license	50.00
License renewal	50.00
Late renewal penalty	25.00
Duplicate license	15.00
Certification	25.00
Name or address change	15.00
Real Estate Broker - Branch Office:	
Original license	\$40.00
License renewal	40.00
Late renewal penalty	20.00
Duplicate license	15.00
Name or address change	15.00
Real Estate Salesperson:	
Application/examination	((\$35.00)) \$60.00
Reexamination	((\$35.00)) 60.00
Walk-in for examination	15.00
Original license	35.00
License renewal	35.00
Late renewal penalty	20.00
Duplicate license	15.00
Certification	25.00
Name or address change	15.00
Land Development Representative:	
Registration	\$20.00

WSR 88-24-032

**NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
LOWER COLUMBIA COLLEGE**

[Memorandum—November 30, 1988]

Following is a list of meeting dates which were approved by the Community College District 13 board of trustees on November 9. All regular meetings are scheduled to begin at 7:00 p.m., on the second Wednesday of each month.

- January 11, 1989
- February 8, 1989
- March 8, 1989
- April 12, 1989
- May 10, 1989
- June 14, 1989
- July 12, 1989
- August 9, 1989
- September 13, 1989
- October 11, 1989
- November 8, 1989
- December 13, 1989

WSR 88-24-033**ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINION****Cite as: AGO 1988 No. 29**

[December 1, 1988]

**JUDGES—COMPENSATION—OFFICES AND OFFICERS—
COUNTIES**

1. A county may lawfully eliminate its provision of medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to its superior court judges when the judges, who are also state officers, receive similar benefits from the state.
2. Where superior court judges as state officers are receiving health and life insurance benefits from the state, a county is not legally required to provide superior court judges with the same type of benefits, whether or not the state benefits are as comprehensive as those offered by the county to its other officers and employees.

Requested by:

Mr. Gary Tomlinson
 Court Administrator
 Superior Court of the State
 of Washington for King County
 Seattle, Washington 98104

WSR 88-24-034**NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS****WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY**

[Memorandum—December 2, 1988]

It has become necessary for the board of regents of Washington State University to change the date of the March 1989, meeting. Originally, the regents had planned to meet in Pullman on March 27. The meeting has now been rescheduled to March 31, 1989, in Pullman. This meeting will be held at the Wilson Compton Union Building, and it will begin at 8:00 a.m.

WSR 88-24-035**PROPOSED RULES****LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD**

[Filed December 6, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Liquor Control Board intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning conduct on licensed premises, amending WAC 314-16-120;

that the agency will at 9:30 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Offices of the Liquor Control Board, Capital Plaza Building, 5th Floor, 1025 East Union Avenue, Olympia, WA 98504, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 66.08.030 and 66.98.070.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 66.08.050(10) and 66.08.010.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 12, 1989.

Dated: December 5, 1988

By: L. H. Pedersen

Chairman

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: WAC 314-16-120 Conduct on licensed premises.

Description of Purpose: To add a new subsection which provides liquor licensees the option of adopting house rules which are more restrictive than the minimum rules of conduct as presently stated in subsections (2), (3) and (4); and to amend subsection (3) to make it a violation for a licensee to engage in or knowingly permit any employee or other person to engage in conduct on property adjacent to the licensed premises under control of the licensee which is prohibited by any portion of Title 9, 9A or 69 RCW. Subsection (3) presently regulates conduct on the licensed premises only.

Statutory Authority: RCW 66.08.030 and 66.98.070.

Statutes Implemented by the Rule: RCW 66.08.050(10) and 66.08.010.

Summary of Rule: The rule presently makes it a violation for a licensee to engage in or knowingly permit any employee or other person to engage in any conduct on the licensed premises which is prohibited by any portion of Title 9 or 9A RCW or Title 69 RCW. The rule further provides that no licensee or employee shall be disorderly, boisterous or intoxicated on the licensed premises or on any adjacent public premises which are under the licensee's control or permit any disorderly or boisterous person thereon. The rule also makes it a violation for a licensee or employee thereof to consume any liquor while working on the licensed premises and prohibits licensees or employees thereof from using or allowing the use of profane or vulgar language when there is a clear and present danger of disorderly conduct being provoked by such language.

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: The board has determined that it is necessary that liquor licensees be aware that they may implement, when necessary, house rules regulating conduct which are more restrictive than the presently stated board rules in order to prevent violations on the licensed premises. The board after considering significant input from the Seattle Police Department believes that effective law enforcement requires that licensees be held accountable when they engage in or knowingly permit any employee or other person to engage in conduct on the licensed premises or on property adjacent to the licensed premises under the control of the licensee which conduct is prohibited by any portion of Titles 9, 9A and 69 RCW.

Agency Personnel Involved: In addition to the board, the following agency personnel has responsibility for drafting, implementing and enforcing this rule amendment: Gary W. Gilbert, Chief, Enforcement Division, Capital Plaza Building, Olympia, Washington 98504, phone (206) 586-3052.

Person or Organization Proposing the Rule Amendment: The Washington State Liquor Control Board.

Agency Comments: None.

Necessity of Rule: Not made necessary as a result of federal law or federal or state court action.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: There will be no negative cost impact for this rule amendment.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 262, Resolution No. 271, filed 10/5/88)

WAC 314-16-120 CONDUCT ON LICENSED PREMISES.

(1) It is the duty and responsibility of the licensee to control his/her conduct and the conduct of employees and patrons at all times. The prohibitions in subsections (2), (3), and (4) of this section are minimum rules of conduct. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent the licensee from adopting such additional more restrictive house rules as may be necessary to adequately regulate such conduct in order to prevent violations of the laws or rules of the board.

(2) No licensee, or employee thereof, shall be disorderly, boisterous or intoxicated on the licensed premises, or on any public premises adjacent thereto which are under the licensee's control, nor shall any licensee, or employee thereof, permit any disorderly or boisterous person to be thereon; nor shall any licensee, or employee thereof, use or allow the use of profane or vulgar language thereon when there is a clear and present danger of disorderly conduct being provoked by such language.

~~((2))~~ (3) No licensee, or employee thereof, shall consume liquor of any kind while working on the licensed premises. (See WAC 314-16-050, Hours of operation.)

~~((3))~~ (4) No licensee shall engage in, or knowingly permit any employee or other person to engage in, conduct on the licensed premises or on property adjacent to the licensed premises under the control of the licensee which is prohibited by any portion of Titles 9, or 9A, or 69 RCW.

WSR 88-24-036

EMERGENCY RULES

DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE

[Order 372—Filed December 6, 1988]

I, Curt Smitch, director of the Department of Wildlife, do promulgate and adopt at the Department of Wildlife, 600 Capitol Way North, Olympia, WA 98504, the annexed rules relating to closure of special deer hunting season, adopting WAC 232-28-21707.

I, Curt Smitch, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is in the summer of 1988, wildfire burned 58,000 acres of mule deer winter range east of the Wenatchee River in Game Management Unit 316 (Swakane) and forage to support wintering deer is inadequate. Emergency WAC 232-28-21705 established a special hunting season to remove deer to reduce damage and prevent malnutrition. The director has determined that 300 deer will have been taken by noon on December 6, 1988, so pursuant to WAC 232-28-21705, the special deer hunting season shall be closed at that time.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser:

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.150 and WAC 232-28-21705 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 5, 1988.

By Curt Smitch
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-21707 CLOSURE OF SPECIAL DEER HUNTING SEASON. Effective December 6, 1988 at 12:00 noon, the special deer hunting season in the Swakane Valley established by emergency WAC 232-28-21705 is hereby closed.

WSR 88-24-037

PROPOSED RULES

BUILDING CODE COUNCIL

[Filed December 6, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Building Code Council intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning the Washington State Energy Code, chapter 51-12 WAC, as proposed by interested parties.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 20, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 19.27.074 and 19.27A.020.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is chapter 19.27A RCW.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 15, 1989.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 88-14-114 filed with the code reviser's office on July 6, 1988.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Lynn Carmichael
Chair

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: Proposed amendments to the Washington State Energy Code.

Description of Purpose: The State Building Code Council is continuing rule making on the energy code to provide additional opportunity for public input on several new amendments proposed to the council by interested parties.

Statutory Authority: RCW 19.27.074.

Specific Statute Rule is Intended to Implement: Chapter 19.27A RCW.

Summary of Rule: The following amendments are proposed: Exemption from the energy code for detached greenhouses; correction of typographical errors; combustion air requirements for solid fuel burning appliances including adding definitions of woodstoves, solid-fuel

burning appliances and fireplaces; exemption from cooling load modeling for low-rise residential buildings not installing cooling load; changes to align Tables 4-2, 4-3, 4-4, 6-1 and 6-5 with federal labeling standards for insulated sheathing; changes to align Section 601 with federal labeling requirements for insulated sheathing; increase double glazing air space requirement in Section 605 (b) to one-half inch; and change ventilation requirements in Section 305.

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: Interested parties contend that changes are necessary to meet legislative intent for the energy code. In addition, several changes to other sections of the code have been proposed in order to keep all sections of the energy code consistent with proposed changes. The continuance has been requested to allow additional public review of the proposed changes as per chapter 34.04 RCW.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, Implementing and Enforcement: Willy O'Neil, Energy Committee Staff, State Building Code Council, 9th and Columbia Building, Mailstop GH-51, Olympia, Washington 98504-4151, (206) 586-0486, 321-0486 scan.

Person or Organization Proposing Rule, and Whether Public, Private or Governmental: Washington State Energy Office, governmental; City of Seattle, governmental; Robert Johnson, private; and Dow Chemical Company, private.

Agency Comments or Recommendations Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, Fiscal Matters: None.

Whether Rule is Necessary as Result of Federal Law or Federal or State Court Action: No.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: A preliminary economic analysis of the Washington State Energy Code was completed by the Washington State Energy Office in January 1988. The final analysis is due for publication in January 1989. Copies of the analysis, "*Report to the Legislature Cost-effectiveness of the Washington State Energy Code*" are available from the Washington State Energy Office.

Several of the proposed rule changes may affect framing contractors, window manufacturers and installers, and heating, ventilation and air conditioning installers, respectively.

No economic analysis of the energy code has been performed to determine the "cost per employee, cost per hour labor or cost per one hundred dollars of sales." Additional studies to determine the effect of the proposed changes on small contractors are needed.

Several of the proposed energy code changes may have an economic impact on small businesses. Based upon the finding of cost-effectiveness of the measures under consideration, the builder should have no difficulty passing those additional costs through to the consumer, who in turn should experience a positive net financial impact from the proposed changes.

PROPOSED CHANGES TO SECTION 605(b)

There is no available data to determine the small business economic impact of increasing the air space required for double glazed windows from 1/4- to 1/2-

inch. Previous cost-effectiveness analyses by the Washington State Energy Office have determined that double glazed windows with a 1/2-inch air space are more cost-effective than windows with a 1/4-inch air space to consumers. Costs per one hundred dollars of product may increase slightly, depending on current practice. Equipment, labor, and administrative costs would be unchanged.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Resolution No. 86-17, filed 9/23/86)

WAC 51-12-102 SECTION 102. SCOPE.

This Code sets forth minimum requirements for the design of new buildings and structures that provide facilities or shelter for public assembly, educational, business, mercantile, institutional, storage and residential occupancies, as well as those portions of factory and industrial occupancies designed primarily for human occupancy by regulating their exterior envelopes and the selection of their HVAC, service water heating, electrical distribution and illuminating systems and equipment for effective use of energy.

Buildings shall be designed to comply with the requirements of either Chapter 4, 5, or 6 of this Code.

(a) **Exempt Buildings.** Buildings and structures or portions thereof meeting any of the following criteria shall be exempt from the building envelope requirements of Sections 402 to 405 inclusive, and Sections 601 and 605, but shall comply with all other requirements for building mechanical systems, service water heating and lighting systems.

1. Buildings and structures or portions thereof whose peak design rate of energy usage is less than three and four tenths (3.4) Btu/h per square foot or one point zero (1.0) watt per square foot of floor area for all purposes.
2. Buildings and structures or portions thereof which are neither heated according to the definition of heated space in chapter 2, nor cooled, by a depletable energy source, including buildings heated with wood with installed back-up or supplemental heating utilizing a depletable energy source provided that: The depletable energy use for space conditioning complies with the requirements of exemption (1).
3. Greenhouses that are isolated from any conditioned space and not intended for occupancy.

(b) **Application to Existing Buildings.**

1. **Additions to Existing Buildings.** Additions to existing buildings or structures may be made to such buildings or structures without making the entire building or structure comply, provided that the new additions shall conform to the provisions of this Code.
2. **Historic Buildings.** The Building Official may modify the specific requirements of this Code for historic buildings and require in lieu thereof alternate requirements which will result in a reasonable degree of energy efficiency. This modification may be allowed for those buildings which have been specifically designated as historically significant by the state or local governing body, or listed in "The National Register of Historic Places" or which have been determined to be eligible for listing.
3. **Alterations and Repairs.** All alterations and repairs to buildings or portions thereof originally constructed subject to the requirements of this 1986 Code shall conform to the provisions of this Code without exception. For all other existing buildings, initial tenant alterations shall comply with the new construction requirements of this Code. Other alterations and repairs may be made to existing buildings and moved buildings without making the entire building comply with all of the requirements of this Code for new buildings, provided the following requirements are met:

A. **Building Envelope.** The result of the alterations or repairs (1) improves the energy efficiency of

the building and (2) complies with the overall average thermal transmittance values of the gross area of the elements of the exterior building envelope in Table 4-2, 4-3, or 4-4 of Chapter 4 or the nominal R values in Tables 6-1 or 6-5 and U values in Table 6-2 or glazing requirements in Table 6-5 of Chapter 6.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Untested storm windows may be installed over existing glazing, however, where glass and sash are being replaced in low-rise residential buildings, class 75 glazing shall be installed where there is an electric resistance space heating system and class 90 glazing shall be installed where there is any other space heating system.
 2. Where the structural elements of the altered portions of roof/ceiling, wall or floor are not being replaced, these elements shall be deemed to comply with this Code if all existing framing cavities which are exposed during construction are filled to the full depth with batt insulation or insulation having an equivalent nominal R value while, for roof/ceilings, maintaining the required space for ventilation. Existing roof/ceilings, walls and floors without framing cavities need not be insulated.
- B. Building Mechanical Systems. Those parts of systems which are altered or replaced shall comply with this Code.

EXCEPTION: For low-rise residential buildings not initially subject to the requirements of this Code, replacement heat pumps shall meet class 2 efficiencies specified in Table 6-3 and replacement central combustion heating equipment shall be equipped with spark ignition. All other replacement combustion heating equipment including horizontal furnaces shall have a minimum AFUE of .65.

- C. Service Water Heating. Those parts of systems which are altered or replaced shall comply with Section 420.
- D. Lighting. Those parts of systems which are altered or replaced in buildings initially constructed subject to the requirements of this Code shall comply with Sections 425 and 426. Other remodels or replacements of lighting systems which are part of a substantial remodel shall comply with Sections 425 and 426. In addition, other remodels or replacements which affect the lighting system of an entire floor shall comply with Sections 425 and 426. For all other remodels or replacements which affect the lighting system of less than an entire floor those parts of systems which are altered or replaced shall comply with the switching requirements of Section 425 and, unless they comply with the lighting power budgets of Section 426 shall either maintain or reduce the watts per square foot of installed lighting.
- E. Change From Unheated to Heated Space. Changes from unheated to heated space for buildings, structures or portions thereof shall be permitted if the building, structure or portion thereof is brought into compliance with the building envelope requirements as per Section 102(b)3 of this Code, but in no case, less than those building envelope requirements in effect at the time of the initial construction of the building.

The Building Official may approve designs of alterations or repairs which do not fully conform with all of the requirements of this Code when in his/her opinion full conformance is physically impossible and/or economically impractical and: (1) the alteration or repair improves the energy efficiency of the building; or (2) the alteration or repair is energy efficient and is necessary for the health, safety, and welfare of the general public.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-14, filed 11/26/85)

WAC 51-12-206 SECTION 206. F. ~~((RESERVED))~~
FIREPLACE. (1) Any permanently installed masonry fireplace or;

(2) Any factory-built metal solid fuel burning device designed to be used with an open combustion chamber and without features to control the air to fuel ratio.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-14, filed 11/26/85)

WAC 51-12-219 SECTION 219. S.

SEQUENCE. A consecutive series of operations.

SERVICE SYSTEMS. All energy-using systems in a building that are operated to provide services for the occupants or processes housed therein, including HVAC, service water heating, illumination, transportation, cooking or food preparation, laundering or similar functions.

SERVICE WATER HEATING. Supply of hot water for domestic or commercial purposes other than comfort heating.

SERVICE WATER HEATING DEMAND. The maximum design rate of energy withdrawal from a service water heating system in a designated period of time (usually an hour or a day).

SHADED. External protection of glazing area from direct solar radiation by use of devices permanently affixed to the structure or by an adjacent building, topographical feature or vegetation.

SHALL. Where shall is used in specific provision, that provision is mandatory.

SHOULD. Not mandatory but desirable as good practice.

SKYLIGHT. A clear or translucent panel or slope set in the plane of a roof to admit daylight into the interior of a building.

SLAB ON GRADE (in a heated space). Any portion of a slab poured in contact with the ground where the top of the finished slab is less than 12 inches below the final elevation of the nearest exterior grade.

SOLAR ENERGY SOURCE. Source of thermal, chemical or electrical energy derived directly from conversion of incident solar radiation.

SOLID FUEL BURNING APPLIANCE. Any device for burning wood, coal, or any other nongaseous and nonliquid fuel, including woodstove and fireplace.

SUBSTANTIALLY REMODELED OR REHABILITATED. Any alteration or restoration of a building or structure within any 12 month period, the cost of which exceeds 60 percent of the current replacement value of the particular building or structure.

SYSTEM. A combination of equipment and/or controls, accessories, interconnecting means, and terminal elements by which energy is transformed so as to perform a specific function, such as HVAC, service water heating or illumination.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-14, filed 11/26/85)

WAC 51-12-223 SECTION 223. W X Y Z.

WINDOW THERMAL TESTING. U values for Class 75 or Class 60 glazing shall be the tested values for thermal transmittance due to conduction resulting from either the American Architectural Manufacturers Association (AAMA) 1503.1-1980 test procedure or the American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) C236 or C976 test procedures; testing shall be conducted under established winter horizontal heat flow test conditions using the 15 mph wind speed and product sample sizes specified under AAMA 1503.1-1980. Testing shall be conducted by a certified testing laboratory. Sealed insulating glass, where used, shall conform to ASTM E-774-81 level C or better.

WOODSTOVE. A solid fuel burning device other than a fireplace, including any fireplace insert, wood stove, wood burning heater, wood stick boiler, coal-fired furnace, coal stove, or similar device burning any solid fuel used for aesthetic or space-heating purposes in a private residence or commercial establishment, which has a heat output less than one million British thermal units per hour. The term "woodstove" does not apply to cook stoves.

EXCEPTION: U values for site built fixed lites shall use window thermal test results when available. If tested results are unavailable, the Building Official shall require documentation based on a tested value of a comparable window.

ZONE. A space or group of spaces within a building with heating and/or cooling requirements sufficiently similar so that comfort conditions can be maintained throughout by a single controlling device.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-14, filed 11/26/85)

WAC 51-12-305 SECTION 305. -VENTILATION.

The outdoor air quantities specified in Table 3-1 for each type of occupancy shall be used as a minimum for design. These quantities are for 100 percent outdoor air ventilating systems, but a reduction to 33 percent of the specified values for recirculating HVAC systems is permitted. In no case, shall the outdoor air quantities be less than 5 CFM per person.

The minimum requirements for openable area to provide natural ventilation are specified in the ((+1985)) 1988 Uniform Building Code as adopted by the state of Washington. All kitchens and bathrooms without natural ventilation in Group R Occupancy spaces shall be provided with exhaust fans or other ventilation systems approved by the building official having a capacity of not less than that specified in Table No. 3-1. (See UBC Section 1205.) Ventilation requirements for other occupancy spaces may be met using operable openings as provided in the UBC.

Where a mechanical ventilation system is installed, the mechanical ventilation system shall be capable of supplying to each zone ventilation air with the minimum outdoor air quantities specified in Table No. 3-1 based upon the greater of the occupant densities in that table or the design occupant density. The outdoor air shall be ducted directly to every air handling unit in each zone not provided with sufficient openable area for natural ventilation. The maximum outdoor air quantities used as the basis for calculating the heating and cooling design loads shall not exceed three times the quantities specified in Table No. 3-1.

In all parking garages, other than open parking garages as defined in UBC 709(b), used for storing or handling of automobiles operating under their own power and on all loading platforms in bus terminals, ventilation shall be provided at 1.5 cfm per square foot of gross floor area. The building official may approve an alternate ventilation system designed to exhaust a minimum of 14,000 cfm for each operating vehicle. Such system shall be based on the anticipated instantaneous movement rate of vehicles but not less than 2.5 percent (or one vehicle) of the garage capacity. Automatic CO sensing systems may be submitted for approval.

In all buildings used for the repair of automobiles, each repair stall shall be equipped with an exhaust extension duct, extending to the outside of the building, which if over ten feet in length, shall mechanically exhaust 300 cfm. Connecting offices and waiting rooms shall be supplied with conditioned air under positive pressure.

Combustion air requirements shall conform to the requirements of Chapter 6 of the UMC.

Mechanical refrigerating equipment and rooms storing refrigerates shall conform to the requirements of Chapter 15 of the UMC.

EXCEPTION: If outdoor air quantities other than those specified in Table No. 3-1 are used or required because of special occupancy or process requirements, source control of air contamination, health, and safety or other standards, the required outdoor air quantities shall be used as the basis for calculating the heating and cooling design loads.

Table No. 3-1 is an excerpt from ASHRAE Standard 62-73, "Natural and Mechanical Ventilation" published in 1973. Standard 62-73 is no longer in print. ASHRAE now recommends the use of Standard 62-81 "Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality" for improved ventilation design.

**TABLE NO. 3-1
AIR QUANTITIES FOR VENTILATION**

	Estimated persons/1000 sq. ft. floor area. Use only when design occupancy is not known	Required ventilation air, cubic feet per minute per human occupant, (when the number is bracketed, refer to the notes).	Notes
1. RESIDENTIAL (Private dwelling places, single or multiple units)			
Single Unit Dwellings			
General Living Areas, Bedrooms	5	5	
Kitchens	-	20	1
Baths, Toilet Rooms	-	20	1
Basements, Utility Rooms	-	5	
Multiple Unit Dwellings			
General Living Areas, Bedrooms	7	5	
Kitchens	-	20	1
Baths, Toilet Rooms	-	20	1
Basements, Utility Rooms	-	5	
Garages	-	(1.5)	2
2. COMMERCIAL			
General Requirements—Merchandising (Apply to all forms unless specially noted)			
Sales Floors and Showrooms (Basement and Street Floors)	30	7	
Sales Floor and Showrooms (Upper Floors)	20	7	
Storage Areas (Serving Sales Floors and Storerooms)	5	5	
Dressing Rooms	-	7	
Malls and Arcades	40	7	
Shipping and Receiving Areas	10	15	
Warehouses	5	7	
Elevators	-	7	
Food Markets, Supermarkets, etc.			

	Estimated persons/1000 sq. ft. floor area. Use only when design occupancy is not known	Required ventilation air, cubic feet per minute per human occupant, (when the number is bracketed, refer to the notes).	Notes
Meat Processing Rooms	10	5	3
Drug Stores			
Pharmacists' Work Rooms	10	20	
Specialty Shops			
Pet Shops	—	(1.0)	2
Florists	10	5	4
Greenhouses	1	5	4, 5
Banks (see Sales Floors and Offices)			
Vaults	—	5	
Food Services			
Dining Rooms	70	10	
Kitchens	20	30	6
Cafeterias, Short-Order, Drive-Ins, Seating Areas, and Queuing Areas	100	30	
Bars (Predominantly Stand-up)	150	30	
Cocktail Lounges	100	30	
Hotels, Motels, Resorts			
Bedrooms (Single, Double)	5	7	
Living Rooms (Suites)	20	10	
Baths, Toilets (Attached to Bedrooms)	—	20	7
Corridors	5	5	
Lobbies	30	7	
Conference Rooms (Small)	70	20	
Assembly Rooms (Large)	140	15	
Public Rest Rooms	100	15	
Cottages (Treat as Single-Unit Dwellings)	—	—	
(See also Food Services, Industrial, Merchandising, Barber and Beauty Shops, Garages for Associated Hotel/Motel Services)			
Dry Cleaners and Laundries			
Commercial	10	20	8, 9
Storage/Pickup Areas	30	7	
Coin-operated	20	15	9
Barber, Beauty and Health Services			
Beauty Shops (Hair dressers)	50	25	
Reducing Salons (Exercise Rooms)	20	25	
Sauna Baths and Steam Rooms	—	5	
Barber Shops	25	7	
Photo Studios			
Camera Rooms, Stages	10	5	10
Darkrooms	10	10	
Shoe Repair Shops (Combined Workrooms/Trade Areas)	10	10	
Garages, Auto Repair Shops, Service Stations			
Parking Garages (Enclosed)	—	(1.5)	2
Auto Repair Workrooms (General)	—	(1.5)	2, 11
Service Station Offices	20	7	
Theaters			
Ticket Booths	—	5	
Lobbies, (Foyers and Lounges)	150	20	
Auditoriums (in Motion Picture Theaters, Legitimate Theaters, Lecture, Concert and Opera Halls—no smoking)	150	5	

	Estimated persons/1000 sq. ft. floor area. Use only when design occupancy is not known	Required ventilation air, cubic feet per minute per human occupant, (when the number is bracketed, refer to the notes).	Notes
Auditoriums (Smoking Permitted)	150	10	
Stages (with Proscenium and Curtains)	70	10	10, 12
Green Rooms and Workrooms	20	10	
Public Rest Rooms	100	15	
Ballrooms			
Public	100	15	
Bowling Alleys (Seating Area)	70	15	
Gymnasiums and Arenas			
Playing Floors—minimal or No Seating	70	20	
Locker Rooms	20	(30)	13
Spectator Areas	150	20	
Ramps, Foyers, and Lobbies	150	10	
Pool Rooms	25	20	
Amusement Parlors	25	20	
Tennis, Squash, Handball Courts (Indoor)	—	20	
Swimming Pools (Indoor)	25	15	14
Ice-skating and Curling Rinks	70	10	14
Roller Rinks	70	10	14
Transportation			
Waiting Rooms	50	15	
Garages	—	(1.5)	2
Ticket and Baggage Areas, Corridors and Gate Areas	50	15	
Control Towers	50	25	
Hangers	2	10	15
Public Rest Rooms	100	15	
Platform	150	10	
Concourses	150	10	
Repair Shops	—	10	
Offices			
General Office Space	10	15	
Conference Rooms	60	25	
Drafting Rooms, Art Rooms	20	7	
Doctor's Consultation Rooms	—	10	
Waiting Rooms (Doctors, Employment Agencies, etc.)	30	10	9
Lithographing Rooms	20	7	9
Diazo Printing Rooms	20	7	
Computer Rooms	20	5	
Keypunching Rooms	30	7	
Public Rest Rooms	100	15	
Communication			
TV/Radio Broadcasting Booths, Radio Studios	20	30	10
Motion Picture and TV Stages	20	30	
Pressrooms	100	15	
Composing Rooms	30	7	
Engraving Shops	30	7	
Telephone Switchboard Rooms (Manual)	50	7	
Telephone Switchgear Rooms (Automatic)	—	7	

	Estimated persons/1000 sq. ft. floor area. Use only when design occupancy is not known	Required ventilation air, cubic feet per minute per human occupant, (when the number is bracketed, refer to the notes).	Notes
Teletypewriter/Facsimile Rooms	-	5	
3. INSTITUTIONAL			
Schools			
Classrooms	50	10	
Multiple Use Rooms	70	10	
Laboratories	30	10	16
Craft Shops, Vocational Training Shops	30	10	16
Music, Rehearsal Rooms	70	10	
Auditoriums	150	5	
Gymnasiums	70	20	
Libraries	20	7	
Common Rooms, Lounges	70	10	
Offices	10	7	
Lavatories	100	15	
Locker Rooms	20	(30)	13
Lunchrooms, Dining Halls	100	10	
Corridors	50	15	
Utility Rooms	3	5	
Dormitory Bedrooms	20	7	
Hospitals, Nursing, and Convalescent Homes			
Foyers	50	20	
Hallways	50	20	
Single, Dual Bedrooms	15	10	
Wards	20	10	
Food Service Centers	20	35	
Operating Rooms, Delivery Rooms	-	20	17
Ready Rooms, Recovery Rooms	-	15	17
Amphitheaters	100	10	
Physical Therapy Areas	20	15	
Autopsy Rooms	10	30	
Incinerator Service Areas	-	5	18
For Shops, Restaurants, Utility Rooms, Kitchens, Bathrooms and Other Service Items (See Hotels)			
Research Institutes			
Laboratories (Light-duty, Nonchemical)	50	15	16
Laboratories (Chemical)	50	15	16
Laboratories (Heavy-duty)	50	15	16
Laboratories (Radioisotope, Chemically and Biologically Toxic)	50	15	16
Machine Shops	50	15	
Darkrooms, Spectroscopy Rooms	50	10	
Animal Rooms	20	40	17
Military and Naval Installations			
Barracks	20	7	
Toilets/Washrooms	100	15	
Shower Rooms	100	10	
Drill Halls	70	15	
Ready Rooms, MP Stations	40	7	
Indoor Target Ranges	70	20	19
Museums			
Exhibit Halls	70	7	
Workrooms	10	10	
Warehouses	5	5	
Prisons (See also Gymnasiums, Libraries, Applicable Industrial Areas)			
Cell Blocks	20	7	

	Estimated persons/1000 sq. ft. floor area. Use only when design occupancy is not known	Required ventilation air, cubic feet per minute per human occupant, (when the number is bracketed, refer to the notes).	Notes
Eating Halls	70	15	
Guard Stations	40	7	
Veterinary Hospitals			
Kennels, Stalls	20	25	17
Operating Rooms	20	25	17
Reception Rooms	30	10	

4. ORGANIZATIONAL

Churches, Temples (See Theaters, Schools and Offices)	-	-	
Legislative Halls			
Legislative Chambers	70	20	
Committee Rooms and Conference Rooms	70	20	
Foyers, Corridors	50	20	
Offices	10	10	
Press Lounges	20	20	
Press/Radio/TV Booths	20	20	
Public Rest Rooms	20	15	
Private Rest Rooms (For Food Service, Utilities, etc., see Hotels)	-	20	
Police and Fire Stations (See Prisons and Military Installations)	-	-	
Survival Shelters	-	5	17

- 1 Installed capacity for intermittent use.
- 2 cfm per sq. ft. of floor area.
- 3 Spaces maintained at low temperatures (-10 to 50° F) are not covered by these requirements unless the occupancy is continuous. Ventilation from adjoining spaces is permissible. When the occupancy is intermittent, infiltration will normally exceed the ventilation requirement. (See Chapter 23, Refrigeration Load, ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals, 1972.)
- 4 Maximum allowable concentration (MAC) for sulfur dioxide = 30 microgram/cubic meter.
- 5 Ventilation to optimize plant growth, temperature, humidity, etc. will almost always be greater than shown.
- 6 Exhaust to outside; source control as required.
- 7 Installed capacity for intermittent use.
- 8 Exhaust to outside; source control as required.
- 9 Installed equipment must incorporate positive exhaust and control (as required) of undesirable contaminants (toxic or otherwise).
- 10 Thermal effects probably determine requirements.
- 11 Stands where engines are run must incorporate systems for positive engine exhaust withdrawal.
- 12 Special ventilation will be needed to eliminate stage effect contaminants.
- 13 cfm/locker.
- 14 The same for air-supported structures.
- 15 Special solvent and exhaust problems handled separately.
- 16 Special contaminant control systems may be required.

17 Special requirements or codes may determine requirements.

18 Special exhaust systems required.

19 Floor area behind firing line only.

NOTE: In the case of an occupancy type not specifically mentioned above, the ventilation air requirements shall be determined by the Building Official. Such determination shall be based on the most comparable occupancy type specified.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Resolution No. 86-17, filed 9/23/86)

WAC 51-12-402 SECTION 402. OVERALL THERMAL PERFORMANCE AND BUILDING ENVELOPE REQUIREMENTS.

- (a) The stated U_o value of any one element of a building, such as roof/ceiling, wall or floor, may be increased and the U_o value for other components decreased provided that the overall heat gain or loss for the entire building envelope does not exceed the total resulting from the conformance to the stated U_o values.
- (b) Where return air ceiling plenums are employed, the roof/ceiling assembly area shall:
 1. For thermal transmittance purposes, not include the ceiling proper nor the plenum space as part of the assembly; and
 2. For gross area purposes, be based upon the interior face of the upper plenum surface.
- (c) U_o values listed in Tables 4-2, 4-3, and 4-4 refer to component assembly only. Credit for buffering from adjacent unheated spaces is not allowed when calculating U_o values.
- (d) Exemption for Passive Solar features. Glazing areas which meet all of the following criteria may

be exempted from the U_o calculations. Exempted glazing shall not be included in the gross wall area.

1. For buildings that have Electric Resistance heating systems, the glazing area must have a tested thermal transmittance (U) value of less than .61. For Other heating systems, the glazing area need not be tested, but must be double glazed. (See Section 403(e).)
2. The south glazing shall be oriented within 45 degrees of true south.
3. The glazing shall be mounted at least 60 degrees up from the horizontal.
4. The glazing shall have a transmission coefficient greater than or equal to 0.80 for visible light or greater than or equal to 0.73 for total solar radiation.
5. Documentation shall be provided in the form of a sun chart, a photograph, or approved evidence, demonstrating that the glazing area shall not be shaded for at least 4 hours between 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. standard time on January 21 and March 21.
6. The building shall contain a heat capacity equivalent to at least 20 Btu/degree F for each square foot of south glazing when the south glazing area is between 10% and 14% of the buildings gross floor area, and at least 45 Btu/degree F for each square foot of south glazing when the south area glazing exceeds 14 percent of gross floor area. This heat storage capacity shall be located inside the insulated shell of the structure and not covered with insulation materials, such as carpet, which yield an R value of 1.0 or greater. If the storage medium is not within the space containing the south glazing, an approved natural or mechanical means of transferring the heat to the heat storage medium shall be provided. Heat storage capacity shall be calculated using the below equation and/or accepted analytical methods:

$$HS = D \times SH \times V$$
 Where:

HS = Heat Storage. The heat storage capacity available inside the insulated space.

V = Volume of heat storage components.

D = Density of material inside the insulated shell of the building to a depth yielding a thermal resistance of R 1, except in the case of slab floors where only the slab itself is credited. Mass located in conditioned or unconditioned basements without solar glazing shall not be counted (lbs/cu ft).

SH = Specific heat of the material (Btu/lb/°F).

(e) Insulation.

1. General: Thermal and acoustical insulation located on or within floor/ceiling and roof/ceiling assemblies, crawl spaces, walls, partitions, and insulation on pipes and tubing shall comply with this section. Duct insulation shall conform to Section 416 and Table 4-16.

EXCEPTIONS:

 - A. Roof insulation shall comply with Section 3204 of the Uniform Building Code.
 - B. Roof insulation in vaulted ceilings over 3 in 12 shall conform with Section 3204 of the Uniform Building Code.
 - C. Exposed deck ceiling insulation shall conform with Section 3204 of the Uniform Building Code.
2. Insulation Materials: All insulation materials including facings such as vapor barriers or breather papers installed within floor/ceiling assemblies, roof/ceiling assemblies, walls, crawl spaces, or attics shall have a flame-spread rating not to exceed 25 and a smoke density not to exceed 450 when tested in accordance with UBC Standard No. 42-1.

EXCEPTIONS:

A. Foam plastic insulation shall comply with Section ((1717)) 1712 of the Uniform Building Code.

B. When such materials are installed in concealed spaces of Types III, IV and V construction, the flame-spread and smoke-developed limitations do not apply to facing, provided that the facing is installed in substantial contact with the unexposed surface of the ceiling, floor or wall finish.

C. Cellulose insulation shall conform to Section 1713 of the Uniform Building Code.

3. Ventilation: Enclosed joist or rafter spaces formed where ceilings are applied directly to the underside of roof joists or rafters must have joists or rafters of sufficient size to provide a minimum of one inch clear vented air space above the insulation (see also Section 3205 (c) of UBC). Ceiling insulation may be tapered or compressed at the perimeter to permit proper venting.

(f) Moisture Control.

1. Vapor retarders shall be installed on the warm side (in winter) of insulation as specified in the following cases:

A. Walls separating conditioned space from unconditioned space shall have a vapor retarder installed when thermal insulation is installed. The vapor retarder shall have a one perm dry cup rating or less. Inset stapled batts with a perm rating less than one may be installed if staples are placed not more than (8) inches on center and gaps between the facing and the framing do not exceed (1/16) of an inch.

B. Roof/ceilings.

i. Roof/ceiling assemblies where the ventilation space above the insulation is less than an average of twelve (12) inches shall be provided with a vapor retarder having a dry cup perm rating of 1.0 or less.

ii. Vapor retarders shall not be required in roof/ceiling assemblies where the ventilation space above the insulation averages twelve (12) inches or greater.

iii. Vapor retarders shall not be required where all of the insulation is installed between the roof membrane and the structural roof deck.

iv. Vapor retarders with a 1.0 or less dry cup perm rating polyethylene or an approved equal shall be installed in roof/ceiling assemblies where the insulation is comprised of insulation between the roofing membrane and the structural roof decking and insulation below the structural roof decking.

C. Ground Cover.

A ground cover of 4 mil (0.004 inch thick) polyethylene or approved equal shall be laid over the ground within crawl spaces. The ground cover shall be overlapped twelve (12) inches minimum at joints and shall extend to the foundation wall.

EXCEPTION: The ground cover may be omitted in unheated crawl spaces if the crawl space has a concrete slab floor with a minimum thickness of 3-1/2 inches.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-04, filed 5/13/86)

WAC 51-12-411 SECTION 411. HVAC EQUIPMENT PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS.

- (a) The requirement of this section applies to equipment and component performance for heating, ventilating and air-conditioning systems. Where equipment efficiency levels are specified, approved data furnished by the equipment supplier or certified under a nationally recognized certification program or rating procedure shall be used to satisfy these requirements. Equipment efficiencies shall be based on the standard rating conditions shown in Tables 4-9, 4-10 and 4-11.

- (b) HVAC-System Heating Equipment Heat Pumps—Heating Mode: Heat pumps whose energy input is entirely electric shall have a Coefficient of Performance (COP) heating, as defined herein) not less than the values shown in Table 4-12.

1. These requirements apply to, but are not limited to, unitary heat pumps (air source and water source) in the heating mode and to heat pumps in the packaged terminal air-conditioner and room air-conditioner forms in the heating mode. Field assembled unitary heat pumps, consisting of one or more components, shall comply with this section.

2. Coefficient of Performance (COP) Heating: The ratio of the rate of net heat output to the rate of total energy input, expressed in consistent units and under designated rating conditions.

The rate of net heat output shall be defined as the change in the total heat content of the air entering and leaving the equipment (not including supplementary heat).

Total energy input shall be determined by combining the energy inputs to all elements, except supplementary heaters, of the heat pump, including, but not limited to, compressor(s), pump(s), supply-air fan(s), return-air fan(s), outdoor-air fan(s), cooling-tower fan(s), and the HVAC-system equipment control circuit.

3. Supplementary Heater: The heat pump shall be installed with a control to prevent supplementary heater operation when the heating load can be met by the heat pump alone. Supplementary heater operation is permitted during transient periods, such as start-ups, following room thermostat set-point advance, and during defrost, when the outdoor air temperature is below 55°F.

A two-stage thermostat, which controls the supplementary heat on its second stage, with outdoor air control, shall be accepted as meeting this requirement. The cut-on temperature for the compression heating shall be higher than the cut-on temperature for the supplementary heat, and the cut-off temperature for the compression heating shall be higher than the cut-off temperature for the supplementary heat. Supplementary heat may be derived from any source of electric resistance heating or combustion heating.

- (c) HVAC-System-Combustion Heating Equipment: All commercial gas and oil-fired central heating plants shall show a minimum combustion efficiency of not less than those shown in Table 4-5.

All residential gas, oil, and propane central heating systems must have a minimum AFUE of .74. All other residential heating equipment fueled by gas, oil, or propane must be equipped with an intermittent ignition device.

- (d) Mechanical Ventilation. Each mechanical ventilation system (supply and/or exhaust) shall be equipped with a readily accessible or automatic means for either shut-off or volume reduction and shut-off when ventilation is not required.

- (e) Packaged and unitary HVAC-system equipment, electrically operated cooling mode. HVAC-system equipment as listed below whose energy input in the cooling mode is entirely electric, shall show a Coefficient of Performance (COP) cooling as defined herein not less than values shown in Table 4-13.

1. These requirements apply to, but are not limited to unitary cooling equipment (air-cooled, water-cooled and evaporatively-cooled); the cooling mode of unitary and packaged heat pumps (air source and water source); packaged terminal air-conditioners; and room air-conditioners.

EXCEPTION: These requirements do not apply to equipment used for refrigerated food or florists' and nurseries' coolers.

2. Coefficient of Performance (COP) Cooling: The ratio of the rate of net heat removal to the rate of total energy input, expressed in consistent units and under

designated rating conditions.

The rate of net heat removal shall be defined as the change in the total heat contents of the air entering and leaving the equipment (without reheat).

Total energy input shall be determined by combining the energy inputs to all elements of the equipment, including but not limited to compressor(s), pump(s), supply-air fan(s), return-air fan(s), condenser-air fan(s), cooling-tower fan(s), circulating water pump(s), and the HVAC-system equipment control circuit.

- (f) Applied HVAC-system components, electrically operated cooling-mode. HVAC-system components, as listed in Table 4-14 whose energy input is entirely electric, shall show a Coefficient of Performance (COP) cooling, as defined herein, and not less than the values shown in Table 4-14.

1. Coefficient of Performance (COP) Cooling. The ratio of the rate of net heat removal to the rate of total energy input, expressed in consistent units and under designated rating conditions.

2. The rate of net heat removal is defined as the difference in total heat contents of the water or refrigerant entering and leaving the component.

3. Total energy input shall be determined by combining the energy inputs to all elements and accessories of the component, including but not limited to, compressor(s), internal circulating pump(s), condenser-air fan(s), evaporative-condenser cooling water pump(s), purge, and the HVAC-system component control circuit.

- (g) HVAC-system equipment—heat operated cooling mode. Efficiency limitation equipment: Heat operated cooling equipment shall show a (COP) cooling not less than the values shown in Table 4-15. These requirements apply to, but are not limited to, absorption equipment, engine driven equipment, and turbine driven equipment.

- (h) Fireplaces. Fireplaces shall be provided with:

1. Tightly fitting flue dampers, operated with a readily accessible manual or approved automatic control.

EXCEPTION: Fireplaces with gas logs installed in accordance with UMC 803 shall be equipped with tightly fitting glass or metal doors.

2. An outside source for combustion air. The duct shall be at least six square inches in area, and shall be provided with a readily operable damper.

- (i) Solid fuel burning appliances shall be provided with combustion air ducted directly to the appliance.

Combustion air shall be provided as per manufacturers specifications.

EXCEPTIONS: Combustion air may be supplied to the room in which the solid fuel burning appliance is located in lieu of direct ducting, in an existing building, provided that:

1. The solid fuel burning appliance is not designed for directly connected outside combustion air or;

2. The existing construction prohibits the introduction of outside combustion air directly to the solid fuel burning appliance.

3. The combustion air source shall be located as close to the solid fuel burning appliance as possible, shall be provided with a backdraft damper, and shall be no less than six inches in diameter.

4. The solid fuel burning appliance is part of a central heating system and is installed in a room designed to house it.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Resolution No. 86-17, filed 9/23/86)

WAC 51-12-426 SECTION 426. LIGHTING POWER BUDGET. A lighting power budget is the upper limit of the power to be available to provide the lighting needs in accordance with the criteria and calculation procedure specified herein.

The lighting power budget for a building shall be the sum of the power limits computed for all lighted interior and exterior spaces and shall be determined in accordance with the procedures specified in this section.

EXCEPTION: One- and two-family detached dwellings and the dwelling portion of multifamily buildings are exempt from the requirements of Section 426.

(a) Budget Development.

The installed lighting wattage for the building project shall not exceed the budget level calculated in this section. The budget wattage level shall be the sum of the interior budget calculated and the exterior budget. Lighting wattage includes lamp and ballast wattage.

(b) Building Interiors.

The interior lighting budget shall be calculated by multiplying the gross conditioned floor area, in square feet, by the appropriate unit power budget, in watts per square foot, specified in Table No. 4-18.

For special conditions when approved by the Building Official, calculation based on Illuminating Engineering Society Unit Power Density or similar nationally recognized standards may be used.

The lighting power budget shall be based on the primary occupancy for which the space within the building is intended. If multiple occupancies are intended, the lighting power budget for each type of occupancy shall be separately calculated and summed to obtain the lighting budget for the interior spaces of the building. If a common circulation area serves multiple occupancies or multiple retail spaces, the lighting power budget for the common circulation area shall be the weighted average of the lighting power budgets for all other areas on that floor. In cases where a lighting plan for only a portion of a building is submitted, the interior lighting budget shall be based on the gross floor area covered by the plan.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Where the following automatic lighting controls are installed, for calculations used to determine code compliance, the installed lighting wattage may be reduced by the following percentages:
 - A. For occupant-sensing devices, energy savings of 30 percent shall be allowed for any single space up to 400 square feet and enclosed by ceiling height partitions; classrooms, conference rooms, computer rooms, storage areas, corridors, or waiting rooms.
 - B. For daylighting controls, energy savings of 30 percent for continuous dimming and 20 percent for stepped controls shall be allowed for any daylit space.
 - C. For lumen maintenance controls, energy savings of 10 percent shall be allowed for any space.
 - D. For daylighting controls with occupant-sensing devices, energy savings of 44 percent shall be allowed for any single space up to 400 square feet within daylit spaces, and enclosed by ceiling height partitions.
 - E. For occupant-sensing devices with lumen maintenance controls, energy savings of 37 percent shall be allowed for any single space up to 400 square feet and enclosed by ceiling height partitions.
2. Lighting for the following applications shall be exempted from inclusion in the calculation of lighting power budgets:
 - A. Stage lighting, entertainment, or audiovisual presentations where the lighting is an essential technical element for the function performed.
 - B. Lighting for medical and dental tasks.
 - C. Lighting in areas specifically designed for visually handicapped people.
 - D. For restaurant occupancies, lighting for kitchens and food preparation areas.

(c) Building Exteriors.

The exterior lighting budget shall be calculated by multiplying the building perimeter in feet by 7.5 watts per foot. Lighting for parking structures shall be calculated at 0.3 watts per gross square foot of parking area. An allowance for outdoor surface parking and circulation lighting may be added at 0.05 watts per square foot of area. Lighting for signs that are not an integral part of the building shall be exempted from inclusion in these calculations.

TABLE 4-1
Classification of Building Occupancies

	All Group R Occupancy Space	Other than Group R Occupancy Space
Three conditioned stories and less	Table 4-2	Table 4-3
More than three conditioned stories	Table 4-4	Table 4-4

TABLE 4-2
Low-rise Residential Buildings
Maximum Allowed U₀ Values
and Minimum Allowed R Values

Heat Type	Climatic Zone	Roofs Ceilings	Cathedral Ceilings	Walls (Includes Glazing)	Floors	Slab ¹ on Grade	Installed R Value
		U ₀	U ₀	U ₀	U ₀		
Electric Resistance	I	0.026	0.035	0.144	0.055	((8))	7
Other	I	0.035	0.035	0.203	0.055	((8))	7
Electric Resistance	II	0.026	0.035	0.144	0.043	10	10
Other	II	0.035	0.035	0.203	0.055	10	10

¹Insulation shall be water-resistant material manufactured for this use.

TABLE 4-3
Nonresidential Occupancies
Buildings 3 Stories or Less
Maximum Allowed U₀ Values and
Minimum Allowed R Values

Zone	Ceilings	Walls (Includes Glazing)	Floors	Slab ¹ on Grade	Installed R Value
	U ₀	U ₀	U ₀		
I	0.035	0.25	0.05		((8))
II	0.035	0.20	0.05		7 10

¹Insulation shall be water-resistant material manufactured for this use.

TABLE 4-4
All Occupancies
Buildings over 3 Stories
Maximum Allowed U_o Values and
Minimum Allowed R Values

Zone	Ceilings	Walls (Includes Glazing)	Floors	Slab ¹ on Grade
	U _o	U _o	U _o	Installed R Value
I	0.08	0.30	0.08	((8))
II	0.06	0.25	0.08	$\frac{7}{10}$

¹Insulation shall be water-resistant material manufactured for this use.

TABLE 4-5
Nonresidential HVAC System Heating Equipment—
Gas- and Oil-Fired
Minimum Steady State Combustion Efficiency

Types of Equipment	Minimum Steady State Combustion Efficiency	
	Percent ¹	Percent ²
Forced-air furnaces and low-pressure steam or hot-water boilers	74	75
Gravity central furnaces	69	—
All other vented heating equipment	69	—

¹Combustion efficiency for furnaces of capacities of 225,000 Btu/h and less and boilers of capacities of 300,000 Btu/h and less shall be tested in accordance with the applicable U.S. Department of Energy furnace test procedures.

²Combustion efficiency of commercial/industrial furnaces and boilers is defined as 100 percent minus stack losses in percent of heat input. Stack losses are:

- Loss due to sensible heat in dry flue gas.
- Loss due to incomplete combustion.
- Loss due to sensible and latent heat in moisture formed by combustion of hydrogen in the fuel.

TABLE 4-6
(Reserved)

TABLE 4-7
(Reserved)

TABLE 4-8
Allowable Air Infiltration Rates

Windows (cfm per lineal foot of operable sash crack)	Residential Doors		Commercial Doors
	sliding glass	entrance	swinging, sliding, revolving
0.5	0.5	1.00	11.0

TABLE 4-9
HVAC System Heating Equipment (Heat Pumps)
Standard Rating Conditions

Conditions	°F	Type	
		Air Source	Water Source
Air entering equipment	°F	70 db	70 db
Outdoor unit ambient	°F	47 db/ 43 wb	17 db/ 15 wb
Entering water temperature	°F	—	60
Water flow rate	—	—	as used in cooling mode

TABLE 4-10
HVAC System Equipment
Standard Rating Conditions — Cooling

	°F	Temperatures			
		DB	WB	Inlet	Outlet
Air Entering Equipment	°F	80	67	—	—
Condenser Ambient (Air Cooled)	°F	95	75	—	—
Condenser Water (Water Cooled)	°F	—	—	85	95

Standard ratings are at sea level.

Note: db = dry bulb
wb = wet bulb

TABLE 4-11
Applied HVAC System Components
Standard Rating Conditions — Cooling

Item	°F	Centrifugal or Self-Contained Reciprocating Water-Chiller	Condenserless Reciprocating Water-Chiller
Leaving chilled Water temperature	°F	44	44
Entering chilled Water temperature	°F	54	54
Leaving condenser Water temperature	°F	95	—
Entering water temp.	°F	85	—
Fouling factor, water Non-ferrous tubes	*	0.0005	0.0005
Steel tubes	*	0.0010	0.0010
Fouling factor, Refrigerant	*	0.0000	0.0000
Condenser ambient Air or evap. cooled Compressor Water cooled Saturated (or evap. cooled) Discharge Temperature	°F	95 dB/75 wb	—
Air cooled	°F	—	105
	°F	—	120

Standard ratings are at sea level.

* h ft² F/Btu.

TABLE 4-12
HVAC-System Heating Equipment (Heat Pumps)
Minimum COP & HSPF for Heat Pumps, Heating Mode

Source and Outdoor Temperature(°F)	Minimum COP	Minimum HSPF
Air source — 47 dB/43 WB	2.7	
Air source — 17 dB/15 WB	1.8	
Air source		6.35
Water source — 60 entering	3.0	
Ground source	3.0	

TABLE 4-13
Minimum EER and COP—Cooling for
Electrically Driven HVAC System Equipment—Cooling¹

Standard Rating Capacity	Air Cooled		Evaporative or Water Cooled	
	EER	COP	EER	COP
Under 65,000 Btu/hr (19,050 watts)	7.8	2.28	8.8	2.58
65,000 Btu/hr (19,060 watts) and over	8.2	2.4	9.2	2.69

¹The U.S. Department of Energy has established required test procedures for single-phase, air-cooled, residential central air conditioners under 19 KW (65,000 Btu/h) capacity, which have been incorporated into ARI Standard 210-79. EER and COP values in Table 4-13 are based on Test A of DOE Test Procedures.

TABLE 4-14
Minimum EER and COP for Electrically Driven HVAC-System Components¹

Water Chilling Packages						
Component	Type	EER	Condensing Means			COP
			Air	Water	Evap.	
Condenser included	Centrifugal or rotary	8.00	2.34	13.80	4.04	
Condenser included	Reciprocating	8.40	2.46	12.00	3.51	
Condenserless	Reciprocating	9.90	2.90	12.00	3.51	
Compressor & condenser units 65,000 Btu/hr (19,050 watts) and over ²						
	Positive displacement	9.50	2.78	12.50	3.66	12.50 3.66
Hydronic Heat Pumps						
Component	Type	EER	COP			
Water source under 65,000 Btu/h (19,000 watts)	Centrifugal or rotary	9.00	2.64			
Water source 65,000 Btu/h (19,000 watts) and over	Centrifugal or rotary	9.40	2.75			

¹When tested at the standard rating conditions specified in Table No. 4-9, 4-10, and 4-11.

²Ratings in accordance with Standard for Positive Displacement Refrigerant Compressor and Condensing Units, ARI Standard 520-74 as applicable. COP based on condensing unit standard rating capacity and energy input to the unit, all at sea level.

TABLE 4-15
HVAC-System Heat-Operated Cooling Equipment

Heat Source	Minimum COP
Direct fired (gas, oil)	0.48
Indirect fired (steam, hot water)	0.68

TABLE 4-16
Insulation of Ducts

Duct Location	Insulation Types Mechanically Cooled	Climate Zone	Insulation Types Heating Only
On roof or on exterior of building	C, V ² and W D, V ² and W	I II	C and W D and W
Attics, garages and crawl spaces, in walls ¹ , within floor-ceiling spaces ¹	B and V ² C and V ²	I II	B C
Within the conditioned space or in basements	None Required		None Required
Cement slab or within ground	A		B

Note: Where ducts are used for both heating and cooling, the minimum insulation shall be as required for the most restrictive condition.

¹ Insulation may be omitted on that portion of a duct which is located within a wall or floor-ceiling space where both sides of this space are exposed to conditioned air and where this space is not ventilated or otherwise exposed to unconditioned air.

² Vapor barriers shall be installed on conditioned air supply ducts in geographic areas where the average of the July, August, and September mean dewpoint temperature exceeds 60°F.

INSULATION TYPES: Minimum densities and out-of-package thicknesses.

- A. 0.5-inch 1.5 to 2 lb/cu. ft. duct liner, mineral or glass fiber blanket or equivalent to provide an installed total thermal resistance of at least R-2
- B. 2-inch 0.60 lb/cu. ft. mineral or glass fiber blanket
1.5-inch 1.5 to 2 lb/cu. ft. duct liner, mineral or glass fiber blanket
1.5-inch 3 to 7 lb/cu. ft. mineral or glass fiber board or equivalent to provide an installed total thermal resistance of at least R-5
- C. 3-inch 0.60 lb/cu. ft. mineral or glass fiber blanket
2-inch 1.5 to 2 lb/cu. ft. duct liner, mineral or glass fiber blanket
2-inch 3 to 7 lb/cu. ft. mineral or glass fiber board or equivalent to provide an installed total thermal resistance of at least R-7

- D. 4-inch 0.60 lb/cu. ft. mineral or glass fiber blanket
3-inch 1.5 to 2 lb/cu. ft. duct liner, mineral or glass fiber blanket
3-inch 3 to 7 lb/cu. ft. mineral or glass fiber board or equivalent to provide an installed total thermal resistance of at least R-10
- V. Vapor barrier, with perm rating not greater than 0.5 perm, all joints sealed.
- W. Approved weatherproof barrier.

TABLE 4-17

Minimum Pipe Insulation

Piping System Types	Fluid temperature range, °F	Run-outs up to 2' ¹	Insulation Thickness In Inches for Pipe Sizes ²				
			1" and less	1.25" to 2"	2.5" to 4"	5" to 6"	8" and larger
HEATING AND HOT WATER SYSTEMS							
Steam and hot water							
High pressure/temperature	306-450	1.5	2.5	2.5	3.0	3.5	3.5
Med. pressure/temperature	251-305	1.5	2.0	2.5	2.5	3.0	3.0
Low pressure/temperature	201-250	1.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0	2.0
Low temperature	100-200	.5	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5
Steam condensate (for feed water)	Any	1.0	1.0	1.5	2.0	2.0	2.0
COOLING SYSTEMS							
Chilled water	40-55	.5	.5	.75	1.0	1.0	1.0
Refrigerant, or brine	Below 40	1.0	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5

¹Runouts not exceeding 12 feet in length to individual terminal units.

²For piping exposed to outdoor air, increase thickness by .5 inch.

TABLE 4-18

Interior Lighting Power Budget¹

Group	Occupancy Description	Lighting Power Budget ² (W/sq ft)
A	Assembly w/stage	1.1
	Stage lighting	Exempt
B	Assembly w/o stage; other than B and E	1.1
	Gasoline service station	1.7
	Storage garages	0.3
	Office buildings	1.7
	Wholesale stores	2.0
	Police and fire stations	1.7
	Retail Stores:	
	less than 6000 s.f.	4.0
	6000 to 20,000 s.f.	3.0
	over 20,000 s.f.	2.0
	Drinking and dining establishments	1.85
	Food preparation task light	Exempt
	Aircraft hangars - storage	0.7
	Process plants ³	1.0
Factories and work shops ³	1.7	
E	Storage structures	0.7
	Schools and daycare centers	1.7
	Audio-visual presentation lighting	Exempt

Group	Occupancy Description	Lighting Power Budget ² (W/sq ft)
H	Storage structures	0.7
	Handling areas	1.7
	Paint shops	2.5
	Auto repair shops	1.7
	Aircraft repair hangars	1.7
I	Institutions	1.7
	Administrative support areas	1.7
	Diagnostic, treatment, food service task lighting	Exempt
R	Dwelling units	Exempt
	Food preparation task lighting	Exempt

¹Watts/sq. ft. of room may be increased by two percent per foot of height above 20 feet.

²Emergency exit lighting is exempt from interior lighting budget.

³Lighting that is part of machines or equipment is exempt from this budget.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-14, filed 11/26/85)

WAC 51-12-503 SECTION 503. ANALYSIS PROCEDURE.

The analysis of the annual energy usage of the standard design and the proposed alternative building and system design shall meet the following criteria:

- (a) The building heating/cooling load calculation procedure used for annual energy consumption analysis shall be of sufficient detail to permit the evaluation of effect of factors specified in Section 504.

EXEMPTION: Low-rise residential not installing cooling equipment, shall not be required to model cooling loads.

- (b) The calculation procedure used to simulate the operation of the building and its service systems through a full year operating period shall be of sufficient detail to permit the evaluation of the effect of system design, climatic factors, operational characteristics, and mechanical equipment on annual energy usage. Manufacturer's data or comparable field test data shall be used when available in the simulation of all systems and equipment. The calculation procedure shall be based upon operation of the building and its service systems through a typical year. Variations in climatic data shall be represented.
- (c) The calculation procedure for the standard design and the proposed alternative design shall separately identify the energy input to each of the following systems: heating, cooling, ventilation, and lighting. The energy input to any other system using over ten percent of the total energy input shall also be separately identified. The energy use for the standard and alternative designs shall be calculated by summing the energy inputs assigned to each identified system and all other energy inputs not separately identified. The systems identified, and, to the extent possible, the assumptions made in assigning energy inputs to each system, shall be the same for the standard design and the proposed alternative design. When electrically driven heat pumps are employed to provide all or part of the heat for the alternative design, the standard design shall also, for the purposes of the analysis, assume that electrically driven heat pumps in conformance with Section 411 and having capacity at least as great as those used in the alternative design are employed.
- (d) The energy use assigned to each building system in the proposed alternative design shall be as calculated in subsection (c) or eighty percent of the use calculated for the same system in the standard design in subsection (c), whichever is greater.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Resolution No. 86-17, filed 9/23/86)

WAC 51-12-601 SECTION 601. LOW-RISE RESIDENTIAL BUILDING ENVELOPE REQUIREMENTS.

For all components, except for walls, the R values specified in Table 6-1 are for installed insulation material only. R values for construction are defined as any combination of rigid-sheathing, loose fill,

or batt insulation that achieves the prescribed R value. Where insulation is installed in a continuous manner and is not interrupted by occasional framing members, its R value may be increased by 20% in determining compliance with the requirements of this table. This allowance does not apply to insulation of slab on grade or walls.

- (a) Walls. The total assembly of opaque exterior wall sections, walls in finished basements, and the interior walls exposed to unheated spaces shall have a thermal resistance R value not less than the values specified in Table 6-1. Total wall assembly R values include values for insulation, sheathing, gypsum-board, air-films, concrete, etc. The following walls shall be considered to meet the R-19 total assembly criteria without additional documentation:

1. 2" x 6" with installed R-19 batt.
2. 2" x 4" with an installed R-13 batt and ((R-5)) R-3.7 insulating sheathing.
3. 2" x 4" with an installed R-11 batt and ((R-5.4)) R-5.0 insulating sheathing.

EXCEPTION: Concrete or masonry foundation walls of unfinished basements that have one foot or less of the wall above grade need not be insulated until finished, provided that:

- A. Any frame walls comply with the requirements of Table 6-1;
- B. The rim-joists are properly insulated;
- C. All walls that are more than an average of one foot above grade are insulated to meet the requirements of Table 6-1.

- (b) Roof/ceiling. The roof/ceiling assembly shall have a thermal resistance R value not less than the value specified for the indicated type of construction in Table 6-1.

EXCEPTION: Insulation levels in the case of single rafter or joist vaulted ceilings. These types of ceilings may be insulated to a level of R-30, regardless of space heat type.

- (c) Thermal Design Standards for Floors.

1. Slab on Grade Floors. For slab on grade floors, the thermal resistance of the insulation around the perimeter of the floor shall not be less than the value given in Table 6-1. Insulation installed inside the foundation shall extend downward from the top of the slab for a minimum distance of 24 inches; or downward to the bottom of the slab, then horizontally beneath the slab for a minimum total distance of 24 inches. Insulation installed outside the foundation shall extend downward a minimum of 6 inches below grade but not less than to the frostline and need not extend deeper than to the top of the footing.

2. Floor Sections. Floor sections over unheated spaces, such as unheated basements, unheated garages or ventilated crawl spaces, shall be constructed to comply with the required values as specified in Table 6-1.

EXCEPTION: Insulation may be omitted from floor areas over heated basements, heated garages, or under floor areas used as HVAC plenums or where operable foundation vents are used and when foundation walls are insulated. When foundation walls are insulated in accordance with Section 601(a), the insulation shall be attached in a permanent manner.

- (d) Thermal Design Standards for Openings.

1. At a minimum, all windows must be double glazed, and are classed according to U values as shown on Table 6-2. Glazing requirements are listed in Table 6-4.
2. At a minimum, all skylights must be double glazed. The area of Class 90 skylights and Class 90 exterior windows sloped more than 30° from the vertical shall be doubled and this area included in the percentage of the total glazing area as allowed for in Table 6-4. Class 75 or Class 60 glazing in skylights or Class 75 or Class 60 windows sloped more than 30° from the vertical need not be doubled.
3. Single glazing for ornamental, security or architectural purposes shall have its area doubled and shall

be included in the percentage of the total glazing area as allowed for in Table 6-4. The maximum area (before doubling) allowed for the total of all single glazing is 1% of the floor area.

- (e) Air Leakage.

1. Windows and Doors. All windows within a wall and doors shall conform to the air infiltration requirements specified in Section 405. Site built windows shall be constructed to minimize leakage.

EXCEPTION: Openings required to be protected by fire resistive assemblies are exempt from this section.

2. Exterior joints around windows and door frames, openings between walls and foundations, between walls and roof and between wall panels; openings at penetrations of utility services through walls, floors and roofs; and all other such openings in the building envelope shall be sealed, caulked, gasketed, or weatherstripped to limit air leakage.

- (f) Moisture Control. Vapor retarders shall be installed on the warm side (in winter) of insulation as specified in the following cases:

1. Walls separating conditioned space from unconditioned space shall have a vapor retarder installed when thermal insulation is installed. The vapor retarder shall have a one perm dry cup rating or less. Inset stapled batts with a facing with a perm rating less than one may be installed if staples are placed not more than (8) inches on center and gaps between the facing and the framing do not exceed (1/16) of an inch.

2. Roof/ceilings:

- A. Roof/ceiling assemblies where the ventilation space above the insulation is less than an average of twelve (12) inches shall be provided with a vapor retarder having a dry cup perm rating of 1.0 or less.
- B. Vapor retarders shall not be required in roof/ceiling assemblies where the ventilation space above the insulation averages twelve (12) inches or greater.
- C. Vapor retarders shall not be required where all of the insulation is installed between the roof membrane and the structural roof deck.
- D. Vapor retarders with a 1.0 or less dry cup perm rating shall be installed in roof/ceiling assemblies where the insulation is comprised of insulation between the roofing membrane and the structural roof decking and insulation below the structural roof decking.

3. Ground Cover.

A ground cover of 4 mil (0.004 inch thick) polyethylene or approved equal shall be laid over the ground within crawl spaces. The ground cover shall be overlapped twelve (12) inches minimum at joints and shall extend over the top of the footing.

EXCEPTION: The ground cover may be omitted in unheated crawl spaces if the crawl space has a concrete slab floor with a minimum thickness of 3-1/2 inches.

- (g) General Requirements for Loose Fill Insulation. Blown or poured loose fill insulation may be used in attic spaces where the slope of the ceiling is not more than 3 feet in 12 feet and there is at least 30 inches of clear distance from the top of the bottom chord of the truss or ceiling joist to the underside of the roof sheathing at the roof ridge. When eave vents are installed, baffling of the vent openings shall be provided so as to deflect the incoming air above the surface of the insulation.

- (h) Space Heat Type. The following four categories comprise all space heating types:

1. Electric Resistance. Space heating systems which include baseboard units, radiant units, and forced air units as either the primary or secondary heating system.

EXCEPTIONS: Electric resistance elements which are integral to either heat pump or passive

solar heating systems (as defined below), or when the total electric heat capacity in each individual dwelling unit does not exceed the greater of: 1) 1,000 watts per dwelling, or; 2) 1.0 watt per square foot of the gross floor area.

2. Electric, Passive Solar. Electric resistance space heating systems which utilize solar energy to provide a portion of the building's heating load. A Passive Solar System is required to have at least ten (10) percent of the building's gross floor area in glazing that meets the specifications of Section 601(i).
 3. Other. Includes all gas, wood (not meeting the provisions of Section 102 (a)2), oil, propane, and electric heat pump space heating systems, unless electric resistance is used as a secondary heating system. (See EXCEPTIONS, Electric Resistance, Section 601 (h) 1. above.) Nonelectric heat pump heating systems are also included in this category.
 4. Other, Passive Solar. Other types of space heating systems which utilize solar energy to provide a portion of the building's heating load. A Passive Solar System is required to have at least ten (10) percent of the building's gross floor area in glazing that meets the specifications of Section 601(i).
- (i) Passive Solar Glazing. Glazing areas are required to meet the following criteria in order to be considered Passive Solar Glazing.
1. Glazing areas are required to meet the "Electric, Passive Solar" and "Other, Passive Solar" glazing requirements of Table 6-4.
 2. The south glazing shall be oriented within 45 degrees of true south.
 3. The glazing shall be mounted at least 60 degrees up from the horizontal.
 4. The glazing shall have a transmission coefficient greater than or equal to 0.80 for visible light or greater than or equal to 0.73 for total solar radiation.
 5. Documentation shall be provided in the form of a sun chart, a photograph, or approved evidence, demonstrating that the glazing area shall not be shaded for at least 4 hours between 8 a.m. and 4 p.m. standard time on January 21 and March 21.
 6. The building shall contain a heat capacity equal to a four inch concrete slab. The heat capacity shall be equivalent to at least 20 Btu/degree F for each square foot of south glazing when the south glazing area is between 10% and 14% of the building's gross floor area, and at least 45 Btu/degree F for each square foot of south glazing when the south area glazing exceeds 14 percent of gross floor area. In buildings with south glazing area between 10% and 14% of gross floor area, the heat capacity provided by a four inch concrete slab shall be deemed sufficient. This heat storage capacity shall be located inside the insulated shell of the structure and not covered with insulation materials, such as carpet, which yield an R value of 1.0 or greater. If the storage medium is not within the space containing the south glazing, an approved natural or mechanical means of transferring the heat to the heat storage medium shall be provided. Heat storage capacity shall be calculated using the below equation and/or accepted analytical methods:

$$HS = D \times SH \times V$$

Where:

HS = Heat Storage. The heat storage capacity available inside the insulated space.

V = Volume of heat storage components.

D = Density of material inside the insulated shell of the building to a depth yielding a thermal resistance of R-1, except in the case of slab floors where only the slab itself is credited. Mass located in conditioned or

unconditioned basements without solar glazing shall not be counted (lbs/cu ft).

SH = Specific heat of the material (Btu/lb/°F).

- (j) Ventilation: Enclosed joist or rafter spaces formed where ceilings are applied directly to the under side of roof joists or rafters must have joists or rafters of sufficient size to provide a minimum of one inch clear vented air space above the insulation (see also Section 3205 (c) of UBC). Ceiling insulation may be tapered or compressed at the perimeter to permit proper venting.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-04, filed 5/13/86)

WAC 51-12-602 SECTION 602. LOW-RISE RESIDENTIAL BUILDING MECHANICAL SYSTEMS.

All HVAC devices, components and their elements shall conform to the requirements of this section.

(a) Heating and Mechanical Cooling Devices.

1. All heating and mechanical cooling devices shall meet the required efficiency factor specified herein or in Tables 4-12, 4-13, 4-14, and 4-15, 6-3, and 6-4, for the specific type of device.
2. Combustion Heating Equipment. All gas and oil-fired heating equipment shall meet the minimum combustion efficiencies as specified in Table 6-4.
3. Fireplaces shall be provided with:

A. Tightly fitting flue dampers, operated with a readily accessible manual or approved automatic control.

EXCEPTION: Fireplaces with gas logs installed in accordance with UMC 803 shall be equipped with tightly fitting glass or metal doors.

B. An outside source for combustion air. The duct shall be at least six square inches in area, and shall be provided with a readily operable damper.

4. Solid fuel burning appliances shall be provided with combustion air ducted directly to the appliance. Combustion air shall be provided as per manufacturers specifications.

EXCEPTIONS: Combustion air may be supplied to the room in which the solid fuel burning appliance is located in lieu of direct ducting, in an existing home, provided that:

- A. The solid fuel burning appliance is not designed for directly connected outside combustion air or;
- B. The existing construction prohibits the introduction of outside combustion air directly to the solid fuel burning appliance.

C. The combustion air source shall be located as close to the solid fuel burning appliance as possible, shall be provided with a backdraft damper, and shall be no less than six inches in diameter.

5. Calculation of Heating and Cooling Loads. Heating and cooling design loads for the purpose of sizing HVAC systems are required and shall be calculated in accordance with accepted engineering practice. The design parameters specified in Chapter 3 shall apply for all computations.

HVAC equipment for low-rise residential buildings shall be sized no greater than 150 percent of the design load as calculated above.

EXCEPTION: The following exemption from the sizing limit shall be allowed, however, in all cases heating and/or cooling design load calculations shall be submitted. For equipment which provides both heating and cooling in one package unit, including heat pumps with electric heating and cooling and gas-pack units with gas heating and electric cooling, compliance need only be demonstrated for either the space heating or space cooling system size.

(b) Temperature Control.

Each heating system shall be provided with at least one thermostat for the regulation of temperature. Each thermostat shall be capable of being set as follows:

Where used to control heating only—55-75°;
 Where used to control cooling only—70-85°;
 Where used to control both heating and cooling, it shall conform to the requirements of Section 415.

(c) Zoning for Temperature Control.

1. Group R-3 Occupancy
 At least one thermostat for regulation of space temperature shall be provided for each separate HVAC system. In addition, a readily accessible manual or automatic means shall be provided to partially restrict or shut off the heating or cooling input to each zone or floor.
 EXCEPTION: Nonconditioned basements and garages.
2. Group R-1 Occupancy.
 For multifamily dwellings, each individual dwelling unit shall be considered separately and shall meet the requirements of Section 602. Spaces other than living units shall meet the requirements of section 415 (c) 3.
3. Control Setback and Shutoff: Group R-1 and R-3.
 The thermostat required in (a) and (b) or an alternate means such as a switch or clock, shall provide a readily accessible, manual or automatic means for reducing the energy required for heating and cooling during periods of nonuse or reduced need such as, but not limited to, unoccupied periods and sleeping hours. Lowering thermostat set points to reduce energy consumption of heating systems shall not cause energy to be expended to reach the reduced setting.
4. Duct Insulation.
 All ducts, plenums and enclosures installed in or on buildings shall be thermally insulated and constructed in accordance with Section 416.
5. Pipe Insulation.
 All piping installed to serve buildings or within buildings shall be thermally insulated in accordance with Table 4-17.
 EXCEPTION: For service water heating systems, see Section 603.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-14, filed 11/26/85)

WAC 51-12-605 SECTION 605. BUILDING ENVELOPE REQUIREMENTS FOR OTHER THAN LOW-RISE RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS.

- (a) Opaque Envelope Criteria. Roof/ceilings, exterior walls, floors over unconditioned space, below grade walls and slab on grade floors enclosing heated spaces shall be insulated to not less than the nominal R value specified for roof/ceilings, exterior walls, floors over unconditioned space, below grade walls and slab on grade floors, respectively, in Table No. 6-5. Roof/ceilings enclosing mechanically cooled spaces shall be insulated to not less than the nominal R value specified for roof/ceilings in Table No. 6-5. Compliance with nominal R values shall be demonstrated for the thermal resistance of the added insulation in framing cavities and/or insulated sheathing only and shall not include the thermal transmittance of other building materials or air films, but shall permit interruption by occasional framing members.
 Installation of materials shall comply with Section 402 ~~((d) and)~~ (e) and (f). In addition, below grade wall insulation shall extend from the top of the wall to the top of the footing or floor slab. Slab on grade floor insulation shall be installed along the entire perimeter of slab on grade floors, except for any part of slab which extends into an unconditioned space such as a garage, and shall extend downward from the top of the slab to the top of the footing or to the bottom of the thickened edge of a monolithic slab or for a

minimum distance of 24 inches or downward to the bottom of the slab then horizontally beneath the slab for a minimum total distance of 24 inches and shall be an approved type.

- (b) Glazing Criteria. All glazing shall be, at a minimum, double glazing. Insulating glass with at least ~~((+4))~~ one-half (1/2) inch air space or approved storm sash will be considered as complying. The total glazing area shall not exceed the percentage of gross exterior wall area specified in Table No. 6-5.
 EXCEPTION: Single glazing in doors may be installed provided that the glazing area is doubled for the purpose of demonstrating compliance with the glazing area requirements.
- (c) Air Leakage. All buildings shall comply with the air leakage requirement of Section 405.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 86-04, filed 5/13/86)

WAC 51-12-608 SECTION 608. ELECTRICAL POWER AND LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS FOR OTHER THAN LOW-RISE RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS.
 All electrical power and lighting systems shall comply with the requirements of Sections 424 to 426, inclusive.

TABLE 6-1
 Low-rise Residential Buildings
 Minimum (average) Allowed R Values¹

Space Heat Type	Climatic Zone	Roof			Slab on ³ Grade	
		Ceilings ²	Decks	Walls		
Electric Resistance	I	38	38	19	19	((8)) 7
Electric, Passive Solar	I	30	30	19	19	((8)) 7
Other	I	30	30	19	19	((8)) 7
Other, Passive Solar	I	30	30	19	19	((8)) 7
Electric Resistance	II	38	38	19	25	10
Electric, Passive Solar	II	30	30	19	19	10
Other	II	30	30	19	19	10
Other, Passive Solar	II	30	30	19	19	10

¹R values, except for walls, are for installed insulation material only.
²R-30 in single rafter, joist vaulted ceilings.
³Insulation shall be water-resistant material manufactured for this use.

TABLE 6-2
 Low-rise Residential Buildings
 Classes of Glazing

Class	U-Value	Window Thermal Testing Requirement ¹
90	.90	Untested
90	Greater than .75	Tested
75	.61 to .75	Tested
60	Less than .61	Tested

¹See DEFINITIONS, Section 223. WINDOW THERMAL TESTING.

TABLE 6-3

Low-rise Residential Buildings
Heat Pump Minimum Efficiencies

Source and Outdoor Temperature (°F)	Class 1		Class 2	
	COP	HSPF	COP	HSPF
Air Source - 47 dB/43 WB	2.7		2.5	
Air source - 17 dB/15 WB	1.8		1.5	
Air Source		6.35		5.60
Water Source - 60 entering	3.0		2.5	
Ground Source	3.0		3.0	

TABLE 6-4

Low-rise Residential Buildings
Glazing and Furnace
Efficiency Requirements

Space Heat Type	Climate Zone	Maximum Percentage of Floor Area in Glazing		AFUE*	Heat Pump Class
		Glazing Class			
Electric Resistance	I	21%	60	n/a	n/a
Electric, Passive					
Solar	I	21%	60	n/a	n/a
Other	I	21%	75	.65	2
Other	I	21%	90	.74	1
Other, Passive Solar	I	21%	90	.65	2
Electric Resistance	II	17%	60	n/a	n/a
Electric, Passive					
Solar	II	17%	60	n/a	n/a
Other	II	17%	75	.65	2
Other	II	17%	90	.74	1
Other, Passive Solar	II	17%	90	.65	2

*AFUE applies only to central heating equipment. All other types of heating equipment fueled by gas, oil, or propane must be equipped with an intermittent ignition device in order to use Class 90 glazing.

TABLE NO. 6-5

All Other than Low-rise Residential Buildings
Component Requirements

Component	Zone I	Zone II
Space Conditioning System Type	Any	Any
Opaque Envelope Minimum Nominal R Value		
Roof/Ceilings	R-30	R-30
Exterior Walls	R-11	R-11
Floors over Unconditioned Space	R-11	R-11
Below Grade Walls ¹	R-4	R-5
Slab on Grade Floors ¹	((R=8)) R-7	R-10
Glazing		
Type	Double	Double
Maximum Total Area (Percent of Gross Exterior Wall)	32%	22%

¹Insulation shall be water-resistant material manufactured for this use.

PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
(Wildlife Commission)
[Filed December 6, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Wildlife Commission intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning Amendment to 1988-90 Washington game fish regulations—Mayfield Lake, adopting WAC 232-28-61713;

that the agency will at 9:00 a.m., Friday, January 13, 1989, in the Tye Hotel, 500 Tye Drive, Olympia, WA 98502, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 13, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 77.12.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 77.12.040.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 13, 1989.

Dated: December 1, 1988

By: Mike P. Kuttel, Division Chief
Fisheries Management Division

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Number of Rule Section(s): WAC 232-28-61713 Amendment to 1988-90 Washington game fish regulations—Mayfield Lake.

Statutory Authority: RCW 77.12.040.

Specific Statute that Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 77.12.040.

Summary of the Rule: WAC 232-28-61713 will establish a minimum size limit and bag limit for tiger muskellunge caught in Mayfield Lake.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rules(s): WAC 232-28-61713, Tiger muskellunge have been released in Mayfield Lake in Lewis County. A minimum size limit of 30 inches is needed to protect them until they are large enough to become an effective predator on squawfish. This regulation would also promote a trophy fishery on Mayfield Lake. A catch limit is needed to spread the harvest to more anglers.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting and Implementation: Mike Kuttel, Division Chief, Fisheries Management Division, Department of Wildlife, 600 Capitol Way North, Olympia, WA 98502-1091, phone (206) 753-5713; and Enforcement: Dan Wyckoff, Division Chief, Wildlife Enforcement Division, Department of Wildlife, 600 Capitol Way North, Olympia, WA 98502-1091, phone (206) 753-5740.

Name of Person or Organization, Whether Private, Public, or Government, that is Proposing the Rule: Department of Wildlife.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to the Rule(s): None.

The rules are not necessary to comply with a federal law or a federal or state court decision.

Any Other Information that may be of Assistance in Identifying the Rule of its Purpose: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not required.

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-61713 AMENDMENT TO 1988-90 WASHINGTON GAME FISH REGULATIONS—MAYFIELD LAKE. Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 232-28-617, it is unlawful to possess more than one tiger muskellunge, or tiger muskellunge less than 30 inches long.

WSR 88-24-039

PROPOSED RULES

STATE EMPLOYEES BENEFITS BOARD

[Filed December 6, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Employees Benefits Board intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning new section WAC 182-08-165 and repealing WAC 182-12-140;

that the agency will at 1:30 p.m., Wednesday, January 11, 1989, in the Department of Transportation Commission Board Room, 1-D2, Maple Park and Jefferson, Olympia, Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 41.05.065.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 5, 1989.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: C. H. Shay

Assistant Benefits Manager

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

New section WAC 182-08-165 Other group coverage option; and repealing WAC 182-12-140 New eligible employees.

WAC 182-08-165 provides employees on leave without pay the option to carry other coverage in place of SEBB coverage without losing reinstatement rights; and WAC 182-12-140 is an obsolete rule.

Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement: C. H. Shay, Assistant Benefits Manager, Health Care Authority, 1400 Evergreen Park Drive S.W., Olympia, WA 98504, mailstop FX-11, phone 753-3096, 234-3096 scan.

Proposed by: State Employees Benefits Board.

Agency Comments: None.

Not necessary due to law or court action.

NEW SECTION

WAC 182-08-165 OTHER GROUP COVERAGE OPTION. The following shall apply to employees during any period of authorized

leave without pay. In order to avoid duplication of group medical coverage, such employees who obtain coverage under another group medical plan may interrupt continuance of their SEBB self-pay medical coverage for each full calendar month in which they maintain coverage under the other group medical plan, with the right to reinstate SEBB self-pay medical/dental coverage in the month following termination of the other group medical coverage. Provided, that the furnishing of evidence of such other group medical coverage may be required by the Washington State Health Care Authority. Provided further, that the option to continue self-pay SEBB dental coverage shall be suspended for the same period that SEBB self-pay medical is suspended.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 182-12-140 NEW ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES

WSR 88-24-040

PROPOSED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL

(Personnel Board)

[Filed December 6, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Personnel Board intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

- Rep WAC 356-18-180 Returning employee rights.
- New WAC 356-05-238 Pay status.
- Amd WAC 356-18-020 Holidays.
- Amd WAC 356-18-025 Holidays—Selected personal holiday, regulations governing.
- Amd WAC 356-18-030 Holidays—Rules, regulation governing.
- Amd WAC 356-18-040 Holidays—During leave without pay.
- Amd WAC 356-18-050 Sick leave credit—Purpose—Accrual—Conversion.
- Amd WAC 356-18-060 Paid sick leave—Use.
- Amd WAC 356-18-070 Sick leave—Reporting—Payment.
- Amd WAC 356-18-080 Leave—Workers compensation.
- Amd WAC 356-18-090 Vacation leave—Accrual.
- Amd WAC 356-18-110 Vacation leave—Allowance.
- Amd WAC 356-18-116 Leave due to child care emergencies.
- Amd WAC 356-18-140 Leave without pay.
- Amd WAC 356-18-150 Leave—Newborn or adoptive child care—Provision.
- Amd WAC 356-18-160 Military leave—Reemployment.
- Amd WAC 356-18-220 Leave without pay—Effect on anniversary;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Board Hearings Room, Department of Personnel, 521 South Capitol Way, Olympia, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 41.06.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 41.06.150.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 10, 1989.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Leonard Nord

Secretary

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

New WAC 356-05-238.

Title: Pay status.

Purpose: New rule.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(9).

Summary: Will define the term "pay status" that is currently used in the rules.

Reasons: Will be used for clarification of an existing term.

Amending WAC 356-18-020.

Title: Holidays.

Purpose: The rule lists the legal holidays designated by statute.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(9).

Summary: By adding the new paragraph (2) to this rule exempts Sunday from consideration as a holiday unless otherwise specified in the rules.

Reasons: This change will reflect current practice and clarifies the intent of the rule.

Amending WAC 356-18-025.

Title: Holidays—Selected personal holiday, regulations governing.

Purpose: Specifies the conditions for accrual and use of personal holidays.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(9).

Summary: Provides more specificity in the administration of the personal holiday including eligibility period, and issues of part-time employees and allotted time period is addressed.

Reasons: This will clarify the present rule. The change does not affect the present administration of the rule. Agencies are presently operating under the procedures being implemented by this change.

Amending WAC 356-18-030.

Title: Holidays—Rules, regulation governing.

Purpose: Specifies the conditions for eligibility and use of holidays authorized.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(9).

Summary and Reasons: Deletes reference to Sunday due to the change in WAC 356-18-020 and clarifies the wording in paragraph (6) regarding the eligibility and entitlements for part-time employees.

Amending WAC 356-18-040.

Title: Holidays—During leave without pay.

Purpose: Addresses the eligibility for holidays for employees on leave without pay.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(9).

Summary and Reasons: Will limit the applicability of this rule to full-time employees. Part-time employees are addressed in WAC 356-18-030(6).

Amending WAC 356-18-050.

Title: Sick leave credit—Purpose—Accrual—Conversion.

Purpose: Clarifies the eligibility for sick leave accrual.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary: Converts 15 calendar days to 8-nonovertime hours.

Reasons: Calendar days are awkward in administration of the rule. Changing the eligibility criteria to hours

simplifies the administration of this rule for employees on irregular shifts or work weeks.

Amending WAC 356-18-060.

Title: Paid sick leave—Use.

Purpose: Identifies legitimate uses for accrued sick leave.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary: Paragraph (2) of this rule is the result of the legislation passed in the 1988 legislative session that authorizes employees to use all accumulated sick leave to care for illnesses to their children. Other changes are for the purpose of clarifying existing provisions.

Reasons: The change in paragraph (2) is a required revision due to legislation.

Amending WAC 356-18-070.

Title: Sick leave—Reporting—Payment.

Purpose: Prescribes the administrative procedures governing sick leave within the agency.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: Instructs agencies how to deal with employees who are suspected of abusing sick leave and general clarifications of current practices.

Amending WAC 356-18-080.

Title: Leave—Workers compensation.

Purpose: Governs the use of leave for employees on leave due to on the job injury.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: Will add the provisions of assault leave granted by the legislature in chapters 72.01 and 72.09 RCW.

Amending WAC 356-18-090.

Title: Vacation leave—Accrual.

Purpose: Governs how employees accrue vacation leave.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary: Converts the 15 calendar day minimum requirement into hours worked.

Reasons: This will ease administering and make it easier to figure if an employee has been in pay status for 80 hours than 15 calendar days.

Amending WAC 356-18-110.

Title: Vacation leave—Allowance.

Purpose: Prescribes the agency administration of vacation leave.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: Clarification of the rule to make administration easier and more consistent.

Amending WAC 356-18-116.

Title: Leave due to child care emergencies.

Purpose: Authorized the use of four leave categories if an employee is absent due to unforeseen child care requirements.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: Clarification of present policy.

Amending WAC 356-18-140.

Title: Leave without pay.

Purpose: Governs the use of leave without pay.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: The change will clarify the existing policy and adds a paragraph (5) which addresses the employees' return rights at the end of leave without pay.

Amending WAC 356-18-150.

Title: Leave—Newborn or adoptive child care—Provision.

Purpose: Authorized up to six months of leave without pay for the purposes of staying home with a newborn or newly adopted child.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: For clarification and rewrites a lengthy one paragraph rule.

Amending WAC 356-18-160.

Title: Military leave—Reemployment.

Purpose: Governs the reemployment right of an employee who has entered active duty in one of the branches of the armed forces.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary and Reasons: Clarification of the present laws governing reemployment.

Amending WAC 356-18-220.

Title: Leave without pay—Effect on anniversary date and periodic increment date.

Purpose: Governs the conditions under which the anniversary date and periodic increment date (PID).

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(8).

Summary: This change adds service in the Peace Corps to the list of exemptions to the adjustment of the anniversary and PID.

Reasons: Adding service in the Peace Corps the current practice of the agencies.

Responsibility for Drafting: Paul Peterson, Department of Personnel, 521 South Capitol Way, FE-11, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 586-1769; **Implementation and Enforcement:** Department of Personnel.

Agency or Organization Submitting Proposal: Department of Personnel, governmental agency.

Rule Proposal a Result of Federal Law, or Federal or State Court Action: No.

NEW SECTION

WAC 356-05-238 PAY STATUS. Periods of work or paid leave time which qualify and employee for wages.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 228, filed 7/15/85)

WAC 356-18-020 HOLIDAYS. (1) Legal holidays are designated by statute. The following are legal holidays as established by RCW 1.16.050:

Sunday	
New Year's Day	January 1
Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday	Third Monday in January
Presidents' Day	Third Monday in February
Memorial Day	Last Monday of May
Independence Day	July 4
Labor Day	First Monday in September
Veteran's Day	November 11
Thanksgiving Day	Fourth Thursday in November
The day immediately following Thanksgiving Day	
Christmas Day	December 25

(2) For purposes of this chapter Sunday is not considered a holiday unless specifically identified in the rules.

(3) Employees, except hourly rated faculty employees and those employees employed on the basis of contracts for a specified number of work days or faculty appointments, may select another day each calendar year on which to take an additional holiday as provided in WAC 356-18-025.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 87, filed 5/4/76)

WAC 356-18-025 HOLIDAYS—SELECTED PERSONAL HOLIDAY—REGULATIONS GOVERNING. (1) As noted in WAC 356-18-020(2) an employee may select one workday as a personal holiday each calendar year(~~as referred to in WAC 356-18-020 and~~). The agency (~~must grant the~~) shall release the employee from work on this day provided:

(a) The employee has been or is scheduled to be continuously employed by the state for more than four months, and

(b) The employee who is scheduled to work less than six continuous months over a period covering two calendar years shall receive only one personal holiday during this period.

(c) The employee has given not less than ~~(14)~~ fourteen calendar days' written notice to the supervisor, provided, however, the employee and the supervisor may agree upon an earlier date, and

~~((c))~~ (d) The number of employees selecting a particular day off does not prevent an agency from providing continued public service.

(2) The personal holiday must be taken during the calendar year or entitlement to the day will lapse, except that the entitlement shall carry over to the following year when an otherwise qualified employee has requested a personal holiday and the request has been denied.

(3) Agencies may also establish qualifying policies for determining which of the requests for a particular day will or will not be granted when the number of requests for a personal holiday would impair operational necessity.

(4) Part-time employees who were employed during the month in which the personal holiday is taken will be compensated for the personal holiday in an amount proportionate to the time actually worked during the month to that required for full-time employment.

(5) A personal holiday for full-time employees shall be equivalent to their workshift on that day.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 299, filed 5/13/88)

WAC 356-18-030 HOLIDAYS—RULES—REGULATIONS GOVERNING. (1) The holidays cited in WAC 356-18-020 (~~except Sundays~~) are paid nonworking days for eligible employees.

(2) When operational necessity requires that employees work on ~~((a))~~ any holiday (~~except Sundays~~), they shall be compensated in accordance with the applicable provisions of the compensation plan appendix and chapter 356-15 WAC.

(3) For full-time employees on a Monday through Friday work schedule:

(a) Whenever any legal holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be the holiday. Whenever any legal holiday(~~other than a Sunday~~) falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be the holiday.

(4) For full-time employees not on a Monday through Friday work schedule:

(a) When a holiday (~~other than Sunday~~) as identified in WAC 356-18-020(1) falls on the employee's scheduled work day, that day will be considered the holiday.

(b) When a holiday (~~other than Sunday~~) as identified in WAC 356-18-020(1) falls on the employee's scheduled day off, agencies shall, with respect to each individual employee, treat either the last preceding or the next following work day as the holiday.

(5) For employees working a night shift schedule which begins on one calendar day and ends on the next, the ~~((24))~~ twenty-four-hour "paid holiday" shall be determined by the agency to commence either at the start of the scheduled night shift that begins on the calendar holiday, or at the start of the shift that precedes the calendar holiday. The determination shall be consistent for all employees in a facility unless there is agreement between the agency and one of more affected employees to do otherwise. Agreement by the exclusive representative shall constitute agreement of the employees.

(6) Part-time employees who were (~~on the payroll~~) employed before and after the holiday and for a period of at least twelve calendar days during the month (but not including the holiday) will be compensated in cash, compensatory time, or exchange time for the holiday in ~~((a))~~ an amount proportionate (~~amount of~~) to the time actually worked during the month to that required for full-time employment.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 120, filed 5/12/78)

WAC 356-18-040 HOLIDAYS—DURING LEAVE WITHOUT PAY. ~~((Am))~~ A full-time employee who would otherwise be entitled to a holiday but is on leave without pay will receive compensation for the holiday provided he/she has been in pay status for ~~((ten working days))~~ eighty nonovertime hours during the month, not counting the holiday.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 266, filed 12/18/86, effective 2/1/87)

WAC 356-18-050 SICK LEAVE CREDIT—PURPOSE—ACRUAL—CONVERSION. (1) Sick leave credits are granted as a form of insurance to minimize loss of compensation to employees due solely to reasons specified in WAC 356-18-060.

(2) Eight hours of sick leave credit shall be granted for each month in which a full-time employee is in pay status for ~~((15 or more calendar days))~~ eighty nonovertime hours during the month. Sick leave credit for other than full-time employees whose payroll hours are less than forty hours a week shall be computed and accrued at the ratio of payroll hours to payroll hours required for full-time employment.

(3) Employees shall be eligible to receive monetary compensation for accrued sick leave as follows:

(a) In January of each year, and at no other time, an employee whose sick leave balance at the end of the previous year exceeds ~~((400))~~ four hundred eighty hours may elect to convert the sick leave hours earned in the previous calendar year, minus those hours used during the year, to monetary compensation.

(i) No sick leave hours may be converted which would reduce the calendar year-end balance below ~~((400))~~ four hundred eighty hours.

(ii) Monetary compensation for converted hours shall be paid at the rate of ~~((25%))~~ twenty-five percent and shall be based upon the employee's current salary.

(iii) All converted hours will be deducted from the employee's sick leave balance.

(b) Employees who separate from state service on or after September 1, 1979, due to retirement or death shall be compensated for their total unused sick leave accumulation at the rate of ~~((25%))~~ twenty-five percent. Compensation shall be based upon the employee's salary at the time of separation. For the purpose of this subsection, retirement shall not include "vested out-of-service" employees who leave funds on deposit with the department of retirement systems (DRS).

(c) No contributions are to be made to the department of retirement systems (DRS) for such payments in (a) or (b) ~~((above))~~ of this subsection, nor shall such payments be reported to DRS as compensation.

(4) Employees who separate for any reason other than retirement or death shall not be paid for their accrued sick leave.

(5) Former employees who are again employed within five years of their separation from service shall be granted all unused sick leave credits, if any, to which they were entitled at time of separation for the purpose of using sick leave for the reasons prescribed in WAC 356-18-060. Upon any subsequent retirement or death of a reemployed retiree, only that unused sick leave accrued since the original retirement minus that taken within the same period may be compensated per the conversion provisions of WAC 356-18-050 (3)(b).

(6) Employees coming under the jurisdiction of the state personnel board from the jurisdiction of the higher education personnel board by the provisions of WAC 356-49-040 shall be credited with their sick leave accumulated with the higher education system.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 263, filed 11/25/86, effective 1/1/87)

WAC 356-18-060 PAID SICK LEAVE—USE. (1) Personal illness: Accumulated sick leave shall be granted when an employee is required to be absent from work for any of the following reasons:

- (a) Illness or injury of the employee or for preventative health care.
- (b) Exposure of the employee to contagious disease when attendance at work would jeopardize the health of others.
- (c) Disability of the employee due to pregnancy or childbirth.

(2) Illness of children: Accumulated sick leave shall be granted when an employee is required to be absent from work to provide care to a child under the age of eighteen with a health condition requiring treatment or supervision. For the purpose of this subsection, "children" shall be limited to the son or daughter of the employee or the employee's spouse.

(3) Illness of relatives or household members: Up to five days of accumulated sick leave shall be granted (~~up to five days~~) for each occurrence or as extended by the agency when an employee is required to be absent from work (~~for any of the following reasons~~) to provide care to members of the employee's household or relatives of the employee or the employee's spouse who experience an illness or injury. For purposes of this subsection, "relatives" shall be limited to:

~~(a) (Illness, injury or preventative health care of members of the employee's household or relatives of the employee that requires the employee's attendance.~~

~~(b) For purposes of the provisions of subsection (2)(a) of this section, "relatives" shall include:~~

~~((i)) Spouse.~~

~~((ii)) Son, daughter,)) (b) Grandchild, or foster child.~~

~~((iii)) (c) Grandparent or parent.~~

~~((c)) (4) Preventative health care of relatives or household members: Up to one day of sick leave shall be granted for each occurrence or as extended by the agency when an employee is required to be absent to provide care or transportation for a relative of the employee or the employee's spouse or for a member of the employee's household obtaining preventative health care. For the purposes of this subsection "relatives" shall be limited to:~~

~~(a) Spouse.~~

~~(b) Son, daughter, grandchild, or foster child.~~

~~(c) Grandparent or parent.~~

~~(5) For purposes of the provisions of subsections ~~((2))~~ (3), (4), and ~~((3))~~ (6)(a) of this section:~~

Members of household means "persons who reside in same home, who have reciprocal and natural and/or moral duties to and do provide support for one another. The term does not include persons sharing the same general house when the living style is primarily that of a dormitory or commune."

~~((3)) (6) Bereavement: Accumulated sick leave shall be granted up to three days for each occurrence or as extended by the agency for reasons of travel when an employee is required to be absent from work for any of the following reasons:~~

~~(a) Death of members of the employee's household or relatives of the employee or the employee's spouse.~~

~~(b) For purposes of the provisions of subsection ~~((3))~~ (6)(a) of this section, an employee's "relatives" shall ~~((include))~~ be limited to:~~

~~(i) Spouse.~~

~~(ii) Son, daughter, grandchild, foster child, son-in-law, or daughter-in-law.~~

~~(iii) Grandparent, parent, brother, sister, niece, nephew, aunt, uncle, first cousin, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law.~~

~~((4)) (7) Inability of employee to report for scheduled work because of severe inclement weather. (Such use of sick leave shall be limited to three days in any calendar year and shall be used only as specified in WAC 356-18-115.)~~

~~((5)) (8) In addition to the reasons listed above, ~~((emergency care of))~~ unforeseen child care requirements for the employee's son, daughter, stepchild, or a child in the custody of and residing in the home of the employee. (Such use of sick leave shall normally be limited to a maximum of one day per incident, and to three days in any calendar year, unless extended by the appointing authority, and shall be used only as specified in WAC 356-18-116.)~~

~~((6)) (9) When a condition listed under subsection (1)(a) or (c) of this section arises while the employee is on vacation leave, the employee shall be granted accrued sick leave as provided above for the condition (in lieu of the approved vacation leave) provided that the employee requests such sick leave within fourteen days after return to work. Such conversion rights shall not extend to vacation leave taken prior to an employee's separation as provided in WAC 356-18-100(2).~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 207, filed 6/22/84)

WAC 356-18-070 SICK LEAVE—REPORTING—PAYMENT. (1) Sick leave shall be reported at the beginning of the absence and in accordance with agency procedure.

(2) Upon returning to work the employee shall report the general reason or circumstance for the sick leave as found in WAC 356-18-060 (1) through (6). A medical certificate may be required when there is cause to suspect sick leave abuse; to assist agencies in protecting the employees from returning to work too soon following an illness or injury; or to protect fellow employees or clients from contagious illness. A medical certificate must be required if the reason was personal illness as cited in WAC 356-18-060 (1)(a), (b), or (c), and continued for more than ten continuous work days.

(3) Agencies who suspect that an employee is abusing sick leave shall express such concerns to the employee in writing. Approval of sick leave shall not preclude an agency from taking corrective action if the problem of sick leave abuse is not corrected.

(4) Sick leave shall be charged ((on an hourly basis)) in half-hour increments or in smaller increments as set by the employing agency.

((47)) (5) The accounting procedures established by the office of financial management prescribe the payments of sick leave for the reasons found in WAC 356-18-060(1) so as to exclude the payments from the meaning of "wages" under the Federal Old Age and Survivors Insurance.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 224, filed 6/24/85)

WAC 356-18-080 LEAVE—WORKER'S COMPENSATION.

(1) Employees who suffer a work related injury or illness (occupational disease) shall file an application for worker's compensation in accordance with chapter 51.28 RCW.

(2) Employees who suffer a work related injury or illness and are unable to work due to such injury or illness may elect to receive time loss compensation exclusively, leave payment exclusively or a combination of time loss compensation and paid leave. The employing agency shall make such options known to the employee.

(3) Employees who elect to use sick leave during a period in which they receive worker's time loss compensation under the industrial insurance provisions for a work related illness or injury shall receive full sick leave pay, less any industrial insurance payments for time loss during the sick leave period.

(a) Until eligibility for worker's compensation is determined by the department of labor and industries, the employee may elect to use accrued sick leave, provided that the employee shall return any subsequent overpayment to the agency.

(b) Sick leave hours charged to an employee who receives worker's compensation as a result of the time loss shall be proportionate to that portion of the employee's salary paid by the agency during the claim period.

(4) When an employee elects to receive pay for vacation leave, compensatory time off or exchange time and also receives worker's compensation for time loss, the employee is entitled to both payments without any deductions for the time loss payment except for employees of the departments of social and health services, corrections and veterans affairs who miss work due to an assault that occurred on the job and are receiving compensation in an amount equal to full pay, as provided in chapters 72.01 and 72.09 RCW. Pay for vacation leave, compensatory time off or exchange time to such employees shall be limited to an amount equal to the amount of their worker's compensation for time loss.

(5) When an employee receives pay for a holiday and also receives worker's compensation for time loss, the employee is entitled to both payments without any deductions for the time loss payment.

(6) Should an employee apply for time loss compensation and the claim is then or later denied, accrued leave may be used for the absence.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 264, filed 11/21/86, effective 1/1/87)

WAC 356-18-090 VACATION LEAVE—ACCRUAL. (1)

Full-time employees who were in pay status for ((15 or more calendar days)) eighty nonovertime hours during the month including holidays shall be credited monthly with the following rates of vacation leave for each year of employment. Part-time, intermittent, hourly or seasonal employees whose payroll hours are usually less than ((40)) forty hours a week shall be credited with vacation leave hours at the respective ratio of payroll hours to the payroll hours requirement for full-time employment.

(a) During the first year of current continuous employment — ((96)) Ninety-six hours (((+2)) twelve days) per annum.

(b) During the second year of current continuous employment — ((104)) One hundred four hours (((+3)) thirteen days) per annum.

(c) During the third and fourth years of current continuous employment — ((+12)) One hundred twelve hours (((+4)) fourteen days) per annum.

(d) During the fifth, sixth, and seventh years of current continuous employment — ((+20)) One hundred twenty hours (((+5)) fifteen days) per annum.

(e) During the eighth, ninth, and tenth total years of employment — ((+28)) One hundred twenty-eight hours (((+6)) sixteen days) per annum.

(f) During the eleventh year of total employment — ((+36)) One hundred thirty-six hours (((+7)) seventeen days) per annum.

(g) During the twelfth year of total employment — ((+44)) One hundred forty-four hours (((+8)) eighteen days) per annum.

(h) During the thirteenth year of total employment — ((+52)) One hundred fifty-two hours (((+9)) nineteen days) per annum.

(i) During the fourteenth year of total employment — ((+60)) One hundred sixty hours (((+20)) twenty days) per annum.

(j) During the fifteenth year of total employment — ((+68)) One hundred sixty-eight hours (((+21)) twenty-one days) per annum.

(k) During the sixteenth year of total employment and after — ((+76)) One hundred seventy-six hours (((+22)) twenty-two days) per annum.

(2) Vacation leave is cumulative to a maximum of ((240)) two hundred forty hours (((30)) thirty working days) unless the employee's request for leave is deferred by the agency and a statement of necessity filed with the director of personnel. Such deferred leave may be credited in excess of the ((30)) thirty-day maximum until such leave is granted by the employing agency.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 152, filed 3/13/81)

WAC 356-18-110 VACATION LEAVE—ALLOWANCE. (1)

Full-time employees shall not use or be compensated for vacation leave credits until completion of six months continuous state service. Employees whose payroll hours are usually less than 40 hours a week shall not use nor be compensated for vacation leave credits until completion of twelve continuous months of ((regularly scheduled)) state service ((with state government)).

(2) All requests for vacation leave shall be in writing and must be approved in advance of the effective date unless used in lieu of sick leave or ((for emergency)) to respond to unforeseen child care requirements, or the supervisor chooses to approve the vacation leave on a retropective basis.

(3) Vacation leave shall be charged in half-hour increments or in smaller increments as set by the employing agency.

(4) In granting requests for vacation leave the employing agency shall give due regard to the needs of the employee but may require that leave be taken when it will least interfere with the work of the agency.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 263, filed 11/25/86, effective 1/1/87)

WAC 356-18-116 LEAVE DUE TO UNFORESEEN CHILD CARE ((EMERGENCIES)) REQUIREMENTS. Absence due to an employee's inability to report for or continue scheduled work ((because of emergency)) due to unforeseen child care requirements shall be authorized in any of the leave categories listed below at the employee's desire(;). No advance approval shall be required.

(1) Compensatory or exchange time.

(2) Vacation leave.

(3) Accrued sick leave.

(4) Leave without pay.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 267, filed 1/2/87)

WAC 356-18-140 LEAVE WITHOUT PAY. (1) Leave without pay may be allowed when such leave will not operate to the detriment of the state service.

(2) Leave without pay may be authorized for any reasons applicable to:

(a) Leave with pay.

(b) Educational leave.

(c) Newborn or adoptive child care leave as provided in WAC 356-18-150.

(d) Military and U.S. Public Health Service and Peace Corps leave.

(e) Specific leaves granted for government service in the public interest upon specific request of an employee, concurred in by the appointing authority and approved by the director of personnel.

(f) Leave taken voluntarily to reduce the effect of an agency reduction in force((, leaving the employee's standing with regard to the RIF register in tact)). Such leave shall not affect an employee's seniority.

(g) Leave that is authorized in advance by the appointing authority as part of a plan to reasonably accommodate a person of disability (as defined in WAC 356-05-260).

(3) Authorized leave without pay shall be limited to not more than 12 months in any consecutive five-year period, except for:

(a) Leaves without pay for military, U.S. Public Health Service or Peace Corps;

(b) Authorized government leave not exceeding two years;

(c) Employees receiving time loss compensation;

(d) Educational leaves under provisions of WAC 356-39-120;

(e) Newborn or adoptive child care leave under provisions of WAC 356-18-150; ((or))

(f) Leave taken voluntarily to reduce the effect of an agency reduction in force under the provisions of WAC 356-30-335.

(g) Leave that is authorized in advance by the appointing authority as part of a plan to reasonably accommodate a person of disability (as defined in WAC 356-05-260).

(4) Leave without pay exceeding twelve months in a consecutive five-year period, not covered by the exceptions noted in subsection (3) of this section, shall be treated as unauthorized absence.

(5) Employees returning from authorized leave without pay shall be employed in the same position, or in another or similar position in the same class and in the same geographical area, provided that such return to employment is not in conflict with rules relating to reduction in force.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 153, filed 4/15/81)

WAC 356-18-150 LEAVE—NEWBORN OR ADOPTIVE CHILD CARE—PROVISION. (1) Child care leave without pay may be authorized to a permanent employee who is the parent of a newborn child or is the adoptive parent of a child if the leave is requested in advance by the employee (~~((leave must be requested within 60 days of adoption))~~). The duration of ~~((the))~~ such leave without pay shall be no more than six months. ~~((Prior to taking child care leave, employees shall indicate in writing the duration of the leave. Employees shall be allowed to use their accrued vacation leave, or any portion thereof, in conjunction with unpaid child care leave granted in accordance with this rule. Because of operational necessity, an agency may deny child care leave. In such cases employees shall be informed of their right to petition this decision to the director of personnel. The director may require that child care leave be granted by the agency upon petition by the employee. When an agency denies child care leave under this rule, and the director of personnel does not require it, an employee who vacates her/his position for the purpose of child care may request reemployment at anytime within a six month period after vacating the position, and after such request to the department of personnel shall be offered the first opening in the former class and work location. This offer of employment shall take precedence over all registers except the reduction in force register.))~~

(2) The employee shall make the request for child care leave without pay in writing and indicate the duration of the leave. Employees shall be allowed to use their accrued vacation leave, or any portion thereof, in conjunction with child care leave without pay authorized in accordance with this section.

(3) An agency may deny the child care leave request on the basis of operational necessity. Denials shall be in writing to the employee and shall inform the employee of the right to petition the director of personnel for review.

(4) The director shall review the petition and may require the agency to authorize the child care leave request.

(5) When an agency denies child care leave under this section, and the director of personnel does not require it, an employee who vacates his/her position for the purpose of child care leave may request to return to state service. Such employee must notify the department of personnel, within six months of vacating the position, of their desire to return to work. The department of personnel shall direct the former employing agency to offer the employee the first vacancy in the employee's former class and geographic work location. This offer shall take precedence over all registers except for reduction-in-force registers.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 120, filed 5/12/78)

WAC 356-18-160 MILITARY LEAVE—REEMPLOYMENT. (1) Any person who is a resident of this state and who voluntarily or upon demand vacates a position of employment other than temporary to determine physical fitness to enter or who actually does enter upon

active duty or training in the Washington National Guard, the armed forces of the United States or the United States Public Health Service shall be reemployed ~~((within 90 days of discharge))~~ under the conditions prescribed in ~~((WAC {RCW}))~~ RCW 73.16.031 through 73.16.061.

(2) ~~Such persons must ((return to state service within three months after serving four years or less provided that any additional service imposed by law will not affect their reemployment rights (RCW 73.16.035)));~~

(a) Provide written notice to their employer within ninety days of the date of separation or release from training and service (rejected applicants must apply within thirty days from date of rejection);

(b) Furnish a receipt of honorable discharge, report of separation or certificate of satisfactory service of other proof of satisfactorily completed service (rejected applicants must furnish proof of orders for examination and rejection);

(c) Return to state service within three months after serving four years or less provided that any additional service imposed by law will not affect their reemployment rights (RCW 73.16.035).

(3) The employer shall, upon receipt of an individual's notice to return, restore the individual to his/her former position, or to a similar position in the same class and in the same geographical area.

(4) Any person who is reemployed under the conditions prescribed in RCW 73.16.031 through 73.16.041 shall return without loss of seniority and be entitled to all rights and benefits.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 267, filed 1/2/87)

WAC 356-18-220 LEAVE WITHOUT PAY—EFFECT ON ANNIVERSARY DATE AND PERIODIC INCREMENT DATE.

(1) Leave without pay of fifteen consecutive calendar days or less will not affect an employee's anniversary date or periodic increment date.

(2) When an employee is on leave without pay for more than fifteen consecutive days, the employee's anniversary date and periodic increment date will not be affected when the absence is due to any of the following reasons:

(a) Military or United States Public Health Service and Peace Corps;

(b) Government service which had the director of personnel's approval;

(c) Injuries sustained while performing the employee's state job;

(d) Educational leave in accordance with the provisions of WAC 356-39-120;

(e) Leave without pay taken voluntarily to reduce the effect of an agency reduction in force.

(3) When an employee is on leave without pay for more than fifteen consecutive calendar days and the absence is not due to one of the reasons listed in subsection (2) of this section, the employee's anniversary date and periodic increment date shall be moved forward in an amount equal to the duration of the leave of absence.

(4) When an employee's position is assigned to a program or facility whose primary purpose is academic and/or vocational education, and the program or facility follows the customary public school practice of less than a twelve-month school year, the employing agency may place the employee on leave without pay while the program or facility is closed for customary school vacations without adjusting the employee's anniversary and periodic increment dates.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 356-18-180 RETURNING EMPLOYEE RIGHTS.

**WSR 88-24-041
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL
(Personnel Board)**

[Filed December 6, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Personnel Board intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

Amd	WAC 356-30-025	Nonpermanent appointments—Duration.
Amd	WAC 356-30-067	Temporary appointments from within classified service.
Amd	WAC 356-30-140	Intermittent employment—Rules—Regulations;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Board Hearings Room, Department of Personnel, 521 South Capitol Way, Olympia, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 41.06.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 41.06.150.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 10, 1989.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Leonard Nord
Secretary

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Amending WAC 356-30-025.

Title: Nonpermanent appointments—Duration.

Purpose: Specifies a maximum time allowed for continuous employment in nonpermanent appointments.

Summary and Reasons: Adds an additional reference to WAC 356-30-067(6) and clarifies that all time spent in nonpermanent appointments.

Amending WAC 356-30-067.

Title: Temporary appointments from within classified service.

Purpose: Governs the use of temporary appointments of permanent employees.

Summary and Reasons: Will clarify current practice and allows the director to make exceptions.

Amending WAC 356-30-140.

Title: Intermittent employment—Rules—Regulations.

Purpose: Governs the use of intermittent employees.

Summary and Reasons: Will clarify current practice. Also, authorizes the director or designee to make appointments and allows the director to waive minimum qualifications.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150(4).

Responsibility for Drafting: Paul Peterson, Department of Personnel, 521 South Capitol Way, FE-11, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 586-1769; Implementation and Enforcement: Department of Personnel.

Agency or Organization Submitting Proposal: Department of Personnel, governmental agency.

Rule Proposal a Result of Federal Law, or Federal or State Court Action: No.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 309, filed 10/11/88)

WAC 356-30-025 NONPERMANENT APPOINTMENTS—DURATION. No consecutive nonpermanent appointment of an employee who has worked for the agency for nine months or 1560 nonovertime hours within the last twelve months may be made without a three-month break in service except as provided by WAC 356-30-065(4) and WAC 356-30-067(6). All time spent in nonpermanent appointments counts toward the 1560 hour limit.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 308, filed 9/7/88, effective 11/1/88)

WAC 356-30-067 TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS FROM WITHIN CLASSIFIED SERVICE. (1) Temporary appointments may be made to classified positions during the absence of a permanent employee or during a workload peak when there is a need to fill a position for not more than nine months or 1560 nonovertime hours or while recruitment is being conducted to establish a complete register.

(2) Temporary appointments may be made at a lower level than the allocation of the position being filled provided the class falls within the same or a related class series.

(3) All temporary appointments to supervisory or managerial positions must be made from within state service unless the director determines that such action is not practicable.

(4) Established registers, certification, and referral services are available and may be used when making temporary appointments. An employee certified from the register to fill a position in the absence of a permanent employee may enter a probationary or trial service period and subsequently gain permanent status when the permanent employee does not return to the position and the agency needs to fill the position permanently. The director of personnel must approve the change in status before it occurs. Time served in a temporary appointment will not be counted as part of the probationary or trial service period.

(5) ((Permanent or probationary classified employees may accept a temporary appointment to a class for which they meet the minimum qualifications:)) Temporary appointees must meet the minimum qualifications of the class to which they are appointed unless the director of personnel determines that program needs demand otherwise. Upon termination of such temporary appointment, permanent or probationary employees shall have the right to resume a permanent position within their permanent agency at their former status. The employee's salary upon return will be determined as if the employee had remained in the permanent position.

(6) Temporary appointments made from within classified service will normally last no more than nine months or 1560 nonovertime hours for single or multiple appointments. An extension may be approved by the director when a temporary appointment is made to replace a permanent employee who has been granted a leave of absence ~~((or))~~, when temporarily filling a supervisory or managerial position when there is reorganization pending, or as otherwise approved by the director. ((In such cases, the)) The temporary appointments may extend to thirty days after the date the permanent employee returns or the position is filled permanently. Time spent in emergency appointments will be counted in the 1560 hours.

(7) Compensation for temporary appointees shall be made in accordance with the rules governing promotions, demotions, or transfers.

(8) The director of personnel shall monitor temporary appointments made pursuant to this section and may revoke delegated authority where abuse is found.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 308, filed 9/7/88, effective 11/1/88)

WAC 356-30-140 INTERMITTENT EMPLOYMENT—RULES—REGULATIONS. (1) Intermittent appointments may be made by the director of personnel or designee. An intermittent appointment may be made when the nature of the work is intermittent in character fitting no particular pattern. An employee may not work more than 1560 nonovertime hours within any twelve-month period in an intermittent appointment. A position which is filled beyond the 1560 nonovertime hours within a twelve-month period shall be vacated for a minimum of three months. Time spent in emergency appointments will be counted in the 1560 hours.

(2) Intermittent appointees must meet the minimum qualifications for the class in which they are hired unless the director of personnel determines that program needs demand otherwise. Established registers are available and may be used when making intermittent appointments.

(3) Consecutive appointments of the same person in the same agency may be made as long as the employee does not work more than 1560 nonovertime hours in a twelve-month period.

(4) No person can become a permanent employee because of time served as an intermittent employee.

(5) Intermittent employees who accept temporary appointments may return to intermittent employment and resume intermittent status without approval of the director of personnel if they have not exceeded 1560 nonovertime hours in all nonpermanent appointments within the

last twelve months. If the employee reaches 1560 nonovertime hours in the last twelve months, a mandatory three-month break must be made, unless the director of personnel determines otherwise.

(6) Agencies must review intermittent appointments on a quarterly basis to ensure that intermittent employees are employed in accordance with these rules.

(7) The director of personnel shall monitor intermittent appointments made pursuant to this section and may revoke delegated authority where abuse is found.

WSR 88-24-042
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING
 [Order PM 788—Filed December 6, 1988]

I, John Swannack, assistant director of the Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at 1300 Quince Street, Exam Center, Olympia, WA 98504, the annexed rules relating to massage fees, WAC 308-51-210.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-18-081 filed with the code reviser on September 6, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 43.24.086 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED October 26, 1988.
 By John Swannack
 Assistant Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 667, filed 8/27/87)

WAC 308-51-210 MASSAGE FEES. The following fees shall be changed by the professional licensing division of the department of licensing:

Title of Fee	Fee
Written examination and reexamination	\$ 60.00
Practical examination and reexamination	80.00
Reciprocity	50.00
Initial License	80.00
Renewal	70.00
Late Renewal Penalty	75.00
Certification	25.00
Duplicate License	15.00

Reviser's note: RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of underlining and deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules. The rule published above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use of these markings.

WSR 88-24-043
ADOPTED RULES
BOARD FOR
COMMUNITY COLLEGE EDUCATION

[Order 115, Resolution No. 88-37—Filed December 7, 1988]

Be it resolved by the State Board for Community College Education, acting at Highline Community College, Des Moines, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to the 1989 schedule of regular meetings of the board.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-048 filed with the code reviser on October 12, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 28B.50.070 and 42.30.075 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 1, 1988.
 By Gilbert J. Carbone
 Assistant Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 114, Resolution No. 87-51, filed 12/4/87)

WAC 131-08-010 REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE STATE BOARD. The time and place of the regular meetings of the state board for calendar year ((1988)) 1989 are:

January 20-21	South Puget Sound Community College, Olympia
February 24-25	South Puget Sound Community College, Olympia
April 6-7	Whatcom Community College, Bellingham
May 11-12	Columbia Basin Community College, Pasco
June 15-16	Edmonds Community College, Lynnwood
September 7-8	South Puget Sound Community College, Olympia
October 19-20	Yakima Community College, Yakima
November 30	Highline Community College, Des Moines))
December 1	
January 18-19	South Puget Sound Community College, Olympia
March 1-2	Pierce Community College, Tacoma
April 12-13	South Puget Sound Community College, Olympia
May 17-18	Olympic Community College, Bremerton
June 21-22	Peninsula Community College, Port Angeles
September 13-14	Wenatchee Valley Community College, Wenatchee
October 25-26	Spokane Community College, Spokane
December 6-7	Clark Community College, Vancouver

WSR 88-24-044
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
ARTS COMMISSION
 [Memorandum—December 6, 1988]

Following is the calendar of 1989 meetings for the Washington State Arts Commission:

February 23-24	Olympia	Thurston County
May 11-12	Tacoma	Pierce County
July 27-28	Spokane	Spokane County
September 21-22	Yakima	Yakima County
November 30 -		
December 1	Seattle	King County

All meetings are open to the public and announced through statewide media releases. For further information, contact the commission's secretary at the Washington State Arts Commission, Mailstop GH-11, Olympia, Washington 98504-4111, or call (206) 753-3860.

WSR 88-24-045
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES
 [Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Labor and Industries intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning Standards for mobile homes, commercial coaches, and recreational vehicles—Definitions; WAC 296-150B-015(28) Mobile home; and 296-150B-015(37) Park trailer;

that the agency will at 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, January 10, 1989, in the Building and Construction Inspection Services, 2nd Floor Conference Room, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on February 9, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 43.22.340 through 43.22.445.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 43.22.340 through 43.22.445.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 10, 1989.

Dated: December 7, 1988

By: Joseph A. Dear
 Director

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Number of Rule: Chapter 296-150B WAC, Construction standards for mobile homes, commercial coaches and recreational vehicles which includes: WAC 296-150B-015(28) Mobile home; and 296-150B-015(37) Park trailers.

Statutory Authority: Chapter 43.22 RCW.

Specific Statutes that Rules are Intended to Implement: Chapter 43.22 RCW.

Summary of the Rule: Defines general language used in the mobile home industry. WAC 296-150B-015(28) clarifies the wording under mobile home; and WAC 296-150B-015(37) clarifies the wording under park trailers.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rule: Will allow the department to comply with the federal standards to differentiate between park trailers and manufactured homes.

Agency Person Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rules: James E. Arvan, Chief of Construction Compliance, 805 Plum Street S.E., P.O. Box 9689, Olympia, WA 98504-9689, phone (206) 586-0215.

Name of the Person or Organization, Whether Private, Public, or Governmental, that is Proposing the Rules: Department of Labor and Industries.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to the Rules: None.

The rules are necessary to comply with a federal law or a federal or state court decision, Federal Interpretative Bulletin A-1-88 issued by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Any Other Information that may be of Assistance in Identifying the Rules or Their Purpose: None.

Small Business Impact Statement: Not required since these rules do not impose any fiscal requirements. They merely define the size of the units.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-19, filed 9/9/88)

WAC 296-150B-015 DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this chapter:

(1) "Alteration" means the replacement, addition, modification, or removal of any equipment or installations that affect the construction, structural members, fire safety, or occupancy classification, or the plumbing, heating, or electrical systems, of a structure or component.

The following are not alterations unless they are made to repair damage caused by fires, floods, or damage in transit or during installation.

(a) Repairs with approved parts;

(b) Modification of a listed fuel-burning appliance in accordance with the terms of its listing;

(c) Replacement of equipment with similar equipment; and

(d) Adjustment and maintenance of equipment.

(2) "Approved" means approved by the department.

(3) "Anchoring system" means a system of straps, cables, turnbuckles, bolts, fasteners, or other approved components that secures a mobile home to ground anchors or to other approved fastening devices.

(4) "Audit" means an inspection to examine for compliance a manufacturer's production and quality control procedures.

(5) "Building site" means a tract, parcel, or subdivision of land, including a mobile home park, on which a structure other than a recreational vehicle is or will be installed.

(6) "Component" means a discrete element that is:

(a) Designed to be installed in a structure;

(b) Manufactured as a unit; and

(c) Designed for a particular function or group of functions. "Component" includes service cores.

(7) "Consumer" means a person, firm, corporation, agency, or governmental body, other than a manufacturer or dealer, that buys or leases a structure for his, her, or its own use.

(8) "Custom structure" means a one-of-a-kind structure.

(9) "Dealer" means a person, company, or corporation authorized to engage in the business of leasing, selling, offering for sale or lease, buying, or trading structures.

(10) "Department" means the department of labor and industries.

(11) "Design option" means a design that a manufacturer may use as an option to its design plan.

(12) "Design plan" means a plan for construction of a structure or component.

(13) "Equipment" means all materials, appliances, devices, fixtures, fittings, or accessories used in the manufacture, assembly, installation, or alteration of structures and components.

(14) "Footing" means the portion of a foundation system that transmits loads from a mobile home to the soil.

(15) "Foundation fascia" means the materials that enclose the entire perimeter of a mobile home and form a plane between the exterior wall of the mobile home and the ground.

(16) "Foundation system" means the footings, piers, caps, and shims that support a mobile home.

(17) "HUD" means the federal Department of Housing and Urban Development.

(18) "Independent inspection agency" means an organization that is in the business of inspecting structures, components, or equipment.

(19) "Insignia" means a label, stamp, or tag issued by the department to indicate that the structure or component bearing the insignia complies with this chapter or the HUD mobile home standards.

(20) "Install" means to erect, construct, assemble, or set in place a structure, component, or piece of equipment at a building site or in another structure or building.

(21) "Labeled" means bearing the department's insignia, HUD's insignia, or a label of approval from a testing or listing agency.

(22) "Lease" means an oral or written contract for the use, possession, or occupancy of property. It includes rent.

(23) "Listed" means that a piece of equipment, a component, or an installation appears in a list published by an approved testing or listing agency.

(24) "Listing agency" means an organization that is in the business of approving equipment or installations.

(25) "Local enforcement agency" means a city or county agency that enforces laws or ordinances governing the construction and installation of structures and components.

(26) "Main frame" means the structural component on which the structure may be mounted.

(27) "Manufacturing" means making, fabricating, forming, or assembling a structure, service core, component, equipment, or installation.

(28) "Mobile home" means a structure, transportable in one or more sections (~~that, in the traveling mode, is eight body feet or more in width or thirty-two body feet or more in length, or~~), and when erected on site, is ~~((three))~~ four hundred ~~((twenty))~~ or more square feet, and that is built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air-conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein. "Mobile home" shall include any structure that meets all the requirements of this paragraph except the size requirements and with respect to which the manufacturer voluntarily files a certification required by HUD and complies with the standards established by HUD.

(29) "Ordinance" means the part of a code adopted by this chapter that prescribes an item other than a method of construction, such as room sizes, floor plans, lighting, ventilation, ceiling heights, and exits.

(30) "Pier" means the part of the mobile home foundation system between the footing and the floor frame or floor joist, excluding caps and shims.

(31) "Quality control" means the plan and method for ensuring that the manufacture, fabrication, assembly, or erection of structures, components, and installations, and the storing, handling, and use of materials, complies with this chapter.

(32) "Recreational vehicle" means a vehicular type unit primarily designed for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use which has its own motive power or is mounted on or towed by another vehicle. The basic entities are: Travel trailer, folding camping trailer, park trailer, truck camper, motor home, and multi-use vehicles.

(33) "Structure" means a mobile home, commercial coach, or recreational vehicle that is entirely or substantially prefabricated or assembled at a factory or a place other than the building site on which the structure will be installed.

(34) "System" means a part of a structure or component that is designed to serve a particular function, such as a structural, plumbing, electrical, heating, or mechanical system.

(35) "Testing agency" means an organization that is in the business of testing equipment, installations, or systems.

(36) "Commercial coach" means a structure transportable in one or more sections that is built on permanent chassis and designed to be

used for commercial purposes with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required outlets and may include plumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein. A commercial coach shall not be used as a single family dwelling.

(37) "Park trailer" means a vehicular unit which meets the following criteria:

(a) Built on a single chassis, mounted on wheels.

(b) Designed to provide seasonal or temporary living quarters which may be connected to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and appliances.

(c) A gross trailer area not exceeding four hundred square feet (~~(when calculations used to determine the number of square feet in a structure will be based on the structure's exterior dimensions measured at the largest horizontal projections when erected on site. These dimensions will include all expandable rooms, cabinets, and other projections containing interior space, but do not include bay windows when the sill is located twelve inches or more above the finished floor)).~~ In calculating the square footage of a park trailer, the measurements shall be taken on the exterior of the unit. The square footage includes all siding, corner trim, and molding, storage space, and area enclosed by windows but not the roof overhang.

(d) Of such a construction as to permit set-up by persons without special skills using only hand tools which may include lifting, pulling, and supporting devices.

(e) Exceeds the size restrictions specified in ANSI 119.2.

(38) "Uniform standards" as used in RCW 43.22.440 means those set-up instructions provided by the manufacturer, or specified in this chapter under WAC 296-150B-225 through 296-150B-255. No other requirements may be imposed.

Exception: When extenuating conditions exist, not addressed in this chapter or the set-up instructions provided by the manufacturer, the local building official having jurisdiction shall be consulted.

WSR 88-24-046
PROPOSED RULES
BOARD OF PHARMACY
[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Board of Pharmacy intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning the practice of pharmacy including:

New	WAC 360-16-265	Patient information required.
Amd	WAC 360-17-055	Emergency outpatient medications.
Amd	WAC 360-18-020	Fees.
Rep	WAC 360-16-250	Patient information required.
New	WAC 360-52-110	Pharmacy assistant AIDS prevention and information education requirements;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 18, 1989, in the W.E.A. Building Conference Room, 319 East Seventh Avenue, Olympia, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 18.64.005.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 18.64.005.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 17, 1989.

Dated: December 7, 1988

By: John H. Keith
Assistant Attorney General
Board Counsel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Name of Agency: Washington State Board of Pharmacy.

Statutory Authority: RCW 18.64.005.

Summary, Purpose of Rule and Reason Proposed: WAC 360-16-265 would increase the information pharmacists must provide to patients about the use and certain side effects of medication; WAC 360-17-055 would be amended to permit nurses at rural hospitals to dispense prescriptions under certain circumstances; WAC 360-18-020 would be amended to raise the pharmacist renewal fee one dollar to fund the impaired pharmacist program; WAC 360-16-250 would be repealed as it would be replaced by WAC 360-16-265; and WAC 360-52-110 would establish AIDS training requirements for pharmacy assistants.

Responsible Agency Personnel: The board and the executive secretary of the board have responsibility for drafting, implementing and enforcing these rules. The executive secretary is Donald H. Williams, 319 East Seventh Avenue, W.E.A. Building, FF-21, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 753-6834.

Proponents of the Proposed Rules: Washington State Board of Pharmacy.

Federal Law or State or Federal Court Requirements: Not necessitated as a result of federal law or state or federal court action.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not necessary since these rules do not impact small businesses as that term was defined by RCW 43.31.920.

NEW SECTION

WAC 360-16-265 PATIENT INFORMATION REQUIRED. Except in those cases when the prescriber has advised that the patient is not to receive specified information regarding the medication: (1) In order to assure the proper utilization of the medication or device prescribed, with each new prescription dispensed by the pharmacist, in addition to labeling the prescription in accordance with the requirements of RCW 18.64.245 and WAC 360-16-255, the pharmacist must;

(a) Orally explain to the patient or the patient's agent the directions for use and any additional information; in writing if necessary, for those prescriptions delivered inside the confines of the pharmacy; or

(b) Explain by telephone or in writing for those prescriptions delivered outside the confines of the pharmacy.

(2) In those instances where it is appropriate, when dispensing refill prescriptions, the pharmacist shall communicate with the patient or the patient's agent, by the procedure outlined in (1)(a) or (b) above or the patient's physician regarding adverse effects, over or under utilization, or drug interaction with respect to the use of medications.

(3) Subsection (1) and (2) of this rule shall not apply to those prescriptions for inpatients in hospitals or institutions where the medication is to be administered by a nurse or other individual authorized to administer medications.

(4) In the place of written statements regarding medications, the pharmacist may use abstracts of the Patient USPDI 1988 edition, or comparable information.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

WAC 360-16-250 PATIENT INFORMATION REQUIRED

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 179, filed 11/23/83)

WAC 360-17-055 EMERGENCY OUTPATIENT MEDICATIONS. The director of pharmacy of a hospital shall, in concert with

the appropriate committee of the hospital medical staff, develop policies and procedures, which shall be implemented, to provide emergency pharmaceuticals to outpatients during hours when normal community or hospital pharmacy services are not available. The delivery of a single dose for immediate administration to the patient shall not be subject to this regulation. Such policies shall allow the designated registered nurse(s) to deliver medications other than controlled substances, pursuant to the policies and procedures which shall require that:

(1) An order of a practitioner authorized to prescribe a drug is presented. Oral or electronically transmitted orders must be verified by the prescriber in writing within 72 hours.

(2) The medication is prepackaged by a pharmacist and has a label that contains:

(a) Name, address, and telephone number of the hospital.

(b) The name of the drug (as required by chapter 360-49 WAC), strength and number of units.

(c) Cautionary information as required for patient safety and information.

(d) An expiration date after which the patient should not use the medication.

(3) No more than a 24-hour supply is provided to the patient except when the pharmacist has informed appropriate hospital personnel that normal services will not be available within 24 hours.

(4) The container is labeled by the designated registered nurse(s) before presenting to the patient and shows the following:

(a) Name of patient;

(b) Directions for use by the patient;

(c) Date;

(d) Identifying number;

(e) Name of prescribing practitioner;

(f) Initials of the registered nurse;

(5) The original or a direct copy of the order by the prescriber is retained for verification by the pharmacist after completion by the designated registered nurse(s) and shall bear:

(a) Name and address of patient;

(b) Date of issuance;

(c) Units issued;

(d) Initials of designated registered nurse.

(6) The medications to be delivered as emergency pharmaceuticals shall be kept in a secure place in or near the emergency room in such a manner as to preclude the necessity for entry into the pharmacy.

(7) The procedures outlined in this rule may not be used for controlled substances except at rural hospitals as defined in RCW 18.89.020(6).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 216, filed 6/30/88)

WAC 360-18-020 FEES. The following fees shall be charged by the board of pharmacy:

(a) PHARMACY LOCATION	
Original pharmacy fee	\$165.00
Original pharmacy assistant utilization fee	35.00
Renewal pharmacy fee	85.00
Renewal pharmacy assistant utilization fee	35.00
Penalty pharmacy fee	165.00
(b) VENDOR	
Original fee	40.00
Renewal fee	40.00
Penalty fee	40.00
(c) PHARMACIST	
Exam fee (full exam)	175.00
Reexamination fee (jurisprudence portion)	25.00
Original license fee	75.00
Renewal fee, active and inactive license	((60.00))
	61.00
Penalty fee	60.00
Reciprocity fee	250.00
Certification of license status to other states	10.00

(d) SHOPKEEPER	
(i) SHOPKEEPER – sixteen or more drugs	
Original fee	10.00
Renewal fee	10.00
Penalty fee	5.00
(ii) SHOPKEEPER – with differential hours	
Original fee	10.00
Renewal fee	10.00
Penalty fee	5.00
(e) DRUG MANUFACTURER	
Original fee	250.00
Renewal fee	250.00
Penalty fee	250.00
(f) DRUG WHOLESALER – full line	
Original fee	250.00
Renewal fee	250.00
Penalty fee	250.00
(g) DRUG WHOLESALER – OTC only	
Original fee	150.00
Renewal fee	150.00
Penalty fee	150.00
(h) DRUG WHOLESALER – export	
Original fee	250.00
Renewal fee	250.00
Penalty	250.00
(i) PHARMACY ASSISTANT – Level "A"	
Original fee	30.00
Renewal fee	20.00
(j) PHARMACY INTERN	
Original registration fee	15.00
Renewal registration fee	15.00
(k) CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT (CSA)	
REGISTRATIONS	
Dispensing registration fee (i.e. pharmacies)	35.00
Dispensing renewal fee (i.e. pharmacies)	30.00
Distributors registration fee (i.e. wholesalers)	50.00
Distributors renewal fee (i.e. wholesalers)	50.00
Manufacturers registration fee	50.00
Manufacturers renewal fee	50.00
Physician assistant registration fee	15.00
Physician assistant renewal fee	10.00
ARNP with prescriptive authorization registration fee	15.00
ARNP with prescriptive authorization renewal fee	10.00
Sodium pentobarbital for animal euthanization registration fee	20.00
Sodium pentobarbital for animal euthanization renewal fee	15.00
(l) LEGEND DRUG SAMPLE – distributor registration fees	
Original fee	125.00
Renewal fee	85.00
(m) POISON MANUFACTURER/SELLER – license fees	
Original fee	20.00
Renewal fee	20.00
(n) Facility inspection fee	100.00
(o) PRECURSOR CONTROL PERMIT	
Original fee	40.00
Renewal fee	40.00

NEW SECTION

WAC 360-52-110 PHARMACY ASSISTANT AIDS PREVENTION AND INFORMATION EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS. (1) Definitions.

(a) "Acquired immunodeficiency syndrome" or "AIDS" means the clinical syndrome of human immunodeficiency virus-related illness as defined by the board of health by rule.

(b) "Office on AIDS" means that section within the department of social and health services or any successor department with jurisdiction over public health matters as defined in chapter 70.24 RCW.

(2) Application for certification. Effective October 1, 1989, persons applying for certification as a pharmacy assistant shall submit, in addition to the other requirements, evidence to show compliance with the AIDS education requirements of subsection (4) of this section, or shall certify that they will comply with the AIDS education requirement no later than December 31, 1989.

(3) 1989 renewal of certification. Effective with the renewal period beginning October 1, 1989, all persons making application for certification renewal in 1989 shall submit, in addition to the other requirements, evidence to show compliance with the education requirements of subsection (4) of this section. Pharmacy assistants may submit compliance documentation with their renewal or at any time prior to December 31, 1989.

(4) AIDS education and training.

(a) Acceptable education and training. The board will accept education and training that covers the required subjects. Such education and training shall be a minimum of four clock hours and may include, but is not limited to, the following: Etiology and epidemiology; testing and counseling; infection control guidelines; clinical manifestations and treatment; legal economic and ethical issues to include confidentiality; and psychosocial issues to include special population considerations.

(b) Implementation. Effective October 1, 1989, the requirement for certification, renewal, or reinstatement of any certificate on lapsed, inactive, or disciplinary status shall include the one-time requirement of completion of AIDS education and training. All persons affected by this section shall show evidence of completion of an education and training program, which meets the requirements of (a) of this subsection.

(c) Documentation. The pharmacy assistant shall:

(i) Certify, on forms provided, that the minimum education and training has been completed after January 1, 1987;

(ii) Keep records for two years documenting attendance and description of the learning;

(iii) Be prepared to validate, through submission of these records, that attendance has taken place.

WSR 88-24-047

**NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
HOSPITAL COMMISSION**

[Memorandum—December 7, 1988]

The Washington State Hospital Commission will hold regular meetings beginning at 9:30 a.m. at the West Coast Sea-Tac Hotel, Seattle, Washington in the Seattle Room on the following dates:

- January 12, 1989
- January 26, 1989
- February 23, 1989
- March 23, 1989
- April 27, 1989
- May 25, 1989
- June 8, 1989
- June 22, 1989

WSR 88-24-048

**PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY**

[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State

Department of Ecology intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning solid fuel burning device standards, chapter 173-433 WAC.

Amendments to this regulation adopt by reference EPA emission performance standards, test procedures, and labeling requirements, and regulate nuisance and odor emissions from solid burning devices.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 3, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is chapters 70.94 and 43.21A RCW.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 70.94.450 through [70.94].477 and 70.94.510.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 88-19-080 filed with the code reviser's office on September 19, 1988.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Fred Olson
Deputy Director

WSR 88-24-049
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY
[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Department of Ecology intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

Amd	ch. 173-400 WAC	General regulations for air pollution sources.
Amd	ch. 173-403 WAC	Implementation of regulations for air contaminant sources.
Amd	ch. 173-405 WAC	Kraft pulping mills.
Amd	ch. 173-410 WAC	Sulfite pulping mills.
Amd	ch. 173-415 WAC	Primary aluminum plants.
Amd	ch. 173-425 WAC	Open burning.
Amd	ch. 173-434 WAC	Solid waste incinerator facilities.
Amd	ch. 173-435 WAC	Emergency episode plan.
Amd	ch. 173-470 WAC	Ambient air quality standards for particulate matter.

New federal requirements for particulate matter (PM-10) replace total suspended particulate (TSP) standards. Updated are requirements for new source performance standards (NSPS), new source review (NSR), and prevention of significant deterioration (PSD). Reporting requirements are added for PM-10 emissions from kraft and sulfite pulping mills, aluminum plants, solid waste incinerator facilities and registered sources. The emergency episode plan will use PM-10 concentrations in episode declarations. A fee for reimbursement of costs for PSD review are added. In addition, ambient air quality standards for PM-10 will be included in the regulation.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 3, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is chapters 70.94 and 43.21A RCW.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 70.94.331 and 70.94.510.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 88-19-082 filed with the code reviser's office on September 19, 1988.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Fred Olson
Deputy Director

WSR 88-24-050
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY
[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Ecology intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning licensing waste tire carriers and waste tire storage site owners, adopting chapter 173-314 WAC.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on January 3, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 70.95.555.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is WAC 173-304-420 and RCW 9A.20.020.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice Nos. WSR 88-18-106 and 88-22-008 filed with the code reviser's office on September 7, 1988, and October 21, 1988.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Fred Olson
Deputy Director

WSR 88-24-051
PROPOSED RULES
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER
[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Insurance Commissioner intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning waiver of financial requirements by a surplus line broker and the concerned insured, WAC 284-15-050;

that the agency will at 11:00 a.m., Thursday, January 12, 1989, in the Office of the Insurance Commissioner, Insurance Building, Room 200, Conference Room, Olympia, Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 48.02.060.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 48.15.090.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 11, 1989. Mailing address: Insurance Building, Mailstop AQ-21, Olympia, Washington 98504-0321.

Dated: December 7, 1988

By: David H. Rodgers

Chief Deputy Insurance Commissioner

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: Amending WAC 284-15-050 pertaining to Surplus line—Waiver of financial requirements.

The purpose of these amendments to WAC 284-15-050 is to accommodate situations requiring unusually large amounts of insurance which demand a multiplicity of insurers to provide the necessary capacity. Such coverage will almost inevitably be placed on behalf of large insureds by their own insurance departments utilizing experienced surplus line brokers. The practicalities of the commissioner's office individually approving each insurer and each contract in such circumstances are unrealistic and, in fact, a meaningless exercise. The amendment to subsection (5) and the new subsection (6) authorize the commissioner to accept an all-inclusive letter when multiple insurers are used. The letter would indicate that the insured understands the normal protections of the guaranty association and certain minimum standards normally required of insurers are being waived and, further, that the insured is willing to accept the attendant risks.

David Rodgers, Chief Deputy Insurance Commissioner, (206) 753-7302, Insurance Building, AQ-21, Olympia, Washington 98504, is responsible for drafting the proposed amendments.

The amendments will be implemented and enforced by the Insurance Commissioner's Consumer Protection Division, headed by Robert E. Johnson, and the Commissioner's Company Supervision Division, headed by Ed Southon, Deputy Commissioner, (206) 753-7303, Insurance Building, AQ-21, Olympia, Washington 98504, under the general supervision of David Rodgers, Chief Deputy.

The amendment is proposed by Dick Marquardt, the insurance commissioner, a state public official.

The proposed amendment is not necessary as the result of federal law or federal or state court action.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: The cost per employee or per hour of labor for a large or small business with respect to WAC 284-15-050 is estimated at zero. It is unlikely, in fact inconceivable, that an employer with 50 employees or less would ever have need of coverage in amounts contemplated by these amendments. As to employers with more than 50 employees, the practical effect of this rule would be to reduce overhead costs and inconvenience in dealing with large and unique insurance problems.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 81-1, filed 1/21/81)

WAC 284-15-050 SURPLUS LINE—WAIVER OF FINANCIAL REQUIREMENTS. The commissioner may waive the financial requirements specified in RCW 48.15.090 in circumstances where insurance cannot be otherwise procured on risks located in this state. Except as set forth in subsection (6) of this section, at least the following information shall be submitted when a surplus line broker makes a request for the commissioner to waive the financial requirements:

(1) A letter of explanation for the need to waive the financial requirements;

(2) The financial condition of the proposed insurer as reported in its annual statement as of the end of the calendar year next preceding;

(3) The number of years the company has been writing the specific class of insurance;

(4) The reinsurance agreements backing up the class of coverage or the company;

(5) Written acknowledgement signed by the proposed insured to the effect that the insured is informed that the coverage is to be issued by an insurer (or insurers) which is not an authorized insurer in the state of Washington, that financial requirements for surplus line insurers otherwise applicable have been waived by all parties concerned to enable this coverage to be obtained, and that there is no protection under the Washington Insurance Guaranty Association;

(6) For jumbo accounts requiring a multiplicity of insurers, the commissioner may accept certification from an experienced surplus lines broker that the broker has investigated the financial condition of the prospective insurers and is satisfied that they are capable of underwriting the attendant risks. Records and documents supporting the broker's certification must be maintained by the broker for the life of the policies and as long thereafter as a claim may be litigated, but in no case less than five years.

WSR 88-24-052

PROPOSED RULES

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Insurance Commissioner intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning permitting the utilization of gender blended mortality tables which reflect differences in mortality between smokers and nonsmokers, amending WAC 284-74-200; that the agency will at 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, January 11, 1989, in the Conference Room, Office of Insurance Commissioner, Insurance Building, Olympia, Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 48.02.060.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 48.76.050(4).

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 10, 1989. Mailing address: Insurance Building, AQ-21, Olympia, Washington 98504-0321.

Dated: December 7, 1988

By: Patricia D. Petersen

Deputy Insurance Commissioner

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: Amending WAC 284-74-200 to permit individual, franchise and group permanent (cash value) life insurance policies and pension plans funded in whole or in part by life insurance which provide the same cash values and paid-up nonforfeiture benefits to both men and women, to also utilize mortality tables which reflect differences between smokers and nonsmokers.

On January 29, 1988, the Insurance Commissioner adopted WAC 284-74-200 to aid insurers in complying with federal law, including the decision of the United States Supreme Court in *Arizona Governing Committee*

v. *Norris*, 103 S. Ct. 3492 (1983). On February 18, 1987, the Insurance Commissioner adopted WAC 284-74-100 to permit the use of mortality tables that reflect differences in mortality between smokers and nonsmokers in determining minimum reserve liabilities and minimum cash surrender values and amounts of paid-up nonforfeiture benefits for plans of insurance with separate premium rates for smokers and nonsmokers.

The purpose of this amendment is to allow policies and pension plans which are required by *Norris* or other federal law to utilize gender blended mortality tables to utilize such blended tables which reflect differences in mortality between smokers and nonsmokers.

The statutory basis for the amendment is RCW 48.02.060 to effectuate federal law, including the decision of the United States Supreme Court in *Norris*, and also RCW 48.02.060 insofar as it directs that the Insurance Commissioner has authority to implement the provisions of RCW 48.76.050(4).

Patricia D. Petersen, Deputy Insurance Commissioner, (206) 586-0800, was primarily responsible for drafting WAC 284-74-200 and this proposed amendment thereto, and for drafting WAC 284-74-010. Edward H. Southon, Deputy Insurance Commissioner for Company Supervision, (206) 753-7303; and Roy Olson, Life and Health Actuary, (206) 753-7305, are responsible for the implementation and enforcement of the proposed amended rule. The address for each is Insurance Building, AQ-21, Olympia, Washington 98504.

The rule is proposed by the insurance commissioner, a state public official.

The proposed amendment is not necessary as the result of federal law or federal or state court action.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: This rule will permit, not require, the use of gender blended mortality tables which reflect differences in mortality between smokers and nonsmokers. This rule will neither favor nor disfavor companies with fewer than 50 employees over larger companies.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 88-1, filed 1/29/88, effective 2/29/88)

WAC 284-74-200 GENDER BLENDED MORTALITY TABLES FOR ((INDIVIDUAL)) CERTAIN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES. The purpose of this section is to permit individual, franchise and group permanent (cash value) life insurance policies and pension plans funded in whole or in part by life insurance to provide the same cash values and paid-up nonforfeiture benefits to both men and women. No change in minimum valuation standards is implied by this section. However, if the gender blended smoker and nonsmoker mortality tables are used to determine cash surrender values and paid-up nonforfeiture benefits then pursuant to WAC 284-74-100 (4)(c) the smoker and nonsmoker mortality tables shall be used to determine minimum reserve liabilities.

(1) As used in this section, the following definitions apply:

(a) "1980 CSO table, with or without ten-year select mortality factors," means that mortality table, consisting of separate rates of mortality for male and female lives, developed by the society of actuaries committee to recommend new mortality tables for valuation of standard ordinary life insurance incorporated in the 1980 National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) amendments to the model standard valuation law and standard nonforfeiture law for life insurance and referred to in those models as the Commissioner's 1980 Standard Ordinary Mortality Table, with or without ten-year select mortality factors and set forth in Transactions, Society of Actuaries, Vol. XXXIII (1981), pp. 617 and 618, and referred to as the Commissioner's 1980 Standard Ordinary Mortality Table (1980 CSO).

(b) "1980 CSO table (M), with or without ten-year select mortality factors," means that mortality table consisting of the rates of mortality for male lives from the 1980 CSO table, with or without ten-year select mortality factors.

(c) "1980 CSO table (F), with or without ten-year select mortality factors," means that mortality table consisting of the rates of mortality for female lives from the 1980 CSO table, with or without ten-year select mortality factors.

(d) The "ten-year select mortality factors" referred to in (a), (b), and (c) of this subsection are those set forth in Transactions, Society of Actuaries, Vol. XXXIII (1981), p. 669, and referred to therein as selection factors for alternate method of determining life insurance reserves and deficiency reserve requirements (1980 CSO with ten-year select mortality factors).

(e) "1980 CET table" means that mortality table consisting of separate rates of mortality for male and female lives developed by the society of actuaries committee to recommend new mortality tables for valuation of standard individual ordinary life insurance, incorporated in the 1980 NAIC amendments to the standard model nonforfeiture law for life insurance and referred to in those models as the Commissioner's 1980 Extended Term Insurance Table, and set forth in Transactions, Society of Actuaries, Vol. XXXIII (1981), pp. 617 and 619, and referred to therein as the Commissioner's 1980 Extended Term Insurance Mortality Table (1980 CET).

(f) "1980 CET table (M)" means that mortality table consisting of the rates of mortality for male lives from the 1980 CET table.

(g) "1980 CET table (F)" means that mortality table consisting of the rates of mortality for female lives from the 1980 CET table.

(h) As used in this section, "1980 CSO and 1980 CET Smoker and Nonsmoker Mortality Tables" means the mortality tables with separate rates of mortality for smokers and nonsmokers which is found in NAIC Proceedings, 1984, Vol. I, pp. 406-413 and which is derived from the 1980 CSO and 1980 CET Mortality Tables.

(2) For any policy of insurance on the life of either a male or female insured delivered or issued for delivery in this state after the operative date of chapter 48.76 RCW for that policy form, for use in determining minimum cash surrender values and minimum amounts and minimum periods of paid-up nonforfeiture benefits:

(a) A mortality table which is a blend of the 1980 CSO table (M) and the 1980 CSO table (F) with or without ten-year select mortality factors may at the option of the company be substituted for the 1980 CSO table, with or without ten-year select mortality factors.

(b) A mortality table which is of the same blend as used in (a) of this subsection but applied to form a blend of the 1980 CET table (M) and the 1980 CET table (F) may at the option of the company be substituted for the 1980 CET table.

(c) The following tables, which are set forth in NAIC Proceedings, 1984, Vol. I, pp. 396-400, will be considered as the basis for acceptable tables:

(i) 100% male - 0% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-A" and "1980 CET-A" tables.

(ii) 80% male - 20% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-B" and "1980 CET-B" tables.

(iii) 60% male - 40% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-C" and "1980 CET-C" tables.

(iv) 50% male - 50% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-D" and "1980 CET-D" tables.

(v) 40% male - 60% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-E" and "1980 CET-E" tables.

(vi) 20% male - 80% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-F" and "1980 CET-F" tables.

(vii) 0% male - 100% female for tables to be designated as the "1980 CSO-G" and "1980 CET-G" tables.

(3) Tables 1980 CSO-A, 1980 CET-A, 1980 CSO-G and 1980 CET-G are not to be used with respect to policies issued on or after the effective date of this regulation, except where the proportion of persons insured is anticipated to be ninety percent or more of one sex or the other or except for certain policies converted from group insurance. Such group conversions issued on or after the effective date of this regulation must use mortality tables based on the blend of lives by sex expected for such policies if such group conversions are considered as extensions of the *Norris* decision or other federal law. This consideration has not been clearly defined by court or legislative action in all jurisdictions as of the date of promulgation of these sections.

(4) Notwithstanding any other provision of this rule, an insurer shall not use these blended tables unless the *Norris* decision or other federal law is known to apply to the policies involved, or unless there exists a

bona fide concern on the part of the insurer that the Norris decision or other federal law might reasonably be construed to apply by a court having jurisdiction.

(5) It shall not be a violation of RCW 48.30.300 for an insurer to issue the same kind of policy of life insurance on both a sex distinct and sex neutral basis.

(6) In determining minimum cash surrender values and amounts of paid-up nonforfeiture benefits for any policy of insurance on the life of either a male or female insured on a form of insurance with separate rates for smokers and nonsmokers delivered or issued for delivery in this state after the operative date of chapter 48.76 RCW for that policy form, in addition to the mortality tables that may be used according to subsection (2) of this section:

(a) A mortality table which is a blend of the male and female rates of mortality according to the 1980 CSO Smoker Mortality Table, in the case of lives classified as smokers, or the 1980 CSO Nonsmoker Mortality Table, in the case of lives classified as nonsmokers, with or without ten-year Select Mortality Factors, may at the option of the company be substituted for the 1980 CSO Table, with or without Ten-Year Select Mortality Factors; and

(b) A mortality table which is of the same blend as used in (a) of this subsection but applied to form a blend of the male and female rates of mortality according to the corresponding 1980 CET Smoker Mortality Table or 1980 CET Nonsmoker Mortality Table may at the option of the company be substituted for the 1980 CET Table.

The following blended mortality tables found in NAIC Proceedings, 1981, Vol. I, pp. 406-413 and NAIC Proceedings, 1987, Vol. I, 521-530, will be considered acceptable:

SA: 100% Male 0% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SA" and "1980 CET-SA" Tables.

SB: 80% Male 20% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SB" and "1980 CET-SB" Tables.

SC: 60% Male 40% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SC" and "1980 CET-SC" Tables.

SD: 50% Male 50% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SD" and "1980 CET-SD" Tables.

SE: 40% Male 60% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SE" and "1980 CET-SE" Tables.

SF: 20% Male 80% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SF" and "1980 CET-SF" Tables.

SG: 0% Male 100% Female smoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-SG" and "1980 CET-SG" Tables.

NA: 100% Male 0% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-NA" and "1980 CET-NA" Tables.

NB: 80% Male 20% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-NB" and "1980 CET-NB" Tables.

NC: 60% Male 40% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-NC" and "1980 CET-NC" Tables.

ND: 50% Male 50% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-ND" and "1980 CET-ND" Tables.

NE: 40% Male 60% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-NE" and "1980 CET-NE" Tables.

NF: 20% Male 80% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-NF" and "1980 CET-NF" Tables.

NG: 0% Male 100% Female nonsmoker tables designated as "1980 CSO-NG" and "1980 CET-NG" Tables.

Tables SA, SG, NA, and NG are not acceptable as blended tables unless the proportion of persons insured is anticipated to be 90% or more of one sex or the other.

(7) The effective date of this rule is February 29, 1987, and is intended to comply with the Norris decision and other federal law. It is recognized that the insurance commissioner has approved Norris-type tables prior to this effective date on an individual basis. Tables so approved are hereby deemed to be in compliance with this regulation.

WSR 88-24-053

ADOPTED RULES

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

[Order R 88-12—Filed December 7, 1988]

I, Dick Marquardt, Insurance Commissioner, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to practices in the conduct of the business of insurance defined to be unfair or deceptive or unfair methods of competition, by adding new sections to chapters 284-12, 284-23 and 284-30 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-21-083 filed with the code reviser on October 19, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 48.02.060 which directs that the Insurance Commissioner has authority to implement the provisions of RCW 48.30.010.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 6, 1988.

Dick Marquardt

Insurance Commissioner

By David H. Rodgers

Chief Deputy Insurance Commissioner

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-12-110 IDENTIFICATION OF AGENT OR SOLICITOR TO PROSPECTIVE INSURED. It shall be an unfair practice for an agent or solicitor initiating a sales presentation away from his or her office to fail to inform the prospective purchaser, prior to commencing the sales presentation, that the agent or solicitor is acting as an insurance agent or solicitor, and to fail thereafter to inform the prospective purchaser of the full name of the insurance company whose product the agent or solicitor offers to the buyer. This rule shall apply to all lines of insurance and to all coverage solicited in this state including coverage under a group policy delivered in another state, whether or not membership in the group is also being solicited.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-23-550 RELATIONSHIP OF DEATH BENEFITS TO PREMIUMS—UNFAIR PRACTICE DEFINED. (1) It is an unfair practice for any insurer to provide life insurance coverage on any person through a policy or certificate of coverage delivered on or after April 1, 1989, to or on behalf of such person in this state, unless the benefit payable at death under such policy or certificate will equal or exceed the cumulative premiums, as defined in subsection (4) of this section, paid for the policy or certificate, plus interest thereon at the rate of six percent per annum compounded annually to the tenth anniversary of the effective date of coverage.

(2) This section applies to death benefits in relation to premiums, subject to the following provisions:

(a) When determining the relationship between benefits and premiums as set forth in subsection (1) of this section, neither premiums nor death benefits shall be adjusted for maturity benefits, surrender benefits, or policy loans.

(b) Annuity benefits, including annuity death benefits, and the premiums therefor shall be disregarded in applying this section.

(c) The following benefits, but not the premiums therefor, shall be disregarded in applying this section:

(i) Accidental death benefits;

(ii) Permanent disability benefits; and

(iii) Any benefit similar to (c)(i) or (ii) of this subsection.

(3) For coverage which varies by duration, including coverage provided through dividends, the "benefit payable at death" for purposes of this section is the sum of the least death benefit during each policy year, for the lesser of ten years or the term of the coverage, including renewals, divided by the number of death benefits included in said sum.

(4) "Cumulative premiums," for purposes of this section, means all sums paid as consideration, net of dividends paid in cash in an orderly progression, for the coverage during the first ten years of the coverage, excluding amounts which are designated in the policy or certificate as providing for annuity benefits.

(5) The benefits required by this section shall be provided contractually. If the policy or certificate must rely on dividends or "nonguaranteed" premiums or benefits to obtain compliance, then said policy or certificate shall contain a provision guaranteeing compliance.

(6) This section does not apply to:

(a) Life insurance where the minimum death benefit is twenty-five thousand dollars or more; or

(b) Group life insurance coverage unless the insured pays all or substantially all of the premium; or

(c) Limited payment whole life insurance where the death benefit is constant and the premiums are level at all times, if the death benefit exceeds the total of all premium payments.

(7) Approval of the policy forms which do not comply with this section is hereby withdrawn effective April 1, 1989.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-30-660 DECEPTIVE USE OF QUOTATIONS OR EVALUATIONS PROHIBITED. (1) It is an unfair or deceptive practice and an unfair method of competition pursuant to RCW 48.30.010 for any insurance company, broker, agent, or solicitor in connection with the business of insurance, to utilize quotations or evaluations from rating or advisory services or other independent sources, in a manner likely to deceive the persons to whom the information is directed.

(2) Acts which are prohibited by this section include the following examples:

(a) If an insurer represents in its advertising that it has received an "A+" rating from an advisory service, such representation is deceptive unless it includes a clear explanation that such advisory service's practice is to rate insurance companies on the basis of "AAA," "AA,"

and declining to "A," if such is the case. The absence of such explanation would reasonably cause the ordinary person to believe falsely that the insurer had received the highest rating available from the service.

(b) Similarly, quoting figures or comments from a report, such as those representing claims paid or the capital or reserves or the quality of an insurer, in a manner to suggest that such figures or comments are impressive or that the report demonstrates the company to be particularly strong financially or of high quality relative to other companies, when such is not the case, creates a false impression and is deceptive.

WSR 88-24-054

ADOPTED RULES

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

[Order R 88-13—Filed December 7, 1988]

I, Dick Marquardt, Insurance Commissioner, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to insurance license examination procedures. The amendment effectively repeals the subsection that allowed persons to sit for any given insurance license examination an unlimited number of times.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-22-058 filed with the code reviser on November 1, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 48.02.060 which directs that the Insurance Commissioner has authority to implement the provisions of RCW 48.17.070, 48.17.110 and 48.17.130.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 7, 1988.

Dick Marquardt
Insurance Commissioner
By Roger Polzin
Deputy Commissioner

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order R 84-3, filed 9/12/84)

WAC 284-17-120 EXAMINATION PROCEDURES FOR AGENTS, SOLICITORS AND ADJUSTERS. (1) The commissioner has contracted with an independent testing service for the administration of agents', solicitors', and adjusters' examinations. On and after June 1, 1982, any person desiring to take an examination for the type of license shown in subsection (2) of this section will be required to submit a registration form and the appropriate examination fee to the independent testing service. Such fee is not refundable. Registration forms and information about examinations may be obtained from the office of insurance commissioner or from the independent testing service.

(2) At least twice each month at predetermined locations, the independent testing service will conduct the examinations required for the following types of licenses:

TYPE OF LICENSE	EXAMINATION(S) REQUIRED
Life insurance agent or solicitor	Life
Disability insurance agent or solicitor	Disability
Life and disability agent or solicitor	Life, disability
Property/casualty agent or solicitor	Property, casualty
General lines agent or solicitor	Property, casualty, disability
All lines agent or solicitor	Life, disability, property, casualty
Vehicle only agent or solicitor	Vehicle
Surety only agent or solicitor	Surety
Credit life and disability agent or solicitor	Credit life and disability
Independent adjuster	Independent adjuster
Public adjuster	Public adjuster

(3) If an applicant fails to take a scheduled examination, a new registration form and appropriate fees must be submitted for any later examination, unless a serious emergency prevented attendance.

(4) Tests for vehicle, surety, or credit insurance and for adjusters will be graded by the insurance commissioner's licensing department which will notify applicants of the results. Other tests will be graded by the independent testing service which will provide each applicant with a score report, following examination. If the examination is passed, the score report must be forwarded to the insurance commissioner with a completed insurance license application, finger print card, the appropriate license fee and filing fee.

~~((5) An applicant who fails to pass the insurance agent, solicitor or adjuster examination may request re-examination at such time as the applicant believes that he or she has completed sufficient additional study. Each reexamination request must be accompanied by a new registration form and the appropriate examination fee.))~~

WSR 88-24-056
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY
 [Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Ecology intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning interim wastewater discharge permit fees, amending chapter 173-223 WAC. Initiative 97, passed by voters in the November 1988, general election, requires the Department of Ecology to establish annual fees to collect expenses for issuing and administering each class of permits issued under RCW 90.48.160, 90.68.162 [90.48-162] and 90.48.260.

Fees shall be established in amounts to fully recover the following state expenses: Processing permit applications and modifications; monitoring and evaluating compliance with permits; conducting inspections; securing laboratory analysis of samples taken during inspections; reviewing plans and documents, directly related to operations of permittees; overseeing performance of delegated pretreatment programs; and supporting the overhead expenses that are directly related to these activities.

To meet the Initiative's March 1 effective date, ecology must amend the current rule (chapter 173-223 WAC) and is considering making the following changes: Include a new definition of "residential equivalent"; add the five cents per month per residential equivalent fee cap for municipalities; and change all references to the expiring state law and include references to Initiative 97.

In addition, ecology is establishing a cutoff date of April 1, 1989, for receiving requests for comprehensive monitoring credits. Neither the current law nor Initiative 97 include a cutoff date.

Public hearings are scheduled for January with the rule adoption on February 13, 1988 [1989]. A proposed fee schedule for use in FY 90 and beyond will be subject of future rule making;

that the agency will at 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 10, 1989, in the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council, Building 1, 4224 6th Avenue, Lacey, WA; and at 3:30 p.m., Wednesday, January 11, 1989, in the Spokane County Health Auditorium, West 1101 College, Spokane, conduct public hearings on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on February 18, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is chapter 43.21A RCW.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is chapter 90.48 RCW.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before 5:00 p.m., January 23, 1989.

Dated: December 7, 1988
 By: Fred Olson
 Deputy Director

WSR 88-24-055
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
BUILDING CODE COUNCIL
 [Memorandum—November 18, 1988]

1989 Meeting Schedule

January 20	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
February 10	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
March 10	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
April 14	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
May 12	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
June 9	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
July 14	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
August 11	9:00 a.m.	Spokane
September 8	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
October 13	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
November 17	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac
December 8	9:00 a.m.	Sea-Tac

Council committee meetings may be held as part of the regular council meeting.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: Interim wastewater discharge permit fees.

Description of Purpose: To amend the rule developed under the expiring state law (RCW 90.48.600-90.48.640) to make it effective under Initiative 97. The rule enables ecology to collect fees for administrative expenses incurred by the department in the issuance and administration of wastewater discharge permits.

Statutory Authority: Initiative 97.

Specific Statute Rule is Intended to Implement: Initiative 97, sections 13-14.

Summary of Rule: To establish a fee schedule as a basis for the Department of Ecology to charge fees to recover expenses incurred in the issuance and administration of wastewater discharge permits. Ecology proposes to amend the current law with regard to municipalities to reflect the Initiative's five cents per month per residential equivalent fee ceiling. A deadline for receiving applications for comprehensive monitoring credits is also being proposed by ecology.

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: To provide adequate resources for ecology to administer the water quality wastewater discharge permit program.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Beverly Poston, Mailstop PV-11, Olympia, 438-7039; Implementation: Renee Thomas, Mailstop PV-11, Olympia, 459-6035; and Enforcement: John Glynn, Mailstop PV-11, Olympia, 438-7030.

Person or Organization Proposing Rule, and Whether Public, Private, or Governmental: Department of Ecology, state government.

Agency Comments or Recommendations Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, Fiscal Matters: Ecology is preparing a report to the legislature consisting of recommendations for legislation and other issues related to the administration of permit fees. This report is expected to be filed with the environmental standing committees of the legislature in mid-January.

Whether Rule is Necessary as a Result of Federal Law or Federal or State Court Action: N/A.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: The Regulatory Fairness Act, chapter 19.85 RCW, requires that rules which have an economic impact on more than 20% of all industries or more than 10% of the businesses in any one industry be reviewed and altered to minimize their impact upon small businesses. This regulatory proposal has been reviewed in light of that requirement. The conclusions of this review are summarized below.

It should be noted that this analysis is only concerned with the private sector of the economy. Many wastewater discharge permits are held by cities, counties, sewer districts, water districts, publicly-owned electric utilities, and state government agencies. The impact of the amendments to the permit fee rule on these governments is not examined in this analysis.

RCW 19.85.040 requires that the costs of complying with the rule for small businesses be compared to the costs of compliance for large businesses. A small business is defined as a corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity formed for the purpose of

making a profit, which is independently owned and operated from all other businesses, and which has fifty or fewer employees. The cost of complying with amended chapter 173-223 WAC is the change in the fee charged for a wastewater discharge permit for fiscal year 1989.

It has not yet been possible to obtain data on the actual sales of more than a few of the businesses which are required to pay permit fees. Therefore, in the following analysis, estimated sales will be used when comparing the impact of changes in permit fees on small and large businesses. The analysis primarily uses the percentage that the fee is of the permit holder's sales as the measure of the fee's impact.

Data from 1985 *County Business Patterns: Washington* (United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, 1987) were used to estimate the average fee per employee and the percentage which the fee is of average payroll for small and large businesses. In addition, sales and employment data from the 1986/1987 *Washington Manufacturer's Register* (Times Mirror Press, 1986) were used to estimate the impact of the permit fees on some of the larger manufacturers which hold permits. Data from the 1982 *Census of Manufacturers: Washington* and the 1982 *Census of Wholesale Trade: Washington* (United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, 1985) were used to calculate average sales-to-payroll ratios. Using these ratios and the estimates of the fee as a percentage of average payroll, estimates of the fee as a percentage of sales were made.

The amendments to chapter 173-223 WAC have two major effects: Imposition of a limit of five cents per month per residential equivalent on the permit fees paid by holders of permits for domestic wastewater facilities that primarily serve residential customers; removal of the provision in the rule that allows the department to adjust fees downward from those in the fee schedule in order to assure that total fee revenue does not exceed \$3,600,000 in a fiscal year.

The five cents per month per residential equivalent limit chiefly affects the permit fees of municipalities that hold permits for sewage treatment plants, lowering the fee for nearly every holder of a municipal/domestic permit. However, it also applies to permits held by 15 private companies and associations that hold permits for domestic wastewater facilities which primarily serve residential customers. This limit was imposed on the fees of these private organizations in order to comply with Initiative 97's requirement that the fee rule take into consideration the economic impact of the fees on small dischargers and in order to treat equals equally. All these organizations are small and the sewage treatment plants that they operate primarily serve the same type of customers that municipally-owned sewage treatment plants do, that is residential customers. Included among these 15 private organizations are mobile home parks, small housing developments, and nursing homes.

In the private sector of the economy, the removal of the \$3,600,000 limit on total fee revenue affects the fees of the above 15 private organizations, 8 private companies that hold permits for municipal/domestic facilities which do not chiefly serve residential customers, and

holders of permits for industrial facilities. Because it was forecast that under the unamended rule total fee revenue for fiscal year 1989 would be \$100,000 above the \$3,600,000 limit, fees in all the fee categories would have had to have been reduced by 2.67%. Therefore, removing the limit has the effect of raising permit fees.

There are 8 permit holders that hold permits for municipal/domestic facilities which do not chiefly serve residential customers. Included among these 8 permit holders are four resorts, a truck stop, a church camp, and a church school. Under the original fee rule these 8 permit holders paid fees in the \$500 and \$1,000 fee categories. It is estimated that the removal of the \$3,600,000 total fee revenue ceiling increases these permit holders' fees from \$487 to \$500 and from \$973 to \$1,000.

There are 15 private companies and homeowners associations that hold permits for sewage treatment plants which primarily serve residential customers. These companies and associations are private organizations, not governments. The fees for these permit holders are affected by both the five cents per month per residential equivalent limit on permit fees and the removal of the \$3,600,000 ceiling on total annual fee revenue. The incidence of the permit fees is on the customers, which are overwhelmingly residential, of these companies and associations. Changes in fees are passed on to these customers through changes in sewer rates. The fees per residential equivalent for these organizations decline by \$1.24 to \$2.86 as a result of the amendments to the fee rule. The decline in the fee per residential equivalent is a measure of the impact of the reduced fees on sewer rates. Most of these permit holders are small, serving an average of 50 residences each and paying a fee in the \$500 fee category. The two larger permit holders pay \$1,000 and \$2,500 fees and the reductions in their fees per residential equivalent which result from the amendments to the rule average \$1.53, which is less than the average fee reduction for the smaller dischargers in this group.

There are 714 holders of permits for industrial facilities. Some of these are held by governments, but most are held by private businesses. Fees for industrial facilities are only affected by the amended rule's removal of the \$3,600,000 total fee revenue cap: Fees will rise by approximately 2.67%. It is estimated that for small businesses, the fee increase as a percentage of sales ranges between .0018% and .0267%. For large businesses it is estimated that the fee increase as a percentage of sales ranges between .000027% and .0032%. Permit fees vary much less than sales per company. Therefore, even though large companies tend to pay higher fees than small companies, the fee as a percentage of sales is much less for large companies than for small companies. Because fees are a smaller percentage of the sales of larger companies, increasing all permit holders' fees by the same percentage causes an increase in the fees of larger companies which is a smaller percentage of their sales than that for smaller companies. Therefore, for holders of permits for industrial facilities the impact of the amendments to the fee rule is greater for small businesses than for large businesses.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-8, filed 5/26/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 173-223-015 PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY. It is the purpose of this chapter to establish an interim fee system for permits issued by the department of ecology pursuant to RCW 90.48.160, 90.48.162, and 90.48.260. This fee system is subject to change in fiscal year 1990 and beyond. ~~((RCW 90.48.610))~~ Initiative 97 authorizes the department to charge fees to recover ~~((administrative))~~ expenses incurred in the issuance and administration of wastewater discharge permits. All fees charged shall be based on factors relating to the complexity of permit issuance and compliance and may be based on pollutant loading and toxicity and be designed to encourage recycling and the reduction of the quantity of pollutants. Annual ~~((operating))~~ fees shall be ~~((based on seven fee eligible categories listed in RCW 90.48.600))~~ established in amounts to fully recover and not exceed expenses incurred by the department in:

- (1) Processing permit applications and modifications;
- (2) Monitoring and evaluating compliance with permits;
- (3) Conducting inspections;
- (4) Securing laboratory analysis of samples taken during inspections;
- (5) Reviewing required plans and documents directly related to operations of permittees;
- (6) ~~((Monitoring compliance with))~~ Overseeing performance of delegated pretreatment programs; and
- (7) Supporting the overhead expenses that are directly related to each of the preceding activities. Expenses start when a permit application is filed with the department of ecology.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-8, filed 5/26/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 173-223-030 DEFINITIONS. (1) "Annual fee" means the fee which is paid annually based on the state's fiscal year (July 1 to June 30).

(2) "Concentrated animal feeding operation" means an "animal feed operation" which meets the criteria in Appendix B of 40 CFR 122.23 (b)(3).

(3) "Department" means the department of ecology.

(4) "Director" means the director of the department of ecology or authorized representative.

(5) "Domestic wastewater" means water carrying human wastes, including kitchen, bath, and laundry wastes from residences, buildings, industrial establishments or other places, together with such groundwater infiltration or surface waters as may be present.

(6) "Domestic wastewater facility" means all structures, equipment, or processes required to collect, carry away, treat, reclaim, or dispose of domestic wastewater together with such industrial waste as may be present.

(7) "EPA" means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

~~((7))~~ (8) "GPD" means permitted flow expressed in gallons per day.

~~((7))~~ (9) "Gross revenue" means gross receipts from monthly, bi-monthly, and/or quarterly user charges for sewer services. Gross revenue includes user charges received from all classes of customers. Gross revenue includes all user charges and fees based on wastewater constituents' strengths and characteristics. Included among such charges and fees are high-strength surcharges and charges based on biochemical oxygen demand, suspended solids, oil and grease, toxicants, heavy metals, flow, etc. Gross revenue includes charges for receipt and treatment of septic tank wastes, holding tank wastes, chemical toilet wastes, etc. Gross revenue includes amounts received from other municipalities for sewage interception, treatment, collection, or disposal.

The following items are not included in gross revenue:

(a) Amounts derived by municipalities directly from taxes levied for the support or maintenance of sewer services.

(b) Late charges, penalties for nontimely payment by customers, interest on late payments, and all other penalties and fines.

(c) Permit fees and compliance monitoring fees for wastewater discharge permits issued by municipalities with local pretreatment programs. Permit fees which are charged to cover the cost of providing sewer service are not excluded from gross revenue.

(d) Receipts by a municipality of special assessments or installments thereof and interests and penalties thereon, and charges in lieu of assessments.

(e) Connection charges.

(f) Revenues from sales of by-products such as sludge, processed wastewater, etc.

The following item is to be deducted from gross revenue:
Amounts paid to other municipalities and businesses for sewage interception, collection, treatment, or disposal.

(10) "Industrial facility" means any facility not included in definition of "municipal/domestic facility."

((+)) (11) "Major facility" means any NPDES permitted facility or activity classified as such by the Region 10 administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency in conjunction with the director as published in the state-EPA agreement for fiscal year 1988. Other facilities may be classified by agreement between EPA and the department based on EPA criteria following submittal of an application for a new source permit or permit modification.

((+)) (12) "MGD" means permitted flow expressed in million gallons per day.

((+)) (13) "Municipal/domestic facility" means a publicly-owned facility treating domestic wastes together with such industrial wastes as may be present, or a privately-owned facility treating domestic wastes.

((+)) (14) "Municipality" means a city, town, county, district, association, or other public body created by or pursuant to state law and having jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, or other wastes, or an Indian tribe or an authorized Indian tribal organization, or a designated and approved management agency under 33 U.S.C. Sec. 1288. State government agencies are not included in this definition.

(15) "Noncontact cooling water" means water used for cooling which does not come into direct contact with any raw material, intermediate product, waste product, or finished product, and which does not contain chemicals added by the permittee.

((+)) (16) "NPDES permit" means the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit issued by the department pursuant to section 402 of the Federal Clean Water Act and RCW 90.48.260.

((+)) (17) "Permit fee" means that fee charged by the department of ecology for expenses associated with the activities specified in WAC 173-223-015.

((+)) (18) "Person" means any political subdivision, government agency, municipality, industry, public or private corporation, copartnership, association, firm, individual, or any other entity whatsoever.

((+)) (19) "Permitted flow" means:
 (a) For municipal/domestic facilities, the monthly average flow limitation contained in the permit;

(b) For industrial facilities, the daily maximum flow limitation contained in the permit;

(c) For permits in which a flow limit is not specified, the department shall use the design flow corresponding to (a) or (b) of this subsection.

((+)) (20) "Residential equivalent" means((:

(a) For residential hookups, a single-family residential unit, and for industrial or commercial hookups, a flow quantity of two hundred fifty gallons per day, or a biochemical oxygen demand quantity of 0.5 pounds per day, or a total suspended solids quantity of 0.5 pounds per day whichever basis yields the highest number, or

(b) A definition of residential equivalent submitted by the permittee and approved by the department that yields substantially similar results to (a) of this subsection:

((+)) a single-family residence or a unit of sewer service that yields an amount of gross revenue equal to the annual user charge for a single-family residence. In cases where the permit holder does not maintain data on gross revenue, user charges, and/or the number of single-family residences that it serves, "residential equivalent" means an influent flow of two hundred fifty gallons per day.

(21) "Sewer service" means the activity of receiving sewage deposited into and carried off by a system of sewers, drains, and pipes to a common point, or points, for disposal or for transfer to treatment for disposal, and activities involving the interception, transfer, storage, treatment, and/or disposal of sewage, or any of these activities.

(22) "State waste discharge permit" means a permit required under chapter 173-216 WAC.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-8, filed 5/26/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 173-223-040 PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE. Tables 1, 2, and 3.

- (1) Industrial categories.
- (2) Municipal/domestic categories.
- (3) Special primary industry categories.

Table 1

INDUSTRIAL CATEGORIES	ANNUAL PERMIT FEE
Major industries listed in Table 3	\$ 31,000
Major industries not listed in Table 3	\$ 8,000
Minor industries listed in Table 3	\$ 7,000
with permitted flows > 10,000 GPD	
Minor industries not listed in Table 3	\$ 2,500
with permitted flows > 10,000 GPD	
Minor industries listed in Table 3	\$ 2,000
with permitted flows < 10,000 GPD	
Minor industries not listed in Table 3	\$ 600
with permitted flows < 10,000 GPD	
Minor industries not listed in Table 3	\$ 500
discharging noncontact cooling water only	
Hatcheries/fish rearing/aquaculture	\$ 1,500
Water treatment plants	\$ 1,250
Concentrated animal feeding operations	\$ 1,000
General permits	70% of fee category in which they would otherwise belong
Industries with permitted flows ≤ 800 GPD	\$ 150

Table 2
 MUNICIPAL/DOMESTIC

Permitted Flows	Minor Facility	Major Facility	Facility w/Pretreatment*
> 100 MGD	—	—	\$35,000
50 MGD to < 100 MGD	—	—	\$25,000
25 MGD to < 50 MGD	—	—	\$20,000
10 MGD to < 25 MGD	—	\$12,000	\$15,000
5 MGD to < 10 MGD	\$7,500	\$10,000	\$12,000
1 MGD to < 5 MGD	\$6,000	\$ 8,000	\$ 9,000
.5 MGD to < 1 MGD	\$4,500	\$ 6,000	—
.1 MGD to < .5 MGD	\$2,500	—	—
.05 MGD to < .1 MGD	\$1,000	—	—
.0008 MGD to < .05 MGD	\$ 500	—	—
≤ .0008 MGD	\$ 150	—	—

*Municipal/domestic facilities with delegated pretreatment programs as authorized by the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.

(a) The annual permit fee for a permit held by a municipality for a domestic wastewater facility issued under RCW 90.48.162 and 90.48.260 is the lesser of:

- (i) The fee assigned to the facility by Table 2;
- (ii) Five cents times the number of months in the period for which the permit fee is collected times the number of residential equivalents which contribute to the domestic wastewater facility.

(b) The annual permit fee for each permit held by a municipality that holds more than one permit for domestic wastewater facilities issued under RCW 90.48.162 and 90.48.260 and which uses the revenues from the customers of each wastewater facility to meet the expenses of that facility is determined as in (a) of this subsection.

(c) The sum of the annual permit fees for permits held by a municipality that holds more than one permit for domestic wastewater facilities issued under RCW 90.48.162 and 90.48.260 and which does not use the revenues from the customers of each wastewater facility to meet the expenses of that facility is the lesser of:

- (i) The sum of the fees assigned to the facilities by Table 2;
- (ii) Five cents times the number of months in the period for which the permit fee is collected times the number of residential equivalents which contribute to the municipality's wastewater system.

(d) The permit fee for a privately-owned domestic wastewater facility that primarily serves residential customers is determined as in (a) of this subsection. Residential customers are those whose lot, parcel or real estate, or building is used for domestic dwelling purposes only.

(e) Fees charged for the period March 1, 1989, through June 30, 1989, shall equal one-third of the annual fee calculated pursuant to (a), (b), (c) and (d) of this subsection.

(f) The number of residential equivalents is calculated in the following manner:

(i) If the facility serves only single-family residences, the number of residential equivalents is the number of single-family residences that it served on January 1 of the previous calendar year.

(ii) If the facility serves both single-family residences and other classes of customers, the number of residential equivalents is calculated by dividing the previous year's gross revenue by the annual user charge for a single-family residence.

(iii) The annual user charge for a single-family residence is calculated by either of the following methods, at the choice of the permit holder:

(A) The annual user charge for a single-family residence using nine hundred cubic feet of water per month. If users are billed monthly, this is calculated by multiplying the monthly user charge for a single-family residence using nine hundred cubic feet of water per month by twelve. If users are billed bimonthly, the annual user charge is calculated by multiplying the bimonthly user charge for a single-family residence using one thousand eight hundred cubic feet of water per two-month period by six. If the user charge for a single-family residence varies, depending on age, income, location, etc., then the charge used in these calculations must be that which applies to the largest number of single-family residential customers.

(B) The average annual user charge for a single-family residence. This average is calculated by dividing the previous calendar year's gross revenue from provision of sewer services to single-family residences by the number of single-family residences served on January 1 of the previous calendar year. If the user charge for a single-family residence varies, depending on age, income, location, etc., then the gross revenue and number of single-family residences used in making this calculation must be those for all the single-family residential customers. In either case, the permit holder must provide the department with a copy of its complete sewer rate schedule for all classes of customers.

(iv) If a permit holder does not maintain data on its gross revenue, user charges, and/or the number of single-family residences that it serves, and therefore cannot use the methods described in (e)(i) and (ii) of this subsection to calculate the number of residential equivalents that it serves, then the number of residential equivalents that it serves is calculated by dividing the average daily influent flow to its facility for the previous calendar year by two hundred fifty gallons. This average is calculated by summing all the daily flow measurements taken during the previous calendar year and then dividing the resulting sum by the number of days on which flow was measured. Data for this calculation must be taken from the permit holder's discharge monitoring reports. Permit holders using this means of calculating the number of their residential equivalents must submit with their application a complete set of copies of their discharge monitoring reports for the previous calendar year.

(g) Fee calculation procedures for holders of permits for domestic wastewater facilities.

(i) Municipalities holding permits for domestic wastewater facilities issued under RCW 90.48.162 and 90.48.260, and holders of permits for privately-owned domestic wastewater facilities that primarily serve residential customers must complete a form certifying the number of residential equivalents served by their domestic wastewater system. The form must be returned to the department within thirty days after it is mailed to the permit holder by the department.

(ii) The form shall bear a certification of correctness and be signed:

(A) In the case of a corporation, by a responsible corporate officer;

(B) In the case of a partnership, by a general partner;

(C) In the case of a sole proprietorship, by the proprietor;

(D) In the case of a municipal or other public facility, by either a ranking elected official or a principal executive officer.

(iii) The department may verify the information contained in the form and, if it determines that the permit holder has made false statements in its form, may, in addition to taking other actions provided by law, revise both current and previously granted fee determinations.

Table 3
Special Industrial Categories

- Explosives
- Gum and wood chemicals
- Inorganic chemicals manufacturing
- Iron and steel manufacturing
- Leather tanning and finishing
- Metal finishing
- Metal molding and casting
- Nonferrous metals forming and metal powders
- Nonferrous metals manufacturing
- Nuclear fuels
- Ore mining and dressing
- Organic chemicals manufacturing
- Paint and ink formulation
- Pesticides
- Petroleum refining
- Pharmaceutical manufacturing
- Plastics molding and forming
- Plastic and synthetic materials manufacturing
- Porcelain enameling
- Printing and publishing
- Pulp, paper, and paperboard
- Rubber manufacturing
- Shipyards
- Soap and detergent manufacturing
- Steam electric power plants
- Solid waste disposal sites
- Tank cleaning and barrel reclamation
- Textile mills
- Timber products processing

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-8, filed 5/26/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 173-223-050 PERMIT FEE PAYMENTS. (1) Permit fee computation. Computation of fees shall begin on the first day of each fiscal year, or in the case of facilities or activities not previously covered by permits, on the issuance date of the permit. In the case of applicants for state waste discharge permits who are deemed to have a temporary permit under RCW 90.48.200, computation shall begin on the sixty-first day after the department receives an application. Computation of fees shall end on the last day of the state's fiscal year, or in the case of a terminated permit, on the date of termination. Computation shall end on the expiration date of a permit only if a permit holder has indicated to the department in writing that the permitted activity has been terminated.

(2) The department shall charge fees based on the annual fee schedule contained in WAC 173-223-040. The department may charge fees at the beginning of the year to which they apply. The department shall notify permit holders of fee charges by mailing billing statements. Fee payment shall be due and payable thirty days after the department mails a billing statement. The department may elect to bill permit holders a prorated portion of the annual fee on a monthly, quarterly, or other periodic basis (~~and may adjust fees downward from the fee schedule if necessary to assure that total fees collected are within the maximum amount allowed under RCW 90.48.600 (three million six hundred thousand dollars per year)~~). In cases where a permit is only in effect for a portion of the fiscal year upon which the annual fee is based, the department shall prorate the fee accordingly. In addition to other circumstances, this applies where the department terminates a permit upon its determination that an industry which discharges to a municipal sewer system is satisfactorily regulated by a local pretreatment program.

(3) Delayed payment. In cases where payment of the total amount of fee charges, by the due date specified in this subsection, would cause substantial economic hardship, a permit holder may request that the department allow delayed payment. Such a request must be submitted to the department's fiscal office in writing by the permit's payment due date, and must include information demonstrating that such a hardship would occur. The department may approve such a request provided that the permit holder enters into a written agreement with the department to pay the fee charges and interest as specified in WAC 173-223-030, according to a specific delayed schedule, and that all fee and

Table 3
Special Industrial Categories

- Adhesives and sealants
- Aluminum forming
- Battery manufacturing and recycling
- Coal mining
- Coil coating
- Copper forming
- Electrical and electronic components
- Electroplating

interest charges shall be paid in full by the fifteenth day of the last month of the year for which the fee is due.

(4) The applicable permit fee shall be paid by check or money order payable to the department of ecology, and mailed to the Department of Ecology, Fiscal Office, Mailstop PV-11, Olympia, Washington 98504.

(5) In the event checks are returned due to insufficient funds, fees shall be deemed not to have been paid.

(6) Interest due on delinquent or delayed accounts. The department shall charge permit holders interest on fee charges that have not been paid by the due date at the rate of ten percent per annum, compounded monthly. Interest charges shall be due and payable in the same manner as fees, and nonpayment of interest charges shall be deemed as nonpayment of fees for purposes of collection and enforcement.

(7) Enforcement for nonpayment. If a permit holder has failed to pay fee charges that are due and payable, the department shall give notice of intent to terminate the permit after thirty days in accordance with RCW 90.48.190 unless fee and interest charges are paid in full within that time. Such notice shall be given by certified mail or by personal delivery, and shall state the exact amount due and the date by which the charges must be paid. If the full payment is not received by the department by the specified date, the department shall promptly issue an order terminating the permit. Such order shall be transmitted by certified mail or by personal delivery. Following termination of a permit, if the activity requiring a permit continues, the department shall either commence issuing civil penalties under RCW 90.48.144, or shall file an action to enjoin the activity previously authorized by the permit in a court of jurisdiction, or both. Civil penalties issued by the department shall be sufficiently large to offset the economic benefit gained from nonpayment of fees and to deter continued operation and/or nonpayment. Payment of civil penalties shall not be deemed as payment of fees, nor shall payment of fees after assessment of penalties be deemed as a cause for reducing the penalty: PROVIDED, That the department may reduce or set aside penalties upon a determination that it made a factual error or errors in assessing the penalty. Nothing herein shall be interpreted as restricting the authority of the department to exercise its other enforcement remedies as authorized by law.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-8, filed 5/26/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 173-223-070 CREDITS. Any public entity engaging in comprehensive monitoring programs may apply for credits against permit fees. The full amount of permit fees assessed against a public entity that has made application for credits shall not be due and payable until after the department made a determination on the application for credit. The department may establish a due date in accordance with WAC 173-223-050 for an amount equal to the fee assessment minus the requested credit. Any balance of fee charges remaining after approval or denial of a credit shall be due thirty days after the department gives notice of such approval or denial. The department may approve applications for credits that meet the following criteria:

(1) Credit shall not be granted to a facility in excess of twenty-five percent of the permit fee assessed over the five-year period of a permit;

(2) The total amount of credits granted for the five-year period beginning July 1, 1988, shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars. The total amount of credits granted for any one year shall not exceed the balance of the fifty thousand dollar maximum divided by the number of years remaining before July 1, 1993. If more than one permittee applies for credits during the same year, the department shall consider the amount of the credits applied for and the benefits derived from the comprehensive monitoring programs in distributing the credits for that year among the applicants;

(3) Credit shall not be granted for monitoring required by the terms of the applicant's permit, nor for monitoring of effluent or the effects of effluent on the receiving water, sediment, or biota in the vicinity of the discharge, nor for monitoring that is within the scope of monitoring guidelines developed by the department for implementation through permits;

(4) In applying for ((an NPDES permit)) a credit, the public entity must demonstrate that the applicant's comprehensive monitoring procedures benefits to the general public or to public agencies responsible for protection or management of the state's waters or aquatic resources. Such benefits must extend beyond the immediate jurisdiction or responsibility of the entity making application.

(5) Requests for credits for fiscal year 1989 must be received by the department no later than April 1, 1989.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-8, filed 5/26/88, effective 7/1/88)

WAC 173-223-090 ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS TO THE DIRECTOR. (1) Any person aggrieved by a determination made under this chapter by the department may file a written appeal to the director no later than the due date for payment of fees. Such appeal shall state the reasons that the aggrieved person believes that the department's determination is contrary to the requirements of ((RCW 90.48.600, 90.48.610, or 90.48.620)) Initiative 97, and specific actions that he/she is requesting that are consistent with those requirements. The director shall either issue a revised determination or a statement upholding the original determination. A revised determination shall be consistent with the requirements of ((RCW 90.48.600, 90.48.610, and 90.48.620)) Initiative 97. If the director determines that there is a substantial public interest, he/she may hold a public hearing on the appeal prior to issuing a final determination.

(2) Small businesses required to pay permit fees under the industrial facility fee categories may receive a reduction of their permit fees.

- (a) To qualify for the fee reduction, a business must:
- (i) Be a corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity formed for the purpose of making a profit;
 - (ii) Be independently owned and operated from all other businesses (i.e., not a subsidiary of a parent company);
 - (iii) Have fifty or fewer employees; and
 - (iv) Have annual sales of five hundred thousand dollars or less of the goods or services produced using the wastewater-discharging process.

(b) To receive a fee reduction, the permit holder must submit an application in a manner prescribed by the department demonstrating that the conditions of (a) of this subsection have been met. The application shall bear a certification of correctness and be signed:

- (i) In the case of a corporation, by a responsible corporate officer;
- (ii) In the case of a partnership, by a general partner;
- (iii) In the case of a sole proprietorship, by the proprietor.

(c) The department may verify the information contained in the application and, if it determines that the permit holder has made false statements in its application, may deny requests for fee reductions and revoke previously granted fee reductions.

(d) The annual permit fee for small businesses determined to be eligible shall be reduced by fifty percent.

(e) If due to special economic circumstances the fee imposed by (d) of this subsection would impose an extreme hardship on a small business, the small business may so indicate in its application for fee reduction and request a further fee reduction. The small business must provide sufficient evidence to support its claim of extreme hardship. The factors which the department may consider in determining whether the applicant faces special economic circumstances and in setting the applicant's fee include: The applicant's annual sales, the size of its labor force, the conditions of the market which affect the applicant's ability to pass the cost of the permit fee through to its customers, and its average annual profits. In no case will the annual fee be reduced below one hundred fifty dollars.

~~((3) Holders of wastewater discharge permits for municipal/domestic facilities which are assigned to a fee category which imposes a fee greater than five dollars per residential equivalent per year are eligible for permit reductions:~~

~~(a) To receive a fee reduction, a permit holder must submit an application in a manner prescribed by the department certifying the number of residential equivalents that the facility serves:~~

~~(b) The application shall bear a certification of correctness and be signed:~~

- ~~(i) In the case of a corporation, by a responsible corporate officer;~~
- ~~(ii) In the case of a partnership, by a general partner;~~
- ~~(iii) In the case of a sole proprietorship, by the proprietor;~~
- ~~(iv) In the case of a municipal, state, or other public facility, by either a ranking elected official or a principal executive officer.~~

~~(c) The department may verify the information contained in the application and, if it determines that the permit holder has made false statements in its application, may deny requests for fee reductions and revoke previously granted fee reductions:~~

~~(d) The annual permit fee for a municipal/domestic facility which has been determined to be eligible shall be five dollars times the number of residential equivalents that the facility serves:))~~

WSR 88-24-057
PROPOSED RULES
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
 [Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Office of Financial Management intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning official lagged, semi-monthly pay dates established, amending WAC 82-50-021. The amendment proposes to modify three of the official calendar year 1989 lagged, semi-monthly state pay dates as follows: From Monday, June 26, 1989, to Friday, June 23, 1989; from Monday, September 11, 1989, to Friday, September 8, 1989; and from Monday, December 11, 1989, to Friday, December 8, 1989. All other 1989 pay dates will remain as is;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, January 11, 1989, in the 4th Floor Conference Room, Insurance Building, Olympia, Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on Friday, January 13, 1989.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 42.16.010(1) and 42.16.017.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 42.16.010(1) and 42.16.017.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before Friday, January 6, 1989.

The purpose of this particular modification is to see that state employees are paid eight days after the end of the applicable pay period rather than after eleven days, as would be the case under the currently adopted official calendar year 1989 lagged, semi-monthly state pay dates.

The agency reserves the right to modify the text of these proposed rules before the hearing or in response to written or oral comments received before or during the hearing.

The agency may need to change the date for hearing or adoption on short notice. To ascertain that the hearing or adoption will take place as stated in this notice, an interested person may contact the person named below.

Correspondence relating to this notice and the proposed rules should be addressed to:

Mr. Collum C. Liska
 Accounting and Fiscal Services Division
 430 Insurance Building
 Mailstop AQ-44
 Olympia, WA 98504-0201
 (206) 753-8538
 234-8538 scan

Dated: December 7, 1988

By: Dan Pensula, Assistant Director
 Accounting and Fiscal Services Division

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Number of Rule Section(s) or Chapter(s): Chapter 82-50 WAC, Pay dates for state employees, amending WAC 82-50-021 Official lagged, semi-monthly pay dates established.

Statutory Authority: RCW 42.16.010(1) and 42.16.017.

Specific Statute that the Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 42.16.010(1) and 42.16.017.

Summary of the Rules: Proposes to modify three of the official calendar year 1989 lagged, semi-monthly state pay dates, as follows: From Monday, June 26, 1989, to Friday, June 23, 1989; from Monday, September 11, 1989, to Friday, September 8, 1989; and from Monday, December 11, 1989, to Friday, December 8, 1989. All other 1989 pay dates would remain as is.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rules: These proposed amended rules are needed to ensure compliance with the legislative directive to annually update and publish the official lagged, semi-monthly pay dates for the current and ensuing calendar years through the administrative hearing process. The purpose of this particular modification is to see that state employees are paid eight days after the end of the applicable pay period rather than after eleven days, as would be the case under the currently adopted official calendar year 1989 lagged, semi-monthly state pay dates.

Involved Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement: Mr. Collum C. Liska, Senior Executive Policy Coordinator, Accounting and Fiscal Services Division, Office of Financial Management, 430 Insurance Building, Mailstop AQ-44, Olympia, WA 98504-0201, phone (206) 753-8538.

Name of Involved Agency Proposing the Rules: Office of Financial Management.

Agency Comments: None.

The rules are not necessary to comply with a federal law, or a federal or state court decision.

Other Information: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not shown since these proposed rules are not applicable to the Regulatory Fairness Act.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 88-66, filed 7/27/88)

WAC 82-50-021 OFFICIAL LAGGED, SEMIMONTHLY PAY DATES ESTABLISHED. Unless exempted otherwise under the provisions of WAC 82-50-031, the salaries of all state officers and employees are paid on a lagged, semimonthly basis for the official twice-a-month pay periods established in RCW 42.16.010(1). The following are the official lagged, semimonthly pay dates for calendar years 1988 and 1989:

CALENDAR YEAR 1988	CALENDAR YEAR 1989
Monday, January 11, 1988	Tuesday, January 10, 1989
Monday, January 25, 1988	Wednesday, January 25, 1989
Wednesday, February 10, 1988	Friday, February 10, 1989
Thursday, February 25, 1988	Friday, February 24, 1989
Thursday, March 10, 1988	Friday, March 10, 1989
Friday, March 25, 1988	Friday, March 24, 1989
Monday, April 11, 1988	Monday, April 10, 1989
Monday, April 25, 1988	Tuesday, April 25, 1989
Tuesday, May 10, 1988	Wednesday, May 10, 1989
Wednesday, May 25, 1988	Thursday, May 25, 1989
Friday, June 10, 1988	Friday, June 9, 1989
Friday, June 24, 1988	((Monday, June 26, 1989))
	Friday, June 23, 1989
Monday, July 11, 1988	Monday, July 10, 1989
Monday, July 25, 1988	Tuesday, July 25, 1989
Wednesday, August 10, 1988	Thursday, August 10, 1989
Thursday, August 25, 1988	Friday, August 25, 1989
Friday, September 9, 1988	((Monday, September 11, 1989))
	Friday, September 8, 1989
Monday, September 26, 1988	Monday, September 25, 1989
Friday, October 7, 1988	Tuesday, October 10, 1989
Tuesday, October 25, 1988	Wednesday, October 25, 1989

CALENDAR YEAR 1988

CALENDAR YEAR 1989

Thursday, November 10, 1988
Wednesday, November 23, 1988
Friday, December 9, 1988

Thursday, November 9, 1989
Wednesday, November 22, 1989
~~((Monday, December 11, 1989))~~
Friday, December 8, 1989
Friday, December 22, 1989

WSR 88-24-058

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING

[Order PM 810—Filed December 7, 1988]

I, Mary G. Faulk, director of the Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at the First Floor Examination Room, 1300 Quince Street, Olympia, WA, the annexed rules relating to the amending of WAC 308-124D-040.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-20-090 filed with the code reviser on October 5, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.85.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 7, 1988.

By Mary G. Faulk
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 775, filed 9/30/88)

WAC 308-124D-040 DISCLOSURE OF AGENCY REPRESENTATION. A licensee acting as the listing and selling agent or as a selling agent must make an oral and/or written disclosure of agency representation to buyer(s) in a real estate or business opportunity transaction. The disclosure must have been made at least once prior to preparing the purchase and sale agreement, including options to purchase, lease purchase agreements and exchange agreements.

The seller shall be provided disclosure of the selling agent's agency representation by the listing agent or the selling agent at least once prior to presenting the agreement.

The disclosure shall be confirmed in a separate paragraph titled "Agency disclosure" in the agreement, which shall be as follows:

"AGENCY DISCLOSURE: At the signing of this agreement the selling agent (insert name of selling agent and broker) represented _____ and the listing agent (insert name of listing agent and broker) represented _____. Each party signing this document confirms that prior oral and/or written disclosure of agency was provided to him/her in this transaction."

The licensee's conduct in the real estate transaction shall be in conformity with the agency disclosure made. The payment of compensation or the obligation to pay compensation to a licensee is not necessarily determinative of a particular agency relationship.

WSR 88-24-059

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING

[Order PM 811—Filed December 7, 1988]

I, Mary G. Faulk, director of the Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at the First Floor Examination Room, 1300 Quince Street, Olympia, WA, the annexed rules relating to the amending of WAC 308-124-021, 308-124H-030, 308-124H-035 and 308-124E-012; and new WAC 308-124D-060, 308-124D-065 and 308-124H-033.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 88-20-091 filed with the code reviser on October 5, 1988. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.85.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED December 7, 1988.

By Mary G. Faulk
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 683, filed 10/7/87)

WAC 308-124-021 DEFINITIONS. (1) Words and terms used in these rules shall have the same meaning as each has under chapter 18.85 RCW unless otherwise clearly provided in these rules, or the context in which they are used in these rules clearly indicates that they be given some other meaning.

(2) "Designated broker" is the natural person designated by a corporation or partnership to act as a broker on behalf of the corporation or partnership. The designated broker must be an officer of the corporation or a general partner of the partnership and must be separately qualified for licensure as a real estate broker.

(3) "Principal owner" is a person who owns or controls, directly or indirectly, ten percent or more of a real estate brokerage, regardless of whether such interest stands in the person's true name or in the name of a nominee.

(4) "Individual broker" is the natural person who owns a sole proprietorship brokerage company and is the licensed broker of the firm.

(5) "Incorporated associate broker" is the natural person qualified as a broker who works with a broker

and who is licensed as a corporation and whose license states that he or she is associated with a broker.

(6) "Real estate program manager" is the person appointed by the director of the department of licensing to administer the real estate program of the department of licensing.

(7) "Affiliated licensees" are the natural persons licensed as salespersons, associate brokers, incorporated associate brokers, and/or branch managers employed by a real estate broker and who are licensed to represent a broker in the performance of any of the acts specified in chapter 18.85 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 683, filed 10/7/87)

WAC 308-124H-030 FILING OF COURSES.

Each proprietary school, individual, association or agency seeking approval of courses, shall apply to the department on a prescribed form. Courses shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Each course shall include at least one text book that is in general circulation or other instructional materials approved by the commission.

(2) Each course must add to the practical knowledge of the real estate practitioner.

(3) Each course must be supervised or under the direction of at least one natural person who meets the qualifications of WAC 308-124H-060.

(4) Each course must deal with substantive real estate subject matter such as, but not limited to, legal aspects of real estate, real estate principles and practices, real estate finance, appraising, deposit receipts and earnest money agreements. General sales motivation courses will not qualify.

(5) Each course must require a comprehensive examination or examinations and a final grade.

(6) Each course must require a minimum of seven and one-half hours of classroom work for the student; a classroom hour is a period of fifty minutes of actual classroom or workshop instruction. The time allotted for examinations shall not be applicable toward the minimum hours of course study.

(7) All course content materials must be accurate and current.

NEW SECTION

WAC 308-124H-033 UPDATING OF COURSE MATERIALS IN THE EVENT OF A STATUTE OR RULE CHANGE. Schools shall update their course materials no later than thirty days after the effective date of a statute or rule change so as to keep the materials accurate and current.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 595, filed 5/12/86, effective 10/1/86)

WAC 308-124H-035 REAL ESTATE FUNDAMENTALS COURSE CONTENT. Schools applying

for approval of real estate fundamentals will follow the outline prescribed below:

The real estate fundamentals course will include:

Fiduciary commitment, agency, ethics, real estate law and agency relationships and disclosure rules	((3)) 4 hours
Market analysis	3 hours
Contracts and documents	9 hours
Financing (including qualifying the buyer)	((9)) 8 hours
Closing (costs etc.)	3 hours
Government rules and regulations	3 hours

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PM 712, filed 3/1/88)

WAC 308-124E-012 ADMINISTRATION OF FUNDS HELD IN TRUST—GENERAL PROCEDURES. Any real estate broker who receives funds or moneys from any principal or any party to a real estate or business opportunity transaction, property management agreement, or contract/mortgage collection agreement shall hold the funds or moneys in trust for the purposes of the transaction or agreement, and shall not utilize such funds or moneys for the benefit of the broker or any person not entitled to such benefit. Except as specifically provided in this section, funds or moneys received in trust shall be deposited in a Washington state banking institution approved by the banking division, department of general administration, state of Washington, or successor. The broker is responsible for depositing, holding, disbursing and accounting for funds in trust as provided herein.

(1) Bank accounts shall be designated as trust accounts in the firm name of the real estate broker as licensed.

(2) Interest credited to a clients account must be recorded as a liability on client ledger. Interest assigned or credited by written assignment agreement to the broker may not be maintained in the trust account. The broker is responsible to make arrangements with the financial institution to credit this interest to the general account of the firm.

(3) The broker shall establish and maintain a system of records and procedures approved by the director that provide an audit trail accounting for all funds received and disbursed, identified to the account of each individual client. Records and procedures described herein meet approval requirements. Any alternative records or procedures proposed for use by a broker shall be approved in advance by the department.

(4) The real estate broker shall be responsible for deposits, disbursements or transfers of clients' funds received and held in trust, whether disbursed by personal signature, signature plate or signature of another person authorized to act on the broker's behalf.

(5) All funds or moneys received for any reason pertaining to the sale, renting, leasing or option of real estate or business opportunities or contract or mortgage collections shall be deposited in the broker's real estate trust bank account not later than the first banking day following receipt thereof; except

(a) Checks received as earnest money deposits when the earnest money agreement states that a check is to be held for a specified length of time or until the occurrence of a specific event; and

(b) Checks, funds or moneys received as rent, contract payments or mortgage payments on real estate or business opportunities, owned exclusively by the real estate broker or the broker's real estate firm.

(6) All checks, funds or moneys received shall be identified by the day received and by the amount, source and purpose on either a cash receipts journal or duplicate receipt retained as a permanent record.

(7) All deposits to the trust bank account shall be documented by duplicate deposit slip, validated by bank imprint or electronic transfer memo identifying the source of funds and transaction to which it applies. Receipt of funds by wire transfer are to be posted in the same manner as other receipts provided there is a traceable identifying number provided by the financial institution or transferring entity. The broker must also make arrangements for a follow-up "hard-copy" receipt for the deposit.

(8) An individual client's ledger sheet shall be established and maintained for each client for whom funds are received in trust, to which ledger sheet all receipts and disbursements shall be posted. The credit entries must show the date of deposit, amount of deposit, and item covered including, but not limited to "earnest money deposit," "down payment," "rent," "damage deposit," "rent deposit" "interest." The debit entries must show the date of the check, check number, amount of the check, name of payee and item covered. The "item covered" entry may indicate a code number per chart of accounts, or may be documented by entry in a cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, or check voucher.

(9) The real estate trust bank account balance must be equal at all times to the outstanding trust liability to clients. The balance shown in the check register or bank control account must equal the total liability to clients.

(10) The broker shall be responsible for preparation of a monthly trial balance of the client's ledger, reconciling the ledger with both the trust account bank statement and the trust account check register or bank control account.

(11) All disbursements of trust funds shall be made by check, or electronic transfer, drawn on the real estate trust bank account and identified thereon to a specific real estate or business opportunity transaction, or collection/management agreement. The number of each check, amount, date, payee, items covered and the specific client's ledger sheet debited must be shown on the check stub or check register and all data must agree exactly with the check as written.

(a) No disbursement from the trust account shall be made based upon wire transfer receipts until the deposit has been verified.

(b) The broker must make arrangements with the financial institution in which the trust account is located to provide a follow-up "hard-copy" debit memo when funds are disbursed via wire transfer.

(c) The broker shall retain in the transaction file a copy of instructions signed by the owner of funds to be wire-transferred which identifies the receiving entity and account number.

(12) Voided checks written on the trust bank account shall be permanently defaced and shall be retained.

(13) Commissions owed to another real estate broker may be paid from the real estate trust bank account. Those commissions shall be paid promptly upon receipt of funds. Commissions shared with another broker are a reduction of the gross commissions received.

(14) No deposits to the real estate trust bank account shall be made of funds:

(a) That belong to the real estate broker or the real estate firm, including funds to "open" the bank account or to keep the account from being "closed"; or

(b) That do not pertain to a client's real estate or business opportunity sales transaction or are not received in connection with a client's rental, contract or mortgage collection account.

(15) No disbursements from the real estate trust bank account shall be made:

(a) For items not pertaining to a specific real estate or business opportunity transaction or a rental, contract or mortgage collection account;

(b) Pertaining to a specific real estate or business opportunity transaction or a rental, contract or mortgage collection account in excess of the actual amount held in the real estate trust bank account in connection with that transaction or collection account;

(c) In payment of a commission owed to any person licensed to the real estate broker or in payment of any business expense of the broker. Payment of commissions to persons licensed to the broker or of any business expense of the broker shall be paid from the regular business bank account of the broker.

(d) For bank charges of any nature, including bank services, checks or other items, except as specified in WAC 308-124E-013 (1)(a) and (d). Bank charges are business overhead expenses of the broker. Arrangements must be made with the bank to have any such charges applicable to the real estate trust bank account charged to the regular business bank account, or to provide a separate monthly statement of bank charges so that they may be paid from the brokers business bank account.

(16) The provisions of this chapter are applicable to manual or computerized accounting systems. For clarity, the following is addressed for computer systems:

(a) The system must provide for a capability to back-up all data files.

(b) Receipt and check registers will be printed at least once monthly and retained as a permanent record. Reconciliation and trial balance will be accomplished at least once monthly, printed and retained as a permanent record.

(c) The broker will maintain a printed, dated source document file to support any changes to existing accounting records.

(d) If the program has the ability to write checks, the check number must be pre-printed on the check or retained voucher copy by the supplier. The program may,

if desired assign suffixes or subaccount codes before or after the check number for identification purposes.

(e) The check number must appear in the magnetic coding which also identifies the account number for readability by the financial institution computer.

NEW SECTION

WAC 308-124D-060 BROKER SUPERVISION OF AFFILIATED LICENSEES. (1) The individual broker or designated broker shall be held responsible for the conduct of any affiliated licensee. Whenever an affiliated licensee violates a provision of chapter 18.85 RCW or the rules promulgated thereunder in contravention of the broker's written policies or instructions, the broker may not be held responsible for failing to adequately supervise the affiliated licensee if the broker can demonstrate the following:

- (a) Reasonable procedures existed to substantiate that adequate supervision was being performed;
- (b) Upon learning of the violation, attempted to prevent or mitigate the damage;
- (c) Did not participate in the violation;
- (d) Did not ratify the violation; and
- (e) Did not attempt to avoid learning of the violation.

(2) Every document prepared and signed by an affiliated licensee in connection with any transaction for which a real estate license is required and which may have a material effect upon the rights or obligations of a party to the transaction shall be reviewed, initialed, and dated by the broker within five business days after preparation or signing by the licensee or before the closing of the transaction, whichever occurs first. A broker may delegate the responsibility and authority for this action to any affiliated licensee, so long as the licensee has met the educational and experience requirements to qualify as a broker, and so long as the broker does not relinquish overall responsibility for supervision of the actions of affiliated licensees. The delegation of authority for this responsibility must be documented by a written agreement.

(3) The existence of an independent contractor relationship or any other special compensation arrangement between the broker and affiliated licensees shall not release the broker and licensees of any duties, obligations, or responsibilities required by law or rule.

NEW SECTION

WAC 308-124D-065 BROKER AND AFFILIATED LICENSEES—WRITTEN RELATIONSHIP AGREEMENT. (1) Every real estate broker shall have a written agreement with each of his or her affiliated licensees. The agreement shall be dated, signed by the parties and shall cover the salient aspects of their relationship, including, but not limited to, supervision, duties, compensation, and termination.

(2) Signed copies of the agreement shall be retained by the broker for a period of three years from the date of termination of the agreement. The agreement shall be available for inspection by authorized representatives of the department.

WSR 88-24-060
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
(Wildlife Commission)
[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Wildlife Commission intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning conditions for issuance of permits for aquatic plants or releasing of wildlife, amending WAC 232-12-271;

that the agency will at 9:00 a.m., Friday, January 13, 1989, in the Tyee Hotel, 500 Tyee Drive, Olympia, WA 98502, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 77.16.150.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 77.16.150.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 6, 1989.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Jack L. Smith, Chief
Wildlife Management Division

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Number of Rule Section: WAC 232-12-271
Conditions for issuance of permits for aquatic plants or releasing of wildlife.

Statutory Authority: RCW 77.16.150.

Specific Statute that Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 77.16.150.

Summary of the Rule: This amendment addresses the initial department release of an animal species, subspecies, or hybrid into the wilds of the state that is not classified as wildlife. The approval or denial will be based on a department assessment of the impacts on existing wildlife, classified food fish, shellfish, and their respective habitats. A prerelease assessment has prescribed guidelines including solicitation of input from appropriate public and private entities and the general public.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rule: The amendment clarifies for the department, procedures pertaining to release of exotic animal species, subspecies and hybrid not classified as wildlife. This change will ensure that whenever the initial introduction of exotics is proposed, that specific guidelines will be utilized in assessing potential impacts to the state resources.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting and Implementation: Jack L. Smith, Chief, Wildlife Management Division, Department of Wildlife, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 753-5728; and Enforcement: Dan Wyckoff, Chief, Wildlife Enforcement, Department of Wildlife, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 753-5740.

Name of the Person or Organization, Whether Private, Public, or Governmental, that is Proposing the Rule: Department of Wildlife.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to the Rule: No comments.

The rule is not necessary to comply with a federal law or a federal or state court decision.

Any Other Information that may be of Assistance in Identifying the Rule or its Purpose: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not required.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 177, filed 1/28/82)

WAC 232-12-271 ~~((CONDITIONS))~~ CRITERIA FOR ((ISSUANCE OF PERMITS FOR)) PLANTING AQUATIC PLANTS OR RELEASING ((OF)) WILDLIFE. (1) Release by persons other than the director. It is unlawful to plant or release ((wildlife)) any species, subspecies or hybrid of the animal kingdom or aquatic plants ((in the state)) without a permit from the director. A permit may be issued only in accordance with this section.

~~((1))~~ (a) Application for a permit must be made on a form provided by the department. It must be submitted thirty days prior to acquisition of the ((wildlife)) animals or aquatic plants intended for release or planting, and must provide all information indicated.

~~((2))~~ (b) Permits will only be issued if the ((department)) director determines there will be no adverse impact on the wildlife or wildlife habitat of the state.

~~((3))~~ (c) Each permit shall require that ((Thirty)) thirty days prior to planting or release of ((wildlife)) animals or aquatic plants they must be made available for ((department)) inspection by the director. If the ((department)) director is not satisfied((;)) the ((wildlife)) animals or aquatic plants are disease free, they shall not be released or planted in the state. Director approval for release or planting may be withdrawn for cause.

~~((4))~~ (d) ((A person)) Each permit shall require that a permittee intending to release wildlife in the state shall report immediately to the ((department)) director the outbreak of any disease among the ((wildlife)) animals intended to be released. If such outbreak presents a threat to the wildlife of the state, the director may immediately order such action as necessary including quarantine or destruction of stock, sterilization of enclosures and facilities, cessation of activities, and disposal of ((wildlife)) animals in a manner satisfactory to the director ((department)).

~~((5))~~ Wildlife covered by a permit issued under this regulation) (e) Each permit shall require that animals to be released shall not be branded, tattooed, tagged, fin clipped or otherwise marked for identification without approval of the director.

(f) Persons other than the department of wildlife may not release nonnative species which do not exist in the wild in Washington.

(2) Release by the director. Before releasing a nonnative species not previously released in Washington, the director shall report to the commission on the planned release, stating the basis for determining that the planned release fulfills the criteria set forth herein. The director may release nonnative species not previously released in Washington only if the director in his or her sole discretion has determined that:

(a) There will be no adverse impact on the wildlife or wildlife habitat of the state;

(b) The commission has classified the species to be released pursuant to RCW 77.12.020;

(c) Suitable habitat is available;

(d) The nonnative species to be released is free of pathogens;

(e) An adequate plan has been developed for evaluating the impact of the release upon wildlife and wildlife habitat, where the nonnative species has not previously been released in Washington; and

(f) The release serves the public interest.

The director may plant aquatic plants or release animal species, subspecies or hybrids which have been planted or released previously in Washington if they are not diseased and if planting or release will not cause adverse impact on the wildlife or wildlife habitat of the state.

(3) Definition. A species, subspecies or hybrid of the animal kingdom is a "nonnative species" with respect to any habitat outside its historic range.

Reviser's note: RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of underlining and deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules. The rule published above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use of these markings.

WSR 88-24-061
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE
(Wildlife Commission)
[Filed December 7, 1988]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Wildlife Commission intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

New	WAC 232-28-712	1989 Spring turkey seasons and information on spring bear hot spot hunts.
Rep	WAC 232-28-710	1988 Spring turkey seasons and information on spring bear hot spot hunts;

that the agency will at 9:00 a.m., Friday, January 13, 1989, in the Tye Hotel, 500 Tye Drive, Olympia, WA 98502, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 77.12.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 77.12.040.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before January 6, 1989.

Dated: December 6, 1988

By: Jack L. Smith, Chief
Wildlife Management Division

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Number of Rule Section: WAC 232-28-712 1989 Spring turkey seasons and information on spring bear hot spot hunts.

Statutory Authority: RCW 77.12.040.

Specific Statute that Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 77.12.040.

Summary of the Rule: Seasons will be established in the manner outlined in the 1988 seasons pamphlet.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rule: Resource management.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting and Implementation: Jack L. Smith, Chief, Wildlife Management Division, Department of Wildlife, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 753-5728; and Enforcement: Dan Wyckoff, Chief, Wildlife Enforcement, Department of Wildlife, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, WA 98504, phone (206) 753-5740.

Name of the Person or Organization, Whether Private, Public, or Governmental, that is proposing the Rule: Department of Wildlife.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to the Rule: No comments.

The rule is not necessary to comply with a federal law or a federal or state court decision.

Any Other Information that may be of Assistance in Identifying the Rule or its Purpose: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not required.

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-712 1989 SPRING TURKEY SEASONS AND INFORMATION ON SPRING BEAR HOT SPOT HUNTS.

Reviser's note: The text and accompanying pamphlet comprising the 1989 Spring turkey seasons and information on spring bear hot spot hunts proposed by the Department of Wildlife have been omitted from publication in the Register under the authority of RCW 34.04.050(3) as being unduly cumbersome to publish. Copies of the rules may be obtained from the main office of the Department of Wildlife, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, Washington 98504, and are available in pamphlet form from the department, its six regional offices, and at numerous drug and sporting goods stores throughout the state.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

WAC 232-28-710 1988 SPRING TURKEY SEASONS AND INFORMATION ON SPRING BEAR HOT SPOT HUNTS

Table of WAC Sections Affected

KEY TO TABLE

Symbols:

- AMD = Amendment of existing section
- NEW = New section not previously codified
- OBJEC = Notice of objection by Joint Administrative Rules Review Committee
- RE-AD = Readoption of existing section
- REP = Repeal of existing section
- REAFF = Order assuming and reaffirming rules
- REMOV = Removal of rule pursuant to RCW 34.04.050(5)
- RESCIND = Rescind previous emergency rule
- REVIEW = Review of previously adopted rule
- STMT = Statement regarding previously adopted rule

Suffixes:

- P = Proposed action
- C = Continuance of previous proposal
- E = Emergency action
- W = Withdrawal of proposed action
- No suffix means permanent action

This table covers the current calendar year through this issue of the Register and should be used to locate rules amended, adopted, or repealed subsequent to the publication date of the latest WAC or Supplement.

WAC # shows the section number under which an agency rule is or will be codified in the Washington Administrative Code.

WSR # shows the issue of the Washington State Register where the document may be found; the last three digits show the sequence of the document within the issue.

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
4-08-010	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-280	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-540	REP-P	88-17-078
4-08-010	REP	88-22-056	4-08-280	REP	88-22-056	4-08-540	REP	88-22-056
4-08-030	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-290	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-550	REP-P	88-17-078
4-08-030	REP	88-22-056	4-08-290	REP	88-22-056	4-08-550	REP	88-22-056
4-08-040	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-300	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-560	REP-P	88-17-078
4-08-040	REP	88-22-056	4-08-300	REP	88-22-056	4-08-560	REP	88-22-056
4-08-050	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-310	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-570	REP-P	88-17-078
4-08-050	REP	88-22-056	4-08-310	REP	88-22-056	4-08-570	REP	88-22-056
4-08-060	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-320	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-580	REP-P	88-17-078
4-08-060	REP	88-22-056	4-08-320	REP	88-22-056	4-08-580	REP	88-22-056
4-08-070	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-330	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-590	REP-P	88-17-078
4-08-070	REP	88-22-056	4-08-330	REP	88-22-056	4-08-590	REP	88-22-056
4-08-080	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-340	REP-P	88-17-078	4-25-040	AMD-P	88-22-062
4-08-080	REP	88-22-056	4-08-340	REP	88-22-056	4-25-142	NEW	88-05-015
4-08-090	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-350	REP-P	88-17-078	4-25-180	REP-P	88-22-062
4-08-090	REP	88-22-056	4-08-350	REP	88-22-056	4-25-181	REP	88-06-021
4-08-100	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-360	REP-P	88-17-078	4-25-190	NEW	88-06-021
4-08-100	REP	88-22-056	4-08-360	REP	88-22-056	4-25-191	NEW-P	88-22-062
4-08-110	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-370	REP-P	88-17-078	16-28-010	REP	88-05-003
4-08-110	REP	88-22-056	4-08-370	REP	88-22-056	16-28-020	REP	88-05-003
4-08-120	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-380	REP-P	88-17-078	16-28-030	REP	88-05-003
4-08-120	REP	88-22-056	4-08-380	REP	88-22-056	16-28-040	REP	88-05-003
4-08-130	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-390	REP-P	88-17-078	16-28-050	REP	88-05-003
4-08-130	REP	88-22-056	4-08-390	REP	88-22-056	16-28-060	REP	88-05-003
4-08-140	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-400	REP-P	88-17-078	16-28-069	REP	88-05-003
4-08-140	REP	88-22-056	4-08-400	REP	88-22-056	16-28-070	REP	88-05-003
4-08-150	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-410	REP-P	88-17-078	16-28-080	REP	88-05-003
4-08-150	REP	88-22-056	4-08-410	REP	88-22-056	16-28-090	REP	88-05-003
4-08-160	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-420	REP-P	88-17-078	16-30	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-160	REP	88-22-056	4-08-420	REP	88-22-056	16-30-010	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-170	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-430	REP-P	88-17-078	16-30-020	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-170	REP	88-22-056	4-08-430	REP	88-22-056	16-30-030	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-180	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-440	REP-P	88-17-078	16-30-040	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-180	REP	88-22-056	4-08-440	REP	88-22-056	16-30-050	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-190	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-450	REP-P	88-17-078	16-30-060	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-190	REP	88-22-056	4-08-450	REP	88-22-056	16-30-070	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-200	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-460	REP-P	88-17-078	16-30-080	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-200	REP	88-22-056	4-08-460	REP	88-22-056	16-30-090	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-210	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-470	REP-P	88-17-078	16-42-005	AMD-P	88-21-077
4-08-210	REP	88-22-056	4-08-470	REP	88-22-056	16-42-017	AMD-P	88-21-077
4-08-220	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-480	REP-P	88-17-078	16-42-022	AMD-P	88-21-077
4-08-220	REP	88-22-056	4-08-480	REP	88-22-056	16-42-025	AMD-P	88-21-077
4-08-230	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-490	REP-P	88-17-078	16-42-027	NEW-P	88-21-077
4-08-230	REP	88-22-056	4-08-490	REP	88-22-056	16-42-029	NEW-P	88-21-077
4-08-240	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-500	REP-P	88-17-078	16-42-035	AMD-P	88-21-077
4-08-240	REP	88-22-056	4-08-500	REP	88-22-056	16-42-070	NEW-P	88-21-077
4-08-250	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-510	REP-P	88-17-078	16-42-080	NEW-P	88-21-077
4-08-250	REP	88-22-056	4-08-510	REP	88-22-056	16-42-090	NEW-P	88-21-077
4-08-260	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-520	REP-P	88-17-078	16-54-010	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-260	REP	88-22-056	4-08-520	REP	88-22-056	16-54-082	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-270	REP-P	88-17-078	4-08-530	REP-P	88-17-078	16-86-015	AMD	88-05-003
4-08-270	REP	88-22-056	4-08-530	REP	88-22-056	16-86-030	AMD	88-05-003

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #			WSR #			WAC #			WSR #			WAC #			WSR #		
16-86-095	AMD	88-05-003	16-230-475	NEW-P	88-06-071	16-232-405	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-156-001	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-230-475	NEW-E	88-07-038	16-232-410	NEW-E	88-17-079									
16-156-001	NEW	88-07-024	16-230-475	NEW	88-09-013	16-232-410	REP-E	88-21-030									
16-156-005	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-230-640	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-415	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-156-005	NEW	88-07-024	16-230-655	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-420	NEW-E	88-17-079									
16-156-010	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-231-015	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-420	REP-E	88-21-030									
16-156-010	NEW	88-07-024	16-231-020	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-425	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-156-020	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-231-035	REP-P	88-06-071	16-232-430	NEW-E	88-17-079									
16-156-020	NEW	88-07-024	16-231-035	REP-E	88-07-038	16-232-430	REP-E	88-21-030									
16-156-030	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-231-035	REP	88-09-013	16-232-435	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-156-030	NEW	88-07-024	16-231-115	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-440	NEW-E	88-21-030									
16-156-040	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-231-119	NEW	88-05-033	16-232-440	REP-E	88-23-028									
16-156-040	NEW	88-07-024	16-231-125	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-445	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-156-050	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-231-130	AMD-P	88-06-071	16-232-450	NEW-E	88-21-030									
16-156-050	NEW	88-07-024	16-231-130	AMD-E	88-07-038	16-232-450	REP-E	88-23-028									
16-156-060	NEW-P	88-04-073	16-231-130	AMD	88-09-013	16-232-455	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-156-060	NEW	88-07-024	16-231-145	AMD-P	88-06-071	16-232-460	NEW-E	88-21-030									
16-228-003	REP-P	88-09-077	16-231-145	AMD-E	88-07-038	16-232-460	REP-E	88-23-028									
16-228-003	REP	88-14-074	16-231-145	AMD	88-09-013	16-232-465	NEW-E	88-23-028									
16-228-010	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-150	REP-P	88-06-071	16-232-470	NEW-E	88-21-030									
16-228-010	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-150	REP-E	88-07-038	16-232-470	REP-E	88-23-028									
16-228-157	NEW-P	88-09-077	16-231-150	REP	88-09-013	16-232-950	NEW-P	88-06-071									
16-228-157	NEW	88-14-074	16-231-225	AMD	88-05-033	16-232-950	NEW-E	88-07-038									
16-228-160	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-240	REP-P	88-06-071	16-232-950	NEW	88-09-013									
16-228-160	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-240	REP-E	88-07-038	16-304-040	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-165	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-240	REP	88-09-013	16-304-040	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-165	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-345	REP-P	88-06-071	16-304-050	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-185	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-345	REP-E	88-07-038	16-304-050	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-185	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-345	REP	88-09-013	16-304-110	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-190	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-430	REP-P	88-06-071	16-304-110	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-190	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-430	REP-E	88-07-038	16-304-130	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-210	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-430	REP	88-09-013	16-304-130	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-210	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-535	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-0401	REP-P	88-07-114									
16-228-215	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-535	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-0401	REP	88-11-042									
16-228-215	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-535	REP	88-09-013	16-316-0451	REP-P	88-07-114									
16-228-215	AMD-P	88-22-069	16-231-625	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-0451	REP	88-11-042									
16-228-220	AMD-P	88-09-077	16-231-625	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-0501	REP-P	88-07-114									
16-228-220	AMD	88-14-074	16-231-625	REP	88-09-013	16-316-0501	REP	88-11-042									
16-228-220	AMD-P	88-22-069	16-231-730	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-0551	REP-P	88-07-114									
16-228-222	NEW-P	88-09-077	16-231-730	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-0551	REP	88-11-042									
16-228-222	NEW-P	88-22-069	16-231-730	REP	88-09-013	16-316-0601	REP-P	88-07-114									
16-228-227	NEW-P	88-09-077	16-231-845	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-0601	REP	88-11-042									
16-228-227	NEW	88-14-074	16-231-845	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-195	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-228	NEW-P	88-09-077	16-231-845	REP	88-09-013	16-316-195	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-232	NEW-P	88-09-077	16-231-912	AMD	88-05-033	16-316-230	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-232	NEW	88-14-074	16-231-940	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-230	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-400	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-231-940	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-315	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-410	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-231-940	REP	88-09-013	16-316-315	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-420	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-231-950	NEW-P	88-06-071	16-316-350	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-430	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-231-950	NEW-E	88-07-038	16-316-350	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-440	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-231-950	NEW	88-09-013	16-316-370	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-450	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-010	AMD	88-05-033	16-316-370	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-460	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-015	AMD	88-05-033	16-316-525	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-470	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-015	AMD-E	88-15-048	16-316-525	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-480	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-015	AMD-P	88-17-121	16-316-717	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-490	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-015	AMD	88-21-098	16-316-719	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-500	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-020	AMD	88-05-033	16-316-724	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-510	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-025	AMD	88-05-033	16-316-724	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-520	NEW-E	88-07-033	16-232-027	NEW	88-05-033	16-316-727	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-600	NEW-E	88-13-025	16-232-035	AMD-P	88-06-071	16-316-800	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-600	NEW-P	88-17-121	16-232-035	AMD-E	88-07-038	16-316-800	AMD	88-11-042									
16-228-600	NEW-E	88-19-051	16-232-035	AMD	88-09-013	16-316-820	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-228-600	NEW	88-21-098	16-232-038	AMD	88-05-033	16-316-820	AMD	88-11-042									
16-230-010	AMD-P	88-17-121	16-232-040	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-830	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-230-010	AMD	88-21-098	16-232-040	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-830	AMD	88-11-042									
16-230-030	AMD-P	88-05-055	16-232-040	REP	88-09-013	16-316-832	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-230-030	AMD	88-08-050	16-232-130	REP-P	88-06-071	16-316-832	AMD	88-11-042									
16-230-030	AMD-P	88-17-121	16-232-130	REP-E	88-07-038	16-316-880	AMD-P	88-07-114									
16-230-030	AMD	88-21-098	16-232-130	REP	88-09-013	16-316-880	AMD	88-11-042									
16-230-075	AMD-P	88-17-121	16-232-230	REP-P	88-06-071	16-403-140	AMD-P	88-11-068									
16-230-075	AMD	88-21-098	16-232-230	REP-E	88-07-038	16-403-140	AMD	88-14-128									
16-230-076	AMD-P	88-17-121	16-232-320	REP	88-09-013	16-403-142	NEW-P	88-11-068									
16-230-076	AMD	88-21-098	16-232-320	REP-P	88-06-071	16-403-142	NEW	88-14-128									
16-230-078	AMD-P	88-17-121	16-232-320	REP-E	88-07-038	16-403-155	AMD-P	88-14-127									
16-230-078	AMD	88-21-098	16-232-320	REP	88-09-013	16-403-180	AMD-P	88-11-068									
16-230-079	NEW-P	88-05-055	16-232-400	NEW-E	88-17-079	16-403-180	AMD	88-14-128									
16-230-079	NEW	88-08-050	16-232-400	REP-E	88-21-030	16-403-190	AMD-P	88-11-068									

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
16-403-190	AMD	88-14-128	16-602-010	AMD	88-07-018	25-46-080	NEW-P	88-18-092
16-403-195	AMD-P	88-11-068	16-602-020	AMD-P	88-03-058	25-46-080	NEW	88-23-005
16-403-280	AMD	88-14-128	16-602-030	AMD	88-07-018	25-46-100	NEW-P	88-18-092
16-403-280	AMD-P	88-11-068	16-602-030	AMD-P	88-03-058	25-46-100	NEW	88-23-005
16-436-100	AMD	88-14-128	16-602-030	AMD	88-07-018	25-46-120	NEW-P	88-18-092
16-436-100	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-620-240	AMD-P	88-07-096	25-46-120	NEW	88-23-005
16-436-100	AMD	88-11-048	16-620-240	AMD	88-12-036	25-46-140	NEW-P	88-18-092
16-436-110	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-620-260	AMD-P	88-07-096	25-46-140	NEW	88-23-005
16-436-110	AMD	88-11-048	16-620-260	AMD	88-12-036	25-46-160	NEW-P	88-18-092
16-436-140	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-620-265	REP-P	88-07-096	25-46-160	NEW	88-23-005
16-436-140	AMD	88-11-048	16-620-265	REP	88-12-036	25-46-180	NEW-P	88-18-092
16-436-160	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-694-001	AMD-P	88-20-068	25-46-180	NEW	88-23-005
16-436-160	AMD	88-11-048	16-694-001	AMD	88-23-056	25-48	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-436-165	NEW-P	88-08-071	16-694-010	NEW-P	88-20-068	25-48	AMD	88-23-004
16-436-165	NEW	88-11-048	16-694-010	NEW	88-23-056	25-48-010	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-436-170	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-750-001	NEW-P	88-03-057	25-48-010	AMD	88-23-004
16-436-170	AMD	88-11-048	16-750-001	NEW-E	88-03-059	25-48-020	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-436-185	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-750-001	NEW	88-07-016	25-48-020	AMD	88-23-004
16-436-185	AMD	88-11-048	16-750-003	NEW-E	88-13-007	25-48-030	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-436-190	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-750-003	NEW-P	88-13-049	25-48-030	AMD	88-23-004
16-436-190	AMD	88-11-048	16-750-003	NEW	88-18-001	25-48-050	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-436-220	AMD-P	88-08-071	16-750-003	NEW-E	88-18-002	25-48-050	AMD	88-23-004
16-436-220	AMD	88-11-048	16-750-004	NEW-E	88-13-007	25-48-060	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-470-010	AMD-E	88-12-082	16-750-004	NEW-P	88-13-049	25-48-060	AMD	88-23-004
16-470-010	AMD-P	88-12-083	16-750-004	NEW	88-18-001	25-48-085	NEW-P	88-18-091
16-470-010	AMD	88-16-016	16-750-004	NEW-E	88-18-002	25-48-085	NEW	88-23-004
16-470-015	AMD-E	88-12-082	16-750-005	NEW-P	88-03-057	25-48-090	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-470-015	AMD-P	88-12-083	16-750-005	NEW-E	88-03-059	25-48-090	AMD	88-23-004
16-470-015	AMD	88-16-016	16-750-005	NEW	88-07-016	25-48-100	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-470-600	NEW-E	88-09-002	16-750-005	AMD-P	88-20-065	25-48-100	AMD	88-23-004
16-470-600	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-750-005	AMD	88-24-002	25-48-105	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-470-600	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-750-010	REP-P	88-03-057	25-48-105	AMD	88-23-004
16-470-600	NEW	88-16-016	16-750-010	REP-E	88-03-059	25-48-108	NEW-P	88-18-091
16-470-605	NEW-E	88-09-002	16-750-010	REP	88-07-016	25-48-108	NEW	88-23-004
16-470-605	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-750-011	NEW-P	88-03-057	25-48-120	AMD-P	88-18-091
16-470-605	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-750-011	NEW-E	88-03-059	25-48-120	AMD	88-23-004
16-470-605	NEW	88-16-016	16-750-011	NEW	88-07-016	25-48-125	NEW-P	88-18-091
16-470-610	NEW-E	88-09-002	16-750-011	AMD-E	88-13-007	25-48-125	NEW	88-23-004
16-470-610	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-750-011	AMD-P	88-13-049	34-02-010	AMD-P	88-16-030
16-470-610	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-750-011	AMD	88-18-001	34-02-010	AMD	88-21-003
16-470-610	NEW	88-16-016	16-750-011	AMD-E	88-18-002	34-04-120	AMD-P	88-16-030
16-470-615	NEW-E	88-09-002	16-750-011	AMD-P	88-20-065	34-04-120	AMD	88-21-003
16-470-615	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-750-011	AMD	88-24-002	44-10-035	NEW-P	88-13-088
16-470-615	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-750-015	NEW-P	88-03-057	44-10-035	NEW	88-19-064
16-470-615	NEW	88-16-016	16-750-015	NEW-E	88-03-059	44-10-040	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-620	NEW-E	88-09-002	16-750-015	NEW	88-07-016	44-10-050	AMD	88-04-081
16-470-620	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-750-015	AMD-P	88-20-065	44-10-055	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-620	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-750-015	AMD	88-24-002	44-10-060	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-620	NEW	88-16-016	16-750-900	NEW-P	88-03-057	44-10-070	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-625	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-750-900	NEW-E	88-03-059	44-10-080	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-625	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-750-900	NEW	88-07-016	44-10-080	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-625	NEW	88-16-016	16-752-001	AMD	88-04-044	44-10-110	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-630	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-752-115	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-130	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-630	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-752-120	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-160	NEW	88-04-081
16-470-630	NEW	88-16-016	16-752-125	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-165	NEW-P	88-04-078
16-470-635	NEW-E	88-12-082	16-752-130	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-165	NEW-E	88-04-079
16-470-635	NEW-P	88-12-083	16-752-135	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-165	NEW	88-09-063
16-470-635	NEW	88-16-016	16-752-140	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-165	NEW-E	88-09-065
16-488-025	AMD-P	88-13-081	16-752-145	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-180	NEW	88-04-081
16-488-025	AMD	88-17-014	16-752-150	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-200	NEW	88-04-081
16-495-085	AMD-P	88-07-114	16-752-155	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-210	NEW	88-04-081
16-495-085	AMD	88-11-042	16-752-160	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-215	NEW-P	88-03-063
16-528-040	AMD	88-09-019	16-752-165	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-215	NEW-E	88-03-064
16-528-210	AMD-P	88-08-061	16-752-170	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-215	NEW	88-09-064
16-528-210	AMD	88-12-019	16-752-200	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-220	NEW-E	88-09-065
16-530-040	AMD	88-09-018	16-752-201	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-220	NEW-P	88-03-063
16-532-020	AMD-P	88-18-073	16-752-202	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-220	NEW-E	88-03-064
16-532-020	AMD	88-24-028	16-752-203	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-220	NEW-P	88-09-062
16-532-035	NEW-P	88-18-073	16-752-204	NEW	88-04-044	44-10-220	NEW-E	88-09-065
16-532-035	NEW	88-24-028	25-46-010	NEW-P	88-18-092	44-10-220	NEW	88-13-039
16-532-120	AMD-P	88-10-034	25-46-020	NEW	88-23-005	44-10-230	NEW-P	88-03-063
16-532-120	AMD	88-13-050	25-46-020	NEW-P	88-18-092	44-10-230	NEW-E	88-03-064
16-570-040	NEW-P	88-04-072	25-46-040	NEW	88-23-005	44-10-230	NEW-P	88-09-062
16-570-040	NEW	88-07-071	25-46-040	NEW-P	88-18-092	44-10-230	NEW-E	88-09-065
16-602-005	NEW-P	88-03-058	25-46-040	NEW	88-23-005	44-10-230	NEW	88-13-039
16-602-005	NEW	88-07-018	25-46-060	NEW	88-23-005	44-10-240	NEW-P	88-03-063
16-602-010	AMD-P	88-03-058	25-46-060	NEW-P	88-18-092	44-10-240	NEW-E	88-03-064
				NEW	88-23-005	44-10-240	NEW	88-09-064

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
44-10-240	NEW-E 88-09-065	55-01-020	NEW 88-24-030	114-12-170	AMD 88-17-084
44-10-300	NEW-E 88-22-054	55-01-030	NEW-P 88-15-073	114-12-200	NEW-P 88-18-079
44-10-300	NEW-P 88-22-055	55-01-030	NEW-P 88-21-116	114-12-200	NEW-C 88-22-022
44-10-310	NEW-E 88-22-054	55-01-030	NEW 88-24-030	114-12-200	NEW 88-23-060
44-10-310	NEW-P 88-22-055	55-01-040	NEW-P 88-15-073	118-40	NEW-C 88-18-040
44-10-320	NEW-E 88-22-054	55-01-040	NEW-P 88-21-116	118-40-010	NEW-P 88-15-074
44-10-320	NEW-P 88-22-055	55-01-040	NEW 88-24-030	118-40-010	NEW 88-19-025
50-12-230	AMD-E 88-11-002	55-01-050	NEW-P 88-15-073	118-40-020	NEW-P 88-15-074
50-12-230	AMD-P 88-13-064	55-01-050	NEW-P 88-21-116	118-40-020	NEW 88-19-025
50-12-230	AMD 88-16-066	55-01-050	NEW 88-24-030	118-40-030	NEW-P 88-15-074
50-20-040	AMD-E 88-13-051	55-01-060	NEW-P 88-15-073	118-40-030	NEW 88-19-025
50-20-040	AMD-P 88-14-002	55-01-060	NEW-P 88-21-116	118-40-040	NEW-P 88-15-074
50-20-040	AMD-C 88-14-093	55-01-060	NEW 88-24-030	118-40-040	NEW 88-19-025
50-20-040	AMD-P 88-18-076	55-01-070	NEW-P 88-15-073	118-40-050	NEW-P 88-15-074
50-20-040	AMD 88-21-031	55-01-070	NEW-P 88-21-116	118-40-050	NEW 88-19-025
50-20-050	AMD-E 88-13-051	55-01-070	NEW 88-24-030	118-40-060	NEW-P 88-15-074
50-20-050	AMD-P 88-14-002	55-01-080	NEW-P 88-15-073	118-40-060	NEW 88-19-025
50-20-050	AMD-C 88-14-093	55-01-080	NEW-P 88-21-116	118-40-070	NEW-P 88-15-074
50-20-050	AMD-P 88-18-076	55-01-080	NEW 88-24-030	118-40-070	NEW 88-19-025
50-20-050	AMD 88-21-031	67-10-020	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-080	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-10	AMD-P 88-14-078	67-10-020	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-080	NEW 88-19-025
51-10	AMD 88-24-021	67-10-030	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-090	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-102	AMD-P 88-14-114	67-10-030	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-090	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-102	AMD-C 88-24-037	67-10-040	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-100	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-206	AMD-P 88-24-037	67-10-040	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-100	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-219	AMD-P 88-24-037	67-10-060	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-150	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-223	AMD-P 88-14-114	67-10-060	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-150	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-223	AMD-C 88-24-037	67-25-120	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-160	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-305	AMD-P 88-14-114	67-25-120	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-160	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-305	AMD-C 88-24-037	67-25-400	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-170	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-402	AMD-P 88-14-114	67-25-400	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-170	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-402	AMD-C 88-24-037	67-25-404	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-180	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-411	AMD-P 88-14-114	67-25-404	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-180	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-411	AMD-C 88-24-037	67-25-570	AMD-P 88-04-016	118-40-190	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-426	AMD-P 88-14-114	67-25-570	AMD 88-09-006	118-40-190	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-426	AMD-C 88-24-037	82-50-021	AMD-P 88-13-092	118-40-300	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-503	AMD-P 88-14-114	82-50-021	AMD 88-16-027	118-40-300	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-503	AMD-C 88-24-037	82-50-021	AMD-P 88-24-057	118-40-400	NEW-P 88-15-074
51-12-601	AMD-P 88-24-037	82-50-031	AMD-P 88-13-092	118-40-400	NEW 88-19-025
51-12-602	AMD-P 88-14-114	82-50-031	AMD 88-16-027	131-08-010	AMD-P 88-21-048
51-12-602	AMD-C 88-24-037	82-50-041	REP-P 88-13-092	131-08-010	AMD 88-24-043
51-12-605	AMD-P 88-14-114	82-50-041	REP 88-16-027	132D-14-010	REP-P 88-19-084
51-12-605	AMD-C 88-24-037	98-11-005	NEW-P 88-03-062	132D-14-010	REP 88-24-014
51-12-608	AMD-P 88-24-037	98-11-005	NEW 88-07-032	132D-14-020	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16	AMD-P 88-14-077	98-40-050	AMD-P 88-03-062	132D-14-020	REP 88-24-014
51-16	AMD 88-24-018	98-40-050	AMD 88-07-032	132D-14-030	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-010	AMD-P 88-14-077	100-100-050	AMD-P 88-11-076	132D-14-030	REP 88-24-014
51-16-010	AMD 88-24-018	100-100-050	AMD-E 88-11-077	132D-14-040	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-020	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-850	NEW-P 88-07-017	132D-14-040	REP 88-24-014
51-16-020	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-850	NEW-E 88-11-065	132D-14-050	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-030	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-850	NEW 88-11-066	132D-14-050	REP 88-24-014
51-16-030	AMD-P 88-20-070	106-116-853	NEW-P 88-07-017	132D-14-060	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-030	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-853	NEW-E 88-11-065	132D-14-060	REP 88-24-014
51-16-040	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-853	NEW 88-11-066	132D-14-070	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-040	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-856	NEW-P 88-07-017	132D-14-070	REP 88-24-014
51-16-050	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-856	NEW-E 88-11-065	132D-14-070	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-050	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-856	NEW 88-11-066	132D-14-080	REP 88-24-014
51-16-060	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-859	NEW-P 88-07-017	132D-14-080	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-060	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-859	NEW-E 88-11-065	132D-14-090	REP 88-24-014
51-16-070	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-859	NEW 88-11-066	132D-14-100	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-070	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-901	AMD-P 88-07-017	132D-14-100	REP 88-24-014
51-16-080	AMD-P 88-14-077	106-116-901	AMD-E 88-11-065	132D-14-110	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-080	AMD 88-24-018	106-116-901	AMD 88-11-066	132D-14-110	REP 88-24-014
51-16-090	AMD-P 88-14-077	113-12-100	REP-P 88-19-074	132D-14-120	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-090	AMD 88-24-018	113-12-101	NEW-P 88-19-074	132D-14-120	REP 88-24-014
51-16-100	NEW-P 88-14-077	113-12-103	NEW-P 88-19-074	132D-14-130	REP-P 88-19-084
51-16-100	NEW 88-24-018	113-12-104	NEW-P 88-19-074	132D-14-130	REP 88-24-014
55-01	NEW-C 88-18-050	113-12-200	AMD-P 88-05-058	132D-14-140	REP-P 88-19-084
55-01-001	NEW-C 88-19-057	113-12-200	AMD-P 88-14-040	132D-14-140	REP 88-24-014
55-01-001	NEW-P 88-15-073	113-12-200	AMD 88-17-100	132D-14-150	REP-P 88-19-084
55-01-001	NEW-P 88-21-116	113-12-220	NEW-P 88-19-074	132D-14-150	REP 88-24-014
55-01-001	NEW 88-24-030	113-12-230	NEW-P 88-19-074	132D-14-160	REP-P 88-19-084
55-01-010	NEW-P 88-15-073	114-12-160	AMD-P 88-14-095	132D-14-160	REP 88-24-014
55-01-010	NEW-P 88-21-116	114-12-160	AMD 88-17-084	132D-14-170	REP-P 88-19-084
55-01-010	NEW 88-24-030	114-12-160	AMD-P 88-18-078	132D-14-170	REP 88-24-014
55-01-020	NEW-P 88-15-073	114-12-160	AMD 88-22-023	132D-14-180	REP-P 88-19-084
55-01-020	NEW-P 88-21-116	114-12-170	AMD-P 88-14-095	132D-14-180	REP 88-24-014

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
132E-12-425	REP	88-17-083	132E-168-010	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-130	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-12-428	REP-P	88-13-097	132E-168-010	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-130	REP	88-07-119
132E-12-428	REP	88-17-083	132E-168-020	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-140	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-12-431	REP-P	88-13-097	132E-168-020	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-140	REP	88-07-119
132E-12-431	REP	88-17-083	132E-168-030	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-150	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-12-434	REP-P	88-13-097	132E-168-030	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-150	REP	88-07-119
132E-12-434	REP	88-17-083	132E-168-040	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-160	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-112-010	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-168-040	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-160	REP	88-07-119
132E-112-010	REP	88-10-014	132E-168-050	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-170	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-112-020	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-168-050	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-170	REP	88-07-119
132E-112-020	REP	88-10-014	132E-168-060	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-180	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-112-030	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-168-060	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-180	REP	88-07-119
132E-112-030	REP	88-10-014	132E-168-070	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-190	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-112-040	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-168-070	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-190	REP	88-07-119
132E-112-040	REP	88-10-014	132E-168-080	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-200	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-112-050	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-168-080	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-200	REP	88-07-119
132E-112-050	REP	88-10-014	132E-168-090	REP-P	88-08-019	132I-14-210	REP-P	88-03-047
132E-112-060	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-168-090	REP	88-12-006	132I-14-210	REP	88-07-119
132E-112-060	REP	88-10-014	132E-276-030	AMD-P	88-08-053	132I-120-010	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-070	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-276-030	AMD	88-12-005	132I-120-010	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-070	REP	88-10-014	132E-276-060	AMD-P	88-10-023	132I-120-020	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-080	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-276-060	AMD	88-14-013	132I-120-020	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-080	REP	88-10-014	132E-276-070	AMD-P	88-10-023	132I-120-030	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-090	REP-P	88-06-020	132E-276-070	AMD	88-14-013	132I-120-030	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-090	REP	88-10-014	132F-120-090	AMD-P	88-03-044	132I-120-100	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-100	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-105-140	AMD	88-08-069	132I-120-100	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-100	REP	88-10-014	132H-105-140	AMD-P	88-06-058	132I-120-300	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-110	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-105-140	AMD-P	88-07-089	132I-120-300	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-110	REP	88-10-014	132H-105-140	AMD	88-13-047	132I-120-305	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-120	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-020	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-305	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-120	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-020	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-310	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-130	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-030	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-310	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-130	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-030	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-315	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-140	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-040	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-315	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-140	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-040	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-320	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-150	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-050	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-320	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-150	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-050	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-325	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-160	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-060	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-325	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-160	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-060	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-330	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-170	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-070	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-330	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-170	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-070	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-335	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-180	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-080	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-335	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-180	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-080	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-340	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-190	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-090	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-340	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-190	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-090	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-345	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-200	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-100	REP-P	88-20-002	132I-120-345	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-200	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-100	REP	88-23-051	132I-120-400	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-210	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-148-110	NEW-P	88-20-002	132I-120-400	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-210	REP	88-10-014	132H-148-110	NEW	88-23-051	132I-120-405	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-220	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-200-200	NEW-P	88-04-059	132I-120-405	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-220	REP	88-10-014	132H-200-200	NEW	88-07-036	132I-120-410	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-112-230	REP-P	88-06-020	132H-200-250	NEW-P	88-07-088	132I-120-410	NEW	88-07-120
132E-112-230	REP	88-10-014	132H-200-250	NEW	88-13-048	132I-120-415	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-030	REP-P	88-17-015	132I-14-010	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-415	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-030	REP-W	88-22-024	132I-14-010	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-420	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-040	REP-P	88-17-015	132I-14-020	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-420	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-040	REP-W	88-22-024	132I-14-020	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-425	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-045	NEW-P	88-17-016	132I-14-030	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-425	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-045	NEW-W	88-22-025	132I-14-030	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-430	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-050	REP-P	88-13-001	132I-14-040	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-430	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-050	REP	88-17-082	132I-14-040	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-435	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-060	REP-P	88-13-001	132I-14-050	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-435	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-060	REP	88-17-082	132I-14-050	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-440	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-070	REP-P	88-13-001	132I-14-060	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-440	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-070	REP	88-17-082	132I-14-060	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-445	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-120-080	REP-P	88-13-001	132I-14-070	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-445	NEW	88-07-120
132E-120-080	REP	88-17-082	132I-14-070	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-500	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-121-010	NEW-P	88-13-096	132I-14-080	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-500	NEW	88-07-120
132E-121-010	NEW	88-18-028	132I-14-080	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-510	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-124-030	REP-P	88-08-022	132I-14-090	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-510	NEW	88-07-120
132E-124-030	REP	88-12-004	132I-14-090	REP	88-07-119	132I-120-520	NEW-P	88-03-048
132E-124-040	REP-P	88-08-022	132I-14-100	REP-P	88-03-047	132I-120-520	NEW	88-07-120
132E-124-040	REP	88-12-004	132I-14-100	REP	88-07-119	132L-10-010	REP-P	88-17-074
132E-124-050	REP-P	88-08-022	132I-14-110	REP-P	88-03-047	132L-10-010	REP	88-21-071
132E-124-050	REP	88-12-004	132I-14-110	REP	88-07-119	132L-10-020	REP-P	88-17-074
132E-124-060	REP-P	88-08-022	132I-14-120	REP-P	88-03-047	132L-10-020	REP	88-21-071
132E-124-060	REP	88-12-004	132I-14-120	REP	88-07-119	132L-10-030	REP-P	88-17-074

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
132R-210-776	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-030	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-40-120	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-778	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-030	REP	88-07-020	132U-40-130	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-778	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-040	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-40-130	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-780	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-040	REP	88-07-020	132U-40-140	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-780	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-050	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-40-140	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-782	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-050	REP	88-07-020	132U-52-010	NEW-E	88-02-047
132R-210-782	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-060	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-52-010	NEW-P	88-04-070
132R-210-784	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-060	REP	88-07-020	132U-52-010	NEW	88-07-057
132R-210-784	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-070	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-80	REP-C	88-12-020
132R-210-802	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-070	REP	88-07-020	132U-80-010	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-802	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-080	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-80-010	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-805	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-080	REP	88-07-020	132U-80-020	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-805	REP	88-21-027	132T-128-090	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-80-020	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-808	REP-P	88-15-001	132T-128-090	REP	88-07-020	132U-80-030	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-808	REP	88-21-027	132U-04	REP-C	88-12-020	132U-80-030	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-811	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-04-100	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-060	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-811	REP	88-21-027	132U-04-100	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-060	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-814	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-04-110	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-065	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-814	REP	88-21-027	132U-04-110	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-065	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-817	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10	REP-C	88-12-020	132U-80-070	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-817	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-100	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-070	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-820	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-100	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-080	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-820	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-110	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-080	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-823	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-110	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-090	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-823	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-120	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-090	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-826	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-120	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-100	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-826	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-130	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-100	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-829	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-130	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-105	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-829	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-140	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-105	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-832	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-140	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-110	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-832	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-150	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-110	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-835	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-150	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-115	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-835	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-160	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-115	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-838	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-160	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-125	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-838	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-170	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-125	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-841	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-170	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-200	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-841	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-180	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-200	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-843	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-180	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-205	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-843	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-190	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-205	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-847	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-190	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-210	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-847	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-200	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-210	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-850	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-200	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-220	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-850	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-210	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-220	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-853	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-210	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-230	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-853	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-220	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-230	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-856	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-220	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-235	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-856	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-230	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-235	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-859	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-230	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-240	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-859	REP	88-21-027	132U-10-240	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-240	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-862	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-10-240	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-245	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-862	REP	88-21-027	132U-36	REP-C	88-12-020	132U-80-245	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-865	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-36-010	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-250	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-865	REP	88-21-027	132U-36-010	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-250	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-868	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40	REP-C	88-12-020	132U-80-255	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-868	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-010	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-255	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-871	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-010	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-265	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-871	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-020	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-265	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-874	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-020	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-300	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-874	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-030	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-300	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-877	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-030	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-310	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-877	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-040	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-310	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-880	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-040	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-320	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-880	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-050	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-320	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-910	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-050	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-330	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-910	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-060	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-330	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-920	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-060	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-340	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-920	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-070	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-340	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-930	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-070	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-350	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-930	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-080	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-350	REP	88-15-005
132R-210-950	REP-P	88-15-001	132U-40-080	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-360	REP-P	88-07-029
132R-210-950	REP	88-21-027	132U-40-090	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-360	REP	88-15-005
132T-05-060	AMD-P	88-03-045	132U-40-090	REP	88-15-005	132U-80-370	REP-P	88-07-029
132T-05-060	AMD	88-07-019	132U-40-100	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-80-370	REP	88-15-005
132T-128-010	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-40-100	REP	88-15-005	132U-104	NEW-C	88-12-020
132T-128-010	REP	88-07-020	132U-40-110	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-104-010	NEW-P	88-07-029
132T-128-020	REP-P	88-03-046	132U-40-110	REP	88-15-005	132U-104-010	NEW	88-15-005
132T-128-020	REP	88-07-020	132U-40-120	REP-P	88-07-029	132U-104-020	NEW-P	88-07-029

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
132U-104-020	NEW 88-15-005	132U-120-330	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-030	AMD 88-23-072
132U-104-030	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-120-330	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-040	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-104-030	NEW 88-15-005	132U-122	NEW-C 88-12-020	132V-120-040	AMD 88-23-072
132U-116-010	NEW-E 88-02-047	132U-122-010	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-050	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-116-010	NEW-P 88-04-070	132U-122-010	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-050	AMD 88-23-072
132U-116-010	NEW 88-07-057	132U-122-020	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-060	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-116-020	NEW-E 88-02-047	132U-122-020	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-060	AMD 88-23-072
132U-116-020	NEW-P 88-04-070	132U-140	NEW-C 88-12-020	132V-120-070	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-116-020	NEW 88-07-057	132U-140-010	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-070	AMD 88-23-072
132U-116-030	NEW-E 88-02-047	132U-140-010	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-080	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-116-030	NEW-P 88-04-070	132U-140-020	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-080	AMD 88-23-072
132U-116-030	NEW 88-07-057	132U-140-020	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-090	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120	NEW-C 88-12-020	132U-140-030	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-090	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-010	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-140-030	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-100	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-010	NEW 88-15-005	132U-140-040	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-100	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-020	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-140-040	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-110	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-020	NEW 88-15-005	132U-140-050	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-110	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-030	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-140-050	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-120	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-030	NEW 88-15-005	132U-140-060	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-120	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-040	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-140-060	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-130	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-040	NEW 88-15-005	132U-140-070	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-130	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-050	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-140-070	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-140	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-050	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276	NEW-C 88-12-020	132V-120-140	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-060	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-100	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-150	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-060	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-100	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-150	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-070	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-110	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-160	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-070	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-110	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-160	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-080	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-120	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-170	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-080	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-120	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-170	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-090	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-130	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-180	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-090	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-130	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-180	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-100	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-140	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-190	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-100	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-140	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-190	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-110	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-150	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-200	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-110	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-150	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-200	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-120	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-160	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-210	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-120	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-160	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-210	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-130	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-170	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-220	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-130	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-170	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-220	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-140	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-180	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-230	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-140	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-180	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-230	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-150	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-190	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-240	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-150	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-190	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-240	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-160	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-200	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-250	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-160	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-200	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-250	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-170	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-210	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-260	AMD-P 88-20-062
132U-120-170	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-210	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-260	AMD 88-23-072
132U-120-180	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-220	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-010	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-180	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-220	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-010	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-190	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-230	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-020	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-190	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-230	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-020	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-200	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-276-240	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-030	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-200	NEW 88-15-005	132U-276-240	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-030	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-210	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280	NEW-C 88-12-020	132X-10-040	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-210	NEW 88-15-005	132U-280-010	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-040	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-220	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280-010	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-050	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-220	NEW 88-15-005	132U-280-015	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-050	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-230	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280-015	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-060	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-230	NEW 88-15-005	132U-280-020	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-060	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-240	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280-020	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-070	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-240	NEW 88-15-005	132U-280-025	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-070	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-250	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280-025	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-080	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-250	NEW 88-15-005	132U-280-030	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-080	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-260	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280-030	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-090	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-260	NEW 88-15-005	132U-280-035	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-090	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-270	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-280-035	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-100	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-270	NEW 88-15-005	132U-300	NEW-C 88-12-020	132X-10-100	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-280	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-300-010	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-110	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-280	NEW 88-15-005	132U-300-010	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-110	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-290	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-300-020	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-120	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-290	NEW 88-15-005	132U-300-020	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-120	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-300	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-325	NEW-C 88-12-020	132X-10-130	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-300	NEW 88-15-005	132U-325-010	NEW-P 88-07-029	132X-10-130	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-310	NEW-P 88-07-029	132U-325-010	NEW 88-15-005	132X-10-140	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-310	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-020	AMD-P 88-20-062	132X-10-140	NEW 88-21-071
132U-120-320	NEW-P 88-07-029	132V-120-020	AMD 88-23-072	132X-10-150	NEW-P 88-17-074
132U-120-320	NEW 88-15-005	132V-120-030	AMD-P 88-20-062	132X-10-150	NEW 88-21-071

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
132X-20-010	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-160	NEW 88-21-071	136-15-020	NEW 88-16-017
132X-20-010	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-170	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-15-030	NEW-P 88-12-079
132X-20-020	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-170	NEW 88-21-071	136-15-030	NEW 88-16-017
132X-20-020	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-180	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-15-040	NEW-P 88-12-079
132X-20-030	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-180	NEW 88-21-071	136-15-040	NEW 88-16-017
132X-20-030	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-190	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-15-050	NEW-P 88-12-079
132X-20-040	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-190	NEW 88-21-071	136-15-050	NEW 88-16-017
132X-20-040	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-200	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-15-060	NEW-P 88-12-079
132X-20-050	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-200	NEW 88-21-071	136-15-060	NEW 88-16-017
132X-20-050	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-210	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-130-050	AMD-C 88-09-034
132X-20-060	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-210	NEW 88-21-071	136-130-050	AMD 88-12-080
132X-20-060	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-220	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-130-060	AMD 88-05-040
132X-20-070	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-220	NEW 88-21-071	136-130-070	AMD 88-05-040
132X-20-070	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-230	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-160-050	AMD 88-05-040
132X-20-080	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-230	NEW 88-21-071	136-160-060	AMD-P 88-12-079
132X-20-080	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-240	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-160-060	AMD 88-16-017
132X-20-090	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-240	NEW 88-21-071	136-160-065	NEW 88-05-040
132X-20-090	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-250	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-220-020	AMD-P 88-12-079
132X-20-100	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-250	NEW 88-21-071	136-220-020	AMD 88-16-017
132X-20-100	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-260	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-220-030	AMD-P 88-12-079
132X-20-110	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-260	NEW 88-21-071	136-220-030	AMD 88-16-017
132X-20-110	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-270	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-25-010	NEW-E 88-23-120
132X-20-120	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-270	NEW 88-21-071	137-25-020	NEW-E 88-23-120
132X-20-120	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-280	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-25-030	NEW-E 88-23-120
132X-20-130	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-280	NEW 88-21-071	137-25-040	NEW-E 88-23-120
132X-20-130	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-290	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-60-040	AMD-W 88-04-043
132X-30-010	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-290	NEW 88-21-071	137-78-010	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-010	NEW 88-21-071	132X-50-300	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-78-020	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-020	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-50-300	NEW 88-21-071	137-78-030	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-020	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-010	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-78-040	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-030	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-010	NEW 88-21-071	137-78-050	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-030	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-020	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-78-060	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-040	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-020	NEW 88-21-071	137-78-070	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-040	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-030	NEW-P 88-17-074	137-78-080	NEW-P 88-12-002
132X-30-050	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-030	NEW 88-21-071	139-05-810	NEW-P 88-15-028
132X-30-050	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-040	NEW-P 88-17-074	139-05-810	NEW 88-20-022
132X-30-060	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-040	NEW 88-21-071	139-25-110	NEW-P 88-15-029
132X-30-060	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-050	NEW-P 88-17-074	139-25-110	NEW 88-20-023
132X-30-070	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-050	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-010	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-30-070	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-060	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-010	AMD 88-21-029
132X-40-010	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-060	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-020	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-40-010	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-070	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-020	AMD 88-21-029
132X-40-020	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-070	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-030	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-40-020	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-080	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-030	AMD 88-21-029
132X-40-030	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-080	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-050	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-40-030	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-090	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-050	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-010	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-090	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-060	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-010	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-100	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-060	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-020	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-100	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-070	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-020	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-110	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-070	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-030	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-110	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-080	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-030	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-120	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-080	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-040	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-120	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-090	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-040	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-130	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-090	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-050	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-130	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-100	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-050	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-140	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-100	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-060	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-140	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-110	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-060	NEW 88-21-071	132X-60-150	NEW-P 88-17-074	143-06-110	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-070	NEW-P 88-17-074	132X-60-150	NEW 88-21-071	143-06-120	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-070	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-20-010	REP 88-06-023	143-06-120	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-080	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-140-001	REP-P 88-06-024	143-06-130	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-080	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-140-001	REP 88-13-013	143-06-130	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-090	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-140-101	REP-P 88-06-024	143-06-140	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-090	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-140-101	REP 88-13-013	143-06-140	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-100	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-140-108	REP-P 88-06-024	143-06-150	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-100	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-140-108	REP 88-13-013	143-06-150	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-110	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-140-112	REP-P 88-06-024	143-10-010	AMD-P 88-18-089
132X-50-110	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-140-112	REP 88-13-013	143-10-010	AMD 88-21-029
132X-50-120	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-140-116	REP-P 88-06-024	154-04-040	AMD-P 88-09-075
132X-50-120	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-140-116	REP 88-13-013	154-04-040	AMD 88-12-028
132X-50-130	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-300-001	NEW-P 88-21-049	154-12-015	AMD-P 88-09-075
132X-50-130	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-300-002	NEW-P 88-21-049	154-12-015	AMD 88-12-028
132X-50-140	NEW-P 88-17-074	132Y-300-003	NEW-P 88-21-049	154-12-020	AMD-P 88-09-075
132X-50-140	NEW 88-21-071	132Y-300-004	NEW-P 88-21-049	154-12-020	AMD 88-12-028
132X-50-150	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-15-010	NEW-P 88-12-079	154-12-030	AMD-P 88-09-075
132X-50-150	NEW 88-21-071	136-15-010	NEW 88-16-017	154-12-030	AMD 88-12-028
132X-50-160	NEW-P 88-17-074	136-15-020	NEW-P 88-12-079	154-12-110	AMD-P 88-09-075

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
154-12-110	AMD	88-12-028	154-200-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-3512	AMD-C	88-02-063
154-24-010	AMD-P	88-09-075	154-200-020	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-3512	AMD-C	88-04-093
154-24-010	AMD	88-12-028	154-200-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-3512	AMD	88-07-007
154-110-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	154-200-030	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-360	AMD-P	88-12-069
154-110-010	NEW	88-11-028	154-200-040	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-360	AMD-C	88-13-119
154-110-015	NEW-P	88-07-104	154-200-040	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-360	AMD-C	88-19-006
154-110-015	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-010	REP-P	88-09-080	173-19-360	AMD-C	88-19-102
154-110-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-020	REP-P	88-09-080	173-19-4507	AMD-P	88-21-112
154-110-020	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-030	REP-P	88-09-080	173-22-0648	AMD	88-03-070
154-110-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-040	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-010	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-110-030	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-050	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-010	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-060	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-020	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-010	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-070	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-020	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-015	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-080	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-030	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-015	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-090	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-030	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-100	REP-P	88-09-080	173-95-040	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-020	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-110	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-040	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-025	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-120	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-050	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-025	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-130	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-050	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-140	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-060	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-030	NEW	88-11-028	162-18-150	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-060	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-035	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-18-160	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-070	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-035	NEW	88-11-028	162-19-010	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-070	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-040	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-19-020	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-080	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-040	NEW	88-11-028	162-19-030	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-080	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-045	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-19-040	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-090	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-045	NEW	88-11-028	162-19-060	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-090	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-050	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-19-070	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-100	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-050	NEW	88-11-028	162-19-080	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-100	NEW	88-14-125
154-120-055	NEW-P	88-07-104	162-19-090	NEW-P	88-09-080	173-95-110	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-120-055	NEW	88-11-028	173-06-030	AMD-E	88-20-039	173-95-110	NEW	88-14-125
154-130-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-14	AMD-C	88-04-091	173-95-120	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-130-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-14-030	AMD-W	88-07-006	173-95-120	NEW	88-14-125
154-130-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-14-030	AMD-P	88-12-067	173-95-130	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-130-020	NEW	88-11-028	173-14-030	AMD	88-19-004	173-95-130	NEW	88-14-125
154-130-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-14-060	AMD-W	88-07-006	173-95-140	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-130-030	NEW	88-11-028	173-14-061	NEW-W	88-07-006	173-95-140	NEW	88-14-125
154-140-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-18-280	AMD	88-03-070	173-95-150	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-140-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-110	AMD-P	88-20-072	173-95-150	NEW	88-14-125
154-140-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-130	AMD	88-07-009	173-95-160	NEW-P	88-09-076
154-140-020	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-210	AMD-P	88-16-104	173-95-160	NEW	88-14-125
154-140-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-210	AMD	88-22-088	173-100-050	AMD-P	88-09-054
154-140-030	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-220	AMD-P	88-03-069	173-100-050	AMD	88-13-037
154-150-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-220	AMD-P	88-08-063	173-100-160	NEW-P	88-09-054
154-150-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-220	AMD	88-08-089	173-100-160	NEW	88-13-037
154-150-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-220	AMD-C	88-14-091	173-110-010	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-150-020	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-220	AMD	88-19-008	173-110-010	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-150-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2201	AMD-P	88-08-064	173-110-020	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-150-030	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2201	AMD-C	88-14-091	173-110-020	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-150-040	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2201	AMD	88-19-008	173-110-030	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-150-040	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2202	AMD-P	88-08-065	173-110-030	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-150-050	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2202	AMD-C	88-14-091	173-110-040	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-150-050	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2202	AMD	88-19-008	173-110-040	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-160-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2204	AMD-P	88-08-066	173-110-050	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-160-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2204	AMD-C	88-14-091	173-110-050	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-160-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2204	AMD	88-19-008	173-110-060	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-160-020	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2207	AMD-P	88-08-067	173-110-060	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-170-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2207	AMD-C	88-14-091	173-110-070	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-170-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2207	AMD-C	88-19-005	173-110-070	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-180-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2207	AMD-W	88-19-129	173-110-080	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-180-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2208	AMD-P	88-08-068	173-110-080	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-180-020	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2208	AMD-C	88-14-091	173-110-090	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-180-020	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2208	AMD	88-19-008	173-110-090	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-180-030	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2507	AMD-C	88-04-092	173-110-100	NEW-E	88-08-020
154-180-030	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2507	AMD	88-07-008	173-110-100	NEW-E	88-14-126
154-180-040	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2512	AMD-P	88-17-126	173-124-06001	REP-P	88-09-054
154-180-040	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2515	AMD-P	88-21-113	173-124-06001	REP	88-13-037
154-180-050	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2516	AMD-P	88-12-068	173-124-070	NEW-P	88-09-054
154-180-050	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2516	AMD-C	88-17-125	173-124-070	NEW	88-13-037
154-180-060	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-2601	AMD-P	88-16-103	173-124-080	NEW-P	88-09-054
154-180-060	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-2601	AMD	88-22-089	173-124-080	NEW	88-13-037
154-180-070	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-310	AMD-W	88-02-053	173-128A-060	NEW-P	88-09-054
154-180-070	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-310	AMD-P	88-02-054	173-128A-060	NEW	88-13-037
154-190-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-310	AMD	88-07-010	173-130A-215	NEW-P	88-09-054
154-190-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-3302	AMD	88-02-064	173-130A-215	NEW	88-13-037
154-200-010	NEW-P	88-07-104	173-19-3501	AMD-P	88-05-066	173-130A-217	NEW-P	88-09-054
154-200-010	NEW	88-11-028	173-19-3501	AMD	88-10-059	173-130A-217	NEW	88-13-037

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
173-130A-220	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-160-135	NEW	88-08-070
173-130A-220	AMD	88-13-037	173-160-140	REP	88-08-070
173-132-060	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-150	REP	88-08-070
173-132-060	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-160	REP	88-08-070
173-134A-150	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-160-170	REP	88-08-070
173-134A-150	AMD	88-13-037	173-160-180	REP	88-08-070
173-134A-165	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-190	REP	88-08-070
173-134A-165	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-200	REP	88-08-070
173-134A-170	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-160-205	NEW	88-08-070
173-134A-170	AMD	88-13-037	173-160-210	REP	88-08-070
173-136-095	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-215	NEW	88-08-070
173-136-095	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-215	AMD-E	88-22-007
173-136-100	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-160-220	REP	88-08-070
173-136-100	AMD	88-13-037	173-160-225	NEW	88-08-070
173-136-110	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-230	REP	88-08-070
173-136-110	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-235	NEW	88-08-070
173-150-125	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-240	REP	88-08-070
173-150-125	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-245	NEW	88-08-070
173-150-130	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-160-250	REP	88-08-070
173-150-130	AMD	88-13-037	173-160-255	NEW	88-08-070
173-150-135	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-260	REP	88-08-070
173-150-135	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-265	NEW	88-08-070
173-154-095	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-270	REP	88-08-070
173-154-095	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-275	NEW	88-08-070
173-154-100	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-160-280	REP	88-08-070
173-154-100	AMD	88-13-037	173-160-285	NEW	88-08-070
173-154-105	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-160-290	REP	88-08-070
173-154-105	NEW	88-13-037	173-160-295	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-010	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-300	REP	88-08-070
173-158-010	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-305	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-020	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-310	REP	88-08-070
173-158-020	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-315	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-030	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-320	REP	88-08-070
173-158-030	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-325	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-040	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-330	REP	88-08-070
173-158-040	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-335	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-050	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-340	REP	88-08-070
173-158-050	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-345	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-060	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-350	REP	88-08-070
173-158-060	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-355	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-070	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-360	REP	88-08-070
173-158-070	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-365	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-080	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-370	REP	88-08-070
173-158-080	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-375	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-090	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-380	REP	88-08-070
173-158-090	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-385	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-100	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-395	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-100	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-405	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-100	AMD-E	88-21-033	173-160-415	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-110	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-420	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-110	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-425	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-120	NEW-P	88-05-042	173-160-435	NEW	88-08-070
173-158-120	NEW	88-10-058	173-160-445	NEW	88-08-070
173-160	AMD-C	88-04-071	173-160-455	NEW	88-08-070
173-160	AMD	88-08-070	173-160-465	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-010	AMD	88-08-070	173-160-475	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-020	AMD	88-08-070	173-160-500	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-030	AMD	88-08-070	173-160-510	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-040	AMD	88-08-070	173-160-520	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-050	AMD	88-08-070	173-160-530	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-055	NEW	88-08-070	173-160-540	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-060	REP	88-08-070	173-160-550	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-065	NEW	88-08-070	173-160-560	NEW	88-08-070
173-160-070	REP	88-08-070	173-162	AMD-C	88-04-071
173-160-075	NEW	88-08-070	173-162	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-080	REP	88-08-070	173-162-010	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-085	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-020	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-090	REP	88-08-070	173-162-030	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-09001	REP	88-08-070	173-162-040	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-095	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-050	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-100	REP	88-08-070	173-162-060	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-105	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-100	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-110	REP	88-08-070	173-162-110	REP	88-08-070
173-160-115	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-130	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-120	REP	88-08-070	173-162-140	AMD	88-08-070
173-160-125	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-150	REP	88-08-070
173-160-130	REP	88-08-070	173-162-160	REP	88-08-070
173-162-170	AMD	88-08-070	173-162-180	REP	88-08-070
173-162-180	REP	88-08-070	173-162-190	AMD	88-08-070
173-162-190	AMD	88-08-070	173-162-200	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-162-200	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-210	AMD	88-22-059
173-162-210	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-220	REP-P	88-13-095
173-162-220	NEW	88-08-070	173-162-225	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-164-050	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-201	AMD	88-02-058
173-164-050	AMD	88-13-037	173-201-010	AMD	88-02-058
173-164-080	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-201-025	AMD	88-02-058
173-164-080	NEW	88-13-037	173-201-035	AMD	88-02-058
173-166-070	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-201-045	AMD	88-02-058
173-166-070	NEW	88-13-037	173-201-047	NEW	88-02-058
173-201	AMD	88-02-058	173-201-070	AMD	88-02-058
173-201-010	AMD	88-02-058	173-201-080	AMD	88-02-058
173-201-025	AMD	88-02-058	173-201-090	AMD	88-02-058
173-201-035	AMD	88-02-058	173-201-100	AMD	88-02-058
173-201-045	AMD	88-02-058	173-202-020	AMD-P	88-12-097
173-201-047	NEW	88-02-058	173-202-020	AMD-C	88-20-067
173-201-070	AMD	88-02-058	173-202-020	AMD	88-22-030
173-201-080	AMD	88-02-058	173-216-130	AMD-P	88-07-103
173-201-090	AMD	88-02-058	173-216-130	AMD	88-12-035
173-201-100	AMD	88-02-058	173-220	AMD-C	88-18-075
173-202-020	AMD-P	88-12-097	173-220-010	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-202-020	AMD-C	88-20-067	173-220-010	AMD	88-22-059
173-202-020	AMD	88-22-030	173-220-020	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-216-130	AMD-P	88-07-103	173-220-020	AMD	88-22-059
173-216-130	AMD	88-12-035	173-220-030	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220	AMD-C	88-18-075	173-220-030	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-010	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-030	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-010	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-045	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-020	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-045	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-030	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-050	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-030	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-050	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-040	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-060	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-040	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-060	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-045	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-070	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-050	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-070	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-050	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-070	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-050	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-080	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-060	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-080	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-060	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-090	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-070	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-090	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-070	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-100	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-080	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-100	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-080	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-110	AMD	88-13-095
173-220-090	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-110	AMD-P	88-22-059
173-220-090	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-120	AMD	88-13-095
173-220-100	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-120	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-100	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-130	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-110	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-130	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-120	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-140	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-120	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-140	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-130	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-150	AMD-P	88-07-103
173-220-140	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-150	AMD	88-12-035
173-220-140	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-150	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-150	AMD-P	88-07-103	173-220-150	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-150	AMD	88-12-035	173-220-160	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-160	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-160	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-160	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-180	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-180	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-180	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-180	AMD	88-13-095	173-220-190	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-190	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-190	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-200	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-200	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-200	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-210	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-210	AMD-P	88-13-095	173-220-210	AMD	88-22-059
173-220-210	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-220	REP-P	88-13-095
173-220-220	REP-P	88-13-095	173-220-220	REP	88-22-059
173-220-220	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-225	AMD-P	88-13-095
173-220-225	AMD	88-22-059	173-220-225	AMD	88-22-059
173-222-015	AMD-P	88-07-103	173-222-015	AMD-P	88-07-103
173-222-015	AMD	88-12-035	173-222-015	AMD	88-12-035
173-223-015	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-223-015	NEW-P	88-07-103

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
173-223-015	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-560	AMD	88-18-083	173-306-010	NEW-E	88-12-073
173-223-015	AMD-P	88-24-056	173-303-600	AMD	88-07-039	173-306-020	NEW-P	88-12-072
173-223-020	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-600	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-306-020	NEW-E	88-12-073
173-223-020	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-600	AMD	88-18-083	173-306-030	NEW-P	88-12-072
173-223-030	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-610	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-306-030	NEW-E	88-12-073
173-223-030	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-620	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-306-040	NEW-P	88-12-072
173-223-030	AMD-P	88-24-056	173-303-640	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-306-040	NEW-E	88-12-073
173-223-040	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-645	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-306-050	NEW-P	88-12-072
173-223-040	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-650	AMD	88-07-039	173-306-050	NEW-E	88-12-073
173-223-040	AMD-P	88-24-056	173-303-650	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-309-010	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-223-050	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-650	AMD	88-18-083	173-309-010	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-223-050	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-665	AMD	88-02-057	173-309-010	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-223-050	AMD-P	88-24-056	173-303-800	AMD	88-07-039	173-309-010	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-223-060	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-800	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-309-010	NEW	88-17-009
173-223-060	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-800	AMD	88-18-083	173-309-020	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-223-070	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-802	AMD	88-07-039	173-309-020	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-223-070	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-802	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-309-020	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-223-070	AMD-P	88-24-056	173-303-802	AMD	88-18-083	173-309-020	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-223-080	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-805	AMD	88-07-039	173-309-020	NEW	88-17-009
173-223-080	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-805	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-309-030	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-223-090	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-805	AMD	88-18-083	173-309-030	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-223-090	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-805	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-309-030	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-223-090	AMD-P	88-24-056	173-303-806	AMD	88-07-039	173-309-030	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-223-100	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-806	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-309-030	NEW	88-17-009
173-223-100	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-806	AMD	88-18-083	173-309-040	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-223-110	NEW	88-12-035	173-303-806	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-309-040	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-223-120	NEW-P	88-07-103	173-303-830	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-309-040	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-303	AMD-C	88-03-074	173-303-901	NEW	88-07-039	173-309-040	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-303	AMD-C	88-06-041	173-303-901	REP-P	88-13-116	173-309-040	NEW	88-17-009
173-303-040	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-303-901	REP	88-18-083	173-309-050	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-303-040	AMD-E	88-24-027	173-303-905	NEW-P	88-13-116	173-309-050	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-303-045	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-303-905	NEW	88-18-083	173-309-050	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-303-070	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-303-910	AMD	88-02-057	173-309-050	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-303-071	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-303-9903	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-309-050	NEW	88-17-009
173-303-071	AMD-E	88-24-027	173-303-9904	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-309-060	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-303-080	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-303-9905	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-309-060	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-303-110	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304	AMD-C	88-08-062	173-309-060	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-303-120	AMD	88-07-039	173-304	AMD-C	88-18-090	173-309-060	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-303-120	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-304-100	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-309-060	NEW	88-17-009
173-303-120	AMD	88-18-083	173-304-100	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-309-070	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-303-140	AMD	88-02-057	173-304-100	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-309-070	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-303-161	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304-100	AMD	88-20-066	173-309-070	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-303-170	AMD	88-02-057	173-304-100	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-309-070	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-303-200	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304-400	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-309-070	NEW	88-17-009
173-303-202	NEW-P	88-22-078	173-304-400	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-309-080	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-303-280	AMD	88-02-057	173-304-400	AMD	88-20-066	173-309-080	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-303-281	NEW-P	88-13-116	173-304-405	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-309-080	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-303-281	NEW	88-18-083	173-304-405	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-309-080	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-303-283	NEW-P	88-13-116	173-304-405	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-309-080	NEW	88-17-009
173-303-283	NEW	88-18-083	173-304-405	AMD	88-20-066	173-309-090	NEW-P	88-09-049
173-303-284	NEW	88-07-039	173-304-407	NEW-P	88-04-074	173-309-090	NEW-E	88-09-050
173-303-284	REP-P	88-13-116	173-304-407	NEW-W	88-14-109	173-309-090	NEW-C	88-11-067
173-303-284	REP	88-18-083	173-304-407	NEW-P	88-14-110	173-309-090	NEW-E	88-15-057
173-303-285	NEW	88-07-039	173-304-407	NEW	88-20-066	173-309-090	NEW	88-17-009
173-303-285	REP-P	88-13-116	173-304-430	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-311-010	NEW-P	88-19-108
173-303-285	REP	88-18-083	173-304-430	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-311-020	NEW-P	88-19-108
173-303-286	NEW	88-07-039	173-304-430	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-311-030	NEW-P	88-19-108
173-303-286	REP-P	88-13-116	173-304-430	AMD	88-20-066	173-311-040	NEW-P	88-19-108
173-303-286	REP	88-18-083	173-304-450	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-311-050	NEW-P	88-19-108
173-303-400	AMD	88-02-057	173-304-450	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-312-010	NEW	88-17-001
173-303-400	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304-450	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-312-020	NEW	88-17-001
173-303-420	AMD	88-07-039	173-304-450	AMD	88-20-066	173-312-030	NEW	88-17-001
173-303-420	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-304-460	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-312-040	NEW	88-17-001
173-303-420	AMD	88-18-083	173-304-460	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-312-050	NEW	88-17-001
173-303-430	AMD	88-07-039	173-304-460	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-314	NEW-C	88-22-008
173-303-440	AMD	88-07-039	173-304-460	AMD	88-20-066	173-314	NEW-C	88-24-050
173-303-505	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304-467	NEW-P	88-04-074	173-314-010	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-510	AMD	88-07-039	173-304-467	NEW-W	88-14-109	173-314-100	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-510	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-304-467	NEW-P	88-14-110	173-314-200	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-510	AMD	88-18-083	173-304-467	NEW	88-20-066	173-314-210	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-515	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304-468	NEW-P	88-14-110	173-314-220	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-520	AMD	88-07-039	173-304-468	NEW	88-20-066	173-314-300	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-520	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-304-600	AMD-P	88-04-074	173-314-310	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-520	AMD	88-18-083	173-304-600	AMD-W	88-14-109	173-314-320	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-550	AMD-P	88-22-078	173-304-600	AMD-P	88-14-110	173-314-330	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-560	AMD	88-07-039	173-304-600	AMD	88-20-066	173-314-340	NEW-P	88-18-106
173-303-560	AMD-P	88-13-116	173-306-010	NEW-P	88-12-072	173-326-010	AMD-P	88-15-071

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
173-326-010	AMD	88-18-098	173-403	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-500-070	NEW	88-13-037
173-326-030	AMD-P	88-18-099	173-403-030	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-501-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-326-030	AMD	88-21-072	173-403-030	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-501-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-326-040	AMD-P	88-15-071	173-403-050	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-501-095	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-326-040	AMD	88-18-098	173-403-050	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-501-095	NEW	88-13-037
173-335-010	NEW-E	88-12-070	173-403-080	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-501-100	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-335-010	NEW-P	88-12-071	173-403-080	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-501-100	AMD	88-13-037
173-335-010	NEW	88-17-002	173-405	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-507-020	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-335-020	NEW-E	88-12-070	173-405-078	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-507-020	AMD	88-13-037
173-335-020	NEW-P	88-12-071	173-410	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-507-070	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-335-020	NEW	88-17-002	173-410-071	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-507-070	AMD	88-13-037
173-335-030	NEW-E	88-12-070	173-415	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-507-075	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-335-030	NEW-P	88-12-071	173-415-080	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-507-075	NEW	88-13-037
173-335-030	NEW	88-17-002	173-425	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-507-080	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-335-040	NEW-E	88-12-070	173-425-030	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-507-080	AMD	88-13-037
173-335-040	NEW-P	88-12-071	173-425-030	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-508-070	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-335-040	NEW	88-17-002	173-425-035	REP-P	88-10-053	173-508-070	AMD	88-13-037
173-335-050	NEW-E	88-12-070	173-425-035	REP-C	88-19-082	173-508-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-335-050	NEW-P	88-12-071	173-425-036	NEW-P	88-10-053	173-508-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-335-050	NEW	88-17-002	173-425-036	NEW-C	88-19-082	173-508-095	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-336-010	NEW-P	88-11-072	173-425-045	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-508-095	NEW	88-13-037
173-336-010	NEW	88-15-038	173-425-045	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-508-100	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-336-020	NEW-P	88-11-072	173-425-065	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-508-100	AMD	88-13-037
173-336-020	NEW	88-15-038	173-425-065	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-509-030	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-336-030	NEW-P	88-11-072	173-425-075	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-509-030	AMD	88-13-037
173-336-030	NEW	88-15-038	173-425-075	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-509-080	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-338-010	NEW-P	88-11-073	173-425-085	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-509-080	AMD	88-13-037
173-338-010	NEW	88-15-037	173-425-085	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-509-085	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-338-020	NEW-P	88-11-073	173-425-095	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-509-085	NEW	88-13-037
173-338-020	NEW	88-15-037	173-425-095	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-509-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-338-030	NEW-P	88-11-073	173-425-130	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-509-130	AMD	88-13-037
173-338-030	NEW	88-15-037	173-425-130	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-510-030	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-338-040	NEW-P	88-11-073	173-433	AMD-C	88-24-048	173-510-030	AMD	88-13-037
173-338-040	NEW	88-15-037	173-433-030	AMD-P	88-10-052	173-510-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-338-050	NEW-P	88-11-073	173-433-030	AMD-W	88-19-079	173-510-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-338-050	NEW	88-15-037	173-433-030	AMD-P	88-19-080	173-510-095	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-340-010	NEW-P	88-07-105	173-433-100	AMD-P	88-10-052	173-510-095	NEW	88-13-037
173-340-010	NEW-E	88-07-106	173-433-100	AMD-E	88-15-069	173-510-095	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-010	NEW-C	88-10-055	173-433-100	AMD-W	88-19-079	173-510-100	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-010	NEW	88-13-036	173-433-100	AMD-P	88-19-080	173-511-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-010	NEW-E	88-13-085	173-433-100	AMD-E	88-21-004	173-511-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-020	NEW-P	88-07-105	173-433-120	AMD-P	88-10-052	173-511-095	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-340-020	NEW-E	88-07-106	173-433-120	AMD-W	88-19-079	173-511-095	NEW	88-13-037
173-340-020	NEW-C	88-10-055	173-433-120	AMD-P	88-19-080	173-511-100	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-020	NEW	88-13-036	173-433-130	NEW-P	88-10-052	173-511-100	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-020	NEW-E	88-13-085	173-433-130	NEW-W	88-19-079	173-512-070	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-030	NEW-P	88-07-105	173-433-130	NEW-P	88-19-080	173-512-070	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-030	NEW-C	88-10-055	173-433-170	NEW-P	88-19-080	173-512-075	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-340-030	NEW	88-13-036	173-434	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-512-075	NEW	88-13-037
173-340-030	NEW-E	88-13-085	173-434-050	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-512-080	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-040	NEW-P	88-07-105	173-434-200	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-512-080	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-040	NEW-E	88-07-106	173-435	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-512-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-040	NEW-C	88-10-055	173-435-010	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-513-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-040	NEW	88-13-036	173-435-010	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-513-095	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-340-040	NEW-E	88-13-085	173-435-015	NEW-P	88-19-082	173-513-095	NEW	88-13-037
173-340-050	NEW-P	88-07-105	173-435-020	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-513-100	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-050	NEW-E	88-07-106	173-435-020	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-513-100	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-050	NEW-C	88-10-055	173-435-030	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-514-080	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-340-050	NEW	88-13-036	173-435-030	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-514-080	AMD	88-13-037
173-340-050	NEW-E	88-13-085	173-435-040	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-514-085	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-341-010	NEW-P	88-17-115	173-435-040	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-514-085	NEW	88-13-037
173-341-020	NEW-P	88-17-115	173-435-050	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-514-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-341-030	NEW-P	88-17-115	173-435-060	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-514-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-341-040	NEW-P	88-17-115	173-435-060	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-515-090	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-341-050	NEW-P	88-17-115	173-435-070	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-515-090	AMD	88-13-037
173-341-060	NEW-P	88-17-115	173-435-070	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-515-095	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-343-010	NEW-P	88-19-109	173-470	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-515-095	NEW	88-13-037
173-343-020	NEW-P	88-19-109	173-470-030	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-515-100	AMD-P	88-09-054
173-343-030	NEW-P	88-19-109	173-470-030	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-515-100	AMD	88-13-037
173-400	AMD-C	88-24-049	173-470-100	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-522-020	AMD	88-13-037
173-400-075	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-470-100	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-522-070	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-400-100	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-500-010	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-522-070	NEW	88-13-037
173-400-110	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-500-010	AMD	88-13-037	173-522-080	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-400-115	AMD-P	88-10-053	173-500-030	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-522-080	NEW	88-13-037
173-400-115	AMD-C	88-19-082	173-500-030	AMD	88-13-037	173-522-090	NEW-P	88-09-054
173-400-120	AMD-P	88-19-082	173-500-070	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-522-090	NEW	88-13-037

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
173-530-910	REP-P	88-09-054	173-591-115	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-200	REP-E	88-17-068
173-530-910	REP	88-13-037	173-591-120	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-200	REP	88-17-069
173-530-920	REP-P	88-09-054	173-591-120	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-210	REP-P	88-14-101
173-530-920	REP	88-13-037	173-592-060	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-210	REP-P	88-14-102
173-530-930	REP-P	88-09-054	173-592-060	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-210	REP-E	88-17-068
173-530-930	REP	88-13-037	173-592-070	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-210	REP	88-17-069
173-530-940	REP-P	88-09-054	173-592-070	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-220	REP-P	88-14-101
173-530-940	REP	88-13-037	173-592-110	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-220	REP-P	88-14-102
173-530-950	REP-P	88-09-054	173-592-110	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-220	REP-E	88-17-068
173-530-950	REP	88-13-037	173-592-115	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-220	REP	88-17-069
173-530-960	REP-P	88-09-054	173-592-115	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-360	REP-P	88-14-101
173-530-960	REP	88-13-037	173-596-010	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-360	REP-P	88-14-102
173-531A-080	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-010	REP	88-13-037	174-107-360	REP-E	88-17-068
173-531A-080	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-015	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-360	REP	88-17-069
173-531A-090	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-015	REP	88-13-037	174-107-370	REP-P	88-14-101
173-531A-090	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-020	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-370	REP-P	88-14-102
173-532-090	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-020	REP	88-13-037	174-107-370	REP-E	88-17-068
173-532-090	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-025	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-370	REP	88-17-069
173-532-100	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-025	REP	88-13-037	174-107-380	REP-P	88-14-101
173-532-100	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-030	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-380	REP-P	88-14-102
173-532-100	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-030	REP	88-13-037	174-107-380	REP-E	88-17-068
173-532-110	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-035	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-380	REP	88-17-069
173-532-110	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-035	REP	88-13-037	174-107-400	REP-P	88-14-101
173-545-090	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-596-040	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-400	REP-P	88-14-102
173-545-090	AMD	88-13-037	173-596-040	REP	88-13-037	174-107-400	REP-E	88-17-068
173-545-095	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-045	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-400	REP	88-17-069
173-545-095	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-045	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-400	REP	88-17-069
173-545-100	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-596-045	REP	88-13-037	174-107-410	REP-P	88-14-101
173-545-100	AMD	88-13-037	173-596-050	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-410	REP-P	88-14-102
173-548-080	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-050	REP	88-13-037	174-107-410	REP-E	88-17-068
173-548-080	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-055	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-410	REP	88-17-069
173-548-090	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-055	REP	88-13-037	174-107-420	REP-P	88-14-101
173-548-090	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-060	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-420	REP-P	88-14-102
173-548-100	NEW-P	88-09-054	173-596-060	REP	88-13-037	174-107-420	REP-E	88-17-068
173-548-100	NEW	88-13-037	173-596-065	REP-P	88-09-054	174-107-420	REP	88-17-069
173-549-090	AMD-P	88-09-054	173-596-065	REP	88-13-037	174-107-430	REP-P	88-14-101
173-549-090	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-100	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-430	REP-P	88-14-102
173-549-095	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-100	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-430	REP-E	88-17-068
173-549-095	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-100	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-430	REP	88-17-069
173-549-100	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-100	REP	88-17-069	174-107-440	REP-P	88-14-101
173-549-100	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-110	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-440	REP-P	88-14-102
173-555-080	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-110	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-440	REP-E	88-17-068
173-555-080	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-110	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-440	REP	88-17-069
173-555-090	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-110	REP	88-17-069	174-107-450	REP-P	88-14-101
173-555-090	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-120	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-450	REP-P	88-14-102
173-555-100	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-120	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-450	REP-E	88-17-068
173-555-100	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-120	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-450	REP	88-17-069
173-559-080	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-120	REP	88-17-069	174-107-460	REP-P	88-14-101
173-559-080	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-130	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-460	REP-P	88-14-102
173-559-090	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-130	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-460	REP-E	88-17-068
173-559-090	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-130	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-460	REP	88-17-069
173-559-100	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-130	REP	88-17-069	174-107-470	REP-P	88-14-101
173-559-100	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-140	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-470	REP-P	88-14-102
173-563-050	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-140	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-470	REP-E	88-17-068
173-563-050	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-140	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-470	REP	88-17-069
173-563-070	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-140	REP	88-17-069	174-107-500	REP-P	88-14-101
173-563-070	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-150	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-500	REP-P	88-14-102
173-563-075	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-150	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-500	REP-E	88-17-068
173-563-075	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-150	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-500	REP	88-17-069
173-563-080	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-150	REP	88-17-069	174-107-510	REP-P	88-14-101
173-563-080	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-160	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-510	REP-P	88-14-102
173-563-090	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-160	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-510	REP-E	88-17-068
173-563-090	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-160	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-510	REP	88-17-069
173-590-090	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-160	REP	88-17-069	174-107-520	REP-P	88-14-101
173-590-090	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-170	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-520	REP-P	88-14-102
173-590-110	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-170	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-520	REP-E	88-17-068
173-590-110	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-170	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-520	REP	88-17-069
173-590-140	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-170	REP	88-17-069	174-107-530	REP-P	88-14-101
173-590-140	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-180	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-530	REP-P	88-14-102
173-590-180	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-180	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-530	REP-E	88-17-068
173-590-180	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-180	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-530	REP	88-17-069
173-590-190	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-180	REP	88-17-069	174-107-540	REP-P	88-14-101
173-590-190	NEW	88-13-037	174-107-190	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-540	REP-P	88-14-102
173-591-060	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-190	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-540	REP-E	88-17-068
173-591-060	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-190	REP-E	88-17-068	174-107-540	REP	88-17-069
173-591-070	AMD-P	88-09-054	174-107-190	REP	88-17-069	174-107-550	REP-P	88-14-101
173-591-070	AMD	88-13-037	174-107-200	REP-P	88-14-101	174-107-550	REP-P	88-14-102
173-591-115	NEW-P	88-09-054	174-107-200	REP-P	88-14-102	174-107-550	REP-E	88-17-068

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
174-107-550	REP	88-17-069	174-132-060	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-008	NEW	88-07-002
174-116-020	AMD-P	88-16-088	174-132-070	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-008	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-116-020	AMD-E	88-19-096	174-132-080	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-010	AMD	88-07-002
174-116-020	AMD	88-19-097	174-132-090	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-010	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-116-040	AMD-P	88-16-088	174-132-100	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-026	NEW	88-07-002
174-116-040	AMD-E	88-19-096	174-132-110	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-027	REP	88-07-002
174-116-040	AMD	88-19-097	174-132-120	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-028	NEW	88-07-002
174-116-043	AMD-P	88-16-088	174-136-02002	NEW-P	88-22-081	180-78-028	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-116-043	AMD-E	88-19-096	174-136-02002	NEW-W	88-23-025	180-78-029	NEW	88-07-002
174-116-043	AMD	88-19-097	174-136-02003	NEW-P	88-22-081	180-78-029	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-116-045	REP-P	88-16-088	174-136-02004	NEW-W	88-23-025	180-78-030	REP	88-07-002
174-116-045	REP-E	88-19-096	174-136-02004	NEW-P	88-22-081	180-78-033	NEW	88-07-002
174-116-045	REP	88-19-097	174-136-02004	NEW-W	88-23-025	180-78-033	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-116-119	AMD-P	88-16-088	174-136-02005	NEW-P	88-22-081	180-78-035	REP	88-07-002
174-116-119	AMD-E	88-19-096	174-136-02005	NEW-W	88-23-025	180-78-036	NEW	88-07-002
174-116-119	AMD	88-19-097	174-136-030	NEW-P	88-22-080	180-78-037	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-010	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-060	AMD-P	88-22-082	180-78-040	REP	88-07-002
174-120-010	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-136-070	REP-P	88-22-082	180-78-045	REP-P	88-21-106
174-120-010	NEW	88-17-069	174-136-080	AMD-P	88-22-082	180-78-047	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-020	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-090	AMD-P	88-22-082	180-78-047	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-120-020	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-136-100	AMD-P	88-22-082	180-78-050	REP	88-07-002
174-120-020	NEW	88-17-069	174-136-110	AMD-P	88-22-082	180-78-055	REP	88-07-002
174-120-030	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-120	AMD-P	88-22-082	180-78-057	AMD	88-07-002
174-120-030	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-136-300	NEW-P	88-14-103	180-78-057	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-120-030	NEW	88-17-069	174-136-300	NEW-E	88-17-070	180-78-060	AMD	88-07-002
174-120-040	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-300	NEW	88-17-071	180-78-063	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-040	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-136-310	NEW-P	88-14-103	180-78-063	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-120-040	NEW	88-17-069	174-136-310	NEW-E	88-17-070	180-78-065	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-050	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-320	NEW-P	88-14-103	180-78-068	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-050	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-136-320	NEW-E	88-17-070	180-78-070	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-050	NEW	88-17-069	174-136-320	NEW	88-17-071	180-78-073	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-060	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-330	NEW-P	88-14-103	180-78-073	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-120-060	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-136-330	NEW-E	88-17-070	180-78-074	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-060	NEW	88-17-069	174-136-330	NEW-E	88-17-071	180-78-075	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-070	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-136-330	NEW	88-17-071	180-78-075	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-120-070	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-160-010	AMD-P	88-22-060	180-78-080	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-070	NEW	88-17-069	174-160-020	AMD-P	88-22-060	180-78-085	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-080	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-160-022	NEW-P	88-22-060	180-78-090	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-080	NEW-E	88-17-068	174-160-024	NEW-P	88-22-060	180-78-095	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-080	NEW	88-17-069	174-160-028	NEW-P	88-22-060	180-78-100	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-090	NEW-P	88-14-102	174-160-030	AMD-P	88-22-060	180-78-105	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-090	NEW	88-17-069	180-16-210	AMD-P	88-21-103	180-78-110	NEW	88-07-002
174-120-090	NEW-E	88-17-068	180-16-223	AMD-P	88-05-024	180-78-115	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-020	REP-P	88-14-101	180-16-223	AMD-P	88-05-050	180-78-120	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-020	REP-P	88-14-102	180-16-223	AMD	88-08-045	180-78-125	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-020	REP-E	88-17-068	180-56-400	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-125	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-124-020	REP	88-17-069	180-56-400	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-130	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-030	REP-P	88-14-101	180-56-405	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-140	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-030	REP-P	88-14-102	180-56-405	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-140	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-124-030	REP-E	88-17-068	180-56-410	REP-P	88-21-102	180-78-145	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-030	REP	88-17-069	180-56-410	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-145	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-124-040	REP-P	88-14-101	180-56-415	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-150	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-040	REP-P	88-14-102	180-56-415	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-150	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-124-040	REP-E	88-17-068	180-56-420	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-155	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-040	REP	88-17-069	180-56-420	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-160	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-050	REP-P	88-14-101	180-56-425	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-160	AMD-E	88-12-015
174-124-050	REP-P	88-14-102	180-56-425	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-160	AMD-P	88-17-038
174-124-050	REP-E	88-17-068	180-56-430	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-160	AMD	88-21-013
174-124-050	REP	88-17-069	180-56-430	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-160	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-124-120	REP-P	88-14-101	180-56-435	REP-E	88-21-102	180-78-165	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-120	REP-P	88-14-102	180-56-435	REP-P	88-21-104	180-78-165	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-124-120	REP-E	88-17-068	180-57-050	AMD-P	88-08-072	180-78-170	NEW	88-07-002
174-124-120	REP	88-17-069	180-57-050	AMD	88-13-026	180-78-170	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-130-010	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-017	AMD-P	88-21-105	180-78-175	NEW	88-07-002
174-130-020	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-047	NEW-P	88-21-105	180-78-180	NEW	88-07-002
174-130-030	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-048	NEW-P	88-21-105	180-78-185	NEW	88-07-002
174-130-040	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-055	AMD-P	88-21-105	180-78-190	NEW	88-07-002
174-130-050	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-061	AMD-P	88-21-105	180-78-193	AMD	88-07-002
174-130-060	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-085	AMD-P	88-08-073	180-78-193	AMD-P	88-21-106
174-130-070	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-085	AMD	88-13-009	180-78-194	AMD	88-07-002
174-130-080	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-087	AMD-P	88-21-105	180-78-199	AMD	88-07-002
174-130-090	NEW-P	88-14-101	180-75-088	NEW-P	88-21-105	180-78-205	NEW	88-07-002
174-132-010	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-75-090	AMD-P	88-21-105	180-78-210	NEW	88-07-002
174-132-020	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78	AMD-C	88-03-025	180-78-215	NEW	88-07-002
174-132-030	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78	AMD	88-07-002	180-78-220	NEW	88-07-002
174-132-040	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-005	AMD-P	88-21-106	180-78-225	NEW	88-07-002
174-132-050	NEW-P	88-22-079	180-78-007	NEW	88-07-002	180-78-230	NEW	88-07-002

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
180-78-235	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-185	REP 88-05-047	180-96-045	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-240	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-190	REP 88-05-047	180-96-050	NEW-E 88-21-101
180-78-245	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-195	REP 88-05-047	180-96-050	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-250	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-199	NEW-P 88-21-107	180-96-055	NEW-E 88-21-101
180-78-255	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-200	REP 88-05-047	180-96-055	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-260	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-205	REP 88-05-047	180-96-060	NEW-E 88-21-101
180-78-265	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-210	REP 88-05-047	180-96-060	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-270	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-215	REP 88-05-047	180-96-065	NEW-E 88-21-101
180-78-275	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-230	AMD 88-05-047	180-96-065	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-280	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-245	AMD 88-05-047	180-96-070	NEW-E 88-21-101
180-78-285	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-250	REP 88-05-047	180-96-070	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-290	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-300	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-96-075	NEW-E 88-21-101
180-78-295	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-303	NEW-P 88-21-107	180-96-075	NEW-P 88-21-111
180-78-300	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-305	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-110-010	NEW 88-06-002
180-78-305	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-315	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-110-015	NEW 88-06-002
180-78-310	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-317	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-110-017	NEW 88-06-002
180-78-315	NEW 88-07-002	180-79-396	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-110-020	NEW 88-06-002
180-78-320	NEW 88-07-002	180-80-205	REP 88-05-048	180-110-030	NEW 88-06-002
180-78-325	NEW 88-07-002	180-80-210	REP 88-05-048	180-110-035	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-005	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-80-215	REP 88-05-048	180-110-040	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-007	AMD-E 88-05-045	180-80-280	REP 88-05-048	180-110-045	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-007	AMD-P 88-05-051	180-80-285	REP 88-05-048	180-110-050	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-007	AMD 88-08-046	180-80-290	REP 88-05-048	180-110-052	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-007	REP-P 88-21-107	180-80-295	REP 88-05-048	180-110-053	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-010	AMD 88-05-047	180-80-300	REP 88-05-048	180-110-055	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-010	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-80-301	REP 88-05-048	180-110-060	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-013	REP 88-05-047	180-80-302	REP 88-05-048	180-110-065	NEW 88-06-002
180-79-014	REP 88-05-047	180-80-303	REP 88-05-048	180-115-005	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-045	AMD 88-05-047	180-80-312	REP 88-05-048	180-115-005	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-047	NEW-P 88-21-107	180-80-530	REP 88-05-048	180-115-005	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-049	NEW 88-05-047	180-80-530	REP 88-05-048	180-115-010	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-060	AMD 88-05-047	180-81-003	REP 88-05-048	180-115-010	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-060	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-81-005	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-010	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-062	NEW 88-05-047	180-81-010	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-015	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-063	NEW 88-05-047	180-81-015	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-015	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-063	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-81-020	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-015	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-065	AMD 88-05-047	180-81-025	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-020	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-065	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-81-030	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-020	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-075	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-81-035	NEW-P 88-21-108	180-115-020	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-080	AMD 88-05-047	180-84-015	REP 88-05-049	180-115-025	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-086	AMD 88-05-047	180-84-020	REP 88-05-049	180-115-025	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-086	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-84-025	REP 88-05-049	180-115-025	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-100	REP 88-05-047	180-84-050	REP 88-05-049	180-115-030	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-115	AMD 88-05-047	180-84-055	REP 88-05-049	180-115-030	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-115	AMD-E 88-12-013	180-84-060	REP 88-05-049	180-115-030	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-115	AMD-P 88-17-039	180-84-075	REP 88-05-049	180-115-035	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-115	AMD 88-21-011	180-84-080	REP 88-05-049	180-115-035	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-116	NEW-E 88-05-045	180-84-090	REP 88-05-049	180-115-035	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-116	NEW-P 88-05-051	180-85-020	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-040	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-116	NEW 88-08-046	180-85-025	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-040	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-117	NEW 88-05-047	180-85-030	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-040	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-117	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-85-075	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-045	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-120	AMD 88-05-047	180-85-080	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-045	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-120	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-85-083	NEW-P 88-21-109	180-115-045	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-122	NEW 88-05-047	180-85-085	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-050	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-122	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-85-120	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-050	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-125	AMD 88-05-047	180-85-200	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-050	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-125	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-85-202	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-055	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-127	NEW 88-05-047	180-85-225	AMD-P 88-21-109	180-115-055	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-127	AMD-P 88-21-107	180-90-160	AMD-P 88-21-110	180-115-055	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-128	NEW-P 88-21-107	180-96-005	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-060	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-129	NEW-E 88-05-045	180-96-005	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-060	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-129	NEW-P 88-05-051	180-96-010	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-060	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-129	NEW 88-08-046	180-96-010	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-065	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-130	REP 88-05-047	180-96-015	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-065	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-131	NEW 88-05-047	180-96-015	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-065	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-135	REP 88-05-047	180-96-020	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-070	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-136	NEW 88-05-047	180-96-020	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-070	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-140	NEW 88-05-047	180-96-025	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-070	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-150	REP 88-05-047	180-96-025	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-075	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-155	REP 88-05-047	180-96-030	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-075	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-160	REP 88-05-047	180-96-030	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-075	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-170	REP 88-05-047	180-96-035	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-080	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-175	REP 88-05-047	180-96-035	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-080	NEW-P 88-05-052
180-79-180	REP-E 88-12-014	180-96-040	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-080	NEW 88-08-044
180-79-180	REP-P 88-17-037	180-96-040	NEW-P 88-21-111	180-115-085	NEW-E 88-05-046
180-79-180	REP 88-21-012	180-96-045	NEW-E 88-21-101	180-115-085	NEW-P 88-05-052

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
180-115-085	NEW 88-08-044	192-42-080	NEW 88-12-051	204-80-060	NEW-P 88-11-017
180-115-090	NEW-E 88-05-046	192-44-010	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-80-060	NEW 88-15-054
180-115-090	NEW-P 88-05-052	192-44-020	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-88-010	AMD-P 88-11-018
180-115-090	NEW 88-08-044	192-44-030	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-88-010	AMD 88-15-053
180-115-095	NEW-E 88-05-046	192-44-040	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-88-030	AMD-P 88-11-018
180-115-095	NEW-P 88-05-052	192-44-050	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-88-030	AMD 88-15-053
180-115-095	NEW 88-08-044	192-44-060	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-88-070	AMD-P 88-11-018
180-115-100	NEW-E 88-05-046	192-44-070	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-88-070	AMD 88-15-053
180-115-100	NEW-P 88-05-052	192-44-080	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-010	REP-P 88-13-058
180-115-100	NEW 88-08-044	192-44-090	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-010	REP-W 88-16-021
180-115-105	NEW-E 88-05-046	192-44-100	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-020	REP-P 88-13-058
180-115-105	NEW-P 88-05-052	192-44-110	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-020	REP-W 88-16-021
180-115-105	NEW 88-08-044	192-44-120	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-030	REP-P 88-13-058
182-08-165	NEW-P 88-24-039	192-44-130	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-030	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-115	AMD-P 88-09-058	192-44-140	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-040	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-115	AMD 88-12-034	192-44-150	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-040	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-115	AMD-P 88-16-051	192-44-160	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-050	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-115	AMD-C 88-17-021	192-44-170	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-050	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-115	AMD-E 88-18-037	192-44-180	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-060	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-115	AMD 88-19-078	192-44-190	NEW-P 88-11-091	204-91-060	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-115	AMD-P 88-22-016	196-04-025	NEW-E 88-05-064	204-91-070	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-115	AMD-E 88-23-112	196-04-025	NEW-P 88-07-094	204-91-070	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-120	REP-P 88-09-058	196-04-025	NEW 88-12-044	204-91-080	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-120	REP 88-12-034	196-04-030	NEW 88-12-044	204-91-080	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-120	REP 88-12-034	196-04-030	AMD-E 88-05-064	204-91-100	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-127	AMD-P 88-16-050	196-04-030	AMD-E 88-07-094	204-91-100	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-127	AMD-C 88-17-021	196-12-010	AMD-E 88-05-064	204-91-110	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-127	AMD 88-19-078	196-12-010	AMD-P 88-07-094	204-91-110	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-140	REP-P 88-24-039	196-12-010	AMD 88-12-044	204-91-120	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-165	AMD-P 88-09-058	196-12-085	AMD-E 88-05-064	204-91-120	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-165	AMD 88-12-034	196-12-085	AMD-P 88-07-094	204-91-130	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-210	AMD-P 88-16-050	196-12-085	AMD 88-12-044	204-91-130	REP-W 88-16-021
182-12-210	AMD-C 88-17-021	196-16-007	AMD-E 88-05-064	204-91-140	REP-P 88-13-058
182-12-210	AMD 88-19-078	196-16-007	AMD-P 88-07-094	204-91-140	REP-W 88-16-021
192-09-030	AMD-P 88-24-008	196-16-007	AMD 88-12-044	204-91-150	REP-P 88-13-058
192-09-063	AMD-P 88-24-008	196-20-010	AMD-E 88-05-064	204-91-150	REP-W 88-16-021
192-09-315	AMD-P 88-24-008	196-20-010	AMD-P 88-07-094	204-91-160	REP-P 88-13-058
192-12-019	AMD-P 88-13-127	196-20-010	AMD 88-12-044	204-91-160	REP-W 88-16-021
192-12-019	AMD 88-16-077	204-08-020	AMD 88-03-031	204-91-170	REP-P 88-13-058
192-12-025	AMD-P 88-24-006	204-08-030	AMD 88-03-031	204-91-170	REP-W 88-16-021
192-12-180	AMD-P 88-24-007	204-08-040	AMD 88-03-031	204-91-180	REP-P 88-13-058
192-12-182	AMD-P 88-24-007	204-08-050	AMD 88-03-031	204-91-180	REP-W 88-16-021
192-12-205	NEW-P 88-13-126	204-29-010	NEW-E 88-14-022	204-91-190	REP-P 88-13-058
192-16-057	NEW-P 88-07-108	204-29-010	NEW-E 88-20-041	204-91-190	REP-W 88-16-021
192-16-057	NEW 88-10-020	204-29-010	NEW-P 88-20-064	204-91-200	REP-P 88-13-058
192-16-061	NEW 88-05-034	204-36-010	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91-200	REP-W 88-16-021
192-16-065	NEW-E 88-07-107	204-36-010	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-010	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-16-065	NEW-P 88-07-108	204-36-020	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91A-010	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-16-065	NEW 88-10-020	204-36-020	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-020	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-18-012	NEW-P 88-13-072	204-36-030	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91A-020	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-18-012	NEW-E 88-13-073	204-36-030	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-030	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-18-012	NEW 88-16-076	204-36-040	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91A-030	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-28-105	AMD-P 88-07-109	204-36-040	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-041	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-28-105	AMD 88-10-021	204-36-050	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91A-041	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-28-110	AMD-P 88-07-109	204-36-050	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-051	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-28-110	AMD 88-10-021	204-36-060	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91A-051	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-28-120	AMD-P 88-07-109	204-36-060	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-081	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-28-120	AMD 88-10-021	204-36-070	AMD-P 88-11-012	204-91A-081	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-28-130	NEW-P 88-07-109	204-36-070	AMD 88-15-052	204-91A-100	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-28-130	NEW 88-10-021	204-38-010	AMD-P 88-11-013	204-91A-100	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-005	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-38-010	AMD 88-15-055	204-91A-110	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-005	NEW 88-12-051	204-38-050	AMD-P 88-11-013	204-91A-110	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-010	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-38-050	AMD 88-15-055	204-91A-120	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-010	NEW 88-12-051	204-40-010	AMD-P 88-11-014	204-91A-120	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-020	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-40-010	AMD 88-15-049	204-91A-130	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-020	NEW 88-12-051	204-40-030	AMD-P 88-11-014	204-91A-130	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-030	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-40-030	AMD 88-15-049	204-91A-140	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-030	NEW 88-12-051	204-50-040	AMD-P 88-11-015	204-91A-140	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-040	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-50-040	AMD 88-15-050	204-91A-150	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-040	NEW 88-12-051	204-50-050	AMD-P 88-11-015	204-91A-150	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-050	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-50-050	AMD 88-15-050	204-91A-160	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-050	NEW 88-12-051	204-74-010	AMD-P 88-11-016	204-91A-160	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-060	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-74-010	AMD 88-15-051	204-91A-170	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-060	NEW 88-12-051	204-74-040	AMD-P 88-11-016	204-91A-170	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-070	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-74-040	AMD 88-15-051	204-91A-180	NEW-P 88-13-058
192-42-070	NEW 88-12-051	204-80-010	AMD-P 88-11-017	204-91A-180	NEW-W 88-16-021
192-42-080	NEW-P 88-07-110	204-80-010	AMD 88-15-054	204-91A-190	NEW-P 88-13-058

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
220-40-021	AMD-P 88-14-135	220-47-900	REP-E 88-16-075	220-48-06200C	NEW-E 88-09-005
220-40-021	AMD 88-19-098	220-47-901	NEW-E 88-15-044	220-49-02000X	NEW-E 88-09-022
220-40-02100F	NEW-E 88-14-024	220-47-901	REP-E 88-16-075	220-52-010	AMD-P 88-07-111
220-40-02100F	REP-E 88-17-035	220-47-902	NEW-E 88-15-067	220-52-010	AMD-C 88-10-041
220-40-02100G	NEW-E 88-17-035	220-47-902	REP-E 88-16-006	220-52-010	AMD 88-12-025
220-40-02100G	REP-E 88-18-003	220-47-903	NEW-E 88-16-006	220-52-04600S	NEW-E 88-23-113
220-40-02100H	NEW-E 88-18-003	220-47-903	REP-E 88-16-010	220-52-05100A	NEW-E 88-16-045
220-40-02100H	REP-E 88-18-030	220-47-904	NEW-E 88-16-010	220-52-05300U	NEW-E 88-12-003
220-40-02100I	NEW-E 88-18-030	220-47-904	REP-E 88-16-047	220-52-05300U	REP-E 88-13-071
220-40-02100I	REP-E 88-18-086	220-47-905	NEW-E 88-16-047	220-52-05300V	NEW-E 88-13-071
220-40-02100J	NEW-E 88-18-086	220-47-905	REP-E 88-17-004	220-52-05300V	REP-E 88-14-071
220-40-02100J	REP-E 88-19-015	220-47-906	NEW-E 88-17-004	220-52-05300W	NEW-E 88-14-071
220-40-02100K	NEW-E 88-19-015	220-47-906	REP-E 88-17-033	220-52-07300E	NEW-E 88-22-051
220-40-02100K	REP-E 88-20-051	220-47-907	NEW-E 88-17-033	220-55-040	AMD 88-05-002
220-40-02100L	NEW-E 88-20-051	220-47-907	REP-E 88-17-077	220-55-060	AMD 88-05-002
220-40-02100L	REP-E 88-22-039	220-47-908	NEW-E 88-17-077	220-55-065	AMD 88-05-002
220-40-02100M	NEW-E 88-22-039	220-47-908	REP-E 88-18-013	220-55-06500A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-40-02100M	REP-E 88-23-012	220-47-909	NEW-E 88-18-013	220-55-07000A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-40-02100N	NEW-E 88-23-012	220-47-909	REP-E 88-18-068	220-55-07500A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-40-022	REP-P 88-14-135	220-47-910	NEW-E 88-18-068	220-55-07500A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-40-022	REP 88-19-098	220-47-910	REP-E 88-19-014	220-55-07600A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-40-024	REP-P 88-14-135	220-47-911	NEW-E 88-19-014	220-55-080	AMD 88-05-002
220-40-024	REP 88-19-098	220-47-911	REP-E 88-19-036	220-55-085	REP 88-05-002
220-40-025	REP-P 88-14-135	220-47-912	NEW-E 88-19-036	220-55-090	AMD 88-05-002
220-40-025	REP 88-19-098	220-47-912	REP-E 88-19-046	220-55-095	REP 88-05-002
220-44-030	AMD-P 88-19-063	220-47-913	NEW-E 88-19-046	220-55-105	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-030	AMD 88-22-033	220-47-913	REP-E 88-19-058	220-55-110	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-03000C	NEW-E 88-13-070	220-47-914	NEW-E 88-19-058	220-55-115	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-03000D	NEW-E 88-19-062	220-47-914	REP-E 88-19-099	220-55-120	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-050	AMD-P 88-09-051	220-47-915	NEW-E 88-19-099	220-55-12000A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-44-050	AMD 88-14-020	220-47-915	REP-E 88-20-005	220-55-125	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-05000M	NEW-E 88-09-004	220-47-916	NEW-E 88-20-005	220-55-130	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-05000N	NEW-E 88-14-132	220-47-916	REP-E 88-20-011	220-55-135	AMD 88-05-002
220-44-05000P	REP-E 88-16-003	220-47-917	NEW-E 88-20-011	220-55-13000A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-44-05000P	NEW-E 88-16-003	220-47-917	REP-E 88-20-019	220-56-105	AMD-P 88-03-075
220-44-05000P	REP-E 88-17-086	220-47-918	NEW-E 88-20-019	220-56-105	AMD 88-10-013
220-44-05000Q	NEW-E 88-17-086	220-47-918	REP-E 88-20-049	220-56-115	AMD-P 88-03-075
220-44-05000Q	REP-E 88-19-089	220-47-919	NEW-E 88-20-049	220-56-115	AMD 88-10-013
220-44-05000R	NEW-E 88-19-089	220-47-919	REP-E 88-20-069	220-56-11500B	NEW-E 88-08-002
220-44-05000R	REP-E 88-20-030	220-47-920	NEW-E 88-20-069	220-56-11500C	NEW-E 88-20-010
220-44-05000S	NEW-E 88-20-030	220-47-920	REP-E 88-21-010	220-56-116	AMD-P 88-03-076
220-44-05000S	REP-E 88-23-115	220-47-921	NEW-E 88-21-010	220-56-116	AMD 88-10-012
220-44-05000T	NEW-E 88-23-115	220-47-921	REP-E 88-21-020	220-56-120	AMD-P 88-03-076
220-47-266	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-922	NEW-E 88-21-020	220-56-120	AMD 88-10-012
220-47-266	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-922	REP-E 88-21-061	220-56-120	AMD 88-10-012
220-47-266	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-923	NEW-E 88-21-061	220-56-12600A	NEW-E 88-16-005
220-47-269	NEW-P 88-10-060	220-47-923	REP-E 88-21-075	220-56-128	AMD-P 88-03-076
220-47-269	NEW-C 88-13-069	220-47-924	NEW-E 88-21-075	220-56-128	AMD 88-10-012
220-47-269	NEW 88-14-133	220-47-924	REP-E 88-22-013	220-56-12800C	NEW-E 88-08-002
220-47-307	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-925	NEW-E 88-22-013	220-56-175	AMD 88-05-002
220-47-307	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-925	REP-E 88-22-042	220-56-17500A	NEW-E 88-02-048
220-47-307	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-926	NEW-E 88-22-042	220-56-180	AMD-P 88-03-075
220-47-311	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-926	REP-E 88-23-013	220-56-180	AMD 88-10-013
220-47-311	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-927	NEW-E 88-23-013	220-56-18000A	NEW-E 88-21-074
220-47-311	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-927	REP-E 88-23-029	220-56-18000V	NEW-E 88-08-002
220-47-312	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-928	NEW-E 88-23-029	220-56-18000W	NEW-E 88-08-003
220-47-312	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-928	REP-E 88-23-033	220-56-18000X	NEW-E 88-12-047
220-47-312	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-929	NEW-E 88-23-033	220-56-18000X	REP-E 88-16-011
220-47-313	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-929	REP-E 88-23-048	220-56-18000Y	NEW-E 88-16-011
220-47-313	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-930	NEW-E 88-23-048	220-56-18000Y	REP-E 88-20-010
220-47-313	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-930	REP-E 88-23-064	220-56-18000Z	NEW-E 88-20-010
220-47-401	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-931	NEW-E 88-23-064	220-56-18000Z	REP-E 88-21-074
220-47-401	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-931	REP-E 88-23-073	220-56-185	AMD-P 88-03-075
220-47-401	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-932	NEW-E 88-23-073	220-56-185	AMD 88-10-013
220-47-411	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-932	REP-E 88-23-086	220-56-19000A	NEW-E 88-15-007
220-47-411	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-933	NEW-E 88-23-086	220-56-19000A	REP-E 88-16-009
220-47-411	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-933	REP-E 88-23-114	220-56-19000B	NEW-E 88-16-009
220-47-412	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-934	NEW-E 88-23-114	220-56-19000B	REP-E 88-16-046
220-47-412	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-934	REP-E 88-23-127	220-56-19000C	NEW-E 88-16-046
220-47-412	AMD 88-14-133	220-47-935	NEW-E 88-23-127	220-56-19000C	REP-E 88-17-048
220-47-413	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-47-935	REP-E 88-24-015	220-56-19000D	NEW-E 88-16-048
220-47-413	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-47-936	NEW-E 88-24-015	220-56-19000D	REP-E 88-18-085
220-47-413	AMD 88-14-133	220-48-01500A	NEW-E 88-03-009	220-56-19000E	NEW-E 88-17-048
220-47-414	AMD-P 88-10-060	220-48-01500B	NEW-E 88-07-034	220-56-19000E	REP-E 88-18-043
220-47-414	AMD-C 88-13-069	220-48-01500C	NEW-E 88-09-032	220-56-19000F	NEW-E 88-18-043
220-47-414	AMD 88-14-133	220-48-05100D	NEW-E 88-23-075	220-56-19000G	NEW-E 88-18-041
220-47-900	NEW-E 88-15-025	220-48-02900B	NEW-E 88-03-009	220-56-19000G	REP-E 88-20-003

Table of WAC Sections Affected

Table with 6 columns: WAC #, WSR #, WAC #, WSR #, WAC #, WSR #. It contains a comprehensive list of WAC sections and their corresponding WSR numbers, organized into three vertical columns.

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
248-16-036	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-25-035	NEW-P 88-12-029	248-63-045	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-040	REP-P 88-21-086	248-25-035	NEW 88-17-022	248-63-045	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-045	REP-P 88-21-086	248-25-040	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-050	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-046	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-25-040	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-050	REP 88-10-027
248-16-050	REP-P 88-21-086	248-25-045	NEW-P 88-12-029	248-63-055	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-055	REP-P 88-21-086	248-25-045	NEW 88-17-022	248-63-055	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-056	REP-P 88-21-086	248-25-050	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-060	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-057	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-25-050	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-060	REP 88-10-027
248-16-060	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-060	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-065	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-070	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-060	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-065	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-080	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-070	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-070	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-090	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-070	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-070	REP 88-10-027
248-16-105	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-100	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-075	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-110	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-100	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-075	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-115	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-25-120	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-080	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-120	REP-P 88-21-086	248-25-120	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-080	REP 88-10-027
248-16-121	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-40-040	AMD-P 88-10-044	248-63-085	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-130	REP-P 88-21-086	248-40-040	AMD 88-13-080	248-63-085	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-131	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-40-040	AMD-E 88-15-047	248-63-090	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-140	REP-P 88-21-086	248-40-040	AMD-E 88-21-057	248-63-090	REP 88-10-027
248-16-141	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-40-040	AMD-P 88-21-088	248-63-095	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-150	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-40-050	AMD-P 88-10-044	248-63-095	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-160	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-40-050	AMD 88-13-080	248-63-100	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-170	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-40-050	AMD-P 88-21-088	248-63-100	REP 88-10-027
248-16-180	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-40-070	REP-P 88-16-108	248-63-105	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-190	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-40-070	REP 88-19-092	248-63-105	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-202	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-005	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-110	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-213	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-015	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-110	REP 88-10-027
248-16-215	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-025	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-115	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-216	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-54-035	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-115	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-222	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-045	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-120	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-223	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-055	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-120	REP 88-10-027
248-16-226	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-065	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-125	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-227	REP-P 88-21-086	248-54-085	REP 88-05-057	248-63-125	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-228	REP-P 88-21-086	248-54-086	REP 88-05-057	248-63-130	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-229	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-54-095	REP 88-05-057	248-63-130	REP 88-10-027
248-16-230	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-096	NEW 88-05-057	248-63-135	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-16-235	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-097	NEW 88-05-057	248-63-135	NEW 88-10-027
248-16-300	NEW-P 88-21-086	248-54-105	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-140	REP-P 88-06-092
248-16-900	AMD-P 88-21-086	248-54-115	REP 88-05-057	248-63-140	REP 88-10-027
248-18-001	AMD-P 88-13-101	248-54-125	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-145	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-18-001	AMD 88-18-021	248-54-131	NEW 88-05-057	248-63-145	NEW 88-10-027
248-18-440	AMD-P 88-13-101	248-54-135	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-150	REP-P 88-06-092
248-18-440	AMD 88-18-021	248-54-145	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-150	REP 88-10-027
248-18-445	NEW-P 88-13-102	248-54-155	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-155	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-18-445	NEW 88-18-020	248-54-165	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-155	NEW 88-10-027
248-18-515	AMD-P 88-20-077	248-54-175	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-160	REP-P 88-06-092
248-18-515	AMD 88-23-083	248-54-185	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-160	REP 88-10-027
248-18-655	AMD-P 88-12-032	248-54-194	NEW 88-05-057	248-63-165	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-18-655	AMD 88-16-086	248-54-195	REP 88-05-057	248-63-165	NEW 88-10-027
248-18-718	AMD-P 88-12-032	248-54-196	NEW 88-05-057	248-63-170	REP-P 88-06-092
248-18-718	AMD 88-16-086	248-54-201	NEW 88-05-057	248-63-170	REP 88-10-027
248-18-99902	AMD-P 88-12-032	248-54-205	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-175	NEW-P 88-06-092
248-18-99902	AMD 88-16-086	248-54-215	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-175	NEW 88-10-027
248-19-220	AMD-P 88-11-057	248-54-225	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-180	REP-P 88-06-092
248-19-220	AMD 88-15-021	248-54-235	AMD 88-05-057	248-63-180	REP 88-10-027
248-19-328	AMD 88-04-047	248-54-255	AMD 88-05-057	248-97-010	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-19-328	AMD-P 88-21-087	248-54-265	AMD 88-05-057	248-97-010	NEW 88-13-125
248-19-328	AMD 88-24-026	248-54-275	REP 88-05-057	248-97-020	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-19-373	AMD 88-04-047	248-54-285	AMD 88-05-057	248-97-020	NEW 88-13-125
248-19-373	AMD-P 88-21-087	248-54-291	NEW 88-05-057	248-97-030	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-19-373	AMD 88-24-026	248-63	AMD-P 88-06-092	248-97-030	NEW 88-13-125
248-19-375	NEW-P 88-21-087	248-63	AMD 88-10-027	248-97-040	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-19-375	NEW 88-24-026	248-63-001	AMD-P 88-06-092	248-97-040	NEW 88-13-125
248-19-440	AMD-P 88-07-121	248-63-001	AMD 88-10-027	248-97-050	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-25	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-010	AMD-P 88-06-092	248-97-050	NEW 88-13-125
248-25	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-010	AMD 88-10-027	248-97-060	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-25-001	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-020	REP-P 88-06-092	248-97-060	NEW 88-13-125
248-25-001	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-020	REP 88-10-027	248-97-070	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-25-002	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-025	NEW-P 88-06-092	248-97-070	NEW 88-13-125
248-25-002	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-025	NEW 88-10-027	248-97-080	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-25-010	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-030	REP-P 88-06-092	248-97-080	NEW 88-13-125
248-25-010	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-030	AMD 88-10-027	248-97-090	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-25-020	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-035	NEW-P 88-06-092	248-97-090	NEW 88-13-125
248-25-020	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-035	NEW 88-10-027	248-97-100	NEW-P 88-10-005
248-25-030	AMD-P 88-12-029	248-63-040	REP-P 88-06-092	248-97-100	NEW 88-13-125
248-25-030	AMD 88-17-022	248-63-040	REP 88-10-027	248-97-110	NEW-P 88-10-005

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
248-97-110	NEW	88-13-125	248-100-231	AMD-P	88-03-022	250-66-060	NEW-P	88-11-074
248-97-120	NEW-P	88-10-005	248-100-231	AMD	88-07-063	250-66-060	NEW	88-14-088
248-97-120	NEW	88-13-125	248-100-236	AMD-P	88-03-022	250-67-010	NEW-P	88-11-075
248-97-130	NEW-P	88-10-005	248-100-236	AMD	88-07-063	250-67-010	NEW	88-14-089
248-97-130	NEW	88-13-125	248-100-440	REP-P	88-03-022	250-67-020	NEW-P	88-11-075
248-97-140	NEW-P	88-10-005	248-100-440	REP	88-07-063	250-67-020	NEW	88-14-089
248-97-140	NEW	88-13-125	248-100-450	REP-P	88-03-022	250-67-030	NEW-P	88-11-075
248-97-150	NEW-P	88-10-005	248-100-450	REP	88-07-063	250-67-030	NEW	88-14-089
248-97-150	NEW	88-13-125	248-100-452	REP-P	88-03-022	250-67-040	NEW-P	88-11-075
248-97-160	NEW-P	88-10-005	248-100-452	REP	88-07-063	250-67-040	NEW	88-14-089
248-97-160	NEW	88-13-125	248-124-010	AMD-P	88-16-108	250-67-050	NEW-P	88-11-075
248-97-170	NEW-P	88-10-005	248-124-010	AMD	88-19-092	250-67-050	NEW	88-14-089
248-97-170	NEW	88-13-125	248-124-015	NEW-P	88-16-108	250-67-060	NEW-P	88-11-075
248-100-011	AMD-P	88-03-022	248-124-015	NEW	88-19-092	250-67-060	NEW	88-14-089
248-100-011	AMD	88-07-063	248-124-160	NEW-P	88-16-107	251-01-018	NEW-P	88-02-072
248-100-011	AMD-E	88-09-053	248-124-160	NEW	88-19-034	251-01-028	NEW-P	88-09-057
248-100-011	AMD-P	88-13-103	248-172-101	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-028	NEW	88-13-018
248-100-011	AMD-E	88-13-109	248-172-201	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-057	AMD-P	88-09-056
248-100-011	AMD	88-17-057	248-172-202	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-057	AMD	88-13-019
248-100-016	AMD-P	88-13-103	248-172-203	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-255	REP-P	88-02-071
248-100-016	AMD-E	88-13-109	248-172-204	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-255	AMD-P	88-13-115
248-100-016	AMD	88-17-057	248-172-205	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-255	AMD	88-17-108
248-100-016	AMD-P	88-18-102	248-172-206	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-258	NEW-P	88-02-072
248-100-016	AMD	88-21-093	248-172-301	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-258	NEW-C	88-06-062
248-100-025	REP-P	88-03-022	248-172-302	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-258	NEW-P	88-06-075
248-100-025	REP	88-07-063	248-172-303	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-258	NEW-C	88-13-112
248-100-026	NEW-P	88-03-022	248-172-304	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-258	NEW	88-18-018
248-100-026	NEW	88-07-063	248-172-401	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-367	NEW-P	88-02-072
248-100-036	NEW-P	88-03-022	248-172-402	NEW	88-04-090	251-01-367	NEW-C	88-06-062
248-100-036	NEW	88-07-063	250-20-021	AMD-P	88-06-089	251-01-367	NEW-P	88-06-075
248-100-036	AMD-P	88-18-102	250-20-021	AMD	88-10-001	251-01-367	NEW-C	88-13-112
248-100-036	AMD-E	88-21-058	250-20-031	AMD-P	88-06-089	251-01-367	NEW	88-18-018
248-100-036	AMD-P	88-21-089	250-20-031	AMD	88-10-001	251-01-445	REP-P	88-02-072
248-100-050	REP-P	88-03-022	250-40-030	AMD-P	88-06-090	251-01-445	AMD-P	88-06-075
248-100-050	REP	88-07-063	250-40-030	AMD	88-10-002	251-01-445	AMD-C	88-13-112
248-100-071	AMD-P	88-18-102	250-40-040	AMD-P	88-06-090	251-01-445	AMD	88-18-018
248-100-072	NEW-E	88-21-058	250-40-040	AMD	88-10-002	251-01-450	REP-P	88-02-072
248-100-072	NEW-P	88-21-089	250-40-050	AMD-P	88-06-090	251-01-455	REP-P	88-02-072
248-100-076	AMD-P	88-18-102	250-40-050	AMD	88-10-002	251-01-455	REP-P	88-06-075
248-100-163	REP-P	88-03-022	250-60-020	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-01-455	REP-C	88-13-112
248-100-163	REP	88-07-063	250-60-020	AMD	88-10-003	251-01-455	REP	88-18-018
248-100-164	REP-P	88-03-022	250-60-030	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-04-040	AMD-P	88-12-052
248-100-164	REP	88-07-063	250-60-030	AMD	88-10-003	251-04-040	AMD	88-15-023
248-100-166	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-040	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-08-100	AMD-P	88-12-052
248-100-166	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-040	AMD	88-10-003	251-08-100	AMD	88-15-023
248-100-171	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-050	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-08-110	AMD-P	88-21-100
248-100-171	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-050	AMD	88-10-003	251-10	AMD	88-22-057
248-100-176	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-060	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-030	AMD-P	88-17-107
248-100-176	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-060	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-030	AMD	88-22-057
248-100-181	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-070	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-035	AMD-P	88-17-107
248-100-181	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-070	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-035	AMD	88-22-057
248-100-186	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-080	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-070	NEW-P	88-21-100
248-100-186	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-080	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-080	NEW-P	88-21-100
248-100-191	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-090	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-090	NEW-P	88-21-100
248-100-191	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-090	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-105	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-196	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-100	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-105	REP	88-22-057
248-100-196	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-100	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-108	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-201	NEW-P	88-03-022	250-60-110	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-108	REP	88-22-057
248-100-201	NEW	88-07-063	250-60-110	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-110	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-206	AMD-P	88-14-079	250-60-120	AMD-P	88-06-091	251-10-110	REP	88-22-057
248-100-206	AMD	88-17-056	250-60-120	AMD	88-10-003	251-10-111	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-206	AMD-P	88-18-103	250-65-010	NEW	88-03-008	251-10-111	REP	88-22-057
248-100-206	AMD	88-21-093	250-65-020	NEW	88-03-008	251-10-120	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-207	NEW-E	88-09-053	250-65-030	NEW	88-03-008	251-10-120	REP	88-22-057
248-100-207	NEW-P	88-13-104	250-65-040	NEW	88-03-008	251-10-130	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-207	NEW-E	88-13-108	250-65-050	NEW	88-03-008	251-10-130	REP	88-22-057
248-100-207	NEW	88-17-058	250-65-060	NEW	88-03-008	251-10-140	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-208	NEW-E	88-09-053	250-66-010	NEW-P	88-11-074	251-10-140	REP	88-22-057
248-100-208	NEW-P	88-13-104	250-66-010	NEW	88-14-088	251-10-150	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-208	NEW-E	88-13-108	250-66-020	NEW-P	88-11-074	251-10-150	REP	88-22-057
248-100-208	NEW	88-17-058	250-66-020	NEW	88-14-088	251-10-160	REP-P	88-17-107
248-100-209	NEW-P	88-13-104	250-66-030	NEW-P	88-11-074	251-10-160	REP	88-22-057
248-100-209	NEW-E	88-13-108	250-66-030	NEW	88-14-088	251-10-170	AMD-P	88-02-072
248-100-209	NEW	88-17-058	250-66-040	NEW-P	88-11-074	251-10-170	AMD-C	88-06-062
248-100-209	AMD-P	88-18-102	250-66-040	NEW	88-14-088	251-10-170	AMD-P	88-06-075
248-100-209	AMD-E	88-21-058	250-66-050	NEW-P	88-11-074	251-10-170	AMD-C	88-13-112
248-100-209	AMD-P	88-21-089	250-66-050	NEW	88-14-088	251-10-170	REP-P	88-17-107

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
251-10-170	AMD	88-18-018	251-22-110	AMD	88-13-019	261-50-090	AMD-P	88-13-052
251-10-170	REP	88-22-057	251-22-110	AMD-P	88-13-114	261-50-090	AMD	88-16-043
251-10-180	REP-P	88-17-107	251-22-110	AMD	88-17-008	275-16-030	AMD-P	88-18-051
251-10-180	REP	88-22-057	251-22-115	REP-P	88-09-056	275-16-030	AMD-E	88-18-061
251-10-190	REP-P	88-17-107	251-22-115	REP	88-13-019	275-16-030	AMD	88-21-095
251-10-190	REP	88-22-057	251-24-030	AMD-P	88-21-100	275-19-020	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-10-195	REP-P	88-17-107	260-16-090	NEW	88-06-017	275-19-030	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-10-195	REP	88-22-057	260-20-170	AMD	88-06-017	275-19-040	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-010	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-010	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-050	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-010	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-010	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-075	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-020	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-020	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-135	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-020	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-020	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-140	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-030	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-030	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-145	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-030	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-030	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-150	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-040	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-040	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-165	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-040	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-040	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-170	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-050	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-050	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-180	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-050	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-050	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-185	REP-P	88-23-041
251-11-060	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-060	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-260	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-060	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-060	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-270	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-070	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-070	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-280	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-070	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-070	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-300	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-080	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-080	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-310	REP-P	88-23-041
251-11-080	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-080	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-320	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-090	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-090	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-410	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-090	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-090	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-430	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-100	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-100	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-510	REP-P	88-23-041
251-11-100	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-100	NEW	88-09-033	275-19-530	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-110	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-110	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-560	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-110	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-110	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-19-570	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-120	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-110	NEW	88-17-075	275-19-590	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-120	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-120	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-610	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-130	NEW-P	88-17-107	260-34-120	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-19-660	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-11-130	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-120	NEW	88-17-075	275-19-675	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-075	AMD-P	88-17-106	260-34-130	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-760	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-080	AMD-P	88-06-063	260-34-130	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-19-770	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-081	NEW-P	88-06-063	260-34-130	NEW	88-17-075	275-19-810	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-101	NEW-P	88-17-106	260-34-140	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-820	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-101	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-140	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-19-940	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-102	NEW-P	88-17-106	260-34-140	NEW	88-17-075	275-19-950	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-102	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-150	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-970	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-103	NEW-P	88-17-106	260-34-150	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-19-980	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-103	NEW	88-22-057	260-34-150	NEW	88-17-075	275-19-985	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-250	AMD-P	88-06-063	260-34-160	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-19-990	AMD-P	88-23-041
251-12-260	AMD-P	88-22-044	260-34-160	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-27-020	AMD-P	88-22-084
251-12-270	AMD-P	88-06-063	260-34-160	NEW	88-17-075	275-27-030	AMD-P	88-22-084
251-12-290	AMD-P	88-06-063	260-34-170	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-27-220	AMD	88-05-004
251-12-600	AMD-P	88-17-106	260-34-170	NEW-P	88-13-011	275-27-223	NEW	88-05-004
251-12-600	AMD	88-22-057	260-34-170	NEW	88-17-075	275-27-400	AMD	88-05-004
251-14-020	AMD-P	88-02-072	260-34-180	NEW-P	88-06-052	275-30-010	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-020	AMD-C	88-06-062	260-34-180	NEW	88-09-033	275-30-010	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-020	AMD-P	88-06-075	260-70-010	AMD-P	88-13-011	275-30-010	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-020	AMD-C	88-13-112	260-70-090	AMD-P	88-13-011	275-30-020	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-020	AMD	88-18-018	261-40-020	AMD-P	88-10-047	275-30-020	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-030	AMD-P	88-02-072	261-40-020	AMD-E	88-13-043	275-30-020	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-052	AMD-P	88-02-072	261-40-020	AMD	88-13-044	275-30-030	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-052	AMD-C	88-06-062	261-40-150	REVIEW	88-03-065	275-30-030	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-052	AMD-P	88-06-075	261-40-150	AMD-E	88-08-013	275-30-030	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-052	AMD-C	88-13-112	261-40-150	AMD-P	88-08-052	275-30-040	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-052	AMD	88-18-018	261-40-150	AMD	88-11-033	275-30-040	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-054	AMD-P	88-02-072	261-40-150	AMD-P	88-13-053	275-30-040	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-054	AMD-C	88-06-062	261-40-150	AMD-P	88-13-132	275-30-050	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-054	AMD-P	88-06-075	261-40-150	AMD-C	88-16-042	275-30-050	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-056	AMD-P	88-04-069	261-40-150	AMD	88-17-054	275-30-050	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-056	AMD	88-08-018	261-40-150	AMD-P	88-19-094	275-30-060	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-058	AMD-P	88-02-072	261-40-150	AMD	88-22-038	275-30-060	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-058	AMD-C	88-06-062	261-40-170	AMD-P	88-13-053	275-30-060	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-058	AMD-P	88-06-075	261-40-190	NEW-P	88-10-047	275-30-070	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-14-058	AMD-C	88-13-112	261-40-190	NEW	88-13-044	275-30-070	NEW	88-20-083
251-14-058	AMD	88-18-018	261-50-035	NEW-P	88-13-052	275-30-070	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-14-058	AMD-P	88-22-044	261-50-035	NEW	88-16-043	275-30-080	NEW-P	88-17-124
251-17-090	AMD-P	88-21-100	261-50-040	AMD-P	88-13-052	275-30-080	NEW	88-20-083
251-17-140	REP-P	88-09-057	261-50-040	AMD	88-16-043	275-30-080	NEW-E	88-21-046
251-17-140	REP	88-13-018	261-50-050	AMD-P	88-13-052	275-35-020	AMD-P	88-09-038
251-17-170	AMD-P	88-08-021	261-50-050	AMD	88-16-043	275-35-020	AMD	88-13-028
251-18-180	AMD-P	88-21-100	261-50-060	AMD-P	88-13-052	275-35-030	AMD-P	88-09-038
251-22-110	AMD-P	88-09-056	261-50-060	AMD	88-16-043	275-35-030	AMD	88-13-028

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
275-35-040	AMD-P 88-09-038	275-38-705	AMD 88-12-087	275-59-071	NEW-P 88-19-065
275-35-040	AMD 88-13-028	275-38-706	NEW-P 88-07-122	275-59-071	NEW 88-23-021
275-35-050	AMD-P 88-09-038	275-38-706	NEW 88-12-087	275-110-050	AMD-P 88-12-090
275-35-050	AMD 88-13-028	275-38-715	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-110-050	AMD 88-15-012
275-35-060	AMD-P 88-09-038	275-38-715	AMD 88-12-087	275-110-060	AMD-P 88-12-090
275-35-060	AMD 88-13-028	275-38-720	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-110-060	AMD 88-15-012
275-35-070	AMD-P 88-09-038	275-38-720	AMD 88-12-087	275-110-070	AMD-P 88-12-090
275-35-070	AMD 88-13-028	275-38-725	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-110-070	AMD 88-15-012
275-35-080	AMD-P 88-09-038	275-38-725	AMD 88-12-087	275-110-080	AMD-P 88-12-090
275-35-080	AMD 88-13-028	275-38-735	REP-P 88-07-122	275-110-080	AMD 88-15-012
275-35-090	REP-P 88-09-038	275-38-735	REP 88-12-087	284-02-010	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-35-090	REP 88-13-028	275-38-745	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-010	AMD 88-23-079
275-35-100	AMD-P 88-09-038	275-38-745	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-020	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-35-100	AMD 88-13-028	275-38-750	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-020	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-001	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-750	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-030	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-38-001	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-770	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-030	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-005	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-770	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-040	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-38-005	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-775	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-040	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-520	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-775	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-050	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-38-520	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-780	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-050	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-525	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-780	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-060	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-38-525	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-785	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-060	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-530	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-785	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-070	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-38-530	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-790	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-070	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-535	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-790	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-080	AMD-P 88-20-024
275-38-535	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-800	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-080	AMD 88-23-079
275-38-540	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-800	AMD 88-12-087	284-02-100	NEW-P 88-20-024
275-38-540	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-812	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-02-100	NEW 88-23-079
275-38-545	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-812	AMD 88-12-087	284-07-010	AMD-P 88-23-103
275-38-545	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-815	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-07-014	AMD-P 88-23-103
275-38-546	NEW-P 88-07-122	275-38-815	AMD 88-12-087	284-07-024	AMD-P 88-23-103
275-38-546	NEW 88-12-087	275-38-820	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-07-026	NEW-P 88-23-103
275-38-550	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-820	AMD 88-12-087	284-12-080	AMD-P 88-15-036
275-38-550	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-840	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-12-080	AMD 88-17-117
275-38-555	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-840	AMD 88-12-087	284-12-110	NEW-P 88-21-083
275-38-555	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-845	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-12-110	NEW 88-24-053
275-38-560	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-845	AMD 88-12-087	284-15-050	AMD-P 88-24-051
275-38-560	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-846	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-120	AMD-P 88-22-058
275-38-565	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-846	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-120	AMD 88-24-054
275-38-565	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-860	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-125	NEW-P 88-19-021
275-38-570	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-860	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-125	NEW 88-23-063
275-38-570	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-869	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-130	NEW-P 88-19-021
275-38-575	REP-P 88-07-122	275-38-869	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-130	NEW 88-23-063
275-38-575	REP 88-12-087	275-38-880	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-135	NEW-P 88-19-021
275-38-585	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-880	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-135	NEW 88-23-063
275-38-585	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-886	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-175	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-586	NEW-P 88-07-122	275-38-886	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-505	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-586	NEW 88-12-087	275-38-887	NEW-P 88-07-122	284-17-510	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-600	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-887	NEW 88-12-087	284-17-515	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-600	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-888	NEW-P 88-07-122	284-17-520	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-605	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-888	NEW 88-12-087	284-17-530	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-605	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-889	NEW-P 88-07-122	284-17-535	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-610	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-889	NEW 88-12-087	284-17-537	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-610	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-890	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-539	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-615	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-890	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-540	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-615	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-892	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-545	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-620	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-892	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-550	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-620	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-900	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-17-551	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-650	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-900	AMD 88-12-087	284-17-552	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-650	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-903	NEW-P 88-07-122	284-17-553	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-655	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-903	NEW 88-12-087	284-17-554	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-655	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-905	REP-P 88-07-122	284-17-555	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-660	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-905	REP 88-12-087	284-17-560	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-660	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-906	NEW-P 88-07-122	284-17-565	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-667	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-906	NEW 88-12-087	284-17-570	NEW-P 88-22-070
275-38-667	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-925	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-23-550	NEW-P 88-21-083
275-38-680	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-925	AMD 88-12-087	284-23-550	NEW 88-24-053
275-38-680	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-940	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-30-660	NEW-P 88-21-083
275-38-685	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-940	AMD 88-12-087	284-30-660	NEW 88-24-053
275-38-685	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-945	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-30-800	NEW-P 88-07-073
275-38-690	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-945	AMD 88-12-087	284-30-800	NEW 88-11-056
275-38-690	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-955	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-32-140	AMD 88-05-001
275-38-695	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-955	AMD 88-12-087	284-44-450	NEW-P 88-13-123
275-38-695	AMD 88-12-087	275-38-960	AMD-P 88-07-122	284-44-450	NEW 88-16-065
275-38-700	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-38-960	AMD 88-12-087	284-46-100	NEW-P 88-13-123
275-38-700	AMD 88-12-087	275-55-115	NEW-P 88-19-065	284-46-100	NEW 88-16-065
275-38-705	AMD-P 88-07-122	275-55-115	NEW 88-23-021	284-50-260	NEW-P 88-13-123

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
284-50-260	NEW	88-16-065	296-13-020	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-52102	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-010	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-13-020	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-52106	NEW-P	88-06-072
284-55-010	AMD	88-22-061	296-13-035	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-52106	NEW	88-12-050
284-55-020	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-13-035	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-52107	NEW-P	88-06-072
284-55-020	AMD	88-22-061	296-13-040	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-52107	NEW	88-12-050
284-55-030	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-13-040	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-52108	NEW-P	88-06-072
284-55-030	AMD	88-22-061	296-13-045	REP-P	88-11-085	296-17-52108	NEW	88-12-050
284-55-035	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-13-045	REP	88-16-002	296-17-52701	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-035	AMD	88-22-061	296-13-050	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-52701	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-040	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-13-050	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-536	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-040	AMD	88-22-061	296-13-057	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-536	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-045	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-13-057	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-552	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-045	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-300	NEW-P	88-09-071	296-17-552	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-050	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-300	NEW	88-14-011	296-17-55201	NEW-P	88-02-060
284-55-050	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-350	NEW-P	88-09-071	296-17-55201	NEW	88-06-047
284-55-060	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-350	NEW	88-14-011	296-17-563	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-060	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-400	NEW-P	88-09-071	296-17-563	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-065	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-400	NEW	88-14-011	296-17-56402	NEW-P	88-06-072
284-55-065	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-600	NEW-P	88-09-071	296-17-56402	NEW	88-12-050
284-55-067	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-600	NEW	88-14-011	296-17-567	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-067	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-900	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-567	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-070	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-900	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-580	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-070	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-910	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-580	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-080	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-910	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-582	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-080	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-920	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-582	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-090	AMD-P	88-19-056	296-14-920	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-594	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-090	AMD	88-22-061	296-14-930	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-594	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-095	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-14-930	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-598	REP-P	88-06-072
284-55-095	NEW	88-22-061	296-14-940	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-598	REP-P	88-06-076
284-55-100	REP-P	88-19-056	296-14-940	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-598	REP	88-12-050
284-55-100	REP	88-22-061	296-14-950	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-630	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-110	REP-P	88-19-056	296-14-950	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-630	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-110	REP	88-22-061	296-14-960	NEW-P	88-04-050	296-17-643	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-115	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-14-960	NEW	88-08-026	296-17-643	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-115	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-020	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-64901	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-120	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-020	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-64901	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-120	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-022	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-64902	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-125	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-022	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-64902	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-125	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-023	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-677	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-130	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-023	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-677	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-130	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-030	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-680	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-150	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-030	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-680	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-150	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-065	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-731	AMD-P	88-06-076
284-55-155	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-065	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-731	AMD	88-12-065
284-55-155	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-070	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-73101	NEW-P	88-06-076
284-55-160	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-070	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-73101	NEW	88-12-065
284-55-160	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-170	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-73102	NEW-P	88-06-076
284-55-165	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-170	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-73102	NEW	88-12-065
284-55-165	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-190	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-73103	NEW-P	88-06-076
284-55-170	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-190	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-73103	NEW	88-12-065
284-55-170	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-215	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-73104	NEW-P	88-06-076
284-55-175	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-215	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-73104	NEW	88-12-065
284-55-175	NEW	88-22-061	296-15-250	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-17-736	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-180	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-15-250	AMD	88-12-096	296-17-736	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-180	NEW	88-22-061	296-16-010	AMD-P	88-16-091	296-17-757	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-185	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-16-010	AMD	88-21-022	296-17-757	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-185	NEW	88-22-061	296-17-310	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-17-758	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-55-190	NEW-P	88-19-056	296-17-310	AMD-P	88-09-073	296-17-758	AMD	88-12-050
284-55-190	NEW	88-22-061	296-17-310	AMD	88-12-050	296-17-759	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-74-200	NEW	88-04-054	296-17-310	AMD-C	88-15-008	296-17-759	AMD	88-12-050
284-74-200	AMD-P	88-24-052	296-17-310	AMD	88-16-012	296-17-760	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-91-010	AMD-E	88-07-051	296-17-349	NEW-P	88-02-059	296-17-760	AMD	88-12-050
284-91-010	AMD-P	88-08-051	296-17-349	NEW	88-06-048	296-17-761	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-91-010	AMD	88-11-010	296-17-350	AMD-C	88-06-046	296-17-761	AMD	88-12-050
284-91-020	AMD-E	88-07-051	296-17-350	AMD-P	88-06-076	296-17-762	AMD-P	88-06-072
284-91-020	AMD-P	88-08-051	296-17-350	AMD	88-12-065	296-17-762	AMD	88-12-050
284-91-020	AMD	88-11-010	296-17-350	AMD-C	88-12-095	296-17-76201	NEW-P	88-06-072
284-91-025	NEW-P	88-04-056	296-17-350	AMD	88-14-076	296-17-76201	NEW	88-12-050
284-91-025	NEW	88-08-010	296-17-450	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-17-76202	NEW-P	88-06-072
284-91-027	NEW-P	88-04-056	296-17-450	AMD	88-12-050	296-17-76202	NEW	88-12-050
284-91-027	NEW	88-08-010	296-17-455	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-17-76203	NEW-P	88-06-072
296-13	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-455	AMD	88-12-050	296-17-76203	NEW	88-12-050
296-13	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-519	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-17-76204	NEW-P	88-06-072
296-13-001	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-519	AMD	88-12-050	296-17-76204	NEW	88-12-050
296-13-001	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-520	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-17-76205	NEW-P	88-06-072
296-13-010	AMD-P	88-11-085	296-17-520	AMD	88-12-050	296-17-76205	NEW	88-12-050
296-13-010	AMD	88-16-002	296-17-5202	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-17-76206	NEW-P	88-06-072

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
296-17-76206	NEW	88-12-050	296-17-91903	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-23001	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-76207	NEW-P	88-06-072	296-17-91904	AMD-P	88-09-070	296-24-23001	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-76207	NEW	88-12-050	296-17-91904	AMD-E	88-14-075	296-24-24017	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-76208	NEW-P	88-06-072	296-17-91904	AMD	88-14-107	296-24-24017	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-76208	NEW	88-12-050	296-17-91904	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-24519	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-76209	NEW-P	88-06-072	296-17-91904	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-24519	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-76209	NEW	88-12-050	296-17-91905	AMD-P	88-09-070	296-24-31501	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-76210	NEW-P	88-06-072	296-17-91905	AMD-E	88-14-075	296-24-31501	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-76210	NEW	88-12-050	296-17-91905	AMD	88-14-107	296-24-31503	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-76211	NEW-P	88-06-072	296-17-91905	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-31503	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-76211	NEW	88-12-050	296-17-91905	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-31505	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-76212	NEW-P	88-06-072	296-18A-440	AMD-P	88-16-091	296-24-31505	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-76212	NEW	88-12-050	296-18A-440	AMD	88-21-022	296-24-33001	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-773	AMD-P	88-06-076	296-18A-445	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-24-33001	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-773	AMD	88-12-065	296-18A-445	AMD	88-12-096	296-24-33005	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-855	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-18A-450	AMD-P	88-09-071	296-24-33005	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-855	AMD	88-24-012	296-18A-450	AMD	88-14-011	296-24-37001	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-86501	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-18A-460	AMD-P	88-16-091	296-24-37001	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-86501	AMD	88-24-012	296-18A-460	AMD	88-21-022	296-24-40501	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-86502	NEW-P	88-09-073	296-18A-465	AMD-P	88-16-091	296-24-40501	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-86502	NEW-C	88-15-008	296-18A-465	AMD	88-21-022	296-24-47501	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-86502	NEW	88-16-012	296-18A-480	AMD-P	88-16-091	296-24-47501	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-870	AMD-P	88-09-073	296-18A-480	AMD	88-21-022	296-24-47505	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-870	AMD-C	88-15-008	296-18A-500	AMD-P	88-07-100	296-24-47505	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-870	AMD	88-16-012	296-18A-500	AMD	88-12-096	296-24-47507	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-870	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-18A-520	AMD-P	88-09-071	296-24-47507	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-870	AMD	88-24-012	296-18A-520	AMD	88-14-011	296-24-47513	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-875	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-20-0100	NEW-P	88-19-111	296-24-47513	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-875	AMD	88-24-012	296-20-0100	NEW	88-24-011	296-24-51009	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-880	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-20-03001	AMD-W	88-04-049	296-24-51009	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-880	AMD	88-24-012	296-20-045	AMD-C	88-04-051	296-24-51013	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-885	AMD-P	88-02-060	296-20-045	AMD-C	88-06-036	296-24-51013	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-885	AMD	88-06-047	296-20-132	AMD-P	88-19-111	296-24-55001	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-885	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-20-132	AMD	88-24-011	296-24-55001	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-885	AMD-P	88-06-076	296-20-135	AMD-P	88-19-111	296-24-56513	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-885	AMD	88-12-050	296-20-135	AMD	88-24-011	296-24-56513	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-885	AMD	88-12-065	296-20-140	REP-P	88-19-111	296-24-58503	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-885	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-20-140	REP	88-24-011	296-24-58503	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-885	AMD	88-24-012	296-20-145	REP-P	88-19-111	296-24-58513	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-17-890	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-20-145	REP	88-24-011	296-24-58513	AMD	88-14-108
296-17-890	AMD	88-24-012	296-20-150	REP-P	88-19-111	296-24-590	REP-P	88-06-073
296-17-895	AMD-P	88-02-060	296-20-155	REP	88-24-011	296-24-590	REP	88-11-021
296-17-895	AMD	88-06-047	296-20-155	REP-P	88-19-111	296-24-605	REP-P	88-06-073
296-17-895	AMD-P	88-06-072	296-20-155	REP	88-24-011	296-24-605	REP	88-11-021
296-17-895	AMD-P	88-06-076	296-20-210	AMD-P	88-09-072	296-24-63399	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-17-895	AMD	88-12-050	296-20-210	AMD	88-14-012	296-24-63399	AMD	88-14-108
296-17-895	AMD	88-12-065	296-21-035	AMD-P	88-09-072	296-24-68001	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-895	AMD-P	88-20-074	296-21-035	AMD	88-14-012	296-24-68001	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-895	AMD	88-24-012	296-21-128	AMD	88-04-052	296-24-68203	AMD-P	88-06-073
296-17-904	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-23-620	REP-C	88-04-051	296-24-68203	AMD	88-11-021
296-17-904	AMD	88-24-010	296-23-620	REP-C	88-06-036	296-24-78009	AMD-P	88-06-073
296-17-910	AMD	88-12-048	296-23A-115	AMD-P	88-19-111	296-24-78009	AMD	88-11-021
296-17-914	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-23A-115	AMD	88-24-011	296-24-82513	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-914	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-003	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-24-82513	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-915	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-003	AMD	88-23-054	296-24-82515	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-915	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-19501	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-24-82515	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-916	AMD	88-12-048	296-24-19501	AMD	88-23-054	296-24-82517	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-916	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-19507	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-24-82517	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-916	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-19507	AMD	88-23-054	296-24-82519	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-91601	NEW-P	88-07-102	296-24-19515	REP-P	88-09-074	296-24-82519	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-91601	NEW	88-12-049	296-24-19515	REP	88-14-108	296-24-95601	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-17-919	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-19517	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-24-95601	AMD	88-23-054
296-17-919	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-19517	NEW	88-23-054	296-27-15501	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-17-91901	AMD-P	88-09-070	296-24-20699	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-27-15501	AMD	88-14-108
296-17-91901	AMD-E	88-14-075	296-24-20699	NEW	88-23-054	296-45-65025	REP-P	88-06-073
296-17-91901	AMD	88-14-107	296-24-20700	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-45-65025	REP	88-11-021
296-17-91901	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-20700	NEW	88-23-054	296-45-65026	NEW-P	88-06-073
296-17-91901	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-20710	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-45-65026	NEW	88-11-021
296-17-91902	AMD-P	88-09-070	296-24-20710	NEW	88-23-054	296-45-65037	AMD-P	88-06-073
296-17-91902	AMD-E	88-14-075	296-24-20720	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-45-65037	AMD	88-11-021
296-17-91902	AMD	88-14-107	296-24-20720	NEW	88-23-054	296-46-316	AMD-P	88-11-086
296-17-91902	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-20730	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-46-316	AMD-E	88-11-087
296-17-91902	AMD	88-24-010	296-24-20730	NEW	88-23-054	296-46-316	AMD	88-15-063
296-17-91903	AMD-P	88-09-070	296-24-21701	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-46-420	AMD-P	88-11-086
296-17-91903	AMD-E	88-14-075	296-24-21701	AMD	88-14-108	296-46-420	AMD-E	88-11-087
296-17-91903	AMD	88-14-107	296-24-21707	AMD-P	88-06-073	296-46-420	AMD	88-15-063
296-17-91903	AMD-P	88-18-100	296-24-21707	AMD	88-11-021	296-52-401	AMD-P	88-18-071

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-52-401	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-055	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07340	NEW	88-11-021
296-52-419	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-59-055	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07341	REP-P	88-06-073
296-52-419	NEW	88-23-054	296-59-060	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07341	REP	88-11-021
296-52-421	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-060	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07342	NEW-P	88-06-073
296-52-421	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-065	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07342	NEW	88-11-021
296-52-423	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-59-065	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07343	NEW-P	88-06-073
296-52-423	NEW	88-23-054	296-59-070	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07343	NEW	88-11-021
296-52-425	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-070	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07344	NEW-P	88-06-073
296-52-425	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-075	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07344	NEW	88-11-021
296-52-429	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-075	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07345	REP-P	88-06-073
296-52-429	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-080	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07345	REP	88-11-021
296-52-433	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-080	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07346	NEW-P	88-06-073
296-52-433	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-085	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07346	NEW	88-11-021
296-52-437	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-085	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07355	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-52-437	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-090	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07355	AMD	88-23-054
296-52-441	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-090	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07359	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-52-441	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-095	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07359	AMD	88-23-054
296-52-445	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-095	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07361	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-52-445	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-100	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07361	AMD	88-23-054
296-52-449	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-100	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07363	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-52-449	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-102	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07363	AMD	88-23-054
296-52-487	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-59-102	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07365	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-52-487	NEW	88-23-054	296-59-103	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07365	AMD	88-23-054
296-52-489	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-103	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07367	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-52-489	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-105	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07367	AMD	88-23-054
296-54-45001	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-105	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07373	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-54-45001	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-107	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07373	AMD	88-23-054
296-54-501	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-107	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07379	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-54-501	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-109	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07379	AMD	88-23-054
296-54-559	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-109	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07383	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-54-559	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-115	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07383	AMD	88-14-108
296-54-605	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-59-115	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07385	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-54-605	AMD	88-23-054	296-59-120	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07385	AMD	88-14-108
296-54-990	REP-P	88-18-071	296-59-120	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07387	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-54-990	REP	88-23-054	296-59-125	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07387	AMD	88-14-108
296-54-99001	REP-P	88-18-071	296-59-125	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07389	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-54-99001	REP	88-23-054	296-59-130	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07389	AMD	88-14-108
296-54-99005	REP-P	88-18-071	296-59-130	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07515	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-54-99005	REP	88-23-054	296-59-135	NEW-P	88-18-071	296-62-07515	AMD	88-14-108
296-54-99006	REP-P	88-18-071	296-59-135	NEW	88-23-054	296-62-07521	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-54-99006	REP	88-23-054	296-62-054	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07521	AMD	88-14-108
296-54-99011	REP-P	88-18-071	296-62-054	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07523	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-54-99011	REP	88-23-054	296-62-05403	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07523	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-54-99012	REP-P	88-18-071	296-62-05403	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07523	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-54-99012	REP	88-23-054	296-62-05405	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07523	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-56-60001	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-05405	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07523	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-56-60001	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-05407	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07523	NEW	88-21-002
296-56-60081	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-05407	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07525	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-56-60081	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-05409	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07525	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-56-60249	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-05409	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07525	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-56-60249	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-05411	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07525	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-59-001	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05411	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07525	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-59-001	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-05413	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07525	NEW	88-21-002
296-59-003	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05413	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07527	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-59-003	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-05415	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07527	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-59-005	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05415	AMD-W	88-14-141	296-62-07527	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-59-005	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-05417	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07527	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-59-007	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05417	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07527	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-59-007	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-05421	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07527	NEW	88-21-002
296-59-010	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05421	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07529	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-59-010	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-05423	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07529	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-59-015	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05423	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07529	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-59-015	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-05425	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07529	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-59-020	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-05425	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07529	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-59-020	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07113	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07529	NEW	88-21-002
296-59-025	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07113	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07531	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-59-025	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07115	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-07531	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-59-027	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07115	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-07531	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-59-027	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07336	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-62-07531	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-59-030	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07336	NEW	88-11-021	296-62-07531	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-59-030	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07337	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-62-07531	NEW	88-21-002
296-59-035	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07337	NEW	88-11-021	296-62-07533	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-59-035	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07338	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-62-07533	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-59-040	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07338	NEW	88-11-021	296-62-07533	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-59-040	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07339	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-62-07533	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-59-050	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-07339	NEW	88-11-021	296-62-07533	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-59-050	NEW	88-14-108	296-62-07340	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-62-07533	NEW	88-21-002

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-62-07540	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3050	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3170	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-62-07540	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3050	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3170	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-62-07540	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3050	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3170	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-62-07540	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3050	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3170	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-62-07540	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3050	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3170	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-62-07540	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3060	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3170	NEW	88-21-002
296-62-07542	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3060	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3180	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-62-07542	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3060	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3180	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-62-07542	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3060	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3180	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-62-07542	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3060	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3180	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-62-07542	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3060	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3180	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-62-07542	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3070	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3180	NEW	88-21-002
296-62-07544	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3070	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3190	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-62-07544	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3070	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3190	NEW-W	88-14-141
296-62-07544	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3070	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3190	NEW-E	88-16-044
296-62-07544	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3070	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3190	NEW-P	88-16-092
296-62-07544	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3070	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3190	NEW-E	88-21-001
296-62-07544	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3080	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3190	NEW	88-21-002
296-62-07546	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3080	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-78-56505	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-62-07546	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3080	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-78-56505	AMD	88-23-054
296-62-07546	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3080	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-81-007	AMD-P	88-13-128
296-62-07546	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3080	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-81-007	AMD	88-19-053
296-62-07546	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3080	NEW	88-21-002	296-81-008	AMD-P	88-04-053
296-62-07546	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3090	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-81-008	AMD	88-07-101
296-62-07548	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3090	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-81-275	NEW-P	88-13-128
296-62-07548	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3090	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-81-275	NEW	88-19-053
296-62-07548	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3090	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-81-276	NEW-P	88-13-129
296-62-07548	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3090	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-81-276	NEW-W	88-19-054
296-62-07548	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3090	NEW	88-21-002	296-81-277	NEW-P	88-18-101
296-62-07548	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3100	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-81-277	NEW	88-24-022
296-62-07550	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3100	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-81-277	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-07550	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3100	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-010	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-07550	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3100	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-99-015	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-07550	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3100	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-99-015	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-07550	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3100	NEW	88-21-002	296-99-020	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-07550	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3110	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-99-020	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-14541	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-62-3110	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-99-025	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-14541	AMD	88-14-108	296-62-3110	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-025	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-14601	REP-P	88-18-071	296-62-3110	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-99-030	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-14601	REP	88-23-054	296-62-3110	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-99-030	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-14605	REP-P	88-18-071	296-62-3110	NEW	88-21-002	296-99-035	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-14605	REP	88-23-054	296-62-3120	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-99-035	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-14607	REP-P	88-18-071	296-62-3120	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-99-040	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-14607	REP	88-23-054	296-62-3120	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-040	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-20009	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-62-3120	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-99-045	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-20009	AMD	88-23-054	296-62-3120	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-99-045	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-300	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3120	NEW	88-21-002	296-99-050	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-300	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3130	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-99-050	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-300	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3130	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-99-055	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-300	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3130	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-055	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-300	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3130	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-99-060	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-300	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3130	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-99-060	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3010	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3130	NEW	88-21-002	296-99-065	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3010	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3140	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-99-065	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3010	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3140	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-99-070	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3010	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3140	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-070	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3010	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3140	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-99-075	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3010	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3140	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-99-075	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3020	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3140	NEW	88-21-002	296-99-080	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3020	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3150	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-99-080	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3020	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3150	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-99-085	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3020	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3150	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-085	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3020	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3150	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-99-090	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3020	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3150	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-99-090	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3030	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3150	NEW	88-21-002	296-99-093	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3030	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3152	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-99-093	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3030	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3152	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-99-095	NEW-P	88-18-071
296-62-3030	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3152	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-99-095	NEW	88-23-054
296-62-3030	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3152	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-116-020	AMD-C	88-05-016
296-62-3030	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3152	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-116-020	AMD	88-09-025
296-62-3040	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3160	NEW	88-21-002	296-116-030	AMD-C	88-05-017
296-62-3040	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-62-3160	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-116-030	AMD	88-09-026
296-62-3040	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-62-3160	NEW-W	88-14-141	296-116-070	AMD-P	88-10-036
296-62-3040	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-62-3160	NEW-E	88-16-044	296-116-070	AMD	88-14-063
296-62-3040	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-62-3160	NEW-P	88-16-092	296-116-080	AMD-C	88-06-066
296-62-3040	NEW	88-21-002	296-62-3160	NEW-E	88-21-001	296-116-080	AMD	88-10-037
296-62-3050	NEW-P	88-09-074	296-62-3160	NEW	88-21-002	296-116-083	NEW-P	88-06-067

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
296-116-083	NEW	88-10-038	296-130-060	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-305-007	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-116-120	AMD-C	88-05-018	296-130-065	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-305-007	AMD	88-14-108
296-116-120	AMD	88-09-027	296-130-065	NEW	88-18-044	296-305-060	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-116-185	AMD	88-05-043	296-130-065	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-305-060	AMD	88-14-108
296-116-185	AMD-P	88-22-071	296-130-070	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-305-06003	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-116-300	AMD	88-05-039	296-130-070	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-305-06003	AMD	88-14-108
296-116-300	AMD-P	88-22-071	296-130-070	NEW	88-18-044	296-305-06005	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-116-320	REP-P	88-06-068	296-130-070	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-305-06005	AMD	88-14-108
296-116-320	REP	88-10-039	296-130-080	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-305-06011	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-116-360	NEW-C	88-05-019	296-130-080	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-305-06011	AMD	88-14-108
296-116-360	NEW	88-09-015	296-130-080	NEW	88-18-044	296-305-06311	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-116-370	NEW-P	88-06-069	296-130-080	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-305-063	AMD	88-14-108
296-116-370	NEW-C	88-10-035	296-130-500	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-305-06301	REP-P	88-09-074
296-116-370	NEW	88-14-062	296-130-500	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-305-06301	REP	88-14-108
296-116-400	NEW-C	88-05-020	296-130-500	NEW	88-18-044	296-305-06303	REP-P	88-09-074
296-116-400	NEW	88-09-016	296-130-500	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-305-06303	REP	88-14-108
296-116-410	NEW-C	88-05-021	296-150B-015	AMD-P	88-14-104	296-305-06303	REP-P	88-09-074
296-116-410	NEW	88-09-017	296-150B-015	AMD	88-19-010	296-305-06305	REP	88-14-108
296-116-420	NEW-P	88-06-070	296-150B-015	AMD-P	88-24-045	296-305-06307	REP-P	88-09-074
296-116-420	NEW	88-10-040	296-150B-220	AMD-P	88-14-104	296-305-06307	REP	88-14-108
296-127	AMD-C	88-21-021	296-150B-220	AMD	88-19-010	296-305-06309	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127	AMD-C	88-22-021	296-150B-225	AMD-P	88-14-104	296-305-06309	REP	88-14-108
296-127-010	AMD-P	88-16-090	296-150B-225	AMD	88-19-010	296-305-06311	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-010	AMD	88-22-046	296-150B-245	AMD-P	88-14-104	296-305-06311	REP	88-14-108
296-127-011	AMD-P	88-16-090	296-150B-245	AMD	88-19-010	296-305-06313	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-011	AMD	88-22-046	296-155-160	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-305-06313	REP	88-14-108
296-127-013	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-160	AMD	88-14-108	296-305-064	NEW-P	88-09-074
296-127-013	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-265	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-305-064	NEW	88-14-108
296-127-014	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-265	AMD	88-23-054	296-305-06505	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-127-014	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-270	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-305-06505	AMD	88-14-108
296-127-015	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-270	AMD	88-23-054	296-305-06507	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-127-015	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-405	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-305-06507	AMD	88-14-108
296-127-016	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-405	AMD	88-23-054	296-305-06509	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-127-016	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-425	REP-P	88-06-073	296-305-06509	AMD	88-14-108
296-127-019	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-425	REP	88-11-021	296-305-07001	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-127-019	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-426	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-305-07001	AMD	88-14-108
296-127-022	NEW-E	88-13-045	296-155-426	NEW	88-11-021	296-305-07003	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-127-022	NEW-P	88-14-106	296-155-428	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-305-07003	AMD	88-14-108
296-127-022	NEW-E	88-16-013	296-155-428	NEW	88-11-021	296-305-100	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-127-022	NEW-C	88-18-008	296-155-429	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-305-100	AMD	88-14-108
296-127-022	NEW	88-19-055	296-155-429	NEW	88-11-021	296-305-9901	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-023	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-430	REP-P	88-06-073	296-305-9901	REP	88-14-108
296-127-023	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-430	REP	88-11-021	296-305-9902	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-025	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-432	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-305-9902	REP	88-14-108
296-127-025	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-432	NEW	88-11-021	296-305-9903	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-026	NEW-P	88-16-090	296-155-434	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-305-9903	REP	88-14-108
296-127-026	NEW	88-22-046	296-155-434	NEW	88-11-021	296-305-9904	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-040	AMD-P	88-16-090	296-155-435	REP-P	88-06-073	296-305-9904	REP	88-14-108
296-127-040	AMD	88-22-046	296-155-435	REP	88-11-021	296-305-9905	REP-P	88-09-074
296-127-045	AMD-P	88-16-090	296-155-437	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-305-9905	REP	88-14-108
296-127-045	AMD	88-22-046	296-155-437	NEW	88-11-021	296-305-9906	REP-P	88-09-074
296-130-010	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-155-440	REP-P	88-06-073	296-305-9906	REP	88-14-108
296-130-010	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-155-440	REP	88-11-021	296-306-010	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-130-010	NEW	88-18-044	296-155-441	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-306-010	AMD	88-14-108
296-130-010	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-155-441	NEW	88-11-021	296-306-085	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-130-020	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-155-444	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-306-085	AMD	88-14-108
296-130-020	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-155-444	NEW	88-11-021	296-306-090	AMD-P	88-09-074
296-130-020	NEW	88-18-044	296-155-444	NEW	88-11-021	296-306-090	AMD	88-14-108
296-130-020	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-155-447	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-306-320	AMD-P	88-18-071
296-130-030	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-155-447	NEW	88-11-021	296-306-320	AMD	88-23-054
296-130-030	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-155-449	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-400-045	AMD	88-06-037
296-130-030	NEW	88-18-044	296-155-449	NEW	88-11-021	296-401-030	AMD	88-11-085
296-130-030	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-155-450	REP-P	88-06-073	296-401-030	AMD-P	88-16-002
296-130-035	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-155-450	REP	88-11-021	296-401-030	AMD	88-11-085
296-130-035	NEW-P	88-19-110	296-155-452	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-401-080	AMD-P	88-11-085
296-130-035	NEW	88-23-117	296-155-452	NEW	88-11-021	296-401-080	AMD	88-16-002
296-130-040	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-155-455	REP-P	88-06-073	296-401-085	NEW-P	88-11-085
296-130-040	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-155-455	REP	88-11-021	296-401-085	NEW	88-16-002
296-130-040	NEW	88-18-044	296-155-456	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-401-087	NEW-P	88-11-085
296-130-040	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-155-456	NEW	88-11-021	296-401-087	NEW	88-16-002
296-130-050	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-155-459	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-401-090	AMD-P	88-11-085
296-130-050	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-155-459	NEW	88-11-021	296-401-090	AMD	88-16-002
296-130-050	NEW	88-18-044	296-155-462	NEW-P	88-06-073	296-401-100	AMD-P	88-11-085
296-130-050	NEW-E	88-18-045	296-155-462	NEW	88-11-021	296-401-100	AMD	88-16-002
296-130-060	NEW-P	88-14-105	296-155-745	AMD-P	88-18-071	296-401-120	AMD-P	88-11-085
296-130-060	NEW-C	88-18-007	296-155-745	AMD	88-23-054	296-401-120	AMD	88-16-002
296-130-060	NEW	88-18-044	296-304-06013	AMD-P	88-09-074	296-401-170	AMD-P	88-11-085
			296-304-06013	AMD	88-14-108	296-401-170	AMD	88-16-002

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
296-401-180	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-20-190	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-310	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-401-180	AMD	88-16-002	308-20-205	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-310	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-402-030	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-20-205	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-320	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-402-030	AMD	88-16-002	308-25-080	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-320	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-402-140	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-25-090	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-330	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-402-140	AMD	88-16-002	308-25-100	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-330	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-402-150	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-25-110	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-410	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-402-150	AMD	88-16-002	308-25-120	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-410	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-402-190	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-25-130	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-420	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-402-190	AMD	88-16-002	308-25-140	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-420	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-402-200	NEW-P	88-11-085	308-25-150	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-430	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-402-200	NEW	88-16-002	308-25-160	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-430	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-403-010	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-25-300	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-34-440	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-403-010	AMD	88-16-002	308-25-300	NEW	88-22-077	308-34-440	NEW-C	88-17-096
296-403-070	AMD-P	88-11-085	308-26-055	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-450	NEW-P	88-15-080
296-403-070	AMD	88-16-002	308-26-065	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-450	NEW-C	88-17-096
304-12-290	AMD-E	88-02-046	308-26-075	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-460	NEW-P	88-15-080
304-12-290	AMD-P	88-03-018	308-26-085	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-460	NEW-C	88-17-096
304-12-290	AMD-E	88-07-086	308-26-095	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-470	NEW-E	88-15-002
304-12-290	AMD	88-07-087	308-26-105	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-470	NEW-P	88-15-080
308-04-001	AMD-E	88-15-062	308-26-115	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-470	NEW-C	88-17-096
308-04-001	AMD-P	88-16-098	308-26-125	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-480	NEW-P	88-15-080
308-08-700	NEW-P	88-15-040	308-26-135	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-34-480	NEW-C	88-17-096
308-11-050	AMD-P	88-15-081	308-26-200	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-37-190	AMD-P	88-17-042
308-11-050	AMD	88-23-034	308-26-200	NEW	88-22-077	308-37-190	AMD-C	88-23-078
308-12-031	AMD-P	88-14-007	308-31-010	AMD-P	88-08-075	308-40-030	REP-P	88-09-067
308-12-031	AMD	88-17-085	308-31-010	AMD	88-11-034	308-40-030	REP	88-13-131
308-12-050	AMD-P	88-05-037	308-31-010	AMD-P	88-20-088	308-40-101	AMD-P	88-09-067
308-12-050	AMD	88-09-066	308-31-015	REP-P	88-08-075	308-40-101	AMD	88-13-131
308-13-020	AMD-P	88-02-069	308-31-015	REP	88-11-034	308-40-102	AMD-P	88-09-067
308-13-020	AMD	88-05-025	308-31-056	NEW-P	88-08-075	308-40-102	AMD	88-13-131
308-13-025	AMD-P	88-12-041	308-31-057	NEW-P	88-20-088	308-40-103	AMD-P	88-09-067
308-13-025	AMD	88-15-041	308-34-010	REP-P	88-15-080	308-40-103	AMD	88-13-131
308-13-032	AMD-P	88-06-059	308-34-010	REP-C	88-17-096	308-40-104	AMD-P	88-20-034
308-13-032	AMD	88-12-018	308-34-020	REP-P	88-15-080	308-40-105	AMD-P	88-09-067
308-13-150	AMD	88-04-027	308-34-020	REP-C	88-17-096	308-40-105	AMD	88-13-131
308-20-010	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-030	REP-P	88-15-080	308-42-010	AMD-P	88-17-104
308-20-010	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-030	REP-C	88-17-096	308-42-010	AMD	88-23-014
308-20-020	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-040	REP-P	88-15-080	308-42-010	AMD-P	88-23-057
308-20-020	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-040	REP-C	88-17-096	308-42-015	NEW-P	88-03-033
308-20-030	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-050	REP-P	88-15-080	308-42-015	NEW-P	88-08-036
308-20-030	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-050	REP-C	88-17-096	308-42-090	NEW-P	88-17-104
308-20-040	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-060	REP-P	88-15-080	308-42-090	NEW	88-23-014
308-20-040	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-060	REP-C	88-17-096	308-42-120	AMD-P	88-17-104
308-20-050	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-070	REP-P	88-15-080	308-42-120	AMD	88-23-014
308-20-050	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-070	REP-C	88-17-096	308-42-123	NEW-P	88-17-104
308-20-060	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-080	REP-P	88-15-080	308-42-123	NEW	88-23-014
308-20-060	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-080	REP-C	88-17-096	308-48-030	AMD	88-08-015
308-20-070	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-090	REP-P	88-15-080	308-48-030	AMD-E	88-08-016
308-20-070	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-090	REP-C	88-17-096	308-48-031	NEW	88-08-015
308-20-080	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-110	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-48-031	NEW-E	88-08-016
308-20-080	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-110	NEW	88-14-009	308-48-031	AMD	88-08-015
308-20-090	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-110	AMD-P	88-15-079	308-48-085	AMD-E	88-08-016
308-20-090	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-110	AMD-E	88-16-019	308-48-085	AMD-P	88-08-037
308-20-100	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-110	AMD-C	88-17-097	308-48-140	AMD	88-13-010
308-20-100	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-120	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-48-350	NEW-P	88-19-050
308-20-105	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-120	NEW	88-14-009	308-48-350	NEW-C	88-23-105
308-20-105	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-130	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-48-790	AMD-P	88-08-037
308-20-107	NEW-P	88-13-130	308-34-130	NEW	88-14-009	308-48-790	AMD	88-13-010
308-20-107	NEW	88-19-047	308-34-140	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-49-140	AMD-P	88-08-037
308-20-109	NEW-P	88-13-130	308-34-140	NEW	88-14-009	308-49-140	AMD	88-13-010
308-20-109	NEW	88-19-047	308-34-150	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-49-170	AMD-P	88-08-037
308-20-110	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-150	NEW	88-14-009	308-49-170	AMD	88-13-010
308-20-110	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-150	AMD-E	88-23-107	308-50-010	AMD-P	88-21-078
308-20-120	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-160	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-50-020	AMD-P	88-21-078
308-20-120	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-160	NEW	88-14-009	308-50-035	AMD-P	88-21-078
308-20-130	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-170	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-50-130	AMD-P	88-21-078
308-20-130	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-170	NEW	88-14-009	308-50-350	AMD-P	88-21-078
308-20-140	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-170	AMD-P	88-15-039	308-50-420	AMD-P	88-21-078
308-20-140	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-170	AMD-E	88-15-042	308-50-500	NEW-P	88-20-060
308-20-150	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-170	AMD-P	88-16-099	308-50-500	NEW	88-23-106
308-20-150	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-170	AMD-E	88-16-105	308-51	AMD-P	88-06-034
308-20-155	NEW-P	88-13-130	308-34-170	AMD	88-20-075	308-51	AMD	88-11-011
308-20-155	NEW	88-19-047	308-34-180	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-51-010	AMD-P	88-06-034
308-20-171	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-180	NEW	88-14-009	308-51-010	AMD	88-11-011
308-20-171	AMD	88-19-047	308-34-190	NEW-P	88-11-090	308-51-020	REP-P	88-06-034
308-20-190	AMD-P	88-13-130	308-34-190	NEW	88-14-009	308-51-020	REP	88-11-011

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
308-51-021	NEW-P	88-16-069	308-53-145	AMD	88-07-047	308-77-030	AMD-P	88-23-123
308-51-021	NEW	88-19-048	308-53-170	AMD-P	88-03-071	308-77-034	AMD-P	88-23-123
308-51-040	REP-P	88-06-034	308-53-170	AMD	88-07-047	308-77-040	AMD-P	88-23-123
308-51-040	REP	88-11-011	308-53-200	AMD-P	88-14-039	308-77-042	NEW-P	88-23-122
308-51-050	AMD-P	88-06-034	308-53-200	AMD-P	88-21-084	308-77-044	NEW-P	88-23-122
308-51-050	AMD	88-11-011	308-53-200	AMD-C	88-22-072	308-77-060	AMD-P	88-23-123
308-51-060	REP-P	88-06-034	308-53-400	NEW-P	88-21-085	308-90-010	REP-E	88-03-001
308-51-060	REP	88-11-011	308-54-130	AMD-P	88-19-049	308-90-010	REP	88-03-038
308-51-070	AMD-P	88-06-034	308-54-130	AMD	88-23-038	308-90-020	REP-E	88-03-001
308-51-070	REP-P	88-11-055	308-54-140	REP-P	88-19-049	308-90-020	REP	88-03-038
308-51-070	REP	88-14-097	308-54-140	REP	88-23-038	308-90-030	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-080	REP-P	88-06-034	308-54-162	NEW-P	88-19-049	308-90-030	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-080	REP	88-11-011	308-54-162	NEW	88-23-038	308-90-040	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-100	AMD-P	88-06-034	308-54-170	AMD-P	88-10-056	308-90-040	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-100	AMD	88-11-011	308-54-170	AMD-C	88-19-049	308-90-050	REP-E	88-03-001
308-51-110	AMD-P	88-06-034	308-54-170	AMD	88-23-038	308-90-050	REP	88-03-038
308-51-110	AMD	88-11-011	308-55-035	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-060	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-125	AMD-P	88-06-034	308-55-045	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-060	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-125	AMD	88-11-011	308-55-055	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-070	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-140	AMD-P	88-06-034	308-55-065	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-070	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-140	AMD	88-11-011	308-55-075	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-080	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-140	AMD-P	88-16-069	308-55-085	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-080	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-140	AMD	88-19-048	308-55-095	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-090	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-150	REP-P	88-06-034	308-55-105	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-090	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-150	REP	88-11-011	308-55-115	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-90-110	AMD-E	88-03-001
308-51-210	AMD-P	88-18-081	308-55-200	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-90-110	AMD	88-03-038
308-51-210	AMD-E	88-19-002	308-55-200	NEW	88-22-077	308-90-120	NEW-E	88-03-001
308-51-210	AMD	88-24-042	308-56A-125	AMD-P	88-11-023	308-90-120	NEW	88-03-038
308-51-220	NEW-P	88-06-034	308-56A-125	AMD	88-20-035	308-90-130	NEW-E	88-03-001
308-51-220	NEW	88-11-011	308-56A-275	AMD-P	88-11-023	308-90-130	NEW	88-03-038
308-51-230	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-56A-275	AMD	88-20-035	308-90-140	NEW-E	88-03-001
308-51-240	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-56A-285	AMD-P	88-11-023	308-90-140	NEW	88-03-038
308-51-250	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-56A-285	AMD	88-20-035	308-90-150	NEW-E	88-03-001
308-51-260	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-56A-465	AMD-P	88-11-023	308-90-150	NEW	88-03-038
308-51-270	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-56A-465	AMD-P	88-19-113	308-90-160	NEW-E	88-03-001
308-51-280	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-56A-465	AMD	88-23-037	308-90-160	NEW	88-03-038
308-51-290	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-58-020	AMD-P	88-11-023	308-91-010	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-51-300	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-58-020	AMD-P	88-19-113	308-91-010	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-51-310	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-58-020	AMD	88-23-037	308-91-010	AMD	88-06-061
308-51-320	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-58-030	AMD-P	88-11-023	308-91-020	REP-E	88-03-030
308-51-320	NEW	88-22-077	308-58-030	AMD	88-20-035	308-91-020	REP-P	88-03-067
308-51A-010	NEW-P	88-08-088	308-61-026	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-020	REP	88-06-061
308-51A-010	NEW	88-13-038	308-61-026	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-030	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-51A-020	NEW-P	88-08-088	308-61-050	REP-E	88-04-026	308-91-030	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-51A-020	NEW	88-13-038	308-61-050	REP	88-06-025	308-91-030	AMD	88-06-061
308-51A-030	NEW-P	88-08-088	308-61-108	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-040	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-51A-030	NEW	88-13-038	308-61-108	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-040	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-51A-040	NEW-P	88-08-088	308-61-135	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-040	AMD	88-06-061
308-51A-040	NEW	88-13-038	308-61-135	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-050	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-51A-050	NEW-P	88-08-088	308-61-158	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-050	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-51A-050	NEW	88-13-038	308-61-158	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-050	AMD	88-06-061
308-51A-060	NEW-P	88-08-088	308-61-175	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-060	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-51A-060	NEW	88-13-038	308-61-175	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-060	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-52-138	AMD	88-06-008	308-61-210	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-060	AMD	88-06-061
308-52-139	AMD	88-06-008	308-61-210	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-070	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-52-139	AMD-P	88-16-018	308-61-240	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-070	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-52-139	AMD-E	88-16-020	308-61-240	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-070	AMD	88-06-061
308-52-139	AMD	88-21-047	308-61-260	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-080	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-52-140	AMD	88-06-008	308-61-260	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-080	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-52-147	NEW	88-06-008	308-61-330	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-080	AMD	88-06-061
308-52-148	NEW	88-06-008	308-61-330	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-090	AMD-E	88-03-030
308-52-149	NEW	88-06-008	308-61-430	AMD-E	88-04-026	308-91-090	AMD-P	88-03-067
308-52-600	NEW-P	88-16-018	308-61-430	AMD	88-06-025	308-91-090	AMD	88-06-061
308-52-600	NEW-E	88-16-020	308-72-502	NEW-P	88-04-029	308-91-100	REP-E	88-03-030
308-52-600	NEW	88-21-047	308-72-502	NEW	88-07-095	308-91-100	REP-P	88-03-067
308-52-610	NEW-P	88-16-018	308-72-502	AMD-P	88-19-076	308-91-100	REP	88-06-061
308-52-610	NEW-E	88-16-020	308-72-502	AMD	88-23-015	308-91-110	REP-E	88-03-030
308-52-610	NEW	88-21-047	308-72-504	NEW-P	88-04-029	308-91-110	REP-P	88-03-067
308-53-010	AMD-P	88-03-071	308-72-504	NEW	88-07-095	308-91-110	REP	88-06-061
308-53-010	AMD	88-07-047	308-72-506	NEW-P	88-04-029	308-91-120	NEW-E	88-03-030
308-53-030	AMD-P	88-03-071	308-72-506	NEW	88-07-095	308-91-120	NEW-P	88-03-067
308-53-030	AMD	88-07-047	308-72-508	NEW-P	88-04-029	308-91-120	NEW	88-06-061
308-53-100	AMD-P	88-03-071	308-72-508	NEW	88-07-095	308-91-130	NEW-E	88-03-030
308-53-100	AMD	88-07-047	308-72-512	NEW-P	88-04-029	308-91-130	NEW-P	88-03-067
308-53-120	AMD-P	88-03-071	308-72-512	NEW	88-07-095	308-91-130	NEW	88-06-061
308-53-120	AMD	88-07-047	308-72-540	AMD-P	88-04-029	308-91-140	NEW-E	88-03-030
308-53-145	AMD-P	88-03-071	308-72-540	AMD	88-07-095	308-91-140	NEW-P	88-03-067

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
308-91-140	NEW	88-06-061	308-117-360	NEW-P	88-21-024	308-120-521	REP	88-16-034
308-91-150	NEW-E	88-03-030	308-117-360	NEW	88-24-017	308-120-522	REP-P	88-12-042
308-91-150	NEW-P	88-03-067	308-117-410	NEW-P	88-13-094	308-120-522	REP	88-16-034
308-91-150	NEW	88-06-061	308-117-410	NEW	88-18-005	308-120-525	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-91-160	NEW-E	88-03-030	308-117-420	NEW-P	88-13-094	308-120-525	NEW	88-16-034
308-91-160	NEW-P	88-03-067	308-117-420	NEW	88-18-005	308-120-530	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-91-160	NEW	88-06-061	308-117-500	AMD-P	88-15-039	308-120-530	NEW	88-16-034
308-91-170	NEW-E	88-03-030	308-117-500	AMD-E	88-15-042	308-120-535	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-91-170	NEW-P	88-03-067	308-117-500	AMD-P	88-16-099	308-120-535	NEW	88-16-034
308-91-170	NEW	88-06-061	308-117-500	AMD-E	88-16-105	308-120-540	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-93-087	NEW-P	88-19-118	308-117-500	AMD	88-20-075	308-120-540	NEW	88-16-034
308-93-087	NEW	88-24-003	308-120-100	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-120-540	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-065	AMD-P	88-07-116	308-120-100	AMD	88-16-034	308-120-545	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-065	AMD	88-12-043	308-120-100	AMD-P	88-19-116	308-120-550	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-066	NEW-P	88-07-116	308-120-100	AMD	88-23-035	308-120-550	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-450	NEW-E	88-14-038	308-120-161	AMD-P	88-19-116	308-120-555	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-450	NEW-P	88-14-111	308-120-161	AMD	88-23-035	308-120-555	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-450	NEW	88-19-017	308-120-163	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-120-560	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-460	NEW-E	88-14-038	308-120-163	AMD	88-16-034	308-120-560	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-460	NEW-P	88-14-111	308-120-164	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-120-565	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-460	NEW	88-19-017	308-120-164	AMD	88-16-034	308-120-565	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-470	NEW-E	88-14-038	308-120-166	AMD-P	88-19-116	308-120-570	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-470	NEW-P	88-14-111	308-120-166	AMD	88-23-035	308-120-570	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-470	NEW	88-19-017	308-120-168	AMD-P	88-19-116	308-120-575	NEW-P	88-12-042
308-96A-480	NEW-E	88-14-038	308-120-168	AMD	88-23-035	308-120-575	NEW	88-16-034
308-96A-480	NEW-P	88-14-111	308-120-170	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-120-610	NEW-P	88-19-116
308-96A-480	NEW	88-19-017	308-120-170	AMD	88-16-034	308-120-610	NEW	88-23-035
308-96A-490	NEW-P	88-19-119	308-120-180	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-120-750	NEW-P	88-19-116
308-96A-490	NEW	88-23-016	308-120-180	AMD	88-16-034	308-120-750	NEW	88-23-035
308-115-065	NEW-P	88-17-051	308-120-180	AMD-P	88-19-116	308-120-760	NEW-P	88-19-116
308-115-220	NEW-P	88-08-035	308-120-180	AMD	88-23-035	308-120-760	NEW	88-23-035
308-115-220	NEW	88-12-040	308-120-185	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-120-770	NEW-P	88-19-116
308-115-220	AMD-P	88-17-051	308-120-185	AMD	88-16-034	308-120-770	NEW	88-23-035
308-115-230	NEW-P	88-08-035	308-120-186	AMD	88-05-010	308-120-780	NEW-P	88-19-116
308-115-230	NEW	88-12-040	308-120-275	AMD-P	88-15-039	308-120-780	NEW	88-23-035
308-115-240	NEW-P	88-08-035	308-120-275	AMD-E	88-15-042	308-121-010	REP-P	88-19-117
308-115-240	NEW	88-12-040	308-120-275	AMD-P	88-16-099	308-121-010	REP-E	88-20-006
308-115-250	NEW-P	88-08-035	308-120-275	AMD-E	88-16-105	308-121-010	REP	88-23-036
308-115-250	NEW	88-12-040	308-120-275	AMD	88-20-075	308-121-020	REP-P	88-19-117
308-115-260	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-335	AMD	88-07-049	308-121-020	REP-E	88-20-006
308-115-270	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-338	NEW-P	88-12-042	308-121-020	REP	88-23-036
308-115-280	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-338	NEW	88-16-034	308-121-030	AMD-P	88-19-117
308-115-290	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-360	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-121-030	AMD-E	88-20-006
308-115-310	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-360	AMD	88-18-082	308-121-030	AMD	88-23-036
308-115-320	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-505	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-121-040	AMD-P	88-19-117
308-115-330	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-505	AMD	88-16-034	308-121-040	AMD-E	88-20-006
308-115-340	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-506	AMD-P	88-12-042	308-121-040	AMD	88-23-036
308-115-350	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-120-506	AMD	88-16-034	308-121-050	AMD-P	88-19-117
308-115-500	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-120-507	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-050	AMD-E	88-20-006
308-115-500	NEW	88-22-077	308-120-507	REP	88-16-034	308-121-050	AMD	88-23-036
308-117-010	AMD-P	88-21-024	308-120-508	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-055	NEW-P	88-19-117
308-117-010	AMD	88-24-017	308-120-508	REP	88-16-034	308-121-055	NEW-E	88-20-006
308-117-030	AMD-P	88-04-077	308-120-509	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-055	NEW	88-23-036
308-117-030	AMD	88-08-034	308-120-509	REP	88-16-034	308-121-060	AMD-P	88-19-117
308-117-030	AMD-P	88-13-094	308-120-510	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-060	AMD-E	88-20-006
308-117-030	AMD	88-18-005	308-120-510	REP	88-16-034	308-121-060	AMD	88-23-036
308-117-030	AMD-P	88-21-024	308-120-511	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-070	NEW-P	88-15-039
308-117-030	AMD	88-24-017	308-120-511	REP	88-16-034	308-121-070	NEW-E	88-15-042
308-117-040	AMD-P	88-13-094	308-120-512	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-070	NEW-P	88-15-098
308-117-040	AMD	88-18-005	308-120-512	REP	88-16-034	308-121-070	NEW-P	88-16-099
308-117-050	AMD-P	88-13-094	308-120-513	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-070	NEW-E	88-16-105
308-117-050	AMD	88-18-005	308-120-513	REP	88-16-034	308-121-070	NEW-P	88-19-117
308-117-060	AMD-P	88-21-024	308-120-514	REP-P	88-12-042	308-121-070	NEW-E	88-20-006
308-117-060	AMD	88-24-017	308-120-514	REP	88-16-034	308-121-070	NEW	88-23-036
308-117-080	AMD	88-05-011	308-120-515	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-005	NEW-P	88-19-115
308-117-090	AMD-P	88-13-094	308-120-515	REP	88-16-034	308-122-005	NEW-E	88-21-023
308-117-090	AMD	88-18-005	308-120-516	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-005	NEW	88-23-059
308-117-090	AMD-P	88-21-024	308-120-516	REP	88-16-034	308-122-006	NEW-P	88-19-115
308-117-090	AMD	88-24-017	308-120-517	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-006	NEW-E	88-21-023
308-117-095	NEW-P	88-13-094	308-120-517	REP	88-16-034	308-122-006	NEW	88-23-059
308-117-095	NEW	88-18-005	308-120-518	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-200	AMD-P	88-06-007
308-117-100	AMD-P	88-13-094	308-120-518	REP	88-16-034	308-122-200	AMD	88-09-029
308-117-100	AMD	88-18-005	308-120-519	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-215	AMD-P	88-06-007
308-117-100	AMD-P	88-21-024	308-120-519	REP	88-16-034	308-122-215	AMD	88-09-029
308-117-100	AMD	88-24-017	308-120-520	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-235	NEW-P	88-06-007
308-117-105	NEW-P	88-13-094	308-120-520	REP	88-16-034	308-122-235	NEW	88-09-029
308-117-105	NEW	88-18-005	308-120-521	REP-P	88-12-042	308-122-280	NEW-P	88-19-115

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
308-122-280	NEW-E	88-21-023	308-124H-035	AMD	88-24-059	308-138-055	AMD	88-09-030
308-122-280	NEW	88-23-059	308-127-150	REP	88-15-017	308-138-055	AMD-P	88-11-088
308-122-350	AMD-P	88-19-115	308-127-155	NEW	88-15-017	308-138-055	AMD	88-14-113
308-122-350	AMD-E	88-21-023	308-128A-010	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-070	AMD-P	88-20-059
308-122-350	AMD	88-23-059	308-128A-010	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-070	AMD-E	88-22-075
308-122-640	AMD-P	88-06-007	308-128A-020	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-070	AMD	88-23-124
308-122-640	AMD	88-09-029	308-128A-020	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-320	AMD-P	88-03-035
308-122-720	NEW-P	88-06-007	308-128A-030	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-320	AMD	88-09-030
308-122-720	NEW	88-09-029	308-128A-030	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-340	NEW-P	88-11-088
308-124-021	AMD-P	88-20-091	308-128A-040	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-340	NEW	88-14-113
308-124-021	AMD	88-24-059	308-128A-040	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-340	AMD-P	88-17-098
308-124A-020	AMD-P	88-16-109	308-128B-010	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-340	AMD	88-21-081
308-124A-020	AMD	88-20-036	308-128B-010	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-350	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124A-025	AMD-P	88-16-109	308-128B-020	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-350	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124A-025	AMD	88-20-036	308-128B-020	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-350	NEW	88-23-124
308-124A-025	AMD-P	88-20-089	308-128B-030	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138-360	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124A-025	AMD-E	88-24-031	308-128B-030	AMD	88-19-016	308-138-360	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124A-100	REP-P	88-16-097	308-128B-040	REP-P	88-08-087	308-138-360	NEW	88-23-124
308-124A-100	REP	88-20-037	308-128B-040	REP	88-19-016	308-138A-020	AMD-P	88-03-035
308-124A-110	AMD-P	88-16-097	308-128B-050	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138A-020	AMD	88-09-030
308-124A-110	AMD	88-20-037	308-128B-050	AMD	88-19-016	308-138A-020	AMD-P	88-11-088
308-124A-115	REP-P	88-16-097	308-128B-060	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138A-020	AMD	88-14-113
308-124A-115	REP	88-20-037	308-128B-060	AMD	88-19-016	308-138A-025	AMD-P	88-03-035
308-124A-120	AMD-P	88-16-109	308-128B-090	NEW-P	88-08-087	308-138A-025	AMD	88-09-030
308-124A-120	AMD	88-20-036	308-128B-090	NEW	88-19-016	308-138A-030	NEW-P	88-17-098
308-124A-130	AMD-P	88-02-051	308-128C-010	REP-P	88-08-087	308-138A-030	NEW	88-21-081
308-124A-130	AMD	88-06-039	308-128C-010	REP	88-19-016	308-138A-040	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124A-200	AMD-P	88-16-097	308-128C-040	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138A-040	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124A-200	AMD	88-20-037	308-128C-040	AMD	88-19-016	308-138A-040	NEW	88-23-124
308-124A-420	AMD-P	88-16-097	308-128C-050	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138A-050	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124A-420	AMD	88-20-037	308-128C-050	AMD	88-19-016	308-138A-050	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124A-425	NEW-P	88-16-097	308-128D-010	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138A-060	NEW	88-23-124
308-124A-425	NEW	88-20-037	308-128D-010	AMD	88-19-016	308-138A-060	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124A-430	AMD-P	88-16-109	308-128D-020	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138A-060	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124A-430	AMD	88-20-036	308-128D-020	AMD	88-19-016	308-138A-060	NEW	88-23-124
308-124A-440	AMD-P	88-16-109	308-128D-020	AMD-P	88-18-084	308-138B-110	AMD-P	88-17-098
308-124A-440	AMD	88-20-036	308-128D-020	AMD	88-23-049	308-138B-110	AMD	88-21-081
308-124A-460	AMD-P	88-20-089	308-128D-030	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138B-180	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124A-460	AMD-E	88-24-031	308-128D-030	AMD	88-19-016	308-138B-180	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124B-010	REP-E	88-02-050	308-128D-040	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138B-180	NEW	88-23-124
308-124B-010	REP-P	88-02-051	308-128D-040	AMD-P	88-18-084	308-138B-190	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124B-010	REP	88-06-039	308-128D-040	AMD	88-23-049	308-138B-190	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124B-130	AMD-E	88-02-050	308-128D-060	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138B-190	NEW	88-23-124
308-124B-130	AMD-P	88-02-051	308-128D-060	AMD-P	88-18-084	308-138B-200	NEW-P	88-20-059
308-124B-130	AMD	88-06-039	308-128D-060	AMD	88-23-049	308-138B-200	NEW-E	88-22-075
308-124B-150	NEW-E	88-02-050	308-128D-070	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-138B-200	NEW	88-23-124
308-124B-150	NEW-P	88-02-051	308-128D-070	AMD	88-19-016	308-140-010	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124B-150	NEW	88-06-039	308-128D-080	NEW-P	88-08-087	308-140-010	REP	88-15-031
308-124D-040	AMD-P	88-16-097	308-128D-080	NEW	88-19-016	308-140-020	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124D-040	AMD	88-20-037	308-128E-010	REP-P	88-08-087	308-140-020	REP	88-15-031
308-124D-040	AMD-P	88-20-090	308-128E-010	REP-P	88-18-084	308-140-030	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124D-040	AMD	88-24-058	308-128E-011	NEW-P	88-08-087	308-140-030	REP	88-15-031
308-124D-060	NEW-P	88-20-091	308-128E-011	NEW-P	88-18-084	308-140-040	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124D-060	NEW	88-24-059	308-128F-010	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-140-040	REP	88-15-031
308-124D-065	NEW-P	88-20-091	308-128F-010	AMD	88-19-016	308-140-070	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124D-065	NEW	88-24-059	308-128F-020	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-140-070	REP	88-15-031
308-124E-011	REP-P	88-02-049	308-128F-020	AMD	88-19-016	308-140-100	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124E-011	REP	88-06-040	308-128F-030	REP-P	88-08-087	308-140-100	REP	88-15-031
308-124E-012	NEW-P	88-02-049	308-128F-030	REP	88-19-016	308-140-250	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124E-012	NEW	88-06-040	308-128F-040	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-140-250	REP	88-15-031
308-124E-012	AMD-P	88-20-091	308-128F-040	AMD	88-19-016	308-140-270	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124E-012	AMD	88-24-059	308-128F-050	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-140-270	REP	88-15-031
308-124E-013	NEW-P	88-02-049	308-128F-050	AMD	88-19-016	308-140-300	REP-P	88-11-027
308-124E-013	NEW	88-06-040	308-128F-070	AMD-P	88-08-087	308-140-300	REP	88-15-031
308-124E-013	AMD-E	88-10-057	308-128F-070	AMD	88-19-016	308-150-013	AMD-P	88-05-041
308-124E-013	AMD-P	88-11-089	308-130-320	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-150-013	AMD	88-08-033
308-124E-013	AMD-P	88-16-097	308-130-330	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-150-014	AMD-P	88-21-080
308-124E-013	AMD	88-16-102	308-130-340	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-151-080	AMD-P	88-05-041
308-124E-013	AMD-E	88-17-003	308-130-350	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-151-080	AMD	88-08-033
308-124E-013	AMD	88-20-037	308-130-360	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-151-090	AMD-P	88-05-041
308-124E-014	NEW-P	88-02-049	308-130-370	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-151-090	AMD	88-08-033
308-124E-014	NEW	88-06-040	308-130-380	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-153-010	AMD-P	88-21-080
308-124H-030	AMD-P	88-20-091	308-130-390	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-153-020	AMD-P	88-05-041
308-124H-030	AMD	88-24-059	308-130-400	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-153-020	AMD	88-08-033
308-124H-033	NEW-P	88-20-091	308-130-410	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-153-030	AMD-P	88-05-041
308-124H-033	NEW	88-24-059	308-130-410	NEW	88-22-077	308-153-030	AMD	88-08-033
308-124H-035	AMD-P	88-20-091	308-138-055	AMD-P	88-03-035	308-153-030	AMD-P	88-21-080

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
308-153-045	AMD-P 88-21-080	308-183-010	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-170	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-154-085	NEW-P 88-21-080	308-183-020	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-180	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-156-060	AMD-P 88-05-041	308-183-030	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-190	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-156-060	AMD 88-08-033	308-183-040	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-200	NEW-P 88-17-103
308-156-090	AMD-P 88-05-041	308-183-050	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-200	NEW 88-22-077
308-156-090	AMD 88-08-033	308-183-060	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-210-010	NEW-P 88-05-060
308-156-100	AMD-P 88-05-041	308-183-070	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-210-010	NEW 88-11-025
308-156-100	AMD 88-08-033	308-183-080	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-210-020	NEW-P 88-05-060
308-156-200	NEW-P 88-21-080	308-183-090	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-020	NEW 88-11-025
308-157-010	NEW-P 88-21-080	308-183-090	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-030	NEW-P 88-05-060
308-171-010	AMD-P 88-05-061	308-183-100	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-030	NEW 88-11-025
308-171-010	AMD 88-09-031	308-183-100	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-040	NEW-P 88-05-060
308-171-010	AMD-P 88-22-073	308-183-110	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-040	NEW 88-11-025
308-171-020	AMD-P 88-05-061	308-183-110	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-050	NEW-P 88-05-060
308-171-020	AMD 88-09-031	308-183-120	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-050	NEW 88-11-025
308-171-020	AMD-P 88-22-073	308-183-120	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-060	NEW-P 88-05-060
308-171-040	AMD-P 88-22-073	308-183-130	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-060	NEW 88-11-025
308-171-103	AMD-P 88-09-048	308-183-130	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-080	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-171-320	NEW-P 88-22-073	308-183-140	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-090	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-171-330	NEW-P 88-22-073	308-183-140	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-100	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-010	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-150	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-110	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-020	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-150	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-120	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-030	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-160	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-130	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-040	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-160	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-140	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-050	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-170	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-150	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-060	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-170	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-160	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-173-070	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-180	NEW-P 88-16-071	308-210-200	NEW-P 88-17-103
308-173-080	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-180	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-210-200	NEW 88-22-077
308-173-090	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-183-190	NEW-P 88-21-079	308-220-010	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-173-100	NEW-P 88-17-103	308-183-200	NEW-P 88-17-103	308-220-010	NEW 88-11-079
308-173-100	NEW 88-22-077	308-183-200	NEW 88-22-077	308-220-010	AMD-P 88-22-074
308-173-130	NEW 88-20-075	308-190-030	NEW-P 88-05-059	308-220-010	AMD-W 88-23-090
308-175-080	REP-P 88-14-094	308-190-030	NEW 88-11-024	308-220-010	AMD-P 88-23-091
308-175-080	REP 88-17-043	308-190-040	NEW-P 88-05-059	308-220-020	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-175-200	NEW-P 88-17-102	308-190-040	NEW 88-11-024	308-220-020	NEW 88-11-079
308-175-200	NEW 88-22-076	308-190-050	NEW-P 88-05-059	308-220-030	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-177-010	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-050	NEW 88-11-024	308-220-030	NEW 88-11-079
308-177-020	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-060	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-030	AMD-P 88-22-074
308-177-030	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-070	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-030	AMD-P 88-23-091
308-177-040	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-080	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-030	AMD-W 88-23-090
308-177-050	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-090	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-040	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-177-060	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-100	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-040	NEW 88-11-079
308-177-070	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-110	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-050	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-177-080	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-120	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-050	NEW 88-11-079
308-177-090	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-190-130	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-060	NEW 88-11-079
308-177-100	NEW-P 88-17-103	308-190-140	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-220-070	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-177-100	NEW 88-22-077	308-190-200	NEW-P 88-17-103	308-220-070	NEW 88-11-079
308-177-110	NEW-P 88-23-104	308-190-200	NEW 88-22-077	308-220-080	NEW-P 88-05-062
308-177-120	NEW-P 88-23-104	308-195-020	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-220-090	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-177-130	NEW-P 88-23-104	308-195-020	NEW 88-10-015	308-220-100	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-177-140	NEW-P 88-23-104	308-195-030	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-220-110	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-177-150	NEW-P 88-23-104	308-195-030	NEW 88-10-015	308-220-120	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-120	AMD-P 88-02-061	308-195-040	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-220-130	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-120	AMD 88-07-031	308-195-040	NEW 88-10-015	308-220-140	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-210	AMD-P 88-02-061	308-195-050	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-220-150	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-210	AMD 88-07-031	308-195-050	NEW 88-10-015	308-220-160	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-220	AMD-P 88-02-061	308-195-060	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-220-170	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-220	AMD 88-07-031	308-195-060	NEW 88-10-015	308-220-200	NEW-P 88-17-103
308-180-250	AMD-P 88-02-061	308-195-070	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-220-200	NEW 88-22-077
308-180-250	AMD 88-07-031	308-195-070	NEW 88-10-015	308-230-010	NEW-P 88-05-063
308-180-260	AMD-P 88-11-026	308-195-070	AMD-P 88-19-114	308-230-010	NEW 88-11-078
308-180-260	AMD 88-15-030	308-195-070	AMD 88-23-001	308-230-020	NEW-P 88-05-063
308-180-270	NEW-P 88-02-061	308-195-080	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-230-020	NEW 88-11-078
308-180-270	NEW 88-07-031	308-195-080	NEW 88-10-015	308-230-030	NEW-P 88-05-063
308-180-280	NEW-P 88-02-061	308-195-080	NEW 88-03-034	308-230-030	NEW 88-11-078
308-180-280	NEW 88-07-031	308-195-090	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-230-040	NEW-P 88-05-063
308-180-290	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-090	NEW 88-10-015	308-230-040	NEW-P 88-11-078
308-180-300	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-100	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-230-040	NEW 88-11-078
308-180-310	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-100	NEW 88-10-015	308-230-050	NEW-P 88-05-063
308-180-320	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-110	NEW-P 88-03-034	308-230-050	NEW 88-11-078
308-180-330	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-110	NEW-P 88-14-006	308-230-060	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-340	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-110	NEW-E 88-14-008	308-230-070	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-350	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-120	NEW 88-17-099	308-230-080	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-360	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-120	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-230-090	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-370	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-130	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-230-100	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-400	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-195-140	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-230-110	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-400	NEW-P 88-17-103	308-195-150	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-230-120	NEW-P 88-15-043
308-180-400	NEW 88-22-077	308-195-160	NEW-P 88-15-043	308-230-130	NEW-P 88-15-043

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
308-230-140	NEW-P	88-15-043	308-410-050	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-100	AMD	88-07-025
308-230-200	NEW-P	88-17-103	308-410-060	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-110	AMD-P	88-04-087
308-230-200	NEW	88-22-077	308-410-070	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-110	AMD	88-07-025
308-310-010	NEW-P	88-16-032	314-08-080	AMD-P	88-06-056	314-36-120	REP-P	88-04-087
308-310-010	NEW-E	88-16-033	314-08-080	AMD	88-08-057	314-36-120	REP	88-07-025
308-310-010	NEW-E	88-16-106	314-12-037	NEW-P	88-05-012	314-36-130	AMD-P	88-04-087
308-310-010	NEW	88-20-076	314-12-037	NEW-P	88-13-003	314-36-130	AMD	88-07-025
308-310-020	NEW-P	88-18-080	314-12-038	NEW-P	88-06-054	314-40-040	AMD-P	88-04-083
308-310-030	NEW-P	88-18-080	314-12-038	NEW-P	88-13-003	314-40-040	AMD	88-07-060
308-310-040	NEW-P	88-18-080	314-12-040	AMD-P	88-13-066	314-40-080	AMD-P	88-06-055
308-310-050	NEW-P	88-18-080	314-12-040	AMD	88-16-025	314-40-080	AMD	88-08-056
308-400	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-12-090	AMD-P	88-20-028	314-44-005	AMD-P	88-22-068
308-400	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-12-090	AMD	88-23-032	314-52-114	AMD-P	88-04-060
308-400	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-12-100	AMD	88-04-028	314-52-114	AMD-E	88-04-061
308-400	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-12-145	AMD-E	88-07-076	314-52-114	AMD	88-07-026
308-400-010	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-12-145	AMD-P	88-07-091	314-60-030	AMD-P	88-13-067
308-400-010	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-12-145	AMD-C	88-09-061	314-60-030	AMD	88-16-026
308-400-010	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-12-145	AMD	88-10-049	314-64-030	AMD-P	88-11-084
308-400-010	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-12-170	AMD-P	88-14-036	314-64-030	AMD	88-14-001
308-400-020	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-12-170	AMD	88-17-023	314-64-050	AMD-P	88-11-084
308-400-020	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-12-175	NEW-P	88-17-113	314-64-050	AMD	88-14-001
308-400-020	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-12-175	NEW-C	88-20-084	314-70-020	AMD-P	88-13-065
308-400-020	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-16-040	AMD-P	88-21-069	314-70-020	AMD	88-16-040
308-400-025	REP-E	88-14-044	314-16-040	AMD	88-23-100	315-06-090	AMD-P	88-13-122
308-400-025	REP-P	88-14-045	314-16-070	AMD-P	88-17-094	315-06-090	AMD	88-17-024
308-400-025	REP-E	88-20-025	314-16-070	AMD	88-20-086	315-10-030	AMD-P	88-13-122
308-400-025	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-16-120	AMD-P	88-17-093	315-10-030	AMD	88-17-024
308-400-030	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-16-120	AMD	88-20-085	315-11-310	NEW-P	88-02-062
308-400-030	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-16-120	AMD-P	88-24-035	315-11-310	NEW	88-06-031
308-400-030	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-16-160	AMD-P	88-21-070	315-11-311	NEW-P	88-02-062
308-400-030	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-16-160	AMD	88-23-101	315-11-311	NEW	88-06-031
308-400-040	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-16-190	AMD-P	88-04-082	315-11-312	NEW-P	88-02-062
308-400-044	REP-E	88-14-044	314-16-190	AMD	88-07-058	315-11-312	NEW	88-06-031
308-400-044	REP-P	88-14-045	314-18-030	AMD-P	88-19-019	315-11-320	NEW-P	88-06-049
308-400-044	REP-E	88-20-025	314-18-030	AMD	88-22-026	315-11-320	NEW	88-09-014
308-400-044	REP-P	88-23-121	314-20-020	AMD-P	88-12-075	315-11-321	NEW-P	88-06-049
308-400-046	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-20-020	AMD	88-14-131	315-11-321	NEW	88-09-014
308-400-047	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-20-020	AMD-P	88-20-007	315-11-322	NEW-P	88-06-049
308-400-047	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-20-020	AMD-E	88-20-008	315-11-322	NEW	88-09-014
308-400-047	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-20-020	AMD-W	88-22-045	315-11-330	NEW-P	88-09-069
308-400-047	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-20-020	AMD-P	88-23-052	315-11-330	NEW	88-13-008
308-400-048	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-20-030	AMD-P	88-22-065	315-11-331	NEW-P	88-09-069
308-400-048	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-20-090	AMD-P	88-21-070	315-11-331	NEW	88-13-008
308-400-048	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-20-090	AMD	88-23-101	315-11-332	NEW-P	88-09-069
308-400-048	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-22-010	NEW-P	88-05-007	315-11-332	NEW	88-13-008
308-400-050	REP-E	88-14-044	314-22-010	NEW	88-07-090	315-11-340	NEW-P	88-13-122
308-400-050	REP-P	88-14-045	314-24-040	AMD-P	88-12-074	315-11-340	NEW	88-17-024
308-400-050	REP-E	88-20-025	314-24-040	AMD-C	88-14-130	315-11-341	NEW-P	88-13-122
308-400-050	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-24-040	AMD	88-17-095	315-11-341	NEW	88-17-024
308-400-052	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-24-040	AMD-P	88-23-053	315-11-342	NEW-P	88-13-122
308-400-052	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-24-060	AMD-P	88-08-025	315-11-342	NEW	88-17-024
308-400-052	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-24-060	AMD	88-11-009	315-11-350	NEW-P	88-13-122
308-400-052	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-24-170	AMD-P	88-21-070	315-11-350	NEW	88-17-024
308-400-058	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-24-170	AMD	88-23-101	315-11-351	NEW-P	88-13-122
308-400-058	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-26-010	AMD-P	88-11-001	315-11-351	NEW	88-17-024
308-400-058	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-26-010	AMD	88-13-118	315-11-352	NEW-P	88-13-122
308-400-058	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-30-010	NEW-P	88-17-112	315-11-352	NEW	88-17-024
308-400-059	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-30-010	NEW	88-20-087	315-11-360	NEW-P	88-17-116
308-400-059	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-36-010	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-360	NEW	88-21-051
308-400-059	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-36-010	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-361	NEW-P	88-17-116
308-400-059	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-36-020	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-361	NEW	88-21-051
308-400-080	REP-E	88-14-044	314-36-020	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-362	NEW-P	88-17-116
308-400-080	REP-P	88-14-045	314-36-030	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-362	NEW	88-21-051
308-400-080	REP-E	88-20-025	314-36-030	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-370	NEW-P	88-17-116
308-400-095	AMD-E	88-14-044	314-36-040	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-370	NEW	88-21-051
308-400-095	AMD-P	88-14-045	314-36-040	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-371	NEW-P	88-17-116
308-400-095	AMD-E	88-20-025	314-36-050	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-371	NEW	88-21-051
308-400-095	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-36-050	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-372	NEW-P	88-17-116
308-400-100	AMD-P	88-23-121	314-36-060	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-372	NEW	88-21-051
308-400-120	NEW-E	88-14-044	314-36-060	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-380	NEW-P	88-21-114
308-400-120	NEW-P	88-14-045	314-36-070	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-381	NEW-P	88-21-114
308-400-120	NEW-E	88-20-025	314-36-070	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-382	NEW-P	88-21-114
308-400-120	NEW-P	88-23-121	314-36-080	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-390	NEW-P	88-21-114
308-410-010	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-080	AMD	88-07-025	315-11-391	NEW-P	88-21-114
308-410-020	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-090	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-11-392	NEW-P	88-21-114
308-410-030	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-090	AMD	88-07-025	315-20-090	AMD-P	88-02-062
308-410-040	NEW	88-03-037	314-36-100	AMD-P	88-04-087	315-20-090	AMD	88-06-031

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
315-30-080	AMD-P 88-02-062	326-20-172	AMD-P 88-06-074	344-12-043	NEW 88-14-026
315-32-050	AMD-P 88-02-066	326-20-172	AMD-C 88-09-010	344-12-050	AMD-P 88-07-115
315-32-050	AMD 88-05-030	326-20-172	AMD 88-09-047	344-12-050	AMD 88-14-026
316-02-350	AMD-P 88-06-057	326-20-173	NEW-P 88-14-129	344-12-064	NEW-P 88-07-115
316-02-350	AMD 88-10-019	326-20-173	NEW-C 88-18-006	344-12-064	NEW 88-14-026
316-02-820	AMD-P 88-06-057	326-20-173	NEW 88-22-017	344-12-145	AMD-P 88-07-115
316-02-820	AMD 88-10-019	326-20-180	AMD-P 88-06-074	344-12-145	AMD 88-14-026
316-45-110	AMD-P 88-06-057	326-20-180	AMD-C 88-09-010	352-12-010	AMD-P 88-04-075
316-45-110	AMD 88-10-019	326-20-180	AMD 88-09-047	352-12-010	AMD 88-07-074
316-45-550	AMD-P 88-06-057	326-20-185	AMD-P 88-06-074	352-12-020	AMD-P 88-04-075
316-45-550	AMD 88-10-019	326-20-185	AMD-C 88-09-010	352-12-020	AMD 88-07-074
320-16-020	NEW 88-04-080	326-20-185	AMD 88-09-047	352-32-035	AMD-P 88-04-075
320-18-030	NEW-P 88-09-068	326-30-03901	NEW-P 88-14-047	352-32-035	AMD 88-07-074
320-18-030	NEW 88-14-112	326-30-03901	NEW 88-17-045	352-32-045	AMD-P 88-04-075
326-02-030	AMD 88-08-031	326-30-060	AMD-E 88-09-059	352-32-045	AMD 88-07-074
326-02-030	AMD-P 88-09-060	326-30-060	AMD-P 88-14-047	352-32-075	NEW-P 88-22-053
326-02-030	AMD 88-12-060	326-30-060	AMD-E 88-14-048	352-32-095	NEW-P 88-16-089
326-02-040	NEW-P 88-14-129	326-30-060	AMD 88-17-045	352-32-095	NEW 88-19-087
326-02-040	NEW-C 88-18-006	332-12-150	AMD-P 88-17-007	352-32-15001	NEW-P 88-06-095
326-02-040	NEW 88-22-017	332-12-150	AMD 88-20-056	352-32-15001	NEW 88-10-017
326-02-050	NEW-P 88-14-129	332-26-010	NEW-E 88-09-007	352-32-250	AMD-P 88-04-075
326-02-050	NEW-C 88-18-006	332-26-020	NEW-E 88-16-023	352-32-250	AMD 88-07-074
326-02-050	NEW 88-22-017	332-26-040	NEW-E 88-16-023	352-32-25001	AMD-P 88-19-104
326-02-060	NEW-P 88-14-129	332-26-050	NEW-E 88-16-023	352-32-25001	AMD 88-22-050
326-02-060	NEW-C 88-18-006	332-26-060	NEW-E 88-16-023	352-32-251	AMD-P 88-16-089
326-02-060	NEW 88-22-017	332-26-080	NEW-E 88-14-073	352-32-251	AMD 88-19-087
326-02-070	NEW-P 88-14-129	332-26-080	REP-E 88-16-024	352-32-252	AMD-P 88-16-089
326-02-070	NEW-C 88-18-006	332-26-081	NEW-E 88-16-024	352-32-252	AMD 88-19-087
326-02-070	NEW 88-22-017	332-26-081	REP-E 88-18-029	352-32-285	AMD-P 88-12-066
326-02-080	NEW-P 88-14-129	332-26-082	NEW-E 88-16-024	352-32-285	AMD 88-15-068
326-02-080	NEW-C 88-18-006	332-26-082	REP-E 88-18-029	352-36-040	AMD-P 88-06-095
326-02-080	NEW 88-22-017	332-26-083	NEW-E 88-16-024	352-36-040	AMD 88-10-017
326-02-090	NEW-P 88-14-129	332-26-083	REP-E 88-18-029	352-74-030	AMD-P 88-04-075
326-02-090	NEW-C 88-18-006	332-26-084	NEW-E 88-16-041	352-74-030	AMD 88-07-074
326-02-090	NEW 88-22-017	332-26-084	REP-E 88-17-006	352-74-040	AMD-P 88-04-075
326-20-080	AMD-P 88-09-060	332-26-085	NEW-E 88-16-041	352-74-040	AMD 88-07-074
326-20-080	AMD 88-12-060	332-26-085	REP-E 88-17-006	352-74-060	AMD-P 88-04-075
326-20-090	REP-E 88-06-029	332-26-086	NEW-E 88-16-041	352-74-060	AMD 88-07-074
326-20-090	REP 88-06-030	332-26-086	REP-E 88-18-029	352-74-070	AMD-P 88-04-075
326-20-091	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-087	NEW-E 88-16-067	352-74-070	AMD 88-07-074
326-20-091	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-087	REP-E 88-18-029	356-05-005	REP-P 88-04-066
326-20-091	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-088	NEW-E 88-17-006	356-05-005	REP 88-18-096
326-20-091	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-088	REP-E 88-18-029	356-05-123	NEW-C 88-06-014
326-20-092	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-089	NEW-E 88-17-006	356-05-123	NEW-C 88-07-040
326-20-092	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-089	REP-E 88-18-029	356-05-128	NEW 88-03-042
326-20-092	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-090	NEW-E 88-18-014	356-05-145	REP-P 88-04-066
326-20-092	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-090	REP-E 88-18-029	356-05-145	AMD-P 88-18-094
326-20-093	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-090a	NEW-E 88-18-029	356-05-145	AMD 88-21-028
326-20-093	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-091	NEW-E 88-18-072	356-05-238	NEW-P 88-24-040
326-20-093	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-091	REP-E 88-19-022	356-05-311	NEW-P 88-04-032
326-20-093	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-091a	NEW-E 88-19-011	356-05-311	NEW-C 88-07-041
326-20-094	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-091a	REP-E 88-19-022	356-05-320	AMD-P 88-04-068
326-20-094	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-091b	NEW-E 88-19-022	356-05-320	AMD-P 88-14-065
326-20-094	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-092	NEW-E 88-19-052	356-05-320	AMD 88-18-096
326-20-094	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-092	REP-E 88-20-016	356-05-330	REP-P 88-04-066
326-20-095	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-092a	NEW-E 88-20-009	356-05-330	REP 88-18-096
326-20-095	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-092a	REP-E 88-20-016	356-05-360	AMD 88-03-041
326-20-095	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-092b	NEW-E 88-20-016	356-05-415	AMD-P 88-04-068
326-20-095	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-092b	REP-E 88-20-026	356-05-415	AMD-P 88-14-065
326-20-096	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-092c	NEW-E 88-20-026	356-05-415	AMD 88-18-096
326-20-096	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-092c	REP-E 88-21-052	356-05-450	REP-C 88-07-044
326-20-096	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-092d	NEW-E 88-21-052	356-05-450	REP-P 88-10-030
326-20-096	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-092e	REP-E 88-22-048	356-05-450	REP-C 88-13-056
326-20-097	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-092e	NEW-E 88-22-048	356-05-450	REP-C 88-15-059
326-20-097	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-092e	AMD-E 88-23-006	356-05-450	REP-C 88-18-009
326-20-097	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-093	NEW-E 88-19-052	356-05-450	AMD-P 88-22-066
326-20-097	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-093	REP-E 88-19-083	356-05-451	NEW-C 88-07-044
326-20-098	NEW-E 88-06-043	332-26-093a	NEW-E 88-19-083	356-05-451	NEW-P 88-10-030
326-20-098	NEW-P 88-06-074	332-26-093a	REP-E 88-20-016	356-05-451	NEW-C 88-13-056
326-20-098	NEW-C 88-09-010	332-26-093b	NEW-E 88-20-009	356-05-451	NEW-C 88-15-059
326-20-098	NEW 88-09-047	332-26-094	NEW-E 88-21-052	356-05-451	NEW-C 88-18-009
326-20-140	AMD-P 88-14-129	332-26-094	REP-E 88-22-048	356-05-452	NEW-C 88-07-044
326-20-140	AMD-C 88-18-006	332-30-166	AMD-P 88-08-074	356-05-452	NEW-P 88-10-030
326-20-140	AMD 88-22-017	332-30-166	AMD 88-13-082	356-05-452	NEW-C 88-13-056
326-20-171	AMD-P 88-06-074	332-100-060	REP-P 88-19-120	356-05-452	NEW-C 88-15-059
326-20-171	AMD-C 88-09-010	332-100-060	REP 88-22-049	356-05-452	NEW-C 88-18-009
326-20-171	AMD 88-09-047	344-12-043	NEW-P 88-07-115	356-05-455	REP-C 88-07-044

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
356-05-455	REP-P	88-10-030	356-18-120	AMD	88-07-046	356-42-010	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-05-455	REP-C	88-13-056	356-18-130	REP-E	88-04-030	356-42-010	AMD-C	88-18-009
356-05-455	REP-C	88-15-059	356-18-130	REP-P	88-04-065	356-42-010	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-05-455	REP-C	88-18-009	356-18-130	REP	88-07-045	356-42-020	AMD-C	88-07-043
356-05-455	REP-P	88-22-066	356-18-140	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-42-020	AMD-P	88-10-029
356-05-456	NEW-C	88-07-044	356-18-150	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-42-020	AMD-C	88-13-054
356-05-456	NEW-P	88-10-030	356-18-160	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-42-020	AMD-C	88-15-058
356-05-456	NEW-C	88-13-056	356-18-180	REP-P	88-24-040	356-42-020	AMD	88-18-010
356-05-456	NEW-C	88-15-059	356-18-190	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-020	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-05-456	NEW-C	88-18-009	356-18-190	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-030	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-05-456	NEW-P	88-22-066	356-18-190	REP-P	88-18-094	356-42-040	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-05-460	REP-C	88-07-044	356-18-190	REP	88-21-028	356-42-042	NEW-C	88-07-043
356-05-460	REP-P	88-10-030	356-18-220	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-42-042	NEW-P	88-10-029
356-05-460	REP-C	88-13-056	356-26-050	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-042	NEW-C	88-13-054
356-05-460	REP-C	88-15-059	356-26-050	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-042	NEW-C	88-15-058
356-05-460	REP-C	88-18-009	356-26-050	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-042	NEW	88-18-010
356-05-461	NEW-C	88-07-044	356-26-060	AMD-P	88-04-031	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-07-043
356-05-461	NEW-P	88-10-030	356-26-080	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-07-044
356-05-461	NEW-C	88-13-056	356-26-080	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-043	AMD-P	88-10-029
356-05-461	NEW-C	88-15-059	356-26-080	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-043	AMD-P	88-10-030
356-05-461	NEW-C	88-18-009	356-26-120	AMD-P	88-18-095	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-13-056
356-05-461	NEW-P	88-22-066	356-26-120	AMD-C	88-21-065	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-13-054
356-05-465	AMD-P	88-08-009	356-30-015	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-15-058
356-05-465	AMD-C	88-11-038	356-30-015	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-05-465	AMD	88-14-070	356-30-015	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-043	AMD-C	88-18-009
356-10-030	AMD-P	88-10-031	356-30-020	REP-P	88-04-066	356-42-043	AMD	88-18-010
356-10-030	AMD-C	88-13-055	356-30-020	REP	88-18-096	356-42-043	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-10-030	AMD	88-15-060	356-30-025	NEW-P	88-18-094	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-07-043
356-10-050	AMD-P	88-10-031	356-30-025	NEW	88-21-028	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-07-044
356-10-050	AMD-C	88-13-055	356-30-025	AMD-P	88-24-041	356-42-045	AMD-P	88-10-029
356-10-050	AMD-E	88-14-069	356-30-030	REP-P	88-04-066	356-42-045	AMD-P	88-10-030
356-10-050	AMD-P	88-14-092	356-30-030	REP	88-18-096	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-13-056
356-10-050	AMD	88-15-060	356-30-040	REP-P	88-04-066	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-13-054
356-10-050	AMD	88-17-041	356-30-040	REP	88-18-096	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-15-058
356-14-062	AMD-P	88-22-052	356-30-050	REP-P	88-04-066	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-14-240	AMD-P	88-08-008	356-30-050	AMD-P	88-18-094	356-42-045	AMD-C	88-18-009
356-14-240	AMD-C	88-11-039	356-30-050	AMD	88-21-028	356-42-045	AMD	88-18-010
356-14-240	AMD-C	88-13-068	356-30-065	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-045	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-14-240	AMD-C	88-14-025	356-30-065	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-047	AMD-C	88-07-044
356-14-240	AMD-C	88-21-042	356-30-065	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-047	AMD-P	88-10-030
356-15-020	AMD	88-05-028	356-30-067	NEW-P	88-04-068	356-42-047	AMD-C	88-13-056
356-15-063	NEW-P	88-14-066	356-30-067	NEW-P	88-14-065	356-42-047	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-15-063	NEW-E	88-14-068	356-30-067	NEW	88-18-096	356-42-047	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-15-063	NEW-E	88-15-061	356-30-067	AMD-P	88-24-041	356-42-049	NEW-C	88-07-043
356-15-063	NEW	88-17-046	356-30-070	REP-P	88-04-066	356-42-049	NEW-P	88-10-029
356-15-063	NEW	88-19-023	356-30-070	REP	88-18-096	356-42-049	NEW-C	88-13-054
356-15-080	AMD-P	88-14-067	356-30-080	REP-P	88-04-066	356-42-049	NEW-C	88-15-058
356-15-080	AMD-C	88-17-026	356-30-080	REP	88-18-096	356-42-049	NEW	88-18-010
356-15-080	AMD-C	88-21-041	356-30-140	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-050	AMD-C	88-07-044
356-15-085	AMD-P	88-04-035	356-30-140	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-050	AMD-P	88-10-030
356-15-085	AMD-C	88-07-042	356-30-140	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-050	AMD-C	88-13-056
356-15-090	AMD-P	88-08-008	356-30-140	AMD-P	88-24-041	356-42-050	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-15-090	AMD-C	88-11-039	356-30-145	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-050	AMD-C	88-18-009
356-15-090	AMD-C	88-13-068	356-30-145	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-050	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-15-090	AMD-C	88-17-025	356-30-145	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-055	AMD-C	88-07-043
356-15-090	AMD-C	88-21-042	356-30-260	AMD-C	88-03-039	356-42-055	AMD-P	88-10-029
356-15-100	AMD-P	88-04-033	356-30-260	AMD	88-06-001	356-42-055	AMD-C	88-13-054
356-15-110	AMD-P	88-04-033	356-30-305	AMD-C	88-03-039	356-42-055	AMD-C	88-15-058
356-15-115	NEW-P	88-04-033	356-30-305	AMD	88-06-001	356-42-055	AMD	88-18-010
356-18-020	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-30-330	AMD-P	88-04-068	356-42-055	AMD-P	88-22-066
356-18-025	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-30-330	AMD-P	88-14-065	356-42-060	AMD-C	88-07-044
356-18-030	AMD-P	88-06-022	356-30-330	AMD	88-18-096	356-42-060	AMD-P	88-10-030
356-18-030	AMD-C	88-09-035	356-34-010	AMD-P	88-04-067	356-42-060	AMD-C	88-13-056
356-18-030	AMD-E	88-11-035	356-34-020	AMD	88-03-043	356-42-060	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-18-030	AMD	88-11-036	356-34-030	AMD	88-03-043	356-42-060	AMD-C	88-18-009
356-18-030	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-040	AMD	88-03-043	356-42-070	AMD-C	88-07-044
356-18-040	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-045	NEW	88-03-043	356-42-070	AMD-P	88-10-030
356-18-050	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-050	AMD	88-03-043	356-42-070	AMD-C	88-13-056
356-18-060	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-150	REP-P	88-08-058	356-42-070	AMD-C	88-15-059
356-18-070	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-150	REP	88-11-037	356-42-070	AMD-C	88-18-009
356-18-080	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-160	AMD-P	88-18-065	356-42-082	AMD-C	88-07-043
356-18-090	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-160	AMD	88-21-064	356-42-082	AMD-P	88-10-029
356-18-110	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-34-170	AMD-P	88-08-058	356-42-082	AMD-C	88-13-054
356-18-114	NEW-P	88-04-032	356-34-170	AMD	88-11-037	356-42-082	AMD-C	88-15-058
356-18-114	NEW-C	88-07-041	356-42-010	AMD-C	88-07-044	356-42-082	AMD	88-18-010
356-18-116	AMD-P	88-24-040	356-42-010	AMD-P	88-10-030	356-42-084	AMD-C	88-07-043
356-18-120	AMD-P	88-04-034	356-42-010	AMD-C	88-13-056	356-42-084	AMD-P	88-10-029

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
356-42-084	AMD-C	88-13-054	360-16-251	NEW-C	88-23-040	360-46-120	AMD-P	88-13-093
356-42-084	AMD-C	88-15-058	360-16-265	NEW-P	88-24-046	360-46-120	AMD-W	88-14-029
356-42-105	NEW-C	88-07-043	360-17-055	AMD-P	88-24-046	360-46-120	AMD-P	88-16-070
356-42-105	NEW-P	88-10-029	360-18-010	AMD-P	88-11-082	360-46-120	AMD	88-21-025
356-42-105	NEW-C	88-13-054	360-18-010	AMD	88-14-042	360-46-130	AMD-P	88-11-082
356-42-105	NEW-C	88-15-058	360-18-020	AMD-P	88-03-066	360-46-130	AMD-P	88-13-093
356-42-105	NEW	88-18-010	360-18-020	AMD	88-07-011	360-46-130	AMD-W	88-14-029
356-42-105	REP-P	88-22-066	360-18-020	AMD-E	88-10-033	360-46-130	AMD-P	88-16-070
356-46-125	NEW	88-03-042	360-18-020	AMD-P	88-11-082	360-46-130	AMD	88-21-025
356-47-030	AMD-P	88-04-068	360-18-020	AMD	88-14-042	360-46-160	NEW-P	88-13-093
356-47-030	AMD-P	88-14-065	360-18-020	AMD-E	88-23-080	360-46-160	NEW-W	88-14-029
356-47-030	AMD	88-18-096	360-18-020	AMD-P	88-24-046	360-46-160	NEW-P	88-16-070
356-47-045	AMD-P	88-04-068	360-18-025	NEW-P	88-03-066	360-46-160	NEW	88-21-025
356-47-045	AMD-P	88-14-065	360-18-025	NEW	88-07-011	360-52-050	AMD-P	88-11-080
356-47-045	AMD	88-18-096	360-36-425	NEW	88-06-060	360-52-050	AMD	88-14-043
360-08-005	NEW-P	88-03-036	360-36-425	AMD-P	88-07-097	360-52-060	AMD-P	88-11-080
360-08-005	NEW	88-06-026	360-36-425	AMD	88-11-007	360-52-060	AMD	88-14-043
360-08-030	REP-P	88-03-036	360-36-500	NEW-P	88-19-075	360-52-090	AMD-P	88-11-080
360-08-030	REP	88-06-026	360-36-500	NEW-C	88-23-040	360-52-090	AMD	88-14-043
360-08-070	REP-P	88-03-036	360-36-500	NEW-C	88-24-016	360-52-110	NEW-P	88-24-046
360-08-070	REP	88-06-026	360-38-010	NEW-E	88-10-032	360-60-010	NEW-P	88-03-036
360-08-080	REP-P	88-03-036	360-38-010	NEW-P	88-11-082	360-60-010	NEW	88-06-026
360-08-080	REP	88-06-026	360-38-010	NEW	88-14-096	360-60-020	NEW-P	88-03-036
360-08-090	REP-P	88-03-036	360-38-020	NEW-E	88-10-032	360-60-020	NEW	88-06-026
360-08-090	REP	88-06-026	360-38-020	NEW-P	88-11-082	360-60-030	NEW-P	88-03-036
360-08-100	REP-P	88-03-036	360-38-020	NEW	88-14-096	360-60-030	NEW	88-06-026
360-08-100	REP	88-06-026	360-38-030	NEW-E	88-10-032	360-60-040	NEW-P	88-03-036
360-08-110	REP-P	88-03-036	360-38-030	NEW-P	88-11-082	360-60-040	NEW	88-06-026
360-08-110	REP	88-06-026	360-38-030	NEW	88-14-096	365-170-010	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-120	REP-P	88-03-036	360-40-040	AMD-P	88-16-100	365-170-010	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-120	REP	88-06-026	360-40-040	AMD	88-20-038	365-170-030	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-130	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-010	AMD-P	88-11-082	365-170-030	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-130	REP	88-06-026	360-46-010	AMD-P	88-13-093	365-170-040	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-140	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-010	AMD-W	88-14-029	365-170-040	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-140	REP	88-06-026	360-46-010	AMD-P	88-16-070	365-170-050	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-410	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-010	AMD	88-21-025	365-170-050	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-410	REP	88-06-026	360-46-020	AMD-P	88-11-082	365-170-060	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-430	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-020	AMD-P	88-13-093	365-170-060	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-430	REP	88-06-026	360-46-020	AMD-W	88-14-029	365-170-070	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-440	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-020	AMD-P	88-16-070	365-170-070	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-440	REP	88-06-026	360-46-020	AMD	88-21-025	365-170-080	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-450	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-030	AMD-P	88-11-082	365-170-080	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-450	REP	88-06-026	360-46-030	AMD-P	88-13-093	365-170-090	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-460	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-030	AMD-W	88-14-029	365-170-090	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-460	REP	88-06-026	360-46-030	AMD-P	88-16-070	365-170-100	AMD-P	88-15-075
360-08-470	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-030	AMD	88-21-025	365-170-100	AMD	88-18-039
360-08-470	REP	88-06-026	360-46-040	AMD-P	88-11-082	365-180-010	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-480	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-040	AMD-P	88-13-093	365-180-020	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-480	REP	88-06-026	360-46-040	AMD-W	88-14-029	365-180-030	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-490	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-040	AMD-P	88-16-070	365-180-040	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-490	REP	88-06-026	360-46-040	AMD	88-21-025	365-180-050	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-500	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-050	AMD-P	88-11-082	365-180-060	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-500	REP	88-06-026	360-46-050	AMD-P	88-13-093	365-180-070	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-510	REP-P	88-03-036	360-46-050	AMD-W	88-14-029	365-180-080	NEW	88-02-042
360-08-510	REP	88-06-026	360-46-050	AMD-P	88-16-070	365-180-090	NEW	88-02-042
360-10-010	AMD	88-06-060	360-46-050	AMD	88-21-025	372-32-010	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-10-050	AMD	88-06-060	360-46-060	AMD-P	88-11-082	372-32-010	AMD	88-13-029
360-10-060	AMD	88-06-060	360-46-060	AMD-P	88-13-093	372-36-010	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-12-160	NEW-P	88-19-075	360-46-060	AMD-W	88-14-029	372-36-010	AMD	88-13-029
360-12-160	NEW	88-23-058	360-46-060	AMD-P	88-16-070	372-36-020	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-13-066	AMD-P	88-07-097	360-46-060	AMD	88-21-025	372-36-020	AMD	88-13-029
360-13-066	AMD	88-11-007	360-46-070	AMD-P	88-11-082	372-36-030	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-025	AMD-P	88-11-081	360-46-070	AMD-P	88-13-093	372-36-030	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-025	AMD	88-14-041	360-46-070	AMD-W	88-14-029	372-36-060	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-094	NEW-P	88-11-081	360-46-070	AMD-P	88-16-070	372-36-060	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-094	NEW-P	88-19-075	360-46-070	AMD	88-21-025	372-36-060	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-094	NEW	88-23-058	360-46-070	AMD	88-21-025	372-52-010	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-096	AMD-P	88-11-081	360-46-090	AMD-P	88-11-082	372-52-010	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-096	AMD-P	88-19-075	360-46-090	AMD-P	88-13-093	372-52-020	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-096	AMD	88-23-058	360-46-090	AMD-W	88-14-029	372-52-020	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-250	AMD-P	88-19-075	360-46-090	AMD-P	88-16-070	372-52-030	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-250	REP-P	88-19-075	360-46-100	AMD	88-21-025	372-52-030	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-250	REP-P	88-20-092	360-46-100	AMD-P	88-11-082	372-52-040	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-250	REP-C	88-23-040	360-46-100	AMD-P	88-13-093	372-52-040	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-250	REP-P	88-24-046	360-46-100	AMD-W	88-14-029	372-52-050	AMD-P	88-10-061
360-16-251	NEW-P	88-19-075	360-46-100	AMD-P	88-16-070	372-52-050	AMD	88-13-029
360-16-251	NEW-P	88-20-092	360-46-120	AMD	88-21-025	372-52-060	AMD-P	88-10-061
				AMD-P	88-11-082	372-52-060	AMD	88-13-029

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
372-52-070	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-060	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-205	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-52-070	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-060	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-205	AMD 88-07-012
372-68-010	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-065	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-205	AMD-P 88-15-046
372-68-010	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-065	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-210	AMD-P 88-02-055
372-68-020	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-065	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-210	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-68-020	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-070	REP-E 88-14-085	388-14-210	AMD 88-07-012
372-68-030	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-070	REP-P 88-14-138	388-14-220	AMD-P 88-02-055
372-68-030	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-070	REP 88-18-031	388-14-220	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-68-040	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-080	REP-E 88-14-085	388-14-220	AMD 88-07-012
372-68-040	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-080	REP-P 88-14-138	388-14-270	AMD-P 88-02-055
372-68-050	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-080	REP 88-18-031	388-14-270	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-68-050	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-090	REP-E 88-14-085	388-14-270	AMD 88-07-012
372-68-060	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-090	REP-P 88-14-138	388-14-270	AMD-P 88-15-046
372-68-060	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-090	REP 88-18-031	388-14-302	AMD-P 88-02-055
372-68-070	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-100	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-302	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-68-070	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-100	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-302	AMD 88-07-012
372-68-080	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-100	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-305	AMD-P 88-02-055
372-68-080	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-105	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-305	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-68-090	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-105	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-305	AMD 88-07-012
372-68-090	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-105	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-310	AMD-P 88-02-055
372-68-100	AMD-P 88-10-061	388-11-115	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-310	AMD-E 88-02-056
372-68-100	AMD 88-13-029	388-11-115	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-310	AMD 88-07-012
383-06-110	AMD-E 88-18-048	388-11-115	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-320	REP-P 88-02-055
383-06-110	AMD-P 88-21-099	388-11-120	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-320	REP-E 88-02-056
383-07-010	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-120	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-320	REP 88-07-012
383-07-010	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-120	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-325	REP-P 88-02-055
383-07-020	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-130	REP-E 88-14-085	388-14-325	REP-E 88-02-056
383-07-020	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-130	REP-P 88-14-138	388-14-325	REP 88-07-012
383-07-030	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-130	REP 88-18-031	388-14-370	AMD-P 88-02-055
383-07-030	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-140	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-370	AMD-E 88-02-056
383-07-040	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-140	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-370	AMD 88-07-012
383-07-040	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-140	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-385	AMD-P 88-02-055
383-07-045	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-150	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-385	AMD-E 88-02-056
383-07-045	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-150	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-385	AMD 88-07-012
383-07-050	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-150	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-385	AMD-P 88-15-046
383-07-050	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-155	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-405	AMD-P 88-02-055
383-07-060	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-155	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-405	AMD-E 88-02-056
383-07-060	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-155	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-405	AMD 88-07-012
383-07-070	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-180	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-415	AMD-P 88-02-055
383-07-070	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-180	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-415	AMD-E 88-02-056
383-07-080	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-180	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-415	AMD 88-07-012
383-07-080	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-185	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-420	NEW-P 88-02-055
383-07-090	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-185	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-420	NEW-E 88-02-056
383-07-090	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-185	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-420	NEW 88-07-012
383-07-100	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-190	REP-E 88-14-085	388-14-425	NEW-P 88-02-055
383-07-100	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-190	REP-P 88-14-138	388-14-425	NEW-E 88-02-056
383-07-110	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-190	REP 88-18-031	388-14-425	NEW 88-07-012
383-07-110	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-195	NEW-E 88-14-085	388-14-425	AMD-P 88-15-046
383-07-120	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-195	NEW-P 88-14-138	388-14-430	NEW-P 88-02-055
383-07-120	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-195	NEW 88-18-031	388-14-430	NEW-E 88-02-056
383-07-130	NEW-P 88-12-078	388-11-200	NEW-E 88-14-085	388-14-430	NEW 88-07-012
383-07-130	NEW 88-15-033	388-11-200	NEW-P 88-14-138	388-15-170	AMD-P 88-20-078
388-11-010	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-11-200	NEW 88-18-031	388-15-170	AMD-E 88-20-081
388-11-010	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-11-205	NEW-E 88-14-085	388-15-170	AMD 88-24-023
388-11-010	AMD 88-18-031	388-11-205	NEW-P 88-14-138	388-15-207	AMD-P 88-02-065
388-11-011	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-11-205	NEW 88-18-031	388-15-207	AMD 88-06-088
388-11-011	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-11-210	NEW-E 88-14-085	388-15-207	AMD-P 88-13-105
388-11-011	AMD 88-18-031	388-11-210	NEW-P 88-14-138	388-15-207	AMD 88-17-064
388-11-015	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-11-210	NEW 88-18-031	388-15-208	AMD-P 88-02-065
388-11-015	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-11-215	NEW-E 88-14-085	388-15-208	AMD 88-06-088
388-11-015	AMD 88-18-031	388-11-215	NEW-P 88-14-138	388-15-208	AMD-P 88-13-105
388-11-030	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-11-215	NEW 88-18-031	388-15-208	AMD 88-17-064
388-11-030	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-010	AMD-P 88-02-055	388-15-209	AMD-P 88-02-065
388-11-030	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-010	AMD-E 88-02-056	388-15-209	AMD 88-06-088
388-11-040	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-010	AMD 88-07-012	388-15-209	AMD-P 88-13-105
388-11-040	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-020	AMD-P 88-02-055	388-15-209	AMD 88-17-064
388-11-040	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-020	AMD-E 88-02-056	388-15-212	AMD-P 88-02-065
388-11-045	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-020	AMD 88-07-012	388-15-212	AMD 88-06-088
388-11-045	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-030	AMD-P 88-02-055	388-15-212	AMD-P 88-13-105
388-11-045	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-030	AMD-E 88-02-056	388-15-212	AMD 88-17-064
388-11-050	REP-E 88-14-085	388-14-030	AMD 88-07-012	388-15-213	AMD-P 88-02-065
388-11-050	REP-P 88-14-138	388-14-030	AMD-P 88-15-046	388-15-213	AMD 88-06-088
388-11-050	REP 88-18-031	388-14-200	AMD-P 88-02-055	388-15-213	AMD-P 88-13-105
388-11-055	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-200	AMD-E 88-02-056	388-15-213	AMD 88-17-064
388-11-055	AMD-P 88-14-138	388-14-200	AMD 88-07-012	388-15-214	NEW-P 88-02-065
388-11-055	AMD 88-18-031	388-14-200	AMD-P 88-15-046	388-15-214	NEW 88-06-088
388-11-060	AMD-E 88-14-085	388-14-205	AMD-P 88-02-055	388-15-214	AMD-P 88-12-031

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
388-15-214	AMD	88-19-031	388-28-370	AMD	88-19-029	388-38-110	AMD-P	88-04-038
388-15-215	AMD-P	88-02-065	388-28-425	AMD-E	88-15-076	388-38-110	AMD	88-07-118
388-15-215	AMD-P	88-08-059	388-28-425	AMD-P	88-15-078	388-38-120	AMD-P	88-21-036
388-15-215	AMD	88-11-062	388-28-425	AMD	88-19-029	388-38-172	AMD-P	88-23-102
388-15-217	AMD-P	88-02-065	388-28-435	AMD	88-05-013	388-40	AMD-P	88-10-042
388-15-217	AMD-P	88-08-059	388-28-440	AMD-P	88-04-045	388-40	AMD-E	88-10-045
388-15-217	AMD	88-11-062	388-28-440	AMD	88-07-052	388-40	AMD	88-13-110
388-15-690	NEW	88-03-020	388-28-475	AMD-P	88-04-045	388-40-040	AMD-P	88-10-042
388-15-695	NEW	88-03-020	388-28-475	AMD	88-07-052	388-40-040	AMD-E	88-10-045
388-15-700	NEW	88-03-020	388-28-480	AMD	88-07-117	388-40-040	AMD	88-13-110
388-15-705	NEW	88-03-020	388-28-482	AMD	88-07-117	388-40-080	AMD-P	88-07-053
388-15-710	NEW	88-03-020	388-28-482	AMD-P	88-16-052	388-40-080	AMD-E	88-07-054
388-15-715	NEW	88-03-020	388-28-482	AMD-E	88-16-062	388-40-080	AMD-W	88-08-001
388-19-005	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-28-482	AMD	88-19-068	388-40-080	AMD-P	88-10-042
388-19-005	NEW	88-14-037	388-28-483	AMD	88-07-117	388-40-080	AMD-E	88-10-045
388-19-015	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-28-500	AMD-P	88-21-035	388-40-080	AMD	88-13-110
388-19-015	NEW	88-14-037	388-28-560	AMD	88-04-018	388-40-080	AMD-P	88-21-037
388-19-020	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-28-575	AMD-P	88-18-052	388-40-080	AMD-E	88-21-040
388-19-020	NEW	88-14-037	388-28-575	AMD-E	88-19-028	388-40-090	AMD-P	88-07-053
388-19-020	AMD-P	88-15-077	388-28-575	AMD	88-22-036	388-40-090	AMD-E	88-07-054
388-19-020	AMD	88-18-022	388-29-001	AMD-P	88-14-137	388-40-090	AMD-W	88-08-001
388-19-025	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-29-001	AMD	88-18-056	388-40-090	AMD-P	88-10-042
388-19-025	NEW	88-14-037	388-29-100	AMD	88-04-019	388-40-090	AMD-E	88-10-045
388-19-030	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-29-100	AMD-P	88-14-137	388-40-090	AMD	88-13-110
388-19-030	NEW	88-14-037	388-29-100	AMD	88-18-056	388-40-095	NEW-P	88-10-042
388-19-035	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-29-125	AMD	88-04-019	388-40-095	NEW-E	88-10-045
388-19-035	NEW	88-14-037	388-29-125	AMD-P	88-13-106	388-40-095	NEW	88-13-110
388-19-040	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-29-125	AMD-E	88-14-054	388-40-100	AMD-P	88-07-053
388-19-040	NEW	88-14-037	388-29-125	AMD	88-16-078	388-40-100	AMD-E	88-07-054
388-19-045	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-29-130	AMD	88-04-019	388-40-100	AMD-W	88-08-001
388-19-045	NEW	88-14-037	388-29-130	AMD-P	88-14-137	388-40-100	AMD-P	88-10-042
388-19-045	AMD-P	88-15-077	388-29-130	AMD-E	88-18-057	388-40-100	AMD-E	88-10-045
388-19-045	AMD	88-18-022	388-29-130	AMD	88-19-032	388-40-100	AMD	88-13-110
388-19-050	NEW-P	88-10-043	388-29-145	REP-P	88-04-037	388-40-100	AMD-P	88-21-037
388-19-050	NEW	88-14-037	388-29-145	REP-E	88-04-040	388-40-100	AMD-E	88-21-040
388-19-050	AMD-P	88-15-077	388-29-145	REP	88-07-062	388-40-110	NEW-P	88-07-053
388-19-050	AMD	88-18-022	388-29-146	REP	88-04-019	388-40-110	NEW-E	88-07-054
388-24-040	AMD-P	88-04-036	388-29-260	AMD-P	88-17-123	388-40-110	NEW-W	88-08-001
388-24-040	AMD-E	88-04-039	388-29-260	AMD-E	88-18-055	388-40-110	NEW-P	88-10-042
388-24-040	AMD	88-09-039	388-29-260	AMD	88-20-082	388-40-110	NEW-E	88-10-045
388-24-050	AMD-P	88-04-036	388-29-280	AMD	88-04-019	388-40-110	NEW	88-13-110
388-24-050	AMD-E	88-04-039	388-29-280	AMD-P	88-14-137	388-40-110	AMD-P	88-19-127
388-24-050	AMD	88-09-039	388-29-280	AMD-E	88-18-057	388-40-110	AMD	88-23-020
388-24-050	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-29-280	AMD	88-19-032	388-42-150	AMD-P	88-15-009
388-24-050	AMD	88-24-009	388-33-135	AMD	88-07-117	388-42-150	AMD	88-18-023
388-24-055	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-33-195	AMD-P	88-16-057	388-42-150	AMD-E	88-18-055
388-24-055	AMD	88-24-009	388-33-195	AMD-E	88-16-058	388-44-035	AMD-P	88-16-053
388-24-065	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-33-195	AMD	88-19-069	388-44-035	AMD-E	88-16-061
388-24-065	AMD	88-24-009	388-33-355	AMD-P	88-18-105	388-44-035	AMD	88-19-070
388-24-070	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-33-355	AMD	88-21-094	388-44-330	NEW-P	88-10-004
388-24-070	AMD	88-24-009	388-33-370	REP-P	88-18-105	388-44-330	NEW	88-13-059
388-24-074	AMD	88-06-084	388-33-370	REP	88-21-094	388-49-015	AMD-P	88-15-045
388-24-074	AMD	88-07-056	388-33-376	AMD-P	88-23-102	388-49-015	AMD	88-18-058
388-24-074	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-33-480	NEW-P	88-11-058	388-49-020	AMD-P	88-06-079
388-24-074	AMD	88-24-009	388-33-480	NEW-E	88-14-060	388-49-020	AMD	88-08-080
388-24-090	AMD	88-06-084	388-33-480	NEW	88-14-061	388-49-020	AMD-P	88-12-030
388-24-090	AMD	88-07-056	388-37-110	AMD-E	88-12-086	388-49-020	AMD	88-16-081
388-24-107	AMD	88-06-084	388-37-110	AMD-P	88-12-094	388-49-190	AMD-P	88-12-030
388-24-107	AMD	88-07-056	388-37-110	AMD	88-15-013	388-49-190	AMD	88-16-081
388-24-108	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-37-130	AMD-E	88-12-086	388-49-191	NEW-P	88-14-080
388-24-108	AMD	88-24-009	388-37-130	AMD-P	88-12-094	388-49-191	NEW-E	88-14-083
388-24-111	AMD-P	88-21-034	388-37-130	AMD	88-15-013	388-49-191	NEW	88-18-025
388-24-125	AMD-P	88-04-036	388-37-140	AMD-E	88-12-086	388-49-191	REP-P	88-22-034
388-24-125	AMD-E	88-04-039	388-37-140	AMD-P	88-12-094	388-49-191	REP-E	88-22-035
388-24-125	AMD	88-09-039	388-37-140	AMD	88-15-013	388-49-250	AMD-P	88-11-059
388-24-125	AMD-P	88-18-104	388-37-140	AMD-P	88-22-085	388-49-250	AMD	88-16-083
388-24-125	AMD	88-24-009	388-37-140	AMD-E	88-22-086	388-49-260	AMD-P	88-12-030
388-24-137	REP-P	88-18-104	388-37-160	AMD-E	88-12-086	388-49-260	AMD	88-16-081
388-24-137	REP	88-24-009	388-37-160	AMD-P	88-12-094	388-49-310	AMD-P	88-13-027
388-24-260	AMD-P	88-14-049	388-37-160	AMD	88-15-013	388-49-310	AMD	88-16-085
388-24-260	AMD-E	88-14-058	388-37-170	AMD-E	88-12-086	388-49-410	AMD-P	88-06-080
388-24-260	AMD	88-17-122	388-37-170	AMD-P	88-12-094	388-49-410	AMD	88-08-081
388-28-365	AMD-E	88-15-076	388-37-170	AMD	88-15-013	388-49-410	AMD-P	88-12-030
388-28-365	AMD-P	88-15-078	388-37-190	AMD-E	88-12-086	388-49-410	AMD	88-16-081
388-28-365	AMD	88-19-029	388-37-190	AMD-P	88-12-094	388-49-420	AMD-P	88-12-030
388-28-370	AMD-E	88-15-076	388-37-190	AMD	88-15-013	388-49-420	AMD	88-16-081
388-28-370	AMD-P	88-15-078	388-38-045	AMD-P	88-23-102	388-49-470	AMD-P	88-05-005

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
388-49-470	AMD-E	88-05-006	388-57-105	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-270	AMD-E	88-14-082
388-49-470	AMD-P	88-06-081	388-57-112	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-270	AMD	88-18-024
388-49-470	AMD	88-08-079	388-57-115	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-275	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-470	AMD-P	88-18-054	388-57-117	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-275	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-470	AMD-E	88-18-060	388-57-120	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-280	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-470	AMD	88-21-096	388-57-121	REP	88-07-055	388-77-280	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-480	AMD-P	88-12-030	388-57-123	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-285	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-480	AMD	88-16-081	388-57-124	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-285	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-500	AMD-P	88-06-082	388-57-125	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-285	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-49-500	AMD	88-08-078	388-70-013	AMD-P	88-13-124	388-77-285	NEW	88-12-093
388-49-500	AMD-E	88-20-044	388-70-013	AMD-E	88-14-055	388-77-310	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-500	AMD-P	88-20-046	388-70-013	AMD	88-17-059	388-77-310	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-500	AMD	88-23-085	388-77-005	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-320	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-505	NEW	88-04-042	388-77-005	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-320	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-505	AMD-E	88-20-044	388-77-005	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-320	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-49-505	AMD-P	88-20-046	388-77-005	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-320	NEW	88-12-093
388-49-505	AMD	88-23-085	388-77-005	AMD-P	88-14-081	388-77-330	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-510	AMD-E	88-20-044	388-77-005	AMD-E	88-14-082	388-77-330	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-510	AMD-P	88-20-046	388-77-005	AMD	88-18-024	388-77-335	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-510	AMD	88-23-085	388-77-005	AMD-P	88-22-034	388-77-335	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-515	NEW-P	88-12-091	388-77-005	AMD-E	88-22-035	388-77-340	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-515	NEW	88-16-082	388-77-010	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-340	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-520	AMD-P	88-12-091	388-77-010	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-350	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-520	AMD	88-16-082	388-77-010	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-350	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-530	AMD-P	88-12-091	388-77-010	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-355	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-530	AMD	88-16-082	388-77-015	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-355	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-535	NEW-P	88-12-091	388-77-015	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-360	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-535	NEW	88-16-082	388-77-015	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-360	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-550	AMD-P	88-18-053	388-77-015	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-365	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-550	AMD-E	88-18-059	388-77-015	AMD-P	88-14-081	388-77-365	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-550	AMD-E	88-20-045	388-77-015	AMD-E	88-14-082	388-77-370	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-550	AMD-P	88-20-048	388-77-015	AMD	88-18-024	388-77-370	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-550	AMD	88-23-082	388-77-020	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-375	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-600	AMD-P	88-21-090	388-77-020	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-375	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-610	AMD-P	88-12-092	388-77-025	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-500	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-49-610	AMD	88-16-080	388-77-025	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-500	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-49-620	AMD-P	88-12-092	388-77-030	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-500	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-49-620	AMD	88-16-080	388-77-030	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-500	NEW	88-12-093
388-49-640	AMD-P	88-04-088	388-77-035	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-500	AMD-P	88-14-081
388-49-640	AMD	88-08-039	388-77-035	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-500	AMD-E	88-14-082
388-49-660	AMD-P	88-04-046	388-77-040	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-500	AMD	88-18-024
388-49-660	AMD	88-08-040	388-77-040	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-505	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-55-010	AMD-P	88-19-091	388-77-045	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-505	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-55-010	AMD-E	88-19-093	388-77-045	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-510	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-55-010	AMD-P	88-23-018	388-77-045	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-510	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-55-010	AMD-E	88-23-019	388-77-045	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-515	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-55-020	AMD-P	88-19-091	388-77-055	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-515	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-55-020	AMD-E	88-19-093	388-77-055	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-515	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-55-020	AMD-P	88-23-018	388-77-065	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-515	NEW	88-12-093
388-55-020	AMD-E	88-23-019	388-77-065	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-515	AMD-P	88-14-081
388-55-040	AMD-P	88-19-091	388-77-200	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-515	AMD-E	88-14-082
388-55-040	AMD-E	88-19-093	388-77-200	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-520	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-55-040	AMD-P	88-23-018	388-77-200	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-520	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-55-040	AMD-E	88-23-019	388-77-200	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-520	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-57-010	REP	88-07-055	388-77-210	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-520	NEW	88-12-093
388-57-011	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-210	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-525	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-015	REP	88-07-055	388-77-210	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-525	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-020	REP	88-07-055	388-77-210	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-525	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-57-028	REP	88-07-055	388-77-215	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-525	NEW	88-12-093
388-57-032	REP	88-07-055	388-77-215	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-530	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-036	REP	88-07-055	388-77-230	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-530	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-040	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-230	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-530	NEW-P	88-14-081
388-57-045	REP	88-07-055	388-77-240	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-530	NEW-E	88-14-082
388-57-056	REP	88-07-055	388-77-240	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-530	NEW	88-18-024
388-57-057	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-240	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-545	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-059	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-240	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-545	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-061	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-245	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-550	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-063	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-245	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-550	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-064	REP	88-07-055	388-77-255	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-555	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-066	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-255	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-555	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-067	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-255	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-555	NEW-P	88-09-079
388-57-070	REP	88-07-055	388-77-255	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-555	NEW	88-12-093
388-57-071	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-270	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-560	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-074	NEW	88-07-055	388-77-270	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-560	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-090	REP	88-07-055	388-77-270	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-600	NEW-P	88-04-089
388-57-097	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-270	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-600	NEW-W	88-08-038
388-57-100	AMD	88-07-055	388-77-270	AMD-P	88-14-081	388-77-600	NEW-P	88-09-079

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
388-77-600	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-835	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-83-130	AMD-P	88-14-051
388-77-600	AMD-P	88-14-081	388-77-870	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-83-130	AMD-E	88-14-059
388-77-600	AMD-E	88-14-082	388-77-870	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-83-130	AMD	88-17-062
388-77-600	AMD	88-18-024	388-77-880	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-84-105	AMD-P	88-14-051
388-77-605	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-880	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-84-105	AMD-E	88-14-059
388-77-605	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-900	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-84-105	AMD	88-17-062
388-77-605	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-900	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-85-105	AMD-P	88-14-051
388-77-605	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-900	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-85-105	AMD-E	88-14-059
388-77-610	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-900	NEW	88-12-093	388-85-105	AMD	88-17-062
388-77-610	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-900	AMD-P	88-14-081	388-86-005	AMD-P	88-03-021
388-77-610	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-900	AMD-E	88-14-082	388-86-005	AMD	88-06-083
388-77-610	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-900	AMD	88-18-024	388-86-009	AMD-P	88-09-078
388-77-610	AMD-P	88-14-081	388-77-905	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-009	AMD	88-12-089
388-77-610	AMD-E	88-14-082	388-77-905	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-021	AMD-P	88-11-043
388-77-610	AMD	88-18-024	388-77-915	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-021	AMD-E	88-11-044
388-77-610	AMD-P	88-22-034	388-77-915	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-021	AMD	88-15-010
388-77-610	AMD-E	88-22-035	388-77-920	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-040	AMD-P	88-16-055
388-77-615	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-920	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-040	AMD	88-19-030
388-77-615	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-925	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-050	AMD	88-04-048
388-77-615	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-77-925	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-050	AMD-P	88-11-043
388-77-615	NEW	88-12-093	388-77-930	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-050	AMD-E	88-11-044
388-77-640	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-930	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-050	AMD	88-15-010
388-77-640	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-940	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-051	NEW	88-04-048
388-77-700	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-940	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-075	AMD-P	88-11-043
388-77-700	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-945	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-075	AMD-E	88-11-044
388-77-710	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-945	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-075	AMD	88-15-010
388-77-710	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-77-975	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-86-085	AMD-P	88-03-021
388-77-720	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-77-975	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-86-085	AMD	88-06-083
388-77-720	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-005	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-085	AMD-P	88-16-056
388-77-725	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-005	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-085	AMD-E	88-16-059
388-77-725	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-010	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-085	AMD	88-20-042
388-77-730	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-010	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-086	NEW-P	88-03-021
388-77-730	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-015	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-086	NEW	88-06-083
388-77-735	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-015	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-090	AMD-P	88-21-054
388-77-735	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-020	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-090	AMD-E	88-21-056
388-77-735	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-78-020	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-095	AMD-P	88-11-043
388-77-735	NEW	88-12-093	388-78-100	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-095	AMD-E	88-11-044
388-77-737	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-100	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-095	AMD	88-15-010
388-77-737	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-120	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-09601	AMD-P	88-11-043
388-77-737	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-78-120	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-09601	AMD-E	88-11-044
388-77-737	NEW	88-12-093	388-78-205	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-09601	AMD	88-15-010
388-77-740	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-205	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-098	AMD-P	88-11-043
388-77-740	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-210	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-86-098	AMD-E	88-11-044
388-77-745	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-210	NEW	88-12-088	388-86-098	AMD	88-15-010
388-77-745	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-215	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-87-005	AMD-P	88-13-107
388-77-750	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-215	NEW	88-12-088	388-87-005	AMD-E	88-14-056
388-77-750	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-78-220	NEW-P	88-06-078	388-87-005	AMD	88-16-084
388-77-755	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-78-220	NEW	88-12-088	388-87-007	AMD-P	88-13-107
388-77-755	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-81-043	AMD-P	88-21-038	388-87-007	AMD	88-16-084
388-77-760	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-81-047	NEW	88-03-050	388-87-010	AMD-P	88-03-021
388-77-760	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-81-060	AMD-P	88-21-091	388-87-010	AMD	88-06-083
388-77-765	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-82-008	NEW-P	88-14-051	388-87-011	AMD-P	88-08-060
388-77-765	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-82-008	NEW-E	88-14-059	388-87-011	AMD	88-11-061
388-77-770	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-82-008	NEW	88-17-062	388-87-013	AMD	88-04-048
388-77-770	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-82-010	AMD-P	88-06-077	388-87-027	AMD-P	88-03-021
388-77-780	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-82-010	AMD	88-09-037	388-87-027	AMD	88-06-083
388-77-780	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-82-115	AMD-P	88-06-077	388-87-035	AMD-P	88-03-021
388-77-810	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-82-115	AMD	88-09-037	388-87-035	AMD	88-06-083
388-77-810	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-82-115	AMD-P	88-14-050	388-87-036	NEW-P	88-03-021
388-77-810	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-82-115	AMD-E	88-14-057	388-87-036	NEW	88-06-083
388-77-810	NEW	88-12-093	388-82-115	AMD	88-17-063	388-87-070	AMD	88-04-048
388-77-815	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-82-115	AMD-P	88-21-053	388-88-050	AMD	88-04-041
388-77-815	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-82-115	AMD-E	88-21-055	388-88-101	AMD	88-04-041
388-77-820	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-82-115	AMD	88-24-024	388-92-045	AMD-P	88-03-072
388-77-820	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-82-140	NEW-P	88-21-091	388-92-045	AMD	88-06-087
388-77-820	NEW-P	88-09-079	388-83-032	AMD-P	88-08-041	388-95-360	AMD-P	88-14-051
388-77-820	NEW	88-12-093	388-83-032	AMD-E	88-08-042	388-95-360	AMD-E	88-14-059
388-77-820	AMD-P	88-14-080	388-83-032	AMD	88-11-063	388-95-360	AMD-P	88-19-066
388-77-820	AMD-E	88-14-083	388-83-032	AMD-P	88-16-054	388-95-360	AMD	88-23-022
388-77-820	AMD	88-18-025	388-83-032	AMD-E	88-16-060	388-95-380	AMD-P	88-03-072
388-77-820	AMD-P	88-22-034	388-83-032	AMD	88-19-033	388-95-380	AMD	88-06-087
388-77-820	AMD-E	88-22-035	388-83-032	AMD-E	88-20-043	388-95-400	AMD-P	88-14-051
388-77-825	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-83-032	AMD-P	88-20-047	388-95-400	AMD-E	88-14-059
388-77-825	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-83-032	AMD	88-23-084	388-95-400	AMD	88-17-062
388-77-830	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-83-036	AMD-P	88-14-051	388-96-026	AMD-P	88-21-039
388-77-830	NEW-W	88-08-038	388-83-036	AMD-E	88-14-059	388-96-107	AMD-P	88-21-039
388-77-835	NEW-P	88-04-089	388-83-036	AMD	88-17-062	388-96-533	AMD-P	88-21-039

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
388-96-559	AMD-P	88-13-078	391-25-470	AMD-P	88-07-080	392-121-105	REP	88-03-013
388-96-559	AMD-E	88-13-079	391-25-470	AMD	88-12-054	392-121-106	NEW	88-03-013
388-96-559	AMD	88-16-079	391-35-020	NEW-P	88-07-081	392-121-107	NEW	88-03-013
388-96-565	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-35-020	NEW	88-12-061	392-121-108	NEW	88-03-013
388-96-585	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-35-300	NEW-P	88-07-081	392-121-110	REP	88-03-013
388-96-722	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-45-013	REP-P	88-07-082	392-121-111	NEW	88-03-013
388-96-754	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-45-013	REP	88-12-056	392-121-115	REP	88-03-013
388-96-763	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-45-013	REP-E	88-12-062	392-121-120	REP	88-03-013
388-96-771	NEW-E	88-03-052	391-45-260	NEW-P	88-07-082	392-121-121	REP	88-03-013
388-96-771	NEW-P	88-03-053	391-45-260	NEW	88-12-056	392-121-122	NEW	88-03-013
388-96-771	NEW	88-06-085	391-55-002	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-123	NEW	88-03-013
388-96-774	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-55-002	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-125	REP	88-03-013
388-96-807	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-55-033	REP-P	88-07-083	392-121-126	REP	88-03-013
388-96-904	AMD-P	88-21-039	391-55-033	REP	88-12-055	392-121-127	REP	88-03-013
388-98-005	NEW-E	88-03-051	391-55-033	REP-E	88-12-063	392-121-128	REP	88-03-013
388-98-005	NEW-P	88-03-054	391-55-071	NEW-P	88-07-083	392-121-129	REP	88-03-013
388-98-005	NEW	88-06-086	391-55-071	NEW	88-12-055	392-121-130	REP	88-03-013
388-98-010	NEW-E	88-03-051	391-55-071	NEW-E	88-12-064	392-121-131	REP	88-03-013
388-98-010	NEW-P	88-03-054	391-55-400	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-133	NEW	88-03-013
388-98-010	NEW	88-06-086	391-55-400	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-135	REP	88-03-013
388-98-015	NEW-E	88-03-051	391-55-410	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-136	NEW	88-03-013
388-98-015	NEW-P	88-03-054	391-55-410	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-140	REP	88-03-013
388-98-015	NEW	88-06-086	391-55-415	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-145	REP	88-03-013
388-98-020	NEW-E	88-03-051	391-55-415	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-150	REP	88-03-013
388-98-020	NEW-P	88-03-054	391-55-420	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-155	REP	88-03-013
388-98-020	NEW	88-06-086	391-55-420	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-160	REP	88-03-013
388-99-010	AMD-P	88-06-077	391-55-425	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-161	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-010	AMD	88-09-037	391-55-425	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-165	REP	88-03-013
388-99-010	AMD-P	88-19-067	391-55-430	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-170	REP	88-03-013
388-99-010	AMD-E	88-19-071	391-55-430	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-175	REP	88-03-013
388-99-010	AMD	88-23-023	391-55-435	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-176	REP	88-03-013
388-99-011	AMD-P	88-19-067	391-55-435	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-177	REP	88-03-013
388-99-011	AMD-E	88-19-071	391-55-440	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-180	REP	88-03-013
388-99-011	AMD	88-23-023	391-55-440	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-181	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-020	AMD	88-05-056	391-55-445	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-182	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-020	AMD-P	88-20-079	391-55-445	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-183	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-020	AMD-E	88-20-080	391-55-450	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-185	REP	88-03-013
388-99-020	AMD	88-23-081	391-55-450	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-186	REP	88-03-013
388-99-030	AMD-P	88-21-092	391-55-455	AMD-P	88-07-083	392-121-190	REP	88-03-013
388-99-030	AMD-E	88-21-097	391-55-455	AMD	88-12-055	392-121-195	REP	88-03-013
388-99-030	AMD	88-24-025	391-55-505	REP-P	88-07-083	392-121-200	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-040	AMD-P	88-20-079	391-55-505	REP	88-12-055	392-121-205	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-040	AMD-E	88-20-080	391-65-050	AMD-P	88-07-084	392-121-210	NEW	88-03-013
388-99-040	AMD	88-23-081	391-65-050	AMD	88-12-057	392-121-215	NEW	88-03-013
390-05-210	AMD-P	88-11-064	391-65-074	REP-P	88-07-084	392-121-220	NEW	88-03-013
390-05-210	AMD	88-14-064	391-65-074	REP	88-12-057	392-121-225	NEW	88-03-013
390-16-223	NEW-P	88-11-064	391-65-094	REP-P	88-07-084	392-121-245	NEW	88-03-013
390-16-223	NEW	88-14-064	391-65-094	REP	88-12-057	392-121-250	NEW	88-03-013
390-16-223	REP-P	88-17-110	391-95-010	AMD-P	88-07-085	392-121-255	NEW	88-03-013
390-16-223	REP-E	88-17-111	391-95-010	AMD	88-12-058	392-121-257	NEW	88-03-013
390-16-223	REP	88-20-029	391-95-030	AMD-P	88-07-085	392-121-260	NEW	88-03-013
390-18-040	AMD-P	88-11-064	391-95-030	AMD	88-12-058	392-121-260	AMD-E	88-14-046
390-18-040	AMD	88-14-064	391-95-230	AMD-P	88-07-085	392-121-260	AMD-P	88-19-077
390-20-022	NEW-C	88-04-062	391-95-230	AMD	88-12-058	392-121-260	AMD	88-22-064
390-20-022	NEW	88-06-019	392-103-035	AMD-P	88-19-095	392-121-265	NEW	88-03-013
390-20-056	NEW-P	88-04-063	392-103-035	AMD-C	88-22-063	392-121-267	NEW	88-03-013
390-20-056	NEW-C	88-09-008	392-103-035	AMD	88-23-011	392-121-268	NEW	88-03-013
390-20-105	AMD-P	88-11-064	392-120-001	NEW-P	88-13-075	392-121-270	NEW	88-03-013
390-20-105	AMD	88-14-064	392-120-001	NEW	88-19-026	392-121-272	NEW	88-03-013
390-24-010	AMD-P	88-17-110	392-120-005	NEW-P	88-13-075	392-121-280	NEW	88-03-013
390-24-010	AMD	88-20-029	392-120-005	NEW	88-19-026	392-121-285	NEW	88-03-013
390-24-200	AMD-P	88-17-110	392-120-010	NEW-P	88-13-075	392-121-290	NEW	88-03-013
390-24-200	AMD	88-20-029	392-120-010	NEW	88-19-026	392-121-295	NEW	88-03-013
391-08-120	AMD-P	88-07-079	392-120-015	NEW-P	88-13-075	392-121-297	NEW	88-03-013
391-08-120	AMD	88-12-053	392-120-015	NEW	88-19-026	392-121-299	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-090	AMD-P	88-07-080	392-120-020	NEW-P	88-13-075	392-121-400	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-090	AMD	88-12-054	392-120-020	NEW	88-19-026	392-121-405	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-110	AMD-P	88-07-080	392-120-025	NEW-P	88-13-075	392-121-415	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-110	AMD	88-12-054	392-120-025	NEW	88-19-026	392-121-420	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-140	NEW-P	88-07-080	392-121-001	NEW	88-03-013	392-121-425	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-140	NEW	88-12-054	392-121-003	NEW	88-03-013	392-121-430	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-190	AMD-P	88-07-080	392-121-007	NEW	88-03-013	392-121-440	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-190	AMD	88-12-054	392-121-021	NEW	88-03-013	392-121-442	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-290	AMD-P	88-07-080	392-121-031	NEW	88-03-013	392-121-445	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-290	AMD	88-12-054	392-121-033	NEW	88-03-013	392-121-460	NEW	88-03-013
391-25-390	AMD-P	88-07-080	392-121-101	REP	88-03-013	392-126-003	NEW	88-03-003
391-25-390	AMD	88-12-054	392-121-103	REP	88-03-013	392-127-003	NEW	88-03-004

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
392-164-175	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-370	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-171-781	REP-P	88-07-112
392-164-180	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-370	NEW	88-13-089	392-171-781	REP	88-12-017
392-164-180	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-375	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-195-010	AMD	88-03-006
392-164-185	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-375	NEW	88-13-089	392-195-015	AMD	88-03-006
392-164-185	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-380	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-020	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-190	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-380	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-020	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-190	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-385	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-020	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-195	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-385	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-045	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-195	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-390	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-045	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-200	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-390	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-045	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-200	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-395	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-050	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-205	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-395	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-050	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-205	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-400	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-050	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-210	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-400	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-052	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-210	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-405	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-052	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-215	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-405	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-052	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-215	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-410	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-055	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-220	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-410	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-055	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-220	NEW	88-13-089	392-164-415	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-196-055	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-225	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-164-415	NEW	88-13-089	392-196-060	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-225	NEW	88-13-089	392-165-340	AMD-P	88-17-120	392-196-060	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-230	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-165-340	AMD	88-21-017	392-196-060	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-230	NEW	88-13-089	392-165-342	NEW-P	88-17-120	392-196-070	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-235	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-165-342	NEW	88-21-017	392-196-070	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-235	NEW	88-13-089	392-165-345	AMD-P	88-17-120	392-196-070	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-240	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-165-345	AMD	88-21-017	392-196-072	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-240	NEW	88-13-089	392-166-210	AMD-P	88-17-119	392-196-072	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-245	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-166-210	AMD	88-21-018	392-196-072	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-245	NEW	88-13-089	392-168	AMD-P	88-06-094	392-196-075	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-250	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168	AMD	88-09-042	392-196-075	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-250	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-005	REP-P	88-06-094	392-196-075	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-255	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-005	REP	88-09-042	392-196-080	AMD-P	88-15-026
392-164-255	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-105	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-196-080	AMD-E	88-15-027
392-164-260	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-105	NEW	88-09-042	392-196-080	AMD	88-18-038
392-164-260	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-110	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-005	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-265	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-110	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-005	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-265	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-115	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-010	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-270	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-115	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-010	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-270	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-120	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-015	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-275	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-120	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-015	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-275	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-125	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-020	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-280	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-125	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-020	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-280	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-130	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-025	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-285	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-130	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-025	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-285	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-135	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-030	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-290	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-135	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-030	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-290	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-140	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-035	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-295	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-140	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-035	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-295	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-145	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-040	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-300	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-145	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-040	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-300	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-150	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-045	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-305	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-150	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-045	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-305	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-155	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-050	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-310	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-155	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-050	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-310	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-160	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-055	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-315	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-160	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-055	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-315	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-165	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-060	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-320	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-165	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-060	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-320	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-170	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-065	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-325	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-170	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-065	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-325	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-175	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-070	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-330	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-175	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-070	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-330	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-180	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-075	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-335	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-180	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-075	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-335	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-185	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-080	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-340	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-185	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-080	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-340	NEW	88-13-089	392-168-190	NEW-P	88-06-094	392-220-085	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-345	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-168-190	NEW	88-09-042	392-220-085	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-345	NEW	88-13-089	392-171-761	REP-P	88-07-112	392-220-090	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-350	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-171-761	AMD-P	88-12-016	392-220-090	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-350	NEW	88-13-089	392-171-766	AMD	88-15-020	392-220-095	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-355	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-171-766	REP-P	88-07-112	392-220-095	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-355	NEW	88-13-089	392-171-766	REP	88-12-017	392-220-100	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-360	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-171-771	REP-P	88-07-112	392-220-100	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-360	NEW	88-13-089	392-171-771	REP	88-12-017	392-220-105	NEW-P	88-03-011
392-164-365	NEW-P	88-07-113	392-171-776	REP-P	88-07-112	392-220-105	NEW-E	88-03-012
392-164-365	NEW	88-13-089	392-171-776	REP	88-12-017	392-220-110	NEW-P	88-03-011

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
392-220-110	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-220	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-030	NEW-P 88-11-050
392-220-115	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-300	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-030	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-115	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-310	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-040	NEW-P 88-11-050
392-220-120	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-320	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-040	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-120	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-400	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-050	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-125	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-410	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-060	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-125	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-420	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-070	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-130	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-500	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-080	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-130	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-510	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-090	NEW-P 88-22-047
392-220-135	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-520	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-010	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-220-135	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-530	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-010	NEW 88-09-028
392-220-140	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-540	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-012	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-220-140	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-550	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-012	NEW 88-09-028
392-220-145	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-560	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-013	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-220-145	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-570	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-013	NEW 88-09-028
392-220-150	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-600	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-014	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-220-150	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-610	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-014	NEW 88-09-028
392-220-155	NEW-P 88-03-011	400-12-620	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-015	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-220-155	NEW-E 88-03-012	400-12-630	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-015	NEW 88-09-028
392-310-010	NEW-P 88-03-073	400-12-640	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-016	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-310-010	NEW-E 88-04-002	400-12-650	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-016	NEW 88-09-028
392-310-010	NEW 88-06-042	400-12-660	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-017	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-310-015	NEW-P 88-03-073	400-12-700	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-017	NEW 88-09-028
392-310-015	NEW-E 88-04-002	400-12-710	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-018	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-310-015	NEW 88-06-042	400-12-720	NEW 88-06-053	434-19-018	NEW 88-09-028
392-310-020	NEW-P 88-03-073	402-80-040	AMD-P 88-14-052	434-19-020	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-310-020	NEW-E 88-04-002	402-80-040	AMD 88-17-060	434-19-020	NEW 88-09-028
392-310-020	NEW 88-06-042	402-80-060	AMD-P 88-14-052	434-19-050	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-310-025	NEW-P 88-03-073	402-80-060	AMD 88-17-060	434-19-050	NEW 88-09-028
392-310-025	NEW-E 88-04-002	402-80-065	NEW-P 88-14-052	434-19-051	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-310-025	NEW 88-06-042	402-80-065	NEW 88-17-060	434-19-051	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-005	NEW 88-09-044	415-02-090	AMD-P 88-13-121	434-19-052	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-010	NEW 88-09-044	415-02-090	AMD 88-17-053	434-19-052	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-015	NEW 88-09-044	415-108-450	NEW 88-11-030	434-19-053	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-020	NEW 88-09-044	415-108-460	NEW 88-11-030	434-19-053	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-025	NEW 88-09-044	415-112-330	NEW-P 88-13-120	434-19-054	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-030	NEW 88-09-044	415-112-330	NEW 88-17-052	434-19-054	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-035	NEW 88-09-044	415-112-410	AMD 88-11-031	434-19-055	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-040	NEW 88-09-044	415-112-411	NEW 88-11-031	434-19-055	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-045	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-070	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-056	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-050	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-070	REP 88-17-032	434-19-056	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-055	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-080	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-059	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-060	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-080	REP 88-17-032	434-19-059	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-065	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-090	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-060	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-070	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-090	REP 88-17-032	434-19-060	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-075	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-100	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-061	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-080	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-100	REP 88-17-032	434-19-065	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-085	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-110	REP 88-11-049	434-19-075	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-090	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-110	REP 88-17-032	434-19-075	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-095	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-120	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-077	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-100	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-120	REP 88-17-032	434-19-077	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-105	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-130	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-078	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-110	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-130	REP 88-17-032	434-19-078	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-115	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-140	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-080	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-120	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-140	REP 88-17-032	434-19-080	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-125	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-150	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-081	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-130	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-150	REP 88-17-032	434-19-081	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-135	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-160	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-082	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-140	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-160	REP 88-17-032	434-19-082	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-145	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-170	REP-P 88-11-049	434-19-083	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-150	NEW 88-09-044	419-32-170	REP 88-17-032	434-19-083	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-155	NEW 88-09-044	419-56-010	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-084	NEW-P 88-05-054
392-315-160	NEW 88-09-044	419-56-020	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-084	NEW 88-09-028
392-315-165	NEW 88-09-044	419-56-030	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-086	NEW-P 88-05-054
399-30-040	AMD-P 88-06-045	419-56-040	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-086	NEW 88-09-028
399-30-040	AMD 88-10-009	419-56-050	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-087	NEW-P 88-05-054
399-30-042	NEW-P 88-13-023	419-56-060	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-087	NEW 88-09-028
399-30-042	NEW-E 88-13-024	419-56-070	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-088	NEW-P 88-05-054
399-30-042	NEW 88-17-080	419-56-080	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-088	NEW 88-09-028
399-30-060	AMD-P 88-19-107	419-56-090	NEW 88-02-068	434-19-090	NEW-P 88-05-054
399-30-060	AMD 88-23-095	419-60-010	NEW 88-02-067	434-19-090	NEW 88-09-028
400-12	NEW-C 88-04-023	419-60-020	NEW 88-02-067	434-19-100	NEW-P 88-05-054
400-12-100	NEW 88-06-053	419-60-030	NEW 88-02-067	434-19-100	NEW 88-09-028
400-12-110	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-010	NEW-P 88-11-050	434-19-101	NEW-P 88-05-054
400-12-120	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-010	NEW-P 88-22-047	434-19-101	NEW 88-09-028
400-12-200	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-020	NEW-P 88-11-050	434-19-102	NEW-P 88-05-054
400-12-210	NEW 88-06-053	419-64-020	NEW-P 88-22-047	434-19-102	NEW 88-09-028

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
434-19-105	NEW-P 88-05-054	446-40-020	AMD-P 88-14-023	458-20-244	AMD 88-15-066
434-19-110	NEW-P 88-05-054	446-40-025	NEW-P 88-14-023	458-20-252	NEW 88-06-028
434-19-110	NEW 88-09-028	456-08-006	AMD-P 88-10-051	458-20-253	NEW-P 88-22-087
434-19-113	NEW-P 88-05-054	456-08-006	AMD-E 88-13-020	458-30-005	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-113	NEW 88-09-028	456-08-006	AMD 88-13-021	458-30-005	REP 88-23-062
434-19-114	NEW-P 88-05-054	456-08-009	NEW-E 88-13-020	458-30-010	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-114	NEW 88-09-028	456-08-705	AMD-P 88-10-051	458-30-010	REP 88-23-062
434-19-115	NEW-P 88-05-054	456-08-705	AMD-E 88-13-020	458-30-015	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-115	NEW 88-09-028	456-08-705	AMD 88-13-021	458-30-015	REP 88-23-062
434-19-116	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-12-012	NEW 88-04-020	458-30-020	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-118	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-14-020	AMD 88-07-005	458-30-020	REP 88-23-062
434-19-118	NEW 88-09-028	458-14-040	AMD 88-07-005	458-30-025	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-190	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-14-045	AMD 88-07-005	458-30-025	REP 88-23-062
434-19-190	NEW 88-09-028	458-16-030	AMD-P 88-10-025	458-30-030	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-191	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-16-030	AMD 88-13-041	458-30-030	REP 88-23-062
434-19-191	NEW 88-09-028	458-16-111	AMD-P 88-10-025	458-30-045	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-192	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-16-111	AMD 88-13-041	458-30-045	REP 88-23-062
434-19-192	NEW 88-09-028	458-16-130	AMD-P 88-10-025	458-30-050	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-193	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-16-130	AMD 88-13-041	458-30-050	REP 88-23-062
434-19-193	NEW 88-09-028	458-18-010	AMD-P 88-10-026	458-30-055	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-194	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-18-010	AMD 88-13-042	458-30-055	REP 88-23-062
434-19-194	NEW 88-09-028	458-18-020	AMD-P 88-10-026	458-30-056	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-195	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-18-020	AMD 88-13-042	458-30-056	REP 88-23-062
434-19-195	NEW 88-09-028	458-18-060	AMD-P 88-10-026	458-30-057	REP-P 88-17-118
434-19-230	NEW-P 88-05-054	458-18-060	AMD 88-13-042	458-30-057	REP 88-23-062
434-19-230	NEW 88-09-028	458-18-220	AMD-E 88-02-070	458-30-060	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-005	NEW 88-03-019	458-18-220	AMD-P 88-03-016	458-30-060	REP 88-23-062
434-40-010	NEW 88-03-019	458-18-220	AMD 88-07-003	458-30-070	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-020	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-005	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-070	REP 88-23-062
434-40-030	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-005	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-075	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-040	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-010	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-075	REP 88-23-062
434-40-050	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-010	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-080	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-060	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-015	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-080	REP 88-23-062
434-40-070	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-015	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-085	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-080	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-020	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-085	REP 88-23-062
434-40-090	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-020	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-090	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-100	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-025	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-090	REP 88-23-062
434-40-110	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-025	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-095	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-120	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-030	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-095	REP 88-23-062
434-40-130	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-030	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-100	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-140	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-040	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-100	REP 88-23-062
434-40-150	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-040	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-105	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-160	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-045	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-105	REP 88-23-062
434-40-170	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-045	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-110	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-180	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-055	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-110	REP 88-23-062
434-40-190	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-055	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-115	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-200	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-060	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-115	REP 88-23-062
434-40-210	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-060	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-120	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-220	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-065	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-120	REP 88-23-062
434-40-230	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-065	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-125	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-240	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-095	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-125	REP 88-23-062
434-40-250	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-095	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-130	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-260	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-100	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-130	REP 88-23-062
434-40-270	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-100	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-135	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-280	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-110	NEW-P 88-22-010	458-30-135	REP 88-23-062
434-40-290	NEW 88-03-019	458-19-110	NEW-E 88-22-011	458-30-140	REP-P 88-17-118
434-40-300	NEW 88-03-019	458-20-115	AMD-P 88-17-072	458-30-140	REP 88-23-062
434-40-310	NEW 88-03-019	458-20-115	AMD 88-20-014	458-30-145	REP-P 88-17-118
440-44-062	NEW-P 88-14-053	458-20-136	AMD-P 88-17-114	458-30-145	REP 88-23-062
440-44-062	NEW 88-17-061	458-20-136	AMD 88-21-014	458-30-146	REP-P 88-17-118
440-44-095	AMD-P 88-11-060	458-20-166	AMD-P 88-17-072	458-30-146	REP 88-23-062
440-44-095	AMD 88-15-011	458-20-166	AMD 88-20-014	458-30-150	REP-P 88-17-118
446-20-020	AMD-P 88-03-056	458-20-169	AMD-P 88-17-114	458-30-150	REP 88-23-062
446-20-020	AMD 88-07-066	458-20-169	AMD 88-21-014	458-30-155	REP-P 88-17-118
446-20-020	AMD-E 88-07-072	458-20-176	AMD 88-03-055	458-30-155	REP 88-23-062
446-20-285	NEW-P 88-03-056	458-20-193B	AMD-P 88-23-116	458-30-160	REP-P 88-17-118
446-20-285	NEW 88-07-066	458-20-214	AMD-P 88-17-072	458-30-160	REP 88-23-062
446-20-285	NEW-E 88-07-072	458-20-214	AMD 88-20-014	458-30-200	NEW-P 88-17-118
446-20-290	AMD-P 88-03-056	458-20-221	AMD-P 88-23-116	458-30-200	NEW 88-23-062
446-20-290	AMD 88-07-066	458-20-240	AMD-P 88-14-005	458-30-205	NEW-P 88-17-118
446-20-290	AMD-E 88-07-072	458-20-240	AMD 88-17-047	458-30-205	NEW 88-23-062
446-20-300	AMD-P 88-03-056	458-20-24001	AMD-P 88-14-005	458-30-210	NEW-P 88-17-118
446-20-300	AMD 88-07-066	458-20-24001	AMD 88-17-047	458-30-210	NEW 88-23-062
446-20-300	AMD-E 88-07-072	458-20-24002	AMD-P 88-14-005	458-30-215	NEW-P 88-17-118
446-20-310	AMD-P 88-03-056	458-20-24002	AMD 88-17-047	458-30-215	NEW 88-23-062
446-20-310	AMD 88-07-066	458-20-244	AMD-E 88-12-023	458-30-220	NEW-P 88-17-118
446-20-310	AMD-E 88-07-072	458-20-244	AMD-P 88-12-024	458-30-220	NEW 88-23-062

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
458-30-225	NEW-P	88-17-118	458-40-660	AMD-P	88-22-067	468-95-020	AMD	88-22-003
458-30-225	NEW	88-23-062	458-40-670	AMD-P	88-10-048	468-300-010	AMD-P	88-24-029
458-30-230	NEW-P	88-17-118	458-40-670	AMD-E	88-14-031	468-300-020	AMD-P	88-24-029
458-30-230	NEW	88-23-062	458-40-670	AMD	88-14-032	468-300-040	AMD-P	88-24-029
458-30-235	NEW-P	88-17-118	458-40-670	AMD-P	88-22-067	468-300-070	AMD-P	88-24-029
458-30-235	NEW	88-23-062	458-50-070	AMD-P	88-12-084	468-310-020	AMD-P	88-16-031
458-30-240	NEW-P	88-17-118	458-50-070	AMD-E	88-12-085	468-310-020	AMD	88-19-040
458-30-240	NEW	88-23-062	458-50-070	AMD	88-15-016	468-310-050	AMD-P	88-16-031
458-30-245	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-050	AMD	88-03-015	468-310-050	AMD	88-19-040
458-30-245	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-100	REP	88-03-015	478-136-030	AMD-P	88-14-084
458-30-250	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-101	NEW	88-03-015	478-136-030	AMD-E	88-19-044
458-30-250	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-102	NEW	88-03-015	478-136-030	AMD	88-19-045
458-30-255	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-103	NEW	88-03-015	478-138-030	AMD-P	88-14-139
458-30-255	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-104	NEW	88-03-015	478-138-030	AMD	88-19-042
458-30-260	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-105	AMD	88-03-015	478-138-030	AMD-E	88-19-043
458-30-260	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-106	AMD	88-03-015	478-355-020	AMD-P	88-14-140
458-30-265	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-107	REP	88-03-015	478-355-020	AMD	88-19-041
458-30-265	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-108	AMD	88-03-015	478-355-030	AMD-P	88-14-140
458-30-270	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-109	AMD	88-03-015	478-355-030	AMD	88-19-041
458-30-270	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-110	AMD	88-03-015	478-355-040	AMD-P	88-14-140
458-30-275	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-126	AMD	88-03-015	478-355-040	AMD	88-19-041
458-30-275	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-130	REP	88-03-015	478-355-060	AMD-P	88-14-140
458-30-280	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-135	REP	88-03-015	478-355-060	AMD	88-19-041
458-30-280	NEW	88-23-062	460-16A-140	REP	88-03-015	480-12-100	REP-P	88-21-115
458-30-285	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-16A-145	REP	88-03-015	480-12-250	AMD-P	88-23-030
458-30-285	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-010	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-12-285	AMD-P	88-23-118
458-30-290	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-010	NEW	88-17-012	480-12-285	AMD-E	88-23-119
458-30-290	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-020	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-12-375	AMD-P	88-21-115
458-30-295	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-020	NEW	88-17-012	480-12-990	AMD-P	88-21-115
458-30-295	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-030	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-30-120	AMD-P	88-23-030
458-30-300	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-030	NEW	88-17-012	480-40-010	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-300	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-040	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-40-010	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-305	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-040	NEW	88-17-012	480-40-010	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-305	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-050	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-40-020	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-310	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-050	NEW	88-17-012	480-40-020	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-310	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-060	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-40-020	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-315	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-060	NEW	88-17-012	480-40-030	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-315	NEW	88-23-062	460-17A-070	NEW-P	88-12-026	480-40-030	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-320	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-17A-070	NEW	88-17-012	480-40-030	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-320	NEW	88-23-062	460-20A-220	AMD-P	88-12-027	480-40-033	REP-E	88-13-033
458-30-325	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-20A-220	AMD	88-17-011	480-40-033	REP-P	88-15-072
458-30-325	NEW	88-23-062	460-20A-225	REP-P	88-12-027	480-40-033	REP	88-18-012
458-30-330	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-20A-225	REP	88-17-011	480-40-036	REP-E	88-13-033
458-30-330	NEW	88-23-062	460-20A-230	AMD-P	88-12-027	480-40-036	REP-P	88-15-072
458-30-335	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-20A-230	AMD	88-17-011	480-40-036	REP	88-18-012
458-30-335	NEW	88-23-062	460-24A-055	NEW-P	88-12-027	480-40-039	REP-E	88-13-033
458-30-340	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-24A-055	NEW	88-17-011	480-40-039	REP-P	88-15-072
458-30-340	NEW	88-23-062	460-44A-500	AMD-P	88-11-083	480-40-039	REP	88-18-012
458-30-345	NEW-P	88-17-118	460-44A-500	AMD	88-15-024	480-40-040	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-345	NEW	88-23-062	460-44A-501	AMD-E	88-11-032	480-40-040	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-510	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-501	AMD-P	88-11-083	480-40-040	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-510	AMD	88-23-062	460-44A-501	AMD	88-15-024	480-40-050	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-520	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-502	AMD-E	88-11-032	480-40-050	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-520	AMD	88-23-062	460-44A-502	AMD-P	88-11-083	480-40-050	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-530	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-502	AMD	88-15-024	480-40-060	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-530	AMD	88-23-062	460-44A-503	AMD-P	88-11-083	480-40-060	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-540	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-503	AMD	88-15-024	480-40-060	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-540	AMD	88-23-062	460-44A-505	AMD-E	88-11-032	480-40-070	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-550	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-505	AMD-P	88-11-083	480-40-070	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-550	AMD	88-23-062	460-44A-505	AMD	88-15-024	480-40-070	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-560	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-506	AMD-E	88-11-032	480-40-075	AMD-E	88-13-033
458-30-560	AMD	88-23-062	460-44A-506	AMD-P	88-11-083	480-40-075	AMD-P	88-15-072
458-30-570	AMD-P	88-13-034	460-44A-506	AMD	88-15-024	480-40-075	AMD	88-18-012
458-30-570	AMD	88-23-062	460-90A-145	NEW-E	88-15-006	480-40-080	REP-E	88-13-033
458-30-575	NEW	88-23-062	460-90A-145	NEW-P	88-16-101	480-40-080	REP-P	88-15-072
458-30-580	AMD-P	88-13-034	468-30-120	NEW-P	88-22-028	480-40-080	REP	88-18-012
458-30-580	AMD	88-23-062	468-66-010	AMD-P	88-18-034	480-40-090	REP-E	88-13-033
458-30-590	AMD-P	88-03-017	468-66-010	AMD	88-22-002	480-40-090	REP-P	88-15-072
458-30-590	AMD	88-07-004	468-66-050	AMD-P	88-18-034	480-40-090	REP	88-18-012
458-40-540	AMD-P	88-20-055	468-66-050	AMD	88-22-002	480-40-110	NEW-E	88-13-033
458-40-540	AMD	88-23-055	468-66-140	AMD-P	88-18-034	480-40-110	NEW-P	88-15-072
458-40-650	AMD-P	88-10-048	468-66-140	AMD	88-22-002	480-40-110	NEW	88-18-012
458-40-650	AMD-E	88-14-031	468-66-175	NEW-P	88-18-034	480-40-120	NEW-E	88-13-033
458-40-650	AMD	88-14-032	468-66-175	NEW	88-22-002	480-40-120	NEW-P	88-15-072
458-40-660	AMD-P	88-10-048	468-70-070	AMD-P	88-18-032	480-40-120	NEW	88-18-012
458-40-660	AMD-E	88-14-031	468-70-070	AMD	88-22-001	480-40-130	NEW-E	88-13-033
458-40-660	AMD	88-14-032	468-95-020	AMD-P	88-18-033	480-40-130	NEW-P	88-15-072

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
480-40-130	NEW	88-18-012	508-12-160	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-40-140	NEW-E	88-13-033	508-12-160	AMD	88-13-037
480-40-140	NEW-P	88-15-072	508-12-170	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-40-140	NEW	88-18-012	508-12-170	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-330	NEW-P	88-18-062	508-12-180	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-330	AMD-P	88-18-077	508-12-180	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-330	AMD-W	88-19-106	508-12-190	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-330	AMD	88-22-037	508-12-190	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-335	NEW-P	88-18-062	508-12-200	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-335	NEW-P	88-18-077	508-12-200	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-335	NEW-W	88-19-106	508-12-210	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-335	NEW	88-22-037	508-12-210	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-385	NEW-P	88-18-064	508-12-220	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-385	NEW-C	88-23-070	508-12-220	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-390	NEW-P	88-18-064	508-12-240	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-390	NEW-C	88-23-070	508-12-240	AMD	88-13-037
480-80-395	NEW-P	88-18-063	508-12-250	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-80-395	NEW-C	88-23-069	508-12-250	AMD	88-13-037
480-90-031	AMD-P	88-23-030	508-12-280	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-90-071	AMD-P	88-04-076	508-12-280	AMD	88-13-037
480-90-071	AMD	88-07-070	508-12-390	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-100-031	AMD-P	88-23-030	508-12-390	NEW	88-13-037
480-100-071	AMD-P	88-04-076	508-12-400	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-100-071	AMD	88-07-070	508-12-400	NEW	88-13-037
480-110-031	AMD-P	88-23-030	508-12-410	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-120-021	AMD-P	88-17-044	508-12-410	NEW	88-13-037
480-120-021	AMD-P	88-23-043	508-14-040	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-120-028	NEW-P	88-07-069	508-14-040	NEW	88-13-037
480-120-028	NEW-C	88-13-031	508-14-050	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-120-028	NEW-C	88-16-037	508-14-050	NEW	88-13-037
480-120-028	NEW-C	88-16-072	508-64-010	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-120-041	AMD-P	88-17-044	508-64-010	AMD	88-13-037
480-120-041	AMD-P	88-23-043	508-64-030	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-120-056	AMD-C	88-04-057	508-64-030	AMD	88-13-037
480-120-056	AMD-P	88-07-027	508-64-040	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-120-056	AMD-C	88-10-050	508-64-040	AMD	88-13-037
480-120-056	AMD	88-13-099	508-64-050	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-120-081	AMD-P	88-13-032	508-64-050	AMD	88-13-037
480-120-081	AMD-W	88-19-105	508-64-060	AMD-P	88-09-054
480-120-089	NEW-P	88-13-098	508-64-060	AMD	88-13-037
480-120-089	NEW-C	88-16-036	508-64-070	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-120-089	NEW-C	88-16-073	508-64-070	NEW	88-13-037
480-120-089	NEW-C	88-17-067	508-64-080	NEW-P	88-09-054
480-120-089	NEW	88-18-011	508-64-080	NEW	88-13-037
480-120-106	AMD-P	88-17-044			
480-120-106	AMD-P	88-23-043			
480-120-141	NEW-P	88-17-044			
480-120-141	NEW-P	88-23-043			
480-149-120	AMD-P	88-05-044			
480-149-120	AMD	88-08-047			
504-17-025	NEW-P	88-07-098			
504-17-220	AMD-P	88-07-098			
504-17-220	AMD	88-12-007			
504-17-235	AMD-P	88-07-098			
504-17-235	AMD	88-12-007			
508-12-010	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-010	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-020	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-020	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-030	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-030	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-050	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-050	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-060	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-060	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-070	REP-P	88-09-054			
508-12-070	REP	88-13-037			
508-12-080	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-080	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-100	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-100	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-110	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-110	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-120	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-120	AMD	88-13-037			
508-12-150	AMD-P	88-09-054			
508-12-150	AMD	88-13-037			

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

ACCOUNTANCY, BOARD OF		AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.	
CPA exam	88-05-015	Importation of animals	88-01-123
Experience	88-06-021	Laboratory fees, schedule	88-05-003
Licenses and certificates, applications and renewals	88-22-062	Noxious weed board definitions	88-01-034
Practice and procedure	88-17-078		88-13-007
	88-22-056		88-13-049
			88-18-001
AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF			88-18-002
Alfalfa		grant program list	88-04-044
chemical restrictions	88-05-055		88-03-057
	88-08-050		88-03-059
pesticide use	88-13-025		88-07-016
	88-19-051		88-13-007
	88-21-098		88-13-049
Apples			88-18-001
color requirements	88-14-127		88-18-002
standards	88-11-068		88-20-065
	88-14-128		88-24-002
tolerances	88-11-068	meetings	88-17-040
	88-14-128		88-17-073
Barley		region descriptions	88-13-007
assessments and collections	88-09-018		88-13-049
Bees			88-18-001
apiary inspection fees	88-03-058		88-18-002
	88-07-018	schedule of penalties	88-03-057
colony strength	88-03-058		88-03-059
	88-07-018	Organic foods	88-04-073
definitions	88-12-082		88-07-024
	88-12-083	Peaches	
Varroa mite	88-09-002	grading	88-08-071
	88-12-082		88-11-048
	88-12-083	tolerances	88-08-071
	88-16-016		88-11-048
Biological products	88-21-077	Pest control companies, licensing	88-22-069
Blueberry quarantine	88-13-081	Pesticides	88-09-077
	88-17-014		88-14-074
Brucellosis			88-17-121
cattle	88-01-123		88-21-030
	88-05-003		88-21-098
goats	88-01-123		88-23-028
	88-05-003	Rapeseed	88-04-072
Clover			88-07-071
chemical restrictions	88-05-055	Seed, certification and inspection	88-07-114
	88-08-050		88-11-042
Commission merchants		Tuberculosis	
license fees	88-20-068	cattle	88-01-123
	88-23-056	goats	88-01-123
proof of payment	88-20-068	Wheat	
	88-23-056	assessments	88-08-061
Dinoseb, use of on dry peas, chickpeas, and lentils	88-07-033		88-09-019
Farm slaughter fee	88-07-096		88-12-019
	88-12-036	AIR POLLUTION	
tag	88-07-096	(See ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF)	
	88-12-036	ARCHAEOLOGY AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION, OFFICE OF	
Feedlots		(See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)	
commercial registered	88-01-123	ARCHITECTS, BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR	
	88-05-003	(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)	
quarantine registered	88-01-123	ARTS COMMISSION	
	88-05-003	Meetings	88-24-044
Herbicides		ASIAN AMERICAN AFFAIRS, COMMISSION ON	
restricted use	88-01-128	Address change	88-16-030
	88-05-033		88-21-003
	88-06-071	Meetings	88-01-003
	88-07-038		88-17-109
	88-09-013	Organization and operation	88-16-030
	88-15-048		88-21-003
	88-17-079	ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE	
Hops		Attorney general opinions	
board members, terms, qualification, etc.	88-18-073	architects and engineers, contracts (No. 14, 1988)	88-14-014
	88-24-028	architectural and design services (No. 4, 1988)	88-06-012
inspections	88-18-073		
	88-24-028		
labeling	88-10-034		
	88-13-050		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE—cont.

attorney staffmember dues (No. 26, 1987) 88-04-012
 central dispatch, recording conversations
 (No. 11, 1988) 88-12-022
 child abuse (No. 5, 1988) 88-07-028
 city trust fund (No. 27, 1987) 88-04-013
 concealed weapon permits (No. 28, 1987) 88-04-014
 counties, use of tax revenues, interlocal
 cooperation agreements (No. 19, 1988) 88-20-027
 crimes, county to assume costs
 (No. 9, 1988) 88-11-019
 electricians and electrical contractors,
 license required, installation of electric
 service lines (No. 22, 1988) 88-21-067
 firearms
 (No. 10, 1988) 88-12-011
 (No. 16, 1988) 88-18-047
 gambling, amusement games (No. 20, 1987) 88-04-006
 higher education joint center
 board (No. 22, 1987) 88-04-008
 hospital districts (No. 15, 1988) 88-14-098
 initiative, authority of legislature to
 amend (No. 25, 1988) 88-23-009
 judges, duty of to provide
 benefits (No. 29, 1988) **88-24-033**
 juvenile courts (No. 23, 1987)
 addendum 88-04-009
 88-07-001
 legislative vacancy, county
 commissioner (No. 21, 1987) 88-04-007
 municipal treasurers (No. 26, 1988) 88-23-010
 municipalities, reimbursement of costs
 and attorney fees based only on
 moral obligation (No. 21, 1988) 88-21-063
 ophthalmologists, professional regulation
 (No. 28, 1988) 88-23-068
 optometrists, professional regulation
 (No. 28, 1988) 88-23-068
 public disclosure, confidential
 income information (No. 12, 1988) 88-13-083
 public transportation benefit areas,
 interlocal cooperation agreements
 (No. 20, 1988) 88-20-054
 road construction
 county (No. 18, 1987) 88-04-004
 state (No. 8, 1988) 88-08-014
 school districts
 bond issues, tax levies, equipment
 purchases (No. 13, 1988) 88-13-084
 levy reduction funds (No. 1, 1988) 88-06-009
 statutory authority (No. 2, 1988) 88-06-010
 seat of government (No. 24, 1987) 88-04-010
 sexual psychopath parole plan (No. 19, 1987) 88-04-005
 Shorelines Management Act, counties
 cannot impose stricter standards
 (No. 24, 1988) 88-23-003
 social and health services, family
 assistance plan (No. 6, 1988) 88-07-037
 state agencies, housing of prisoners
 (No. 3, 1988) 88-06-011
 state patrol, commission on
 equipment (No. 25, 1987) 88-04-011
 tax appeals board, civil
 service (No. 17, 1987) 88-04-003
 taxation, platting and subdivisions
 (No. 7, 1988) 88-08-007
 water pollution control projects,
 distribution of funds (No. 18, 1988) 88-20-012
Motor vehicle warranties
 arbitration 88-01-091
 88-01-092
 88-01-093
 88-02-014
 88-03-063
 88-03-064

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE—cont.

88-04-081
 88-09-062
 88-09-065
 88-13-039
 arbitration requests, replacing
 or repurchasing vehicle 88-13-088
 88-19-064
 consumer disclosure form 88-03-063
 88-03-064
 88-09-062
 88-09-065
 88-13-039
 manufacturers, noncompliance with arbitration
 decision, fines 88-22-054
 88-22-055
 resale notice 88-03-063
 88-03-064
 88-09-064
 88-09-065
 technical expert prehearing inspection
 reports 88-04-078
 88-04-079
 88-09-063
 88-09-065
 88-03-063
 88-03-064
 88-09-064
 88-09-065
BASIC HEALTH PLAN
 Benefits 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
 Contracts 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
 Definitions 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
 Eligibility 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
 Enrollment/disenrollment 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
 Grievances 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
 Premiums 88-15-073
 88-18-050
 88-19-057
 88-20-040
 88-21-116
 88-24-030
BELLEVUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 Affirmative action policy 88-20-002
 88-23-051

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

BELLEVUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE—cont.		CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINING BOARD—cont.	
Bylaws and standing orders	88-06-058	Continuing education	88-14-095
	88-07-089		88-18-078
	88-13-047		88-22-023
Commercial activity policy	88-04-059	License renewal	88-14-095
	88-07-036		88-17-084
Meetings	88-01-055		
Operating policies, general	88-07-088	CLARK COLLEGE	
	88-13-048	Meetings	88-01-084
		Student conduct code	88-11-047
			88-16-068
BIG BEND COMMUNITY COLLEGE		CLEMENCY AND PARDONS BOARD	
Personnel rules, European project	88-15-001	Meetings	88-05-026
	88-21-027		88-16-035
BLIND, DEPARTMENT OF SERVICES FOR THE		COLUMBIA RIVER GORGE COMMISSION	
Public disclosure	88-04-016	Development actions and residential	
	88-09-006	developments	88-23-089
Vocational rehabilitation and services	88-04-016	Development review process	88-07-077
	88-09-006		88-11-052
		term "file" defined	88-19-003
BUILDING CODE COUNCIL			88-19-085
Barrier-free facilities	88-14-078		88-19-086
	88-24-021	Executive director, authorized to	
Energy code	88-14-114	represent commission in contested	
	88-24-037	case proceedings	88-23-074
Meetings	88-01-112	National Scenic Area Act	88-07-078
	88-06-038		88-11-052
	88-12-076	Procedures	88-01-013
	88-24-055		
Uniform codes		COMMUNITY COLLEGE EDUCATION, BOARD FOR	
building	88-14-077	Meetings	88-01-008
	88-20-070		88-21-048
	88-24-018		88-24-043
fire	88-14-077		
	88-24-018	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF	
mechanical	88-14-077	Archaeology and historic preservation,	
	88-24-018	office of	
plumbing	88-14-077	excavation and removal permits	88-18-091
	88-24-018		88-23-004
		historic resources previously unknown,	
CEMETERY BOARD		registration procedures	88-18-092
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)			88-23-005
CENTENNIAL COMMISSION		Community services, division for	
Committees	88-11-076	energy matchmakers program	88-02-042
	88-11-077		88-03-068
Meetings	88-01-076	meetings	88-02-052
			88-15-082
CENTRALIA COLLEGE			88-18-004
Meetings	88-13-022	Development loan fund committee	
	88-15-032	meetings	88-07-064
		Early childhood education and	
CENTRAL WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY		assistance program	88-15-075
Meetings	88-14-035		88-18-039
Parking and traffic regulations	88-07-017	Emergency management, division of	
	88-11-065	hazardous chemical reporting	88-15-074
	88-11-066		88-18-040
			88-19-025
CHILD SUPPORT SCHEDULE COMMISSION		Emergency response commission	
Economic table	88-11-004	meetings	88-01-094
Instructions	88-11-004	Fire protection services division	
Standards	88-11-004	fireworks	88-03-014
Worksheets	88-11-004		88-08-027
		meetings	88-02-006
CHIROPRACTIC DISCIPLINARY BOARD		Hazardous materials planning committee	
Billing	88-02-037	meetings	88-01-048
	88-19-074		88-23-045
Delegation of services to unlicensed		Head start programs	88-01-058
personnel	88-19-074	Public works board	
Duties upon retirement or withdrawal		application evaluation procedures	88-06-045
from practice	88-19-074		88-10-009
Radiographic standards	88-19-074	deliberations	88-13-023
Records and x-rays, maintenance and			88-13-024
retention	88-19-074		88-17-080
Scope of practice	88-05-058		88-06-045
	88-14-040		88-10-009
	88-17-100		88-13-023
			88-13-024
CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINING BOARD			88-17-080
AIDS prevention and information,	88-18-079		
education requirements	88-22-022		
	88-23-060		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF		DATA PROCESSING AUTHORITY	
—cont.		(See INFORMATION SERVICES,	
meetings	88-01-021	DEPARTMENT OF)	
	88-03-029	DEFERRED COMPENSATION, COMMITTEE FOR	
	88-13-030	Benefits	
	88-23-017	paid by committee	88-09-075
scope of work forms			88-12-028
time for return	88-19-107	Deferrals	
	88-23-095	catch-up provision	88-09-075
			88-12-028
COMMUNITY ECONOMIC		distribution	88-09-075
REVITALIZATION BOARD			88-12-028
(See TRADE AND ECONOMIC		limitations	88-09-075
DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)			88-12-028
COMMUNITY SERVICES, DIVISION FOR		Dependent care assistance salary	
(See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT,		reduction plan	88-07-104
DEPARTMENT OF)			88-11-028
CONVENTION AND TRADE CENTER		Interplan transfers	88-09-075
Meetings	88-01-049		88-12-028
	88-01-065	Retirement age	88-09-075
	88-02-007		88-12-028
	88-07-022	DENTAL DISCIPLINARY BOARD	
	88-07-067	(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)	
	88-07-099	DENTAL EXAMINERS, BOARD OF	
	88-10-006	(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)	
	88-10-046	EASTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY	
	88-11-053	Meetings	88-23-044
	88-12-021		
	88-14-025	ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF	
	88-15-022	Air contaminant sources	88-10-053
	88-16-014		88-19-082
	88-16-063		88-24-049
	88-16-064	Air pollution	
	88-18-046	Bellevue and Kennewick, particulate	
	88-20-013	matter data and analysis	88-19-081
	88-21-026	kraft pulping mills	88-01-057
	88-21-044	particulate matter	88-10-053
	88-22-031		88-19-082
	88-22-032		88-24-049
	88-23-065	primary aluminum plants	88-01-057
	88-23-092	solid fuel burning device standards	88-01-056
	88-23-099		88-10-052
		sources	88-10-053
			88-19-082
CORRECTIONS, DEPARTMENT OF		sulfite pulping mills	88-24-049
Assault benefits for employees	88-12-002	Conditional use defined	88-01-057
Furlough eligibility	88-04-043		88-12-067
Regional jail camp	88-23-120		88-19-004
		Construction grants and loans	
COUNTY ROAD ADMINISTRATION BOARD		municipal wastewater treatment	88-11-069
RATA funds		project priority lists	88-11-069
allocation to approved RAP projects	88-01-110	Dangerous waste	
	88-05-040	generation and management	88-02-057
emergent projects	88-01-110		88-22-078
	88-05-040	permits	
limitation on use	88-12-079	final facility	88-13-116
	88-16-017		88-18-083
matching funds	88-12-079	interim status	88-13-116
	88-16-017		88-18-083
projects approval	88-01-110	requirements	88-13-116
	88-05-040		88-18-083
Regional prioritization of regional		recycled, reclaimed and recovered	
RAP projects	88-01-110	wastes	88-13-116
	88-05-040		88-18-083
	88-09-034	siting of facilities	88-03-074
	88-12-080		88-06-041
Six-year road program	88-12-079	standards	88-07-039
	88-16-017		88-13-116
		Delegation of agency authority	88-18-083
CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION		Drought relief	88-20-039
Law enforcement and corrections personnel			88-08-020
certification	88-15-029	Emergency episode plan	88-14-126
	88-20-023		88-10-053
requirements	88-15-029		88-19-082
	88-20-023		88-24-049
training	88-15-029		
	88-20-023		
Reserve officers, basic training	88-15-028		
	88-20-022		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Floodplain management 88-05-042
88-10-058
88-21-033

Forest practices rules adopted by reference 88-12-097
88-20-067
88-22-030

Hazardous substance sites investigation of 88-11-072
88-15-038

ranking system 88-11-073
88-15-037

Hazardous substance tax listing of hazardous substances subject to tax 88-19-108

Hazardous waste cleanup settlement 88-07-105
88-07-106
88-10-055
88-13-036
88-13-085
88-19-109

amendment of settlement agreements exemption from regulation samples used in small-scale treatability studies **88-24-027**

Interim financial assistance program 88-09-049
88-09-050
88-11-067
88-15-057
88-17-009

National pollutant discharge elimination system permit program 88-13-095
88-18-075
88-22-059

Open burning 88-10-053
88-19-082
88-24-049

Pollution control commission name change 88-10-061
88-13-029

Radioactive waste site use permit 88-15-071
88-18-098
88-18-099
88-21-072

Remedial action costs, public funding 88-17-115

Shorelines development permits 88-01-014
88-04-091
88-07-006

master programs
Aberdeen 88-08-064
88-14-091
88-19-008

Benton County 88-20-072

Bonney Lake 88-05-066
88-10-059

Bremerton 88-16-103
88-22-089

Clallam County 88-01-119
88-07-009

Cosmopolis 88-08-065
88-14-091
88-19-008

Des Moines 88-04-092
88-07-008

Grant County 88-16-104
88-22-088

Grays Harbor County 88-03-069
88-08-063
88-08-089
88-14-091
88-19-008

Hoquiam 88-08-066
88-14-091
88-19-008

Kirkland 88-17-126

ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Long Beach 88-02-064

Mason County 88-02-053
88-02-054
88-07-010

Mercer Island 88-21-113

Normandy Park 88-12-068
88-17-125

Ocean Shores 88-08-067
88-14-091
88-19-005
88-19-129

Okanogan County 88-03-070

San Juan County 88-12-069
88-13-119
88-19-006
88-19-102

Steilacoom 88-02-063
88-04-093
88-07-007

Sumas 88-21-112

Westport 88-08-068
88-14-091
88-19-008

Solid fuel burning device standards 88-01-056
88-10-052
88-15-069
88-19-079
88-19-080
88-21-004
88-24-048

Solid waste financial assistance 88-12-072
88-12-073
88-17-001

handling 88-04-074
88-08-062
88-14-109
88-14-110
88-18-090
88-20-066
88-08-082

State/EPA agreement

Tire dumps financial assistance program 88-12-070
88-12-071
88-17-002

licenses carriers 88-18-106
88-22-008
88-24-050

storage site owners 88-18-106
88-22-008
88-24-050

Wastewater discharge permit application 88-07-103
88-12-035

fees 88-07-103
88-12-035
88-24-056

modification, suspension, or revocation 88-07-103
88-12-035

terms and conditions 88-07-103
88-12-035

Water pollution control activities 88-09-076
88-14-125

Water quality ground water Methow River 88-02-073

surface water standards 88-02-058

Water resources program 88-09-054
88-13-037

Wells construction standards 88-22-007

contractors and operators 88-04-071
88-08-070

maintenance 88-04-071
88-08-070

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.		EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT	
Woodstoves, etc.	88-01-056	Appeal, time limits	88-24-008
EDMONDS COMMUNITY COLLEGE		Benefit charge relief, employer request	88-13-127
Faculty member dismissal	88-06-024		88-16-077
	88-13-013	Benefit overpayments, recovery of	88-07-109
Meetings	88-01-004		88-10-021
	88-04-022	Corporate officers, election of coverage	88-24-006
	88-05-027	Family independence program	88-07-110
	88-11-046		88-12-051
	88-12-059	Interpretive regulations	
	88-13-077	employment, terms and conditions of	88-07-108
	88-15-035		88-10-020
	88-19-020	residency	88-01-052
	88-21-068		88-01-053
	88-23-039	strikes or lockouts	88-05-034
Sex discrimination, grievance procedure	88-21-049		88-07-107
Tuition and fees policy	88-06-023		88-07-108
			88-10-020
EDUCATION, STATE BOARD OF		Personal identification number	88-13-072
Certificates of educational competence	88-21-101		88-13-073
	88-21-102		88-16-076
	88-21-104	Targeted jobs tax credit program	88-11-091
	88-21-111	Training	
Courses of study and equivalencies	88-01-108	approval required	88-24-007
Educational staff associates, generic standards	88-12-014	defined	88-24-007
	88-21-012	Truck drivers, exemptions	88-13-126
Grade reporting and calculation system	88-08-072	ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS	
	88-13-026	Applications	88-05-064
Grant program			88-07-094
schools for the 21st century	88-01-079		88-12-044
	88-01-080	corporation or joint stock associations	88-05-063
	88-06-002		88-07-094
student teaching pilot projects	88-05-046		88-12-044
	88-05-052	Powers and duties	88-05-064
	88-08-044		88-07-094
High school graduation requirements	88-01-109		88-12-044
Meetings	88-18-016	EQUIPMENT, COMMISSION ON	
	88-18-017	(See STATE PATROL)	
Private schools		EVERETT COMMUNITY COLLEGE	
minimum standards and certificate form	88-21-110	Central and field organization	88-08-053
Professional certification			88-12-005
academic requirements	88-21-011	Disclosure of student information	88-13-096
continuing education requirements	88-01-086		88-18-028
	88-21-109	Library code	88-08-019
general provisions	88-01-085		88-12-006
	88-05-045	Meetings	88-02-040
	88-05-047		88-04-025
	88-05-051	Office hours	88-10-023
	88-08-046		88-14-013
	88-08-073	Professional negotiations law	88-06-020
	88-13-009		88-10-014
masters in teaching degree	88-21-105	Records officer	88-10-023
preparation program	88-21-108		88-14-013
approval		Repealing obsolete rules	88-13-001
	88-03-025		88-13-097
	88-07-002		88-17-015
	88-17-038		88-17-082
	88-21-106		88-17-083
candidate admission and retention	88-12-015	Smoking regulations repealed	88-22-024
	88-21-013		88-08-022
requirements	88-17-039	Student rights and responsibilities	88-12-004
	88-21-107		88-17-016
standards	88-17-037		88-22-025
Specialized personnel standards	88-05-049	EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE, THE	
State support of public schools	88-05-024	Admissions procedure	88-22-060
	88-05-050	Affirmative action	88-01-047
	88-08-045	Commercial activity	88-22-081
Student/teacher ratio, K-3	88-21-103		88-23-025
Teacher education and certification	88-05-048	Community code of conduct	88-14-101
	88-12-013		88-14-102
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, DIVISION OF		Computer services	88-22-079
(See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)		Criminal trespass warnings	88-22-080
EMERGENCY RESPONSE COMMISSION		Equal opportunity	88-01-047
(See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)		Governance and decision making	88-01-047
			88-14-101
			88-14-102

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE, THE—cont.		FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.	
Library use	88-22-082	license transfer, notarization	88-13-005
Meetings	88-01-047		88-13-006
	88-02-002		88-16-004
	88-05-053		88-16-074
	88-06-027	Puget Sound, shrimp fishery	88-16-045
	88-13-057	salmon	
	88-20-071	Columbia River	88-05-014
Parking on campus	88-16-088		88-05-035
	88-19-096		88-07-014
	88-19-097		88-07-015
Personnel information, release	88-01-047		88-09-023
Pet policy	88-14-103		88-09-052
	88-17-070		88-13-063
	88-17-071		88-13-111
Staff education benefits	88-01-047		88-14-004
Student code of conduct	88-14-101		88-14-018
	88-14-102		88-14-034
	88-17-068		88-14-100
	88-17-069		88-17-010
			88-17-036
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, OFFICE OF			88-17-076
Paydates	88-13-092		88-18-019
	88-16-027		88-18-067
	88-24-057		88-19-012
			88-19-059
FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES DIVISION			88-19-060
(See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT,			88-19-100
DEPARTMENT OF)			88-20-021
FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF			88-20-050
Aquaculture disease control	88-12-009		88-21-008
<u>Commercial</u>			88-21-019
bottomfish			88-22-015
beam trawl opening/closure	88-03-009	Puget Sound	
	88-09-032	all-citizen	88-01-009
coastal catch limits	88-02-041		88-02-019
	88-09-004		88-15-025
	88-09-051		88-15-044
	88-14-020		88-15-067
	88-14-132		88-16-006
	88-16-003		88-16-010
	88-17-086		88-16-047
	88-19-089		88-17-004
	88-20-030		88-17-033
	88-23-115		88-17-077
dogfish	88-03-009		88-18-013
drag seine seasons	88-09-005		88-18-068
Pacific whiting seasons	88-07-034		88-19-014
trawl gear restrictions	88-13-070		88-19-015
	88-19-062		88-19-036
	88-19-063		88-19-046
	88-22-033		88-19-058
	88-23-075		88-19-099
Columbia River			88-20-005
areas, seasons, gear	88-14-136		88-20-011
	88-18-066		88-20-019
	88-19-012		88-20-049
	88-22-004		88-20-069
	88-22-005		88-21-010
	88-22-006		88-21-020
commercial fisheries	88-14-136		88-21-061
	88-18-066		88-21-075
	88-22-004		88-22-013
	88-22-005		88-22-042
	88-22-006		88-23-013
definitions	88-14-136		88-23-029
	88-18-066		88-23-033
	88-22-004		88-23-048
	88-22-005		88-23-064
Eastern Washington closure	88-18-087		88-23-073
gear testing areas	88-13-074		88-23-086
herring seasons	88-09-022		88-23-114
Hood Canal shrimp season	88-12-003		88-23-127
	88-13-071		88-24-015
	88-14-071	catch reporting areas	88-10-060
license application, required			88-13-069
identification	88-22-083		88-14-133
	88-23-087		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

closed areas 88-10-060
88-13-069
88-14-133
88-19-013

seasons

gill net 88-10-060
88-13-069
88-14-024
88-14-133
88-14-135
88-17-035
88-18-003
88-18-030
88-18-086
88-18-093
88-19-098
88-19-101
88-20-005
88-20-011
88-20-019
88-20-049
88-20-069
88-22-014
88-22-039
88-22-040
88-22-041
88-22-043
88-23-012

purse seine 88-10-060
88-13-069
88-14-133
88-20-011
88-20-019
88-20-049
88-20-069

reef net 88-10-060
88-13-069
88-14-133
88-20-005
88-20-011
88-20-049
88-20-069

separation zone 88-10-060
88-13-069
88-14-133

Strait of Juan de Fuca salmon preserve 88-10-060
88-13-069
88-14-133

treaty Indian restrictions 88-18-049

sea urchins 88-22-051

shad, seasons and areas 88-11-041
Willapa Bay 88-20-051

shellfish

classification 88-07-111
88-10-041
88-12-025

crab

seasons and areas 88-23-113

shrimp

Hood Canal 88-12-003
88-13-071
88-14-071

Puget Sound 88-16-045

unlawful acts 88-07-111
88-10-041
88-12-025

sturgeon 88-22-029

Washington Ship Canal 88-16-075
88-18-042

Willapa Harbor areas 88-14-024
88-19-015
88-22-039
88-23-012

FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Personal use

bag limits 88-08-055
88-12-046
88-14-010
88-20-010

bottomfish

possession limits 88-08-002

Duwamish waterway 88-16-005

Eastern Washington closure 88-18-087

food fish

areas and seasons

Klickitat River 88-19-035
88-19-088

Snake River 88-20-057
88-21-062

closure

Enetai Hatchery Outfall Creek 88-08-002

disability permit 88-08-002

free license procedure 88-02-048

halibut 88-01-036
88-03-075
88-03-076
88-06-050
88-08-002
88-10-012
88-10-013
88-16-028

Hood Canal shrimp season 88-12-003
88-14-071

Lake Washington 88-14-033
88-14-134
88-18-042

licenses generally 88-05-002

perch 88-03-075
88-10-013

mutilation to disguise length, weight, sex, or species unlawful 88-23-125

Puget Sound, shrimp fishery 88-16-045

salmon

bag limits 88-08-002
88-08-003
88-12-045
88-12-047
88-14-017
88-14-019
88-14-072
88-16-011
88-16-048
88-18-041
88-18-085
88-20-010
88-20-031
88-20-032
88-21-073
88-21-074
88-23-126

baitfish jigger gear 88-03-075
88-10-013

catch area 88-03-075
88-03-076
88-08-002
88-10-012

catch record 88-02-048
88-05-002

closures 88-21-009
88-21-045

Columbia River 88-08-002
88-17-005
88-17-034
88-17-055
88-17-065
88-17-101
88-20-004
88-20-032
88-21-060

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Cowlitz River 88-20-058
88-21-007

Duwamish River 88-20-020
harvests 88-03-075
88-03-076
88-10-012
88-10-013

hooks
single 88-08-002
treble 88-03-075
88-10-013

Lake Wenatchee 88-16-029
Naselle River 88-20-031
Nemah River 88-20-031
poles, number allowed 88-20-010
saltwater seasons 88-12-045
88-14-017
88-14-019
88-15-007
88-16-009
88-16-046
88-16-048
88-17-048
88-18-041
88-18-043
88-18-069
88-18-085
88-20-003
88-19-061
88-22-020

Skokomish River 88-02-048
validation stamp 88-05-002
88-20-031

Willapa River
shellfish
areas and seasons 88-08-002
88-19-007
88-19-039
88-19-088

bag limits 88-07-111
88-08-002
88-10-041
88-12-025

clams 88-03-075
88-07-013
88-08-002
88-10-013
88-21-076

crabs 88-03-075
88-08-002
88-10-013
88-07-111
88-08-002
88-10-041

gear 88-07-111
88-08-002
88-10-041

mutilation to disguise length, weight,
sex, or species unlawful
oysters 88-23-125
88-03-075
88-03-076
88-08-002
88-10-012
88-10-013

shrimp
Hood Canal 88-12-003
88-14-071

Puget Sound 88-16-045
Sequim Bay 88-11-040
88-14-016

unlawful acts 88-07-111
88-08-002
88-10-041
88-12-025

sturgeon
bag limits 88-08-002
catch areas 88-03-076
88-10-012
catch record 88-02-048
88-05-002

FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Columbia River 88-05-014
88-05-035

license 88-02-048
validation stamp 88-02-048
volunteer cooperative projects 88-23-096

FOREST PRACTICES BOARD

Definitions, general 88-12-033
88-19-112

Forest practices
agency requirements 88-12-033
88-19-112

classes 88-12-033
88-19-112

Manual 88-12-033
88-19-112

Meetings 88-19-112
88-02-013
88-09-046
88-14-090
88-16-087
88-20-073
88-12-033
88-19-112
88-12-033
88-19-112

Reforestation requirements 88-12-033
88-19-112

Timber harvesting 88-12-033
88-19-112

FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

GAMBLING COMMISSION

Amusement games 88-03-024
88-05-029
88-07-059
88-09-021
88-13-062
88-17-050
88-23-093
88-23-094
88-03-024
88-05-038
88-07-059
88-13-062
88-17-050
88-13-062
88-15-018
88-17-049
88-17-050
88-19-038
88-22-019
88-23-093

Bingo 88-22-018
88-13-061
88-13-100
88-17-050
88-23-093
88-07-061
88-09-020
88-11-071
88-13-060

Card games/rooms 88-11-070
88-15-019
88-15-018
88-19-038
88-13-062
88-17-050

Checks, acceptance 88-23-093
Credit, extension of, prohibited,
exceptions 88-22-018
Definitions 88-13-061
88-13-100
88-17-050
88-23-093
88-07-061
88-09-020
88-11-071
88-13-060

Fees 88-11-070
88-15-019
88-15-018
88-19-038
88-13-062
88-17-050

Fundraising events
activity report 88-11-070
88-15-019
88-15-018
88-19-038
88-13-062
88-17-050

Identification tags 88-13-062
88-17-050

Licenses
cards, chips, and other services,
licensee to provide 88-23-093
class income limit 88-09-020
88-11-070
88-15-019
88-09-020
88-13-060
88-09-020
88-13-060

issuance 88-09-020
88-13-060
88-09-020
88-13-060

lower volume gambling activities 88-09-020
88-13-060

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

GAMBLING COMMISSION—cont.		HAZARDOUS MATERIALS PLANNING COMMITTEE	
Punchboards/pull tabs	88-03-024	(See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)	
	88-07-059		
	88-09-020		
	88-13-061	HEALTH, BOARD OF	
	88-13-100	Communicable and certain other diseases	88-03-022
	88-13-117		88-07-063
	88-15-018		88-09-053
	88-17-050		88-13-103
Raffles	88-03-024		88-13-104
	88-07-059		88-13-108
	88-15-018		88-13-109
	88-19-038		88-17-057
Receipts	88-23-093		88-17-058
	88-13-062		88-18-102
	88-15-018		88-18-103
	88-17-050		
	88-19-038	Fetal death certificates, confidential sections not subject to public inspection	88-16-108
Records	88-03-024		88-19-092
	88-09-020		
	88-13-060	HIV infected persons, notification of local health officials	88-21-088
Reports	88-09-020		88-21-089
	88-13-060		
Stamps	88-03-024	Human remains handling and care	88-10-044
	88-09-020		88-13-080
	88-13-060		88-15-047
GAME			88-21-057
(See WILDLIFE, DEPARTMENT OF)			88-21-088
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF		transportation of	88-10-044
Banking definitions	88-11-002		88-13-080
	88-13-064	Labor camps	88-06-092
	88-16-066		88-10-027
industrial loan companies restrictions on charges	88-13-051	Live birth certificates, confidential sections not subject to public inspection	88-16-108
	88-14-002	Public water supplies	88-05-057
	88-14-093	Recreational water contact facilities	88-10-005
	88-18-076		88-13-125
	88-21-031	Sexually transmitted diseases	88-14-079
statement to borrower	88-13-051		88-17-056
	88-14-002		88-18-102
	88-14-093		88-18-103
	88-18-076	United States standard certificates, 1988 revision, board approval	88-21-093
	88-21-031		88-16-108
Savings and loan associations credit union business loans	88-11-050	HEARING AIDS, COUNCIL ON	
	88-22-047	AIDS prevention education examinations and reexaminations	88-20-060
de novo branches by foreign associations	88-02-067		88-21-078
mobile home lending	88-11-049	licenses, renewal	88-23-106
	88-17-032	recision by purchaser	88-21-078
trust powers	88-02-068	standards of practice	88-21-078
GEOGRAPHIC NAMES, BOARD ON		HIGHER EDUCATION COORDINATING BOARD	
Updating names	88-07-050	Future teacher conditional scholarship program	88-03-008
GOVERNOR, OFFICE OF THE		Math/science teacher incentive loan program	88-06-091
Advisory council for advanced technology in schools	88-23-061		88-10-003
Alliance against drugs	88-14-030	Need grant program	88-06-089
Coastal salmon troll license fees	88-10-007		88-10-001
Ferry County, state of emergency	88-18-097	Nurses conditional scholarship program	88-11-075
Forest fires, termination of emergency	88-20-033		88-14-089
Motor vehicle advisory committee	88-14-003	Washington state scholars program	88-11-074
Retrocession of jurisdiction of various Indian tribes	88-13-040		88-14-088
Twin Rivers Corrections Center	88-07-092	Work study program	88-06-090
Vocational education, state board for	88-20-001		88-10-002
Washington's financial future, committee on	88-09-001	HIGHER EDUCATION, JOINT CENTER FOR	
Wetlands study	88-11-008	Meetings	88-01-066
GRAYS HARBOR COLLEGE			88-23-027
Meetings	88-23-097	HIGHER EDUCATION PERSONNEL BOARD	
GREEN RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE		Appeals	
Meetings	88-02-045	alleged violations	88-17-106
	88-12-077		88-22-057
		burden of proof demotion	88-02-017
			88-06-063

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

HIGHER EDUCATION PERSONNEL BOARD—cont.

eligibility determinations	88-02-017
	88-02-018
layoff	88-06-063
motion for continuance	88-17-106
	88-22-057
remedial action	88-17-106
	88-22-057
separation	88-06-063
Applications	
acceptance	88-02-018
anonymity	88-02-018
	88-09-057
	88-13-018
disqualification, rejection	88-02-018
forms	88-02-018
materials, distribution	88-02-018
Appointment	
alternate	88-02-018
apprenticeship programs	88-02-018
conversion of exempt position	88-02-018
cyclic year position	88-02-018
emergency	88-02-018
intersystem/institutional moves	88-02-018
permanent status	88-02-018
probationary	88-02-018
provisional	88-02-017
	88-02-018
reassignment	88-02-018
returning employees	88-02-018
special employment programs	88-02-018
temporary	88-02-017
	88-02-018
transfer	
lateral movement	88-02-018
voluntary demotion	88-02-018
trial service	
defined	88-02-017
generally	88-02-018
reversion	88-02-018
Conclusions of law	88-06-063
Discipline	88-17-107
	88-22-057
Employee listings	88-04-069
	88-08-018
Examinations	
administration	88-02-018
eligibility	
appeals	
generally	88-02-017
right of appeal	88-02-018
	88-08-021
employee release time	88-02-018
evaluation of	88-02-018
final score	88-02-017
medical	88-02-018
promotional organization units	88-02-018
records requirements	88-02-018
requirement, responsibilities	88-02-018
results, notification, review	88-02-018
veterans preference	88-02-018
Exemptions	
classifications, positions, and employees	88-12-052
	88-15-023
general provisions	88-02-017
Findings of fact	88-06-063
Labor relations	
agency shop	
decertification election	88-02-072
	88-06-062
defined	88-02-072
dismissal	88-02-072
	88-06-062
nonassociation fee	88-02-072
	88-06-062

HIGHER EDUCATION PERSONNEL BOARD—cont.

representation fee	88-02-072
	88-06-062
representative election	88-02-072
	88-06-062
requirements	88-02-072
	88-06-062
bargaining units	88-02-072
employee organization filing requirements	88-02-072
	88-06-062
	88-06-075
	88-13-112
	88-18-018
unfair labor practices described	88-02-027
	88-02-071
Layoff	
generally	88-02-017
	88-17-107
	88-22-057
lists, institution-wide special employment programs	88-02-017
	88-17-107
	88-22-057
Lead	88-02-071
	88-13-115
	88-17-108
Leave	
emergency	
child care	88-09-056
	88-13-019
	88-09-056
maternity	88-13-019
	88-09-056
sick	88-13-019
	88-13-114
	88-17-008
vacation	
accrual	88-02-018
anniversary date	88-09-057
	88-13-018
Lists	
certification, specific positions	88-02-018
eligible list	
definition, composition	88-02-018
related list	88-02-018
modifications of minimum qualifications	88-02-018
removal of name, notice	88-02-018
Meetings	88-01-107
	88-07-021
	88-08-048
	88-09-055
	88-13-113
	88-17-105
	88-23-111
Noncompetitive service	88-02-018
Periodic increment date	88-12-052
	88-15-023
Position reallocation	
effect on incumbent	88-02-017
Recruitment notice	
publicity, duration	88-02-018
required content	88-02-018
Relief from effect of board's order	88-02-017
Resignation	88-17-107
	88-22-057
Rights, restoration	88-22-044
Salaries	
conversion of exempt position	88-02-017
periodic increment date	88-02-017
promotional increases	88-21-100
reallocation	88-02-027
	88-02-071
Superior court appeals	88-06-063
Training	
general provisions	88-02-017

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

HIGHER EDUCATION PERSONNEL BOARD—cont.		HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION—cont.	
Union shop			88-21-043
dismissal	88-06-075		88-21-082
	88-13-112		88-23-002
	88-18-018		88-23-098
nonassociation fee	88-06-075	Noncompliance by agencies/institutions	88-09-080
	88-13-112		
	88-18-018	INDETERMINATE SENTENCE REVIEW BOARD	
representation fee	88-06-075	Policies and procedures manual	88-09-040
	88-13-112		88-23-067
	88-18-018	INFORMATION SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF	
representative election	88-06-075	Meetings	88-06-018
	88-13-112		88-23-042
	88-18-018	Practice and procedure	88-18-089
requirements	88-06-075		88-21-029
	88-13-112	SEPA guidelines	88-18-089
	88-18-018		88-21-029
	88-22-044	INSURANCE COMMISSIONER	
HIGHLINE COMMUNITY COLLEGE		Commissioner's office, organization,	
Meetings	88-10-018	operations, information	88-20-024
	88-16-049		88-23-079
Student rights and responsibilities	88-03-047	Continuing education	88-01-074
	88-03-048	Health care pool	88-04-056
	88-07-119		88-07-051
	88-07-120		88-08-010
HISPANIC AFFAIRS, COMMISSION ON			88-08-051
Meetings	88-07-048		88-11-010
HORSE RACING COMMISSION		Licensing	
Alcohol violations	88-13-011	examination procedures	88-19-021
	88-17-075		88-22-058
Arabian horses			88-23-063
certification	88-01-077		88-24-054
	88-06-017	prelicensing education requirements	88-22-070
Definitions	88-13-011	Life insurance	
First-aid equipment and personnel	88-01-077	individual, franchise, group cash	
	88-06-017	surrender values	88-01-059
Medication	88-13-011		88-04-054
Testing	88-06-052	Medicare supplement insurance	88-19-056
	88-09-033		88-22-061
HOSPITAL COMMISSION		Mortality tables, reflecting differences	
Meetings	88-24-047	between smokers and nonsmokers	88-24-052
Patient discharge information	88-13-052	Phenylketonuria formula coverage	
	88-16-043	requirements and exceptions	88-13-123
	88-08-013		88-16-065
	88-08-052	Premiums, separation and accounting	88-15-036
	88-10-047		88-17-117
	88-11-033	Special liability insurance reports	88-23-103
	88-13-043	Surplus line, waiver of financial	
	88-13-044	requirements by broker and insured	88-24-051
	88-13-053	Unfair practices	88-07-073
	88-13-132		88-11-056
	88-16-042		88-21-083
	88-17-054		88-24-053
	88-19-094	Washington insurance guaranty association	88-01-007
	88-22-038		88-05-001
Review of rules review committee's		INTEREST RATES	
findings	88-03-065	(See inside front cover)	
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION		INVESTMENT BOARD	
Affirmative action	88-09-080	Meetings	88-01-078
Corrective employment programs	88-09-080		88-18-026
Meetings	88-01-105	JUVENILE DISPOSITION SENTENCING	
	88-01-106	STANDARDS	
	88-04-064	(See SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,	
	88-06-051	DEPARTMENT OF)	
	88-08-054	LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF	
	88-10-028	Amusement rides or structures	
	88-10-054	appeals	88-11-085
	88-12-081		88-16-002
	88-14-086	definitions	88-11-085
	88-14-087		88-16-002
	88-17-090	Attorneys general	88-04-050
	88-17-091		88-08-026
	88-18-035	Boilers, etc.	
	88-20-061	inspection	88-01-064

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF

LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF

—cont.

Electrical board	
definitions	88-11-085 88-16-002
duties	88-11-085 88-16-002
hearings	88-11-085 88-16-002
meetings	88-11-085 88-16-002
officers	88-11-085 88-16-002
Electrical testing laboratory accreditation	
appeals	88-11-085 88-16-002
definitions	88-11-085 88-16-002
evaluation	88-11-085 88-16-002
renewals	88-11-085 88-16-002
revocation and suspension	88-11-085 88-16-002
Elevators, dumbwaiters, etc.	88-04-053 88-07-101 88-13-128 88-13-129 88-18-101 88-19-053 88-19-054 88-24-022
Family leave	88-14-105 88-18-007 88-18-044 88-18-045 88-19-110 88-23-117
Industrial insurance	88-09-071 88-14-011 88-20-074 88-24-012
Journeyman electricians	
certificates	88-11-085 88-16-002
eligibility	88-11-085 88-16-002
experience	88-11-085 88-16-002
temporary permits	88-11-085 88-16-002
Medical aid rules and maximum	
fee schedules	88-01-111 88-04-051 88-04-052 88-06-036 88-09-072 88-14-012 88-19-111 88-24-011
Mobile homes	
definitions	88-14-104 88-19-010 88-24-045
foundation facia	88-14-104 88-19-010
inspection	88-14-104 88-19-010
site preparation	88-14-104 88-19-010
National electrical code, table headings	88-11-086 88-11-087 88-15-063
Nonmetallic cable systems	88-11-086 88-11-087 88-15-063

—cont.

Plumbers	
certification	88-06-037
exam	88-06-037
journeyman and specialty plumbers	
fee increase	88-01-046
reinstatement	88-06-037
temporary permits	88-06-037
Public works contracts	
overtime rates	88-13-045 88-14-106 88-16-013 88-18-008 88-19-055
prevailing wages	88-16-090 88-21-021 88-22-021 88-22-046
Rehabilitation review	88-07-100 88-12-096
Safety and health standards	
agriculture	88-09-074 88-14-108 88-18-071
benzene	88-16-044 88-16-092 88-21-001 88-21-002
construction work	88-06-073 88-09-074 88-11-021 88-14-108
electrical workers	88-18-071 88-06-073 88-11-021
explosives, possession, handling, and use	88-18-071
firefighters	88-09-074 88-14-108
formaldehyde	88-16-044 88-16-092 88-21-001 88-21-002
general	88-06-073 88-09-074 88-11-021 88-14-108 88-14-141 88-18-071 88-23-054 88-18-071
grain handling facilities	
hazardous waste operations and emergency response	88-16-044 88-16-092 88-21-001 88-21-002
logging operations	88-18-071
longshore, stevedore, waterfront operations	88-09-074 88-14-108
occupational	88-09-074 88-14-108 88-18-071
recordkeeping and reporting	88-09-074 88-14-108
sawmills and woodworking operations	88-18-071
ship repairing, building and breaking	88-09-074 88-14-108
ski area facilities	88-09-074 88-14-108
Self-insured employers	88-18-071 88-07-100 88-12-096

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF

—cont.	
Vocational rehabilitation	88-09-071 88-14-011 88-16-091 88-21-022
Worker's compensation	
boat building	88-06-072 88-12-050
building construction	88-06-072 88-12-050
employer group qualifications	88-12-048
fertilizer	88-06-072 88-12-050
horse racing	88-06-076 88-12-065
partnerships	
corporate officers and partners	88-02-059 88-06-048
piece rate rule	
hours worked	88-01-118 88-06-046 88-12-095 88-14-076
retrospective rating plans and group insurance plans	88-14-075 88-18-100 88-24-010
ninety-day open option	88-07-102 88-12-049
risk classifications	88-02-021 88-02-060 88-06-047 88-09-070 88-09-073 88-14-107 88-15-008 88-16-012 88-18-100 88-24-010 88-04-049
treatment requiring authorization	
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR (See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)	
LEGAL FOUNDATION OF WASHINGTON	
Meetings	88-02-003 88-06-044
LIBRARIES (See WASHINGTON STATE LIBRARY)	
LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF	
Acupuncture	
fees	88-11-026 88-15-030
practice and procedure	88-02-061 88-07-031
AIDS prevention and information, education requirements	88-17-102 88-17-103 88-17-104 88-22-077
Architects, board of registration for reciprocity	88-05-037 88-09-066
registration examination	88-01-035 88-14-007 88-17-085
Auctioneers	
renewal of registration	88-01-122
surety bond	88-15-081 88-23-034
Cemetery board	
cremation	88-03-062 88-07-032
section defined	88-03-062 88-07-032

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Charitable solicitations	88-11-027 88-15-031
Cosmetologists, barbers, and manicurists	88-13-130 88-19-047 88-05-059 88-11-024
Counselors, registered	
Dental disciplinary board	
specialty representation	88-17-042 88-23-078
Dental examiners, board of examinations	88-09-067 88-13-131 88-20-034
Dietitians and nutritionists	88-23-104
Director change	88-15-062 88-16-098
Escrow	
agreements and closings	88-18-084
commission meetings	88-08-023 88-19-016
escrow agents and officers duties and responsibilities	88-19-016 88-18-084 88-19-016 88-23-049
funds	88-19-016 88-18-084 88-19-016
license applications	88-19-016
organization and administration	88-08-087 88-19-016
records	88-18-084 88-19-016
Fees	88-15-017 88-15-039 88-15-042 88-16-099 88-16-105
Franchise Investment Protection Act	88-01-060 88-01-062
Funeral directors and embalmers	
AIDS prevention and information education requirements	88-19-050 88-23-105
apprenticeships	
termination, transfer and credit	88-01-024
continuing education	88-01-024
embalming/preparation room	88-01-132 88-08-015 88-08-016 88-08-037
endorsements	88-13-010 88-01-132 88-08-015 88-08-016
inspections	88-08-015 88-08-016 88-08-037
licenses	88-13-010 88-01-132 88-08-037
prearrangement contracts	88-13-010 88-01-132 88-08-015 88-08-016
restrictions	88-13-010 88-01-132 88-08-015 88-08-016
Health care assistants	
AIDS prevention and information education	88-17-102 88-22-076
minimum training	88-14-094 88-17-043
Hulk haulers and scrap processors	88-01-032 88-04-026 88-06-025
Landscape architects	
examination	
qualifications for admittance	88-02-069 88-05-025
fees	88-04-027
licenses	
exam	88-06-059 88-12-018

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

renewal 88-01-022
88-01-023

proctoring program 88-12-041
88-15-041

Marriage/family therapists 88-05-062
88-11-079
88-22-074
88-23-090
88-23-091

Massage, board of
communicable diseases 88-11-055
88-14-097

education 88-08-088
88-13-038

examination, need for translator 88-16-069
88-19-048

fees 88-18-081
88-19-002
88-24-042

practitioners 88-06-034
88-11-011

reciprocity 88-16-069
88-19-048
88-15-002

Mechanotherapy

Medical disciplinary board
drug/autotransfusion
prohibited use to enhance athletic
ability 88-09-068
88-14-112

investigations, cooperation
meetings 88-04-080
88-02-001
88-08-017

Medical examiners, board of
meetings 88-02-001
88-04-015
88-08-076
88-10-008
88-16-096
88-06-008
88-16-018
88-16-020
88-21-047
88-21-047

physician assistants 88-05-060
88-11-025

physicians 88-08-035
88-12-040
88-17-051

Medical health counselors

Midwifery

Motor vehicle fuel distributors
control of common carrier fuel
delivery vehicle 88-19-076
88-23-015

Motor vehicles
certificates of title 88-11-023
88-19-113
88-23-037

destroyed vehicles, report to
department 88-19-113
88-20-035
88-23-037

disabled person parking privileges
driving without valid license 88-01-010
88-14-038
88-14-111

fuel tax 88-04-029
88-07-095
88-23-122
88-23-123

plates
cancellation of 88-14-038
88-14-111
88-19-017
88-19-119
88-23-016
88-01-010
88-01-010
88-01-010

disabled persons
honorary consulars
Pearl Harbor survivors

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

personalized 88-07-116
88-12-043

preexisting
veteran's free license 88-07-116
88-01-010
88-14-038
88-14-111
88-19-017
88-19-017
88-19-119
88-23-016
88-01-010

ride-sharing vehicles
vehicle registration reciprocity
and proration (IRP) 88-03-030
88-03-067
88-06-061
88-20-075

Naturopathic physicians, license fees
Naturopathy, examinations, candidates
rights to appeal 88-23-107
88-11-090
88-14-009
88-15-079
88-15-080
88-16-019
88-17-096
88-17-097

Naturopathy services

Nursing, board of
AIDS education and training 88-19-116
88-23-035
88-12-042
88-16-034

appeals

ARNP
application requirements 88-01-102
88-07-049
88-12-042
88-16-034
88-12-042
88-12-042
88-16-034
88-18-082
88-12-042
88-16-034
88-12-042
88-16-034
88-19-116

termination of

consultation services 88-12-042
88-16-034

definitions 88-12-042
88-16-034
88-19-116

examinations
licensing 88-12-042
88-16-034
88-19-116
88-12-042
88-16-034
88-12-042
88-16-034
88-19-116

release of results

license renewal 88-12-042
88-16-034
88-19-116

nursing assistants training and
registration 88-19-117
88-20-006
88-23-036
88-20-075

fees
nursing education programs, approval 88-12-042
88-16-034

refresher courses, approval criteria 88-01-103
88-05-010
88-20-075

registered nurses, fees
schools of nursing, approval 88-12-042
88-16-034
88-19-116

substance abuse monitoring programs

Nursing home administrators, board
of examiners for
AIDS prevention and education
requirements 88-19-049
88-23-038
88-19-049
88-23-038
88-10-056
88-19-049
88-23-038

courses of study

temporary permits

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Nursing pools	
fees	88-16-032 88-16-033 88-16-106 88-20-076 88-18-080 88-18-080
registration requirements	
reporting, mandatory	
Occupational therapy practice board	
educational programs	88-05-061 88-09-031 88-22-073 88-09-048
licensure exemption	
Optometry, board of	
AIDS prevention and information	
education required	88-21-085
continuing education	88-03-071 88-07-047
credits	
courses	88-03-071 88-07-047
reports	88-03-071 88-07-047
surplus hours	88-03-071 88-07-047
equipment requirements	88-14-039 88-21-084 88-22-072
licenses	
renewal	88-03-071 88-07-047
permits	
temporary	88-03-071 88-07-047
Osteopathic medicine and surgery,	
board of	
AIDS training and education	88-20-059 88-22-075 88-23-124
drug/autotransfusion	
prohibited use to enhance athletic	
ability	88-11-088 88-14-113 88-17-098 88-21-081
examination	88-03-035 88-09-030 88-11-088 88-14-113
health care services contractors and	
insurance carriers	88-01-104
malpractice suit reporting	88-03-035 88-09-030
physicians' assistants	88-03-035 88-09-030 88-11-088 88-14-113 88-01-104
professional review organizations	
Physical therapy board	
AIDS education and training	
examination	
appeal procedures	88-03-033 88-08-036 88-23-057
physical therapy defined	
Podiatry board	
AIDS training and education	
licenses	
examinations	88-08-075 88-11-034 88-20-088 88-08-075 88-04-015 88-06-035
renewals	
meetings	
Practical nursing, board of	
advisory opinions	88-13-094 88-18-005

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

AIDS education and training	88-21-024 88-24-017
authorization to practice	88-13-094 88-18-005 88-21-024 88-13-094 88-18-005 88-21-024 88-20-075 88-01-121 88-05-011 88-04-077 88-08-034 88-13-094 88-18-005 88-13-094 88-13-094 88-13-094
licensing	
examinations	
fees	
graduates of foreign schools	
qualifications	
renewal	
refresher courses	
return to active status	
Professional licensing examination	
appeals	88-15-040
Psychology, examining board of	
licenses	
AIDS education and training	88-19-115 88-21-023 88-23-059 88-06-007 88-09-029 88-19-115 88-06-007 88-09-029 88-06-007 88-09-029
education	
renewal	
experience	
reciprocity	
permits	
temporary	88-06-007 88-09-029 88-06-007 88-09-029 88-16-071 88-21-079
public statements	
Radiologic technologists	
certification	
Real estate	
affiliated licensees	88-20-091 88-24-059 88-20-091 88-24-059 88-20-090 88-24-058 88-16-097 88-16-109 88-20-036 88-20-037 88-20-089 88-24-031 88-02-038 88-02-049 88-06-040 88-10-057 88-11-089 88-16-097 88-16-102 88-17-003 88-20-091 88-24-059 88-16-097 88-20-036 88-20-037 88-08-024 88-12-008 88-02-050 88-02-051 88-06-039
courses, required content and materials	
disclosure of agency representation	
examinations	
funds held in trust	
licenses	
meetings	
names prohibited	
office requirement if licensed in	
another jurisdiction	88-02-050 88-02-051 88-06-039

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

salesperson, associate broker license termination	88-02-051 88-06-039
Reporting of unprofessional conduct mandatory	88-15-043
Respiratory care practitioners certification	88-03-034 88-10-015
examination	88-03-034 88-10-015 88-19-114 88-23-001
exemption	88-03-034 88-10-015 88-19-114
fees	88-14-006 88-14-008 88-17-099
Securities	
blue chip exemption	88-01-061
definitions and terms	88-11-032 88-11-083 88-15-024
exemptions	88-11-032 88-11-083 88-15-024
fees	88-15-006 88-16-101
license effective date	88-12-027 88-17-011
preliminary notes	88-11-032 88-11-083 88-15-024
regulation and registration	88-03-015
salesperson	
exemption from examination	88-12-027 88-17-011
registration and examination	88-12-027 88-17-011
uniform limited offering registration	88-12-026 88-17-012
Social workers	88-05-063 88-11-078
Tow trucks	88-01-032 88-04-026 88-06-025
Uniform commercial code	
field access	88-03-037
filing forms and procedures	88-14-044 88-14-045 88-20-025 88-23-121
Unprofessional conduct, mandatory reporting	88-15-043
Vessels	
dealer registration	88-03-001 88-03-038
disclosure of vessel owners names and addresses	88-19-118 88-24-003
temporary permits to operate	88-01-011
Veterinary board of governors	
AIDS prevention and information education required	88-21-080
disciplinary reinstatement procedures	88-21-080
emergency services	88-05-041 88-08-033
examinations	88-05-041 88-08-033
honesty, integrity, and fair dealing	88-21-080
medical facilities	88-05-041 88-08-033
Wreckers	88-01-032 88-04-026 88-06-025

LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

Advertising	88-04-060 88-04-061 88-07-026 88-22-068
Banquet permit not required beer or wine provided as part of instruction to liquor licensees	88-19-019 88-22-026
Beer labels	88-12-075 88-14-131 88-20-007 88-20-008 88-22-045 88-22-065 88-23-052
Business entertainment activities	88-05-012 88-13-003
Central and field organization	88-13-067 88-16-026
Change of name	88-01-033 88-04-028
Chemical analysis procedures	88-11-084 88-14-001
Class H restaurant	88-04-082
Clubs, designation of portion	88-07-058 88-06-055 88-08-056
Conduct on licensed premises	88-17-093 88-20-085 88-24-035
Containers	
biodegradable and recyclable	88-08-028
Contested cases	
hearings	88-06-056 88-08-057
Educational activities, other entertainment prohibited	88-17-113 88-20-084
Gifts or money, affidavit, oath	88-06-054 88-13-003
Guest and courtesy cards	88-01-016 88-04-083 88-07-060 88-01-030
Index	
Licenses	
nonretail	88-05-007 88-07-090
managers to keep registered hours	88-20-028 88-23-032
prorating fee	88-13-066 88-16-025
suspension	88-14-036 88-17-023
Liquor importation	88-04-087 88-07-025
Manufacturers	88-17-112 88-20-087
Meetings	88-02-022
Minors	
employment	88-01-015 88-17-094 88-20-086
Nonliquor food items	88-07-076 88-07-091 88-09-061 88-10-049
Prepaid deposit accounts	88-21-070 88-23-101
Quality standards	88-08-025 88-11-009
Review of rules	88-02-023
Room service licenses	88-21-069 88-23-100
Seized liquor disposal	88-13-065 88-16-040

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD—cont.

Tax refunds 88-11-001
88-13-118
Wine labels 88-12-074
88-14-130
88-17-095
88-23-053

LOTTERY COMMISSION

Contested cases 88-02-062
88-06-031
Instant games criteria 88-13-122
88-17-024

Instant game number 29 – Windfall

criteria 88-02-005
definitions 88-02-005
ticket validation 88-02-005

Instant game number 30 – Quick Silver

criteria 88-02-004
definitions 88-02-004
ticket validation 88-02-004

Instant game number 31 – Three of a Kind

criteria 88-02-062
88-06-031
88-02-062
88-06-031
definitions 88-06-031
88-02-062
88-06-031
ticket validation 88-02-062
88-06-031

Instant game number 32 – Double Decker

criteria 88-06-049
88-09-014
88-06-049
88-09-014
definitions 88-06-049
88-09-014
88-06-049
88-09-014
ticket validation 88-06-049
88-09-014

Instant game number 33 – Instant Replay

criteria 88-09-069
88-13-008
88-09-069
88-13-008
definitions 88-09-069
88-13-008
88-09-069
88-13-008
ticket validation 88-09-069
88-13-008

Instant game number 34 – Tic-Tac-Toe

criteria 88-13-122
88-17-024
88-13-122
88-17-024
definitions 88-13-122
88-17-024
88-13-122
88-17-024
ticket validation 88-13-122
88-17-024

Instant game number 35 – Stocking Stuffer

criteria 88-13-122
88-17-024
88-13-122
88-17-024
definitions 88-13-122
88-17-024
88-13-122
88-17-024
ticket validation 88-13-122
88-17-024

Instant game number 36 – Fat Cat

criteria 88-17-116
88-21-051
88-17-116
88-21-051
definitions 88-17-116
88-21-051
88-17-116
88-21-051
ticket validation 88-17-116
88-21-051

Instant game number 37 – Three Cards Up

criteria 88-17-116
88-21-051
88-17-116
88-21-051
definitions 88-17-116
88-21-051
88-17-116
88-21-051
ticket validation 88-17-116
88-21-051

Instant game number 38 – Jackpot

criteria 88-21-114
88-21-114
88-21-114
definitions 88-21-114
88-21-114
ticket validation 88-21-114

Instant game number 39 – Centennial Cash

criteria 88-21-114
88-21-114
88-21-114
definitions 88-21-114
88-21-114
ticket validation 88-21-114

LOTTERY COMMISSION—cont.

Meetings 88-21-050
On-line games 88-02-062
retailer selection criteria 88-06-031
Proposed orders 88-02-066
Ticket purchases 88-05-030
88-13-122
88-17-024
Video machines prohibited

LOWER COLUMBIA COLLEGE

Meetings 88-24-032

MARINE EMPLOYEES' COMMISSION

Address 88-06-057
88-10-019
Subpoenas 88-06-057
88-10-019

MESSAGE, BOARD OF

(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

MEDICAL DISCIPLINARY BOARD

(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

MEDICAL EXAMINERS, BOARD OF

(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

MINORITY AND WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, OFFICE OF

Activities prohibited 88-14-129
88-18-006
88-22-017
Certification/decertification/recertification 88-06-043
88-06-074
88-09-010
88-09-047
88-09-059
88-14-047
88-14-048
88-17-045

Contracting base exclusions

Death or disability of owner

Definitions

Goals

Ownership control determination

Penalties

Size

Size and length of time in business

Small business concern

Violations

NATURAL RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF

Burning privileges suspended 88-16-023
88-16-024
88-16-041
88-16-067
88-17-006
88-18-014
88-18-029

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in bold type refer to material in this issue)

NATURAL RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.		OUTDOOR RECREATION, INTERAGENCY COMMITTEE FOR	
	88-18-072	Meetings	88-04-058
	88-19-052		88-11-022
	88-19-083		88-18-074
	88-20-009		
	88-20-016	PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION	
	88-21-052	Bicycles, other nonmotorized devices,	
Burning restrictions reduced	88-22-048	in state parks	88-22-053
	88-20-009	Campsite reservations	88-04-075
	88-20-016		88-07-074
	88-23-006	Fees	88-04-075
Forest fire advisory board meetings	88-04-017	Filming	88-07-074
	88-13-004		88-04-075
	88-15-070		88-07-074
	88-20-015	Fort Warden	
Forest lands closure	88-19-011	recreational and conference center housing and meeting room fees	88-19-104
	88-19-022		88-22-050
	88-20-026	Little Spokane River natural area	88-06-095
Industrial fire tool requirements closed season	88-09-007		88-10-017
Interest rate on interfund loans	88-19-120	Marine facilities	88-04-075
	88-22-049		88-07-074
Meetings	88-09-011	Meetings	88-01-026
	88-11-006	Passes, free or reduced price for senior citizens, disabled persons, and veterans	88-16-089
	88-12-001		88-19-087
	88-16-015	Restricted areas	88-06-095
Natural heritage advisory council meetings	88-01-117		88-10-017
	88-09-003	Squak Mountain State Park, prohibited uses	88-16-089
Oil and gas leases	88-20-056		88-19-087
Open water disposal sites	88-08-074	Volunteers in parks, applicability of standard fees	88-12-066
	88-13-082		88-15-068
Outdoor rule burn		PERSONNEL, DEPARTMENT OF	
Eastern Washington	88-14-073	Agency shop	88-01-072
Public lands, leasing of	88-17-007		88-07-044
Woodard Bay acquisition	88-06-016		88-10-030
NOXIOUS WEED BOARD			88-13-056
(See AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF)			88-15-059
NUCLEAR WASTE BOARD			88-18-009
Nuclear waste advisory council meetings	88-02-028	Allocation/reallocation	88-10-031
			88-13-055
NURSING, BOARD OF			88-15-060
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)		Appointments	88-04-066
NURSING HOME ADMINISTRATORS, BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR			88-04-067
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)			88-14-065
OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY PRACTICE BOARD			88-18-094
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)			88-18-096
OIL AND GAS CONSERVATION COMMITTEE		Arbitration	88-21-028
Meetings	88-06-003		88-01-073
	88-06-005		88-07-043
	88-21-005		88-10-029
Seismic surveys	88-07-115	Bargaining unit	88-13-054
	88-14-026		88-15-058
Wells			88-18-010
application to drill	88-07-115		88-01-073
	88-14-026		88-07-043
	88-07-115		88-10-029
exploratory locations	88-14-026		88-13-054
	88-07-115		88-15-058
reclamation plan	88-07-115	Call-back	88-18-010
	88-14-026	Career executive program	88-04-033
			88-04-068
OLYMPIC COLLEGE			88-14-065
Meetings	88-23-031		88-18-096
OPTOMETRY, BOARD OF		Certification	
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)		errors, correction process	88-18-095
OSTEOPATHIC MEDICINE AND SURGERY, BOARD OF			88-21-065
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)		exhausted register	88-04-068
			88-14-065
		general methods requests	88-18-096
			88-04-031
			88-04-068
			88-14-065
			88-18-096

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

PERSONNEL, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Disciplinary action 88-01-067
88-03-040
88-04-067
88-06-013
88-06-014
88-07-040
Dismissal 88-01-071
Drug testing 88-01-068
88-03-042
Election provision 88-01-073
88-07-043
88-10-029
88-13-054
88-15-058
88-18-010
Employee appointment status
upward reallocation 88-01-069
88-10-031
88-13-055
88-14-069
88-14-092
88-15-060
88-17-041
Employee organizations 88-01-072
88-07-044
88-10-030
88-13-056
88-15-059
88-18-009
Exclusive representative 88-01-073
88-07-043
88-10-029
88-13-054
88-15-058
88-18-010
Filing papers, computation of time 88-08-058
88-11-037
Holidays 88-06-022
88-09-035
88-11-035
88-11-036
88-24-040
Hours of work 88-04-035
88-07-042
Intermittent employment 88-04-068
88-14-065
88-18-094
88-18-096
88-21-028
Leave
military training 88-04-030
88-04-065
88-07-045
miscellaneous 88-04-034
88-07-046
88-24-040
productivity award 88-04-032
88-07-041
Mediation 88-01-073
88-07-043
88-10-029
88-13-054
88-15-058
88-18-010
Notice to employee 88-01-071
Overtime compensation 88-08-008
88-11-039
88-13-068
88-17-025
88-21-042
Probationary period
status of employee 88-01-070
88-03-039
88-06-001

PERSONNEL, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Project employment 88-04-068
88-14-065
88-18-096
Reduction in force 88-04-068
88-14-065
88-18-096
Reduction in salary
demotion 88-01-071
88-03-043
Resignation 88-03-041
Schedule change 88-08-008
88-11-039
88-13-068
88-17-025
88-21-042
Salary changes, consideration of
fiscal impact 88-22-052
Service of process 88-18-065
88-21-064
Shift premium for nurses 88-14-066
88-14-068
88-15-061
88-17-046
88-19-023
Standby compensation 88-14-067
88-17-026
88-21-041
Suspension
dismissal 88-01-071
88-03-043
duration 88-01-071
88-03-043
notice 88-03-043
Temporary employment 88-04-068
88-14-065
88-18-096
88-24-041
Trial service period 88-01-070
88-03-039
88-06-001
Unfair labor practices 88-01-072
88-01-073
88-07-043
88-07-044
88-10-029
88-10-030
88-13-054
88-13-056
88-15-058
88-15-059
88-18-009
88-18-010
88-01-072
88-01-073
88-07-043
88-07-044
88-10-029
88-10-030
88-13-054
88-15-058
88-18-009
88-18-010
88-22-066
88-08-009
88-11-038
88-14-070
88-01-031
88-05-028
PHARMACY, BOARD OF
AIDS prevention and information
education requirements 88-19-075
88-23-058

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

PHARMACY, BOARD OF—cont.

Buildings or facilities 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070

Components 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Condoms, conditions for sale 88-16-100
88-20-038

Containers and closures 88-01-025

Contested cases 88-03-036
88-06-026

Controlled substances
distribution reporting 88-19-075
88-23-040
88-24-016

Definitions 88-11-082
88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Dialysis 88-03-036
88-06-026

Emergency outpatient medications **88-24-046**

Equipment 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Fees 88-03-066
88-07-011
88-10-033
88-11-082
88-14-042
88-23-080
88-24-046

Internships 88-01-025
88-06-060

Laboratory controls 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

License renewal 88-11-081
88-11-082
88-14-041
88-14-042

Manufacturing practices 88-11-082
88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Packaging and labeling 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Personnel 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Pharmaceutical services 88-07-097
88-11-007

Pharmacy assistants
AIDS prevention and education
requirement **88-24-046**
board of approval 88-11-080
88-14-043

level A 88-11-080
88-14-043

level B 88-11-080
88-14-043

Precursors
immediate 88-06-060
88-07-097
88-11-007

substance control 88-10-032
88-11-082
88-14-096

PHARMACY, BOARD OF—cont.

Prescriptions
information to be provided to patient 88-19-075
88-20-092
88-23-040
88-24-016

records 88-11-081
88-19-075
88-23-058
88-24-016

transfers 88-11-081
88-19-075
88-23-058
88-24-016

Production and control 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Records 88-13-093
88-14-029
88-16-070
88-21-025

Teat dip, reuse of containers and
closures 88-01-025

PHYSICAL THERAPY BOARD
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

PIERCE COLLEGE
Meetings 88-21-016

PILOTAGE COMMISSIONERS, BOARD OF
Disciplinary or corrective action 88-06-069
88-10-035
88-14-062
88-01-095
88-05-016
88-09-026
88-06-067
88-10-038
88-01-099
88-05-019
88-09-015
88-10-036
88-14-063

Emergency meeting 88-01-101
88-05-021
88-09-017
88-05-043
88-22-071
88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

Examination review and appeal procedures 88-06-067
88-10-038
88-01-099
88-05-019
88-09-015
88-10-036
88-14-063

Exempt vessels 88-01-099
88-05-019
88-09-015
88-10-036
88-14-063

Fees 88-01-101
88-05-021
88-09-017
88-05-043
88-22-071
88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

Grays Harbor district
definition 88-01-101
88-05-021
88-09-017
88-05-043
88-22-071
88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

tariffs and rates 88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

Licensing of pilots 88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

summary/temporary suspension 88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

Physical requirements 88-01-097
88-06-066
88-10-037
88-06-070
88-10-040
88-01-098
88-05-018
88-09-027

Puget Sound district
rates 88-05-039
88-01-100
88-05-020
88-09-016
88-06-068
88-10-039
88-01-096
88-05-017
88-09-025

Refusal of certain pilots, procedure 88-01-100
88-05-020
88-09-016
88-06-068
88-10-039
88-01-096
88-05-017
88-09-025

Retirement fund contribution 88-06-068
88-10-039
88-01-096
88-05-017
88-09-025

Special meeting 88-01-096
88-05-017
88-09-025

POLLUTION CONTROL COMMISSION
(See ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF)

PRACTICAL NURSING, BOARD OF
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

PRODUCTIVITY BOARD
Cash awards, eligibility 88-18-048
88-21-099
88-23-076

Meetings 88-18-048
88-21-099
88-23-076

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

PRODUCTIVITY BOARD—cont.		RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, DEPARTMENT OF	
Teamwork incentive program	88-12-078	—cont.	
	88-15-033	tax treatment revision, earnable compensation redefined	88-01-131 88-11-031
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS, BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR (See ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS)		REVENUE, DEPARTMENT OF	
PSYCHOLOGY, EXAMINING BOARD OF (See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)		Annual assessment, company's procedures	88-12-084 88-12-085 88-15-016 88-10-025 88-13-041
PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COMMISSION		Application for property tax exemption	88-10-025 88-13-041
Agency lobbying constituent group relations	88-04-063 88-09-008	Commercial deep sea and passenger fishing diesel fuel	88-01-051 88-03-055
Definitions	88-01-001 88-04-062 88-06-019 88-11-064 88-14-064	Day care centers, libraries, orphanages, homes for the aged, homes for the sick or infirm, hospitals	88-02-010
Financial affairs statement, forms	88-17-110 88-20-029	Equalization boards reconvening	88-07-005 88-12-023 88-12-024 88-15-066
Major political party, definition repealed	88-17-110 88-20-029	Food products	88-02-025 88-02-026 88-10-048 88-14-031 88-14-032
Real property, description of	88-17-110 88-20-029	Forest land and timber	88-02-025 88-02-026 88-10-048 88-14-031 88-14-032
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS COMMISSION		Hazardous substance tax	88-20-055 88-22-067 88-23-055 88-02-011 88-02-012 88-06-028
Case rules		Hospitals, medical care facilities, and adult family homes	88-01-050
grievance arbitration	88-07-084 88-12-057	Hotels, motels, resorts, trailer camps, etc.	88-17-072 88-20-014 88-03-017 88-07-004 88-04-020 88-01-050 88-14-005 88-17-047 88-17-114 88-21-014
impasse resolution	88-07-083 88-12-055	Inflation rates	88-03-017 88-07-004 88-04-020 88-01-050 88-14-005 88-17-047 88-17-114 88-21-014
representation	88-07-080 88-12-054	Irrigation systems	88-04-020
unfair labor practice	88-07-082 88-12-056	Lien for taxes	88-01-050
union security	88-07-085 88-12-058	Manufacturers, tax credits	88-14-005 88-17-047 88-17-114 88-21-014
unit clarification	88-07-081 88-12-061	Manufacturing, processing for hire	88-17-114 88-21-014
General procedures	88-07-079 88-12-053	Marketing associations and independent dealers, sale of fruit and produce	88-17-072 88-20-014 88-22-087 88-02-010 88-17-118 88-23-062 88-17-072 88-20-014 88-22-010 88-22-011
Special provision		Mobile homes and mobile home park fees	88-22-087
academic employees	88-12-062 88-12-063 88-12-064	Nonprofit, nonsectarian organizations	88-02-010
state patrol personnel		Open Space Taxation Act	88-17-118 88-23-062 88-17-072 88-20-014 88-22-010 88-22-011
PUBLIC INSTRUCTION (See SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION)		Packing materials and containers	88-17-072 88-20-014 88-22-010 88-22-011
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD (See COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)		Property tax, levies, calculation	88-22-010 88-22-011
PUGET SOUND WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY		Public utilities	
Meetings	88-01-083 88-07-023 88-10-016 88-11-020 88-18-027 88-23-008 88-04-023 88-06-053	apportionment of operating property to various entities	88-02-009
Nonpoint source pollution		Real property, exempt use	88-10-025 88-13-041
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, DEPARTMENT OF		Refunds	
Actuarial tables	88-13-121 88-17-053	interest rates	88-02-070 88-03-016 88-07-003
Public employees' retirement board tax treatment revision, earnable compensation redefined	88-01-129 88-11-030	Religious, charitable, benevolent, etc. workshops	88-17-114 88-21-014
Teachers' retirement board of trustees service credit, full and part time	88-01-130 88-13-120 88-17-052	Returned goods, allowances, cash discounts	88-01-050
		Sales and use tax deferral	88-14-005 88-17-047
		Senior citizen and disabled persons exemption	88-02-008 88-10-025 88-13-041

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

REVENUE, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.		SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.	
Special assessments and/or property taxes deferral definitions	88-10-026 88-13-042	earned income disregard effect of resources on financial need	88-21-035 88-05-013 88-19-068
farm and agricultural land	88-13-034 88-23-062	eligibility	88-01-125 88-04-019 88-04-036 88-04-039 88-04-045 88-06-084 88-07-052 88-07-056 88-09-039 88-14-137 88-18-056 88-18-057 88-18-104 88-19-029 88-24-009
limitations	88-10-026 88-13-042		88-07-117 88-07-055 88-18-105 88-21-094
qualifications	88-10-026 88-13-042	date of change employment and training programs grant suspension	88-23-102 88-16-055 88-19-030
Use tax collection, businesses required to collect specified	88-23-116	notice, translation for non-English speaking recipients	88-21-035 88-06-082 88-08-078 88-05-005 88-05-006 88-06-081 88-08-079 88-18-052 88-18-054 88-18-060 88-21-096 88-22-036 88-07-117 88-12-086 88-12-094 88-15-013 88-22-085 88-22-086
RULES REVIEW COMMITTEE		income allocations among assistance units deductions	88-21-035 88-06-082 88-08-078
Letter to governor requesting positive action on suspension of WAC 388-100-005	88-10-011	exclusions	88-05-005 88-05-006 88-06-081 88-08-079 88-18-052 88-18-054 88-18-060 88-21-096 88-22-036
SEATTLE COMMUNITY COLLEGES		hearings aids	88-12-086 88-12-094 88-15-013 88-22-085 88-22-086
Meetings	88-04-021 88-06-004 88-08-011 88-08-077 88-11-029 88-12-037 88-13-086 88-13-087 88-14-099 88-15-064 88-17-092 88-19-024 88-21-066 88-23-026 88-03-044 88-08-069	support of legal dependents underpayment, repayment to recipient underpayment, moneys received for, not considered income	88-04-018 88-19-069 88-16-052 88-16-062 88-07-117 88-21-090 88-04-088 88-08-039 88-16-053 88-16-061 88-19-070 88-09-078 88-12-089
Student complaints		use of notices of adverse actions overissuance	88-04-046 88-08-040 88-15-076 88-15-078 88-06-080 88-08-081 88-04-038 88-07-118
SEATTLE-KING COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH		overpayments	88-16-056 88-16-059 88-16-057 88-16-058 88-21-087 88-24-026
Meetings	88-13-076	prepaid health plans	
SECRETARY OF STATE		program violations disqualification hearing	
Absentee ballots, uniform procedures	88-03-019	property, determination of ownership	
Charitable solicitations	88-05-054 88-09-028	resources, exempt	
SECURITIES DIVISION		time limit for disposal	
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)		transportation to and from medical care services	
SHORELINE COMMUNITY COLLEGE		underpayments	
Meetings	88-01-120	AIDS nursing home	
SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE			
College facilities, use policy	88-19-090 88-24-013		
Meetings	88-01-054		
Parking and traffic regulations	88-19-090 88-24-014		
Student conduct rules	88-19-084 88-24-014		
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF			
Adult family home care, standards of assistance	88-19-032		
AFDC and general assistance applications, denial, reconsideration board and room, monthly standard	88-21-036 88-17-123 88-18-055		
child in need of specialized education or training	88-04-037 88-04-040 88-07-062		
clothing and personal maintenance, monthly standard definitions, general	88-20-082 88-12-086 88-12-094 88-15-013		
disposal actions disregard of income and resources Alaska Native Indians	88-21-036 88-01-045 88-19-028		

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

<p>SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.</p> <p>Alcohol and drug treatment facilities Alcoholism and drug addiction treatment and support assessment centers</p> <p>protective payee pilot project</p> <p>shelter services</p> <p>Alcoholism detoxification program</p> <p>Boards definition</p> <p>Boarding homes operation and maintenance standards</p> <p>Burial services, cost standards</p> <p>Certificate of need transfer prohibited</p> <p>Child care services</p> <p>Child protective services definitions</p> <p>goals</p> <p>guidelines for interviewing</p> <p>notification</p> <p>Child support obligations</p> <p>Chore services control expenditures</p> <p>definitions</p> <p>eligible individuals</p> <p>employed disabled applicants</p> <p>legal basis for program</p> <p>monthly dollar lid</p> <p>payment</p> <p>service determinations</p> <p>Congregate care facilities, standards of assistance</p> <p>Criminal justice cost reimbursement</p> <p>Deaf services TDD</p> <p>Definitions</p>	<p>88-23-041</p> <p>88-21-037 88-21-040 88-19-027 88-23-020 88-21-037 88-21-040 88-07-053 88-07-054 88-08-001 88-10-042 88-10-045 88-13-110</p> <p>88-11-059 88-16-083</p> <p>88-21-086 88-15-009 88-18-023 88-18-055</p> <p>88-07-121 88-20-078 88-20-081 88-24-023</p> <p>88-02-029 88-02-035 88-02-029 88-02-035 88-02-035 88-02-029 88-02-035 88-02-029 88-02-035</p> <p>88-14-085 88-14-138 88-18-031</p> <p>88-02-065 88-06-088 88-08-059 88-11-062 88-01-037 88-01-039 88-13-105 88-17-064 88-13-105 88-17-064 88-02-065 88-06-088 88-13-105 88-17-064 88-01-037 88-01-039 88-12-031 88-19-031 88-13-105 88-17-064 88-13-105 88-17-064</p> <p>88-19-032 88-12-090 88-15-012</p> <p>88-01-124 88-01-127 88-04-090 88-08-080 88-11-057 88-15-021</p>	<p>SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.</p> <p>Developmentally disabled eligibility IMR program and reimbursement system</p> <p>Emergency assistance program</p> <p>Family independence program</p> <p>employment and training programs</p> <p>food assistance</p> <p>household composition</p> <p>meetings</p> <p>Family support services</p> <p>Food program for women, infants and children</p> <p>Food stamps budget month changes</p> <p>citizenship and alien status</p> <p>definitions</p> <p>generally</p> <p>household defined</p> <p>income budgeting</p> <p>deductions</p> <p>eligibility standards</p> <p>monthly allotments</p> <p>nonhousehold and ineligible household members</p> <p>resources, exempt and nonexempt</p> <p>standard utility allowance</p> <p>Foster care placement</p>	<p>88-22-084 88-07-122 88-12-087 88-14-049 88-14-058 88-17-122 88-01-082 88-04-089 88-08-038 88-09-079 88-12-093 88-14-051 88-14-059 88-14-081 88-14-082 88-17-062 88-18-024 88-22-034 88-22-035 88-06-078 88-12-088 88-14-080 88-14-083 88-18-025 88-03-049 88-01-027 88-01-028 88-05-004</p> <p>88-10-043 88-14-037 88-15-077 88-18-022</p> <p>88-12-092 88-16-080 88-13-027 88-16-085 88-12-030 88-16-081 88-02-031 88-15-045 88-18-058 88-12-030 88-16-081</p> <p>88-12-091 88-16-082 88-20-044 88-20-046 88-23-085 88-20-044 88-20-046 88-23-085 88-18-053 88-18-059 88-20-045 88-20-048 88-23-082</p> <p>88-12-030 88-16-081 88-12-030 88-16-081 88-04-042 88-20-044 88-20-046 88-23-085 88-13-124 88-14-055 88-17-059</p>
--	--	---	--

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

**SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF—cont.**

Hospitals 88-12-032
88-16-086

charges, billing procedures 88-18-051
88-18-061
88-21-095

definitions 88-13-101
88-18-021

discharge planning 88-13-102
88-18-020

general design requirements 88-12-032
88-16-086
88-20-077
88-23-083

radiology facilities 88-12-032
88-16-086

recordkeeping 88-13-101
88-18-021

IMR, see Developmentally disabled

Inpatient hospital care 88-04-048
88-17-066

Juvenile disposition sentencing standards 88-17-124

Juvenile parole revocation 88-20-083
88-21-046
88-09-038
88-13-028

Juvenile services programs 88-13-028

Landlords, direct receipt of rental payments 88-11-058
88-14-060
88-14-061

Medicaid eligibility
needy infants, children and pregnant women 88-08-041
88-08-042
88-11-063
88-16-054
88-16-060
88-19-033
88-20-043
88-20-047
88-23-084
88-01-042

ownership of resources 88-01-042

Medical assistance
categorically needy 88-03-021
88-06-077
88-09-037
88-14-050
88-14-057
88-17-063
88-21-053
88-21-055
88-24-024

contractors/providers, administrative appeals 88-21-038

dental services 88-02-033
88-02-034

eligibility
certification 88-01-044
88-02-030
medically needy in own home 88-02-036
88-05-056
88-20-079
88-20-080
88-23-081
88-21-054
88-21-056
88-20-042

physical therapy 88-21-054
88-21-056
88-20-042

transportation 88-20-042

Medical care
payments
billing limitations 88-01-041
eligible providers 88-13-107
88-14-056
88-16-084
88-03-021
88-06-083

general 88-03-021
88-06-083

**SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF—cont.**

services provided 88-11-043
88-11-044
88-15-010

Medical institutions
allocation of income 88-19-066
88-23-022
88-13-106
88-14-054
88-16-078

clothing and personal incidentals 88-13-106
88-14-054
88-16-078

Medically needy, limited casualty program
allocation of excess income 88-21-092
88-21-097
88-24-025
88-19-067
88-19-071
88-23-023
88-19-067
88-19-071
88-21-092
88-21-097

eligibility 88-19-067
88-19-071
88-23-023
88-19-067
88-19-071
88-21-092
88-21-097

pregnant women, continuing eligibility 88-19-067
88-19-071
88-21-092
88-21-097

spenddown 88-21-092
88-21-097

Medicare
buy-in and cost-sharing payments 88-21-091
deductible and coinsurance 88-08-060
88-11-061

Nursing homes
accounting and reimbursement 88-01-126
88-02-032
88-21-039
88-13-078
88-13-079
88-16-079
88-01-038
88-04-041
88-04-047
88-04-047
88-03-051
88-03-054
88-06-086
88-03-052
88-03-053
88-06-085
88-01-038
88-04-041

adequate care 88-01-038
88-04-041
88-04-047
88-04-047
88-03-051
88-03-054
88-06-086
88-03-052
88-03-053
88-06-085
88-01-038
88-04-041

bed needs 88-04-047
88-04-047
88-03-051
88-03-054
88-06-086
88-03-052
88-03-053
88-06-085
88-01-038
88-04-041

concurrent review cycles 88-04-047
88-03-051
88-03-054
88-06-086
88-03-052
88-03-053
88-06-085
88-01-038
88-04-041

program administration 88-03-051
88-03-054
88-06-086
88-03-052
88-03-053
88-06-085
88-01-038
88-04-041

receivership 88-03-052
88-03-053
88-06-085
88-01-038
88-04-041

residents' rights 88-01-038
88-04-041

Overpayments
time limits, write-offs and compromises 88-10-004
88-13-059
88-06-079

Parental control defined 88-06-079

Physical therapy eligibility 88-01-043

Prepaid health plans 88-09-078
88-12-089

Radioactive materials
airborne emission permits 88-14-052
88-17-060
88-14-053
88-17-061
88-14-052
88-17-060
88-14-052
88-17-060

fees 88-14-052
88-17-060
88-14-052
88-17-060

definitions 88-14-052
88-17-060
88-14-052
88-17-060

registration 88-14-052
88-17-060
88-17-060

Recovery from estates 88-03-050

Refugee assistance 88-19-091
88-19-093
88-23-018
88-23-019

Rehabilitation
adult residential centers 88-12-029
88-17-022
88-12-029
88-17-022
88-17-022

private adult treatment homes 88-12-029
88-17-022
88-17-022

Respite care services 88-03-020

SSI
excluded resources 88-03-072
88-06-087
88-01-040

standards of assistance 88-03-072
88-06-087
88-01-040

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

**SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF—cont.**

State-operated hospitals
transfer of patients between 88-19-065
88-23-021
Support enforcement 88-02-055
88-02-056
88-07-012
88-15-046
88-21-034
United States standard certificates, 1988
modifications 88-19-034
revision, department approval 88-16-107
Vital records fees 88-11-060
88-15-011

SOUTH PUGET SOUND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

District facilities, use of 88-17-074
88-21-071
Emergency procedures 88-17-074
88-21-071
Environmental protection 88-17-074
88-21-071
Meetings 88-13-046
88-15-056
88-21-059
88-23-066
Parking and traffic regulations 88-17-074
88-21-071
Public records 88-17-074
88-21-071
Repealing obsolete rules due to separation of
Community College District Twelve 88-17-074
88-21-071
Student rights and responsibilities code 88-17-074
88-21-071

SPOKANE COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Meetings 88-01-088
Smoking 88-23-050

**STATE EMPLOYEES BENEFITS BOARD
(See STATE EMPLOYEES INSURANCE
BOARD)**

STATE EMPLOYEES INSURANCE BOARD

Eligibility 88-09-058
88-12-034
88-16-050
88-16-051
88-17-021
88-18-037
88-19-078
88-22-016
88-23-112
88-24-039
Medical and dental coverage, self-payment 88-16-050
88-17-021
88-19-078
Other group coverage option **88-24-039**
State contribution 88-09-058
88-12-034

STATE PATROL

Child and adult abuse
conviction information, release
procedure 88-02-016
88-03-056
Criminal records 88-07-066
88-07-072
88-14-023
88-14-023
Definitions
Disabilities, line duty
Equipment, commission on
brake adjustments, bolt clamp and
wedge type 88-01-018
emergency vehicles
lighting 88-11-018
88-15-053
88-11-012
88-15-052

STATE PATROL—cont.

firemen's private vehicles, green
light devices 88-11-014
88-15-049
flashing amber lamps 88-11-013
88-15-055
head lamp flashing system 88-11-017
88-15-054
ignition interlock devices 88-01-020
88-11-015
88-15-050
license plates, marking 88-14-022
88-20-041
88-20-064
rule making 88-03-031
school bus warning lights 88-11-016
88-15-051
special motor vehicles defined 88-01-017
towing businesses 88-13-058
88-16-021

SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

Budget variance and revision 88-17-120
88-21-017
Citizen complaint, categorical federal
programs 88-06-094
88-09-042
Complaints
actions in response to 88-07-112
88-12-017
directed to school district 88-07-112
88-12-017
investigation of 88-07-112
88-12-017
right to register and process 88-07-112
88-12-016
88-15-020
88-03-006
Definitions
Finance
administrative salary and insurance
benefit compliance 88-03-004
compensation lid compliance 88-03-003
employee benefits, self-funded plans 88-04-001
general apportionment 88-03-013
88-19-077
88-22-064
maintenance and operation levies 88-03-007
special allocations 88-03-005
Former employees, prohibited practices 88-19-095
88-22-063
88-23-011
Funding
applications 88-03-006
expenditures allowed 88-17-119
88-21-018
Grants management 88-09-043
88-13-002
Local program enhancement 88-06-093
88-09-045
Project even start 88-03-011
88-03-012
88-09-044
Schools for the 21st century 88-03-073
88-04-002
88-06-042
Special service programs
citizen complaints 88-06-094
88-09-042
financial assistance to state
education agencies 88-07-113
88-13-089
Teacher assistance program 88-15-026
88-15-027
88-18-038
Total eligible credits, defined 88-14-046
88-19-077
88-22-064

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

—cont.
University of Washington transition school 88-13-075
88-19-026

SUPREME COURT

APR 12 88-13-015
Bar examination fee 88-15-015
Code of judicial conduct 88-07-068

CR
5 88-13-014
30 88-13-014
31 88-13-014
43 88-13-014
52 88-01-063
56 88-13-014
78 88-13-014

ER
412 88-13-014
501 88-13-014
609 88-13-014
807 88-13-014
902 88-13-014
JAR 5 88-10-024
JuCR

1.2 88-01-005
3.7 88-01-005

RAP
10.4 88-19-018
18.14 88-19-018
18.16 88-19-018
RLD 5.7 88-15-014

RPC
1.14 88-13-016
7.2 88-13-014
7.3 88-13-014
7.5 88-13-014
SAR 17 88-13-017

Videotape records of proceedings in superior court 88-23-024

TACOMA COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Meetings 88-01-019
88-03-061
88-11-003
Student rights and responsibilities 88-20-062
88-23-072

TAX APPEALS, BOARD OF

Appeals, notice of 88-10-051
88-13-020
88-13-021
Effective date 88-13-020
Formal hearing 88-10-051
88-13-020
88-13-021

THE EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE

(See EVERGREEN STATE COLLEGE, THE)

TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF

Community economic revitalization board meetings 88-01-075

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMISSION

Meetings 88-01-087
88-12-039
88-14-027

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT

Administrative review 88-01-029
Agricultural areas
surplus property sales 88-22-028
Aircraft
indicia of registration 88-01-089
Design standards committee
arterial streets 88-01-090
Disabled parking in urban areas 88-18-033
88-22-003

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT

—cont.
Ferry system, fare on passenger-only routes **88-24-029**
Ferry systems contractors 88-16-031
88-19-040
88-03-002
88-12-038
88-18-015
88-20-017
Public notice procedures 88-01-029
SEPA rules 88-01-029
Signs
motorist information 88-18-032
88-22-001
outdoor advertising control 88-18-034
88-22-002
Trucks
weight limits on combinations 88-01-081

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT BOARD (See URBAN ARTERIAL BOARD)

TREASURER

Interest rates (see inside front cover)

UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON

Facilities use 88-14-084
88-19-044
88-19-045
Meetings 88-02-024
88-03-026
88-03-027
88-03-060
88-04-055
88-05-008
88-05-009
88-08-049
88-09-009
88-09-024
88-20-053
88-20-063
Small works roster 88-14-140
88-19-041
Stadium boat moorage facilities 88-14-139
88-19-042
88-19-043

URBAN ARTERIAL BOARD

Meetings 88-02-043
88-08-043
88-12-010
88-14-015
88-24-001

USURY

Interest rates (see inside front cover)

UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Accounting and reporting procedures 88-23-030
Address changes 88-01-115
Charter party carriers 88-13-033
88-15-072
88-18-012
Confidential materials 88-01-114
Contracts for all utilities 88-01-113
88-18-062
88-18-077
88-19-106
88-22-037

Garbage and refuse collection companies tariffs 88-05-044
88-08-047

Gas and electric companies discontinuance of service 88-04-076
88-07-070

Information delivery services 88-13-098
88-16-036
88-16-073
88-17-067
88-18-011

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION

COMMISSION—cont.

Meetings 88-01-002
 Motor carrier safety 88-01-116
 Motor carrier tariffs 88-23-118
 88-23-119
 Motor carriers, brokers and forwarders 88-21-115
 Shipment of household goods 88-01-116
 Telecommunications companies
 alternate operator services 88-17-044
 88-23-043
 deposits 88-02-015
 88-04-057
 88-07-027
 88-10-050
 88-13-099
 discontinuance of service 88-13-032
 88-19-105
 intraLATA access discounts 88-07-069
 88-13-031
 88-16-037
 88-16-072
 88-18-063
 88-18-064
 88-23-069
 88-23-070

VETERINARY BOARD OF GOVERNORS
(See LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF)

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION, BOARD FOR

Meetings 88-03-028
 88-04-084
 88-07-075
 88-08-029
 88-11-054
 88-15-004
 88-18-036
 88-23-088

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION, COUNCIL ON

Meetings 88-07-030
 88-15-065
 88-22-009

VOLUNTEER FIREMEN, BOARD FOR

Meetings 88-03-010
 88-09-012
 88-15-034
 88-21-006

WALLA WALLA COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Professional improvement units 88-03-045
 88-07-019
 Reduction in force 88-03-046
 88-07-020

WASHINGTON INSTITUTE OF APPLIED TECHNOLOGY

Meetings 88-05-036
 88-16-022
 88-17-081
 88-19-103
 88-23-007

WASHINGTON STATE LIBRARY

Commission meetings 88-04-086
 88-11-045
 88-17-013
 88-22-027
 Construction match
 asbestos impact 88-02-046
 88-03-018
 88-07-086
 88-07-087
 88-05-023
 Meetings
 Western library network
 meetings 88-01-012
 88-08-032
 88-16-001

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY

Meetings 88-09-041
 88-21-015
88-24-034
 Parking and traffic regulations 88-07-098
 88-12-007

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY

Meetings 88-08-012
 88-15-003
 88-19-037

WHATCOM COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Debts outstanding 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005
 Facilities, use of 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005
 Faculty employment 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005
 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005

Grievances 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005

Health and safety 88-02-039
 88-02-047
 88-04-070
 88-07-057

Meetings 88-02-044
 88-04-085
 88-06-015
 88-07-029
 88-07-035
 88-08-030
 88-10-022
 88-12-020
 88-14-028
 88-15-005
 88-02-039
 88-02-047
 88-04-070
 88-07-057

Parking and traffic 88-02-039
 88-02-047
 88-04-070
 88-07-057

Public records access 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005
 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005

SEPA rules 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005

Student rights and responsibilities 88-07-029
 88-12-020
 88-15-005

WILDLIFE COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT

Animals, exotic or hybrid, permit
 to release **88-24-060**
88-24-060
 Aquatic plants, permit to plant
 Cooperative road management program 88-08-083
 88-13-090
 Cooperative wildlife projects, review
 and selection process 88-14-121
 88-17-030
 Director empowered to alter seasons 88-19-126
88-24-004
 88-05-022
 Dogs
 Domestic animals, permits to graze on
 department lands 88-19-121
 88-23-108
 88-18-070
 88-18-088
 88-05-032
 Endangered species 88-05-032
 Fishing
 Alta Lake 88-17-031
 Amber Lake 88-10-010
 88-16-007
 88-01-006
 Bogachiel River

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

WILDLIFE COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT—cont.

Calawah River 88-01-006
 Carbon River 88-03-023
 classification of game fish 88-14-122
 88-17-020
 88-19-125
 88-23-046
 Clay Pit Pond 88-11-005
 88-14-123
 88-16-038
 88-17-028
 closure of lands east of Cascade crest 88-19-001
 88-19-035
 88-19-072
 Cowlitz River 88-14-021
 88-19-127
 Crumbacker Lake 88-17-031
 Dickey River 88-01-006
 Grand Ronde River 88-02-020
 88-08-005
 88-07-065
 juvenile 88-06-032
 Lenice Lake **88-24-038**
 Mayfield Lake 88-06-032
 Merry Lake 88-06-032
 Nunnally Lake 88-03-023
 Puyallup River 88-06-033
 Quarry Pond 88-01-006
 Quillayute River 88-08-006
 Skagit River 88-01-006
 Soleduck River 88-08-004
 Tucannon River 88-17-031
 Upper Caliche 88-14-122
 Wapato Lake 88-16-039
 88-17-027
 88-19-009
 Wilderness Lake 88-07-065
 1987-88 game fish regulations 88-07-065
 1988-90 game fish regulations 88-19-009
 88-19-127
 88-20-018
 88-20-052
 88-21-032
 88-24-005
 88-24-038
 Game farm licenses 88-16-093
 88-19-128
 Grazing leases 88-19-122
 88-19-123
 88-23-110
 Hunting
 bear 88-05-065
 88-06-006
 88-07-093
 88-24-061
 88-08-084
 88-13-012
 bow and arrow requirements 88-19-001
 88-19-035
 88-19-072
 cougar 88-06-065
 88-13-035
 deer, special season **88-24-019**
 88-24-020
 88-24-036
 disabled persons 88-08-086
 88-11-051
 88-14-124
 88-16-008
 88-17-029
 elk
 White River unit 88-03-032
 goat 88-06-065
 88-13-035
 lynx 88-06-065
 88-13-035

WILDLIFE COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT—cont.

moose 88-06-065
 88-13-035
 sheep 88-06-065
 88-13-035
 turkey 88-06-006
 88-24-061
 1987 hunting seasons and bag limits 88-08-083
 88-13-090
 1987 upland migratory game bird seasons 88-14-118
 88-17-087
 1987-88 trapping seasons and regulations 88-14-119
 88-17-089
 1987-88 upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons 88-14-120
 88-17-088
 1988 hunting seasons and bag limits 88-08-083
 88-13-090
 88-22-012
 1988-89 and 1989-90 trapping seasons and regulations 88-14-119
 88-17-089
 88-23-077
 1988-89 and 1989-90 upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons 88-14-120
 88-17-088
 88-19-073
 88-19-124
 88-23-047
 Livestock grazing on department lands 88-14-115
 88-14-116
 88-14-117
 88-17-017
 88-17-018
 88-17-019
 88-19-123
 88-23-109
 Meetings 88-23-071
 Release of wildlife 88-16-095
 88-19-128
 Scientific permits 88-05-031
 Season closures, director's authority 88-16-094
 88-19-126
 88-19-128
 88-24-004
 Tagging requirements
 bobcat, Canada lynx, cougar and river otter 88-08-085
 88-13-091
 Wildlife rehabilitation permits 88-06-064
 88-09-036

YAKIMA COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Children's participation in college activities 88-04-024
 88-12-012

WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER Subscriptions

To: Subscription Clerk
WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER
Code Reviser's Office
Legislative Building
Olympia, WA 98504

I would like to order _____ subscription(s) to the WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER, at an annual rate of \$161.70, sales tax included (\$150 for state agencies). Enclosed is my check or money order for \$_____. Please start my subscription with the January issue of 19 ____.

NAME _____

ADDRESS _____

TELEPHONE _____

THE WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER, published pursuant to RCW 34.08.020, is distributed on the first and third Wednesdays of each month. The Register contains the full text of proposed, emergency, and permanently adopted rules of state agencies, executive orders of the governor, notices of public meetings of state agencies, rules of the state supreme court, summaries of attorney general opinions, and juvenile disposition standards which have been filed in the code reviser's office prior to the pertinent closing date for that issue of the Register. A cumulative table of existing sections of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) affected by a particular agency action guides the user to the proper volume of the Register.

The code reviser's office has established an annual subscription price of \$150 for the Register, and single copies will cost \$7. Sales tax of 7.8% now applies to all sales other than to state agencies. State law requires payment in advance. To subscribe to the Register, please complete the order form above and forward it to the address indicated, accompanied by your check or money order in the amount of \$161.70 (\$150 for state agencies) payable to the code reviser's office.